
Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting 

Wednesday, March 21, 2018 

10:00 a.m. 

No. 1 Capitol District Building 

250 South Hotel Street, Honolulu, HI 

Conference Room 436 



SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT) Tel 808 586-2594 
No. I Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St. 5th Fl., Honolulu, Hawaii 9681 3 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804 
Email: dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, March 21, 2018 * 10:00 a.m. 

David Y. Ige No. 1 Capitol District Building Governor 

250 South Hotel Street - Conference Room 436 
Luis P. Salaveria 
DBEDT Director 

I. Call to Order 
Members II. Approval of January 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

Anthony Borge 
Chai1perso11 III. Old Business 

Oahu 

A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public 
Robert Cundiff 
Vice Chai1person Hearing and Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) 

Oahu Title 15 Chapter 37, Solar Water Heater Variance, promulgated by 
Garth Yamanaka Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism (DBEDT) 
2"'1 Vice Chai/person Discussion Leader - Mark Ritchie 

Hawaii B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public 
Harris Nakamoto Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12 Chapter 22, Wage 

Oahu Determinations and the Administration and Enforcement of Chapter 
Nancy Atmospera-Walch 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, promulgated by Department of Labor and 

Oahu Industrial Relations (DLIR) - Discussion Leader - Kyoko Kimura 
Kyoko Kimura C. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public 

Maui Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 44.1 , 
Reg Baker Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Perform 

Oahu Maintenance and Testing of Portable Fire Extinguishers, Fire 
Director, DBEDT Protection Systems, and Fire Alarm Systems, promulgated by Hawaii 

Voting Ex Officio State Fire Council / DLIR - Discussion Leader - Kyoko Kimura 
D. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public 

Hearing on HAR Title 18, Chapter 23 7, General Excise Tax Law, as 
follows, promulgated by Depaitment of Taxation: 
1. Amendments to Section 8.6, County Surcharge 
2. Proposed New Section 29.53, Exported Services 

IV. New Business 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13 
Chapter 104, Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserves, 
promulgated by Depaitment of Land and Natural Resources - Discussion 
Leader - Mark Ritchie 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New HAR Title 4 Chapter 162, Food 
Safety Certification Costs Grant Program, promulgated by Department of 
Agriculture - Discussion Leader - Rob Cundiff 

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Repeal ofHAR Title 11, Chapter 200, 
and Proposed New Chapter 200.1, Environmental Impact Statement Rules, 
promulgated by Depaitment of Health - Discussion Leader - Harris 
Nakamoto 

D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 15 
Chapter 15, Land Use Commission Rules, promulgated by DBEDT / 
Land Use Commission - Discussion Leader - Mark Ritchie 

mailto:dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
March 21, 2018 
Page2 

V. Legislative Matters 

A. Update on House Bill 2235, Senate Bill 2753 and Senate Bill 2885, 
"Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board" - Clarifies the 
Intent of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board's Powers when 
Reviewing State and County Administrative Rules that Impact Small 
Business 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor' s Message to the State 
Legislature Submitting for Consideration of the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Mary Albitz to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a te1m to 
expire June 30, 2021 

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State 
Legislature Submitting for Consideration of the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Will Lydgate to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to 
expire June 30, 2021 

D. Update on Governor's Messages 513 and 514, Submitting for Consideration 
the Gubernatorial Nomination of Reg Baker to the Small Business 
Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2018 and 
June 30, 2022, respectively 

E. Discussion and Action on Senate Bill 2059 "Relating to Public Accountancy" 
Specifies who may be granted a temporary permit to practice public 
accountancy. Specifies the requirements that must be met prior to obtaining 
a temporary permit to practice. Requires a person to obtain a temporary 
pe1mit to practice from the board ofpublic accountancy prior to commencing 
public accountancy services in Hawaii. Specifies a time frame for the 
temporary permit to practice. Requires persons granted a temporary permit 
to practice to consent to and certify various obligations, including being 
under the authority of the board ofpublic accountancy and paying all 
applicable taxes to the State. Makes confmming amendments to the laws 
relating to public accountancy; takes effect on 1/1/2019 

VI. Administrative Matters 

A. Discussion and Action on the Board's Investigative Taskforce's 
Recommendation for the proceeding with Redesign of the existing Website 

B. Discussion on Governor's Administrative Directive No. 18-02, dated 
January 1, 2018, updating the policy and procedure by which departments or 
agencies request executive approval of any proposed adoption, amendment, 
or repeal ofadministrative rules 

C. Discussion and Action on the Board's Proposed Letter to Governor Ige 
regarding the cunent Pilot Project that allows Uber and Lyft Drivers to 
Operate at the Honolulu International Airpmt 

D. Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in 
accordance with the Board's Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes: 
1. Discussion and Action on Hawaii Small Business Conference held 

at Maui Arts & Cultural Center on May 2 - 3, 2018 



Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
March 21, 2018 
Page 3 

VII. Next Meeting: Scheduled for Wednesday, April 1T8,., 2018f at 10:00 a.m., 
Capitol District Building, Conference Room 21-36, .ttonolu u, Hawaii 

VIII. Adjournment 

If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to pa1ticipate in the 
public hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or 
parking designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2399 at least three (3) 
business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 



II. Approval of January 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes 



Approved: _________ 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - Draft 
January 24, 2018 
Conference Room 436 - No. 1 Capitol District Building, Honolulu, Hawaii 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Borge called the meeting to order at 10:01 p.m., with a quorum 
present. Mr. Art Mori, this Board's newly-hired temporary assistant, was welcomed. 

ABSENT MEMBERS: MEMBERS PRESENT: 
• Harris Nakamoto • Anthony Borge, Chair 
• Nancy Atmospera-Walch • Robert Cundiff, Vice Chair 

• Garth Yamanaka, 2nd Vice 
Chair 

• Kyoko Kimura 
• Reg Baker 
• Mark Ritchie 

STAFF:DBEDT Office of the Attorney General 
Dori Palcovich Jennifer Waihee-Polk 
Arthur Mori 

II. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 13, 2017 MINUTES 

Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to accept the December 13, 2017 minutes, as presented. 
Mr. Baker seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

111. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and 
proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13, Subtitle 7, Water Resources, promulgated by 
Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR), as follows: 

1. Chapter 167, Rules of Practice and Procedure for the Commission on Water 
Resource Management 

2. Chapter 168, Water, Use Wells, and Stream Diversion Works 
3. Chapter 169, Protection of lnstream Uses of Water 

Discussion leader, Mr. Ritchie explained that the proposed rules, reflecting updated statutes, 
were in front of this Board before the public hearing. At the hearing, all testimonies were in 
support of the amendments; some testifiers wanted more enforcement of the State Water 
Code. 

Mr. Ritchie made a motion to pass the rules onto the Governor for adoption. Second Vice 
Chair Yamanaka seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

1 



B. Re-discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Subtitle 8, Hawaii 
Occupational Safety and Health Division, promulgated by Department of Labor and 
Industrial Relations (DUR), as follows: 

i. Part 1, General Legal and Administrative Provisions for Occupational Safety and 
Health 
a. Chapter 50, General Provisions and Definitions 
b. Chapter 52.1, Recording and Reporting Occupational Injuries and Illnesses 
c. Chapter 56, Program Fees and Library Policies, General Safety and Health 

Requirements 
11. Part 2, General Legal and Administrative Provisions for Occupational Safety and 

Health 
a. Chapter 60, General Safety and Health Requirements 

iii. Part 3, Construction Standards 
a. Chapter 110, General Safety and Health Requirements 

iv. Part 5, Occupational Safety and Health Standards for Shipyard Employment 
a. Chapter 170, Shipyards 

v. Part 6, Marine Terminals 
a. Chapter 180, Marine Terminals 

vi. Part 7, Safety and Health Regulations for Longshoring 
a. Chapter 190, Longshoring 

vii. Part 8, Other Safety and Health Standards 
a. Chapter 208, Other Safety and Health Standards 

Mr. Norman Ahu, DLIR's HIOSH Administrator, explained that since he was in front of this 
Board last month, two stakeholder meetings were held; meeting notes were provided to the 
members. Most of the stakeholders' concerns related to silica regulations; it was noted that 
adoption of many of the changes is mandatory. 

.,,.:.;. 

Mr. Ahu re-emphasized that 'Table 1" benefits the employer. HIOSH is committed to 
continue holding stakeholder meetings going forward. One suggestion regarding 
exemptions is currently being discussed; and if possible, HIOSH will accommodate the 
suggestion and place it in the rules. 

Testifier Mr. V\/alter Chun, PhD., a safety and health professional and State of Hawaii 
consultant, has forty-five years of experience in the occupational safety and health 
profession. He explained how the rule amendments apply to the stakeholders and 
distributed his written testimony which entailed: 1) HIOSH citation penalties,2) measures 
used by OSHA, and 3) industrial safety and health news. 

Mr. Chun noted that the average HIOSH penalty of a homeowner in the past two years has 
been over $2,000. He attended HIOSH's stakeholders' meeting, which he believed went 
well , but there were open questions as to how changes are going to be made and what 
assistance HIOSH will be giving. He would like to have all the stakeholders (businesses and 
homeowners) able to understand exactly what the rule changes and processes entail. 

2 



Testifier Mr. Tim Lyons, representing the subcontractor's association, explained that 
although he was unable to attend last month's Board meeting, his written testimony has not 
changed. He thanked this Board for being instrumental in encouraging HIOSH to hold the 
stakeholders' meetings. He added that while some progress has been made, there is not 
much that HIOSH can do about the silica regulations as the federa l government is forcing its 
hands on this issue. However, the silica standard is very difficult to understand and HOISH 
could be more helpful in assisting the business community by providing samplings of silica 
and/or descriptions in certain situations. 

Testifier Mr. Blake Parson, Executive Director of SMCA (Sheet Metal Contractors 
Association of Hawaii) stated that because there are still underlying unknowns to the 
ramifications of the rules, it would be impractical, for example, for his members to purchase 
$10,000 worth of equipment when it turns out to be unnecessary, which is occurring now 
with the regulations as presented. 

Chair Borge stated that because there are so many variables and issues involved with 
operating a small business along with understanding and following the proposed rule 
amendments, guidance from HIOSH is essential; without such guidance, small businesses 
run the risk of being cited. In response, Mr. Ahu expressed that HIOSH is willing to continue 
with the stakeholder meetings for training. Because HIOSH is fully cognizant of the small 
business' concerns, it is available to do (silica) "sampling" at no expense; he added that the 
proposed rules are a benefit to businesses. 

Vice Chair Cundiff thanked the HIOSH representatives for reaching out to the stakeholders. 
Based on the discussion today, he questioned what can be done to provide the businesses 
with correct information so they are able to comply with the set guidelines so small 
businesses are able to comply with the rules. Mr. Ahu responded that the businesses must 
,take advantage of HIOSH's ongoing consultation,·· in-house training, and guidelines. ~, 1• 

Mr. Ritchie made a motion to recommend that HIOSH continue with ongoing discussions 
with the small business stakeholders' concerns, and to move the proposed rule amendments 
to public hearing. Ms. Kimura seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously 
agreed. 

IV. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State Legislature 
Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination of Reg Baker to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board for a term.to expire June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2022 

Ms. Kimura made a motion for this Board to testify in support of the Gubernatorial 
Nomination of Mr. Baker to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board. Vice Chair 
Cundiff seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Senate and House Bills, Relating to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board - "Clarifies the Intent of the Small Business 
Regulatory Review Board's Powers when Reviewing State and County Administrative 
Rules that Impact Small Business" 

3 



Chair Borge explained that these bills, which clarify the Board's powers, were currently 
introduced in the legislature. All four bills, House Bill 2235, House Bill 2326, Senate Bill 
2753, and Senate Bill 2885, are the same. 

Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to provide testimony in support of all four measures, 
House Bill 2235, House Bill 2326, Senate Bill 2753, and Senate Bill 2885, "Relating to the 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board." Mr. Baker seconded the motion, and the Board 
members unanimously agreed. 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Deliberation, Decision Making, and Action on the Board's Investigative Taskforce 
Findings and Recommendations regarding the Development and Redesign of the Board's 
existing Website including Contact. Features and Short- and Long-Term Goals in 
accordance with Section 92-2.5(b)(1)(C), HRS 

Mr. Ritchie explained that last month's meeting minutes encompassed the proposal from the 
website's taskforce regarding the functionality of the type of website that would be best for 
this Board to draw small business owners to it, and to have sufficient information so users 
can get more involved and become more interactive; as follows: 

- The "regulation review card" is to have an ability to receive testimony on upcoming 
meetings as well as to receive information on existing regulations; 

- A feature to show how rules are made through the rule-making process; 
- A link to the State's Legislative website where statutes and bills are viewed; 
- The design of the website will have less of a government look with more pictures 

and graphics; 
- Dates of the agencies' pualic hearings will be accessed from the website's calendar; 
- A sign-up e-mail link to re·deive monthly agendas and to monitor specific rules will be 

offered. 

Mr. Ritchie stated that for web maintenance and web design Hawaii Information Consortium 
(HIC) is very good, and suggested that two to three price quotes be procured. Mr. Cundiff 
added that this Board can currently take steps regarding changes to the website for its end 
goal. It was suggested that a dialogue be created with the three potential web 
designers/services. 

Mr. Ritchie made a motion for the website investigative taskforce to proceed with the website 
design by getting price quotes from at least three different IT organizations. Ms. Kimura 
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

B. Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with 
the Board's Powers under Section 201 M-5, HRS 

Chair Borge reminded the members that he and Mr. Baker will be on ThinkTech's live-stream 
show, "Business in Hawaii with Reg Baker" on Thursday, January 26th at 2:00 p.m. 

4 



VI. NEXT MEETING - The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 21 , 
2018, in Conference room 436, 250 South Hotel Street, Honolulu, Hawaii at 10:00 
a.m. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT - Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. 
Baker seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 12:05 p.m. 

'I, , ' •I • 

5 



III. Old Business 

A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business 
Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed 
Amendments to HAR Title 15, Chapter 37, Solar 
Water Heater Variance, promulgated by DBEDT 



SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBL w 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW 0JJtA-&.J-=:-=-:-;r.-;;r?~__, 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201 M-3) 

Department or Agency: DBEDT Energy Division 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: ·s.c..w,.., , ... , ..varlance,"Chapter ls-37 

Chapter Name: "Solar Water Heater Variance" 

Contact Person/Title: Dean Masai, DBEDT Energy Analyst 

Phone Number: 587-3804 

E-mail Address: dean.masai@hawail.gov Date: January 16, 2018 

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in 
HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general 
description of the subjects involved. · 

B. Are th_e draft rules available for viewing ~erson and on the Lieutenant Governor's 
Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes LJ No l ✓ I Not yet on Lt. Gav's sjte, but on DBEDT's 

and Energy Office websites. 
(If "Yes" please provide webpage address and when and where rules may be 

(Please keep the proposed rules on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting.) 

I. Rule Description: Newl✓ I Repeal D Amendment D Compilation D 
II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l✓ I No O1f "No" no need 

to submit this form.) 

* "Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . .. 
that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the 
formali_on, operation, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201 M-1 

* "Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited 
partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in 
Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer !~an one hundred full-time or part-
time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201 M-1 ' 

Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that 
does not require the agenc,ll-!\> inter~r1t or describe the requirements of the 
statute or ordinance? YesLJ No ✓ (If "Yes" no need to submit this fo rm.) 
(e.g., a federally-mandated regulation a does not afford the agency the discretion 
to c~nsider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201 M-2(d) 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
(HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l✓ I (If "Yes" no need to submit this form.) 

* * * 

REVI SEO 8/.15/20 17 

mailto:dean.masai@hawail.gov


Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 2 

I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development 
of the proposed rules. 

(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED PAGES.) 

a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? 
If yes, explain. If not, why not? 

II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted 
above, please provide the following information: 

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses 
were solicited. 

2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 

3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 

4. The number of persons who: 
(i) Attended the public hearing: 

(ii) Testified at the hearing: 

(iii) Submitted written comments: 

5. W as a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that 
affected small business? 
(i) If "Yes" was the change adopted? Yes D No D 
(ii) If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the 

problems or negative result of the change. 

* * * 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT 

Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
This statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements

pre-and-post-public-hearing 

Rev. 8/15/20 l 7 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 1 

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS 
§92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general 
description of the subjects involved. 

The topic of the proposed new rule is the automation ofthe solar water heater variance 
approval process. ·The main purpose of this rnle is (1) to enable the Department of Business, 
Economic Development and Tourism to more efficiently accept and process variances 
(exemptions),to the solar water heater mandate in Hawaii Revised Statutes §196-6.5 by 
allowing variances to be submitted via a website and (2) to charge a fee for variance 
submittal that offsets the administrative expenses of the hosting.and maintenance of the 
website. 

Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 1 Page iofl 



Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 2 

I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of 
the proposed rules. · 
The development of the proposed rule was solely for the purpose of automating the statutory 
required variance process and to collect a processing fee for the variance. Therefore>small 
business input was not needed. Small businesses were invited to comment at the public 
hearing held for the proposed rule. The Depa1iment did not receive any comments from · 
small businesses. 

a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? If 
yes, explain. If not, why not? 
The Department did not receive any recommendations from small businesses. The 
recommendations proposed at the public hearing require State legislative action. 

II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide the following information: 

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were 
solicited. 
A public heming notice was published in the five· major county newspapers, notice 
was posted on the Depaiiment's website, and notice ofthe public heming were 
included in e-mail correspondence with those submitting variance requests. 

2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 
There were two testifiers at the public hearing, neither represented small business. 
Both people urged the Department to revise the proposed rules to stringently enforce 
published legislative intent prohibiting home developers and builders from applying 
for solar water heater variances using the gas tankless water heater option. 

3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 
While the Department appreciates the intent of the comments, it notes that the 
legislative intent referenced by the testifiers is so unsupported by the strncture and 
actual wording ofthe curr~nt statute that it would be difficult to justify such a change 
without the express assent ofthe Legislature through fmther legislative action. 

4. The number of person_s who: 
(i) Attended the public hearing: 

Six. 

(ii) Testified at the hearing: 
Two. 

(iii) Submitted written comments: 
One. 

Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 2 Page 1 o/2 



5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that 
affected small business? 
Yes. Both testi:(iers urged the Department to revise the proposed rules to strictly 
enforce publicly stated legislative intent to deny home developers and builders :from 

, using the gas tankless water heaters as justification for a variance :from the mandatory 
solar water heater law. 

(i) If "Yes" was the change adopted? No 

(ii) If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the 
problems or negative result of the change. 

Adopting the change recommended by the testifiers requires legislative action, 
which is not in the purview of the Department. 

Small Business Statement after Public Hearing- Page 2 Page 2 o/2 



HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 15 
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS , ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT , AND 

CHAPTER 37 
SOLAR WATER HEATER VARIANCE 

SUBCHAPTER I IN GENERAL 

§1-1 Purpose 
§1-2 Definitions 

SUBCHAPTER 2 ELIGIBILITY FOR, SELECTION CRITERIA, AND 
TERMINATI ON OF SOLAR WATER HEATER VARIANCES 

§2-1 Eligibility criteria for SWHV 
§2-2 Procedure for SWHV 
§2-3 Criteria for state review of SWHV requests 
§2-4 Procedure for amendment of SWHV 
§2-5 Procedure for termi nation of approved SWHV by the State 

SUBCHAPTER 3 ADMINISTRATION 

§3-1 Administration 
§3-2 Waiver 
§3-3 Severability 

§ 1- 1 Purpose . The purpose of this chapter is to provide 
rules for administration of the state solar water heater 
variance program authorized by chapter 196-6.5, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes (" HRS " ) . [Eff June 26 , 2008 , Act 204 ] 

§1-2 Definitions . As used in this chapter , unless a 
different meaning c l early appears in the context : 

"Authorized to do business in the State" means a 
corporation incorporated under chapter 416 , HRS , a foreign 
corporation admitted under chapter 418, HRS, a corporation 
incorporated under chapter 415 , HRS , or a foreign corporation 
admitted under chapter 415 , HRS ; a partnership registered under 
chapt er 425 , HRS , or 425D, HRS ; or a sole proprietorship. 

"County" or " counties " means t h e City and County of 
Honolulu and the counties of Hawaii , Kauai , and Maui. 

"DBEDT" means the State of Hawaii Department of Business , 
Economic Development , and Tourism . .. 

" Department" means the State of Hawaii Department of 
Business , Economic Development , and Tourism . 

Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Variance Program · Page 1 of 6 



" Director" means the director of the Department of 
Business , Economic Development, and Touri sm . 

"Fami ly" means any group of people , which may include 
children, living together as a unit . 

"HRS" mean s Hawaii Revised Statutes , the laws of the State 
of Hawaii , which were passed by the State Legislature and signed 
by the Governor or allowed to become law without signat ure . 

" Program" means the state solar water heater variance 
program authorized by chapter 196-6.5 , HRS . 

"Qualified professional " means any architect or mechanical 
engineer l icensed to do business in the State , which is : 

(1) Subject to t he state corporate or individual i ncome tax 
under chapt er 235 , HRS ; 

(2) Engaged in design or engineering of a Hawaii single 
family dwelling . 

"Representative" is a person who submits a Request for 
Variance from the Mandatory Sol ar Water Heater Law on behalf of 
and with the consent of the homeowner or future homeowner . 

"Request" means a valid "Request for Variance from the 
Mandatory S6lar Water Heater Law" form . 

" Requester" is a homeowner or representative requesting a 
Solar Water Heating Variance (SWHV) . 

"Single family dwelling" means a bu ilding designed for one 
family to live in . This excludes duplexes, triplexes , 
apartments , condominiums , and other structures built for 
multiple families . 

"Solar water heater" ("SWH") is a device in which water is 
heated by the sun to prov ide domes t ic hot water . ~ost SWH 
systems in Hawaii use a series of large glass and metal panels 
containing a metal pipe winding itself inside·. The panels are 
usually installed on a bui lding ' s roof. The heated water is 
usually stored in a large tank (80 gallons or more). In an 
active system, an ~lectric pump pumps the water from the supply 
pipe through the pipe that runs through the panels and into the 
storage t ank. In a passive system, the heated water moves 
through ·t he pipe thr o ugh natural convection . 

" State" means the State of Hawaii . 
"SWHV" is a "solar water heater variance , " a request to be 

exempt from HRS chapter 1 96-6 . 5 , which requires a s olar water 
heating system for new single-family residential construction. 

"Valid fo r m" is a template , usually in Microsoft "Word" or 
an online form for t he Request for Variance from the Mandator y 
Solar Water Heater Law that is designated by the State to be the 
most recent version that compli es with state requirements. 

Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 2 of 6 



SUBCHAPTER 2 

ELIGIBILITY FOR, SELECTION CRITERIA, 
AND TERMINATION OF SWHV 

§2-1 Eligibility-crit~ria for a SWHV. 
(a) To be eligible for a solar water heater variance , a 

home shall be : 
(1) Built on or after January 1 , 2010 . 
(2) A single family dwelling . 
(3) Located within the state of Hawaii . 

(b) The requester sha l l submit to the St ate a valid , 
correctly completed Request for Variance from the Mandatory 
Solar Water Heater Law form . 

(c) The request must be submitted by a qualified 
professional who is an architect or mechanical engineer licensed 
to do business in the State of Hawaii according to HRS 464 .

•(d) The form should be printed on the l etterhead of the 
architect or mechanical engineer , or correctly completed online. 

(e) A valid form can be obtained by: 
(1) Accessing the DBEDT Energy Division Solar Water Heater 

Variance website and completing the online form ; 
(2) Downloading a form from the DBEDT Energy Division 

website ; or 
(3) e-mailing the program office at : 

DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii.gov . 
·(f) A request must be submitted for each dwelling. 
(g) Fee : A SWHV processing fee of $25 . 00 shall be charged 

for each SWHV request . The request shall be processed when the 
fee is received . 

§2-2 Procedure for SWHV . 
(a) Homeowner or representative (requester) submits a 

properly completed , valid Request for Variance from the 
Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form and fee payment to the 
State via : 

(1) Online at the DBEDT Energy Divi sion Solar Water Heater 
Variance website . 

(2) E-mail: DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii . gov . 
(3) Fax : 808-586-2536 . 
(4) U.S. Postal Service : SWH Variance , c/o DBEDT Energy 

Division , P . O. Box 2359 , Honolulu , HI 96804-2359 . 
(5) Hand delivery . 

(b) The State reviews the request . 

Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 3 of 6 

mailto:DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii.gov
mailto:DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii.gov


(c) The State shall immediately inform the requestor of any 
errors on the request , if the request is on an invalid form , or 
if there is a problem with the fee payment. 

(d) After review, the correct and paid requests are sent to 
the director or his/her designee . 

(e) The director/designee approves or denies the request. 
(f) The requestor is notified of the director ' s/designee's 

decis i on. 
(g) A copy of the approved request is sent to the 

requestor. 
(h) Information about the request is posted on the 

department ' s SWHV webpage, including the director' s approval or 
denial of the request . 

§2-3 Criteria for state review of SWHV request. 
(a) Upon receiving a Request for Variance from the 

Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form and f ee payment , the 
request is reviewed to ensure that: 

(1) Requ~st is on a valid form . 
(2) Fee is paid. 
(3) Request is correctly completed, including: 

(A) Printed on architect's or mechanical engineer's 
letterhead with name, address , e -mail address, and 
phone number. In lieu of a letterhead, the 
architect's or mechanical engineer's name, address, 
e-mail address , and phone number shall be written 
on the form or inputted into the online form. 

(B) Return e-mail address to which the Request for· 
Variance from the Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law 
form should be returned . 

(C) The property's address (at least the street name), 
· town and island. 

(D) The property ' s Tax Map Key (TMK) number. 
(E) One of the options is checked. 
(F) If Option 1 (installation impractical and/or cost

prohibitive ) is checked, a Life Cycle Cost 
Comparison, a lso available from the SWHV website or 
the program office, is included and properly 
completed , including archit ect 's or mechanical 
engineer ' s stamp and signature. 

(G) If Option 2 (renewable energy technology) is 
checked , the renewable system to be installed is 
circled or otherwise marked. 

(H) If Option 3 (gas tankless on-demand water heater) 
is checked, at least one additional gas appliance 
is listed on the line under the Option 3 paragr aph . 

(I) Request is signed and stamped by the architect or 
mechanical engineer . 

Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 4 of 6 



(b) The request shall be reviewed by the department and 
sent to t he director or director's designee for review . 

(c) The director shall approve or deny a request based upon 
requirements of HRS 196-6 . 5. 

(d) A requester whose variance request is denied shall be 
notified and provided with the reasons for denial . 

§2- 4 Procedure for amendment of a SWHV. 
(a) A homeowner may request amendment (or termination--see 

following ~ection) o f an approved SWHV by submitting a written 
notification to the department and a revised SWHV request . 

(b) Requests for an amendment will be considered if the 
amendment relates to a change in the homeowner ' s choice of water 
heating device. 

(c) If the amendment is to change to a solar water heater, 
no fee will be required . All other amendments require payment 
of the current SWHV processing fee . 

(d) The request for amendment shall be reviewed by the 
department and forwarded to the director or his/her designee. 

(e) If approved by the director/designee , the amendment 
shall take effect on the date of approval . 

(f) A homeowner whose application for amendmen t is denied 
by the director/designee shall be notified and provided with the 
reasons for denial. 

SUBCHAPTER 3 
ADMINISTRATION 

§3-1 Administration . (a) The department is authorized to 
implement and enforce the rules of this chapter . 

(b) The department shall monitor the program to assure 
adherence to these rules , the effect iven ess of the rules , and 
that the purpose of the program is still relevant to the intent 
of HRS 196-6.5 . 

§3-2 Fee Increases . From time to time , it may be necessary 
to increase the SWHV processing fee , as required in §2-l( g) . A 
fee increase shall be instituted when approved by the department 
director and posted on the department's website for 30 calendar 
days. 

§3-3 Waiver. The director may waive particular provisions 
of this chapter to conform to applicable federal requirements . 

Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 5 of 6 



§3-4 Severability . If any part, section , sentence , clause, 
or phr ase of this chapter, o r its application to a n y person , 

· transaction , or other circumstance , is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, the remaining part s , sections, 
sentences , c l auses, and phrases of t his chapt er , or its 
application t o other persons , transactions , or circumstances 
shall not be affected. 

### 

Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Vari ance Program Page 6 of 6 



III. Old Business 

B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business 
Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed 
Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 22, Wage 
Determinations and the Administration and 
Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, promulgated by DLIR 



SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 

Department or Agency: Departmen of Labor and Industrial Relations 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: HAR 12-22 

Ch apter ~ame: wAM. "'""''""l'o" • """Tl<EAOMINISTAATION AAD eN,oRcetAEtrro, CHAPTER,... HAWAII RE'll••o erAnrr•• 

Contact Person/Title: Pamela Martin 

Phone Number: 808-586-8771 

E-mail Address: pamela.b.marting@hawall.gov Date: 0310812018 

A To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in 
HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general 
description of the subjects involved. 

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing ~erson and on the Lieutenant Governor's 
Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes lLJ No D 
(If "Yes" please provide webpage address and when and where rules may be 
viewed in person.) http:lnabor.hawall.gov/wsdlfind-a~aw/; 830 punchbowl St, Room 340, Honolulu, HI 96816 and all WSD olllces on Kauai, Maul and Hawaii 

(Please keep the proposed rules on this web page until after the SBRRB meeting.) 

I. Rule Description: NewO Repeal D Amendment.I ✓ ! Compilation l✓ I 
II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yesl ✓ INoOlf "No" no need 

to submit this form.) · 

* "Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business ... 
that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the 
.formation, operation, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201M-1 

* "Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited 
partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in 
Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part
time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1 

· Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that 
does nof require the agencQo inte~'Y or describe the requirements of the 
statute or ordinance? Yes No ✓ (If "Yes" no need to submit this form.) 
( e·.g., a federally-mandated reg lation a does not afford the agency the discretion 
to consider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201M-2(d) 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
.(HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l✓ I (If "Yes" no need to submitthis form.) 

* * * 

REVISED 8/15i'.Wl7 

http:lnabor.hawall.gov/wsdlfind-a~aw
mailto:pamela.b.marting@hawall.gov


Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 2 

I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development 
of the proposed rules. 

Classroom activity 

a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? 
If yes, explain. If not, why not? 

Yes. No inclusion of reports of no-work weeks. 

II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted 
above, please provide the following information: 

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses 
were solicited. 

Classroom activity 

2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments . 

. The substantive testimony focused on support of inclusion for certain types of work that 
is regulated under the law. 

3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 

We believe this testimony supports the current amendments and past treatments the Department 
has made through its determinations. No testimony objecting to the amendments was received. 

4. The number of persons who: 
(i) Attended the public hearing: 1a 

(ii) Testified at the hearing: 13 

(iii) Submitted written comments: 2 

5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that 
affected small business? 
(i) If "Yes" was the change adopted? Yes D No D 
(ii) If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the 

problems or negative result of the change. 

No change was requested 

** * 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DBEDT 

Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
This statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements

pre-and-post-public-hearing 

R.:1 . S I 5 20 I 7 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Statement of the Topic of the Proposed Rules Amendments to HAR 12-22 WAGE DETERMINATIONS AND 

THE ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 104, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES 

These rules are being updated to reflect 19 statutory changes over the last 20 years and to 
clarify some areas where the law is not clear on enforcement or administration of the Wages 
and Hours ofEmployees on Public Works Law. 

a. Bring the rules in line with statute changes. 
1) Amending the penalty provisions to track the current statutes, (see 

Subchapter 2) 
2) Defines "falsification" (§12"22"1) 
3) Amend the method of calculation of prevailing wages (§12"22"2) 
4) Amend that appeals go to a hearings officer appointed by the director not 

the Labor and Industrial Relations Appeals Board (§12"22"9) 

b. Provide new rules for new statutes. 
1) Adds a new subchapter for construction on State and county leased 

buildings subject to the law. (See new Subchapter 4) 
2) Adds a new subchapter for construction projects subject to Special Purpose 

Revenue Bonds (SPRB). (See new Subchapter 5) 

c. Make modifications to the law to improve the enforcement and administration of 
the law. 
1) Adds new subchapter for the administration of appeals. (See Subchapter 3) 
2) Clarifies that the employer's cost of pre-paid health care is an allowable 

fringe benefit. (See definition of "cost of fringe benefit" §12"22"1) 
3) Repeals the exemption for warranty work done by the manufacturer. (See 

definition of "construction of public work" §12"22"1) This follows the federal 
version of prevailing wage. 

4) Clarifies the asphalt paving industry of delivering paving materials to 
spreader box trucks. (See memo dated July 13, 2013) and §12"22"1.1) 



foJrn®~~w~~ 
l!l] MAR J, .?0/41' ~ Small Business Impact Statement 

(Sec 201 M-2, HRS) 
,_s-c3 

Department or Agency: Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, 
Wage Standards Division 

Relevant HRS Chapter or Section: HRS Chapter 104, Wages and Hours of 
Employees on Public Works Law 

Administrative Rule Chapter and Title: HAR §12-22, Wage Determinations and the 
Administration and Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes 

Name: Pamela Martin 

Title: Administrator, Wage Standards Division 

Phone Number: 808-586-8771 

Email Address: pamela.b.martin@hawaii.gov 

A. Provide information described in Section 201M-2{b), HRS and in 
Governor's Administrative Directive No. 09-01. 

The Wage Standards Division submitted this summary of proposed 
amendments to the administrative rules for Chapter 104, Wages and Hours of 
Employees on Public Works Law to the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board for their consideration at their November 2017 meeting. The Board 
suggested we hold the public hearing and then resubmit these amendments 
after the public hearing. 

A public hearing was held on February 16, 2018, which was noticed State wide. 
(See attachment B, with copies of articles that appeared in each island 
newspaper.) At the public hearing 18 people signed in. Two written 
testimonies were received and one person provided oral comments. One of the 
written testimonies received and the oral comment focused on support for the 
inclusion of certain types of work that is regulated under the law. (See 
Attachment C for a photocopy of the testimony submitted). WSD believes this 
testimony supports the current amendments and past interpretations the 
Department .has made through its determinations. No testimony objecting to 
the proposed amendments was received. 

The Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law, regulates the 
wages paid to laborers and mechanics on State and county public works 
construction projects, commonly referred to as a "prevailing wage" law or the 
Davis-Bacon Act in the federal jurisdiction. The proposed rule changes are 
intended to bring the rules up to date with statutory changes and provide 

mailto:pamela.b.martin@hawaii.gov


information on procedural processes. Chapter 12-22 has not been amended 
since 1996. Statutory changes over the last twenty years have made many of 
the rules invalid and new statutory provisions were enacted without 
administrative or enforcement rules. 

The rules apply to all contractors big and small that choose to work on public 
works projects. The intent of the law is to provide a level playing field for bidding 
on public works projects so that bids are won because of experience and 
expertise and not because a contractor chooses to pay their employees lower 
wages. 

The rule changes do not require any additional costs or administration that the 
statute already requires. There are no direct fees imposed and any existing 
indirect costs of reporting and record keeping have not been affected by the 
proposed changes. 

In developing these updates the Wage Standards o'ivision consciously 
considered the existing administrative burden the law places on construction 
business both big and small. The Division regularly provides free workshops 
on understanding Hawaii's Prevailing Wage Law to promote voluntary 
compliance and establish a relationship with the construction industry and hear 
their concerns. The updates do not result in any substantial changes to 
administrative responsibilities for contractors. 

Considering differing deadlines or exemptions for small business would 
obfuscate the intent of the law as providing a level playing field to bid on public 
works construction projects. 

B. Rule Description. 

1. New _Repeal ___x_Amendment ___x_Recompilation 

2. Nature of Proposed Changes: 

a. Is the proposed rule authorized by a federal or State law or statute that 
does not require an agency to interpret or describe the requirements 
of the law or statute? Yes ___x_No 

b. Is the proposed rule an emergency regulation? Yes ___x_No 

c. Will the proposed rule affect small· business because it: 
1) Will apply to "small business" defined as a for-profit enterprise with 

fewer than 100 full-time or part-time employees? 
___x_Yes No 

2) Will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small 
business? Yes ___K_No 

3) Is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion of a 
small business? Yes ___x_No 

2 



3. Summarize the proposed rule(s) and reasons for the proposed rule(s): 

These rules are being updated to reflect 19 statutory changes over the last 
20 years and to clarify some areas where the law is not clear on 
enforcement or administration of the Wages and Hours of Employees on 
Public Works Law: 

a. Bring the rules in line with statute changes. 
1) Amending the penalty provisions to track the current statutes, (see 

Subchapter 2) 
2) Defines "falsification" (§12-22-1) 
3) Amend the method of calculation of prevailing wages (§12-22-2) 
4) Amend that appeals go to a hearings officer appointed by the 

director not the Labor and Industrial Relations Appeals Board 
(§12-22-9) 

b. Provide new rules for new statutes. 
1) Adds a new subchapter for construction on State and county 

leased buildings subject to the law. (See new Subchapter 4) 
2) Adds a new subchapter for construction projects subject to Special 

Purpose Revenue Bonds (SPRB). (See new Subchapter 5) 

c. Make modifications to_ the law to improve the enforcement and 
administration of the law. 
1) Adds new sub chapter for the administration of appeals. 

(See Subchapter 3) 
2) Clarifies that the employer's cost of pre-paid health care is an 

allowable fringe benefit. (See definition of "cost of fringe benefit" 
§12-22-1) 

3) Repeals the exemption for warranty work done by the 
manufacturer. (See definition of "construction of public work" 
§12-22-1) This fol lows the federal version of prevailing wage. 

4) Clarifies the asphalt paving industry of delivering paving materials 
to spreader box trucks. (See memo dated July 13, 2013) and 
§12-22-1.1) 

C. Small Business Impact Statement pursuant to 201M-2(b): 

The rules do not impose any new, direct or indirect, costs for small businesses. 
A public hearing will be held before the adoption of any rules. 

D. Are there new or increased fees or fines? Yes _x_No 

Penalties are set by statute, see 104-24, HRS. 

3 



E. Did the agency consult small businesses, departmental advisory 
committees, or were other small businesses organizations consulted 
during the drafting of the proposed rule? _ Yes .JL No 

If no, why not? 

Awareness of their concerns and the intent of a level playing field is the same 
for individual businesses regardless of size. 

F. Other alternatives or less stringent measures proposed · by affected 
businesses to reduce direct or indirect costs and, if proposed, why those 
proposals were not adopted. 

Proposals, if any, were addressed at the legislative level. 

G. Departmental Impact (i.e. fiscal, personnel, program)? Yes _LNo 

If yes, describe long and short-range impacts, estimated in dollar amounts or 
personnel, due to enforcement, administration, execution, or implementation of 
the proposed rule that may result in a savings or shortfall under the current 
program budget. 

H. Impact on General Public (i.e. individuals, consumers, and large 
businesses)? .JLYes _ No 

If yes, describe long- and short-range impacts due to the enforcement, 
implementation, or execution of the proposed rule. 

The construction of public works using tqxpayer resources will be better 
managed and enforced although the direct impact to the general public will be 
imperceptible. 

I. Impact on state economy? .JLYes No 

Penalty structure set out in Act 130, Regular Session 2014 and act 192, 
Regular Session 2016, should alleviate some General Fund pressure and put 
the economic burden directly on the activities generating the workload. 

J. Final result anticipated from the proposed rule change. 

The final result will improve the administration of Hawaii's prevailing wage law 
and serve to clarify enforcement for contractors. 

4 



K. Alternatives explored to carry out the statutory purpose other than 
rulemaking. 

Public determinations and internal practices have served to bridge the gap 
between the statutes and the practice. 

Attachment A: Ramseyer version of proposed rule changes. 
Attachment B: Public hearing notices 
Attachment C: Testimony received at February 16, 2018 public hearing. 

5 



February 16, 2018 

LEONARD HOSHIJO, Acting Director 
Department ofL.~bor and Indusl;rjal Relatj.op.s 

RE;.NOTICE OFPUBLIC HEAR!NG 
Department ofLabor and Induslifal Relations, Wage Starldatds Division will hold a pul:,lic 

heaiing;t6 address propos.ed a,men4ments to Hawaii A(;lmnnstrative.Rµles, Title 12, Ch~pkr 22-, 
relating to wage detenninations and the adrn:inistrat1on.artd e:riforcem.ent ofChapter 104, Hawaii 

Revised Statutes {HRS). The notice and public hearing;are pursuantto Wages and Hours of 
Employees on Public Works Law, Section 104-2.9, HRS, and. Chapter 91, BRS. 

:O~ar Mr. l!osmJo: 

My name is Joseph Ttehetn. I have liv~d in Hawaii for 54 year.s and wol'.l<ed ip. constructiol). for 
.50 years. I wouid like to bring to- your attention severalpoints ofconeem as it relates to this 
hearing mo:re specifically truck drivers transporting asphaitpavingmaterials: 

1. Truck drivers not only deiiverpaving material. to the "Spreader Bo~•• on site but-drivers 
ar.e·~so·required to ·haul out excess "Cold.Planel' asphalt material fr.om the'site·ofwork.. 
Language.needs to .be addedto coverthe.hauling out of"Cold Planer'' asphalt material. 

2. The lndustry standard method for calculatfog prevailing wages and overtime pay for all 
employees transportlng·paving material to and/or from Public Works should be the.Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

3. Jobsite inspectors- shmild be trained·and required,to hold periodic unannounced 
ipspec.tions ofsubcontractors cenifi~d payrolls or ifthere are indications ofpay 
ihequality. 

Historically the paving indµ~tryhas provided emiching employment for ma,ny ofHawa:il;s 
const:r)J.ction workers, but recently there has been a segment ofour professionthat has depressed 
the industry by notpayingprevailing wages. 

Recently the str~et infront ofmy house was being paved: I went out to chat with .some ofthe 
wo:rkets ,and drivers. One driver told·mehe was being. paiq. .cash. ltold him he sho11ld let the 
jobsite :inspector know. Driver said, ··'No! I would'rather not." Ifla:gged down the ilispector;and 
asked "•are these truck drivers supposedto be gettingprevailing wages and does the company 
have to pr.ovide certified payi:oils?'' He tookecf at me 1.i.ke1 wh.at are you talkmg about? 

On my s.treet alone·there were :at least 15 trucks hauling out waste asphaltmaterial and laying 
down new asphalt over the course ofseveral.days. Additionally they have dugout and repaved 
many ofthe adjoining r.oads in the area witnthe.se same truclc.drivers for several months now. 

http:witnthe.se
http:propos.ed


'Failure to require cert.H1ed payroll record.s and site inspe-ctions could be fostering the paymei:its of 
cash to workers!· If these inspectors are n.ot asking questions an:d vie.wing payroll documents, we 
tax (layers are being short changed. 

Thankyou for your attention in this. m.atter. lfyou have.further qu~s.tion~.please feel free to 
·ct me. · 

oe Treher.ti 
-46-314 Kumoo Loop 
R&n~ohe, lil 96744 
Cell 8"08-233-8034 
joetree59@hawaii.rr.com 

Page 2 

mailto:joetree59@hawaii.rr.com


[JAE-YOUNG LEE] 
: :-·[-1419 Dominis St. #607, Honolulu HI, 96827] 

[lj99@hawaii.edu] 
. . 

?fl I fl F;-,, I • 
L'J1:J .. C.b i • ..; 

February, 16, 2018 

To: Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations 
Wage Standards Division · 
Attention: Leonard Hoshijo, Acting Director, Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations 

Re: Comment on the proposed amendments to Hawaii.Adminis(l'.ativ~Rules,. 'Utle.:12.,..Chaptei: 
22, relating to wage determinations and the administration and enforcement ofChapter 104, 
Hawaii Revised Statutes. 

Dear Leonard Hoshijo and members ofthe Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations 

Thank you for receiving and considering the public'.s viewpoint.on Hawaii Administrative Rules' 
proposed amendment. My mµne ~s Jae-Young Lee, current 3L student at the University,Q.fI:Iawaii 
William S. Richardson School ofLaw aµd an attorney in South Korea. I '1111 interested in the 
promulgation and the execution process ofthe agencies in the State ofHawaii;-especially-wifu,1egard,, 
to wage issues that my practice had mainly focused on. 

I am testif)ring to express my support l:llld gratitude for the Departn1.1;~nt ofLabor -aniin_dustrial 
Relations, · Wage Standards Division's ("Department") thoughtful work on·the proposed amendments 
to Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 12, Chapter 22, relating to wage determinations and the 
administration and enforcement ofChapter 104,. Hawaii Revised Statutes, (hereinafter-"proposed 
amendment") especially, its effort to provide ~easonable a (pre) hearing process -under Haw. Rev. Stat. 
Ann. §91-,10 (2003) and Haw. -Rev. Stat.-Ann. 104- 23 (2015) that can.r~s.olv.e,disp,~s..~aneutraL 
hearing officer appointed by the dir~ctor in conforl)J.ance with chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes 
(hereinafter "HRS"). Passing comprehensive rules for hearing processes will contribute to protect 
workers from unnecessary confusion in our community. 

With regard to §12-22-47 of the proposed amendment, which provides that the_hearing officer shall 
render a written decision on a notification of violation with.in--si-,rty--deys,,-8'.fteT,ttie-·coocl»sio.rrof-fue-· 
hearing in confomiance with Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. § 104-23 (2014), I believe this will ·promote the 
promptness ofthe administrative process, which often can be utmost l?,riorityJo the P,_arties of the wag~ 
cases. 

Unlike§ 104-23 and §12-22-47 of the propG>sed ,amendment, the-Faii,:babor---Staooanl&,A~-of. :l-9J~.2-9.. 
U.S.C.A. § 203 (2014) (hereinafter "FLSA") does not set a deadline that the Wage and Hour Division 
(hereinafter "WHD") have to take actions after the_WHD enforcement of the FLSA.1 This is also true 

1 The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S:C.A. §. 203 ·(2014) 

.. . .... 

. ,. 

http:viewpoint.on
mailto:lj99@hawaii.edu


~ ·in many of other hearings on the federal le~e12·and state level,3 where administrative resources are 
limited. I strongly support this amendment that can help wage cases to .be resolved in timely manner. 

Pursuant to § 12-22-46 ofthe Department's proposed amendment, "( a ]ny party shall have an opportunity 
to contest the facts so noticed, within the time specified by the hearings officer." Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. 
§91-10 ( 4) (2003),4 allowing any party to contest the facts to notice without putting any timely limitation 
on time to contest the facts· so noticed. I agree that this added phrase in this section serves the purpose 
ofpromoting administrative effectiveness and save administrative resources for other urgent _issues. ,It 
is, however, also important to give parties a sufficient opportunity to contest as our legislative intended, 
which I also highly value in the hearing process. In short, I suggest the Department add "reasonable" 
within the pertinent part. So it reads: any party shall have an opportunity to contest the facts so noticed, 
within a reasonable time specified by the hearings officer. I also believe that this will encourage the 
hearing officer· to consider balancing both of an adrnini.stratiw effectiveness and fair opportilnity 
concerns when specifying reasonable time to contest-.the..~ts...so..noticed,.and..pte.iient...himthet,.ftom.. 
arbitrary time setting. 

The Department may want to consider adding a comma after "a laborer or mechanic" in §12-22-4.1 (a) 
of the proposed amendment to corivey its meaning more clearly.5 

Again, I support §12-22-40-47 of the proposed amendment particularly withrega;d.t~-.§..:L2..22.,,4J.cf.it,. 
I suggest the Department add "reasonable" .within the· §12-22-46 of the proposed amendment. The 
Department may want to consider adding a comma after "a laborer or mechanic" in §,12-22-4.1 (~) of 

· the proposed amendment. 

Thank you for allowing me this opportunity to testify on this proposed amendment. 

Best Regards, 

Jae-Young Lee 

2 See, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 
https://www.eeoc.gov/federal/fed employees/fag hearing.cfin#q36 (last visited F:eb. 12., 2018), See 

· also United States Department ofLabor, https://www..do1,,g~vlappeals1B1A•~laimants.bmleflast-.v.i'sited, 
Feb. 12., 2018). 
3 See Colorado Department ofLabor and Employment https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi.c/cdle/a:fter-
hearing (last visited Feb. 12., 2018). . 
4 Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. §91-10 (4) (2003) provides: ... they shall be afforded an opportunity to contest 
the facts so noticed. 
5§12-22-4.1 (a) of the proposed amendment provides: In determining the hourly overtime 
compensation due a laborer or mechanic the rate shall be computed by multiplying the basic hourly 
rate times the overtime multiplier according to the wage rate schedule classification and then adding 
the hourly fringe benefit rate. 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi.c/cdle/a:fter
https://www
https://www.eeoc.gov/federal/fed
http:withrega;d.t~-.�..:L2..22.,,4J.cf.it


__ _ 

(> 

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION 

IN THE MATTER OF 
Notice ofPublic Hearing 

STATE OF HAWAII } 
}ss. 

City and.County ofHonolulu } 

Doc. Date:.__J'---'--A-'-'-'N'---'--1-=--5-"'2=01=8 ___ # Pages:.__1_ _ 
Notary Name:cott EEN E. soRANAKA First./vdicial.Circuit 

.,•-'' r.: Q . ' 11, , 
Doc. Description:,___A_fi_id_a_vi_to_f .:·".,-:':_·\\'.~:: ..'!..(}l,>J . 

.. :·"" ,).~·· ·· ·•, . . -
Publication _.,: r~·'/ 1· :oT:11"·,· 

.: () : ' '·"ll;: l I('

201!10 ~ . , .. : l::"li~1• \ 1j.• - I~:':~•\ .JAN 1 5 0 : ,.,. ' ~ 
Notary Signature Date 

Gwyn Pang being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is a clerk, duly authorized to 
execute this affidavit of Oahu Publications, Inc. publisher ofThe Honolulu 
Star-Advertiser, MidWeek, The Garden Island, West Hawaii Today, and Hawaii 
Tribune-Herald, that said newspapers are newspapers ofgeneral circulation in the 
State ofHawaii, and that the attached notice is true notice as was published in the 
aforementioned newspapers as follows: 

Honolulu Star-Advertiser 

01/14/2018 

MidWeek 

1 

0 

times on: 

times on: 

The Garden Island 0 times on: 

Hawaii Tribune-Herald 0 times on: 

West Hawaii Today 0 times on: 

Other Publications: 0 times on: 

And that affiant is not a party to or in any way interested in the above entitled matter. 

71ry=a,Gwyn Pang 

Colleen E. Soranaka, Notary Public of the First Judicial Circuit, State ofHawaii 
My commission expires: Jan 06 2020 

Ad# 0001059621 

1- • llOTICE OF P,UBLIC.HE'ARIIIG · . . 
. NoUce Is hereby g'wen that theDepartment of Laboi and Industrial RelaUons, 
IWage Standards Division · 1v111 hold, a pubjl~ hearing to a~gress prop9sed 

Ial)lendmen1:5 to ~awall Admlnlstratl'(e; Rules,.1JU~12,'Chapter~21,relatlng to wag~
deterinlnallons and the admlnlstraUon and enforcem·ent of Chapter 104, Hawah} ·Revised Statutes (HRS); Tiie noUce-and public hearing are j,uisua'ni to Wages'and 

} Hours;o(Employees ori Public Works,Law, Section 104-29, HRS;, and Chapter 91;
Hris·· • · , ' ·, :. • ' 

} The proposed rule amendments 1'1111: (1) b~ng ~•~ ~les )n ilnf)YI~ ;t~lute 
cijanges; (2) provide new•rl!les f~r, nE[t'I ~lutes; and (3) modify, tl1e rules to} 
Improve the administration and enforcem&n} of the law lnchl~lng:, · . 

} !; Subchapter 1, AdmlnlstraUon: and Enforcement; repeals' the exempUon for 
warranty \VOik-done by I/le (llanufacturer, ctarines_. that th.e._employer's cost of} preP.ald health care Is en· allowable fringe b~nefi~ defines 'falslflcaUon•; 

} addresses tlie asphalt paving, lndusllY, of ·~ellyering paxlng ' mal~rials · to 
spreader box trucks; amends, the method of calcu laUon of prevalllng1wages 

' and ~eletes the,definlUon·oi 'average rate•; adds the method o(calculat)on 
of overtime 'compensation; amends that appeals of ' _a cla~lflcatlon 
determination go. to a tiearings .offi~e!• appointed by uie director, ~ot the 
labor end Industrial Relatlons Appeals Board; clarifies certified payroll and 
re'ccrdkeeping requlrements; . , , . .. · _. . · ,: . 

2: Subchapter 2, Penalty for VlolaUons; conforms the pene)ty provfsloQs , ,to b~ 
ccnslslent with the c1ment statutes;• • . ' 

3. Subchapter 3, Hearing of Appeal;. n~w,s~bchapter wi!h.prop~sed procedures 
' and requirements for an administrative tiearin·g of appeals of a' noURcallon 

of violaUon, •under Chap.ter 9·1, HRS, Including prehearing· .conference, 
evidence, and the right to Judlcl~Imlew.ofa'dec)slon; , >_ , 

4, Subchapter 4, Constructfon on Proper!)' Leased by the State or !;ounty;, new 
subch'apter willi proposed procedures. and' requirements· for ccnstructlon on 
property leased by the stale or ~u.nty; • _ 

5. Subchapler 5, ConstrucUon Projects Financed vi!th Special •Purpose Revenue 
· Bond~ new subchapter1Ylth proposed requlre'.nients for'ccnstructicin projeels 

financed l'llth special purpose revenuebonds; and 
6. addlUonal c/Janges for tech'nlcal and clarincauon purposes. • 

Coples,of the proposed amendments vi!II be made available for public,vl wlling 
from the first woridng day that the leg~I notice appears In. the. Ho'nolillu Slar
Adverilser through the day the public he~ring Is tieId, . from Monday - Friday, 
between the hours of 2:00 p.m: - 4:0Q p.m.\ at the following, IQca tlons: 
830 Punchbowl•Slreet, Room 340, Honolulu,..Hawall; 2264 ~upunl Stree.t, Walluku, 
Hawaii; 7~ Aupunl Stree~ R_oom 108, Hilo,- HaY/all; ~1-990 Hale.kll ~lr!el, 
Room 2087, Kealakekoa, Hawaii; and 3060 Ell'ra Street,.Room 202, .Uhue,-Havrall. 
·Accpy of the proposed-amendments v~ll 'be malled· lo apy,lnlerestiid 'person,who 
requests a copy a),the loC\ltlons abov&-described,·~nd'pays a_prepaid fee of t~n 
·cents per page for the ccpy and pastage. The profosed rules may•also be vlewe,4 
at http:f/labor.hawall.gov/wsd. , , · , . 

11 Thepublic hearing will be held ori: Fotiruary 16, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. a~ 
HONOLULU, OAHU 
Keellkolanl 8ulldlng 
830 P.unchboVil Stree~ Room 314, 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
The public hearing wlll be ccnUoued, ~ necessary, to the time, date,and·place 

announced at the scheduled hearing. , , , . 
Interested persons CJ!ay submit any, ~a\a, vje,11, or argumen_~ 1 orally W11 

wriUng, concerning the· proposed amendments. Air written' subml~lons. for the 
record must be submitted to \'/age Standards Division; 830 Punchbov~ Stree~ 
Ro9m 340, Honolulu, Hawan 96813, an( must. be received at or prior to th~ 
scheduled public hearing. . 

Auxlllary aids ~nd services are avallab)e up~p -~q~est to Individuals .- ivjth 
dlsablllUes. TDD/TTY Dial 711 !Hen ask for (808) 586-8771, or email 
dllr.wag~~a1•ral1.gov. A'request for reasonable acccmmodaUons sho~ld be made 
no lateithan ten woridngdays prior to the peeded a~mmoda.Uons. · 
Ql!,led] Ja~uary,_14; 2018. · , 
LEONARD HOSHUO; ActJng Director, 
o·epartmentof Labor and,Jndustri~i RelaUons 
(SA10596~ .Y,14/ 18) 

, i':, 11 I 
\ •, . ~·· . 

.::·~ .~-:;.::·... ::..'.:'.'.•:'/,' ; 
·· .. ;··. 

.._,'.,.// '·: • . ·;; 1~--.. 

.. ·' 

·,. ( ~_.:.. . 
•'· .. 

SP.NO.: L.N. 

http:dllr.wag~~a1�ral1.gov
http:f/labor.hawall.gov/wsd


DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 12-22 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

(Dat e ,of adoption) 

1 . Chapter 12-22, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Wage Determinations and the Administration 
and Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawait Revised 
Statutes", is amended and compiled to read as follows : 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATI VE RULES 

TITLE 12 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

CHAPTER 22 

WAGE DETERMINATIONS AND. THE ADMINISTRATION 
AND ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 104, 

HAWAI I REVISED STATUTES 

Subchapter 1 Administration and Enforcement 

§12-22-1 Definitions 
§12-2 2 - 1.1 Transporting of materials, s upplies, or 

equipment 
§12-22-2 Method to determine prevailing wage 

rates 
§12-2 2 -3 Procedure for wage rate schedules 

22 - 1 



§12-22-4 

§12-22-4. 1 

§12-22-5 
§12-22- 6 
§12-22-7 
§12-22-8 

§12-22-8 . 1 
§12-22-9 
§12-22-10 

§12-22-11 
§12-22-12 

§12-22-13 

Method to d etermine fringe benefit 
hourly rates 

Method to determine overtime 
compensation rate 

Meeting prevailing wage requirements 
Apprentice rates 
Contract provisions 
Classification of laborers and 

mechanics 
Investigation of compl aints 
Appeal of classification determination 
Certified payroll and record keeping 

requirements 
Rulings and interpretations 
Disbursement of accrued amounts 

withheld on contract 
Computation of time 

Subchapter 2 Penalty for Violations 

§12-22-25 Notification of violation 
§12-22-26 Delay or falsification penalty 
§12-22-27 Violation penalties 

Subchapter 3 Hearing of Appeal 

§12-22-40 
§12-22-41 
§12-22-42 
§12-22-43 
§12-22-44 
§12-22-45 
§12-22-46 
§12-22-47 
§12-22-48 

Definitions 
Prehearing conference 
Prehearing order 
Hearing 
Powers and duties of hearings officer 
Rules of evidence 
Official notice of facts 
Decision 
Judicial review 

22-2 



Subchapter 4 Construction on Property Leased by 
the St ate or County 

§ 12-22-60 Definitions 
§12-22-61 Construction for state and county 

leases policy 
§12-22-62 Submission of leases to department 
§12-22-63 Lease required to state square footage 
§12-22-64 Challenges to square footage 
§12-22-65 Lessors required to notify contractors 

Subchapter 5 Construction Projects Financed 
with Special Purpose Revenue Bonds 

§12-22-75 Definitions 
§12-22-76 Contract provisions, special purpose 

revenue bonds 
§12-22-77 Project party collective bargaining 

agreement 

Historical Note : Chapter 22 of title 12 is based 
substantially upon Rule XVIII, Relating to Wage 
Determinations Under Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, and the Administration and Enforcement of 
said Chapter of the Department of Labor and I ndustrial 
Relations . [Eff 8/15/55 ; am 4/16/56; am 9/1/59 ; 
R 7/27/81 ) 

SUBCHAPTER 1 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

§ 12-22-1 De finitions . As used in this chapter: 
"Apprentice" shall [be as defined] have the same 

meaning as i n section 372-2 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes.] HRS . 

22-3 



[ "Average rate" means the rate obtained by adding 
the hourly rates of wages paid to each worker in a 
designated class of laborers or mechanics and dividing 
the sum by the total number of workers in the class .] 

"Basic hourly rate" shall [be as defined] have 
t h e same meaning as in section 104-1 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes.] HRS . 

"Construction of public work" i ncludes without 
limitation new construction, reconstruction, 
development , improvement , alteration, repair , 
renovation, painting, decorating, dredging , shoring, 
simultaneous sewer inspection and repair ,, and any 
other activity performed by a laborer or mechanic 
employed at the site of a public work or at any 
property used by the contractor, dedicated for the 
performance of the contract , such as batch plants, 
borrow pits , fabrication plants, mobile factories , job 
headquarters , and tool yards . As used in this 
[section,] definition , "other activity performed by a 
laborer or mechanic employed at the site" includes the 
following if the acti vity is an integral part of or is 
in conjunction with a construction contract , or if 
there is substantial construction activity involved in 
a supply, service, or other type of non- construction 
contract: 

(1) Manufacturing or furnishing of materials, 
articl es, supplies , or equipment on the job 
site; 

(2) Warranty work [eJccept when done by the 
manufacturer on defective products or 
equipment]; 

(3) Demolition or excavation; 
(4) Landscaping; 
(5) Termite treatment; and 
(6) Installation a t the construction site of 

items or articles fabricated off-site , such 
as she lving, drapery, and communications 
equipment. 

"Contract " means any type of agreement over 
$2 , 000 for construction of a public work, regardless 
of what the agreement may be called, including 
purchase orders and v ouchers . 

22-4 



"Contractor" [means] shall have the same meaning 
as in section 104-1, HRS , including but not limited to 
the general contractor or any subcontractor, 
[including] any individual , partnership , firm, 
corporation, joint venture, or other legal entity, 
acting directly or through an agent , employee , 
consultant, corporate officer or corporate director , 
undertaking the execution of a construction contract 
over $2 , 000 with a governmental contracting agency. 

"Cost. of fringe benefit " means the rate of 
contribution irrevocably made by a contractor to a 
trustee or to a third person pursuant to a fund, plan, 
or program in providing benefits to a laborer or 
mechanic for: 

(1) Health and welfare such as medical or 
hospital care , [compensation for injuries or 
illness resulting from occupational 
activity,] o r insu rance to provide for any 
of the foregoing; 

(2) Unemployment , life insurance, sickness or 
disability insurance , or accident insurance; 

(3) Vacation and holiday pay ; 
(4) Pensions on retirement or death; 
(5) Defraying costs of apprenticeship or other 

similar programs ; or 
(6) Other bona fide fringe benefits as 

determined by the director; 
[provided that] except for chapter 393, HRS, 

where a contractor is r equired by either federal or 
state law to provide these benefits the rate of 
contribution or other costs for these benefits shall 
not be included . 

" Department " means the department . of labor and 
industrial relations . 

" Director" shall [be as defined] have the same 
meaning as in section 104-1 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes.] HRS . 

"Employed" includes e very person paid in any 
manner for working in the construction of a work under 
a contract with a governmental contracting agency, 
regardless of any contractual relationship alleged t o 
exist . 

22-5 



" Falsification of records " means the submissi on 
or fi l ing of inaccurat e , misleading , or incorrect 
payment i n format ion on certified payrolls , fringe 
benefit r eporting forms, or other documentation 
required by this c hapter for construction work 
performed on a public works construction project when 
the form submitted has been attested to or certified 
to be true and correct by the contractor or the 
contractor' s designated r e presentati ve . 

"Governmental contracting agency" shall [be as 
defined] h ave the same meaning as in [section] 
section s 104-1 and 104- 2 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] 
HRS. 

"Hawaii Revised Statutes" o r " HRS " means l aws 
enacted by the Hawaii state legislature . 

" Prevailing area practice " means t he labor 
classifications of the work performed by the laborers 
or mechanics of t h e group used by t he contractors 
whose wage rates were determined to be prevailing in 
t h e local i ty and a re i ncorporated into and represente d 
i n the applicable wage rate schedule issued by the 
departme nt. 

" Public work" shal l [be as defined] have the same 
meaning as in section [104 2(a) , ] 104-1 , [Hawaii 
Revised Statutes , ] HRS , and includes without 
limitation: 

(1) Any building , structu re , road, or real 
property, the construction of which is 
undertaken: 
(A) By authority of ; and 
(B) Through the use of funds , grants, 

loans , bonds , land, or other resources 
of the State or· any county , board, 
bureau , authority , commission , or other 
agency or instrumentality thereof, to 
serve the interest of the [general ] 
public , regardless of whether title 
thereof is held by a state or county 
agency . However , subsequent 
construction to fixtures or 
appurtenances attached to the assigned 
space of an individual occupan t , 

22-6 



lessee , or tenant of the building or 
structure , contracted by other than a 
state or county agency or 
instrumental ity thereof , shall not be 
subject to chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes.] HRS; or 

(2) [Any building or stru cture constructed under 
private contract under the following 
conditions: 

(A) The property is privately owned, 
but the entire building or 
structure is leased to the State 
or a political subdivision; 

(B) The lease agreement between the 
lessor and the State or political 
subdivision, as lessee, was 
entered into prior to t he 
construction contract; and 

(C) The construction work is performed 
according to plans, 
specifications , or criteria of the 
State or pol itical subdivision . ] 

A construct i on contract between private 
persons in accordance with section 104-2.5, 
HRS . 

[ "Trainee " means a person participating, through 
employment , in a schedule of work enperience and who 
is a party to a trainee agreement approved by and 
registered with the department . ] 

" USDOL" means the United States Department of 
Labor . 

"Wages ", "minimum wages ", "prevailing wages ", 
" rate of wages " , and " wage rates " shall [be as 
defined] have the same meaning as in section 104-1 , 
[Hawai i Revised Statutes.] HRS . [Eff 7/27/81 ; am and 
comp 4/1/96 ; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§104-29) (Imp : HRS §104- 29) 

§ 12-22-1 . 1 Transporting of materials , supplies , 
or equipment. (a) Chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes,] HRS, and [these rules] this chapter are 

22 - 7 



applicable, but not limited to , [ transporting of]~ 
laborer or mechanic who is employed and performs work 
at a public work site and transports materials, 
supplies , or equipment : 

(1) To or from a public work site; or 
(2) Between a public work site and either 

another public work site or a dedicated 
site[--;-

when performed by a laborer or mechanic employed at 
the public work site] . 

(b) The following illustrate situations in which 
chapter 104, [Hawaii Revised Statutes , ] HRS, and 
[these rules] this chapter are not a pplicable : 

(1) Delivery o f materials, supplies , or 
equipment to a public wor k site if the 
delivery persons only drop off the i tems and 
perform no construction work at the public 
work site; 

(2) Hauling of excavated material away from a 
public work site for disposal or recycling, 
where the drivers are on the site only [-f'.e.r 
the purpose of having] to have their trucks 
filled ; 

(3) Continuous hauling of material to and from a 
public work site , and the drivers perform no 
construction work at the public work site; 
or 

(4 ) Delivery or removal of equipment to or from 
a public work site, and the delivery persons 
operate n o equipment or perform no other 
work as a laborer or mechanic on the public 
work site . [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) 
(Imp : HRS §104-29) 

§ 12-22-2 Method to determine prevailing wage 
rates. [(a) In making prevailing wage determinations 
under chapter 104 , Hawaii Revised Statutes , the 
director s hall make separate findings of: 

(1) The basic hourly rate; and 

22-8 



(2) The rate of contribution or cost of fringe 
benefi ts paid by the employer when the payment of the 
fringe benefits by the employer constitutes a 
prevailing practice. The coot of fringe benefits 
shall be reflected in the wage rate schedule as an 
hourly rate. 

-fb+-) M The rates of wages which the director 
shall regard as prevailing in each corresponding 
classification of l aborers and mechanics shall be [7] 
as defined in section 104-2 (b) (1) (A) and (B) , HRS . 

[( 1) The rate of wages paid to the majority of 
those employed in the State in the 
corresponding classes of laborers or 
mechanics on projects that arc similar to the 
contract work; or 

(2) In the event that there is not a majority 
paid at the same r ate , then the rate paid to 
the greater number, provided t h e greater 
number constitutes thirty per cent of those 
so employed ; or 

-f-3-t] J..!21 [In the event less than thirty per cent 
of those so empl oyed receive the same rate , ] If there 
is no modal rate , then the average [rate . ] of the 
rates that occur with the highest frequency. 
[Eff 7/27/81 ; am and comp 4/1/96; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS 
§104- 2) 

§ 12-22-3 Procedure for wage rate schedules . (a) 
All schedules of wage rates for laborers and mechanics 
a nd any changes thereto shall be based on : 

(1) Surveys or methods which the director may 
deem necessary to obtain data for wage 
determinations ; [&1:-) 

(2) Wage determinations made by the Secretary of 
Labor , USDOL , under the Davi s-Bacon Act 
( 40 U.S . C. §§276a-276a- 7) ; or 

(3) Both paragraphs (1) and (2) . 
(b) Wa ge rate schedul es shall be regularly 

i ssued on or about February 15 and September 15 of 

22-9 



each year . Additional wage rate schedules, addenda, 
and notices of changes will be issued as the director 
deems necessary . 

(c) Requests for determination by the director 
of wage r ates for classes of laborers and mechanics 
not listed on the current schedule of wage rates or 
for any change, modification, or review of wage rates 
shal l be submitted by the governmental contracting 
agency or any interested party at least thirty 
cal endar days before advertisement of the 
specifications for which the determination is sought . 
Exceptions from this provision shall be made only upon 
a proper showing in unusual circumstances . 

(d) Any increase in wage rates , as determined by 
the director and issued in the wage rate schedule, 
s hall be applicable during the performance of the 
contract , in accordance with section 104-2(a) and (b), 
[Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] HRS. 

(e) No wage rate determined by the director 
shall be less than the rate establi shed by the 
Secretary of Labor (USDOL) for the corresponding 
class. 

(f) Any changes to the wage rates shall be 
recognized by the director only upon complete and 
timely submission of the information, i n accordance 
with [section 10 4 11, Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] this 
chapter. [-'f--fie] Notwithstanding the effective or 
adoption date of a collective bargaining agreement or 
rates contained t herein, the effective date of these 
changes shall be the date of publication in the wage 
r~te schedule and shall not be ret~oactive. [Eff 
7/27/81 ; am and comp 4/1/96; am and comp 

] (Au th: HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS 
§§104-2, 104-31 , 104-34) 

§ 12-22-4 Method to determine fringe benefit 
hourly rates. In determining the hourly equivalent of 
a monthly rate of contribution for a fringe benefit , 
the monthly rate of contribution shall be divided by 
one hundred [-a-n-a] seventy-three hours and the quotient 

22-10 



shall be the hourly rate . [Eff 7 /27 /81; comp 4/1/96 ; 
comp (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §104-2) 

§ 12-22-4 . 1 Method to determine overtime 
compensation rate . (a) In determining the hourly 
overtime compensation due a laborer or mechanic, the 
rate shall be computed by multiplying the bas i c hourly 
rate times the overtime multiplier according to the 
wage rate schedule classification and then adding the 
hourly fringe benefit rate . 

(b) No credit for fringe benefits made by 
month ly contributions as calcul ated in section 1 2-22-
4 , is allowed in determini ng the o·vertime rate . [Eff 
and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §104- 2) 

§ 12-22-5 Meeting prevailing wage requirements. 
A contractor shall pay the prevailing wages contained 
in a wage rate schedule applicable to laborers or 
mechanics in any of the following ways : 

(1) By paying not less than the basic hourly 
rate to th~ laborers or mechanics and by 
making the contributions for the fringe 
benefits as specified in the wage rate 
schedule; 

(2) By paying not less than the basic hourly 
rate to the laborers or mechanics and by 
making contributions for fringe benefits in 
a total amount not less than the total of 
the fringe benefits required by the wage 
rate schedule; 

(3) By paying the basic hourly rate in cash 
directly to the laborers or mechanics and by 
making an additional cash payment in lieu of 
the fringe benefits required by the wage 
rate schedule; or 

22-11 



(4) By paying an hourly rate , partly in cash and 
partly in fringe b enefi ts , which total not 
less than the prevailing wages . [Eff 
7/27/81 ; am and comp 4/1/96; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §104-29) 
(Imp : HRS §104- 2) 

§ 12-22-6 Apprentice [and trainee] rates. Any 
apprentice [or trainee] wage rates establish ed by the 
director shall apply only to : 

ill Contractors who are a party to a bona fide 
apprenticeship program which has been 
registered with the department; 

[+±-+-Jill Apprentices [and trainees ] who are 
parties to apprenticeship [and trainee] 
agreements which have been registered with 
the department or recognized by the 
department as a USDOL nationally approved 
apprenticeship program[T] , and who have been 
individually registered by name with the 
department; and 

[--R-t]fil The number of apprentices [or trainees) 
on a ny public work which, in !elation to the 
number of journeyworkers in the same craft 
cla·ssification as the apprentices [-e-r
trainees] employed by the same employer on 
the same public work, is not in excess of 
the ratio allowed for employment of 
apprentices [and trainees) by the employer 
under the apprenticeship [or trainee) 
standards agreed and subscribed to by the 
employer and registered with or recognized 
by the department . A registered or 
recognized apprentice receiving the 
journeyworker rate will not be considered a 
journeyworker for the purpose of meet ing the 
ratio requirement . [Eff 7/27/81; am and 
comp 4/1/96 , am and comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2) 

22-12 



§ 12-22-7 Contract provisions . The governmental 
contracti ng agency shall cause or require to be 
inserted in all specifications , solicitations , and 
contracts made and entered into by the agency fo r 
construction of any public work, [the wage rate 
schedule issued] a requirement that prevailing wages 
be paid as determined by the director and any other 
stipulation or provision required by chapter 104, 
[Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS . [Eff 7 /27 /81; am and 
comp 4/1/96 , am and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§104-29) (Imp: HRS §104-2) 

§ 12-22-8 Classification of laborers and 
mechanics. (a) The gover nmental contracting agency 
shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics 
which will be employed on a public work and for which 
the director has not made a wage determination shall 
be classified by the contractor in a manner which 
conforms to the classifications contained in the wage 
rate schedule issued by the director . 

(b) If t here is a disagreement on the proper 
classification or reclassification of a particular 
class of laborers .or mechanics to be used, the 
governmental contracting agency shall submi t a written 
report of the issues in d i sagreement and refer the 
matter to the director fo r determination . 

(c) If t he governmental contracting agency fails 
to refer the disagreement to the director as provided 
by subsection (b) within ten days after a request in 
writing is made to the governmental contracting agency' 
by any interested party , the interested party may 
refer the question in w'ri ting to the director . [Eff 
7/27/81; am and comp 4/1/96, comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §10 4-2 ) 

22-13 



§ 12-22 - 8 . 1 Investigation of complaints . Any 
complaint received by a governmental contracting 
agency with respect to matters under chapter 104, 
[Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, shall be referred to 
the director for investigation and report . [Eff and 
comp 4/1/96 , am a nd comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §104-2 9) (Imp: HRS §104-21 ) 

§12-22-9 Appeal[~ ] of classification 
determination . M Any person aggrieved by the 
d i rector's determination made p ursuant to sect ion 
12-22-8 may , within ten days after mailing of the 
determination, appeal in writing t o the [labor and 
industrial relations appeals board. ] hearings officer 
appointed by the director in conformance with chapter 
91 , HRS . 

(b) Any party to the appeal may obtain j udicial 
review of the appeals decision in t he manner provided 
in chapter 91 , HRS . [Eff 7/27/81 ; comp 4/1/96 ; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS § 104-2 9) (Imp : 
HRS §104-2) 

§ 12-22-10 [Record] Certified payroll and record 
keeping requirements. M Each contractor shall 
maintain accurate and complete payroll records and 
related employment r ecords during t he course of the 
work and preserve the records for a period of three 
years from the close of the project for all laborers 
and mechani cs working on the public works construction 
project in English containing the followi ng 
information and data on each laborer and mechanic 
engaged in the performance of the contract at the job 
site: 

(1) Name in ful l ; 
(2) Home addr ess;
ill Last four digits of social security number; 
ill Copy of the apprentice ' s reg i stration with 

the department; 

22-14 



[--f-B-Jill Job classification[y] for each 
classification of work performed; 

[-t4t]ill Rate of pay; 
[-t§-t]J..ll Hours worked each workday and t otal 

hours worked each workweek; 
[+€>+]ill_ Total weekly straight-time earnings; 
[-f-++]ill Total weekly overtime earnings ; 
[-f-8+]J.1.Ql Total weekly gross earnings; 
[+9-t]l1.l_L The amount and purpose of each 

deduction; [-aft€l] 
[-f--l-G-+]J.111 Total net wages paid and the date 

('
paid[-,-]; and 

(13) Other information as the director may 
require. 

(b) Whenever a contractor provides fr i nge 
benefits to covered workers, the contractor shall 
further maintain records showing the irrevocable 
commitment to provide the benefits is enforceable , 
that the p l an or program is f i nancially responsible, 
and that the plan or -program has been communicated in 
writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and 
records which show the costs anticipated or the actual 
cost incurred in providing the benefits . 

(c) Contractors employing apprentices under an 
approved program shal l ma i ntain a written record of 
the registration of the apprenticeship program, the 
registration of the appr1entices, and the ratios and 
wage rates prescribed fof the applicable program . 

(d) A contractor shall submit weekly for each 
week in which any construction work is performed a 
copy of all certified payrolls to the contracting 
agency. The certified payrolls submit ted shall set 
out accurately and completely all of the information 
required to be maintaineq under this chapter . The 
general contractor is responsible for the submission 
of the certified payroi1 records for all 
subcontractors . 

(e) Each certified payroll submitted shall be 
accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance", signed by 
the contractor or the contractor's designated 
representative and shall certify or attest that: 

22 - 15 

http:f-8+]J.1.Ql


ill The i nformation for the payroll period 

ill 
reported is correct a nd complete; 
Each laborer or mechanic , or apprentice 
empl oyed on the contract during the payroll 
period has been paid the full weekly wages 
earned, without rebate, either directly or 
indirectly, and that no deductions have been 
made either directly or indirectly from the 
full wages ear ned, other than permissible 

ill 
deductions as set forth by law; and 
Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 
less than the applicable prevailing wage and 
fringe benefits or cash equivalent for the 
classification of work performed, as 
specified in the wage rate schedu le 
applicable to the public work constructi on 
project at the time t he work was performed. 

(f) Certified payrolls submitted shall be 
numbered consecutively from the first week in which 
work is performed . Subsequent weeks shall be numbered 
in chronological order with the final week in which 
work is performed to be labeled " final " . 

(g) Amended certified payrol l records submitted' 
shall be labeled amended with a detailed explanation 
of the reason for the amendment. 

(h) The falsification of any of t he required 
documents may s ubj ect a contractor to civil penal ties 
including suspension or criminal prosecution, or both . 

(i) The contractor shall provide a n electronic 
copy of the records or make the records available for 
inspection and photocopying, or transcripti on by the 
director and the director ' s authorized 
representatives. The contractor shall permit the 
director or the director's representatives to 
privately interview employees during working hours on 
the job . If a contractor fails to submit required 
records or to make the records available, or fails to 
allow private interviews with employees, the director 
may take such action as may be necessary to cause the 
suspension of any further payment . Failure to comply 
may also.be grounds for immediate suspension pursuant 
to chapter 104, HRS. [Eff 7/27/81 ; comp 4/1/96; am 

22 - 16 



and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §§104-3, 104-22, 104-25) 

§ 12-22-11 Rulings and interpretations . All 
questions arising in any governmental contracti ng 
agency relating to the [application] applicability and 
int erpretation of chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised 
Statutes,] HRS, and of this chapter shall be referred 
to the director for ruling and interpretation . The 
director , in making the ruling or interpretation, 
shall take into cons i deration the prevailing practice 
of the construction industry in the locality . [Eff 
7/27/81; comp 4/1/96; a m and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS 
§104-21) 

§ 12-22-12 Disbursement of accrued amounts 
withheld on contract. (a) Within sixty days from the 
date of written request by the director, the 
contracting agency shall pay or transfer specified 
amounts from accrued payment withheld on a contract to 
the director for : 

(1) Wages, overtime compensation, or both due to 
l aborers and mechanics; 

(2) Penalties assessed for a first [-er]L secondL 
or third violation; or 

(3) Both paragraphs (1) and (2) . 
(b) Amounts collected or transferred for back 

wages shal l be deposited or credited to the wage claim 
fund of the departmen t . Amounts collected for 
penalties shall be deposited or credited to the 
general fund . 

(c) The department shall disburse from the wage 
claim fund any wages or overtime compensation due to 
laborers or mechanics . [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and 
comp (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §§104-2, 104-21 ) 

22-17 



§ 12-22-13 Computation of time. The time in 
which any act provided by these rules is to be done is 
computed by excluding the firs t day and incl uding the 
last, unl ess the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or 
holiday and then i t is also excluded. As used in this 
section, "hol iday" includes any day designated as such 
pursuant to section 8-1, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] 
HRS . [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS 
§104-29) 

[§§12 22 14 to 12 22 24 (Reser.·ed) ] 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

PENALTY FOR [FIRST VIOLATION ] VIOLATIONS 

§ 12-22-25 Notification of violation . (a) Where 
the department, either as a result of its own 
investigation or as a result of a report by a 
contracting agency, finds that a [first] violation of 
chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes , ] HRS, has been 
committed, the department shall issue a not i fication 
of violation to the contractor. Each notice of 
violation shall involve only one project . Each 
offense shal l be as descr i bed in section 104-24(e), 
HRS. 

(b) A first v iolation re f ers to the first 
invest igation in which the department f inds that a 
contractor has failed to compl y with chapter 104, 
[Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, or a violation which 
occurs more than t wo years afte r the date of 
notification of first violation . [A first violation 
investigation may involve more than one project ; 
however, offenses shall be determined separately for 
each project.] A second violation refers to a 

22-1 8 



violation wh ich occurs within t wo years of the date of 
the first notifi cat ion of violation . A third 
violati on refers to a violation which occu r s within 
t h ree years of t h e da t e of t h e second notificati on of 
violation . Addi tional violations occurrin g after t h e 
third violati on shall be tre ated in the same way as 
the third violation . 

(c) A notification of violation shall be final 
and conclusive twenty days after the date of mailing 
to the contractor , unless a wr i tten notice of appeal 
is filed with the director , as provided in section 
[ 10 4 5 (b ) , ] 1 0 4-23 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] HRS . 
[Eff and comp 4/1/96 ; am and comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §10 4-29) (Imp : HRS §§104-23 , 104-24) 

§ 12-22 - 2 6 [Penalty. ] De l ay or f a l s ification 
pena lty. (a) A penalty of [up to $1 , 000] $10 , 000 per 
[offense ] proj ect shal l be assessed against a 
contractor for [a first violati on of chapter 10 4, 
Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] interference or delay 
including failure to provide requested records under 
section 10 4-3 , HRS , or fai l ure to al l ow employees to 
be i nterviewed during worki ng hours on the job . 

(b) [In determining the offenses committed by a 
contractor, the department shall assess a separate 
penalty for each section of c hapter 1 04 , Hawaii 
Revised Statutes , under which t h e contractor is cited, 
with respect to each project and each employee. ] An 
additi onal penalty of $1 , 000 for each day thereafter 
that the contractor fails to comply shall be assessed 
against the contractor . 

(c) A penalty of $10 , 000 per project shal l be 
assessed against a contractor for fa l sification of 
records . 

[ ( C) The a mount of the penalt y for a firs t 
violation shall be determined by application of the 
following criteria : 

( 1) The severity of the offense; 
(2) Whether the contractor has made a good faith 

effort to comply with the provisions of 

22-19 



chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes , and 
these rules ; and 

(3) Other relevant factors as determined by the 
director . ] 

(d) The contractor shall be immediat ely 
suspended for a period of three years . 

[-f-Ei+JM Concurrent with or after the issuance 
of a notification of violation, and within a 
reasonable period after completion of the 
investigation, the department shall notify the 
contractor of v i olations of the chapter committed and 
t h e penal ty assessed, which shall then be due and 
payable within twenty days from the date of the 
mailing of the notification of viol ation . 

[(e) Appropriate penalty shall be assessed even 
if the contractor , after being i nformed of the offense 
by the department , initiates immediate action to 
correct the offense . ] [Eff and comp 4/1/96 ; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : 
HRS §§104-22, 104-24 , 104-25) 

12-22-27 Violation penalties. (a) Where the 
department finds that a first , second , or third 
violation has been committed, penalties shall be as 
described i n sections 104-22 , 104-24, and 104-25, HRS . 

(b) Additional violati ons committed after the 
third violation shall be penalized in the same way as 
the third violation . 

(c) Concurrent with or after the issuance of a 
notification of violation , and within a reasonable 
period after completion of the investigation, the 
department shall notify the contractor of violations 
of the c hapter committed and the p enalty assessed, 
which shall then be due and payable within twenty days 
from the date of the mailing o f the notifica t ion of 
violation . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §104 - 29) ( I mp: HRS §§104- 24, 10 4-25) 

22-20 



SUBCHAPTER 3 

HEARING OF APPEAL 

§ 12-22-40 Definitions. As used in this 
s ubchapter: 

" Hearing" shall have the same meaning as the term 
agen cy hearing as defined in section 91-1, HRS . 

" Party" or "parties " s hall have the same meaning 
as in section 91-1 , HRS and s hall include any other 
person such as the contractor or contractor ' s 
representat i ve , the department, or both . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : 
HRS §§91-1 , 104-23) 

§ 12-22-41 Prehearing conference. (a) Upon 
docketing an appeal , but prior to a hearing, the 
hearings officer may hold a prehearing conference with 
the parties . 

(b) Any matter not raised at the preh earing 
conference shal l not be allowed during the hearing . 
Matters to be discussed at the prehearing conference 
may include but are not l imited to the fo l lowing : 

ill A discussion of the issues raised by the 
appellant and the explanations a n d defenses 
to be presented by the parties at the 
hearing ; . 

ill The necessity or des i rability of amendments 
to the pleadings; 

ill_ The possibility of obtaini ng stipulations 
which will avoid unnecessary proof;

ill The poss i bility of a settl ement between the 
parties ; and 

ill Other matters that may aid in the 
disposition of the case . 

(c) If the parties agree to the terms of a 
settlement at the prehearing conference, the 
settlement shall be reduced to writing , signed by the 
parties , and approved by the hearings officer . If 

22- 21 



approved, the case will be dismissed without a finding 
on the merits of the complaint and a copy of the final 
prehearing settlement shall be sent by mail to the 
department and the appellant . 

(d) A prehearing settl ement shall not affect the 
processing of any other case, including but not 
limited to complaints in which t he allegations are 
like or related to the individual allegations settled . 

(e) Preh earing conference statements shall be 
f iled by the parties n o later than three business days 
before th~ scheduled prehearing conference covering 
those areas identified in the notice of prehearing 
conference . Additional conferences may be schedul ed 
at the hearings officers ' discretion . [Eff and comp 

(Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : §104-
23) 

§ 12-22-42 Prehearing order . (a) When a 
prehearing conference is held, the hearings officer 
may enter a prehearing order which recites the action 
taken at the prehearing conference, including ; 

ill The agreements made by the parties as to any 
of the matters considered; 

ill The issues for hearing not otherwise 
disposed of by stipulation or agreement of 
the parties; and 

(3) The exchange of exhibits , witness l ist, and 
prehearing memorandum deadlines . 

(b) The prehearing order shall control the 
subsequent cou rse of the appeal, unless modified by 
the hearings officer at the hearing or prior thereto 
to prevent manifest injustice. The prehearing order 
shall supersede the pleading where there is any 
conflict and shall supplement the pleading in all 
other respects . [Eff and comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : §104-23 )" 

22- 22 



§ 12-22-43 Hearing. (a) Any hearing under this 
subchapter shall be held in accordance with chapter 
91, HRS . 

(b) The hearing on appeal shall be held within 
sixty days of the notice of appeal . 

(c) All parties shall be given written notice of 
hearing at least fifteen days before the hearing . 

(d) The parties shall be present at the hearing, 
and shall be allowed to call, examine, and cross
examine witnesses, and introduce papers, documents, or 
other evidence, in person or by counsel . 

(e) At the discretion of the hearings officer, 
any other person may be allowed to participate, in 
person or by counsel, for the purposes and to the 
extent that the hearings officer shall determine. 

(f) Witnesses at the hearing shal l be examined 
orally, under oath or affirmation , and a record of the 
proceedings shall be made by the hearings officer . 
The hearings officer or a person designated by the 
hearings officer may administer oaths or affirmations 
at the hearing. 

(g) The hearings officer may continue a hear i ng 
from day to day or adjourn it to a later day or to a 
different place by announcement thereof at the hearing 
or by appropriate notice to all parties. The hearings 
officer may also continue a hearing upon request of 
any party . At the discretion of t h e heari ngs officer, 
a hearing may be reopened. 

(h) If the employer or employer's . representative 
is absent without notice, the hearings officer shall 
base the decision on the available evidence . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §§91- 9 . 5, 104-23) 

§ 12-22-44 Powers and duties of hearings officer. 
(a) The hearings officer shall have full power and 
authority to: 

ill Control the procedures of the hearing;
ill Admit or exclude testimony or other 

e vidence; 

22-23 



Rule upon al l motions and objections; 
Call and examine witnesses ; 
Direct the production of papers or other 
matter present in the hearings room; and 

ill ~ake other actions that are necessary and 
proper for the conduct of the hearing . 

(b) The hearings officer may issue subpoenas 
either at will or upon written request of a party to 
the proceeding whenever necessary to compel the 
attendance of witnesses and the introduction of books, 
records, correspondence , documents , papers, or any 
other evidence, which relates to any matter in 
question before the hearings officer. Where a 
subpoena is issued at the ·instance of a party to the 
proceeding other than the hearings officer, the cost 
of service and witness and mileage fees s h all be borne 
by the party at whose request the subpoena is issued . 
Witness · and mileage fees shall be the same as fees 
paid witnesses in the circuit court . 

(c) The hearings officer, whenever necessary or 
required during the hearing and on terms and 
conditions as the hearings officer may determine, 
shall take or cause to be taken deposition of 
witnesses residing within or without the State of 
Hawaii in the manner prescribed by law for deposition 
in civil actions . A request by a party other than the 
hearings officer for deposition of witnesses shal l be 
in writing . The cost of any deposition shall be borne 
by the party at whose request the deposition was 
taken . [Eff and comp ] (Auth :_ HRS 
§104-29) (Imp : HRS §§91-10, 104-23) 

§ 12-22-45 Rules of evidence . (a) The 
admissibility of evidence at hearing shall not be 
governed by the laws of evidence , and all relevant 
oral or documentary evidence shall be admitted if it 
is the kind of evidence on which responsible persons 
are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious 
affairs. Irrelevant , immaterial, or unduly 
repetitious material shall not be admitted into 

22-24 



evidence . The hearings officer shall give effect to 
the rules of privilege recognized by law . 

(b) Documentary evidence may - be received in the 
form of copies, provided that, upon request, all other 
parties to the proceeding shall be given an 
opportunity to compare the copy with the original . If 
the original is not available, a copy may stil l be 
admissible, but the unavailability of the original and 
the reasons therefor shall be considered by the 
hearings officer when considering the weight of the 
documentary evidence. [Eff and comp 
(Auth: HRS §§91-2, §104-29) (Imp : HRS §§91-10 , 104-
23) 

§ 12-22-46 Official notice of facts. The 
hearings officer may take official notice of those 
matters that may be judicially noticed by the courts 
of the State. The hearings officer may also take 
official notice of generally recognized technical or 
scientific facts within the agency's specialized 
knowledge , upon notice to all parties before or during 
trial. Any party shal l have an opportunity to contest 
the facts so noticed, within a reasonable time 
specified by the hearings officer . [Eff and comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§91- 2 , §104-29) (Imp : 
HRS §§91-10, 104-23) 

§ 12 -22 -47 Decision . (a) The hearings officer 
shall render a written decision on a notification of 
violation within sixty days aft er the conclusion of 
the hearing, which shall include findings of fact and 
conclusions of law . 

(b) A certified copy of the decision shall be 
served by personal de l ivery or by mail upon each 
party. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§ 104 - 2 9 ) ( Imp : HRS § 1 0 4 - 2 3 ) 

22-25 



§ 12-22-48 Judicial review . Any party aggrieved 
by the decision of the hearings officer shall be 
entitled to judicial review as provided by secti on 91-
14 , HRS . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§104-29) (Imp: HRS §104-26) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

CONSTRUCTION ON PROPERTY LEASED BY THE STATE 
OR COUNTY 

§12-22-60 Definitions . As used in this chapter : 
"Assignabl e square feet " means the total area of 

the project available for lease as determined by t he 
master lessor. 

"Leasing agency " means the state or county agency 
who i s the lessee of a leased space . 

" Project " means all the buildings, other 
improvements , or both, on the property where a lease 
is located including the leasi ng agency ' s leased area . 
[Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) 
(Imp : HRS §104-2 . 5) 

§12-22-61 Construction for state and county 
leases policy. Where construction work to property to 
be leased by the state or any county agency is to be 
undertaken, the laborers and mechanics working on that 
construction project shal l be paid prevail ing wages 
required under section 104-2 , HRS , provided that more 
than fifty per cent of the assignable square feet of 
the project is or will b e leased by the state or any 
county agency . [Eff and comp 
(Auth: HRS §104- 29) (Imp : HRS §104-2. 5) 

22- 26 



§ 12-22-62 Submission of leases to department. 
Upon executi on, renewal , termination, or any change to 
a lease , the leasing agency shall submit the lease to 
the department and the department of accounting and 
general services within thirty days of the execution, 
renewal , termination or change in the lease . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
HRS §104-2 . 5) 

§ 12-22-63 Lease required to state square 
footage. Every lease entered into by the state or any 
county agency shall state the total assignable square 
footage of the project and the amount leased by the 
state or any county agency leasing space in or on the 
proj ect . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2 . 5) 

§ 12-22-64 . Challenges to square footage. All 
questions or challenges of t he stated measurement of 
the square footage of the project of the lease shall 
be filed , heard, and decided by the hearings officer 
appointed by the director in conformance with chapter 
91, HRS . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§ 104 - 2 9) (Imp : HRS § 104 - 2 . 5 ) 

§ 12-22-65 Lessors required to notify 
contractors. A lessor contracting any construction 
work to the leased property that is sub j ect to section 
104-2 . 5, HRS, shall provide written notice to t he 
contractor that prevailing wages shal l be paid to all 
laborers and mechanics employed on the construction 
project. [Eff and comp (Auth : HRS 
§104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2.5) 

22-27 



SUBCHAPTER 5 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FINANCED WITH 
SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE BONDS 

§12-22-75 Definitions. As used in thi s chap ter : 
"Project agreement " shall have the same meaning 

as in chap~er 39A, HRS . 
"Project party" shall have the same meaning as in 

chapter 39A, HRS . 
"Special purpose revenue bonds " shall have the 

same meaning as in chapter 39A, HRS . [Eff and comp 
(Aut h: HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS 

§104-2) 

§ 12-22-76 Contract provisions, special purpose 
revenue bonds . (a) The director of finance shall 
require in a construction project under chapter 39A, 
HRS , that the p r oject party insert in all 
solicitations a nd contracts made and entered into by 
the proj ect party that prevailing wages i n accordance 
with chapter 104, HRS , be paid to the labor ers and 
mechanics employed . 

(b) The following provisions shall be incl uded 
in any agreement f or construction of a project funded 
by special purpose revenue bonds between a project 
party and t h e contractor : 

ill The project party o r the contractor retained 
by the project party shall maintain and be 
r espons i b l e for all payroll records in 
accordance with the requirements and be the 
responsible entit y for compliance with 
chapter 104, HRS , and t hi s chapter, 
includi ng the mainte nance of t h e certifi ed 
payroll record s during the course of the 
construction work and preserve these records 
for a period of t hree years from the c l ose 
of the project for all laborers and 
mechanics so empl oyed; and 

22-28 



ill Any other information or requirement as the 
director may require under chapter 104, HRS, 
or this chapter . [Eff and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : 
HRS §104-2) 

§12-22-77 Project party collective bargaining 
agreement . Where the project party has entered into a 
collective bargaining agreement with a bona fide labor 
union governing the . project party ' s workforce , as set 
forth in section 104-2(h), HRS, the terms of that 
coll~ctive bargaining agreement and associated 
provisions shall be deemed the prevailing wages such 
that the project party shall not be required to pay to 
its laborers and mechanics covered by the collective 
bargaining agreement the wages in comparable 
classifications as publi shed by the director in the 
wage rate schedules, unless otherwise required under 
the director ' s enforcement powers contained in section 
104-2(g), HRS." [Eff and comp 
(Auth : HRS §104- 29) (Imp : HRS §104-2) 

2. Material, except source notes, to be 
repealed is bracketed and stricken. New material is 
underscored. 

3 . Additions to update source notes to reflect 
these amendments and compilation are not underscored . 

4 . These amendments to and compilati on of 
chapter 12-22, Hawaii Administrative Rules , shall t ake 
effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor . 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 
r ules , drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised 

22-29 



Statutes, which were adopted on and 
fi l ed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 

LEONARD HOSHIJO 
Director of Labor and 
Industrial Relations 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Deputy Attorney General 

22-30 



III. Old Business 

C. Discussion and Action on the Small Business 

Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed 

Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 44.1, Testing, 
Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who 
Perform Maintenance and Testing of Portable Fire 
Extinguishers, Fire Protection Systems, and Fire 
Alarm Systems, promulgated by Hawaii State Fire 

Council/D LIR. 



LEGAL NOTICE 
Notice ofProposed Rulemaking 

Public Hearing 

Pursuant to chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes, notice is hereby given that the 
Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, State Fire Council ("SFC") will hold a public 
hearing on March 13, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the auditorium at the Honolulu Fire Department 
Headquarters, 636 South Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, to hear all persons interested inthe 
proposed rules pertaining to Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Perfotm 
Maintenance ofPmtable Fire Extinguishers, Fire Protection Systems, and Fire Alarm Systems. 

The purpose ofthe hearing is to adopt a new administrative rule in accordance with HRS 
§132-16 for the testing, _certifying, and credentialing .individuals who perfonn maintenance and 
testing ofportable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, and fire alarm systems that will be 
administered by the county fire departments. 

A copy ofthe proposed rules will be made available for public viewing from the first 
working day that the legal notice appears in the Honolulu Star-Advertiser. Hawaii Tribune
Herald1 West Hawaii Today, The Maui News, and The Garden Island. through the day-the public 
hearing is held. from Monday ~ Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.rn. - 4:00 p.m., at the 
following locations: · 

Honolulu Fire Department 
636 South Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

Department ofFire and Public Safety, CoW1ty of Maui 
Fire Prevention Bureau 
313 Manea Place 
Wailuku., Maui, Hawaii 96793 

Kauai County Fire Department 
4444 Rice Street, Suite.315 
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766 

Hawaii County Fire Department 
25 Aupuni Street, Suite 2501 
Hilo, Hawaii, 96720-4245 

Depruiment of Labor and Industrial Relations 
830 Punchbowl Street, Room 321 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

The proposed rules may also be viewed at: http://labor.hawaii.gov/sfc/ 

http://labor.hawaii.gov/sfc


A copy ofthe proposed rules can also be mailed at no cost to any interested party, upon 
written request to the State Fire Council at 636 South Street, Honolulu, ID 96813 

Interested persons may present written or oral testimony at the time ofthe public hearing. 
All persons wishing to submit written testimony are requested to submit 5 copies oftheir vvritten 
testimony before the public hearing to the State Fire Council, 636 South Street, Honolulu, ID 
96813 or 5 copies may be submitted to the presiding officer at the public hearing. _The public 
hearing will be. continued, ifnecessary, to a time, date, and place announced at the scheduled 
hearing. 

Interested persons unable to attend the public hearing, shall submit five copies of their 
written testimony concerning the proposals to the State Fire Council, 636 South Street, Honolulu, 
HI 96813. All submissions must be received at or prior to the scheduled public hearing. 

Individuals who require special needs accommodations can call the State Fire Council at 
(808} 723-7176(voice) or the Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations at (808) 586-8847 
(TTY) or} ..888-569-6859 (TTY neighbor islands) at least ten working days prior to the hearing. 

Dated: Febmary 2, 2018 
Leonard Hoshijo 
Acting Director 
Department ofLabor aqd Industrial Relations 

2 



DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Adoption of Chapter 12-44.1 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

SUMMARY 

Chapter 12-44.1, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing 
Individuals Who Pe rform Maintenance and Testing of 
Portable Fire Extinguishers , Fire Protection Systems, 
and Fire Alarm Systems," is adopted to read as 
follows: 

44.1-1 



§12-44 . 1-1 

HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 12 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

SUBTITLE 7 

BOARDS 

CHAPTER 44 . 1 

TESTING, CERTIFYI NG, AND CREDENTIALING INDIVIDUALS WHO 
PERFORM MAINTENANCE AND TESTING OF PORTABLE FIRE 

EXTINGUISHERS, FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS , AND 
FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS 

Subchapter 1 Rules of General Applicability 

§12-44 . 1-1 Definitions 
§12- 44.1 - 2 General provisions 
§12 -4 4.J - 3 Appli cation for certificate of fitness 
§12-44.1 -4 Violations 
§12-44.1-5 Appeals 

§12-44 . 1-1 Definitions . The following 
definition~ shall apply to this chapter . 

"Certificate of fitness" means a credential 
issued by t he county fire department to any person for 
the purpose of granting permission to such person to 
conduct or engage in any operation or act to maintain 
and test portable fire extinguishers, fire protection 
systems, or fire alarm systems~ or any combination of 
the above . 

"Fire alarm system" means a system or portion of 
a combination system that consists of components and 
circuits arranged to monitor and annunciate the stat us 
of fire alarm or s upervisory signal-initiating devices 

44.1-2 



§12-44.1-1 

and to initiate the appropriate response to those 
signals. 

" 'Fire protection system" means any fire alarm 
device . or system, or fire extinguishing device or 
system, or any combination of the above, that is 
designed and installed for detecting , controlling, or 
extinguishing a fire or otherwise alerting occupants 
or the fire department or both that a fire has 
occurred . 

"Other fire extinguishing system" means any fixed 
fire extinguishing system which uses an extinguishing 
agent other than water . They may include dry 
chemical , foam, halogen-type (including 
nonhalogenated) , carbon dioxide, and special hazard 
systems . 

"Portable fire extinguisher" means a portable 
device, carried or on wheels and manually operable, 
containing an extinguishing agent that can be expelled 
under pressure for suppress i ng or extinguishing fire . 

" Private fire hydrant" means a valved connection 
on a water supply system having one or more outlets 
that is used to supply hose and fire department 
pumpers with water and is located on private property. 

"Water-based fire extinguishing system" means any 
class I , II , or III standpipe system, and combined 
standpipe system, automatic sprinkler system, or 
automatic water spray fixed system utilizing water a~ 
an extinguishing agent . [Eff 
(Auth: HRS §132- 16) (Imp: HRS §132-16) 

§12- 44 . 1 - 2 General provisions . 
(a) Certificates of fitness may only be 

issued to a person 18 years of age or older. 
(b) Certificates of fitness are nontransferable. 
(c) Certificates of fitness are valid for three 

years . 
(d) The holder of a certificate of fitness may 

only perform maintenance and testing on the type or 
types of extinguishers or systems for which the 

44 . 1-3 



§12-44.1-2 

certificate of f itness was issued. 
[Eff (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp : 
HRS §132-16) 

§12 .44.1-3 Application for cert i ficate of 
fitness. (a) An application for a certificate of 
fitness to maintain and · test portable fire 
extinguishers , fire protection systems, or fire alarm 
systems, or any combination of the above, found on the 
State Fire Council website , shall be submitted to a 
county fire department along with copies of the 
following supporting documents: 

(1) Applicant's driver's license; 
(2) Approved third-party certificate; and 
(3) Proof of applicable training regarding 

private fire hydrants. 
(b) A current listing of approved third

party certifying organizations may be found on 
the State Fire Council website. 

(c) The county fire departments shall issue 
certificates of fitness to persons who are 
qualified to maintain and test portable fire 
extinguishers , fire protection systems , or fire 
alarm systems or any combination of the above. 

(d) The county fire departments shall 
collect applicable fees . 

(e) The fee for each certificate of fitness 
is payable by check or money order to the county 
f i re department and is nonrefundable . Cash will 
not be accepted. [Eff ] 
(Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp: HRS §132-16) 

§12-44 . 1 - 4 Violations. (a) The county 
fir e department may deny or suspend the 
certificate of f i tness for up to one year if it 
finds that the holder of the certificate of 
fitness: 

44 . 1- 4 



§12-44 .1-4 

(1) Violated any portion of the state fire code 
in maintaining and testing portable fire 
extinguishers , fire protection systems, or 
fire alarm systems; 

(3) Falsified a ny record requi red to be 
maintained by the state f ire code; 

(4) Falsely obtained or attempted to obtain a 
certificate of fitness; or 

(5) Engaged in testing and maintaining a 
portable fire extinguisher , fire protection 
system, or fire alarm system, or any 
combination of the above , for which a 
certificate of fitness is required under 
this chapter during the suspension or 
expiration of any certificate of fitness. 

(b) No new certificate of fitness shall be 
issued to a person for a period of up to one year from 
the date the certificate of fitness was suspended 
during which time the person shall cease all 
operations as a maintainer and tester of portable fire 
extinguishers, fire protect ion systems, or fire alarm 
systems, or any combination of the above. 
[Eff (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp : 
HRS §132-16) 

§12- 44 .1-5 Appeals . (a) Appeal of a 
certificate of fitness application denial or r 
suspension must be in writing and filed with the 
county fire chief from which the denial or suspension 
was issued within 20 d ays after the date of mailing of 
the denial or suspension . Deposit of an appeal in the 
mail addressed to the county fire chief from which the 
denial or suspension was issued with a postmark dated 
within the 20 days shall be deemed a t imely filing. 

(b) A hearing shall be held in accordance with 
chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes. Computation of 
time s hall be in accordance with section 1-29, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes. [Eff ] (Auth: 
HRS §132-16) (Imp : HRS §132 -16) 

44 . 1-5 



DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The adoption of chapter 12-44.1 , Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, on the Summary Page dated _ _ _ _ ___, was adopted 
on _ _ _ _ ___, following a public hearing held on 

after public notice was given in the- ------, 
Honolulu Star Advertis-er on 

The adoption of chapter 12-44.1 shall take effect ten 
days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant 
Governor . 

Manuel P . Neves, Chairperson 
State Fire Council 

APPROVED: 

David Y. Ige 
Gove r nor 
State of Ha waii 

Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Deputy Attorney General . 

Filed 

44.1-6 



III. Old Business 

D. Discussion and Action on the Small Business 
Statement After Public Hearing on HAR Title 18, 
Chapter 237, General Excise Tax Law, as follows, 
promulgated by Department ofTaxation 

1. Amendments to Section 8.6, County Surcharge 

2. Proposed New Section 29.53, Exported Services 



SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 

Department or Agency: Department ofTaxation (Department) 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 18-237 

Chapter Name: General Excise Tax Law 

Contact Person/Title: Jacob Berlitz, Administrative Rules Specialist 

Phone Number: (808) 587-5334 

E-mail Address: Jacob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov Date: March 13, 2018 

Webpage address for draft rules: tax.hawaii.gov/legal/taxlawandrules 

General Description of Proposed Rules: 

The proposed rules amend sections 18-237-8.6-01 through 18-237-8.6-10, Hawaii 
Administrative Rules (HAR), relating to the county surcharge to the general excise tax (GET). 

Generally, each county is authorized to impose a county surcharge on gross income and 

gross proceeds subject to GET. The current mies provide the method of allocating gross income 
and gross proceeds to each county. The proposed rules simplify the allocation method by 

eliminating the "nexus" analysis. Additionally, the proposed rules refer to section 18-237-29.53, 
HAR, which are simultaneously proposed for enactment, to determine allocation of gross income 
and gross proceeds from services. 

· Rule Description: D New D Repeal ~ Amendment D Compilation 

I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the 
proposed rules. 

The Department invited public comment at the public hearing, but did not directly 
involve small business in the development of the proposed rules. 

http:18-237-29.53
mailto:Jacob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov


Small Business Statement After Hearing 
Department of Taxation 
Proposed HAR §18-237 
March 13, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide the following information: 

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were 

solicited. 

The Department invited the general public, including small businesses, to provide 

comments on the proposed rules twice in its notices of public hea1ing published 

on the Department's website and in statewide newspapers September 7, 2017 and 

November 6, 2017. 

2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 

The Department received one item of testimony: comments from the Tax 

Foundation of Hawaii. The comments raised some concerns with the rules 

eliminating the "nexus" requirement discussed above. 

3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 

The Department respectfully disagrees with the Tax Foundation analysis and 

elected to adopt the proposed rules as-is. 

4. The number of persons who: 

(i) Attended the public hearings: 2 on October 17, 2017; 2 on December 11, 
2017 

(ii) Testified at the hearing: 1 on October 17, 2017; 1 on December 11, 2017 

(iii) Submitted written comments: 1 on October· 17, 2017 

5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that 

affected small business? 

No. 



DEPARTME~T OF TA.x.ATION 

Amendments to Chapter 18-237, 
fiawaii Adrninistrative Rules 

2017--------I 

SUMMARY 

1. §§18-237 - 8.6-01 to 18 - 237-8.6 - 03 are amended . 

2. §18-237-8.6-04 - is repealed, 

3. §§18 - 237 - 8.6 - 05 to 18-237-8. 6- 06 are ame nded. 

4 . §18-237-8 . 6-07 . is repealed. 

5. §§18-237-8.6 - 08 to 18-237-8:6 - 10 are amended. 

1 



§18-237 - 8.6-01 Definitions . As used in sections 
18-237-8.6-01 to 18-237-8.6-10, unless the 
context otherwise requires: 

11 Control 11 means to exercise restraining or 
directing influence over. 

11 Hawaii district" means the taxation district for 
the county of Hawaii .. 

"Intangible property" means, but is not limited 
to, franchises, patent, copyright, formula, process, 
design, pattern, know how, format, or other similar 
items. 

"Kauai district 11 means the taxation district for 
the county of Kauai. 

"Maui district" means the taxation district for 
the counties of Maui and Kalawao, which incl udes the 
islands of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai. 

"Oahu district" means the taxation district for 
the city and county of Honolulu . 

11 Tangible personal property" is generally 
property that may be touched or felt. 

"Taxation district" means the Kauai district, 
Hawaii district, Maui district, or Oahu distric~, as 
those districts are defined in this section. (Eff 
12/7/06; am ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8 . 6) 

18 - 237-8.6-02 Allocation of gross income and 
gross proceeds from sales of tangible personal 
property . Except as provided in this section, the 
gross income and gross proceeµs of sale derived from a 
taxpayer ' s sale of tangibl e personal property shall be 
allocated to the taxation district where the property 
is delivered, regardless of where the title to the 
property passes . 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer, a retailer located in the 
Oahu district, receives an order for 
products from Purchase~. Taxpayer accepts 
the order and delivers the products to the 

2 



Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the 
gross income from the sale to the Maui 
district, where the products were delivered. 

Example 2: 

Taxpayer, a retailer located in the 
Maui district, sells products to Purchaser 
located in the Oahu district. Pursuant to 
Purchaser's instructions, Taxpayer directs 
Taxpayer's product manufacturer, who is 
located in the Kauai district, to deliver 
the products to Purchaser's office i'n the 
Maui district . Taxpayer shall allocate the 
gross income from the sale to the Maui 
district, where the products were delivered. 

Example 3: 

Retailer, located out of state, sells 
and delivers products to Purchaser in the 
Oahu district. Retailer shall allocate the 
gross income from the sale to the Oahu 
district, where the products were delivered. 
[Eff 12/7 / 06; am ] (Auth: HRS 
§ § 2 31- 3 ( 9) , 2 3 7 - 8) (Imp: HRS § 2 3 7 - 8 . 6} 

§18-237-~.6-03 Allocation of gross income from 
contracting and services . (a) Gross income from 
contracting or services performed by a taxpayer 
engaged in a·service business or calling shall be 
allocated to the taxation district where the services 
are used or consumed, as provided in sections 18-237 -
29.53-03 to 18-237-29.~3-13. 

(b) If services are used or consumed in more 
than one taxation district, gross income shall be 
allocated using any reasonable method; provided that 
the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and 
supported by verifiable data that reasonably 
quantifies the proportionate benefit received by each 

3 



taxation district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-8.6) 

§18-237-8.6-04 Repealed. [R 

§18-237-8.6-05 Allocation of gross income from 
the rental, lease, oi license of tangible and 
intangible personal property . (a) Except as provided 
in this section, gross income from the rental, lease, 
or license of tangible and intangible personal 
property shall be allocated to the taxation district 
where the property is used. 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer is engaged in the business of 
renting motor vehicles in each of the four 
taxation districts. Taxpayer rents a 
vehicle to a customer in the Maui district. 
Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income 
received from the rental to the Maui 
district, where the vehicle is used. 

Example 2: 

Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, 
is engaged in the business of renting 
equipment. Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ, 
located in the Maui district, for a job in 
the Kauai district. Taxpayer shall allocate 
the gross income from this rental to the 
Kauai district.L where the property is used. 

Exampl e 3: 

Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, 
wrote and copyrighted a song. A musician 
pays Taxpayer a royalty to perform that song 
for profit in a hotel in the Maui district, 
Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income 

4 



from the license of the copyright to the 
Maui district where the property is used, 

(b) Where a taxpayer rents or leases tangible 
personal property or licenses or receives a royalty 
from intangible personal property that is used in more 
than one taxation district, gross income shall be 
allocated using any reasonable method; provided that 
the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and 
supported by verifiable data that reasonably 
quantifies the proportionate benef~t received by each 
taxation district. This rule also applies to property 
that is constantly in transit between taxation 
districts, such as barges, containers, and aircrafts 
without home ports or bases. 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ to be 
used in the Maui district and the Oahu 
district. The equipment will be used in the 
Maui district for six months and in the Oahu 
district for six months. Taxpayer shall 
allocate fifty per cent of the gross income _ 
from the rental of the equipment to the Maui 
district and fifty per cent to the Oahu 
district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9) 1 237-8) (Imp: HRS 
§237-8.6) 

§18-237-8,6-06 Allocation of gross income from 
the rental or lease of real property, Gross income 
from a taxpayer's rental or lease of real property in 
the State shall be allo~ated to the taxation district 
where the real property is located . 

. Example 1: 

Taxpayer rents condominium units 
located in each of the four taxation 
districts. Taxpayer shall allocate the 

5 



gross income from the rental of each unit to 
the taxation district where the condominium 
unit is located. [Ef f 12/7/06; am 

] (Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 

§18-237-8.6-07 Repealed. [R 

§18-237-8.6-08 Allocation of gross income from 
interest, (a) The gross income from a taxpayer 1 s 
investment interest shail be allocated to the taxation 
district where the investment is controlled. 
Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross 
income by using any reasonable method; provided that 
the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and is 
supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects 
the benefit received by the taxation district . 

Example 1 : 

Taxpayer has retail locations in all 
taxation districts and h as corporate offices 
located in the Oahu district. Taxpayer has 
a central cash management account controlled 
by the corporate office located in the Oahu 
district that places the gross receipts from 
all retail locations into one interest 
bearing bank account, Taxpayer shall 
allocate the interest received from this 
bank account to the Oahu district because 
the account is controlled by the corporate 
office located ih the Oahu district. 

Example 2: 

Assume the same facts as in example 1, 
except t hat a separate bank account is 
created for the Maui district retail 
locations. The money deposited into that 
bank account is used for improvements to the 

6 



Maui district stores and controlled by the 
Maui district retail locations. Interest on 
this bank account shall be allocated to the 
Maui district. 

(b) When interest is earned from the sale of 
tangible personal property on a deferred or 
installment payment plan, the interest shall be 
allocated to the taxation district where the tangible 
personal property · is delivered. Alternatively, the 
taxpayer may allocate the gross income by usin$ any 
reasonable method; provided that the method is 
consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by 
verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit 
received by the taxation district . . 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer, located in the Hawaii 
district, sells equipment to Purchaser, 
located in the Kauai district, on an 
installment payment plan. Taxpayer delivers 
the equipment to Purchaser in the Kauai ' 
district. Every month for twelve months, 
Taxpayer receives a payment from Purchaser, 
which includes principal and interest. 
Taxpayer shall allocate the interest 
received from each payment to the Kauai 
district . 

{c) When interest is earned from the sale of 
real property on a deferred payment plan, the gross 
income from the interest shall be allocated to the 
taxation district where the real property is located, 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer sells real estate loca t ed in 
the Oahu district pursuant to an agreement 
of sale, which provides for deferred · 
payments of the sales price and an interest 
charge. Taxpayer shall allocate the 

7 



interest received to the Oahu district 
because the real estate that is the subject 
of the agreement of sale is located in the 
Oahu district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 

] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 
2 3 7 - 8) ( Imp : HRS § 2 3 7 - 8 . 6) . 

§18-237-8.6-09 Allocation of gross income of 
theaters, amusements, etc, The gross income from 
the business of operating a theater, opera house, 
moving picture show, vaudeville, amusement park, dance 
hall, skating rink, or any other place where 
amusements are offered to the public shall be 
allocated to the taxation district where the event 
takes· place. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate 
the gross income by using any reasonable-method; 
provided that the·method is consistently used by the 
taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that 
reasonably reflects the benefit received by the 
taxation district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-8.6) 

§18-237-8,6-10 All others. If sections 18-237-
8.6-02 to 18-237-8,6-09 do not apply, gross income 
shall be allocated to a taxation district based upon 
the rules for a llocating gross income which are the 

· most relevant to the taxpayer's particular business 
activity. Alt~rnatively, the taxpayer may a llocate 
the gross income by using any reasonable method; 
provided that the method is consistently used by the 
taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that 
reasonably reflects the benefit received by the 
taxation district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 

8 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

DATE : 

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION; Amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawa·ii 
Administrative Rules; Standard format amendments to §§18-237 - 8.6-
01 / 18-237-8, 6 - 02 / 18-237-8, 6-03, 18-2]7-8 , 6-05 I 18 - 237-8 • 6-06 / 
18-237- 8 . 6 - 08, 18-237-8,6-09, and 18-237-8.6 - 10 and repeal of 
§§18-237-8.6-04 and 18-237 - 8.6 - 07 for pre - hearing approval 
pursuant to Hawaii Administrative Directive 09 - 01. 

9 



--------

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 

Amendments to Chapter 18-237, 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

, 2017 

1. Section 18-237-8.6-01, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237-8 . 6-01 Definitions. [Where] As used in 
sections 18 -237-8.6-01 to 18-237-8.6-10, unless the 
context o therwise requires: 

[ 11 Amusements 11 mean� operating a theater, opera 
house, moving picture shciw, vaudeville, amusement 
park, dance hall, skating rink, radio broadcasting 
station, or any other place at which amusements arc 
offered to the pu~ 

11 Business 11 means the same as the term is defined 
in chapter 23?, HR8. 

11 Contracting 11 means the same ao the term is 
defined . in chapter 237, HRS. 

11 Contractoru means the same as the term is 
defined in chapter 237, HR8.] 

11 Control 11 means to exercise restraining or 
directing influence over. 

[ 11 Documented 11 means recorded, by means of 
letters , figures, or marks, the original, official, or 
legal form of so,mething·, which is admissible as an 
evidence in a court of law. 

11 Gross income 11 means the same as the term is 
defined in chapter 237 1 HR8. 

"Gross proceeds of sale" means the same as the 
term i � defined in chapter 23?, HRS.] 

• 11 Hawaii district" means the taxation district for 
the county of Hawaii . 

(.ll.Heme office 11 means the prineipal place ef 
business in this State from \thich the trade or 
business of the taxpayer is directed or managed, ] 

11 rntangible·property 11 means, but is not limited 
to, franchi se~, patent, copyright, formula, process, 

1 



design, pattern, know how, format, or other similar 
i terns . . 

[ 11 .Job site" means the place where a structure or 
group ef ~tructures was, is, or is to be located: It 
is a location of a property or a plot of land prepared 
fer or underlying a structure or development.] 

"Kauai district" means the taxation district for 
the county of Kauai . 

"Maui district" means the taxation district for 
the.counties of Maui and Kalawao, which includes the 
islands of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai . 

( 11 NCJmo 11 means, but is not limited to, physical 
presence in the State or the taxation district as the 
centext may require.] 

"Oahu district 11 means the taxation district for 
the city and county of Honolulu . 

["Physical presence" means the presence of one or 
more employees, representatives, property, or closely 
related subsidiaries, 

"Place of eusineos 11 mean� a physical location in 
this State at which the trade or business of the 
taxpayer is conducted. Thie term does not include----a 
transient or insubstantial location or facilities, . 
ouch as hotel reom�, dropbmces, telephone number 
listings, or telephone answering services, 

11 Profit centers" are measurement tools used by 
many different industries. They arc a means by wlt-i-eh 
management of a company can analyze revenues and 
related expenses generated by a profit unit, A profit 
unit can be a product, a line of business or a person. 

"Real property" means the same as the term is 
defined in chapter 231 1, HRS . 

"Reasonable allocation method" is a method used 
to distribute or apportion gross income or gross 
proceeds in a clear, fair and proper manner and 
properly reflects the gross income to each taJCation 
district, such as based on the amount of time spent. 

11 Service business" means the same as the term is 
defined in chapter 237, HRS.] 

"Tangible personal property 11 is generally 
property[, ~{hich] that may be touched or felt. 

2 



"Taxation district" means the Kauai district, 
Hawaii district; Maui district, or Oahu district, as 
those districts are defined in this section. 

[ 11 Taxpayer 11 means any person liable fer taJc under 
chapter 237, HRS.) [Eff 12/7 /06; am ) 
(Auth: HRS .§§231 - 3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8. 6) 

2 . Section 18-237-8.6 -02, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

18 -23 7 - 8,6-02 Allocation of gross income and 
gross proceeds from sales of tangible personal 
property. Except as provided in this section, the 
gross income and gross proceeds of sale derived from a 
taxpayer's sale of tangible personal property[7 ] shall 
be allocat ed to the taxation district (-t-e--w-Me-h] where 
the property is delivered, regardless of where the 
title to the property passes. (The ·coi:inty surcharge 
pursuant to section 237 8.6, HRS, shall be imposed on 
gross income and gross proceeds for sales of tangible 
personal property shipped or delivered to the Oahu 
district provided the taJcpayer has substantial nmcus 
with the Oahu district. Substantial nexus is created 
by, but is not limited to physical presence, such as 
the presence of one or more employees, 
representatives, or property, in the Oahu district for 
purposes of the ~aunty surcharge under section 237 
8. 6, HRB.) 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer, a retailer located in the 
Oahu district, receives an order for 
products from Purchaser. Taxpayer accepts 
the order and delivers the product_s to the 
Maui district, Taxpayer shall allocate the 
gross income from [these sales] the sale to 
the Maui district, where the produc t s were 
delivered. [TaJcpayer shall not be subject 
to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge because 
the surcharge is .levied on gross income f r om 

3 



products delivered in the Oahu districi and 
the destination of the shipment is outside 
of the Oahu district, 

Eacample 2 : 

Taxpayer, a retailer located in the 
Maui district with an office or store in the 
Oahu district, delivers products to 
Purchaser in the Oahu district . Tru~aycr 
shall allocate the gross income or gross 
proceeds from-these sales to the Oahu 
district, where the preducts were de live.red. 
Taxpayer shall be subject to the 0 .5 per 
cent county surcharge because substantial 
neJcus with the Oahu district is established 
through its office or store in the Oahu 
district . ] 

Example [3-t-] 2: 

Taxpayer,· a retailer l ocat ed in the 
Maui district, sells products to Purchaser 
locat ed i n t he Oahu distri ct. Pursuant to 
Purchaser 1 s instructions, Taxpayer directs 
Taxpayer's product manu facturer, who is 
l ocated in t he Kauai d i strict, to deliver 
the products to Purchaser's office [er 
project ] i n t he Maui district. Taxpayer 
shall allocate the gross income [or gross 
proceeds] from [these sales] the sale to the 
Maui dis t rict, where the products were 
delivered . (Tmcpayer shall not be subj eat 
to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge because 
the surcharge is levied on gross iricome 
arising from t he sale of tangible personal 
property delivered in the Oahu district . ] 

(EJcample 4 : 

Company XYZ, located in the Matl-i
district, does not have an office, store, er 

4 



other representatien in the Oahu district, 
delivers products to Customer ABC, whe 
maintains a central warehouse in the Oahu 
district. 8ubscqucntly, Customer ABC 
delivers the products to its branch stores 
located in other tmeation districts . Company 
XYZ shall allocate the gross income or gross 
proceeds from these sales to the Oahu 
district, where the products were delivered. 
Company XYZ shall not be s ubject to the 0.5 
per cent county surcharge because Company 
XY3 does not have an office, store, or other 
representation in the Oahu district, thus 
substantial nexus with the Oahu district is 
not established.] 

Example (-5-+] ~ 

RctailcrL located [out o.f state] out of 
state, [has a � ales agent in the Oahu 
district,] sells and delivers products to 
Purchaser in the Oahu district. [Retailer 
shall be subj eet to the general mccise tax 
for the sales in the Oahu district because 
-EH:l-£)� tantial neJcuo with the State is 
established through its sales agent in the 
Oahu district. Retailer shall also be 
subject to the 0.5 per cent county durcharge 
because substantial neJCUS with the Oahu 
district is established through its sales 
agent in the Oahu district.) Re tailer shall 
allocate the gross income from the sale to . 
the Oahu district, where the products were 
delivered. 

[EJtamplc 6: 

Sarne facts as in mcample 5, except that 
Retailer docs not have an office, employees 
or other representation, including any sales 
person , in t he Oahu district. Retailer shall 
not be subjeet to t he general excise taJC for 

5 



the sales in the Oahu district because 
Retailer does not have an office, store, or 
e-t-her representation in the Oahu district, 
thus there is no substantial neJeus with ·the 
State. Retailer shall not be subject to the 
0.5 per cerit county surcharge either because 
Retailer does net have an office, store, or 
ether representation in the Oahu district, 
thus substantial flC}EUS with the Oahu 
district is not established.] [Eff 12/7/06; 
am . ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 
2 3 7 -8) (Imp: . HRS § 2 3 7 - 8. 6) 

3. Section 18-237-8.6-03, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237.-8.6-03 Allocation of gross income 
[received by. service busineeees.J from contracting and 
services , J.tl Gross income [received] from 
contracting or services performed by a taxpayer 
engaged in a service business or calling shall - be 
allocated to the taxation district [-i-ft.--.-wh..i] where 
the services are [intended to be] used or consumed[. 
Alternatively, the taJCpayer may allocate the gross 
income by using any reasonable allocation method that 
clearly, fairly, and properly reflects the gross 
income to the appropriate taxation district, provided 
that the allocation method is documented. The county 
surcharge pursuant to section 237 8.6, HRS, shall be 
imposed on gross . income and gross proceeds for 
services intended to be used or consumed in the Oahu 
district provided the taJCpayer has substantial nexus 
with the Oahu distriet . ] , as provided in sections 18-
237-29.53-03 to 18-237-29,53-13. 

(b) If ser·vices are used or consumed in more · 
than one taxation district, gross inco~~- ~~all be 
allocated using any reasonable methodi provided that 
the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and 
supported by verifiable data that reasonably 
quantifies the proportionate benefit received by each 
taxation district. 

6 



[Example 1: 

TaJCpayer, an attorney whe0e effice is 
in the Oahu district, is retained by a 
client in the Maui district to prepare a 
lease for lancl in the Kauai district. 
TaJcpayer shall allocate the income to the 
Kauai distr:i.ct:., where the services are 
intended to be consumed. TaJepayer shall not 
be subject to the 0.5 per cent county 
surcharge because the services are intended 
to be consumed outside the Oahu district. 

~ample 2: 

Ta;;cpayer is an accounting firm . 
TaJcpayer has a home office in the Oahu 
district, which constitutes substantial 
neJCus with the Oahu district. Taxpayer's 
employees travel to other taJcation districts 
to conduct audits of clients. Taxpayer shall 
allocate income to the taJcation district �., 
where the services arc intended to be 
consumed by the clients. TqJcpayer shall be 
subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge 
for services intended to be consumed in the 
·oahu district. 

Taxpayer provides dentistry services 
from places of business in all of the 
ta,cation districts. TaJEpayer has a home 
office in the Maui district . Taxpayer 
travels to the Oahu district to provide 
dentistry services . TaJEpaycr shall allocate 
the gross income to the taJcation districts 
where the services arc intended to be used 
or c~nsurncd. In this case I 'substantial neJEUS 
is established by Taxpayer's physical 
presence in the Oahu district. Tmcpayer 

7 

http:distr:i.ct


shall be subject to the O.S per cent county 
surcharge for services intended to be used 
or consumed· i n the Oahu district but shall 
not be subject ~o the 0.5 per ce~t county 
surcharge for services intended to be 
consumed in taJcation districts other than 
the Oahu district. 

BJtample 4: 

Taxpayer 'is a law firm comprised of 
sixty five attorneys. Sixty attorneys ~erk 
in TaJcpaycr' s home office in the Oahu 
district and five work in TaJcpayer' � place 
of business located in the Hawaii district . 
Taxpayer is retained by a client in the 
Hah'aii district for a court case ii;i the 
Ha;mii district. Tmcpayer shall allocate 
§ifErSS income from services performed by the 
attorneys to the Hmmii district where 
Taxpayer's services are intended to be used 
or consumed, notwithstanding incidental 
travel, meetings, or eourt appearances, 
eutside of the taJCation district, or receipt 
of support services from the place of 
business located outside of the taxation 
district. TaJcpayer shall not be subject to 
the O. 5 per cent county surcharge regareHeos 
of the substantial nexus with the Oahu 
<;listrict because the legal services are 
intended to be used or consumed in the 
Hawaii district.] [Eff 12/7 /06; am 

] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 

4. Section 18-237-8.6-04, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is repealed. 

(§18 237 8 . 6 01 Allocation of gross inee-me from 
eemmissions. Commission income received by a taJCpayer 
shall be allocated to the taleation district in Hhich 

8 



Purchaser 
CJCCCpe that 
district. 

9 



Tmcpayer shall allocate the commission 
-i-H-eome to the Oahu district, where the 
services of selling the travel package for 
Disney World, Florida arc rende~cd by 
TaJCpaycr . Tmcpayer shall he sub3 cct to the 
o. s per cent county surcharge because s~ch 
services are rendered in the Oahu dis t rict-.---

ElJcamp 1 e 3 : 

same f.acts as in eJcample 1, eJcccpt that 
TaJepaycr .is located in the Maui ~is~riet. 
Tmepaycr shall allocate the comm1ss1on 
-:i:fte.omc to the Maui district, where the 
services of selling the travel package for 
Disney World, Florida are rendered by 
Taxpayer. Taxpayer shall not be subject to 
the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge because 
such services are rendered outside of the 
Oahu district . 

ElJcamp l c 4 : 

Bame facto as in eJcample 1, cJCcept that 
TaJcpayer is located in the Maui district and 

'. ,;i• I- ' tPurchaser is located in the Hawa11 u1.s cr1c. 
TaJepaycr shall allocate the commission 
income to the Maui district, where the 
services of selling the travel ·package for 
Disney World, Florida arc rendered ~y 
Tmcpaycr, TaJepaycr shal1 not be sub3 cct to 
the 0.5 per cent county surcharge becauqe 
such se~vices arc rendered outside of the 
Oahu dist:det. 

EJ)Eamplc 5: 

.Taxpayer is a securities broker that 
has an offiec in the Oahu district, sells 
securities to Purchaser who is located in 
the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate 
the commission income to the Oahu district 

10 · 



where the services of selling securities are 
rendereel-. TaJcpaycr shall be subject te the 
0.5 per cent county surcharge because ouch 
services arc rendered in the Oahu district. 

Example g : 

, TaJCpayer is a real estate company 
licensed as a real estate broker under 
chapter 167, HRS. Tmcpayer ABC has places of 
l3 ' 'us1ncss in the Oahu district Kauai 
d' t ' . ' 1s~ra.ct, Maui district, and Hawaii 
district . Each of Taxpayer's brokers and 
salesp~rsons is baaed in one of the places 
of busa.ness . The brokers and salespersons 
t 7avel to other taJeat.ion districts to meet 
with clients, manage clients• properties 
show properties, negotiate, review and close 
transactions . Brokers and Balesperson� sell 
a property in the Oahu district. Taxpayer 
shall allocate the commission income 
received to the taJcation district� where the 
rea~ property is located . The gross income 
derived from the sale or leasing of real 
property in the Oahu district shall be 
allocated to the Oahu district where the 
~l prop~rty is located , All of the gross 
income paid to Ta1cpayer and Taxpayer Io 
brokers and salespersons shall be subject te 
the 0.5 per cent county surcharge in this 
case because the real property is located in 
the Oahu district . Taxpayer and each of 
TaJcpayer I s brokers and salespersons shall 
allocate the income that TaJepayer, Brokers 
qr Balesperoons receives under section 237 
18 (e) , HR8, ~o the tmcation district where 
the real property is located, regardless ef 
the location of the place of busineo~ of 
TmEpayer, Brokers or 8alesperoono. Brokers 
or Balespersons shall aloe be subject to the 
0.5 pdr cent county surcharge for real 

,. 

11 

http:1s~ra.ct


property � old in the Oahu. distriet.J [Eff 
12/7/06; R 

) 

5. Section 18-237-8.6-05, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237-8.6-05 Allocation of gross income from 
the rentalL [e-r] lease, or license of tangible and 
intangible personal property, (a) Except as provided 
in this section, gross income from · the rental, [er) 
lease, or license. of tangible and intangible personal 
property[7 ] shall be allocated to the taxation 
district [in which] where the property is used. [H 
the property is used in more than one taxation 
district, the tmcpayer shall" allocate the gross income 
by using any reasonable allocation method that 
clearly, fairly and properly reflects the gross income 
to each taJcation district, provided that the 
allocat~on method is documented. The county surcharge 
pursuant to section 237 8.6, IIR8, shall be imposed on 
gross income and gross proceeds for renting or leasing 
of personal property to the mctent that the property 
is used in the Oahu district.] 

Example 1: 

·Taxpayer is engaged in ~he business of 
renting motor vehicles [from a place of 
business] in each of the four taxation 
districts. Taxpayer rents a vehicle to a 
customer in the Maui district. Taxpayer 
shall allocate the gross income received 
from the rental to the [tmcation district in 
whleh the motor •,,•chicle is used. ) Maui 
district, where the vehicle is used. 
[Ta1cpaycr oha11 be subject to the O. 5 per 
cent county surcharge on the gross income 
from motor vehicles used in the Oahu 
district because the personal property is 
being used in the Oahu district.] 

12 



Example 2: 

Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, 
is engaged in the business of renting 
equipment . Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ, 
located in the Maui distri ct, for a job in 
the Kauai distric t. Taxpayer shall allocate 
the gross income from this rental to the 
Kauai districtL where the property is used. 
(Taxpayer shall net be subject to the 0.5 
per cent eeunty surcharge because the 
property is net used in the Oahu distFict ,] 

Example 3: 

Taxpayer, l ocated in the Oahu district, 
(~] wrote and copyrighted a song, 

A musician pays Taxpayer a royalty to 
perform t h at song for profit in a hotel i n 
the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate 
the gross income from the l icense of the 
copyright to the Maui district where t h e 
property is used. [TaJcpayer shall not be 
subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge 
because the property is not used in the Oahu 
EH:-B-H--4-e-t---.-

Exampl,e 4: 

Same facts as in example 3, e Jccept that 
TaJ~ayer is located in the Maui district. 
TaJCpayer shall allocate the gross income 
from the license or royalty of his 
intangible personal property to the Maui 
district where the property is used . 
Taxpayer shall not be subject to the 0.5 per 
cent county surcharge because t he property 
is not used in the Oahu district.] 

13 



-E,fample 5: 

&ame facts as in eJCample ' 3, except that 
Taxpayer is located in the Maui distri€t aRd 
the licensee io in the Oahu district. 
Tm~ayer shall allocate the gross income 
from the license of his copyright to the 
Oahu district where the property is used. 
Taxpayer shall be subject to the 0.5 per 
cent county surcharge because the property 
is used in the Oahu district. ] 

(b) Where a taxpayer rents or leases tangible 
personal property(y] or licenses or receives~ royalty 
from intangible personal property(~] that is 
used in more than one taxation district, t-t::-he] gross 
income shall be allocated [to the tmcation districts 
ey) using any reasonable [allocation] method [~ 
clearly, fairly, and properly reflects the gross 
-i-fleome to each taxation district]; provided that the 
[allocation] method is (documented,] consistently used 
by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that 
reasonably quantifies the proportionate benefit 
received by each taxation district, This r ule also 
applies to property[-,-wh4-eh) that is constantly in 
transit between taxation districts, such as barges, 
containers, and aircraft~ without home ports or bases . 
[TaJ~ayer shall be subject to the 0.5 per cent county 
surcharge to the eJCtent that the gross income from the 
rental or lease of the personal property is allocated 
to the Oahu district pursuant to a reasonable 
allocation method.] 

Example 1: 

Taxpayer [is engaged in the business of 
renting] rents equipment to XYZ to be used 
in the Maui district and the Oahu district. 
The equipment will be used in the Maui 
district fo~ six months and i n the Oahu 
district for six months, Taxpayer shall 
allocate fifty per cent of the gross income 

14 



from · the rental of the equipment to the Maui 
district and fifty per cent to the Oahu 
district. [Taxpayer shall be subject to the 
Q,S per cent county surcharge on fifty per 
cent of the gross income because using a 
re-a-oonable allocation method based on time 
used, the equipment i � used fifty per cent 
of the time in the Oahu district.] 

Ta.JCpayer is engaged in the business of 
leasing contai~erq to XYZ. The~e containers 
are constantly in transit between taxation 
district s. Tm~ayer shall allocate the 
gross income by using a reasonable 
allocation method among the tamq.tion 
districts t hat clearly, fairly, and properly 
reflects gross income in each taxation 
district and document that allocation 
method . TaJcpayer shall be subject to the. 
0.5 per cent county surcharge on the gross 
proceeds allocable to the Oahu district as 
determined under a reasonable allocation 
method.] [Eff 12/7/06; am · 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3 ('9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS 
~237-8.6) 

6. Section 18-237-8.6-06, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended ·to read as follows: 

§18-237-8.6-06 Allocation of gross income from 
the rental or lease of real property. Gross income 
from a taxpayer's rental or lease of real property in 
(-th4-s-] the State shall be allocated to the taxation 
district where the real property is located. [Lessors 
are subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge for 
rental or lease of real property located in the Oahu 
district. Lessors in tmcation districts other than -t-he 
Gahu district are subject to the county surcharge if 

15 



they rent or lease real property located in the Oahu 
district.] 

Example h·] 1: 

Taxpayer rents condominium units 
located in each of the four taxation 
districts. Taxpayer shall allocate the 
gross income from the rental of each unit to 
the taxation district [in which] where the 
condominium unit is located . [T~xpayer 
-ehall be subject te the 0.5 per cent county 
oureharge on gross income from the 
condominium units rented in the Oahu 
district because the real property is 
located in th.e oah\cl district,) [Eff 
12/7/06; am ) (Auth: HRS 
§ § 2 31- 3 ( 9) , 2 3 7 - 8) (Imp: HRS § 2 3 7 - 8 . 6) 

7 . Section 18 - 237-8.6-07, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is repealed. 

[§18 237 8.6 07 Allocation of gross income from 
contracting. Gross income from contracting shall 
be allocated to the taxation district where the job 
site is located . Contractors, with a home office in 
-e-a-xation districts other than the Oahu district are 
subject to the 0.5 per -cent county surcharge if the 
job site is l ocated in the Oahu district. Gross income · 
from contracting in the Oahu district shall be 
allocated to the Oahu district because the job site is 
located in the Oahu district. 

~ample 1. 

Tmcpayer with an office located in the 
Oahu district contracts for a construction 
project in the Maui district , TaJcpaycr 
shall allocate the gross income from this 
proj cct 'ts the Maui district. Taxpayer 
shall not be subject to the 0.5 per cent 

16 



county Sl¼-rchargc because the job site is 
located outside.of the Oahu district. 

ElJtamplc 2 : 

Assume the same facts in 8Jmmplc 1, 
e)Ccept that Taxpayer is the prime contractor 
for the project and Taxpayer subcontracts 
various aspect~ of the job to architect W 
and engineer X, located in the Oahu 
district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross 
income from this project to the Maui 
district . Wand X shall allocate the gros--s
•income they receive from Taxpayer to the 
Maui district. Taxpayer, W, and X shall not 
be subject to the 0 .5 per cent county 
surcharge because the job site is located 
outside of the Oahu district.] [Eff 
12/7/06; R ] 

8. Section 18 -237- 8.6 -0 8, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237-8 .6-08 Allocation of gross income from 
interest. (a) The gross income from a taxpayer ' s 
investment interest shall be allocated to the taxation 
district where [the control of ] the investment is 
[located unless the taJEpayer can show that a different 
location should control.) controlled. Alternatively, 
the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using 
any reasonable [allqcation) method [that clearly, 
fairly and properly ref lccts the gross income to -t-fle 
taxation district); provided that the [allocation] 
method is [documented. ) consistently used by the 
taxpayer and is supported by verifiable data that 
reasonably reflects the benefit .received by the 
taxation district, [Ta,cpayer shall be subject to t;he 
0.5 per cent county surcharge if t he business's 
eentrol of the invcstffient is in the Oahu district .) 

17 

http:outside.of


Example l: 

Taxpayer has retail locations in all 
taxation districts and has corporate offices 
l ocated in the Oahu district. Taxpayer has 
a central cash management account controlled 
by the corporate office l ocated in ' the Oahu 
district that places the gross receipts from 
all retai l locations into one interest 
bearing bank account. Taxpayer shall 
allocate the interest received from this 
bank account to the Oahu district because 
the account is controlled by the corporate 
office located in the Oahu district. 
(Therefore, the interest shall be subject to 
the 0.5 per cent county surcharge.] 

Example 2: 

Assume [!:Fhe) the same facts as in 
example 1, except that a separate bank 
account is created for the Maui district 
retail locations. The money deposited into 
that bank account is used for improvements 
to the Maui district stores and controlled 
by the Maui district retail locations. 
Interest on this bank account [shall not ae 
subject to the 0.5 per ceflt county surcharge 
bceause the account is being controlled 
outside of ,the Oahu district . ] shall be 
allocated to the Maui district. 

(b) [The §'ross income from a taJcpayer I s ·deferred 
J?'frYffient interest] When interest is earned from the 
sale of tangible personal property on a deferred or 
installment payment plan, the interest shall be 
allocated to the taxation district (in which] where 
the [sale that generated the interest is assigned 
under section 18 237 8 , 6 02 or 18 237 8.6 06 .) 
tangible personal property is delivered. [TaJcpa~ter 
shall be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge 
on t~e interest if the sale that generated the 

I 

18 



interest is allocated to the Oahu district.] 
Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross 
income by using any reasonable [allocation] method 
[that clearly, f~irly, and properly reflects the gross 

4-Hcome to the appropriate taJcation district] ; provided 
that the [allocation] method is [documented.] 
consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by 
verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit 
received by the taxation district. 

Example 1: 

[TaJCpayer has retail locations in all 
of the taJmtion districts. Taxpayer sells 
goods en an installment basis er deferred 
payment basis. TaJcpayer shall allocate the 
-interest received en the sales by credit or 
on the installment basis to the taJcation 
Ebi:-s-triet in which the sales that gene rated 
the interest is assigned under section 18 
237 8,6 02 . The interest · income generated 
from sales that are allocated to the Oahu 
a-i-otrict are likewise allocatecl te tl'ie Oahu 
district and subject to the 0.5 per cent 
county surcharge.) Taxpayer, located in the 
Hawaii district, sells equipment to 
Purchaser, located in the Kauai district, on 
an installment payment plan, Taxpayer 
delivers the equipment to Pu~chaser in the 
Kauai district. Every month for twelve 
months, Taxpayer receives a payment from 
Purchaser, which includes principal and 

. interest. Taxpayer shall allocate the 
interest received from each payment to the 
Kauai district. 

(c) When interest is earned from the sale of 
real property on a deferred payment plan, the gross 
income from the interest shall be allocated to the 
taxation district where the real. property is located . 

19 



Example [-2--:--) l..:_ 

Taxpayer[, who dee� net have an effice 
in the State,] sells [business or rental ] 
real estate located in the Oahu district 
pursuant to an agreement of sale, which 
provides for deferred payments of the sales 
price and an interes t charge, Taxpayer 
shall [be subj e _et to the O. 5 per cent eount:y 
surcharge en the interest inco me from the 
agreement ef sale because] allocate the 
inter es~_ received to _the Oahu d i str~~t 
because the real estate that is the subject 
of the agreement of sale is located in the 
Oahu district , [Eff 12/7/06; am 

] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 
2 3 7 - 8 ) ( I mp : HRS § 2 3 7 - 8 . 6 ) 

9. Section 18-237-8.6-09, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules, .is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237-8.6 - 09 Al location of g r oss i n come of 
t h eaters, amusements, etc . The gross income from 
the busi~ess of operating a theater, opera house, 
moving pic t ure s how, vaudeville, amusement park, dance 
hall, skating rink, or any other place [at which] 
where amusements are offered to the public shall be 
allocated to the taxation district [~ri which] wh~re 
the event takes place . [Taxpayer�. shall be subject to 
the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge en gross inceme 
generated from events in the Oahu district.] 
Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross 
income by using any reasonable [allocation] method 
[that clearly, fairly, and properly iefleets the greoo 
income to the appropriate taJEation district]; provided 
that the [alloeat-4-ofl] method is [docu~ented.] 
cons istently used by the taxpayer and supported by 
verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit 
received by the taxation district . [Eff 12/7/D6; am 

] (Auth: HRS §§231 -3 (9), 237 - 8) (Imp: 
HRS §237-8.6) 

20 



10. Section 18-237-8.6-10, Hawaii Administrativi 
Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

§18-237-8.6-10 All others. [The gross i--fl:€-eme or 
gross proceeds received by a tmcpayer who reports 
bus~ness activity on Form G 45 or Form G 49 under the 
classification "all others") If sections 18-237-8.6-02 
to 18-237-8 . 6-09 do not apply, gross income shall be 
allocated to a taxation district based upon the rules 
for allocating gross income [for the business 
activity] · which [-i-s,) arc the most [similar) relevant 
to the taxpayer's particular business activity. 
Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate t'he gross 
income by using any reasonable [allocation] ·method 
[that clearly, fairly and properly reflects the gross 
income to the appropriate taxation district]; provided 
that the [allocation] method is [documented.] 
~onsistently used by the taxpayer and supported by 
yerifiable data that rE:,asonably reflE_:cts the ben~f.~t 
received by the taxation district, [Eff 12/7/06; am 

J (Auth: HRS §§23 1 -3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: 
HRS §237 - 8 . 6) 

21 



~ 
t 
\ . t ' 

11. Material to be repealed is bracketed and 
stricken, New material is underscor~d. 

12. These amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawaii 
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after 
filing with the Office of the· Lieutenant Governor. 

I certify that the. foregoing are copie£ of the 
rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91 - 4.1, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, which were adopted on October ·g, 1981, and 
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

Director 
Department of Taxation 

22 



SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 

Department or Agency: Department of Taxation (Department) 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 18-237 

Chapter Name: General Excise Tax Law 

Contact Person/Title: Jacob Berlitz, Administrative Rules Specialist 

Phone Number: (808) 587-5334 

E-mail Address: Jacob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov Date: March 13, 2018 

Webpage address for draft rules: tax.hawaii.gov/legal/taxlawandrules 

General Description of Proposed Rules: 

The proposed rules amend chapter 237, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), by adding 
thirteen new sections which clarify how to determine whether gross income derived from 
services or contracting is exempt from the General Excise Tax as exported services or 
contracting. 

Generally, under section 237-29.53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, all gross income derived 
from contracting or services performed by a person in the State for use outside the State is 
exempt from General Excise Tax. Specifically, these proposed rules clarify this exemption by 
adding definitions and creating rules for particular contracting or service transaction types. For 
example, the proposed rules create new rules dealing with services related to real prop~rty, 
services related to tangible personal property, services provided by travel agencies and tour 
packagers, legal services, and more. 

Rule Description: [gj New D Repeal D Amendment D Compilation 

I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the 
proposed rules. 

http:237-29.53
mailto:acob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov


Small Business Statement After Hearing 
Department of Taxation 
Proposed HAR §18-237 
March 13, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

The Department invited public comment at the public hearing, but did not directly 
involve small business in the development of the proposed rules. 

II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide the following information: 

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were 

solicited. 

The Department invited the general public, including small businesses, to provide 
comments on the proposed rules twice in its notices of public hearing published 
on the Department's website and in statewide newspapers September 7, 2017 and 

November 6, 2017. 

2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 

The Department received three items of testimony: 

(1) Comments from the Tax Foundation of Hawaii. The comments were generally 
supportive of the rules but contained some recommended amendments for clarity. 

(2) Comments submitted on behalf of Priceline and Expedia. The comments 
expressed concern that the rules violate federal law under the Internet Tax 

Freedom Act. 

(3) Comments submitted on behalf of Priceline and Expedia after the second 
public hearing. The comments reiterated their earlier concerns. 

3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 

The Department considered the testimony submitted and elected to make some 
amendments to the rules for clarity, including adding a new example. 

The Department respectfully disagrees with the concerns that the rules violate the 
Internet Tax Freedom Act and instead chooses to rely on the Department of the 
Attorney General's approval of the rules as to form. 



---- ---

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 

Amendments to Chapter 18-237, 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

, 2018 

SUMMARY 

1. New-§§ 18-237-29. 53-0 1 , 18-237-29. 53-02, 18-237-
29. 53-03, 18-237- 29 . 53-04 , 18-237-29 . 53-05; 18-

.. -· ·-··-·-· - - ·-·· .. ..· · .... ·- .. ..., -2-3-7---2-9.....5-3-- 0-6-, - :l-8·-2-3-7--·2-9.-S-3 - 0.:J,-·-±-8 --2-3.'.7-- -2-9.-S-3-- 0-81--=-,--------
18- 237- 29 . 53-09 , 18-237-29 . 53-10 , 18-237-29 . 53-
11, 18-237- 29 . 53-12, and 18-237-29 . 53-13 are 
added . 

1 

http:18-237-29.53


§18-237~29.53-0l Defin~tions. As used in 
sections 18-237-29 . 53- 01 to 18-237-29 .53-13 : 

"Collection actions" means a ll actions taken to 
enforce a money judgment or collect a debt . 

· ".Commiss i oned agen t II means an agent that : 
(1) sells , buys, leases , or procures property; 
(2) sells, buys, or procures services ; or 
(3i sell s , books , or arr~nges transient 

accommodations or travel-related bookings 
on behalf of a principal, with the principal's assent , 
for a predetermined fee . When a commissioned agent 

----·------~ent-e-r-s--i-A•i:-0·-a--s a-±es -"t=--r-a-nsa 0-"t=--i-0n- wi-i:h.--a-·t-h.J.-r-d-·!='a-r,,&y----0n----~-------------
behal f of a principal, t he total price of t he sale is 
controlled by the principal; the total price cannot .be 
uni laterally determined by the agent . 

"Customer" means the person personally receiving 
the service . 

"Noncommissioned negotiated contract rates " means 
the rates specified in a negotiated contract between a 
travel agent or tour packager and operator of a 
transient accommodation or operator of a travel
related booking that the operator of a transient 
accommodation or operator of a travel-related booking 
will receive for a transaction booked by the travel 
agent or tour packager. When transient accommodations 
are furnished or travel-related bookings are made 
through arrangements made by a travel agent or tour 
packager at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates , 
the travel agent or tour packager may unilaterally 
determine the mark-up of the noncommissioned 
negotiated contract r ate and the total price charged 
to the customer; the operator of the transient 
accommodation or the operator of the travel-related 
booking has no control over the mark-up or t he total 
price . 

11 Transient accommodation " means the same as the 
term is defined in section 237D-1, HRS. 

"Travel-related booking" includes tours, 
excursions, transportation, rental vehicl es, shows, 
d ining, spa services, and any other reservation or 
booking made by a travel agent or tour packager. 

2 



Example 1: 

World Travel Inc. enters into a 
contract with Gold Hotel whereby World 
Travel Inc. may sell t h~ right to occupy 
rooms in Gold Hotel at $100 per room per 
night. The contract further provides t hat 
World Travel I nc. will receive a fee of ten 
per cent for each sale. World Travel Inc. 
is a commissioned agent of Gold Hotel . 

-•··-·· .. __ -----..-- . -..-• . .. . -Example -2 -: ... - .. -------·•----·........ ... --·----- .. .... . - .. . - ·---····--·-

Assume the same facts as in Example 1, 
except that the contract between World 
Travel Inc. and Gold Hotel provides that 
World Travel Inc . will r eceive a fee of 
eight per cent if total sales for the month 
are less than $10,000 or ten per cent if 
total sales for the month are $10 , 000 or 
more. World Travel Inc. is a commissioned 
agent of Gold Hotel. 

Example 3: 

Island Planner Co. enters into a 
contract with Silver Hotel whereby Island 
Planner Co. may sell the right to occupy 
rooms in Silver Hotel. For each booking 
made by Island Planner Co., Silver Hotel 
will receive $100 per room per night . 
Is l and Planner Co . may unilaterally 
determine the mark-up and set the total 
price charged to the customer. Island 
Planner Co. is arranging transient 
accommodations at noncommissioned negotia½ed 
contract rates. 

Example 4: 

Assume the same facts as in Example 3 , 
except that, for each booking made by Island 

-·---- - ----- .. . ---..---·- ···•-- -..... 

3 



Planner Co . , Silver Hote l will receive 
ninety per cent of the net rate, the best 
available rate offered by Silver Hotel to 
the public .at the time of the transaction . 
Island Planner Co. may unilaterally 
determine t he mark-up of the net rate and 
set the total price charged to the customer. 
Island Planner Co. is arranging transient 
accommodations at noncommissioned negotiated 
contract rates. 

•-----~- --·•·- --· - - ExampJ.e --•5 ··-·····- -- .. -··· -·· --. -· .. -··- .... ............... - - -· .... ·- ... •-······ ...... •···- ~- ·····-··· ·-·- - ·· ·· ··· -· --·· 

Hawaii ' s Best Inc., a travel agent, 
enters into a contract with Oceanside Spa to 
sell massage and facial treatments .. For 
each massage or facial sold by Hawaii's Best 
Inc. , Oceanside Spa will receive $80. 
Hawaii ' s Best Inc. may unilaterally 
determine the mark-up and set the total 
price charged to the customer . Hawaii's 
Best Inc. is making travel-related bookings 
at noncommissioned negotiated contract 
rates. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS 
§ § 231-3 (9) , 237-8 ) (Imp : HRS § 237- 29 . 53 ) 

4 



§18-237-29.53-02 Exemption for contracting and 
services exported out of state, in general. (a) 
Absent bad fai th, all of the value or gross income 
derived from contracting or services performed by a 
pers~n engaged in a service business or cali ing are 
exempt from general excise tax if t he contracting or 
services are used or consumed outside of the State; 
provided that servi ces performed f or a _purchas~r who 
resells t he services are exempt from general excise 
t ax only if the purchaser resells all of t he services 
for use or consumption outside the State . 

•··~·····..... ,_.:_________.,___ --(-b )------I-f-e::0n-t-:i:--aet-i-ng--or- se.:r;..v~ie::es ...a-:r:e--u-sed--GE--~--··----·----·------·-
consumed both in and outside of the Stat e, all of the 
value or gross income will be subject to general 
excise tax in proportion to the _benefit received in 
the State . Any reasonable method of apportioning a ll 
of the value or gross income may be used ; provided 
that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer 
and supported by verifiable data that reasonabl y 
quantifies the proportionate benefit received in t he 
State. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9) , 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-29 . 53) 

5 



§18-237-29.53-03 Contracting . Contracting is 
used or consumed where the real property to which the 
contracting activity pertains is located. 

Example 1: 

General LLC, a general contractor based 
in Hawaii , is hired by Devel oper LLC, a 
Hawaii developer, for a construction project 
located in Guam . Employees of General LLC 
and Developer LLC meet in Hawaii on a weekly 

-~-~----------ba.s-is- t-h-.t:0ughout~ the- du.:i;:a;t-ion- o.f--the -... -- ···--·· -- ........ _ .. ___ -·•· .... • •· -····-· ··· -· ·-· · 
construction project to d iscuss plans , 
progress, and other matters r e lated to the 
project. All of the value or gross income 
that General LLC receives for the 
construction project is exempt under section 
237-29 . 53, HRS, because the contracting is 
used or consumed in Guam, where the real 
property is located . 

Example 2: 

Second Hawaiian Bank, a bank with its 
headquart e rs in Hawaii, hires General LLC, a 
general contractor based in Hawaii, to buiid 
two new branches, one in Guam and one in 
Hawaii. All of the value or gross income 
that General LLC receives for the Guam 
branch is exempt under section 237-29.53, 
HRS , because th·e contracting i s used or 
consumed in Guam, where the real property is 
l ocated. All of the value or gross income 
that General LLC receives for the Hawaii 
branch is not exempt under section 237-
29.53, HRS , because the contracting is used 
or consumed in Hawaii, where the real 
property is located. [Eff 
{Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS 
§237-29.53) 

6 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-04 Services related to real 
property. Services rel ated to real property are used 
or consumed where the real property is located. 
Services related to real property i nclude , but are not 
limited to , property management, real estate sales, 
real estate i nspecti ons , and real estate appraisals. 

Example 1: 

RPM Co ., a Hawaii real property 
management company , is hired by RE Investor 

...,. ·-· ··· --·· --· --··· ·· -- -- -· •··· ·-I-ne-.--;-- a---Hawai-i-- e0-1:-p0:i::a-t-:i-0n,- t:0--ma-na:ge-a-------------
Calif ornia property . All of the value or 
gross income that RPM Co . receives from RE 
Investor Inc . to manage the California 
property i s exempt under section 237-29.53 , 
HRS, because t he property management 
services are used or consumed in California, 
where the .real property is located. 

Example 2: 

CPM LLC , a California real property 
management company, is hired by Irene 
Investor, a California res ident who owns 
real property in Hawaii , to manage her 
property. All of t he value or gross income 
that CPM LLC receives to manage the Hawaii 
property is not exempt under section 237-
29.53, HRS, because the property management 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii , 
where the real property is located. 

Example 3: 

The Hawaii office of Legal Services 
LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the 
United States , is hired by Lisa Landlord, a 
Hawaii res i dent, to draft lease agreements 
for her rental properties in Hawaii , 
Arizona, and Nevada . Legal Services LLP 
charges Lisa Landlord $200 each for the 

7 

http:237-29.53


Hawaii lease, Arizona l e ase , and Nevada 
lease , for a total fee of $600 ; Legal 
Services LLP shall report $600 in gross 
income on its general excise tax return and 
may claim two-thirds, or $400, as exempt 
under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS, because two
thirds of the services relate to real 
property located outside Hawaii and are 
therefore used or consumed out side Hawaii. 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-29 . 53) 

-·----· ----·--- ... . . --- -··-- ·- -····-··--·---··· ·-·· ... - -· ___.._ , __ ,..., -- ·-- ,--- -······· ·-·· ----· -------- ·- ----- ----- ------····· ......_,.., ... ,..._.. ...... -

8 



§18-237-29 . 53-05 Services related to tangible 
personal property . Services related to tangible 
personal property are used or consumed where the 
tangible personal property is delivered after the 
services are performed. Services related to tangible 
personal property include, but' are not limited to , 
inspection, appraisal , testing, and repair of tangible 
personal property. Services related to tangible 
personal property do not i nclude services performed by 
commissioned agents . 

. ..... ·-- ------·--···----~Example..1 ·- ·- ......... ... ... 

Tom Tourist; a resident of Montana 
vacationing i n Hawaii, takes his broken 
mobile phone to Fixer LLC, an electronic 
repair shop in Hawaii. After Fixer LLC 
repairs the mobile phone , Tom Tourist picks 
it up from Fixer LLC's shop in Hawaii. All 
of t he value or gross income that Fixer LLC 
receives is not exempt under section 237 -
29 . 53 , HRS, because Fixer LLC ' s service is 
used or consumed in Hawaii , where the 
property was de l ivered after the service was 
performed. 

Example 2: 

Assume t he same facts as in Example 1, 
except that Fixer LLC, upon Torn Tour i st's 
request , ships the mobile phone to Tom 
Tourist's home in Montana after c ompleting 
the repai r . All of the value or gross 
income that Fixer LLC receives is exempt 
under· section 237-29 . 53 , HRS, because Fixer 
LLC ' s service is used or consumed in 
Montana, where the property was delivered 
after the service was performed . 

9 

http:237-29.53


Example 3: 

' Assume the same facts as in Example 1, 
except that Fixer LLC is unable to repair 
Tom Tourist rs mobile phone at its shop in 
Hawaii . Fixer LLC sends the phone to its 
warehouse in Arizona, where the repair is 
compl eted. The mobile phone is shipped back 
to Fixer LLC ' s shop in Hawaii, where Torn 
Tourist pi cks it up. All of the value or· 
gross income that Fixer LLC receives is not 

--·---~------ --~--ex-emp.t--l:lnder- sect-i-or.i.---2-3-7-=-2-9..-.53.,--H-RS-,- beca.use.. -·-
Fixer LLC ' s service is used or consumed in 
Hawaii, where the property was delivered 
after t he service was performed. 

Example 4: 

Derrick Driver, a resident of Hawaii , 
calls Aloha Auto Finder, LLC, a car broker 
located in Hawaii, and hires it to find and 
negotiate a purchase price for a green 
classic car. Derrick Driver provides Aloha 
Auto Finder , LLC with a list of 
specifications that the car must have and 
the total amount he is willing to pay for 
the car. Derrick Driver a nd Aloha Auto 
Finder, LLC agree that Aloha Auto Finder, 
LLC will be paid a flat fee of $500 . Aloha 
Auto Finder, LLC finds a green classic car 
in . Michigan and negotiates a purchase price 
on behalf of Derrick Driver. Derrick Driver 
purchases ~he car and instructs the seller 
to s hip the car from Michigan to Derrick 
Driver's second home in Rhode Island . 
Section 237 - 29 . 53 -05 does not apply because 
Aloha Auto Finder, LLC is a commissioned 
agent. Instead, section 237 - 29 . 53-10 
applies . Under that rule, all of the value 
or gross income that Aloha Auto Finder , LLC 
receives is not exempt under section 237-
29.53, HRS, because Aloha Auto Finder, LLC's 

--- --- · -· -·

10 



services are used or consumed in Hawaii, 
where Aloha Auto Finder , LLC is located . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 
2 3 7 - 8 ) ( Imp : HRS § 2 3 7 - 2 9 . 5 3 ) 

11 



§18-237-29.53-06 Services provided by a travel 
agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated 
contract rates. (a). When transient accommodat ions 
are furnished through arrangements made by a travel 
agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated 
contract rates, the travel agency's or tour packager's 
service is used or consumed where the transient 
accommodation is located . 

(b) When travel-related bookings other than 
transient accommodations are made or sold by a travel 
agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated 

----·-----cont-r.a.ct- r.a.tes.,-,the- tr.a.vel- agency..!,s __o.r. .. t.o.ur._pa.ckag.er...!..s_ 
service is used or consumed where the travel-related 
booking is located . 

Example 1: 

Travel Services Corporation ("TSC") 
sells a five-night stay at Luau Loft, a 
hotel in Hawaii , to Tammy Traveler, a 
resident of New Jersey. TSC arranges the 
transient accommodation at noncommissioned 
negotiated contract rates . The contract 
between TSC and Luau Loft provides that Luau 
Loft will receive ninety per cent of the net 
rate , the best avail able rate offered by 
Luau Loft to the public at the time of the 
transaction , and that TSC may uni laterally 
determine the mark-up of the net rate and 
set the total price charged to the customer. 
TSC charges Tammy Traveler $600 for the 
booking . The net rate at the time of TSC ' s 
sale to Tammy Traveler is $100 per night, or 
$500 for five nights. TSC unilaterally sets 
the mark-up for the booking and the final 
price of $600 . All of the value or gross 
income that TSC receives is not exempt under 
section 237-29.53, HRS . TSC's service is 
used or consumed in Hawaii, where the 
transient accommodation is located, because 
the transient accommodation wa s furnished 
through arrangements made by a travel agency 

12 

http:237-29.53
http:t.o.ur._pa.ckag.er


at noncommissioned negotiated contract 
rates. 

Example 2: 

Assume the same facts as in Example 1, 
except that TSC books a five-day rental of a 
vehicle i n Hawaii for Tammy Traveler . TSC 
arranges the travel-related booking at 
noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. 
The contract between TSC and the rental 

-------v:eh-i-e-1e- G0mpa,n-y--p.r,0-v-i-Eies--t-ha.t-- t-tle- r.en-t-a-l- --·-. -----··---·-··----·.. -~ .. • •----- .... -- ---· · 
vehicle company will receive $50 per day for 
each vehicle rented and that TSC may 
unilaterally determine the mark-up and set 
the total price charged to the customer. 
TSC charges Tammy Traveler $300 for the 
booking. All of the value or gross income 
that TSC receives is not exempt under 
section 237 - 29 . 53 , HRS . TSC 1 s service is 
used or consumed in Hawaii, where the 
travel-related booking is l ocated . The 
travel-related booking was made by a travel 
agency at noncommissioned negotiated 
contract rates . 

Example 3: 

Alex Adventurer, a resident of Hawaii, 
visits the office of Maui Travel Agency 
("MTA"), a travel agency located in Hawaii , 
to p l an a vacation to Alaska. MTA sells a 
seven- night stay at Glacier Hotel , a hotel 
in Alaska, to Alex Adventurer. MTA arranges 
the transient accommodation at 
noncommiss.ioned negotiated contract rates . 
The contract between MTA and Glacier Hotel 
provides that Glacier Hotel will receive 
$100 per room per night and that MTA may 
independently determine the mark-up and set 
the total price charged to the customer. 
MTA charges Alex Adventurer $1 ,000 for the 

13 



booking, unilaterally determining to charge 
a mark-up of $300. All of the value or 
gross income that MTA receiv·es is exempt 
under section 237-29.53 , HRS. MTA ' s service 
is used or consumed in Alaska, where t h e 
transient accommodation is located. The 
transient acc9mmodation was furnis hed 
through arrangements made by a travel agency 
at noncommissioned negotiated contract 
rates . 

.. ....... .... , _ ...... .. _ ... .............. Example --4-:- --..--- ---..- -- ..------·-·--------·"·-----·•-·--------
Assume the same facts as in Example 3, 

except that the contract between MTA and 
Glacier Hotel provides that MTA may book 
rooms at Glacier Hotel for $125 per room pe~ 
night and that, for each booking , MTA will 
receive ten per cent of the sale. MTA, does 
not have the authority to mark up or 
unilaterall y change the total price charged 
to the customer. Section 18-237- 29 . 53 - 06 
does not apply because transient 
accommodations are not being furnished 
through arrangements made by a travel agency 
at noncommissioned negotiated contract 
rates . Instead, MTA is a commissioned agent 
and section 18-237-29 . 53-10 applies. Under 
that rule, all of the value or gross income 
that MTA receives is not exempt because MTA 
is in Hawaii and the booking occurred in 
Hawaii. [Eff ) (Auth : HRS 
§§231-3(9) , 237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-29.53) 

14 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-07 Legal services in an 
action or proceeding. Legal services provided t o 
a party in a judicial action or proceeding, 
administrative proceeding, arbitration, 
mediation, or other method of dispute resolution 
are used or consumed where the case or matter is 
filed . For purposes of this section, "party'' 
means a party in an action or proceeding, 
including but not limited to, a plaintiff, 
defendant , petitioner, respondent, appellant, 
appellee , or real party in interest . 

........ ..- ··· ··· - · .. - ·.······~-- -· ··---· ·· -·· ·-····-~-- ··---..·-· ·· ·-··· ··· ---·-··· ·• ··-··-- -~ - ·-- · ____ __.....,.. _________________ 
Example 1 : 

Annie Attorney, an attorney based in 
Hawaii, is hired by Aaron Appellant, a 
Hawaii resident, to represent him in an 
appeal pending in the Court of Appeals in 
California. Annie Attorney drafts the 
briefs in her of+ice in Hawaii and attends 
the hearing in California. All of the value 
or gross income that Annie Attorney receives 
from Aaron Appellant is exempt under section 
237-29.53 , HRS, because Annie Attorney's 
services are used or consumed in California, 
where t he · case was filed . 

Example 2: 

Annie Attorney,· an attorney based in 
Hawaii, is hired by Daniel Defendant, an 
Oregon resident, to represent him in a 
lawsuit filed against him in Hawaii . All of 
the value or gross income that Annie 
Attorney receives from Daniel Defendant is 
not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, 
be·cause Annie Attorney's services are used 
or consumed in Hawaii, where the case was 
filed. 

_, ,.___ . _________._ ---------..,.-- --- · 

is 

http:237-29.53


Example 3 : 

XYZ, a multistate business , hires Legal 
Services LLP, a law firm with offices 
throughout the United States , including 
California and Hawaii , to represent i t in a 
lawsuit filed in the United States District 
Court in Hawaii. The California office of 
Legal Services LLP performed eight y hours of 
work on the case and the Hawaii of fice of 
Legal Services LLP performed twenty hours of 

---- -----wo.:r::k--on--t-he- case...- A1-l --of- -the- v:a.l.ue- -o.:i;.- g.ross -····-·· · ·· -· -·- -· · 
income that Legal Services LLP receives for 
its work performed in the California a nd 
Hawaii offic~s is not exempt under section 
237-29 . 53, HRS, because Legal Services LLP ' s 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii , 
where the case was filed. 

Example 4: 

Chris Client, a Hawaii resident, hires 
Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices 
throughout the United States, t o represent 
him in a personal injury case in California .. 
Legal Services LLP drafts a complaint to be 
filed in California. Before the complaint 
is fi l ed, however , Legal Services LLP 
settles t he dispute . Because the complaint 
was not -filed , section 18-237- 29 . 53-07 does 
not apply. Instead, section 18-237-29 . 53-11 
will apply . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS 
§§231- 3( 9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-29.53) 

16 

http:237-29.53


§18- 237 - 29 . 53- 08 Debt col lection services. Debt 
collection services are used or consumed where the 
collection actions take place. This section does not 
apply to bus i nesses that engage in collection actions 
to recover their own debts . ·· 

Example 1 : 

I rene Investor, a California resident, 
hires Repo LLC to enforce a civil judgment 
against David Debtor, a Hawaii resident. 

-~-.---Rep0---LLC--pe;i;.:f0;i;ms......tfle- wo-i-k- r-i.e Ges.s a . .i;y--t-0----lev.y-~-----------
David Debtor ' s bank accounts and garnish 
David Debtor's wages in Hawaii . All of the 
value or gross income that Repo LLC receives 
is not exempt under section 237-29.53, HRS , 
because Repo LLC's services are used or 
consumed in Hawaii, where the collection 
actions took .place . 

Example 2 : 

Sam Spender, a California resident, has 
an outstanding debt owed to Credi t Card 
Company . Cash Collectors Inc., a 
corporation located in Hawaii, purchases 
David Debtor ' s debt from Credit Card Company 
and takes actions to recover the debt from 
Sam Spender. Section 237-29.53 , HRS, does 
not apply because Cash Collectors Inc., in 
attempting to recover its own debt , is not 
engaging in a service business or calling . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237 - 29'.53) 

17 

http:237-29'.53
http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-09 Services requiring customer to 
be physically present. Except as provided in sections 
18-237-29.53-03 to 18-237-29.53-08, services that 
require the customer to be physically present at the 
time the service is performed are used or consumed 
where the service is performed . 

Example 1: 

Fiona Facial, an esthetician in Hawaii, 
sells a spa package consisting of a facial 

------·- --·---and- man-i,cu.r.e-,to.-Ca.r.ol- Col-or.ado.,.- a-.Color.ado - ····-·· .. --· ···· ... --- ·---· .. -· .. .. 
resident. Carol Colorado purchases the spa 
package online as a gift for her ~other for 
an upcoming vacation to Hawaii. Carol 
Colorado ' s mother travels to Hawaii, where 
she receives the facial and manicure from 
Fiona Facial . All of the value or gross 
income that Fiona Facial receives is not 
exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because 
Fiona Facial ' s services are used or consumed 
in Hawaii. Carol Colorado ' s mother, the 
customer, must be physically present in 
Hawai i at the time the service is performed. 

Example 2: 

ABC Company, an Arizona corporation, 
holds a corporate retreat in Hawaii. ABC 
Company hires Sue Speaker, a motivational 
speaker who resides in New Mexico , t o fly to 
Hawaii and speak to ABC Company and its 
employ'ees at the corporate retreat . Al l of 
the value or ~ross income that Sue Speaker 
receives from ABC Company is not exempt 
under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS, because ABC 
Company must be physically present (through 
the presence of its employees) in Hawaii at 
the time the servic e is performed. 

18 



Example 3 : 

Assume the same facts as in Example 2 
except that some employees of ABC Company 
are unable to attend the corporate retreat 
in Hawaii. Sue Speaker ' s presentation is 
live- streamed to ABC Company's office in 
Arizona for the employees in Arizona to 
view . Al l of the value or gross income that 
Sue Speaker receives from ABC Company is not 
exempt under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS, because 

., ....... -·-- -- --··· -··-·· . -- . ----- -ABG--C0mpa-r-i.y.-mus.t--be--ph.y.s-i-Ga-l-l.y- p.:i;eser.i-t------------------·---
(through the presence of its employees) in 
Hawaii at the time the service is performed, 
notwithstanding the fact that some of its 
employees are not required to be physically 
present . 

Example 4 : 

ABC Company , an Arizona corporation, 
hires Paul Presenter , a motivational speaker 
who resides in Hawaii, to speak to ABC 
Company and its employees via live-stream 
from Hawaii. The live- stream is accessed 
solely from ABC Company ' s office in Arizona . 
Paul Presenter's service does not require 
ABC Company to be physically present where 
the service is performed. Accordingly, 
section 18-237-29 . 53- 09 does not apply . 
Instead, section 18-237-29.53- 11 will apply . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3 {9) , 
237-8) {Imp : HRS §237-29.53) 

19 

http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-10 Services performed by 
commissioned agents. (a) Except as provided in 
section 18-237-29.53-04, services performed by a 
commissioned agent are used or consumed where the 
agent is located at the t ime the agent 's services are 
performed; provided that : 

(1) when property is sol d , purchased , leased, or 
procured online through a commissioned 
agent, the agent ' s service is used or 
consumed where the property is delivered; 

(2) when services are sold , purchased, or 
, _ _____________,._______...- pr.ocu.r.ed- onl-ine~th,r:ough-.a- commissioned-------·-~--·----

agent , the agent ' s service i s used or 
consumed where the transacted services are 
performed; 

(3) when transient accommodations or travel
related bookings are sold , purchased, or 
arranged online through a commissioned 
agent, t he agent ' s service is used or 
consumed where the transient accommodation 
or travel-re l ated booking i s located. 

(bl For purposes of this section, "online " means 
that the transaction occurs exclus ively through a 
website or web application without any in-person 
contact . 

Example 1: 

Alex Adventu rer , a resident of Hawaii, 
visits the office of Maui Travel Agency 
( "MTA'' ) , a travel agency l ocated in Hawaii , 
to plan a vacation to Alaska . MTA sells a 
seven-night stay a t Glacier Hotel, a hotel 
in Alaska, to Alex Adventurer. The contract 
between MTA and Glacier Hotel provides tha t 
MTA may book rooms at Glacier Hotel for $125 
per room per night and that , for each 
booking, MTA will receive ten per cent of . 
the sal e . MTA_does not have t he authority 
to ma~k up or unilaterally change t he total 
price charged to the customer . All of the 
value or gross income that MTA receives is 

20 



not exempt under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS , 
because MTA is a commissioned agent and its 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii , 
where MTA is located. 

Exampl e 2 : 

Assume the same facts as in Example 1 , 
except t hat Alex Adventurer books the stay 
at Glacier Hotel online through MTA ' s 
website and does not visit MTA ' s office . 

----·--------.--.-AlJ._of-.the- v.al.ue-.o.r_ gr.oss- income_ tha.t._MT.A _~~ 
receives is exempt under section 237-29.53, 
HRS . MTA ' s service is used or consumed in 

, Alaska, where the transient accommodation is 
located, because the transient accommodation 
was booked online through MTA, a 
commissioned agent. 

Example 3 : 

Vacation Rentals Online (uVROu) 
operates a website that allows guests to 
book transient accommodations listed for 
rent by owners. Ryan Renter, a resident of 
Florida, uses VRO's website to book a two
night stay at Olivia Owner ' s unit in Hawaii 
for $100 per night. The contract between 
VRO and Olivia Owner provides that for each 
booking of Oliva Owner'$ unit made through 
VRO ' s website, VRO will receive ten per cent 
of the rental price, which is determined 
solely by Olivia Owner . VRO also charges 
Ryan Renter a fee of five per cent of the 
rental price. All of the value or gross 
income that VRO receives is not exempt under 
section 237-29.53, HRS . VRO ' s service is 
used or consumed in Hawaii, where the 
transient accommodation is located, because 
the transient accommodation was booked 
online through VRO, a commissioned agent . 

21 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


Example 4 : 

Errand Runner Inc. operates a website 
through which users can request or offer the 
performance of short-term services , such as 
picking up dry cleaning, dog walking, and 
grocery shopping. Carrie Consumer, a 
resident of Virginia, uses Errand Runner 
Inc. to hire Andy Assistant , a resident . of 
Hawaii, to stand in line at the Hanauma Bay 
State Park in Hawaii , where the first one 

. . - - --hundred.. pe-r.sons.-to- en.te-r- the- par.k- w.i.l-1-----•··-- ----- -------·---..--
receive a col lectible item . The terms of 
service between Errand Runner Inc . and Andy 
Assistant provi des that Errand Runner Inc. 
will r e ceive ten per cent of t he income Andy 
Assistant receives for services booked 
through Errand Runner Inc. The amount 
charged for Andy Assistant ' s services are 
determined solely by Andy Assistant . Errand 
Runner Inc. also charges Carrie Consumer a 
fee of ten dollars for using its website to 
book the service. All of t he val ue or gross 
income that Errand Runner Inc. receives is 
not exempt under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS . 
Errand Runner Inc . 's service is used or 
consumed in Hawaii, where Andy Assistant's 
service was performed, because Andy 
Assistant ' s service was booked online 
through Errand Runner Inc., a commissioned 
agent . 

Example 5: · 

Derrick Driver , a resident of Hawaii, 
calls Aloha Auto Finder, LLC, a car broker 
located i n Hawaii, and hires it to find and 
negotiate a purchase price for a green 
classic car. Derrick Driver provides Aloha 
Auto Finder, LLC with a l ist of 
specifications that the car must have and 
the total amount he is willing to pay for 

22 



the car. Derrick Driver and Aloha Auto 
Finder , LLC agree that Aloha Auto Finder, 
LLC will be paid a flat fee of $500. Aloha 
Auto Finder, LLC finds a green classic car 
in Michigan and negotiates a purchase price 
on behalf of Derrick Driver . Derrick Driver 
purchases the car and instructs the seller 
to ship the car from Michigan to Derrick 
Driver's second home in Rhode Island. All 
of the value or gross income that Aloha Auto 
Finder, LLC receives is not exempt under 

---·---·-··------·---·- --section--23.7.;::.2.9 ...53.,--·HRS.,--because...Aloha-Auto -- .. ·-··· ... - . - . -··- •-· - ... •· •• 
Finder, LLC i s a commissioned agent and its 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii, 
where Aloha Auto Finder, LLC is located . 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9) , 
237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-29 . 53) 

23 



§18-237-29.. 53-11 Other se~vices. (a) Except as 
provided in sections 18-237-29.53- 03 to 18-237-29.53-
10: 

(1) If the customer is a business and the 
service relates to the customer 's business 
activities, the service is used or consumed 
where the related business activities occur; 

(2) If the customer is a business and the 
service is unrelated to the customer ' s 
business activities , the service is used or 
consumed where the customer's principal 

--•·~·-•··~-- --·-···-··---·----·······----P·lace...of- business.~i.s ..-located.;---·- --'--·-·----
(3) If the customer is an individual , the 

service is used or consumed where the 
individual resides; or 

(4) I f the customer i s the military or federal, 
state , or local government, t he service is 
used or consumed where the benefit of the 
service i s received . 

(b) For purposes of this section , "business 
activitie s" means the transactions a nd activities 
engaged in the regular course of trade or business for 
the ultimate purpose of obt aining gains or profits, or 
if the business i s a tax-exempt organization , also 
includes the transactions and activities that further 
the exempt purpose of the organizati on. 

Example 1: 

Chris Client, a Hawaii resident, hires 
Legal Services LLP , a law firm with offices 
throughout the United States , including 
Hawaii, to represent him in a personal 
injury case in California . Legal Services 
LLP drafts a complaint to be filed in 
California . Before the complaint is fi led, 
however, Legal Services LLP settl es t he 
dispute . All of the value or gross income 
that Legal Services LLP receives is not 
e xempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS , because 
Legal Services LLP ' s services are used or 
consumed in Hawaii, where Chris Client 

· 24 

http:18-237-29.53


resides, pursuant t o section 18-237-29.53-
ll(a) (3). 

\ 

' Example 2: 

ABC Company, an Arizona corporat ion 
with its principal place of business in 
Arizona, hires Paul Presenter , a 
motivational speaker who resides in Hawaii, 
to speak to ABC Company and its employees 
via live-stream from Hawaii. The 

---------- ----m0t-i-va-t-i-0na.J:- s-FJeeeh- i-s- a- pe,1;-s0na-l--•-beBe-f-i-t-------- -----··--·---
that ABC Company provides t o its empl oyees 
and is not related to i ts business 
act ivities. The live-stream is accessed 
solely from ABC Company ' s office in Arizona . 
All of the value or gross income that Paul 
Presenter receives is exempt under section 
237-29.53 , HRS , because Paul Presenter ' s 
service is used or consumed in Arizona, 
where ABC Company's principal place of 
business is located, pursuant to section 18-
237-29 : 53-ll(a) (2). 

Example 3: 

Annie Attorney, a Hawaii attorney, i s 
hired by Wendy Wyoming, a Wyoming resident 
who owns stock and partnership interests in 
various enterprises, as well as Hawaii real 
property, to prepare her estate plan . All 
of the value or gross income that Annie 
Attorney receives to prepare Wendy Wyoming ' s 
estate p l an is exempt under section 237 -
29.53, HRS , because Annie Attorney ' s 
services are used or consumed in Wyoming , 
where Wendy Wyoming resides , pursuant to 
section 18-237-29 . 53-11 (a) (3). 

25 

http:237-29.53
http:18-237-29.53


Example 4 : 

XYZ, a multistate business, hires Legal 
Services LLP, a law firm with offices 
throughout the United States , including 
Hawaii, to represent it in a contract 
dispute relating to business activities in 
Hawaii. Legal Services LLP settles the case 
before a lawsuit is filed and charges XYZ 
$30 , 000 in legal fees . Attorneys from Legal 
Services LLP ' s Hawaii office performed 

------twer,i.t;.-y--•J.:)e-r- -0e,Rt:.- 0.f- the- w0.:i;k-- a-r.i.d- a-t-.-t;.0:i:;:.r.i.e:y.s --·· ····· ....... - .. -- .... •- · --· ---· ·-
from Legal Services LLP ' s . California office 
performed the remaining eighty per cent of 
work. All of the value or gross income that 
Legal Services LLP receives i s not exempt 
under section 237-29.53 , HRS , because the 
legal services are used or consumed in 
Hawaii, where the business activities 
relating to the legal services occurred, 
pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1) . 

Example 5: 

Arnold Accountant, an accountant 
located in Hawaii, is hired by Mary Mover, a 
Californi a resident , in 2017 to prepare her 
2016 federal and s t ate tax returns . Mary 
Mover must file state tax returns in 
California~ where she resided for the first 
half of 2016, and Hawaii, where she 
currently resides . All of the value or 
gross income that Arnold Accountant receives 
from Mary Mover is not exempt under section 
237-29.53, HRS, because Arnold Accountant ' s 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii , 
where Mary Mover resides, pursuant to 
section 18-237-29 . 53-11 (a) (3). 

26 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


Example 6: 

XYZ, a multistate business , hires 
Accounting Services LLP, a Hawai i accounting 
firm, to perform accounting services related 
to XYZ's business activities in Hawaii. All 
of t he value or gross i ncome that Accounting 
Services LLP receives from XYZ is not exempt 
under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS, because 
Accounting Services LLP 's services are used 
or consumed i n Hawaii, where XYZ'~ business 

- ·· -·----··- • ···- -- •-· - •· - ---a-et..J.-v-i-t-:he-s--neJ:a.t,e0- t-0-t-he--a•GG0-1,u1-t-i-GG-··-·- ------ --
services occur, pursuant t o section 18-237-
29.53-ll(a) (1). 

Example 7: 

SP LLC, a software programmer located 
in Hawaii , is hired by MedServ , Inc ., a 
medical service provider doing bus iness in 
several states, including Hawaii, to create 
a customized and integrated pati ent file and 
billing program for use at all of i t s 
medical offices for a fee of $70 ,000 . 
MedServ, Inc . has two . of its seven medical 
offices in Hawaii. SP LLC ' s services are 
used or consumed where MedServ, Inc . 's 
business activities relating to SP LLC ' s 
services occurred , pursuant to secti on 18-
237-29 . 53-ll(a) (1). Because SP LLC ' s 
service is used or consumed both in and 
outs ide of t he State , SP LLC shall apportion 
its income pursuant to section 18-237-29 . 53-
O2(b) . In this case, it is reasonable for 
SP LLC to apportion two-sevenths of its 
gross i ncome to Hawaii . SP LLC shall report 
$70 ,000 in gross i ncome on its general 
e xcise tax return and may claim $50,000 as 
exempt under section 237-29 .53, HRS. 

--·--· ..·----..····---·· ·· ··-· ·-· ·-.. · 

27 

http:237-29.53


Example 8: 

Honolulu Hut, a Hawaii retailer, hires 
GD Company, a graphic design company in 
California, to design a company logo that 
will be used on Honolulu Hut ' s merchandise 
sold in Hawaii and in marketing materials 
distributed in Hawaii. GD Company contracts 
with Ashley Artist, a Hawaii resident, to 
create a digital image, which GD Company 
will incorporate into the logo it designs 

-----------,for~ H0:r.i0.lulu-H-u.t..- Al--l- o-f- the--v:al.ue... o.r- g.ross... . .. 
income that GD Company receives from 
Honolulu Hut is not exempt under section 
237-29.53, HRS, because GD Company's 
services are used or consumed in Hawaii, 
where Honolulu Hut's business activities 
related to the design services occur, 
pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1). 
All of the value or gross income that Ashley 
Artist receives is also not exempt under 
section 237-29.53, HRS, because Ashley 
Artist ' s services are resold by GD Company 
for use or consumption in Hawaii. Pursuant 
to section 18-237-29.53-02, services 
perfor~ed for a purchaser who resells the 
services are exempt from general excise tax 
only i~ the purchaser resells all of the 
services for use or consumption outside the 
State. 

Example 9: 

California Surf Co . , a retail store in 
California, hires Hawaii Designs LLC , a 
Hawaii graphic design company, to design a 
logo that will be used on Cali~ornia Sur f 
Co . 's merchandise sold in California and in 
marketing materials distributed in 
California . Hawaii Designi LLC hires Ashley 
Artist, a Hawaii resident, to design a 
digital image, which Hawaii Designs LLC 

--------···-·· --·· --·· · - -·-· 

28 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


incorporates into the logo it designs for 
California Surf Co . All of the value or 
gross income that Hawaii Designs LLC 
receives i s exempt under section 237-29 . 53, 
HRS, because Hawaii Designs LLC's services 
are used or consumed in California , where 
California Surf Co . ' s business activities 
related to the design services occur, 
pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1) . 
Al l of the value or gross income t hat Ashley 
Artist receives is also exempt under section 

.. · ····· ..... · ······ •· -• ·· · · · • ....-2-3.:;i.--2.9.,....§J.;--HRS,-- beea-t:1se- Ash-1ey---A-.r:--s-i-s-V-s------·-·-·-·----------
services are resold for use or consumption 
in Cal ifornia . ·Pursuant to section 18-237-
29. 53-02 , servi ces performed for a purchaser 
who resells the services are exempt from 
general e xcise tax if the purchaser resells 
all of the services for use or consumpt ion 
outside t he State. 

Exampl e 1 0: 

Data Inc ., a company l ocated in Hawaii, 
is paid $10 , 000 by the United States Navy t o 
analyze data and prepare reports that will 
be used by Naval Base Guam. Naval Base Guam 
is the only naval base that wil l benefit 
from Data Inc . 's services . All of the value 
or gross i ncome that Data Inc . receives is 
exempt under section 237- 29 . 53, HRS, because 
the services are used or consumed by the 
military in Guam, where t he benefit of t he 
service is received, pursuant to section 18-
237-29. 53- 11 (a) (4) . 

Example 11 : 

Data Inc. , a company located in Hawaii , 
is paid $10 , 000 by the United States Navy to 
analyze data and prepare reports that wi l l 
be used by the United States Pacific Fleet . 
Data Inc . ' s reports will be used by and 

29 

http:237-29.53


benefit the United States Pacific Fleet in 
Hawaii, where its headquarters is located, 
as well as in other locations in the United 
States and abroad . Because Data Inc. ' s 
service is used or consumed both in and. . 

outside of the State, Data Inc . shall 
·apportion its income pursuant to section 18-
237-29.53-02(b) . Data Inc. shall report 
$10,000 in gross income on its general 
excise tax return and may claim an exemption 
under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, for the 

--···· .. -.. ··· ··---··-·· ·· ··-·· ---p0-:r=-t-j,.0n---0-f--ine0me•-a•t-&r-ib1:1-"E-a-ble- t-0-se,r,v-tces -······ -· ---- --··-· -- ·-·-··· .. ----· · 
used or consumed outside of the State . 

Example 12: 

Remodelers Hawaii LLC, a general 
contractor, is hired by the United States 
Army to renovate a building at Schofield 
Barracks in Hawaii. Section 18-237-29.53-11 
does not apply because Remodelers Hawaii LLC 
is performing contracting work, which is 
governed by section 18-237-29.53-03. Under 
that rule, all of the value or gross income 
that Remodelers Hawaii LLC receives is not 
exempt because the contracting is used or 
consumed in Hawaii, where the real property 
is located . [Eff ] (Auth: 
HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-29 . 53) 

30 

http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-12 Cancellation and forfeiture 
charges. Section 237-29.53, HRS, shall not apply 
where all of the value or gross income is derived from 
cancellation fees, forfeited deposits, or other 
charges resulting from the cancellation or , 
nonperformance of services. 

Example 1: 

ABC Company, an Arizona corporation 
with its principal place of business in 

· · -·--···-·· · ···· · ·· · ..... · .. · Ari:zona--;-·-hi-res--~Pa-u-l- -·P:resen'l:e:!:-';-~-a--•-··-····..--- ---- -·····--·-----~ -----·--···-·-~---·-· 
motivational speaker who resides in Hawaii, 
to speak to ABC Company and its employees 
via live-stream from Hawaii. The live-
stream will be accessed solely from ABC 
Company's office in Arizona. Two days 
before the live-stream event, ABC Company 
cancels the event. Paul Presenter charges 
ABC Company a cancellation fee pursuant to 
their contract. The gross income that Paul 
Presenter receives for the cancellation fee 
is not exempt under section 237-29.53, HRS. 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 
237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-29 . 53) 

31 

http:237-29.53
http:237-29.53


§18-237-29.53-13 Telecommunication services. 
Sections 18 -237-29.53-01 to 18-237-29.53-12 shall not 
apply to interstate or foreign common carrier 
telecommunication services. [Eff ] 
(Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237- 29.53) 

32 . 

http:237-29.53


------- -

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 

Chapter 18 - 237 , Hawaii Adrninistrati_ve Rules, on 
the Summary Page dated ______ , was adopted on 

, following public hearings hel d on 
.October 17 and December 11 , 20 17 after publi c notice 
was given in t he Honolulu Star Advertis·er, the Garden 
Isle, the Maui News , West Hawaii Today, and the Hawaii 
Tribune-Herald on September 7 , 2017 an9 November 6, 
2017, respectively . 

··--~··-- - ·------ ··--·- -·------- -·- ·--·~-- --- -·-·--·-- - --- ·-·---~-·-···- ---
These amendments to chapter 18-237 shall take 

effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor. 

LINDA CHU TAKAYAMA 
Director of Taxation 

APPROVED: 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 
State of Hawaii 

Dated: 

AP ROVED AS TO FORM : 
I 
I 
I 

D General 

Fil ed 

33 



IV. New Business 

A.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 
to HAR Title 13, Chapter 104, Rules Regulating 
Activities Within Forest Reserves, promulgated 

byDLNR 



PRE-PUBLIC HEARING 
SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEME 

TO THE 
SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW OA,~------=----=-'=---__, 

(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201 M-2) :, Bol(ZQ 
Department or Agency: _D_L_N_R__________________~--

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: _H_A_R_ 1_3_-1_0_4____________ 

Chapter Name: Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserve\s 

Contact Person/Title: Ryan Peralta, Forest Management Supervisor I 

Phone Number: 808-973-9784 

E-mail Address: ryan.k.peralta@hawaii.gov Date: September 28, 2017 

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-
7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general 
description of the subjects involved. 

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing ~inerson and on the Lieutenarit Governor's 
Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes ✓ Non (If Yes, please provide 
webpage address and when and where ru es mayTe viewed in person© 
https://dlnr.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/FDraftHARCh 13-104.pdf 

(Please keep the proposed rul~s on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting.) 

I. Rule Description: New l ✓ I Repeal l✓ I Amendment D Compilation D 
II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l✓ I No D (If No, no 

need to submit this form.) 

* . "Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business ... 
that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the 
formation, op~ration, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201M-1 

* "Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited 
partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in 
Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part
time employees in Hawaii.". HRS §201M- 1 

Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that 
does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the 
statute or ordinance? Yes D No l✓ I (If Yes, no need to submit this form.) 

(e.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the agency the discretion 
to consider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201 M-2(d) 

IV. Is the proposed rule bei~adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
(HRS §201M-2(a)) Yes LJ No l ✓ I (If Yes, no need to submit this form.) 

* * * 

Revised 8/15/2017 

https://dlnr.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/FDraftHARCh
mailto:ryan.k.peralta@hawaii.gov


Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement 
Page 2 

If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 

1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the 
proposed rules and how they may be adversely affected. 

No adverse effect on small businesses as current Forest Reserve Rules do not allow any of 
the new activities being proposed. The proposed rules create more opportunity for small 
businesses. 

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, 
and indirect costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, 
labor, professional services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with 
compliance. 

No increase in fees. The proposed rules will establish a fee schedule. 

If the proposed ru_le imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 

a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. 

No current fee. 

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 
Fee schedule will be based on the potential impact to the natural resources. The fee increases with as the potential impact 
increases. Pedestrian=$5, Bicycle=$7, Commercial film permit=$100, Commercial cabin rentaI=$100 

c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 

To promote a mixed use management strategy in Forest Reserves. To promote eco-tourism 
in Hawaii. To increase revenue to supplement DLNR management. 

d. Criteria or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee. or fine 
(i.e., Consumer Price Index, Inflation rate, etc.). 

The fee schedule was modeled after existing fee schedules being used by other DLNR agencies. 

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies 
directly affected, including the estimated total amount the agency expects to 
collect from any additionally imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys 
will be used. 

It is unknown much revenue will be generated. Approximately 30 commercial film permits are 
issued per year. This proposed rule will provide an additional $3,000 for DLNR. 

Revised 8/15/2017 



Pre-Public Hearing Smali business Impact Statement 
Page 3 

4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small 
business such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting 
requirements, less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, 
performance rather than design standards, exemption , or other mitigating 
techniques. · 

N/A. Current rules provide more opportunities for small businesses. 

5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be 
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 

N/A. Without proposed rules, commercial activities in the Forest Reserves would not be 
possible. 

6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small 
businesses. The businesses that wili be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or 
directly benefit from the proposed rules. 

N/A. Without proposed rules, commercial activities in the Forest Reserves would not be 
possible. 

7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed 
rules. 

Proposed fee schedules are modeled after existing fee schedules. 

a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the 
recommendations· incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain . If 
no, why not. 

N/A 

8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those 
mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, w ith 
an explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 

N/A 

If yes, please provide· information comparing the costs and benefits of the 
proposed rules to the costs ar:id benefits of the comparable federal, state, or 
county law, including the following: 

Revised 8/15/20 I 7 



1 
· Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact St atement 

Page 4 

a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 

To promote a mixed use management strategy in Forest Reserves. To promote eco-tourism . 
in Hawaii. To increase revenue to supplement DLNR management. 

b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information 
about the purposes and applicability of the law. 

Proposed fee schedule pursuant to: HAR 13-104-18: Fees and charges as set by the board may be assessed when permits are granted for the 
exclusive use of areas or facilities, or when charges are necessary to defray the cost of special facilities, services, or supplies provided by the State, or 
as otherwise determined by the board or its authorized representative when necessary to carry out the provisions of chapter 183, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes. Charges may be waived by the board or its authorized representative if the waiver Is in the public interest. 

· c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or 
county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application , and 
administration. 

See attached. 

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with 
the costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, 
or county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any 
additional fees from the proposed ru le will be used. 

All proposed fees are not currently in the rules. Revenue generated from fees wi ll be 
deposited into Forest Stewardship fund and will be. used to benefit Forest Reserve 
management. 

e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the 
proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or 
county law. 

No adverse effects on small business as current rules do not allow small businesses to 
operate in the Forest Reserves. Therefore, the proposed rules create more opportunities for 
small businesses. · · 

* * * 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DB EDT 
Phone: (808) 586-2594 

Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

This Statement may be found on the 
SBRRB Website at: 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/small-business-impact-statements-pre-and-post-pubic-hearing 

Revised 8/15/2017 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/small-business-impact-statements-pre-and-post-pubic-hearing
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


DRAFT RULES PENDING PUBLIC ·HEARING AND FINAL APPROVAL 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 13-104 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

(date) 

1. _Chapter 13-104,. Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest 
Reserves", is amended and compiled to read as follows: 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 13 

DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

SUBTITLE 5 FORESTRY AND WILDLIFE 

PART 1 FORESTRY 

CHAPTER 104 

RULES REGULATING ACTIVITIES WI THI N FOREST RESERVES 

Subchapter 1 General Provisions 

§13-104-1 Purpose and applicability 
§13- 104-2 Definitions 
§13- 104-3 Penalty 

Subchapter 2 Public Use 

§ 1 3-104 -4 Preservation of public property and 
resources 

§13-104-5 Litter and sanitation 
§13-104-5.5 Abandoned and unattended property 
§13-104-6 Report of injury or damage 
§13- 104 - 7 Fire use restrictions 
§13-104-7.5 Closing of areas 

104 - 1 NOV 30,2..o11' 

s 



§ 1 3-104-8 
§13-104-9 
§13-104-10 
§13-104-11 
§13-104-12 
§13-104-13 
§13-104-14 
§13-104-15 
§13-104 - 16 
§13-104-17 

§13-104-18 
§13-104-19 
§13-104-20 
§13-104-21 
§13-104-22 
§13- 104-2 3 
§13-104-24 

§13-104-25 
§13-104-26 
§ 1 3-104-27 
§13-104-28 
§13-104 - 29 
§13-104-30 
§13-104-31 
§13-10 4-32 
§13-104-33 

Hunting and fishing 
Firearms or other weapons 
Swimming and bathing 
Veh icles and transportation 
Animals 
Audio devices and noi se 
Explos i ves 
Disorderly conduct 
Camping 
Compliance with laws 

Subchapter 3 Permits 

General provisions for permits 
Camping permits 
Special use permits 
Collecting permits 
Commercial permits 
Access permits 
Commercial activities 

Subchapter 4 Fees and Charges 

General statement 
Payment 
Camping and cabin rental fees 
Commercial use permit fees 
Kiln fees 
Permit processing fees 
Parking and entrance fees 
Fee for copies of rules 
Negotiable instruments; service charge 

Historical Note : Chapter 104 of Title 13, 
Administrative Rules , is based substantially upon 
Regulation 1 [Eff . 12/9/43; am 8/12/76) and Regulation 
10 [Eff . 12/12/59) of the Division of Forestry, 
Departme nt of Land and Natural Resources [R 9/28/81) . 

104-2 



SUBCHAPTER 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

[§13 104 1 Purpose and applicability.] § 13-104- 1 Purpos e 
and applicability . (a) The purpose of [these rules] this 
chapter is to regulate activity within forest reserves 
established pursuant to sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes. 

(b) These rules shall apply to all persons entering the 
boundaries and jurisdiction of a forest reserve . All persons 
shall observe and abide by officially posted signs within forest 
reserves . Everyone using the forest reserves should conduct 
themselves in a safe and courteous manner . Users of the forest 
reserves should be aware that there are [certains] certain 
inherent risks involved due to other users and the environment 
and should use caution at all time s. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 
10/15/93; am and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
(Imp: HRS §§183-1.5, 183-2) 

[§13 104 2 Definitions . ] §13-104-2 Defini tions . As used 
in [these rules,] this chapter, unless the context requires 
otherwise: 

"Abandoned and unatte nded property" means any and al l 
property, including personal property, items, materials, 
equipment, fixtures , motor vehicles, or vessels that have been 
l eft unattended on land owned or controlled by the State for a 
continuous period of more than forty-eight hours without the 
written permission of the board or its authorized 
representative. 

"Administrator" means the administrator of the division of 
forestry and wildl i fe . 

"Authorized represent ative " means the administrator, 
foresters, conservation enforcement offic ers, and other persons 
authorized by the board [of land and nat u r al resources] to act 
for the board. 

"Board" means the board of land and n a tural resources . 
"Camping" or "to camp" means [being i n possession of a 

backpack, tents, blankets, tarpaulins, or other obvious camping 
paraphernalia,] a person's physical prese n c e any time [a fter] 
one hour after sundown until s unrise in a forest reserve . 
Indicia of camping includes the use of a forest reserve one hour 

104- 3 



after sundown until sunrise for living accommodation purposes, 
including, but not limited to: sleeping activities or making 
preparations to sleep (including the laying down of bedding for 
the purpose of s l eeping); storing personal belongings; making 
any fire ; the presence or use of any tent s, temporary shelters, 
unauthorized structures or veh icles ; or digging or breaking 
ground without proper authorization . 

"Commercial activity" means the use of or activity in the 
forest reserve for which compensation is received by any person 
for goods or services or both rendered to customers or 
participants in that use or activity . Soliciting , demanding, or 
requesting gifts, money, or services shall be considered 
commercial activity. Commercial activities incl ude activities 
[whose] with base of operations [a-re] outside the boundaries of 
the forest reserve, display of merchandise, or activities which 
provide transportation to or from the forest reserve . 

"Commercial use" is any type of commercia l activity which 
is considered compatible with the functions and purposes of each 
individual area, facility , or unit within a forest reserve . 

" Compensation" includes but is not l imited to, monetary 
fees, donations, barter, or services in-kind. 

[ " Division" means the division of forestry and wildlife . ] 
"Depar tment " means the department of land and natural 

resources . 
"Division" means the division of forestry and wildlife. 
"Fo r est product " means 1 any natural material from a forest 

reserve, including but not limited to timber , seedlings, seeds, 
fruits, greenery, tree fern, cinder , lava r oc k, ti l eaves , and 
bamboo . 

" Forest reserve " means those lands designat ed as forest 
reserves by the department pursuant to sections 1 83 - 11 and 183-
15 , Hawaii Revis e d Statutes , and other lands for p l ant 
sanctuaries , facilities, nurseriesL and baseyards under the 
custody and control of the division . 

"Motorized vehicle" means a vehi cle of any shape or form 
that depends on a motor (gas, electric , or other fuels) for 
propulsion . 

" Non-motori zed vehicle " means a vehicle of any shape or 
form that depends on human , animal, wind, springL and other non
motorized means for propulsion . 

[ " Res i ding" mean s being in the same fores t reserve for more 
than seven (7) continuous days . ] 

[ " Spark arrester" means a device construct ed o f 
nonflammable ma t erials specifically for the purpos e o f removing 
and retaining carbon and o t h er f l ammable particles ov er 0.0232 
of an inch in size from the exhaust flow of an internal 

104-4 



combustion engine that is operated by hydrocarbon fuels.] 
"Structure " means any object or improvement constructed, 

installed, or placed on state lands, including but not limited 
to buildings, sheds, lean-tos, picnic tables, memorials, hunting 
blinds, tree stands, mobile homes, campers, trailers; provided 
that tents, campers, vehicles, and other temporary objects 
related to authorized activities shall not be considered 
structures for the purposes of this definition; provided further 
that the objects are in compliance with rules and regulations 
governing those activities on state lands. 

"Tree harvesting" means the removal of live trees from a 
forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am 12/9/02; 
am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §18 3-2) (Imp: HRS §18 3-
2) 

[§13 104 3 Penalty . ] § 13-104-3 Penalty . ..@.l Any person 
violating any of the provisions of [these rules] this chapter 
shall be [guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be penalized] 
subject to penalty as provided by law . All revenues generated 
from fines or penalties imposed pursuant to this section shall 
be deposited into the forest stewardship fund . Any equipment, 
article, instrument, aircraft, vehicle, business record, or 
natural resource used or taken in violation of the provisions of 
this chapter may be seized and subject to forfeiture as provided 
by section 199- 7, Hawaii Revised Statutes , and chapter 712A, 
Hawaii Revised Statutes. 

(b) Restrictions and prohibitions imposed by this . chapter 
shall not apply to state empl oyees or their agents acting in the 
scope of their employment while within the forest reserve. Any 
penalty imposed may take into account emergency situations, such 
as fire or other disasters or where necessary to protect life or 
property. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp 

] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-4, 183-5, 
183-16, 195D- 8, 199- 7) 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

PUBLIC USE 

(§13 104 4 Preserv9tion of public property and resources. ] 
§13-104-4 Preservation of public property and resources. The 
following act i vities are prohibited within a forest reserve : 

104-5 



(1) To remove, injure, or kill any form of plant or animal 
life, either in whole or in part, except as authorized 
by the [Board] board or authorized representative or 
as provided by the rules of the [Board;] board; 

(2) To r emove, damage, or disturb any natural feature or 
resource (e.g . L natural stream beds) except as 
authorized by the board or its authorized 
representative; 

(3) To remove , damage, or disturb any historic or 
prehistoric remains; 

(4) To remove, damage, or disturb any notice , marker, or 
structure; 

(5) To enter, occupy, or use any building, structure, 
facility, motorized vehicle, machine, equipment , or 
tool within [or on] ~ forest reserve except as 
authorized by the board or its representative; 

(6) To engage in any construction or improvement except as 
authorized by the board[.]~ 

(7) To sell, peddle, solicit, or offer for sale any 
merchandise or service except with written 
authorization from the board[.]~ 

(8) To distribute or post handbi lls, circulars, oi other 
notices[.]~ 

(9) To introduce any plant or animal except as approved by 
the [Board . ] board; and 

(10) To enter or remain within ~ forest [reserves when] 
reserve while under the influence of alcohol , 
narcotics, or drugs, to a degree that may [endanger 
oneself or] endanger or cause annoyance to other 
persons , or endanger onesel f or property. The use or 
possession of narcotics, drugsL or alcohol within 
forest reserves is prohibited . [Eff 9/28/81; am and 
comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : 
HRS §183- 2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2, 183- 17) 

[§13 104 5 Litter and sanitation.] § 13-104-5 Litter and 
sanitation . The following acts are prohibited within a forest 
r e serve: 

(1) To drain, dump, or leave any litter, ani mal waste or 
remains, or any other material which pol lutes or is 
likely to cause pollution in the forest reserveL 
including streams and other water sources; 

(2) To deposit any body waste in areas without comfort 
stationsL without digging a hole and coveri ng all 

104-6 



signs of the waste ; 
(3) To deposit any body waste within 150 feet of a spring, 

stream, lake , or reservoir; and 
(4) To leave or abandon (a vehicle or) any [other] large 

refu~eL such as refrigerators or stoves, household 
garbage or t rashL or other forms of waste or debris . 
[Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93 ; am and 
comp ) (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS 
§183- 2) 

§ 13-104-5 . 5 Abandoned and unattended p r operty . No person 
shall abandon or leave personal property unat t ended within a 
forest reserve for any purpose not otherwise authorized or 
inconsistent with the purposes of the forest reserve. All such 
property may be seized, impounded, or otherwise confiscated .by 
the board or any authorized representative.

ill If unattended personal property, including but not 
limited to motor vehicles , interferes with the safe or 
orderly management of a forest reserve or is stored on 
the publicly- managed lands , the personal property may 
be seized or impounded by the board or its authorized 
representative. Any article or instrument that is 
dangerous, noxious, hazardous, or considered as 
contraband under the laws of the State of Hawaii, 
which could endanger the health, safety, or welfare of 
the public, or public property, may be immediately 
seized and disposed of by any authorized 
representative of the department if found abandoned or 
unattended in the fores t reserve . 

_ill All impounded vehicles shall be towed to a place of 
storage. Owners of towed vehicles shall contact the 
division or the division of conservation and resource 
enforcement branch office for information on towed 
vehicles . Towing , storage, and other related costs 
shall be assessed pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes . 

ill Al l impounded or confiscated property, other than 
vehicles, shall be moved to a place of storage, and 
the owner shall be assessed moving , storage, and other 
re l ated costs . Additionally, the owner of this 
property shall bear the responsibi l ity for the risk of 
any loss or damage to their property.

ill Abandoned vehicles may be sold at public auction 
pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes . 

104-7 



All other impounded or confi scated property shall be 
disposed of pursuant to section 171-31 . 5 , Hawaii 
Revised Statutes . [Eff and comp J 
(Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§171- 31. 5 , 183-2, 
290-11) 

[§13 104 6 Report of injury or damage . ] § 13-104- 6 Report 
of injury or damage . Al l i nc i dents resulting in i njury or death 
to persons or damage to property shall be reported by the person 
or persons involved as soon as possible to the board or its 
authorized representative. This report does not relieve person s 
from the respons i bility of making any other accident reports 
which may be required under federal , state , or county statutes, 
ordi nances , and rules . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

(§13 104 7 Fire use restrictions . ] § 13-104-7 Fire use 
restrictions . The following acts are prohibited within a forest 
reserve : 

(1) To build any fire on the ground or in any structure[T) 
not otherwise authorized by this section; 

(2) To build any fire without using a portable stove or 
other self-contained unit; 

(3) To l eave a fire unattended without extinguishing all 
traces of heat ; 

(4) To deposit or discard any potential fire - producing 
materialL such as embers, coals, or ashes that are too 
hot to touch ; 

(5) To set on fire or cause to be set on fire any live or 
dead vegetation except for department fire control 
measures; and 

(6) To start a fire in windy conditions in a place or 
manner that is likely to cause live or dead vegetation 
to be set on fire [ ; and 

-t7+ To use any motor vehicle, motorized equipment , 
internal combustion engines, or electric motors unless 
equipped with efficiently operating fire or spark 
arresting equipment] . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 
10/15/93; am and comp ] (Aut h : HRS 
§183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2 , 185-7) 

104-8 



§13-104-7 . 5 Closing of areas . (a) The board, or its 
chairperson, may close or restrict the public use of all or any 
portion of a forest reserve in the event of an emergency or when 
deemed necessary for: 

ill The protect ion of t he biological , geological, or 
cultural resources of the area; 

ill Health , safety, or welfare reasons ; 
ill The protection of property; or 
ill Management activities, 

by the posting of appropriate signs indicat ing the duration , 
extent, and scope of c l osure . 

(b) The chairperson is authorized to effect a given 
closure or restriction under subsection (a) for a period of not 
more than ninety days . The board is authorized to effect a 
closure or restriction for any period as deemed necessary to 
accommodate the condition or conditions indicated under 
subsection (a). [Eff and comp (Auth : HRS 
§183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1 . 5 , 183-2 , 185-3) 

[§13 104 8 Hunting and fishing.] §13-104-8 Hunting and 
fishing. The hunting, fishing, trapping, or disturbing of any 
fish, animal , or bird is prohibited except as permitted by 
department hunting or fishing rules. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 
10/15/93 ; am and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
(Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 9 Firearms or other weapons . ] §13-104-9 Firearms 
or other weapons. Fi rearms and other weapons, including those 
discharging projectiles by air or gas [operated,] opeiation; or 
bow a nd arrowL [and other weapons ] are prohibited except as 
permitted by department hunting rules and are subject to all 
applicable federal, state, and county s tatutes , ordinances , and 
rules~ [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp 
(Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 10 Swimming and bathing.] §13-104-10 Swimming 
and bathing. Swimming a nd bathing in al l waters wi thin a forest 
reserve are permitted at an individual's own r i sk except in 
waters and at times where the activities are prohibi ted by the 

104-9 



board or its authorized representative i n the i nterest of public 
health and safety . The [eHcepted] prohibited waters and times 
shal l be designated by posted signs. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 
10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) · 
(Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 10 4 11 Vehicles and transportation . ] § 1 3 -104-11 
Vehicles and transportation . [+a+] The following acts are 
prohibited while under the jurisdiction of the state within a 
forest reserve: 

(1) To drive, operate, or use any motori zed or non
motorized land vehicle , glider, hang glider, aircraft , 
unmanned aircraft system, balloon, or parachute 
carelessly and without due caution for the rights or 
safety of others and in a manner that endangers any 
person or property; 

(2) To launch or land [airplanes,] aircraft, gliders , 
hel i copters , balloons, parachutes, or other s i milar 
means of transportation without a [special use] permit 
for t ha t purpose from the board or its authorized 
representat i ve; provided[, however , ] that landing is 
authorized without a permit in case of any emergency; 

(3) To drive , operate, or use any motorized vehicle in any 
area or trails not designated for that purpose[+]L 
including areas requiring four-wheel drive only; 

(4) To park any motorized or non-motorized vehicle or 
trailer except in designated areas; 

(5) To drive, l eadL or ride a horse, mule, other animal, 
or non-motorized land vehicle in areas and on roads or 
trails that are posted against such activity; [a-R-Ei-] 

(6) To drive, operate, or use any motorized [ground] land 
vehicle without a functioning street legal muffler, 
and without a valid vehicle license plate , 
registration and safety st i cker if required by [ea-e-l=t] 

ill 
the appropriate respective county[.]; and 
To launch, land, or operate any unmanned aircraft 
system wi thout a permit for that purpose from . the 
board or its authorized representative. 

[ (b) Any vehicle or property left unattended within a forest 
reserve f or longer than for t y eight hours without prior written 
permission from the board or its authorized representative shall 
be considered abandoned . Any abandoned vehicle or property may 
be impounded or towed away by the board or its authcirized 
representative at the eEpense of the owner.] [Eff 9/28/81; am 
and comp 10/15/93 ; am and comp (Auth: HRS 

104-10 



§183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1. 5, 183-2) 

[§13 10 4 12 Animals . ] §13-104-12 Animals. (a) Dogs, 
cats, and other animals are prohibited within a forest reserve 
unless crated , caged, or on a leash, at all times except for 
hunting dogs when permitted by chapters [122 and 123, 
Administrative Rules.] 13 -1 22 and 13-123. 

(b) All dogs used for hunting shall be crated, caged , or 
leashed or otherwise under restrictive control during 
transportation while in transi t at all times, to and from 
hunting areas within the fo~est reserve . 

(c) Dogs, cats, or other domestic animals, observed by an 
authorized representative of the board to be running at large or 
in the act of kil ling, i njuring, or molesting humans, wildlife , 
or property, may be disposed of in the interest of public safety 
and the protection of t he forest reserve. [Eff 9/28 /81 ; am and 
comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth : HRS §183-2) 
(Imp: HRS §183-2) 

(§13 104 13 Audio devices and noise . ] §13-104-13 Audio 
devices and noise. Creating noise or sound within a forest 
reserve, either vocally or otherwise ([:i:--.---e.--] e . g . , public 
address systems, radios, television sets, musical instruments) 
or use of any noise p roducing devices ([:i:--.---e.--] e . g . , electric 
generating plants or other equipment driven by motors or 
engines) i n a manner and at times which creates a nuisance is 
prohibited . [Eff 9/28/81 ; comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §18 3-2 ) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 14 EHplosives . ] § 13-104-14 Explosives. The use 
or possession of fi reworks, firecrackers, or explosive devices 
within a forest reserve is prohibited . [Eff 9/28/81 ; comp 
10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §18 3-2) 
(Imp: HRS §183- 2) 

[§13 104 15 Disorderly conduct . ] § 13-104-15 Disorqerly 
conduct . Disorderly conduct , as defined in section 711 - 1101, 
Hawaii Revised [Statues,] Stat utes, is prohibited within a 

104-11 



forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §18 3-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2, 
711-1101) " 

[§ 13 104 16 Residence on forest reserve lands . Residing 
within a forest reserve is prohibited e1wept with written 
permission from the board . ] § 13-1 04-16 Camping . No person 
shall camp, erect any tent , tarpaulin , or other structure , or 
use recreational trailers or other camper units wi thin any 
forest reserve, except with the prior written authorization of 
the board or its authorized representative and as permitted by 
the rules of the department . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am 
and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 17 Compliance with laws. ] § 13-104-17 Compliance 
with laws. All persons entering the boundaries of a forest 
reserve shall comply with all federal, state, and county laws , 
ordinances , and rules . [Eff 9/28/81 ; comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2 ) 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

PERMITS 

[§13 104 18 General provi s i ons for permits.] § 13-104-18 
General provisions for p e rmits . (a) The board or its 
authorized representative may issue the following types of 
permits: 

( 1) Camping ; 
(2) Special use; 
( 3) Collecting; 
( 4) [Commercial harvest;] Commercial; and 
( 5) Access . 
(b) All permits are subject to the following provisions : 
( 1) Permits are subject to denial , cancellation, or 

t ermination at any time by the board or its authorized 
representative upon violation of these rules or any 
conditions of the permit or any federa l, state, or 
county statutes , ordinances , and rules or for danger 
to the public or because of natural causes . Persons 

104 -12 



(2) 
(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

ill_ 

JlQl 

who have violated permit conditions or the rules may 
be ordered by the department to leave the forest 
reserve. Permittees who have violated permit 
conditions or the rules may be denied future permits 
for forest reserves or subject to.the imposition of 
additional permit restrictions; 
Permits shall not be transferable[~JL 
Persons or organizations to whom permits are issued 
shall be held responsible for all conditions 
[stipulated) on the permit[~]L 
All persons eighteen years of age or older shall be 
eligible to secure a permit and all minors shal l be 
allowed use of the premisesL provided that they are 
under the direct supervision of one adult for every 
ten minors[~]L 
The size of groups as well as the length of time any 
permit may be in effect may be limited by the board 
or its authorized representative[~]L 
The board or its authorized representative may require 
the permittee, at the permittee's own cost , to provide 
police protection in the interest of the public safety 
and welfare and for the protection of property when 
the number of persons using the forest reserve is one 
hundred or more[~]L 
Fees and charges as set by the board may be assessed 
when permits are granted for the exclusive use of 
areas or facilities, or when charges are necessary t o 
defray the cost of special facilities, services, or 
supplies provided by the State , or as otherwise 
determined by the board or its authorized 
representative when necessary to carry out the 
provisions of chapter 183, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
[Charges] Fees and charges contained in this chapter 
may be waived or reduced by the board or it s 
authorized representative if the waiver or reduction 
is in the public interest [~) L 
The board may set and approve a forest product price 
list. Charges may be assessed when permits are 
granted for forest products. The forest product price 
list shall reasonably reflect fair market value and be 
periodically updated by the board; 
All permittees [shall], upon request, sha l l snow the 
permit to any law e nforcement officer , the board, or 
its authorized representative[~]L 
By signing the permit and entering i nto the forest 
reserve, all persons included on the permit agree to 

104- 13 



comply with all the terms and conditions of the 
permit, as well as applicable laws and regulations ; 
and consent to present the permit to a duly authorized 
representative of the department upon request; and 

Qll Persons applying for a permit shall provide , if 
requested, identification for all persons included on 
a permit, satisfactory to the board or i ts authorized 
representative . The board or its authorized 
representative may require the names, addresses, and 
telephone numbers of all persons included on a permit. 
[Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS 
§§183-1. 5, 183-2) 

[§13 104 19 Camping permits.] §13-104-1 9 Camping permi ts. 
(a) All persons, groups, organizations, or associ at ions wishing 
to camp within a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit 
authorizing the use of the specific area and facilities for 
camping purposes[~] for the stated date or dates. 

[(b) Camping permits shall be obtained from the district 
offices of the division during regular working hours of the 
department. 

(c) Persons applying for a permit shall provide, if 
requested, identification for all persons included on a permit, 
satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . 

-fa-+-] fil Each camping permit will reserve the use of a 
designated area for the stated date or dates of use. Camping is 
permitted only in designated areas or sites . 

[+e-)-] J..sj_ No person, group, organization, or association 
shall remain at any one specific camping site for longer than 
seven days; provided that the board or its authorized 
representative may extend the length of stay for good cause[T 
provided further that the length of stay (including the 
extension as well as the permitted stay) shall not eicceed 
fourteen days]. 

(-tf-+-] ill After [the eHpiration] issuance of a camping 
permit, a period of at least thirty days shall pass before 
another camping permit for the same designated area may be· 
issued to [the same person for the same designated area . ] any 
person listed on any previousl y valid or current camping permi t. 
[This restriction shall apply to all persons named on the 
expired permit . ] The board or its authorized representative may 
waive a portion of the thirty=day period for good cause. 

(+g+] M [Permits] Camping permits may be denied, canceled, 
or termi nated for the following reasons: 

104-14 



(1) When the size of the group will exceed or exceeds the 
capacity of the existing site or facilities; 

(2) When there are inadequate facilities to meet the 
immediate needs of the camper or campers; 

(3) When repairs or improvements are being made at the 
campsite; or 

(4) When a state of emergency is declared or for other 
reasons involving the health, safety, and welfare of 
the applicants or permittees; [by the board or its 
authorized representative) 

upon the declaration of the board or its authorized 
representative . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ) (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 20 Special use permits.) § 13-104-20 Spe cial us e 
permits . (a) Special [uses are permitted within a forest 
reserve only by a permit) use permits are only issued by t he 
board or its authorized representative . Special uses are [aH 
types of uses other than) those provided for [herein) in thi s 
section and which are considered compatible with the functions 
and purposes of each individual area, facility, or unit within a 
forest reserve . Special uses incl ude but are not limited to 
communi ty activitiesL such as meetings, weddings , concerts, 
shows, and other community events~ [or activities) and the 
scientific collection of plants and animals . 

(b) Applications for special use permits shall be received 
by the board or its authori zed representative at least fifteen 
working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in 
eff ect, [unless otherwise received and accepted by the board or 
its authorized representative . ] however , the deadline may be 
waived by the board or its authorized representative upon a 
showing of good cause. 

{c) A request for a special use permit shall be considered 
on its own meritsL including its potential effect on [-t:-fte 
premises, faci l ities,) forest reserve resources and the public ' s 
use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . [Eff 9/28/81; am and 
comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth : HRS § 183-2) 
(Imp: HRS §183- 2) 

[§13 104 21 Collecting permits.] § 13-104-21 Collecting 
permits. (a) Persons wishi ng to collect forest [items) 
products [ (e.g. ti leaves , bamboo)] for personal use and at no 

104-15 



charge shall obtain a collecting permit authorizing the 
collection in a specific area . 

[(b) Collecting permits shall be obtained from the district 
offices of the division during regular working hours of the 
department . 

(c) Persons applying for a permit shall provide, their 
names and addresses and shall produce if requested, 
identification of all persons named on a permit, satisfactory to 
-t-he- board or its authorized representative. 

-f--El+l (b) Each application for a collecting permit shall be 
considered on its own merits, including its potential effect on 
forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of 
the forest reserve. 

l£)_ Collecting permits shall specify : 
( 1) The date or dates of collection; 
( 2) The quantities and [items] products to be collected; 
( 3) The areas of collection; and 
( 4) Any other terms and conditions deemed necessary by the 

board or its authorized representative. 
[+e+l fil Permits shall not be issued f or collecting [items] 

products for sale . 
[-f-#] M No permits shall b e issued for t he collection of 

endangered or threatened wildlife or plants except as provided 
by chapter [124, Administrative Rules.] 13-124. 

(f) No more than one permit within a seven-day period may 
be issued to the same person or persons, group, organization, or 
association listed on the permit for collecting any of t he same 
forest products. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) ( I mp: HRS §183- 2) 

[§13 104 22 Commercial harvest per mits.] §13-104-22 
Cornme.rcial permits . (a) Commercial use permit s. The board or 
its authorized representative may issue commercial use permits.

ill Applications for commercial use permits shall be 
received by the board or its authorized representative 
at least thirty working days in advance of the date 
the permit is to be in effect ; however, the deadline 
may be waived by the board or its authorized 
representative upon a showing of good cause. 

ill A request for a commercial use permit sha ll be 
c onsidered on its own merits, including its pot enti al 
effect on forest reserve resources and the publ ic's 
use and enjoyment of the fore st rese rve. 

ill The value of the commercial act ivity shall be decide d 

1 04- 1 6 



by the board or its authorized representative and 
shall not exceed $10,000. 

ill The time of entry for the commerci al activity shal l 
not exceed thirty days, except that the board or its 
authorized representat i ve may extend this time for 
good cause. 

[+a+] (b) Commercial harvest permits. The board or its 
aut horized representative may i ssue permits for the purpose of 
purchasing[T) and harvesting [ , and removing] forest products 
from a forest reserve [ (e . g ., timber, seedlings, greenery , tree 
fern, cinder, and lava rock) ] . 

[(b) Permits shall be obtained from the district offices of 
the division during r egular working hours of the department . 

+e+-J ill Each application for a commercial harvest permit 
shall be considered on its own meritsL including its 
potential effect on [the premises] forest reserve 
resources and the public's use and e n joyment of the 
forest reserve[.]; provided further that t ree 
harvesting shall be done in accordance with a 
management plan as required by section 183-16.5, 
Hawaii Revised Statutes . 

[ (d) Permits will not be issued for harvesting material for 
direct resale . 

+e+] ill The value of the raw material to be harvested 
shall not exceed $10 , 000 . The quantity to be 
harvested shall be decided by the board or its 
authorized representative . 

[#t] ill The time of entry for harvesting shall not exceed 
[HJ fourteen days for permits with designated raw 
material value not in e xcess of $1,000, or [~ ] thirty 
days for permits with designated raw material the 
value of which exceeds $1,000 but does not exceed 
$10,000, except t hat the board or its authorized 
representat ive may ext~nd this time for good cause . 

[+tt-J ill No more than one permit within a thirty day 
period or six permits within a calendar year may be 
issued to the same person, group, organization, or 
association for harvesting the same product . 

[-fh+] ill Each permit shall specify: 
[-f-±+-l (A) The products to be harvested; 
[-f-2+] ill The amount to be harvested; 
(-f-3+-] fil The dollar value of the products; 
[+4+] J...Ql The designated area to be harvested; 
(-f-§.+-] ill The date or dates the harvesting may take place; 

and 
(-f-6+-] (F) Any other terms or conditions deemed necessary by 

104-1 7 



the board or its authorized representative. 
(c) Commercial salvage permits . The board or its 

authorized representative may issue commercial sal vage permits 
for .the purpose of purchasing and removing dead or hazardous 
trees . 

ill A request for a commercial salvage permit shall be 
cons i dered on its own merits, includi ng its potential 
effect on forest reserve resources and the public's 
use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . 

ill The value of the raw material to be salvaged shall not 
exceed $10,000. The quantity to be salvaged shall be 
decided by the board or its authorized representative . 

ill The time of entry for salvaging shall not exceed 
fourteen days for permits with designated raw material 
value not in excess of $1 , 000, or thirty days for 
permits with designated raw material the value of 
which exceeds $1,000 but does not exceed $10,000, 
except that the board or its authorized representative 
may extend this time for good cause. [Eff 9/28/81; 
comp 10/15/93; am 10/4/05; am and comp 
(Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 23 ~ccess permits.] §13-104-23 Access permits. 
[+a+] Permits for access to or entry into forest reserves may 
be required by the board or its authorized representative for 
the following [purpose:] purposes: 

(1) To comply with the requirements of private landowners 
or lessees who permit access to forest reserves 
through their land; 

(2) To control the number of people using a forest reserve 
or an area within a forest reserve in order to 
minimize [t-he] any impact upon environmentally 
sensitive [area;] areas; 

(3) To control the types of uses of a forest reserve or an 
area within a forest reserve in order to minimize the 
dangers of incompatible uses in the same area (e . g.~ 
horseback riding and motorcycle riding); [a-ft€!.] 

(4) To control [periods of use] uses of a forest reserve , 
[especially during periods when fire danger levels are 
high. ] or any portion thereof , which may be under 
closure or otherwise restricted; and 

(5) [To collect plants or animals for scientific 
purposes.] For scientific research activities t hat 
are otherwise prohibited by this chapter. 

104-18 



[(b) Access permits shall be obtained from the district 
offic es of the division during regular working hours of the 
department. 

(c) Persons applying for an access per mit shall provide 
their names and addresses and shall produce identification 
satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . The 
board or its authorized representative may require the names, 
addresses , and telephone numbers of all persons included on a 
permit.] [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183- 2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

[§13 104 24 Commercial activities.] §13-104-24 Commercial 
activities. No person shall engage in commercial activities of 
any kind in a forest r eserve without a written permit from the 
board or its authorized representative. [Eff 12/9/02; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

FEES AND CHARGES 

§ 13-104-25 General statement . (a) This subchapter 
establishes user fees and charges for services , facilities, and 
activities fo r forestry and recreational purposes , where 
appl i cable under the jurisdict ion of the division . 

(b) The fees and charges are : 
ill Collected to offset the expenses of operating, 

maintaining, and managing the fac i lities and services ; 
ill Fixed with due regard to the primary purposes of 

providing public outdoor r ecrea tional facilities and 
promoting an appreciation and connection with Hawaii ' s 
forests; and 

ill Set by categories . 
(c) The acceptance o f payment or billings shall not waive 

the nature of trespass o r rat i fy or permi t . illegal camping. 
[Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2 ) (Imp: HRS 
§ 1 83-2) 

§13-104-26 Payment. (a) Method of payment of fees and 
charges shal l be online by c r edit card o r by business c heck, 

104-1 9 



cashier ' s check, money order, or cash at division branch offices 
or the administration office . 

(b) All fees shall be paid in advance of issuance of a 
permit, except as specified by chapter 13-104 . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183- 2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

§ 13-104-27 Camping and cabin rental fees. The camping and 
cabin rental fees shall be set according to the amounts in 
Schedule A - Camping and Cabin Rental Fees - 12/28/16 . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183- 2) 

Schedule A 
Camping and Cabin Renta l Fees 

12/28 / 16 

Ma x i mum No . 
Campsi t es 

Max imum No . 
Persons p er 

c ampsite 

Re sident Fee 
($ / night / 
c amp site) 

Nonre sident 
Fe e ($ / night/ 

c ampsite) 
Category 1 I Up to 5 I Up to 15 I $12* I $18** 
Unimproved campsite or improved campsite with minimal amenities 
(i . e . , trailside camping or a campsite with picnic table and shelter 
and clivus toilet) 

I $30/night per I $50/night perCategory 2 1 Cabin Up to 6I I cabin*** cabin ** * 
Improved campsite or small cabin that houses no more than 6 persons 

I $60/night per I $90/night per
Category 3 1 Cabin Up to 20I I cabin** * cabin*** 
Improved campsite or large cabin that houses 7 or more persons 
* A resident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $12 . Additional 
persons will cost $2 per person. 

** A nonresident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $18. 
Additional persons will cost $3 per person . 
***Fee reflects total cost for cabin rental r egardless of number of 
persons staying overnight. 

§ 13-104-28 Commercial use pe rmit f ees . Commercial use 
permit fees are listed in Schedule B - Commercial Use Permit 
Fees - 12/28/16 a nd shal l apply depending on the appl icable 
commercial activity or activities; provided that the requested 
recreational faci l ity is approved for commercial use by the 
forestry and wildlife manager . [Eff and comp 
(Auth: HRS §183- 2) (Imp : HRS §183- 2) 

104-20 



Schedule B 
Commercial Use Permit Fees 

12/28/16 
Base commercial use permit processing fee $10 
Price per pedestrian $5 
Price per non-motorized bicycl e or horseback rider $7 
Price per motorized vehicle up to 5 people $25 
Price per motorized vehicle up to 8 people $50 
Price per motorized vehicle up to 12 people $75 
Price per motorized vehicl e up to 15+ people $100 
Price per operator and/or passenger of aerial craft launching 
from and/or landing in a forest reserve 

$5 

Price per c ampsite, facility, or cabin per day $100 
Price per commercial film permit $100 
Price per item/activity (misce l laneous) $20 

§ 13-104-29 Kiln fees. Kiln fees are l isted in Schedule C 
- Kiln Fees - 12/28/16 and shall be paid no later than fifteen 
days after kiln services are rendered. [Eff and 
comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 

Schedule C 
Kiln Fees 
12/28/16 

Unit Unit Cost· 
1 - 900 Board Feet $0.70 each 
901 - 1000 Board Feet $0.60 each 
1001 - 1500 Board Feet $0 . 50 each 
1501 and up Board Feet $0 . 40 each 

§ 13-104-30 Permit processing fees. The fee for the 
processing of an access permit for scientific research purposes 
shall be $50 . The fee for processing any other permit shall be 
$10 . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: 
HRS §183-2) 

_§_1_3_-_1_0_4_-_3_1__P_a_r_k_i_n_g~_a_n_d_e_n_t_r_a_n_c_e_f_e_e_s_. The fee for parking 
a vehicle may be assessed at $5 per vehicle, per day. [Eff and 
comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 

104-21 



-------

§ 13-104-32 Fee for copie s of rules. The fee per copy of 
these rules shall be 10 cents per page. No fee shal l be charged 
for copies furnished to federal, state , or local governmental 
agencies. The fee may be waived i n other instances at the 
discretion of the admi nistrator or the administrator's 
authorized representative when a waiver is in the public 
interest. [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183- 2) 
(Imp : HRS §§91-2 . 5 , 183-2) 

§ 13-104-33 Negotiable instruments; service charge . The 
service charge for any d i shonored check, draft, certificate of 
deposit , or other negotiable instrument is $10. " [Eff a nd 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 

2. Material, except source notes , to be repealed is 
bracketed and stricken. New material is underscored . 

3 . Additions to update source notes to reflect these 
amendments and compilation are not underscored . 

4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 13-104 , 
Hawaii Administrat i ve Rul es, shall take effect ten days after 
filing with t he Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules, 
drafted in the Ramseyer format , pursuant to the requirements of 
section 91-4 . 1 , Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on 

, and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant 
Governor. 

Suzanne D. Case 
Chairperson, Board of Land 

and Natural Resources 

104-22 



APPROVED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 

/s/ Colin J. Lau 

DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL . 

1 0 4 -23 



Existing rule 

PURPOSE ofthe RULES 

§13-104-1 Purpose and applicability . (a) The 
purpose of these rules is to regulate activity 
within fo res t reserves establishe~ pursuant to 
sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes . (b) Th ese rules shall apply to all 
persons entering the boundaries of a forest 
reserve . Everyone us i ng the forest reserves should 
conduct themsel ves in a safe and courteous manner . 
Users of the forest reserves should be aware that 
there are certains inherent risks involved due to 
other users and the environment and should use 
caution at all times . 

NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 

§13-104-2 Definitions. As used in these 
rules , unless context requires otherwise : 
"Administrator" means the administrator of the 
division of forestry and wildlife. 

[No comparable existing rule provision ~] 

"Authorized representat ive " m~ar;1s· the 
admini strator, foresters, cori,::;ervation enforcement 
officers, and other persons authorized by the 
board of land and natural resources to act for the 
board . 

" Board" means t he board of land and natural 
resources. 

"Camping " means being in possession of a backpack, 
tents , blankets , tarpaulins, or other obvious 
camping paraphernalia, any time after one hour 
after sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve . 

1· 
I 



Rule Change 

PURPOSE of the RULES 

[§13 1oq 1 Purpose and applicability .] § 13-104-1 Purpose 
and applicability. (a) The purpose of [these rules] this chapter 
is to regulate activity within forest reserves established 
pursuant to sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 

(b) These rules shall apply to all persons entering t he 
boundaries and jurisdiction of a forest reserve . All persons 
shall observe and abide by officially posted signs within forest 
reserves. Everyone using the forest reserves should conduct 
themselves in a safe and courteous manner . Users of the forest 
reserves should be aware that t here are [certains] certain 
inherent risks involved due to other users and the e nvironmeht 
and should use caution at all times. 

NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 
I 

[§13 104 2 Definitions . ] §13-104-2 Definitions. As u$ed in 
[these rules ,] this chapter, unless the context requires 
otherwise : 

"Abandoned and unattended property" means any and all 
property, including personal property, items, materials, 
equipment, fixtures, motor vehicles, or vessels that have be~n 
left unattended on land owned or controlled by the State forr"a 
continuous period of more than forty-eight hours without ,the! 
written permission of the board or its authorized representalt i ve . 

I 
i 

No Change 

No Change 

"Camping " or "to camp" means [being in .possession of a: 
wekpack, tents , blankets , tarpaulins , or other obvious cam_0i ng 
paraphernalia ,] a person's physical presence any time [afte~] one 
hour after sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve. Indi~ia of 
camping includes the use of a forest reserv~ one hour after! 
sundown until sunrise for living accommodat ion purposes, ! 

including, but not limited to : sleeping activities or making 
preparations to s l eep (including the laying down of beddin~ for 
the purpose of sleeping); storing personal belongings; maki ~g any 
fire_; the presence or use of any tents, temporar shelters, 
unauthorized structures or vehicles; or dig in breaking- round 



"Commercial activity" mean s t h e use of or activity 
in the forest reserve for which compensation is 
received by any person for·goods or services or 
both rendered to customers or participants in that 
use or activity . Commercial activi ties include 
activities ~hose base of operations are outside 
the boundari es o~ the f orest reser ve , or provide 
transportation to or from the forest reserve. 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

"Compensation" includes but is not limited to, 
monetary fees, barter , or services in-kind. 

" Division" means the division of forestry and 
wildlife . 

" Department " means the department of land and 
natural resources . 

" Forest reserve " means those lands designated as 
forest reserves by the department pursuant to 
sections 183-11 and 183- 15 , Hawaii Revised 
Statutes , and other lands for plant sanctuaries , 
facilities, nurseries and baseyards under the 
custody and control of the division . 

[No comparable existing rul e provision . ] · 

"Motorized vehicle " means a vehicl e of any shape 
or form that depends on a motor (gas , electric , or 
ot0er fuels ) for propul sion. 

"Non-motorized vehicl e " means a vehicle of any 
shape or form that depends on human, animal, wind , 
spring and other nonmotorized means for 
propulsion . 

" Residing" means being in the same forest reserve 
for more than seven (7) continuous days . 

" Spark arrester" means a device constr ucted of 



vithout proper authorization . 

"Commercial activity" means the use of or activity in the 
:orest reserve for which compensation i s received by any person 
:or goods or services or both rendered to customers or 
)articipants in that use or activity . Soliciting, demanding, or 
:equesting gifts, money , or services shall b e considered 
:ommercial activity . Commercial activities i nclude activi ties 
[whose] with base of operations [a-re] outside the boundaries of 
~he forest reserve , displa y of merchandise , or activities which 
)rovide transportation to or from the forest reserve . 

"Commerci al use " is any type of commercial activity which is 
:ons i dered compatible with the functions and purposes of each 
_ndividual area, facility, or unit within a forest reserve . 

"Compensation" includes but is not limited to, monetary fees , 
ionations, barter, or services in-kind. 

No Change 

No Change 

No Change 

" Forest product " means any natural materia l from a forest 
~eserve, including but not limited to timber, seedlings, seeds , 
:ruits , greenery, tree fern, cinder, lava rock, ti leaves, and 
Jarnboo . 

No Change 

No Change 

[ "Residing " means being in the same forest reserve for more 
:han seven (7) continuous days . ] 

[ "Spark arrester " me ans a device constr ucted of nonfl ammable 
wterial s specifically for the-pur pose of removing and ret aining 



I nonf l ammable materials specifically for the 
purpose of removing and retaining carbon and other 
flammable particles over 0 . 0232 of an inch in size 
from the exhaust flow of an internal combustion 
engine that is operated by hydrocarbon fuels . 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

PENALTIES 

§13-104-3 Penalty . Any person violating any of the 
provisions of these rules shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and shall be penalized as provided by 
law. 

• Current rules limits the Department's enforcement ability and needs to be 
updated to be more consistent with enforcement capacity for Department 
land management areas. 



:arbon and other flammable particles over 0 . 0232 of an inch in 
.ize from the exhaust flow of an internal combustion engine that 
.s operated by hydrocarbon fue l s. ] 

" Structure" means any object or improvement constructed, 
.nstalled, or placed on state lands, including but not limited to 
,uildings, sheds, lean-tos, picnic tables , memorials, hunting 
,linds, tree stands, mobile homes, campers, trailers ; provided 
hat tents, campers , vehicles , and other temporary objects related 
o authorized activities shall not be considered structures for 
.he purposes of this definition; provided further that the objects 
.re in compliance with rules and regulations governing those 
.ctivities on state lands. 

"Tree harvesting" means the removal of live trees from a 
orest reserve . 
·ENALTIES 

[§13 104 3 Penalty.] § 1 3-104 -3 Penalty . ...@l_ Any pe-rson 
·iolating any of the provisions of [these rules] this chapter 
hall be [guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be penalized] subject 
o penalty as provided by law_. All revenues generated from fines 
,r penalties imposed pursuant to this section shall be deposited 
nto the forest stewardship fun d . Any equipment , article, 
nstrument, aircraft, vehicle, business record, or natural 
·csourcc used or taken in violation of the provisions of this 
hapter may be seized and subject to forfeiture as provided by 
ection 199-7 , Hawaii Revised Statutes , and chapter 7 12A, Hawaii 
.cviscd Statutes . 
b) Restrictions and prohibitions imposed by this chapter shall 
.ot apply to state employees or their agents acting in the scope 
,f their employment while within the forest reserve. Any penalty 
.mposcd may take into account emergency situations, such as fire 
,r other disasters or where necessary to protect life or property . 



§13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation .... 
(b) Any vehicle or property left unattended within 

a forest reserve for longer than forty-eight hours 
without prior written permission from the board ·or its 
authorized representative shall be considered 
abandoned . Any abandoned vehicle or property may be 
impounded or towed away by the board or its authorized 
representative at the expense of the owner . [Eff 
9/28/81 ; am and comp 10/15/93) (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
(Imp : HRS §183-2) 

• This rule is proposed to be repealed and replaced by the new rule 

§13-104-7 Fire use restrictions . The following 
acts are prohibited within a forest reserve : 

(1) To build any fire on the ground or in any 
structure; 

(2) To build any fire without using a portable 
stove or other self-contained unit; 

(3) To leave a fire unattended without 



§ 13-104 - 5.5 Aba ndone d a nd unattende d property. No person shall 
,andon or leave personal property unattended within a forest reserve 
,r any purpose not otherwise authorized or inconsistent with the 
trposes of the forest reserve . All such property may be seized, 
tpounded, or otherwise confiscated by the board or any authorized 
:presentative . 

ill If unattended personal property, including but not limited to 
motor vehicles, i nterferes with the safe or orderly 
management of a forest reserve or is stored on the publicly
managed lands, the personal property may be seized or 
impounded by the board or its authorized representative . Any 
article or instrument that is dangerous , noxious , hazardous , 
or considered as contraband under t he laws of the State of 
Hawaii, which could endanger the health, safety, or welfare 
of the public , or public property, may be immediately seized 
and disposed of by any authorized representative of the 
department if found abandoned or unattended in the forest 
r eserve . 

ill All impounded vehicles shall b e towed to a place of storage. 
Owners of towed vehicles shall contact the division or the 
division of conservation and resource enforcement branch 
office f or information on towed vehicles . Towing, storage, 
and other related costs shal l be assessed pursuant to section 
290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 

ill All impounded or confiscated property, other than vehicles, 
shall be moved to a place of storage, and t he owner shall be 
assessed moving, storage , and other related costs . 
Additionally , the owner of this property shall bear the 
responsibility for the risk of any l oss or damage to their 
property . 

ill Abandoned vehicles may be sold at public auction pursuant to 
section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes. All other impounded 
or confiscated pr oper ty shall be disposed of pursuant 
section 171-31 . 5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS 
31. 5, 183-2 , 290-11) 

• This new rule provides more detail and procedure. 

to 

§§171-

(1) §13-104-2 Definitions. 

"Abandoned and 
roperty, including 

unattended property" means any and all 
personal propert y , items, materials, 

1uipment , fixtures , motor vehicles , or vessels that have been 
=ft unattended on land owned or controlled by the State for a 
) ntinuous period of more than forty-eight hours without the 
r i tte n permission of t he board or i ts authorized r epresentative . 

• A new definition ofAbandoned and unattended property has been added in the propose rule 
change. 

§13-104 - 7 Fire use restrictions . The following acts are 
rohibited within a forest reserve : 

(1) To build any fire on the ground or in any structure[T] not 
otherwise authorize d by this section; 

(2) To build any fire without using a portable stove or other 
self- contained unit ; 

(3) To leave a f i re unattended without extinguishing all traces 



extinguishing a ll traces of heat; 

(4) To deposit or discard any potential fire
producing material such as embers , coals, or 
ashes that are too hot to touch; 

(5) To set on fire or cause to be set on fire 
any live or dead vegetation except for 
department fi re control measures; and 

(6) To start a fi re in windy conditions in a 
place or manner that is likely to cause live 
or dead vegetation to be set on fire ; and 

(7) To use any motor vehicle, motorized 
equipment, internal combustion engines, or 
electri~ motors unless equipped with 
efficiently operating fire or spark 
arresting equipment . [Eff 9/28/81; am and 
comp 10/15/93] (Auth: "HRS §183-2) (Imp: 
HRS §§183-2 , 185- 1) 

• Existing rule prohibits the use motors in the forest reserve unless it is 
equipped with working fire or spark arresting equipment. This is 
meant to provide a measure reducing ignition of wildfire,from 
motorized equipment. 
§13-104-23 Access permits. (a} Permits for 

access to or entry into forest reserves may be required 
by the board or its authorized representative for the 
following purpose: 

( 2) 

(4) To control periods of use of a forest 
reserve, especially during periods when fire 
danger levels are high . 
[Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93] (Auth : 

HRS §18 3 - 2 ) ( Imp : HRS § 183-2 ) 

• Highlighted in yellow is the existing provision (imbedded within access 
permits) that provided the mechanism for the Division to close a forest 
reserve when it was needed due to natural resources concerns or for health 
and public safety. 



of heat ; 

(4) To deposit or discard any potential fire-producing materialL 
such as embers, coals, or ashes that are too hot to touch; 

(5) To set on fire or cause to be set on fire any live or dead 
vegetation except for department fire control measures; and 

(6) To start a fire in windy conditions in a place or manner that 
is likely to cause live or dead vegetation to be set on 
fire[; and 

-f7+ To use any motor vehicle, motorized equipment , internal 
combustion engines, or electric motors unless equipped with 
efficiently operating fire or spark arresting equipment] . 
[Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93 ; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-
2, 185-7) 

• The proposed rule change removes the requirement that motors must be equipped with working 
fire or spark arresting equipment. 

• The definition of spark arrester has been repealed from HAR§13-104-2 in the proposed rule change 

§13-104- 7.5 Clos ing o f a r e a s . (a) The board, or its chairperson, 
.ay close or restrict the public use of all or any portion of a forest 
eserve in the event of an emergency or when deemed necessary for : 

ill The protection of the biological , geological , or cultural 
resources of the area; 

ill Health , safety , or welfare reasons; 
_ill The protection of property ; or 
ill Management activities, 

y the posting of appropriate signs indicating the duration, extent , and 
cope of closure . 

(b) The chairperson is authorized to effect a given closure or 
estriction under subsection (a) for a period of not more than ninety 
ays . The board is authorized to effect a closure or restriction for 
ny period as deemed necessary to accommodate the condition or 
onditions indicated under subsection (a) . [Eff and 
omp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1.5, 183-2, 
85-3) 

• This new proposed rule (above) provides clear language and procedure for closing a forest reserve. 

§ 13-104-23 Acce ss permits . -fa+ . . . 
(4) To control [periods of use] uses of a forest reserve, 

[especially during periods when fire danger levels are 
high.] or any portion thereof , which may be under 
closure or otherwise restricted; and 

• Highlighted in yellow are the corresponding changes being made to current access pennit rules that 
served as the ori inal forest reserve closure mechanism. 



§13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation . (a) 
The following acts are prohibited within a forest 
reserve : 

(1) To drive, operate, or use any motorized or 
non- motorized land vehicle, glider, hang 
glider, aircraft, balloon, or paracnute 
carelessly and without due caution for the 
rights or safety of others and in a manner 
that endangers any person or property; 

(2) To launch or land airplanes , gliders, 
helicopters, balloons, parachutes, or other 
similar means of transportation without a 
special use permit from the board or its 
authorized representative; provided, 
however, t h at landing is author i zed without 
a permit in case of any emergency; 

(3) To drive, operate , or use any motorized 
vehicle in any area or trails not designated 
for that purpose ; 

(4) To park any motorized or non-motorized 
vehicle or trailer except i n designated 
areas ; 

(5) To drive, lead or ride a horse, mule, other 
animal, or non-motorized land vehicle in 



§13-104- 11 Vehicles and transportation. [+a+] The following acts 
Lre prohibited while under the jurisdiction of the stat e within a forest 
·eserve : 

(1) To drive, operate , or use any mot orized or non- motori zed 

land vehicle, glider, hang g lider , aircraft , -
balloon, or para chute carel essly and without 

due caution for the rights or saf ety of others and in a 
manner that endangers any p erson or property; 

(2) To launch or land [airplanes,] aircraft , gliders , 
helicopters , balloons , parachutes , or other similar means of 
transportation without a [special use'] permit for that 
purpose from the board or its authorized representative; 
provided [, however, ] that landing is authorized without a 
permit in case of any emergency ; 

(3) To drive, operate, or use any motorized vehicle in any area 
or trails not designated for that purpose[T], including areas 
requiring four-wheel dri ve only; 

(4) To park any motorized or non-motorized vehicle or trailer 
except in designated a reas ; 

(5) To drive, lead~ or ride a horse , mule, other animal, or non
motorized land vehicle in areas and on roads or trails that 
are posted against such activity ; [-a-ft€l:] 

( 6 ) To drive , operate , or use any motorized [ground] land vehicle 



areas and on roads or trails that are posted 
against such activity; and 

(6) To drive, operate, or use any motorized 
ground vehicle without a functioning street 
legal muffler, and without a valid vehicle 
license plate, registration and safety 
sticker if required by each respective 
county . 

• The existing rules on vehicles and transportation are shown abq.ve. 

§13-104-16 Residence on forest reserve lands. 
Residing within a forest reserve is prohibited except 
with written permission from the board. 

• The proposed rule change repeals and replaces this rule with a 
prohibition on camping. 

§13-104-19 Camping permits. (a) All 
persons, groups, organizations, or associations 
wishing to camp within a forest reserve shall 
obtain a camping permit authorizing the use of t he 
specific area and facilit i es for camping purposes . 

• The current rules that contain provisions that require permits for 
camping in the forest reserve. 

§13-104-2 Definitions . . .. " Camping" means being in 
possession of a backpack, tents, blankets, 
tarpaulins, or other obvious camping 
paraphernalia, any time after one hour after 
sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve . 

• Current definition ofcamping in the forest reserve rules 

"Residing" means being in the same forest reserve 
for more than seven (7) continuous days. 

• Current definition ofresiding in the forest reserve rules 
• The "residing" definition has been repealed in the proposed rule change 



without a functioning street legal muffler, and without a 
valid vehicle license plate , registration and safety sticker 
if required by [ea-eh) the appropriate respective county[~)~ 
and 

• The proposed rule changes to vehicles and transportation were done to include regulation for 
unmanned aircraft systems such as drones (highlighted above). 

• All other changes are non-substantial and were done for clarification purposes. 

1 §13 101 16 Residence on forest reserve lands . Residing wi thin a 
~orest reserve is prohibited except with written permission from the 
>oard . )§13-104- 16 Camping . No person shall camp, erect any tent, 
:arpaulin, or other structure, or use recreational trailers or other 
:amper units within any forest reserve, except with the prior written 
tuthorization of the board or its authorized representative and as 
>ermitted by the rules of the department. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93 ; 
till and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (I~p : HRS §183-2) 

• The tenn residing has been replaced by Camping. 
• This proposed rule provid~s clear language and procedure for the prohibition on camping in 

the forest reserve without a permit. 

:13-104-2 De finitions . . .. " Camping" o r " to camp" means [being in 
>Os session of a backpack , tents , blankets , tarpaulins, or other 
>bvious camping paraphernalia,] a person's physical presence any 
.ime [after] one hour after sundown until sunrise in a forest 
:eserve . Indicia of camping includes the use of a forest reserve 
>ne hour after sundown until sunrise for living accommodation 
>Urposes, including, but not limited to : sleeping activities or 
1aking preparations to sleep (including the laying down of bedding 
'or the purpose of sleeping) ; storing personal belongings ; making 
tny fire ; the presence or use of any tents , temporary shelters, 
1nauthorized structures or vehicles ; or digging or breaking ground 
,ithout proper authorization . 

• The definition of "Camping" and has also been revised. 

§13-104-2 Definitions. . .. 11 Structure 11 means any obj ect or 
_mprovement constructed, installed, or placed on state lands , 
_ncluding but not limited to buildings, sheds, lean-tos , picnic 
:ables, memorials, hunting b linds, tree stands , mobile homes, 
:ampers, trailers; provided that tents, campers, vehicles, and 
)ther temporary objects related to authori zed activities shall . not 
le considered structures for the purposes of this definition; 
>rovided further that the objects are in compliance with rules and 
:egulations governing those activities on state lands . 

• A new definition of"Structure" has been added in the propose rule change. 



SUBCHAPTER 3 

PERMITS 

§13-104-18 General provisions for permits . (a) 
The board or its authorized representative may issue 
the following types of permits: 

(1) Camping; 
(2) Special use; 
(3) Collecting; 
(4) Commercial harvest; and 
(5) Access . 
(b) All permits are subject to the following 

provisions: 
(1) Permits are subject to denial, cancellation, 

or termination at any time by the board or 
its authori zed representative upon violation 
of these rules or any conditions of the 
permit or any federal , state, or county 
statutes, ordinances , and rules or for danger 
to the public or because of natural causes . 

( 2) 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

• Regulation highlighted in yellow is proposed to be repealed 
from the following provisions: 

HAR §13-104-19(c) 
HAR §13-104-2l(c) 
HAR §13-104-23(c) 

• Regulation highlighted in blue is proposed to be repealed from 
the fo llowing provisions: 

HAR §13-104-2 l(c) 
HAR §13-104-23(c) 



SUBCHAPTER 3 

PERMITS 

[§13 104 18 General provisions for permits.] §13-104-18 General 
,rovisions for permits . (a) The board or its authorized 
·epresentative may issue the following types of p e rmits: 

(1) Camping; 
(2) Special use; 
(3) Collecting; 
(4) [Commercial harvest;] Commercial; and 
(5) Access . 
(b) All permits are subject to the following provisions: 
(1) Permits are subject to denial, cancellati on, or termination 

at any time by the board or its authorized representative 
upon violation of these rules or any conditions of the permit 
or any federal , state , or county statutes, ordinances, and 
rules or for danger to the public or because of natural 
caus es . Persons who have violated permit conditions or the 
rules may be ordered by the department to leave the fores t 
reserve . Permittees who have violated permit conditions or 
the rules may be denied future permits for forest reserves or 
subject to the imposition of additional permit restrictions; 

( 2) 

( 8) The board may set and approve a forest product price list. 
Charges may be assessed when permits are granted for forest 
products. The forest product price list shal l reasonably 
reflect fair market value and be periodi cally updated by the 
board; 

( 9) 

Jl.Ql By signing the permit and entering into the forest reserve, 
all persons included on the permit agree to comply with all 
the terms and conditions of the permit, as well as app l i cable 
laws and regulations ; and consent to present the permit to a 
duly authorized representative of the department upon 
request; and 

J.1Jj_ Persons applying for a permit s hall provide , if requested , 
identification for all persons included on a permi t , 
satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . 



§13-104-19 Camping permits . (a) All persons, 
groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp 
within a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit 
authorizing the use of the specific area and facilities 
for camping purposes. 

(b) Camping permits shall be obtained from the 
district offices of the division during regular working 
hours of the department . 

( c) 

(e) No person, group, organization, or 
association shall remain at any one specific camping 
site for longer than seven days; provided that the 
board or its authorized representative may extend the 
length of stay for good cause; provided further that 
the length of stay (including the exten sion as well as 
the permitted stay) shall not exceed fourteen days . 

( f) 

(g) Permits may be denied, canceled, or 
terminated for the following reasons: 

(1) When the size of the group exceeds the 
capacity of the existing site or facilities; 

(2) When there are inadequate facilities to meet 
the immediate needs of the camper or campers; 

(3) When repairs or improvements are being made 
at the campsite; or 

(4) When a state of emergency is declared by the 
board. or its authorized representative 



(§13 101 19 Camping permits . ] § 13-104 - 19 Camping permits. (a) 
,11 persons , groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp 
,ithin a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit authorizing the 
.se of the specific area and facilities for camping purposes[7] for the 
tatcd date or dates . 

[(b) Camping permits shall be obtained from the district offices of 
:he division during regular working hours of the department . 

[-fe+] M No person, group, organization, or association shall 
·emain at any one speci fic camping site for longer than seven days; 
irovided that the board or its authorized representative may extend the 
ength of stay for good cause[; provided further that the length of stay 
including the e1rtens ion as well as the permitted stay) shall not e1rcecd 

'ourteen days] . 

[-fg-t] J.tl [Permits] Camping permits may be denied, canceled, or 
.erminated for the following reasons : 

(1) When the size of the group will exceed or exceeds the 
capacity of the existing site or facilities ; 

(2) When there are inadequate facilities to meet the i mmediate 
needs of the camper or campers ; 

(3) When repairs or improvements arc being made at the campsite; 
or 

( 4) When a stat e of emergency is declared or for other reason s 
involving the health, safety, and welfare of the applicants 
or permittees ; [by the board or its authorized 
representative]upon the declaration of the board or its 
authorized representative . 



§13-104-20 Special Use Permits . (a) ... 
(b) Applications for special use permits shall 

be received by the board or its authorized 
represe~tative at least fifteen working days in advance 
of the date the permit is to be in effect, unless 
otherwise received and accepted by the board or its 
authorized representative. 

§13-104-21 Collecting permits . (a) Persons 
wishing to collect forest items (e . g . ti leaves , 
bamboo) for personal use and at no charge shall obtain 
a collecting permit authorizing the collection in a 
specific area 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

§13-104- 22 Commercial harvest permits. (a) The 
board or its authorized representative may issue 
permits for the purpose of purchasing, harvesting , and 
removing forest products (e . g., timber, seedlings, 
greenery, tree fern, cinder, and lava rock) . 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 



nJ-104-20 Special Use Permits. (a) ... 
(b) Applications for special use permits shal l be received by the 

)Oard or its authorized representati ve at least fifteen working days in 
1dvance ·of the date the permit is to be in effect, [unless otherwise 
~eceived and accepted by the board or its authorized representative . ] 
1owever, the deadline may be waived by the board or its authorized 
~epresentative upon a showing of good cause. 

[§13 104 21 Collecting permits.] §13-104-21 Collecting permits . 
:a) Persons wishing to col lect forest [-i-t-em.&] products [-(e . g . ti 
.eaves, bamboo)] for personal use and at no charge shall obtain a 
:oll ecting permit authorizing the collection in a specific area . 

-te+-J (b) Each application for a collecti ng permit shall be 
:onsidered on its own merits , including its potential effect on forest 
~eserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest 
~eserve . 

(f) No more than one permit within a seven-day period may be issued 
:o the same person or persons, group , organization, or associat i on 
.isted on the permit for collecting any of the same forest products . 

§ 13-104-2 Defiriitions . ... "Forest product" means any natural 
taterial from a forest reserve, including but not limited to timber, 
eedlings, seeds, fruits, greenery, tree fern, cinder, lava rock, ti 
eaves and b amboo . 

[§13 104 22 Commercial harvest permits.] §13-104-22 Commercial 
,ermits. (a) Commercial use permi ts . The board or its authori zed 
epresentative may issue commercial use permits . 

(1) Applications for commercial use permits shall be received by 
the board or its authorized representative at least thirty 
working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in 
effect; however, the deadline may be waived by the board or 
its authorized representative upon a showing of good cause . 



[No comparable existing rule provision.] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

(a) The board or its authorized representative 
may issue permits for the purpose of purchasing, 
harvesting, and removing forest products (e.g.' , timber, 
seedlings, greenery, tree fern, cinder, and lava rock) . 

(c) Each application for a harvest permit shall 
be considered on its own merits including its effect on 
the premises and the public's use and enjoyment of the 
forest reserve. 

(d) Permits will not be issued for harvesting 
material for direct resale . 

[No comparable existing rule provision.] 

[No comparable existing rule provision.] 

[No comparable existing rule provisi on .] 



ill A request for a commercial use p ermit shall be 
considered on its own merits, including its potential 
effect on forest reserve resources and the public's use 
and enjoyment of the forest reserve . 

ill The value of the commercial activity shall be decided by the 
board or its authorized representative and shall not exceed 
$10,000. 

ill The time of entry for the commerci al activity shall not 
exceed thirty days, except that the board or its authorized 
representative may extend this time for good cause . 

[-fa+-] (b) Commercial harvest permits. The board or its authorized 
:epresentative may issue permits . for the purpose of purchasing[T] and 
1arvesting[ , and removing] forest products from a forest reserve [(e . g ., 
: imber, seedlings, greenery, tree fern, cinder, and lava reek) ] . 

-{-€-}-] ill Each application for a commercial harvest permit shall 
be. considered on its own meritsL incl uding its potential 
effect on [the p remises] forest reserve resources and the 
public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve [~]; provided 
further that tree harvesting shall be done in accordance with 
a management plan as required by section 183-16 . 5, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes . 

[( d) Permits wil l not be issued for harvesting material for 
:lireet resale . 

(c) Commercial salvage permits. The board or its authorized 
representative may issue commercial salvage permits for the purpose of 
purchasing and removing dead or hazardous trees . 

ill A request for a commercial salvage permit shall be considered 
on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest 
reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the 
forest reserve . 

ill The value of the raw material to be salvaged shall not exceed 
$10,000. The quantity to be salvaged shall be decided by the 
board or its authorized representative . 

( 2) The time of entry for salvaging shall not exceed fourteen 
days for permits with designated raw material value not in 
excess of $1,000, or thirt days for ermits with desi nated 



[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

! 

[No comparable existing rul e provis ion .] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 



raw material the value of which exceeds $1 , 000 but does not 
e xceed $10,000, except that the board or its authorized 
representative may extend this time for good cause . 

§13-104-2 Definitions. "Tree harvestingu means the removal of 
Live trees from a forest reserve . 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

FEES AND CHARGES 

§13-104-25 General statement. (a) This subchapter establishes 
1ser fees and charges for services, facilities, and activities fo~ 
:orestry and recreational purposes, where applicable under the 
1urisdiction of the division . 

(b)
ill 

The fees and charges are: 
Collected to offset the e xpenses of operating, maintaining, 
and managing the faci l ities and services; 

ill_ Fixed with due regard to the primary purposes of providing 
public outdoor recreational facilities a~d promoting an 
appreciation and connection.with Hawaii's forests; and 

ill Set by categories. 

(c) The acceptance of payment or billings shall not waive the 
1ature of trespass or ratify or permit illegal camping . 

§13-104-26 Payment. (a) Method of payment of fees and charges 
;hall . be online by credit card or by business check, cashier's check, 
1oney order, or cash at division branch offices or the administration 
>ffice . 

(b) All fees shall be paid in advance of issuance of a permit, 
!Xcept as specified by chapter 13-104. 

§13-104-27 Camping and cabin rental fees. The camping and cabin 
~ental fees shall be set according to the amounts in Schedule A -
~amping and Cabin Rental Fees - 12/28/16. 

Schedul e A 
Camping a nd Cabin Rental Fees 

12/28/16 

Maximum No. 
Campsites 

Maximum No . 
Persons per 

campsite 

Resident Fee 
($ /night/ 
campsite) 

Nonresident 
Fee ($/night/ 

campsite) 
Category 1 I Up to 5 I Up to 15 I $12* I $18** 
Unimproved campsite or improved campsite with minimal amenities 
(i . e . I trailside camping or a campsite with picnic table and shelter 
and clivus toilet) 

I $30/night per I $SO/night per
Category 2 1 Cabin Up to 6I I cabin *** cabin *** 
Improved campsite or small cabin that houses no more than 6 persons 

I $60/night per I $90/night per
Category 3 1 Cabin Up to 20I I cabin*** cabin *** 
Improved campsite or large cabin that houses 7 or more persons 



, 

[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

, 

[No comparable existing rule provision.] 

(No comparable existing rule provision .] 

[No comparable existing rule provision .] 



* A resident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $12 . Additional 
persons will cost $2 per person. 
** A nonresident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $18 . 
Additional persons will cost $3 per person . 
***Fee refl ects total cost for cabin rental regardless of number of 
persons staying overnight . 

§13- 104-28 Commercial u se permit fees. Commercial use permit 
:ees are listed in Schedule B - Commercial Use Permit Fees - 12/28/16 
tnd shall apply depending on the applicable commercial activity or 
tctivities; provided that the requested recreational facility is 
tpproved for commercial use by the forestry and wildlife manager . 

Schedule B 
Commercial Use Permit Fees 

12/28/16 
$10 
$5 

Base commercial use permit processing fee 
Price per pedestrian 

$7Price per non- motorized bicycle or horseback rider 
$25Price per motorized vehicle up to 5 people 

Price per motorized vehicle up to 8 people $50 
$75Price per motorized vehicle up to 12 people 

Price per motorized vehicle up to 15+ people $100 

Price per operator and/or passenger of aerial craft launching $5 
from and/or landing in a forest reserve 

$100 
$100 

Price per campsite, faci lity, or cabin per day 

Price per commercial film permit 
Price per item/activity (miscellaneous) $20 

§ 13-104-29 Kiln fees. Kiln fees are listed in Schedule C - Kiln 
'ees - 12/28/16 and .shall be paid no later than fifteen days after kiln 
:ervices are rendered. 

Schedul e C 
Kiln Fees 
12/28/16 

Unit Cost 
$0.70 each 
$0.60 each 

1001 - 1500 Board Feet $0.50 each 
1501 and up Board Feet 

Unit 
1 - 900 Board Feet 
901 - 1000 Boar d Feet 

$0.40 each 
§ 13-1 04 - 30 Permit processing f ees. The fee for the processing of 

tn access permit for scientific research purposes shall be $50. The fee 
:or p rocessing any other permit shall be $10. 

§13-104-31 Parking and e n trance fees . The fee for parking a 
re hicle may be assessed at $5 per vehicle, per day. 



[No comparable existing rul e provision.] 

[No comparable exi sting rule provision . ] 



§13-104- 32 Fee for copies of r u les . The fee per copy of these 
rules shall be 10 cents per page . No fee shall be charged for copies 
furnished to federal, state, or local governmental agencies . The fee 
may be waived in other instances at the d i scretion of the adminis t rator 
or the administrator's authorized representative when a waiver is in the 
public interest . 

§13- 104-33 Negotiable instruments; service charge. The service charge 
for any dishonored check, draft, certificate of deposit, or other 
negotiable instrument is $10. " 



IV. New Business 

B.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 

to HAR Title 12, Chapter 162, Food Safety 
Certification Costs Grant Program, 
promulgated by DoAg 



----------

PRE-PUBLIC HEARING 
SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT J,8e:_e,_g 

TO THE 
SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 

(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201 M-2) 

Department or Agency: _A_g_r_ic_u_lt_u_re_ ____ _ ___ ___---=------

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: _C_h_a_p_te_r_4_-_16_2______ ___ _ _ 

Chapter Name: Food Safety Certification Costs Grant Program 

Contact Person/Title: Jeri Kahana, Quality Assurance Division Administrator 

Phone Number: 832-0705 

E-mail Address: Jeri.M.Kahana@hawaii.gov Date: December 20, 2016 

To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS 
§92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general 
description of the subjects involved. 

Are the draft rules available on the Lieutenant Governor's Website pursuant to 

HRS §91-2.6? Yes� No[Z] 

If Yes, provide webpage address: ______________ ___ 

Please keep the proposed rules on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting. 

I. Rule Description: l ✓ I New D Repeal D Amendment D Compilation 

II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l ✓ I No D 
"Affect small business" is deff ned as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon 
a small business .. . that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a 

· small business, or is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion of a small 
business." (HRS §201 M-1) 

"Small business" is defined as a "for-profit enterprise consisting of fewer than one 
hundred full-time or part-time employees." (HRS §201 M-1) 
(If No, you do not need to submit this form .) 

Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance 
that does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements 
of the statute or ordinance? (e.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not 
afford the agency the discretion to consider _less restrictive alternatives.) (HRS 
§201M-2(d)) Yeso Nol✓ ! (If Yes, you do not need to submit this form.) 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
(HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l ✓ I {If Yes, you do not need to submit this 
form.) 

mailto:Jeri.M.Kahana@hawaii.gov


Pre-Public Hearing Sniall business Impact Statement 
Page 2 

* * * 
If the proposed rule(s) affect small business and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 

1. Description of the small businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the 
costs of, or directly benefit from the proposed rules, that are required to comply 
with the proposed rules, and how they may be adversely affected. 

The proposed rules is a grant program to provide farmers with assistance pay for costs 
associated with the compliance with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration's (FDA) 
Food Safety Modernization Act (FSMA). 

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, 
and indirect costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, 
labor, professional services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with 
compliance. 

There are no fees or fines. The costs for farmers may vary depending on their 
present infrastructure, training, and other food safety practices. 

If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 

a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. 

None 

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 

None 

c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 

None 

d. Criteria used to determine the amount of the fee or fine. 

None 

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies 
directly affected, including the estimated total amount the agency expects to 
collect from any additionally imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys 
will be used. 

The costs to the agency will be personnel costs to administer the grant money. 



Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement 
Page 3 

4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small 
business such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting 
requirements, less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, 
performance rather than design standards, exemption, or other mitigating . 
techniques. 

This program will benefit small business with monetary assistance to comply with a 
federal requirement. 

5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be 
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 

None. 

6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small 
businesses. 

None. 

7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed 
rules. 

The agency has conducted outreach training with farmers on food safety practices. 

a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the 
recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If 
no, why not. 

No recommendations were provided. Criteria is based on the necessary requirements 
in meeting the federal rule. 

8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those 
mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with 
an explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 

We are not aware of any other similar state programs. 



Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement 
Page 4 

If yes, please provide information comparing the costs and benefits of the 
proposed rules to the costs and benefits of the comparable federal, state, or 
county law, including the following: 

a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 

Federal law and most other state's programs do not have a limit on cultivated acres. Limiting the acreage 
is necessary for the department at this time given the pilot program nature of the project, and the lack of 
personnel available to conduct sampling. Hawaii's program will have one inspector, Colorado, for 
example, has 13 inspectors to conduct sampling. 

b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information 
about the purposes and applicability of the law. 

c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or 
county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and 
administration. 

See "a." 

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with 
the costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, 
or county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any 
additional fees from the proposed rule will be used. 

The benefit to the state is increased revenue of $250 for each additional 10 acres, and a manageable 
program given current resources. Additional fees will go to the special fund to defray the 
administrative costs of the program. The financial benefit of deferring to the no acreage limit of federal 
and other state's laws, is that more growers may apply, but that is an unknown benefit. 

e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the 
proposed ru le with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or 
county law. 

Small businesses will have to pay $250 for each additional 10 acres they wish to 
cultivate. Most prospective small businesses surveyed did not wish to grow more 
than 10 acres of industrial hemp, so this rule will effect comparatively few growers. 

* ** 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DBEDT 
Phone: (808) 586-2594 

Email: sbrrb@dbedt.hawaii.gov 
Website: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 

This Statement may be found on the 
SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/ 

sbrrb/small-business-impact-statements-pre
and-post-public-hearing 

http:http://dbedt.hawaii.gov
http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb
mailto:sbrrb@dbedt.hawaii.gov


·.~ 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRI CULTURE 

Adoption of Chapter 4-162 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

<Date of Adoption> 

1 . Chapter 4-162 , Hawaii Administrative Rules , 
entitled "FOOD SAFETY CERTIFICATION COSTS GRANT 
PROGRAM", is adopted to read as follows : 

1 



HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 4 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

SUBTITLE 7 

QUALITY ASSURANCE DIVISION 

CHAPTER 162 

FOOD SAFETY CERTIFICATION COSTS GRANT PROGRAM 

§4-162- 1 Definitions 
§4-162-2 Purpose of program 
§4-162-3 Eligibil ity requirements 
§4- 162- 4 Eligible costs 
§4-162-5 Ineligible costs 
§4-162-6 Applications 
§4-162- 7 Invoicing 
§4-162-8 Grant amounts 

§ 4-162-1 Definitions. As used in this chapter : 
"Department" means the department of agriculture . 
"Farming or ranching" means operations that grow, 

harvest , and pack fresh produce; or grow, harvest, 
pack, and hold fresh produce; or grow, harvest, 
manufacture and hold livestock feed for commercial 
sale purposes . 

"FDA" means the federal Food a nd Drug 
Administration . 

"FDA regulations" means title 21 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations, parts 112, 112, 117, and 507. 

"FSMA" means the FDA Food Safety Modernization 
Act (P.L. 111-353). 

"Program" means the Hawaii food safety 
certification costs grant program. 

"HRS" means the Hawaii Revised Statutes . 

2 



"Good agricultural practices and good handling 
practices audits" means audits performed by a third 
party government agency or private company to verify 
that fruits and vegetables are produced, packed, 
handled, and stored as safely as possible to minimize 
risks of microbial food safety hazards . 

"Produce Safety Alliance" means the collaboration 
between Cornell University, the FDA, and t he USDA to 
prepare fresh produce growers to meet the regulatory 
requirements included in the FSMA' s Produce Safety 
Rule . 

"Food Safety Preventive Controls Al l iance" means 
the collaboration between Illinois Institute of 
Technology and the FDA to h elp industry comply with 
the FSMA preve ntive controls rules for human and 
animal food. 

"State" means the State of Hawaii . 
"State food safet y laws" means chapter 321, 

Hawaii Revised Statutes, and chapter 1 1-50 , Hawaii 
Administrative Rul es. 

"USDA" mea ns the United States Department of 
Agriculture . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS 
§141-12 . 5) (Imp : HRS §141- 12.5) 

§ 4-162-2 Purpose of program. The purpose of the 
Hawaii food safety certification costs grant program 
is to provide grants to assist farmers or ranchers in 
meeting the costs of complying with the FSMA, FDA 
regul ations , and state food safe ty laws. 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp: 
HRS §141-12 . 5) 

§ 4-162-3 Eligibility requirements . (a) To be 
eligible for a food safety certification costs grant, 
an applicant shall: 

(1) Be engaged in farming o r ranching in the 
State as defined in this chapter; and 

(2) Be : 
(A) An individua l person residing in the 

State; 

3 



( B) An institution of h i gher education i n 
the State; or 

( C) A business entity having its principal 
place of business in the State with 
employees for whom the business is 
legally requi red to provide empl oyee 
benefits . 

[Eff (Auth : HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp: 
HRS §141-12.5) 

§4-162-4 Eligible costs. (a) Grants s hall be 
awarded to reimburse costs i ncurred for practices 
necessary for compliance with the FSMA, FDA 
regulations , or state food safety laws. 

(b) Eligible costs may incl ude : 
(1) Training 

(A) Training recogni zed by the FDA to be 
equi valent to the Produce Safety 
Alliance ' s standardi zed curricul um; 

(B) Training recognized by the FDA to be 
equi valent to the Food Safety 
Preventive Control Alliance ' s 
standardized curriculum; 

(C) .Training recognized by t h e FDA to 
comply with the hazard analysis and 
risk-based preventi ve control s for 
human foods rule ; 

(D) Tra ining recognized by t h e FDA to 
comply with the hazard analysis and 
ris k-base d preventive controls for 
ani mal foods rule; and 

(E) Preventive controls systems trai ning 
emphasizing prevention of hazards 
before they occur, such as hazard 
analysis critical control point, or 
hazard analysis and risk-based 
preventive controls ; 

(2 ) Water systems, sanitizer treatment supplies, 
and monitoring meters ; 

(3) Microbial test ing of water, raw p r oduce, or 
facility ; 

4 



(4) Personal hygiene equipment and supplies, 
including: 
(A) Fixed or portable restroom, but not 

including septic systems or sewer 
connections; 

(B) Rental of portable restroom including 
cleaning and disposal of waste; 

(C) Hand washing sinks ; 
(D) Hand saniti zer and sani tizing stati ons ; 
(E) Worker protection clothing; and 
(F) First aid kits; 

(5) Harvest and packing supplies to reduce food 
safety risks; 

(6) Costs associated with food and safety 
compliance in the production of livestock 
feed for resale, including forage grasses,

I 

hay , grains ; 
(8) Wildlife fencing and pest deterrents and 

traps; 
(9) Good agricultural practices and good 

handling practices audit costs with a 
passing score; 

(10) General clean-up of farm and removal of 
hazardous debris; 

(11) Traceability software, tools, and supplies ; 
(13) Food grade sanitizing sol utions and 

detergents ; and 
(15) Costs of other pract ices necessary for 

compliance with the FSMA, FDA regulations, 
or state food safety laws . 

(c) Only costs that were incurred within five 
years prior to the time the application for the grant 
is received by the department shall be eligible for 
reimbursement. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS 
§141-12 . 5) . (Imp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 

§ 4- 162-5 Ineligible costs . Costs t hat are not 
eligible for reimbursement include but are not limited 
to : 

5 



(1) Costs that are not directly related to, and 
necessary for, complia_nce with the FSMA, FDA 
regulations , or state food safety laws ; 

(2) Costs related to the general operation of 
the applicant's business; 

(3) Wages, compensation, or benefits for the 
applicant's employees; 

(4) Costs of travel, entertainment, or lobbying 
activities; 

(5) Costs of vehicles and related vehicle 
expenses; 

(6) Costs for which the applicant already has 
been or will be reimbursed; 

(7) Insurance costs; and 
(8) Costs incurred more than five years prior to 

the time the applicat ion for grant is 
received by the department. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §1 41-12. 5) 
(Imp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 

§4-162-6 Applications. (a) Each applicant for 
a food safety certification costs grant shall submit a 
signed, complete, accurate , and legible application, 
on a form provided by the depar tment, and shall 
include the following: 

(1) The appl i cant ' s name, and business name if 
different, mailing address, farm or ranch's 
physical address, phone number, and if 
applicable, electronic mail address; 

(2) If the applicant is an individual or 
partnership, the date of birth of the 
individual or partners; 

(3) Proof of compliance with the State's 
business registration, tax, and labor laws; 

(4) A photocopy of the appl icant ' s general 
excise tax license; 

(5) A completed W- 9 tax information form signed 
by the applicant; 

(6) Evidence of the implementation of farm food 
safety plan and practices, including 
photographs of equipment and their use; 

6 



(7) Proof of third party audit of good 
agricultural practices or good handling 
practices; and 

(8) The applicant's agricultural operation 
details, including but not limited to: 
(A) Acreage in production; 
(B) Crops produced; 
(C) Agricultural production experience; 
(D) Food safety plan information; 
(E) Farm size; 
(F) Good agricultural practices 

certifications, i f any; 
(G) Applicable income categories, as 

specified by the FSMA; and 
(b) The application shall also include 

applicant ' s acknowledgment and agr eement to the 
following terms 'and conditions : 

(1) The applicant has the legal authority to 
authorize , and by submitting an application 
does authorize, the department to enter the 
applicant ' s place of business at reasonable 
times to inspect records , facilities , and 
the premises either in the processing of the 
application or in the administration of the 
grant; 

(2) The applicant certifies that all information 
and documents submitted in support of the 
application are correct and complete to the 
best of the applicant's knowledge; 

(3) The appl i cant has all licenses, permits, and 
other approvals required by federal, state, 
or county governmental entities to conduct 
its operations and implement the practices 
for which the grant is intended; 

(4) The applicant shall comply with all 
applicable federal and state laws 
prohibiting discrimination against any 
person on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, religion, creed, sex, age, sexual 
orientation, or disability; and 

(5) The appl i cant shall allow the State full 
access to its records, files, and other 

7 



related documents for the purpose of 
measuring t h e effectiveness , and ensuri ng 
the proper expenditures , of the grant . 

(c) The departmen t may requir e additional 
documentation to verify compliance with thi s chapter . 
Any incomplete application for a grant shall be 
denied . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §141-12 . 5) 
(Imp : HRS §141-12.5) 

§ 4-162- 7 Invoicing. (a) All applications shall 
be accompanied by invoices or receipts showing 
eligibl e costs incurred for practices necessary for 
compliance wit h the FSMA, FDA regulations , or state . 
food safety laws . 

(b) Invoi ces and receipts shall be original and 
shall include : 

(1) The date of purchase, the vendor ' s name, 
mailing address , and phone number; 

(2) An itemization of each good or service ; and 
(3) Ver i fication of payment by the applicant . 
(c) The department may require additional 

documentation to verify compliance with this chapter. 
[Eff J (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp: 

HRS §141-12.5) 

§ 4-162-8 Grant amounts. (a) Al l grants are 
subject to available funding. 

(b) Grant awards shall be made on a 
reimbursement, pro-rata basis out of the funds 
avai l able for food safety certification costs grants . 

(c) The maximum grant amount to any one 
applicant in a fiscal year shall not exceed $5 , 000. 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS § 1 41- 12.5) ( I mp: 
HRS §141-12 . 5) 

8 



2. The adoption of chapter 4-162, Hawaii 
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after 
filing with the Offi ce of the Lieutenant Governor . 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 
rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to t he 
requirements of section 91-4. 1 , Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, which were adopted on Mont h xx, xxxx, and 
filed with Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 

SCOTT E. ENRIGHT 
Chairperson 
Board of Agriculture 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Deputy Attorne y General 

9 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

111. Section-Specific Changes 

Subchapter 1 Purpose 
Subchapter 1 (Purpose) creates a distinct subchapter for the section setting forth the purpose of 
chapter 11-200.1, HAR. Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new 
subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for chapter 11-200. 1, HAR providing a clear 
outline of the contents of the chapter through the subchapter headings. 

§ 11-200.1 -1 Purpose 

Section 11-200.1-1 expresses the purpose of chapter 11-200.1 , HAR. It consolidates the policy 
statements about conducting EISs into this section and reframes the policy statements to be 
about the environmental review process as a whole. Section 11-200-1, HAR (1996) was a 
standalone paragraph. It is now numbered and combines other sections from chapter 11-200, 
HAR (1996) addressing the purpose of EAs and EISs. Subsection (a) of 11 -200.1-1 was 
formerly section 11 -200-1, HAR ( 1996). 

Subsection (b) derives from 11 -200-14, HAR (1996), "General Provisions", which is the first 
section in subchapter 7, "Preparation of Draft & Environmental Impact Statements" under the 
1996 Rules. It is modified to apply to both EAs and EISs. The subsection emphasizes that EAs 
and EISs should be prepared at the earliest practicable time and the spirit in which the 
documents should be prepared. It emphasizes that the purpose of preparing the documents is 
to enlighten decision-makers about any environmental consequences, and the addition "prior to 
decision-making" emphasizes the timing of when an EA or EIS should be prepared. EAs and 
EISs are intended to inform decision-makers prior to decision-making, therefore an after-the-fact 
EA or EIS would be inappropriate. 

Subsection (c) combines language from section 11-200-19, HAR (1996) regarding 
Environmental Impact Statement Style to make it applicable to both agencies and applicants 
and to all environmental review documents. Applicants are authorized to prepare both the EA 
and EIS. The language is modified to be grammatically correct and increase readability. 

Paragraph (c)(3) is new language regarding consultation. Council members and numerous 
commenters raised concerns that the process of "consultation" had in some cases become a 
mere formality, without a true, open, and mutual dialogue occurring between action proponents 
and members of the public. Paragraph (c)(3) provides the spirit in which consultation should be 
conducted with both agencies and members of the public. 

Several housekeeping changes are made consist with the discussion above in the General 
Changes section. In addition, the terms "environmental impact statement" and "environmental 
assessment" are introduced and the acronyms "EIS" and "EA" provided. The syntax of the 
sentences is also revised to improve readability as appropriate. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
25 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 
Subchapter 2 (Definitions and Terminology) creates a distinct subchapter for the section setting 
forth definitions and terminology used in chapter 11-200.1, HAR. Although this subchapter 
contains only one section, creating a new subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for 
chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of the Chapter through the . 
subchapter headings. 

§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 

Section 11-200.1-2 Definitions and Terminology was formerly section 11-200-2, HAR (1996). It 
sets forth the definitions and terms used in chapter 11-200.1, HAR. New language in the 
Proposed Rules direct agencies to use their own statutes anp rules when a term is not defined 
in this chapter or in chapter 343, HRS. Several housekeeping changes are made, including 
arranging definitions into alphabetical order based on revisions to their wording. Various 
definitions are also amended to remove process steps, to clarify their meaning, or to make them 
more consistent with other proposed changes throughout the Proposed Rules. 

The Proposed Rules propose to modify and amend the following definitions in the following 
ways: 

The definition for "acceptance" is modified to remove redundant language. The modifications 
also remove process steps and redirect the reader to the appropriate section for determining 
those steps. 

The definition for "accepting authority" is modified by removing the word "final" before "official 
who, or agency that" because the word "final" did not contribute additional meaning to the 
definition. The 1996 Rules provided only that the accepting authority "determines the 
acceptability of the EIS document". The modified definition replaces that language and clarifies 
that the role of the accepting authority is to determine both that a final EIS is required to be filed 
pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, and that the final EIS fulfills the definitions and requirements of 
an EIS. It reflects changes to chapter 343, HRS in 2012 authorizing the direct preparation of an 
EIS without first preparing an EA. 

The definition "addendum" is modified to incorporate housekeeping changes and to include that 
an "applicant" also may attach an addendum to a draft EA or EIS. 

The definition "approval" is modified to remove the word "actual" from the phrase "prior to the 
actual implementatio·n of the action" because "actual" was an unnecessary adjective. The 
definitions of "discretionary consent" and "ministerial consent" that were embedded in the 1996 
definition of "approval" have been removed and made into a standalone definition under 
"discretionary consent". 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
26 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

The definition "approving agency" is modified to remove the word "actual" from the phase "prior 
to the actual implementation of the action" because "actual" was an unnecessary adjective. T he 
word "applicant" was added before the word "action" because an approving agency is only 
necessary within the environmental review context for applicants. Chapter 343, HRS only 
applies to applicants when an applicant action needs a discretionary consent (an approval) to 
proceed and contains a trigger under section 343-5, HRS. 

The definition "cumulative impact" is slightly modified for housekeeping purposes ("which" to 
"that"). 

The definitions of "discretionary consent" and "ministerial consent" are removed from the 1996 
definition of "approval" and made into a standalone, combined definition (discretionary consent 
and ministerial consent). The definition of "discretionary consent" is consistent with both 
chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules language. The definition of "ministerial consent" is 
consistent with the 1996 Rules language. It is not a defined term in chapter 343, HRS. 

The definition "draft environmental assessment" is modified for housekeeping purposes, and 
also to use the term "finding of no significant impact" in place of "a negative declaration 
determination". 

The definition of "effects" and "impacts" is slightly modified for housekeeping purposes 
(changing "which" to "that"), and to incorporate the language "immediate or delayed" that is part 
of the 1996 Rules definition of "environmental impact", which is proposed to be deleted due to 
redundancy. 

The definition of "EIS preparation notice" re-orders the words "EIS preparation notice" and 
"preparation notice", and adds in the acronym "EISPN" because "EISPN" and "EIS preparation 
notice" are used most frequently throughout the rules. The definition is accord ingly put in 
alphabetical order. The definition is updated to incorporate the direct-to-EIS route, which, 
pursuant to section 343-5(e), HRS, begins with an EISPN. Note that section 343-5(e), HRS, 
only allows an agency to use its judgment and experience to determine whether an agency or 
applicant may begin with an EISPN. An applicant must consult with an agency first to receive 
this authorization. Housekeeping changes are also included. 

The definition of "EIS public scoping meeting" is added. An EIS public scoping meeting is a new 
requirement as part of the EIS preparation process and is outlined in section 11-200.1-23. 

The definition of "environment" is modified to include health, in order for it to correspond with the 
definition of "effects" or "impacts" under both chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules. It is also 
modified to include "cultural", as required by Act 50 Session Laws Hawaii of 2000. 

The definition of "environmental assessment" is modified to clarify that an EA needs to provide 
sufficient evidence to make a significance determination as opposed to merely making that 
assertion, or, on the opposite end of the spectrum, providing an unduly long analysis. The 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
27 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

statutory and 1996 Rules provide only that an EA is a written evaluation "to determine whether 
an action has a significant environmental effect". The proposed definition expands it to "a 
written evaluation that serves to provide sufficient evidence and analysis to determine whether 

an action may have a s ignificant effect". 

The definition of "environmental impact" is deleted because it was unnecessary with both 
"impact" and "environment" already included as defined terms. The words "immediate or 

delayed" have been incorporated into the definition of "effect" or "impacts". 

The definition of "environmental impact statement" is modified with housekeeping changes. 

The definition of "exempt classes of action" is deleted because the concept of "classes of action" 
is removed in subchapter 8A. Subchapter 8A uses the term "general types" of action that may 

be exempted in order to be more cot1sistent with chapter 343, HRS. 

The definition of "exemption list" is added because it is a frequently used term in subchapter 8A. 

The definition of "exemption notice" is modified to reflect the updates to the exemption process 
under subchapter 8A. It recognizes that an exemption notice may be prepared for both agency 
and applicant actions. Further, it removes the reference that the notice be kept on file because 
in some circumstances a notice may be required to be published in the bulletin. 

The definition of "final environmental assessment" is modified to reflect that chapter 343, HRS, 
now provides for a direct-to-EIS pathway when, based on an agency's judgment and 
experience, the agency concludes that the proposed action may have a significant effect on the 
environment. The agency may then directly proceed to an EIS, or in the case of an applicant, 

may authorize an applicant to proceed directly to the preparation of an EIS. For both proposing 
agencies and applicants, the EIS preparation begins with an EISPN. Because the direct-to-EIS 

pathway exists, it is less likely that an agency will submit or require the applicant to submit a 
final EA without the preparation of a draft EA. The line referring to this process has therefore 

been removed. The definition has also been modified to include housekeeping changes. 

The definition of "finding of no significant impact" removes the previous reference to "negative 
declaration" and reorders the definition alphabetically. The acronym FONSI is used most 
frequently in the Proposed Rules and in practice. 

The definition of "impacts" is added to red irect the reader to "effects". "Impacts" and "effects" are 
used synonymously throughout the Proposed Rules. 

The definition of "National Environmental Policy Act" is slightly modified to include housekeeping 
changes, including adding iri the acronym "NEPA". 

The definition of "negative declaration" is deleted and moved alphabetically under "finding of no 
significant impact". 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
28 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

The definition of "office" includes minor housekeeping changes. 

The definition of "periodic bulletin" is modified to include "bu lletin" as an abbreviated reference 
to the "periodic bulletin". 

The definition of "preparation notice" is deleted and moved under "Environmental Impact 
Statement Preparation Notice" or "EISPN". The term EISPN is used more frequently throughout 
the Proposed Rules. 

The definition of "primary impact" is modified slightly to incorporate housekeeping changes. 

The definition of "project' is added to distinguish projects and programs from one another and to 
facilitate discussion of a programmatic approach to environmental review. The proposed 
definition is aligned with but expands upon the definition set forth by the Supreme Court of 
Hawaii in Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P .3d 277, 290 (Haw. 
2017). See the section on "Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program" for 
additional details. 

The definition of "program" is added to distinguish projects and programs from one another and 
to facilitate discussion of a programmatic approach to environmental review. The proposed 
definition is aligned with but significantly expands upon the definition set forth by the Supreme 
Court of Hawaii in Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 290 
(Haw. 2017). See the section on "Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and 
Program" for additional details. 

A definition of "proposing agency" is added because the term is used frequently throughout both 
the 1996 Rules and the Proposed Rules, but was not previously defined. 

The definition of "secondary impact", "secondary effect", "indirect impact" or "indirect effect" is 
modified to cofrect grammar and readability. 

The definition for "significant effect" or "significant impact" is amended according to Act 50 of the 
2000 legislative session, which added "cultural practices of the community and State" to the 
definition of "significant effect" in chapter 343, HRS. 

The definition of "supplemental EIS" is amended to refer to an "updated" instead of an 
"additional" EIS. 

The definition of "trigger" is added to refer to any use or activity listed in section 343-S(a) HRS. 
The 1996 Rules listed out what were commonly referred to as the "triggers" from section 343-
S(a), HRS, which determine whether an action requires chapter 343, HRS environmental 
review. The Proposed Rules remove the list and refer to the "triggers" as establishing whether 
an action requires environmental review. 

vo .4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
29 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
Subchapter 3 (Computation of Time) creates a distinct subchapter standardizing the 
computation.of time for all time periods prescribed by this chapter and chapter 343, HRS. 
Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new subchapter is in line with 
creating a new structure for chapter 11-200.1 , HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of 
the chapter through the subchapter headings. 

§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 

Section 11-200.1-3 (Computation of Time) is a new section. It clarifies and standardizes how 
days should be counted when there are time requirements within the Proposed Rules. The 
language is drawn from the Environmental Council Rules of Practice and Procedure, specifically 
section 11-201-14, HAR (1985), to ensure that the computation of time for all Council-related 
business is consistent. 

This new section is intended to remove confusion about when comment periods begin and end. 
Section 343-5, HRS sets the comment periods for EAs as 30 days and for EISs as 45 days from 
the publication date. The section clarifies that for counting purposes, the publication date is day 
zero and the last day of the period Is included. Holidays and weekends (see HRS § 1-29 and 
HRS§ 8-1) are counted when counting to 30 or 45. However, when the last day falls on a state 
holiday or non-working day, the deadline is the next working day. 

For example, the OEQC publishes the periodic bulletin on April 8, 2018, whic_h is a Sunday. For 
a draft EA published on that date, April 8 is counted as zero. Holidays and weekends are 
included in counting to 30 days, but if the deadline falls on a state holiday or non-working day, 
the deadline is the next working day. In this example, the comment period deadline is Tuesday, 
May 8, 2018. 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
30 

http:computation.of


Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic 
Bulletin 
Subchapter 4 (Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin) (The Environmental Notice) 
creates a distinct subchapter setting forth information about the periodic bulletin and 
requirements for filing submittals to OEQC for publication in the periodic bulletin. This 
subchapter reorg anizes the previous periodic bulletin subchapter from the 1996 Rules into three 
sections. 

Section 200.1-4 addresses the purpose of the periodic bulletin and requirements for its 
publication. Section 200.1-5 establishes procedures for filing submittals for publication and 
consolidates previous language in various sections of the 1996 Rules regarding filing 
requirements into one place. Section 200.1-6 includes new language addressing occasions 
when an agency or applicant seeks to publish the same notice, document, or determination that 
it has published before and addresses the associated comment periods that arise when 
republication occurs. 

§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 

Section 11-200.1-4 (Periodic Bulletin) sets forth the publication requirements for the periodic 
bulletin. This section derives from sections 11-200-3, 11 .2, 21, and 27 of the 1996 Rules. Jhe 
previous Section 11-200-3, HAR (1996) has been divided into two sections in the Proposed 
Rules, including this section and one specific to filing (§ 11-200.1-5). 

This section explicitly lists the types of notices, documents, and determinations published in the 
periodic bulletin, pursuant to chapter 343, HRS. The Proposed Rules require publishing lists of 
exempted actions, which the 1996 Rules do not require. This section also acknowledges that 
other statutes and rules (e.g., HAR § 13-222-12) have requirements for publication in the 
bulletin, such as shoreline certifications. 

This section makes explicit that the OEQC may publish additional items in the bulletin on a time 
available basis as well as a space available hasis. Given that the process is moving to a digital 
format, space is a less of a concern. However, the Proposed Rules reduce the submittal 
deadline from eight days to four days (see section 5 for more) so the capacity of the OEQC at 
any given point (i.e., staffing f luctuations) may limit the ability of the OEQC to include non
mandatory material in the bulletin. 

This section also explicitly allows for the republication of any chapter 343, HRS notices, 
documents or determinations, and for notices of their withdrawal in accordance with other 
applicable requirements of the chapter. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
31 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 

This is a new section synthesizing language from multiple sections of the 1996 Rules (Sections 
3, 9, 10, ·11.1, 11 .2, 20 and 23). In the 1996 Rules, the filing requirements are integrated into 
content or process steps and require numerous cross-references. This section consol idates 
and standardizes the filing requirements for each type of submittal document or determination 
into one section, making it easy to know where to look, who is responsible for the submittal, and 
to reference one section. 

This section also captures notices, documents, and determinations required under chapter 343, 
HRS as well as requirements for publication pursuant to other statutes or administrative rules 
(e.g., HAR § 13-222-12 for shoreline applications). 

Other changes of note include: decreasing the submission deadline from eight days to four 
business days as the OEQC no longer needs eight days to prepare the periodic bulletin; 
clarifying that the OEQC may ask for geographic data such as that included in a standard 
geographic information systems file; clarifying that the OEQC may require identification of the 
specific approval requiring an applicant to undertake environmental review; and adding 
language regarding the submission of paper copies to the State Library. 

This section consolidates language on withdrawal from environmental review and makes explicit 
that both documents and determinations can be withdrawn for any level of review. 

The Proposed Rules require paper copies in only two circumstances, both related to the State 
Library. In line with the State Library's archival requirements, the Proposed Rules require 
submission of one paper copy of any draft or final EA or EIS to be deposited with the State 
Library Document Center. The second is that a paper copy of a draft EA, EISPN, or draft EIS 
must be deposited in the local library nearest to the proposed action. This is so that those living 
nearest to the proposed impacts and have limited electronic access (or capability) are still able 
to participate in the environmental review process at the scoping and draft phases. 

For EISs, section 18 includes a requirement to record oral comments at the publ ic scoping 
meeting. This requirement is incorporated into this section as part of the submittal requirement 
for a draft EIS. It is incumbent upon the preparer of the draft EIS to ensure that one 
unaltered/unedited copy of the recording of the oral comments is submitted to the OEQC. 
Therefore, it is recommended that backup methods for recording oral comments are 
implemented in the event of file corruption. Standard audio quality means all oral comments 
can be clearly heard. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
32 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11 -200.1-6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and 
Determinations 

This is a new section addressing the practice of republication of chapter 343 notices, 
documents, and determinations. Chapter 343, HRS is silent on whether comment periods may 
be extended. In practice, proposing agencies, applicants, and approving agencies have sought 
to extend comment periods. When this occurs outside of the standard time period for public 
comment or outside of the notification process through the periodic bulletin, inconsistencies 
arise in the process creating questions of public notification and, in some cases, standing. To 
end inconsistently applied "extended comment periods," this section states that the standard 
filing, comment, and response requirements of chapter 343, HRS apply each time something is 
published. 

This section also provides that any agency or applicant that filed a chapter 343 notice, 
document, or determination may withdraw and republish a notice, document, or determination 
that has not been changed. Other submittals to the OEQC required by council rules, statute 
other than chapter 343, HRS, or an agency's administrative rules other than this chapter, may 
also be withdrawn and republished, but must be done in accordance with that statute or those 
rules. There is no chapter 343, r!RS obligation to publish an unchanged document again; 
however, a proposing or approving agency's own statutes, rules, or procedures may require or 
call for it. 

Lastly, this section clarifies when a public comment period is required with the republication of a 
chapter 343, HRS notice, document, or determination and how comments received in two or 
more comment periods for an unamended but republished notice, document, or determination 
are to be handled. The requirement to address comments in all comment periods resulting from 
multiple publications is to reduce the possibility of repeated publications to achieve fewer 
comments. Comments received outside of the multiple comment periods are not required to be 
addressed, but all comments received within multiple comment periods must be addressed. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
33 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
Subchapter 5 (Responsibilities) creates a distinct subchapter identifying the decision-making 
authority when agencies and applicants undergo chapter 343, HRS environmental review in 
various circumstances. Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new 
subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for chapter 11 -200.1, HAR providing a clear 
outline of the contents of the Chapter through the subchapter headings. 

§ 11-200.1 -7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting 
Authority 
This section was previously section 11-200-4, HAR (1996). All language in this section comes 
from sections 11-200-3, -4, and -23, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. 

This section clarifies a number of points in the 1996 Rules: 

State or County Lands and Funds Trigger. Language and cases where a proposed action has 
mixed state and county lands or funds or both lands and funds. 

Approving Agency & Accepting Authority for Applicants. Provides that, in the case of applicants, 
the approving agency for environmental review compliance is also the accepting authority. 
Section 343-S(e), HRS states that for applicants "the agency initially receiving and agreeing to 
process the request for approval shall require the applicant to prepare an [EA] of the proposed 
action," which is the approving agency. It further states that the "authority to accept a final 
statement shall rest with the agency initially receiving and agreeing to process the request for 
approval." The agency with the authority to accept a final statement is the accepting authority, 
which is the agency initially receiving and agreeing to process the request for approval. This 
section adds language for applicants undertaking an EA. 

Selection of Accepting Authority: Guidance to agencies on how to select the most appropriate 
accepting authority. This section instructs agencies and the OEQC to consider which agency 
has the most land or funds involved in an action when deciding which agency will be 
responsible for complying with chapter 343, HRS. Specifically, the changes to subsections (c) 
and (d) of this section provide a process for agencies to decide amongst themselves which 
agency shall be responsible for complying with chapter 343, HRS when two or more agencies 
are involved in an action. A list of considerations is provided for the agencies to make their 
decision, including a new consideration for which agency may have the most lands or funds 
involved in a proposed action. This section is also now divided into two subsections, providing 
that if agencies cannot make a decision, the OEQC shall make a decision for the agencies 
using the same considerations listed in subsection (c). This section also clarifies that the OEQC 
may not serve as the accepting authority but may make recommendations on the applicability of 
the Proposed Rules to an agency or applicant. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
34 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 6 Applicability 
Subchapter 6 (Applicability) creates a distinct subchapter setting forth procedures for 
determining whether an activity requires chapter 343, HRS environmental review. This 

subchapter reorgan izes the previous applicability subchapter from the 1996 Rules to show the 
chronological steps that a proposing or an approving agency will follow when making this 
determination. 

Section 11 -200.1-9 addresses applicability of chapter 343, HRS environmental review with 

regard to agency actions and in particular, the use of state or county lands or funds trigger, and 

emergency actions. Section 11-200.1 -10 addresses applicability with regard to applicant 

actions and incorporates section 343-5.5, HRS. Section 11-200.1-11 addresses the treatment 

of multiple or phased actions. 

§ 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 

Formerly section 11-200-5, HAR (1996). All language in this section comes from section 11-
200-5, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This section includes language in response to 

Umberger v. Department of Land and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277 (Haw. 2017) ("For an 
activity to be subject to HEPA environmental review, the second requirement is that it must fall 

within at least one category of land uses or administrative acts (known as "triggers", now 

defined as a term in the Proposed Rules) enumerated in section 343-5(a), HRS (2010)"). 

This section specifically: 

Lists the section 343-5, HRS triggers that necessitate environmental review under chapter 343, 
HRS. 

Agricultural Tourism: Addresses exemptions for agricultural tourism (HRS § 343-5(a)(1 )). 

Emergency Actions: Addresses situations where an agency must respond to an emerg ency 

and that response would fall within the scope of chapter 343, HRS, but the nature of the 

emergency requires immediate response. For example, during a forest fire, an emergency 

firebreak may need to be cut. In the case of King T ides, an issue raised by one commenter , it 
would not extend to reconstruction of homes after the emergency has passed, but may apply to 

immediate measures taken to address the situation . The Proposed Rules emphasize that an 

agency must take immediate action to address the emergency in order for the exemption to 

apply. The agency has a responsibility to document the exemption when it undertakes an 
emergency action, whether an emergency proclamation has been made or not, in case a 

question arises about the lack of an assessment. That documentation, like other non-publis hed 

exemptions, must be available upon public request and must be included in the list of 

exemptions required to be routinely filed with and published by OEQC pursuant to Section 11-
200.1-17(d). The language also ensures that the exclusions from chapter 343, HRS, are related 

to the declared emergency by requiring substantial commencement of the action within sixty 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
35 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

days of the emergency proclamation. (Under chapter 127A-14(d), HRS, a state of emergency 
automatically terminates after sixty days.) The Council notes that supplemental emergency 
proclamations would re-start the sixty-day count and extend the time that an action has to reach 
substantial commencement. This provision does not explicitly reference the possibility for 
extension because the extension is provided for under section 127A-14(d) and the Council does 
not have rulemaking authority under chapter 127A, HRS. The term "substantially commenced" 
is not defined here because the intent is to provide direction to agencies to timely implement the 
action but not define the standard for all agencies in all situations. 

§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant 
Actions 

Formerly section 11-200-6, HAR (1996), this section has been reorganized and is intended to 
clarify that there are two essential elements necessitating chapter 343, HRS review for applicant 
actions: a discretionary consent and a statutory trigger under section 343-5, HRS. This section 
further recognizes that an applicant action may require multiple approvals. These should be 
considered as part of the whole action and not as creating discrete actions. By incorporating 
reference to section 343-5(a), HRS in proposed subsection (a)(2), much of what was included in 
section 1_1-200-6(b), HAR (1996) becomes unnecessary and was thus removed. In the event 
that section 345-5(a), HRS is amended, the incorporation of the statutory triggers by reference 
allows the rules to remain aligned with section 345-5(a), HRS without also requiring an 
amendment to the rules. This helps to ensure consistency between the rules and the statute 
over time. 

This section explicitly includes an exception to the general requirements of chapter 343, HRS 
for agricultural tourism as provided under section 343-5(a)(1 ), HRS and chapter 205, HRS 
(which allow the counties to require an EA under chapter 343, HRS for any agricultural tourism 
use and activity in certain circumstances). 

Additionally, this section includes the exclusion to chapter 343, HRS environmental review as 
provided for in section 343-5.5, HRS. T hat provision was added to chapter 343, HRS throug h 
the 2012 legislative amendments (L 201 2, c 312 § 1). 

This section includes definitions of four terms that'apply only to subsection (b) of this section 11-
200.1 -1 0: "discretionary consent", "infrastructure", "primary action", and "secondary action". 

§ 11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Act'ions 

The language in this section comes from section 11-200-7, HAR (1996). The revised language 
replaces "project" with "action". This section is meant to assist with clarifying the scope of an 
action in order to reduce the potential for segmentation. This section also clarifies that mult iple 
or phased actions may be reviewed in an EA or EIS and do not necessarily require an EA prior 
to preparing an EIS. 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
36 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11-200.1-11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Findings of No Significant 
Impact, and Accepted Environmental Impact Statements to 
Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed Activities 

This is a new section drawing from section 11-200-13, HAR (1996). Section 11 -200-13, HAR 
(1996) allowed the use of prior determinations and accepted EISs to satisfy chapter 343, HRS 
for proposed actions if the prior determination or accepted EIS was pertinent and relevant to the 
proposed action. The 1996 Rules admonished agencies to take a hard look before allowing use 
of prior determinations and accepted EISs in place of additional chapter 343, HRS 
environmental review. That section also inclµded the concepts of tiering and incorporating 
portions of an existing determination or accepted EIS into environmental review of proposed 
actions, such as EAs and EISs. 

Proposed section 11-200. 1-11 separates out and clarifies how and when an agency may 
determine that a prior exemption, final EA or accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS for a 
proposed activity. In order for a proposed activity to use a prior exemption, final EA, or 
accepted EIS, the proposed activity must have been considered a component of or be 
substantially similar to the action that received the exemption, FONS!, or acceptance; the 
proposed activity must be anticipated to have similar direct, indirect, and cumulative effects as 
those analyzed in a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS; and in the case of a final EA or 
accepted EIS, the proposed activity must have been analyzed within the range of alternatives. 
In essence, the agency must be able to determine that the proposed activity was covered under 
the prior exemption, FONS!, or accepted EIS. 

This section particularly applies to situations where a programmatic EIS, and later in time a 
component of that programmatic EIS that was analyzed in detail is ready to be implemented. 
The component may on its own be considered an action for purposes of chapter 343, HRS, but 
because it was a component of an accepted EIS, is anticipated to have similar direct, indirect, 
and cumulative effects as those analyzed in the accepted EIS, and the proposed activity was 
analyzed in the range of alternatives in the accepted EIS, an approving agency may determine 
that chapter 343, HRS is already satisfied. The proposing agency or applicant may then 
proceed with other permitting requirements outside of chapter 343, HRS. An agency 
determining whether a prior accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS review for a proposed 
activity should also consider whether the accepted EIS was accepted at a time when 
environmental conditions and information were similar. If there have been significant changes 
since the time the accepted EIS was prepared, the proposed activity cannot be considered to be 
"similar" because the environmental impacts could be different than those analyzed in the 
accepted EIS. 

This rationale for determining whether chapter 343, HRS review is necessary is an existing 
practice for many agencies when they are considering whether to undergo chapter 343, HRS 
environmental review or deciding whether an applicant must undergo chapter 343, HRS 
environmental review. The Proposed Rule intends to create a consistent process and provide 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
37 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

agencies with direction on what to consider when determining if a proposed activity is covered 
under a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS. The rules also create a mechanism for 
agencies to publish a determination and brief rationale that a prior exemption, final EA, or 
accepted EIS satisfies the chapter 343, HRS requirements for a proposed activity. 

The proposed rule also provides that when an agency determines that a prior exemption, final 
EA, or accepted EIS does not satisfy chapter 343, HRS environmental review for a proposed 
activity, then the proposing agency or applicant should proceed to subchapter 7 to determine 
the level of environmental review necessary. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
38 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
Subchapter 7 (Determination of Significance) creates a distinct subchapter to provide direction 
to agencies in deciding the level of review necessary to satisfy chapter 343, HRS. This 
subchapter logically follows subchapter 6 (Applicability) because it is the next step that agencies 
will take upon determining that chapter 343, HRS environmental review is applicable. This 
subchapter reorganizes the previous determination of significance subchapter from the 1996 
Rules to show the chronological process that an agency will follow when determining the 
appropriate level of review, which may be an exemption, preparation of an EA, or direct 
preparation of an EIS. 

Section 11-200.1-12 addresses circumstances in which an agency may consider previous 
determinations and previously accepted EISs when deciding the appropriate level of review for 
a new action and introduces the evaluation tool informally called the "green sheet" based on the 
City and County of Honolulu Department of Planning and Permitting worksheet. Section 11-
200.1-13 provides that the proposing or approving agency use its judgment and experience to 
initially determine whether the appropriate level of environmental review is an exemption, 
preparation of an EA, or direct preparation of an EIS. Section 11-200.1-14 presents the 
significance criteria that agencies use as a basis for determining the appropriate level of review. 

§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of Previous Determinations and 

Accepted Statements 

This section is former section 11-200-13, HAR (1996). The 1996 Rules section included three 
concepts: (1) the use of prior determinations and accepted EISs in place of chapter 343, HRS 
review for a proposed action; (2) tiering an exemption, EA, or EIS for a proposed action off of a 
prior determination or accepted EIS; and (3) incorporation of information from a prior 
determination or accepted EIS into an exemption, EA, or EIS for a proposed action. Proposed 
section 11-200.1-12 addresses the first concept-the use of prior determinations and accepted 
EISs in place of further chapter 343, HRS review. Accordingly, the revised rule retains only the 
remaining concepts: tiering and incorporation by reference. The revised rule also makes explicit 
the language in section 343-S(g), HRS about which kinds of previous determinations may be 
used, including exemption notices, EAs, EISPNs, and previously accepted EISs. 

Proposed section 11 -200.1-12 also precedes this section, and it is assumed that an agency or 
applicant will consider the applicability of section 11-200.1-12 to a proposed activity prior to 
considering whether previous determinations or accepted EISs could be used in preparation of 
an exemption, EA, or EIS. Therefore, the subsection emphasizing that prior determinations and 
accepted statements must receive a hard look when used in place of chapter 343, HRS review 
has been deleted. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
39 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11 -200.1-13 Significance Criteria 

Formerly section 11-200-12, HAR ( 1996), all language in this section comes from section 11 -
200-12, HAR ( 1996) or is in addition to it. This section presents the criteria that an agency is to 
use for determining whether an exemption, FONSI, EISPN, or acceptance is appropriate. 

This section replaces the word "consequences" with "impacts" because both "primary impact" 
and "secondary impact" are defined, but the use of "consequences" introduced a new, 
undefined term that had been understood as a synonym for "impact". 

While section 345-5, HRS provides that an EIS is required for an action that "may" have a 
significant effect, the Hawaii Supreme Court has interpreted the word "may" to mean "likely". 
For example, in Kepoo v. Kane, 103 P.3d 939, 958 (Haw. 2005) the Court held that the proper 
inquiry for determining the necessity of an EIS is whether the proposed action will "likely" have a 
significant effect on the environment. The Proposed Rules adopt this language to make it 
clearer to stakeholders what the court's interpretation of the statutory language means. Each of 
the specific criteria following this phrase are revised to align syntax with the revised language "is 
likely to". 

The Proposed Rules add the word "adverse" to each of the specific criteria (where applicable). 
This language more closely matches the definition of "significant effect" in section 343-2, HRS, 
including mirroring the emphasis on "adverse" effects. The definition of "significant effect" in 
section 343-2, HRS: 

means the sum of effects on the quality of the environment, including actions that 
irrevocably commit a natural resource, curtail the range of beneficial uses of the 
environment, are contrary to the State's environmental policies or long-term 
environmental goals as established by law, or adversely affect the economic welfare, 
social welfare, or cultural practices of the community and State. (emphasis added) 

The Proposed Rules retain the word "substantial" from the 1996 Rules. 

Combining "substantial" and "adverse" is meant to set a standard that is higher than just having 
an effect and emphasizes that the focus is on negative effects rather than positive ones. 

This change addresses the question of whether an action having substantial beneficial effects 
would require the preparation of an EIS or make an action ineligible for an exemption. The 
introductory language of the section still requires agencies to consider the sum of effects on the 
quality of the environment and the overall and cumulative effects of an action. For example, a 
proposed renewable energy project may have substantial beneficial effects with respect to 
energy and greenhouse gases but may also irrevocably commit to loss or destruction of a 
natural or cultural resource. In this case, an agency must still consider the sum of effects an d 
the overall and cumulative effects, which could warrant the preparation of an EIS instead of 
issuing a FONSI, depending on the specific facts of the proposed action. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
40 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

In addition to the above changes to the significance criteria, the following changes are also in 
the Proposed Rules. Criteria (2), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10) have only the above grammatical 
and/or "substantial adverse" changes proposed. 

Criterion (1 ): Rephrases the language to match the statutory phrasing while retaining the 
inclusion of "cultural" fr<?m the 1996 Rules and inserting "historic", reflecting the requirement that 
historic sites are a trigger in chapter 343, HRS and are given prominent consideration in the 
environmental review process. While NEPA may consider historic properties as a subset of 
cultural resources, the Proposed Rules use the "historic" and "cultural" in sequence in the 
definitions for "environment" and "effect". 

Criterion (3): Includes other laws because the statutory definition of "significant effect" is not 
narrowed to chapter 344, HRS and many other statutes set forth environmental policies or 
goals. This language acknowledges other laws with environmental goals such as the State 
Planning Act or section 269-92, Renewable Portfolio Standards, HRS. "Laws" may be broadly 
understood to include common law and executive orders so long as they establish long-term 
environmental policies or goals, but not to encompass all statutes, administrative rules, and 
court decisions. 

Criterion (4 ): Revises language to match the definition of "significance" in section 343-2, HRS. 
Statutory language was amended by Act 50 (2000) to include cultural practices as part of the 
definition of significance. 

Act 50, Session Laws of Hawaii 2000 requires the consideration of impacts on cultural practices 
when making a determination of significance effect. It amended the definition of "significant 
effect" in section 343-2, HRS to mean "the sum of effects on the quality of the environment, 
including actions that irrevocably commit a natural resource, curtail the range of beneficial uses 
of the environment, are contrar.y to the State's environmental policies or long-term 
environmental goals as established by law, or adversely affect the economic welfare, social 
welfare, or cultural practices of the community and State." 

Act 50 also amended the definition of "environmental impact statement" or "statement" in 
section 343-2, HRS to include the disclosure of effects of a proposed action on-cultural 
practices, as follows: 

"environmental impact statement" or "statement" means an informational document 
prepared in compliance with the rules adopted under section 343-6 and which discloses 
the environmental effects of a proposed action, effects of a proposed action on the 
economic welfare, social welfare, and cuitural practices of the community and State, 
effects of the economic activities arising out of the proposed action, measures proposed 
to minimize adverse effects, and alternatives to the action and their environmental 
effects. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
41 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

The initial statement filed for public review shall be referred to as the draft statement and 
shall be distinguished from the final statement which is the document that has 
incorporated the public's comments and the responses to those comments. The final 
statement is the document that shall be evaluated for acceptability by the respective 
accepting authority. 

Per Act 50, cultural practices are an integral component of the significance criteria and must be 
considered in making a significance determination. 

Criterion (11 ): Adds the sea level rise exposure area to the list of example areas that could be 
considered environmentally sensitive. 

The included language incorporates sea level rise exposure area from the December 2017 
Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation Commission report. This criterion addresses 
concerns related to climate change adaptation such as impacts from sea level rise, increased 
hurricane frequency and/or intensity, and endangered species migration. Note that the list is not 
exhaustive and other areas not listed here may be considered environmentally sensitive, 
including areas likely to experience wave inundation, increased exposure to hurricanes, or 
flooding (including inland) outside of a designated flood plain. 

Criterion (12): Clarifies that both the daytime and nighttime effects on scenic vistas and 
viewplanes must be considered when determining if an action is likely to have a significant 
effect. Bright lighting around a site at night, for example, may disrupt scenic vistas or 
viewplanes even though the site is not conspicuous and does not otherwise have a substantial 
adverse effect on the scenic vista or viewplane during the day. 

Criterion (13): This criterion addresses concerns related to energy and implicitly climate change 
mitigation. The Proposed Rules make this explicit by adding greenhouse gas emissions to this 
criterion. This criterion was the only addition to the significance criteria when the 1996 Rules 
were promulgated. Since then, the best available science indicates that greenhouse gas 
emiss·ions have cumulative impact and have more sources than fossi l fuel burning. A proposed 
action having substantial emissions (relative to Hawaii) may not be the result of energy use, 
especially as Hawaii progresses toward its 100% renewable energy goal. 

§ 11-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 

This is a new section that describes the pathways of chapter 343, HRS environmental review: 
exemption, EA resulting in a FONSI or EISPN, and EIS resulting in an acceptance or 
nonacceptance. Once an agency concludes that the proposed action is not covered by a 
previous determination or accepted statement (via the "green sheet"), the agency must then 
determine the appropriate review using its judgment and experience: exemption, EA, or EIS . 

This section modifies language from sections 11-200-S(a) and 11 -200-9(b)(3), HAR (1996) and 
from section 343-S(b), HRS, and section 343-S(e), HRS. This section requires agencies to 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
42 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

inform applicants within 30 days of request for an approval of what level of environmental review 
the applicant must undertake. This section also sets forth the standard for an exemption using 
language from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) and drawn from section 343-6(a)(2), HRS 
("actions [that] will probably have minimal or no significant effects on the environment"). 

Where an exemption is not appropriate arid an action requires chapter 343, HRS environmental 
review, preparation of an EA beginning with a draft EA is required unless one of two situations 
exist. The first is that a proposing agency may begin with a final EA or an approving agency 
may authorize an applicant to begin with a final EA when it is anticipated that an EIS will be 
required, but more information is required to substantiate that determination (this was the 
process prior to the "direct-to-EIS" statutory change and' agencies have expressed value in 
keeping it). The second is that an agency may follow the "direct-to-EIS" route as provided for in 
section 343-5, HRS. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
43 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice 
Requirements 
Subchapter 8 (Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements) creates a distinct subchapter 
addressing the matter of exemptions. This subchapter divides the section 11-200-8, HAR 
(1996) regarding exemptions into three distinct sections. 

Section 200.1-1 5 establishes the general types of actions under which an exemption may be 
declared. Section 200. 1-16 provides direction to agencies for the creation of an exemption list. 
Section 200.1-17 provides direction to agencies on how to prepare an exemption notice, 
including when an agency is required to consult on the exemption and when the exemption 
notice must be published in the bulletin. 

§ 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 

All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This 
section sets forth the general types of actions eligible for exemption. It adds statutory language 
directly from section 343-6(2), HRS on the standard for declaring actions exempt: because they 
will probably individually and cumulatively have minimal or no significant effects. 

The Proposed Rules remove the 1996 language regarding "classes of actions" as the statute 
does not use the term "classes" and the word has caused confusion. In its place, the Proposed 
Rules use "general types" to mirror the statute and frame the "types" of exemptions on agency 
exemption lists so that the hierarchy is clearer: general types (in rules), types (in agency-specific 
exemption lists), and exemptions (exemption notices). 

The Proposed Rules do not include the "classes" 6 and 7 in the 1996 Rules as they are now 
included as a de minimis level of routine activities and ordinary functions in the Proposed Rules. 
They are addressed further in section 11-200.1-16, Exemption Lists. 

The Proposed Rules make no changes to the language incorporated from the 1996 Rules for 
general types (2), (4), and (7), based on numbering in the Proposed Rules. 

The remaining general types are revised as follows (numbering based on the Proposed Ru les). 

General Type (1 ): Replaces "negligible" with "minor" and removes "or no" before "expansion or 
change" because activities that are "negligible" and require "no expansion" and "no change" are 
now captured in the de minimis category and should be reflected in Part 1 of an agency's 
exemption list. · 

General Type (3): Agencies, including different agencies within the same county, measure 
residence area differently. This language acknowledges the difference and directs the 
proposing agency or approving agency to use its own method of measuring for 3,500 square 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
44 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 20 18 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

feet. The language also replaces "persons" with "individuals" because "person" is a defined 
term in chapter 343, HRS and the Proposed Rules and that meaning is not used in this context. 

General Type (5): Incorporates infrastructure testing such as temporary interventions on 
roadways to test new designs or effects on traffic patterns. 

General Type (6): The Proposed Rules revise the general type for demolition of structures to 
better balance the concerns of historic preservation. The 1996 Rules did not allow for the use of 
the exemption if the structure was designated on the state or federal registers. This meant that 
structures that might be eligible for designation could still be demolished under an exemption 
(barring the standard exception to exemptions). However, stakeholders expressed concern that 
eligible buildings of potential significance were being demolished while others expressed 
concern that any building more than fifty years old was too broad of a standard. To balance 
these concerns, the Proposed Rules use the phrase "meet the criteria" for listing because the 
criteria for listing on either the national register or Hawaii Register of Historic Places include 
more than just being fifty years old. Section 13-198-8, HAR states the criteria for listing on the 
Hawaii Register of Historic Places: 

... The property meets or possesses, individually or in combination, the following criteria or 
characteristics: 

(1) The quality of significance in Hawaiia'n history, architecture, archaeology, and 
culture, which is present in districts, sites, buildings, structures and objects of State 
and local importance that possess integrity of location, design, setting, materials, 
workmanship, feeling, and association, AND: 
(A) That are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to 

broad patterns of our American or Hawaiian history; 
(B) That are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; 
(C) That embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of 

construction, or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic 
value, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity \('/hose 
components may lack individual distinction; OR 

(D) That have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or 
history; 

(2) Environmental impact, i.e., whether the preservation of the building, site, structure, 
district, or object significantly enhances the environmental quality of the State; 

(3) The social, cultural, educational, and recreational value of the building, site, 
structure, district, or object, when preserved, presented, or interpreted, contributes 
significantly to the understanding and enjoyment of the history and culture of Hawaii, 
the pacific area, or the nation. 

This means that structures that are more than fifty years old but otherwise lack any historic 
significance or integrity could still use this exemption (assuming the standard caveats for any 
exemption). This language also better aligns the exemption standard with the helicopter 
faci lities trigger in section 343-5(a)(8)(C) regarding any historic site as designated or under 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
45 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

consideration for designation. The Proposed Rules also remove redundant citations of the 
federal and state statutes. 

General Type (8): The Proposed Rules retain the general type for continuing administrative 
activities but delete the reference to purchase of supplies and personnel-related activities 
because those two items are captured in the de minimis category and should be reflected in 
Part 1 of an agency's exemption list. 

General Type (9): The Proposed Rules incorporate an amendment to the 1996 Rules that was 
never compiled and promulgated. fn 2007, the Environmental Council formally amended 
section 11-200-8, HAR to add the eleventh exemption category for affordable housing. Note 
that the term "affordable housing" was not defined at that time. Affordable housing should be 
understood in the same way as proposed under Proposed General Type (11 ). 

General Type (10): The Proposed Rules add a new general type for affordable housing that 
meets certain criteria. The purpose of this proposed gel'll:lral type of exemption would be to 
support the orderly development of affordable housing in urbanized areas where affordable 
housing is a designated and zoned use. Per section 11-200-8(b), HAR (1996) and proposed 
section 11-200.1-1 S(d), HAR, exemptions are inapplicable when the cumulative impact of 
planned successive actions in the same place, over time, is significant, or when an action that is 
normally insignificant in its impact on the environment may be significant in a particularly 
sensitive environment. That is, this exemption is not automatic. 

Agencies define affordable housing differently. The Council considered multiple approaches to 
affordable housing, ranging from requiring 100% affordable housing at various mixtures of area 
median income (AMI) percentages to the language as proposed. Setting a specific mixture or 
requiring 100% affordable housing would set a standard unlikely to be met. Creating a standard 
for an exemption under chapter 343, HRS separate and distinct from a standard set by a 
proposing agency or approving agency but not grounded in a specific statute or policy goal 

· would be difficult to justify. Because chapter 343, HRS is about disclosure by agencies to the 
public prior to making a decision or implementing an action, the Council believes that the public 
is best served by the agency using its own standard when considering whether a proposed 
action meets the meaning of "affordable housing". This is also consistent with General Type 
(.10), acquisition of affordable housing, which is not defined, and with the Council's direction in 
section 11-200.1-2 to agencies to use their own statutes and rules for understanding terms that 
are not defined in chapter 343, HRS or the Proposed Rules. 

In addition, the potential to integrate mixed-use (e.g., offices, retail) with affordable housing is an 
explicit goal of some state and county agencies. Allowing for the potential of mixed use wh ile 
keeping the agency to its own criteria for affordable housing could promote better urban 
communities that are multi-income and multi-use. Therefore, this exemption directs agencies to 
use their respective affordable housing law. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
46 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

For example, section 201H-36(a)(4), HRS sets forth one standard: 

affordable rental housing where at least fifty per cent of the available units are for 
households with incomes at or below eighty per cent of the area median family income 
as determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, of 
which at least twenty per cent of the available units are for households with incomes at 
or below sixty per cent of the area median family income as determined by the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

This would apply when the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development' Corporation is approving 
a proposal related to that standard, whereas each county has its own county ordinance that 
would be the controlling law for the respective county agency mak_ing decisions about whether 
to use county lands or funds. Note that chapter 343, HRS applies before chapter 201 H, HRS 
and the Proposed Rules would not alter that order. 

To reinforce the purpose of this exemption, several additional criteria are included. 

This exemption would be applicable only when one or both of two possible triggers apply: the 
use of state or county lands or funds and Waikiki. The limitation to these two triggers is to keep 
the focus on the involvement of the state or county to support affordable housing development 
where the only reason someone would undergo environmental review is because government is 
subsidizing funding or leasing out land to assist the production of affordable housing. The 
Waikiki trigger is included because it is a developed, urbanized area that meets the other criteria 
of being classifieq state urban land and zoned to allow housing. The presence of other triggers 
such as use within a shoreline (including a Waikiki shoreline) or occurring within a designated 
historic site would mean this exemption would not be applicable. 

The exemption would only be eligible for actions on land that has already been classified by the 
State Land Use Commission as urban. If the proposed action involves land classified as 
agriculture, conservation, or rural, or includes a boundary amendment to change the 
classification to urban, then the exemption would not be applicable. 

The exemption would be eligible for land that has already been zoned by the county for housing. 
Each county organizes its zoning differently (or has distinct features) so this language is meant 
to acknowledge this variability. If the existing zoning for the proposed parcels do not allow 
housing, then this exemption would not be applicable. For example, Maui County has pyramid 
zoning, so industrial is not allowed in residential but residential is allowed in industrial. This 
language would account for this variability. 

The exemption would not be eligible if a variance for shoreline setback is included. This 
acknowledges General Type (9), which states that zoning variances may be exempted except 
for shoreline setback variances. This also reinforces the significance criteria that identify the 
sea level rise exposure area and erosion-prone areas as environmentally sensitive areas. 

vOAa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
47 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

In (d), reference to "subchapter 4" is added to capture both general types under section 200.1-
15 and activities in the de minimis category to the provision specifying that an exemption may 
not be granted when the cumulative impact of planned successive actions is significant, or when 
an action that is normally insignificant in its impact on the environment may be significant in a 
particularly sensitive environment. For example, it may be routine groundwork to remove a 
small ailing tree outside an agency building, but if the tree is designated as an Exceptional Tree 
pursuant to chapter 58, HRS, then the normally routine activity may be significant and an 
exemption would be inapplicable. 

§ 11-200 .1-16 Exemption Lists 

All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. 

The Proposed Rules acknowledge that agencies are not required to create exemption lists and 
some agencies may not regularly conduct activities that rise to the level of requiring chapter 
343, HRS environmental review. An agency without an exemption list may still apply an 
exemption by meeting the other requirer:nents of this subchapter. To capture the discretionary 
nature of developing an exemption list , the Proposed Rules use the word "may" in subsection 
11-200.1-1 6(a). 

The Proposed Rules update the 1996 Rules language to reflect the other changes made to the 
exemption process in sections 15 and 17, such as renaming the "classes" to "general types". 

This section revises the exemption list to consist of two parts. The first part would be those 
types of actions that the agency considers to be the equivalent of de minimis; that is, they are 
routine operations and maintenance, ongoing administrative activities, and other similar items. 
This category of activities was proposed under section 11-200.1-8, General Applicability, in 
Version 0.3. The Proposed Rules removed that section and now require agencies to consider in 
advance what activities the agency considers to be de minimis, and to include those in Part 1 of 
the agency's exemption list. By including them in the exemption list, the agency is able to make 
staff aware of occasions where an activity might be in the gray area of a project or program for 
the purposes of chapter 343, HRS but perhaps not rising to the level of requiring environmental 
review as explained by the Hawaii Supreme Court in several of its decisions. Activities that are 
included in the first part of the exemption list would be presumed to not require documentation 
(i.e., an exemption notice) or consultation. In effect, these are the everyday things that 
government does, from repainting buildings to fixing plumbing and purchasing office supplies. 
Many of these items already exist on agency lists because they fall under one or more of the 
classes in the 1996 Rules. After adoption of the Proposed Rules, the agency would have seven 
years to reorganize and update its exemption list to comply with the Proposed Rules (see 
section 11 -200.1-32, Retroactivity for more). 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
48 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

The second part of the exemption list consists of the general types identified in section 11-
200.1-15 and what types of actions the agency regularly undertakes which it considers to be 
exempt but for which documentation of the exemption is appropriate. Individual actions would 
be recorded in exemption notices as set forth in 11-200.1-17. 

The Proposed Rules also clarify that both applicant and agency actions may be exempt. An 
approving agency may determine that a proposed activity does not rise to the level of an action 
that requires an exemption notice because the proposed activity likely will have no or negligible 
environmental impact (Part 1 of the agency's exemption list). The agency may also exempt a 
proposed action based on either part two of the approvinQ agency's exemption list, or in 
accordance with a general type under section 11-200.1-15. 

Agencies are required to submit their exemption lists for review and concurrence by the Council. 

§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 

All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This 
section requires an agency to: create exemption notices for actions exempted under Part 2 of its 
exemption list or that the agency determines to be included within a general type of activity 
according to section 11-200.1-15; to maintain the exemption notices on file; and to provide a list 
of all exemption determinations created since the previous publication submittal deadline to the 
OEQC for publication in the periodic bulletin. This ensures timely notification to the public about 
unpublished exemption notices. Agencies are also required to produce their exemption notices 
to the public upon request. Exemption notices should be prepared prior to undertaking an 
action, except in the case of an emergency action under section 11-200.1-8. 

The Proposed Rules generally require consultation with outside agencies or individuals that 
have jurisdiction or expertise as to the propriety of the exemption, documentation of that 
consultation in the exemption notice, and publication of the exemption notice unless: (1) the 
agency has created an exemption list in accordance with the enacted rules; (2) the agency 
received Council concurrence within seven years of the proposed implementation of the 
proposed action; and (3) the action is consistent with the letter and intent of the agency's 
exemption list. Unpublished exemption notices must still be included in the list of exemption 
notices that the agency routinely provides to the office for publication in the bulletin pursuant to 
section 11-200.1-17(d). 

This provision allows for agencies that do not have exemption lists to exempt an act ivity or 
action as the need arises. Not all agencies regularly interact with chapter 343, HRS and 
therefore, the Proposed Rules do not require all agencies to create exemption lists. When the 
occasion arises that an agency without an exemption list must comply with chapter 343, HRS 
and an exemption is the applicable level of environmental review, then consultation, 
documentation, and publication of the exemption in the bulletin are required. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
49 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

On the other hand, agencies that regularly interact with chapter 343, HRS already have 
exemption lists. However, many age·ncy exemption lists are decades old. The proposed 
consultation and publication exception is intended to create an efficiency incentive for agencies 
to create or update existing exemption lists and have those lists reviewed and concurred with by 
the Council on a consistent basis. The public has an opportunity to comment on the propriety of 
exemption lists during Council review and concurrence. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
50 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental 

Assessments 
Subchapter 9 (Preparation of Environmental Assessments) creates a distinct subchapter 
addressing EAs. This subchapter provides direction to an agency when it has decided that 
preparation of an EA is the appropriate level of chapter 343, HRS environmental review. The 
sections are ordered chronologically to show the process that will be followed, starting with the 
consultation requirement prior to beginning a draft EA, and ending with the determination to 

issue an EISPN or a FONSI. 

Section 11-200.1-18 describes the requirement of early consultation, addresses the scope of 
analysis and level of detail required in a draft EA, and the content requirements for a draft EA. 
Section 11-200.1-19 describes the process and content requirements for issuing a notice of an 
anticipated FONSI based on a draft EA. Section 11-200.1-20 describes the requirements for 
public review and response to comments for a draft EA. Section 11-200.1-21 describes the 
contents of a final EA. Section 11-200.1-22 describes the determination to issue an EISPN or 

FONSI and the FONSI content requirements. 

§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental 

Assessment 

This section was formerly section 11-200-10 of the 1996 Rules, which addressed the contents 
of both a draft and final EA. The provisions related to the contents of a draft EA are retained 
here, but in line with the effort of the Proposed Rules to order the environmental review steps 
chronologically, the provisions related to the contents of a final EA were moved into a separate 

section in this subchapter, section 11-200.1-21. 

The revised rule sources language from former section 11-200-9 of the 1996 Rules 
Version 0.3 proposed definitions for "project" and "program", and this section describes how the 
distinction between a project and program influences the style of the document and the breadth 
and specificity of analysis and information contained therein. 

Subsection (b) is a modification of the former section 11-200-19 of the 1996 Rules applying the 
style guidelines for an EIS to an EA. It mirrors the language included in the proposed 11-200.1-
24 for the contents of a draft EIS, and provides that the scope and specificity within an EA will 
be commensurate with the scope of the action and the degree of specificity to which impacts are 
discernible at the time of preparation. Because a final EA is a draft EA revised to incorporate 
responses to comments, this section also applies to the style, breadth and specificity of analysis 
and information contained in a final EA. 

This section clarifies that a programmatic EA may omit issues that are not ripe for discussion on 
a more narrow scale. In the case of such an omission, a subsequent project may require its 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
51 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

own chapter 343, HRS determination. Subchapter 7 of the Proposed Rules assists with 
understanding this situation . 

. Because most environmental review focuses on site-specific and discrete projects, the revised 
rule distinguishes between the level of detail and style of assessment for programs, which may 
be more broad and conceptual in nature, and that for projects, which are site-specific and 
discrete. By providing language on the level of detail and style of assessment for different types 
of actions, the rules give dire9tion regarding how to address projects or programs at risk of 
segmentation and acknowledges the tension between the requirement to conduct environmental 
review at the earliest practicable time with the desire for project specificity. This paragraph 
mirrors the proposed paragraph in section 11-200.1-24 regarding the contents of a draft EIS. 

The revised rule also focuses on analyzing instead of summarizing impacts. The use of the 
word "analyze" should not be understood to mean a lengthy discussion. It means that the 
impact discussion section should identify an impact and provide enough information to support a 
conclusion. In some cases, summaries tend to be assertions of impact and the degree of 
significance without presenting a supporting argument. 

This section also requires applicants to identify which approval, when combined with a trigger, 
necessitated chapter 343, HRS environmental review. 

This section also requires an indication of when individuals, organizations, or agencies were 
"consulted with" but had "no comment" if those persons or agencies are included as "consulted" 
entities in the draft EA. "No comment" can occur in at least two instances. First, when a person 
or agency responds to a written request for comments that it has "no comment", and second, 
when a proponent provides information but does not solicit feedback. The second is not true 
consultation, because it is not reciprocal communication. This provision was added however, in 
response to concerns by individuals and organizations that they were listed in EAs as having 
been "consulted with" when they merely attended a public informational meeting where they 

. received information from the action proponent, but were not invited to share feedback on the 
action. The proposed rules clarify that if the proponent desires to include attendees at 
informational meetings as those "consulted with" then it should be indicated whether those 
individuals or organizations gave "no comment." This also protects individuals and organizations 
who wish to gather more information through an informational session but who would not be 
prepared to also provide informed feedback at such a preliminary session from being listed as a 
"consulted" entity who spoke with the proponent on behalf of oneself or a particular community 
or interest group. 

Lastly, this section incorporates language from former sections 11-200-10(8) and -10(9) 
requiring a draft EAto include specific agency or approving agency findings in the draft EA 
supporting agency determinations, including a FONSI. 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
52 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental 
Assessments 

This section was formerly section 11-200-11.1 of the 1996 Rules. It aligns the EA process with 
changes to chapter 343, HRS that enable applicants to prepare their own EAs, as opposed to 
agencies preparing EAs on behalf of applicants. It separates language from the 1996 Rules into 
subsections to increase clarity. 

Notably, this section simplifies the submittal requirement to one copy of the notice of 
determination and one copy of the final EA, which may be submitted electronically. This section 
also incorporates the filing requirements set forth in subchapter 4, and clarifies that approving 
agencies have a responsibility to send their determination to the applicant directly, but not 
necessarily via postal mail (electronic distribution is also acceptable). 

The rule further clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual with 
authority and knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its 
environmental review must be provided in the document. A generic phone line or email address 
of the proposing agency or applicant without an individual identified will not satisfy this 
requirement. The person· should be able to answer questions regarding the action or refer to 
someone within the agency or applicant's organization who can provide answers. 

§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for 
Draft Environmental Assessments 

This section was formerly section 11-200-9.1 of the 1996 Rules. If an agency does not 
anticipate a FONS!, then it will likely move to or authorize an applicant to directly move to 
prepare an EIS. This determination requires the approving agency to use its judgment and 
expertise. In some cases, although an agency may anticipate a FONSI, the FONS! may not be 
issued until an EA is completed. 

The revised rule reflects the practice that the applicant, rather than the approving agency, 
prepares the EA. 

This rule further acknowledges that the public review period may differ from the standard 30 
days provided under chapter 343, HRS and these rules for certain actions by statute. For 
example, the development or expansion of forensic facilities of the department of health or in
state correctional facilities have 60-day comment periods for draft EAs (and EISs), per sections 
334-2.7 and 353-16.35, HRS, respectively. 

The Council found that the requirement to send a response to every individual person 
commenting on an environmental review document can be extremely burdensome for agencies 
and applicants, and was not justified by any real benefit to interested stakeholders and the 
public that cou ld not be satisfied by notifying the commenter via publication of the final EA. The 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
53 

http:353-16.35


Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

· February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

revised rule allows agencies and applicants to respond to issues raised by comments received 
on the draft EA within the final EA and deletes the former requirement to send individual 
responses directly to each commenter. This is intended to modernize and simplify the 
environmental review process. Commenters must still be identified in the response within the 
EA. The widespread availability of electronic documents to commenters and interested 
stakeholders relieves the necessity of sending individual written responses but still ensures that 
commenters receive notice (through the publication of the draft and final EAs) that their 
comment has been received, considered, and responded to. These changes reduce the burden 
on proposing agencies and applicants in responding to voluminous and nearly identical 
comments individually. It also focuses attention on the content of the comments and the issues 
raised , rather than on responding to each individual commenter separately, particularly in the 
wake of the electronic age and the increasing number of form letters and petitions used in this 

process. 

The language proposed in .this rule is drawn from the United States Council on Environmental 
Quality's (CEQ) "Forty Most Asked Questions Concerning CEQ's National Environmental Policy 
Act Regulations", #29a and aligns with NEPA practice, which allows grouping of identical or 
similar comments and providing one response that covers the issues raised in identical or 
similar comments. Because individual responses would no longer be sent, the requirement for 
the OEQC to receive a copy of the responses to comments is no longer relevant and has been 
deleted. 

This section also incorporates language from the comment response requirements for EISs in 
section 11-200.1-26 providing guidance on how to discern substantive from non-substantive 
comments, and the level of detail a proposing agency or applicant should include at a minimum 
in responses. 

This section is also modified to reflect that applicants prepare their own documents. 
Accordingly, the timely preparation of an EA or EIS by the approving agency is no longer 
applicable and is deleted. 

Lastly, the Proposed Rules update references to filing and publication of addenda to a draft EA 
and public review of draft environmental assessments. 

§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 

This section is taken from the former section 11-200-10 of the 1996 Rules and lists the specific 
content requirements for a final EA. Changes to this section focus on analyzing instead of 
summarizing impacts. The rule also clarifies that the use of the word "analysis" should not be 
understood to mean a lengthy discussion. It means that the impact discussion section should 
identify an impact and provide a discussion detailed enough to support a conclusion. 
Summaries, in some cases, tend to be assertions of impact and the degree of significance 
without presenting a supporting argument or evidence. This rule also explicitly requires 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
54 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

agencies to identify for applicants which discretionary permit necessitates environmental review 
under chapter 343, HRS. 

§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental 

Assessments 

Formerly section 11-200-11 .2 of the 1996 Rules, this section sources language from sElction 11-
200-9(b )(8) of the 1996 Rules. The revised rule aligns the process with Act 172 (2012), Direct
to-EIS, which requires the applicant to prepare documents instead of the approving agency. It 
also updates reference to subchapter 9, which encompasses the process and requirements for 
preparation of an environmental assessment previously included in sections 11-200-9(a) and 
11-200-9(b) of the 1996 Rules. 

The revised rule simplifies the submittal requirement to one copy of the notice of determination 
and one copy of the final EA, which may be submitted to the OEQC electronically. The specific 
filing and publication requirements are set forth in subchapter 4. 

The rule clarifies that approving agencies have a responsibility to send their determination to the 
applicant directly, but not necessarily via postal mail (electronic distribution is sufficient). For 
applicant actions, the rule also explicitly requires the agency to issue its determination within 30 

days of receiving the final EA. . 

The revised rule adds language regarding the approving agency for the case of applicants 
because the accepting authority is applicable only for EISs and, in the case of applicant EISs, 
the accepting authority and approving agency are the same. 

The revisions modernize the requirements to include email as a requirement for contact 
information. Most written communication today is done by email so providing that is just as 
important as a physical mail address. 

The rule clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual with authority and 
knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its environmental review 
must be provided. A generic phone line or email address of the proposing agency or applicant 
without an individual identified will not satisfy this requirement. The person should be able to 
answer questions regarding the action or refer to someone within the agency or applicant's 
organization who can provide answers. 

The revised rule further creates a standard set of content requirements for an EISPN regardless 
of whether the EISPN is a result of a final EA or a direct-to-EIS determination. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
55 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact 
Statements 
Subchapter 10 (Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements) creates a distinct subchapter 
that addresses EISs. This -subchapter provides direction to an agency when it has decided that 
an EIS is the appropriate level of review, whether by the direct-to-EIS pathway as addressed in 
subchapter 7 (Determination of Significance) or by the issuance of an EISPN after a final EA, as 
addressed in subchapter 9 (Preparation of Environmental Assessments). The sections in this 
subchapter are ordered chronologically to show the process that will be followed, starting with 
the publication of an EISPN, and ending with the matter of supplemental EISs. 

Section 11-200.1-23 describes the contents of an EISPN, as well as the requirement of full and 
complete consultation, the EIS .public scoping meeting, and the comment period following the 
publication of an EISPN. Section 11-200.1-24 describes the content requirements for a draft 
EIS, the scope of analysis and level of detail required in a draft EIS, and the response 
requirements to comments received during the 30-day scoping period. Section 11-200.1-25 
describes the public review requirements for a draft EIS. Section 11-200.1-26.sets forth the 
requirements for responding to comments received on a draft EIS. 

Section 11 -200.1 -27 describes the content requirements for a final EIS. Section 11 -200.1-28 
specifies the criteria for deeming a final EIS an acceptable document and outlines the steps 
following an acceptance or nonacceptance determination. Section 11-200.1-29 describes how 
an applicant may appeal an agency determination of non-acceptance to the Council. Section 
11-200.1-30 addresses circumstances when a supplemental EIS may be required after 

acceptance of an EIS. 

§ 11-200, 1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement 

This section was formerly section 11-200-15 in the 1996 Rules and governs the content 
requirements for an EISPN. As discussed in the rationale for section 11-200.1-10, this section 
retains the 1996 Rules requirement for the identification of all permits and approvals expected 
for the project, and adds for applicants the identification of which specific discretionary approval 
that, combined with a trigger from section 343-5, HRS, necessitated the applicant to undergo 
environmental review. This is a requirement in preparation of an EA and included here as a 
content requirement of an EISPN to ensure that the public and decision makers are provided 
this information because an agency may begin with, or authorize an applicant to begin with, an 
EISPN without preparation of an EA where that information would have been disclosed. The 
content requirements for the EISPN are standard regardless of how one arrives at conducting 
an EIS (e.g., resulting from an EA or directly preparing an EIS). 

The revised rule further clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual 
with authority and knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapt'er-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
56 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

environmental review must be provided. A generic phone line or email address of the proposing 
agency or applicant without an individual identified will not satisfy this requirement. The person 
should be able to answer questions regarding the action or refer to someone within the agency 
or applicant's organization who can provide answers. 

The revised rule removes the requirement for an individual to become a consulted party in order 
to engage directly in providing and receiving public documents and determinations related to the 
proposed action. All documents and determinations are now published online and available 
through the OEQC's website: http://oeqc2.doh.hawaii.gov/EA EIS Library/ 

Most notably, this section makes the public scoping meeting a requirement and emphasizes that 
the meeting is about what the scope of the draft EIS should be. Proposing agencies and 
applicants acting within the spirit of chapter 343, HRS should engage meaningfully with 
individuals, organizations, and agencies early and often throughout the environmental review 
process. 

The revised rule also shifts the focus to written comments submitted during the EISPN comment 
period and public scoping meeting and removes the requirement for the EIS preparer to 
transcribe individual oral comments. Instead, the revised rule provides that oral comments must 
be recorded, and a summary of the oral comments must be included as a separate section in 
the draft EIS. Written comments require responses to the comments in the draft EIS pursuant 
to section 11-200.1-24. 

While the 1996 Rules allowed for a public scoping meeting, it was not required. The Council 
received comments both in favor of and opposed to requiring a public scoping meeting. The 
changes to the oral and written comments treatment were made after extensive consultation 
with interested stakeholders on this provision and as an effort to balance this new requirement 
for public scoping meetings and increased consultation, with the burden on the agencies and 
applicants preparing statements. 

This section also allows the approving agency or accepting authority, with good cause, to 
extend the comment period on its own initiative or at the request of another party. 

The draft EIS content requirements that were formerly in this section were relocated to section 
11-200.1-24. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
57 

http://oeqc2.doh.hawaii.gov/EA


Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

' 
§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft En~ironmental Impact 
Statement 

This section was formerly-section 11-200-17 in the 1996 Rules and sets forth the content 
requirements for draft El$s. Other language in this sectiqn is sourced from sections 11-200-16 
and 11-200-19 of the 1996 Rules. 

A number of language edits in this section were made to bring it in line with NEPA language. 
This rule .also provides that the scope and specificity within an EIS will be commensurate with 
the scope of the action and the degree of specificity to which impacts are discernible at the t ime 
of preparation. 

Some new concepts are introduced in the Proposed Rules: 

Project Specific and Programmatic EISs. Version 0.3 proposed definitions for "project" and 
"program", and this section describes how the distinction between a project and program 
influences the style of the document and the breadth and specificity of analysis and information 
contained therein. · 

This section clarifies that the programmatic EIS may omit issues that are not ripe for discussion 
on a more narrow, project-specific level. In the case of such an omission, a subsequent project 
may require its own chapter 343, HRS determination or environmental review. Proposed 
subchapter 7 A assists with understanding this situation. 

The revised rule also distinguishes between the level of detail and style of assessment for 
programs, which may be more broad and conceptual in nature and that for projects, which are 
site-specific and discrete. Most environmental review focuses on site-specific and discrete 
projects. By providing language on the level of detail and style of assessment for different types 
of actions, the rules give direction regarding how to address projects or programs at risk of 
being viewed as segmented and acknowledges the trade-off between earliest practicable time 
to begin environmental review and project specificity. This paragraph mirrors the proposed 
paragraph in section 11-200.1-18 regarding contents of a draft EA. 

Response to Comments. This section emphasizes that the comments are written comments 
that are submitted during the consultation period. Revised language in this section aligns with 
language in section 11-200.1-26 that changes the requirement to respond to voluminous and 
nearly identical comments individually. It also focuses attention on the content of the comments 
and the issues raised, rather than on responding to each individual commenter separately. It 
further clarifies that responses shall be made and included within the draft EIS itself. 
Responses no longer need to be sent separately to each commenter. 

The rule requires that when batching comments and responses, the preparer must include the 
names of the individual commenters who provided comments on that topic and who have been 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
58 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

grouped, so that those commenters can see whether their comment was addressed and what 
the response is. 

The general summary of oral comments from the public scoping meeting does not need to be 
an exhaustive or verbatim transcript, but does need to be a written summary included in the 
draft EIS. It is intended to capture generally the comments made at the scoping meeting. Oral 
comments are not required to be responded to directly in the EIS, but must be taken into 
consideration in identifying likely effects. A court reporter or transcriber is not required at the 
public scoping meeting. 

The revised rule also requires that a representative sample of the handouts prepared for and 
distributed at any public scoping meeting, including the agenda, must be included in the draft 
EIS. Handouts not related to the action need not be included. For example, general 
promotional materials for the applicant need not be included, but a fact sheet outlining the 
proposed action should be included. 

The revised rule also distinguishes between a consultation in which an agency, citizen group, or 
individual provides comments to the proposing agency or applicant regarding the action and a 
consultation in which the proposing agency or applicant only provides information about the 
action to the agency, citizen group, or individual. The revised rule includes requirements for 
when individuals, organizations, or agencies were "consulted with" but had "no comment." This 
can occur in at least two instances. First, when an agency responds to a written request for 
comments that it has "no comment", and second, when a proponent provides information but 
does not solicit feedback. The second is not true consultation, because it is not reciprocal 
communication. This provision was added however, in response to the concerns by individuals 
and organizations whose names were listed in EISs as having been "consulted with" when they 

merely attended a public informational meeting and received information from the action 
proponent, but were not invited to share feedback on the action. The Proposed Rules clarify 
that if the proponent desires to include attendees at informational meetings as those "consu lted 
with" then it should indicate whether those individuals or organizations gave "no comment." 
This also protects individuals and organizations who wish to gather more information through an 

informational session but are not be prepared to provide informed feedback at such a 
preliminary session from being listed as a "consulted" entity who spoke with the proponent o n 

behalf of oneself or a particular community or interest group. 

The rule makes explicit that only one representative copy of the agency consultation letter is 
required, similar to requiring only one reproduction of identical comments, such as form letters. 

Public Scoping Meeting Location: The Council discussed where public scoping meetings would 

be required to be held. The Council sought to balance community input and engagement with 
reducing the burden on proposing agencies and applicants. Different options were considered, 
including requiring a public scoping meeting in the "county," or "island" or on the "islands" where 
the action will have the greatest effect. The Council noted the importance of holding the 
scoping meeting closest to where there will be an effect and should be held on the island of 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
59 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

those likely impacts. Therefore, the word "county" was inappropriate because public scoping 
meetings for actions proposed in Maui County could be held on an island different than that of 
the action. The Council also considered but left for future guidance documents that accessibility 
must be taken into account when planning the scoping meeting. For example, an action that will 
have an impact on individuals in the Hilo area of the Island of Hawaii should hold a meeting in 
the vicinity of Hilo, not Kana. The Council also considered that there may be instances where 
an action could adversely affect multiple con:imunities on more than one island and accounts for 
this by pluralizing "island" in parenthesis: island(s). 

Other Changes: 
The revised rule also clarifies that the list of relevant documents means documents other than 
chapter 343, HRS, environmental review documents. The documents may be used to identify 
potential segmentation or cumulative impacts of a proposed action, or for other purposes in 
preparation of the EIS. 

The revised rule also clarifies that not all alternatives to the action must be considered--only 
those that are considered by the proposing agency or applicant to be "reasonable" need to be 
rigorously explored and objectively evaluated. This qualification is drawn from NEPA's 40 CFR 
1502.14(a): "Rigorously explore and objectively evaluate all reasonable alternatives, and for 
alternatives which were eliminated from detailed study, briefly discuss the reasons for their 
having been eliminated." The revised rule also requires discussion of the reasons for omitting 
detailed study of alternatives. 

The revised rule also updates the subsection listing laws containing environmental goals and 
guidel ines that the draft EIS must address adverse effects on, as applicable. In considering 
which environmental laws and policies to address, include the ones listed in paragraph (o) as 
applicable and any laws relevant to the significance criteria or criterion under section 11-200.1-
13 that required preparation of the EIS. 

Subsections (i) and U) explicitly include "cultural" resources as part of the impacts to be 
analyzed in line with Act 50 (2000). 

§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft 
Environmental Impact Statements 

This section was formerly section 11 -200-22, HAR (1996). The rule encourages open and early. 
consultation with interested stakeholders, and for an applicant EIS, that the approving authority 
and accepting agency are the same. This section also ties back to section 11 -200.1-1, which 
provides the spirit in which consultation should be conducted to align with the purpose of the 
chapter. 

The rule provides that the standard comment period for a draft EIS is forty-five days, and also 
acknowledges that the public review period may be something other than forty-five days for 
certain actions by statute. For example, the development or expansion of forensic faci lities of 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
60 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

the department of health or in-state correctional facilities have 60-day comment periods for draft 
EISs (and EAs), per sections 334-2.7 and 353-16.35, HRS, respectively. 

§ 11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for Draft 

Environmental Impact Statements 

This rule was formerly section 11-200-22 in the 1996 Rules, which has been divided into two 
sections including this section and the preceding section 11-200.1-25. This section more 
specifically addresses response requirements for written comments received during the 45-day 
public review and comment period. 

The comment response requirements for an EIS mirror those for an EA, found in subchapter 9. 
This section similarly explicitly allows for batching comments, akin to what is allowed under 
NEPA, and in doing so, changes the requirements for responding to voluminous and nearly 
identical comments individually. The ru le also focuses attention on the content of the comments 
and the issues raised, rather than on responding to each individual commenter separately. If 
the batching option is used, the individuals, agencies, and organizations who commented on the 
specific topic to which the response is directed must be identified as part of the response. This 
rule clarifies that responses to substantive comments must be made and included as part of the 
draft EIS. The revised language gives guidance regarding which factors are to be considered 
when determining whether a comment is substantive, and also requires that comments deemed 
non-substantive and to which a response was not given must be clearly indicated (§ 11-200.1- . 
27). 

§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact 
Statement 

Formerly section 11-200-18 of the 1996 Rules, this section sets forth the content requirements 
for a final EIS. The revised rule incorporates the content requirements for a draft EIS set forth in 
section 11-200.1-24 and requires that the reproduction and response to comments on the draft 
EIS within the final EIS conform with the requirements set forth in section 11-200.1-26. 

In subsection (a), th is section amends the requirement for a final EIS to discuss all "relevant and 
feasible consequences" to "all reasonably foreseeable consequences." The Council proposed 
this revision because the phrase "reasonably foreseeable" is a phrase line from NEPA. 
Therefore, there is more case law history and federal guidance to assist in its interpretation and 
application to various circumstances. 

Like section 11-200.1-24 for draft EISs, this section lists the specific content requirements for 
the final EIS. Th is section also distinguishes between a consultation in which an agency, citizen 
group, or individual provides comments to the proposing agency or applicant regarding the 
action and a consultation in which the proposing agency or applicant only provides information 
about the action to the agency, citizen group, or individual. It requires an indication of when an 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
61 

http:353-16.35


IV. New Business 

C.Discussion and Action on Proposed Repeal of 

HAR Title 11, Chapter 200, and Proposed New 

Chapter 200.1, Environmental Impact 
Statement Rules, promulgated by DOH 



Version 0.4 Ramseyer 

Proposed Revisions to Hawaii Administrative Rules 
Title 11 Department of Health Chapter 200 
Environmental Impact Statement Rules , 

February 20, 2018 ,; 

Prepared with the assistance of the Office of Environmental Quality,Control (OEQC). ,. ' 

' 

,, 
\ ', 

1 
/ ' 



Environmental Council 
Proposed.HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

How to Read Version 0.4 

Version 0.4 presents proposed amendments to the Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Chapter 

11-200, Environmental Impact Statements (EISs ), which this document refers to as the "1996 
Rules". Because the proposed reorganization and various revisions, the Environmental Council 

("Council") intends to repeal Chapter 11-200, HAR and promulgate a new chapter. The new 
chapter would be numbered Chapter 11-200.1, HAR, which is reflected in this version. The 

proposed chapter is referred to as the ''Proposed Rules" in Version 0.4. 

Version 0.4 presents a similar organization and formatting as Version 0.,3. It .does not carry 
. ( ' . ·. 

forward all proposed additions and deletions considered in yersions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3. Version 0.4 
only shows changes with respect to the existing 1996 Rules, including those changes proposed 

I ' ..... • ~ 

in and retained from versions 0.1, 0.2, and 0.3 and those newly propo$ed in Vers1on 0.4. 

Unlike the previous versions, Version 0.4 does not have footnotes. Instead, it has a companion 
document providing the rationale for changes between the 1996 Rules'af)d Versiori QA. 

Version 0.4 provides a "Ramseyer-like" style of fortnattir19 to en~ance und~rstar,ding of the 
proposed changes from the 1996 Rules. The style adapts the Legi_slative Reference Bureau 
format, while enhancing readability. ' · · · 

• Defined terms are balded throughout the text to draw,t.he reader's attention to the fact 
,... \ \ ~ ' ' 

that the term has a particular meaning within the context ofrthe Proposed Rules. 
I • I , 

• Pursuant to Ramseyer style, l!riderlining indicates! languag·e that is moved between 
sections (i.e., 1996 language· f~o\n ia section other than tli~ o'ne that the proposed section 

correlates t9) and new languagl3 intrs>duced in Versjon 0.4 of the Council's proposed rules 
working draft. 

• Highlightirg, i~ addition to t.in~erlining, distinguishes new language introduced in Version 

0:l 'of the council's propos€ld rl.J!es working d~aft from 1996 rules language that has been 
, rnov~a. To help contrast with Ve~sion 0.3'; Version 0.4 uses a magenta highlight color. 

• I \ 

• Pwsua11t to Ramseyer style, ~eletions of 1996 rules language are bracketed and struck-
thrdugh. / I 

• Deletions of language that was ri~wly inserted in versions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3 have been 
complet~·ly rerrioyed to pr~s~nt-a clean document that captures the language retained to

date in the ViOrking dr9fts. In some cases, the new language in Version 0.4 may be 
identical or revised l~hguage considered in previous working drafts. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
2 

http:draw,t.he


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Examples of Formatting 

Original 1996 rules language that is in a 
proposed section that correlates with an 
existing 1996 rules section. 

The original 1996 language looks like this 
without any formatting. 

Original 1996 rules language that has been 
moved from a section of the 1996 Rules that 
does not specifically correlate with the section 
it is now in, or is part of a new proposed 
section combining provisions from existing 
sections of the 1996 Rules. This is referred to 
as "moved" language. 

Moved original 1996 language looks like this . 

New language in Version 0.4, including 
language that was introduced and retained 
from versions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3. 

New langua gelliom Versfo~ 0.4 .ii;funder,ITned 
and-highligf.lted,in a".>light orange~ ' 

Original 1996 rules language that is proposed 
to be deleted is bracketed and struck-through. 

19.96 Rules ·ianguage t'hat i~ tq be deleted 
[looks like) his]. ' · · 

' \ 

Example #1: 
Original 1996 rules language that inclddes Th1 py'rpose o(t~is chapter is to provide 
defined terms ("agencies" "persons'', \ I f , ., · I agencies and persons with procedures, 
"environmental assessments", "environmental 

' - ~ • ,., • • ---, • - l""" - ...,- ' 

specification~ [ef] regarding the. contents of 
impact statements''.-), propose_d lang'uage to be environmental assessments (EAs) and 
deleted ("of'), and new ls3nguage_.("(EAs)", 
"(EISs)"). 

environmental impact statements ieiSs}., 
and criteria and definitions of statewide 

application. 

' \ I 
1

Example.#2: , 
Moved 1996 rules language that inc!ude,s a 
defined term ("office"), proposed ws:>'rds,to be 
deleted ("agency" and ."section 11.:209:.3") and 
new language inserted ('!and the° rc!ti6nale" 
and "this subchapte?'). . 

The office shall publish notice of [agency] 
withdrawals and the rationale in accordance 
with [section 11 200 3] rhis subc hapter. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
3 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Table of Contents 
Table of Contents 4 

Subchapter 1 Purpose 6 

§ 11-200.1-1 Purpose 6 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 7 

§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 7 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time · ~ 12 

§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 12N ._, 
Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin~r: 13..,.l ~,, 

§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin :,/'.1Y 13 

§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Wi ij~.,., 14 

16 

18 

18 

20 

20 

21 

22 

22 

23 

23 

24 

25 

26 

26 

28 

§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 29 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 30 

§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 30 

§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 31 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
4 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental 
Assessments [for Anticipated Negati'le Declaration Determinations & Addenda to Draft 
Environmental Assessments] 32 

§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 34 

§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 35 

37 

37 

38 

45 

45 

47 

48 

§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council t-lT~ 1:-,. 
• l" ( ,,. . 

§ 11-2.00.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Im •,ft State , 

50 

50 

Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy €','f · 52 

§ 11-200.1-31 National Environment~~qlicy , 

Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS r·:P 52 

Subchapter 12 Retrnactivity and Sei~0ility 54 

§ 11-200.1-32 ~ e~tjy,i~ ~· 54 

§ 11A-200.1-~~~il at5m\ \;.. ~f, 54 

Note - ··- 1 
-~:. 55 

• I ' , 

. ..; _.:; . ~ 

"' . . . 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200. 1 
5 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 1 Purpose . 

§ 11 -200.1-1 Purpose 

(a) Chapter 343, i-lawaTI Revlsed Statutes,! !HRS1, establishes a system of environmental 

review at the state and county levels [Wffiffi] that shall ensure that environmental 
concerns are given appropriate consideration in decision making along with economic 

and technical considerations. The purpose of this chapter is, to provide agencies and 
persons with procedures, specifications IefJ regard1ng-the c,bnterts of environmental 
·assessments {EAs) and environmental impact staterrien.ts (EISs), and criteria and 
definitions of statewide application. · 

(b) [An EIS] EAs~and EISs [is] .are meaningless without the conscientious application of the 
[€-1-Sj ~nvironm.ental review process as a whole. and shall not be merely a.seit~serving 
recitation of benefits and a rationalization of the proposed 'action. Agencies and . -- -- ~---------- "- ' · -
applicants shall ensure that [statements] EAs and EISs are prepared at the earliest 

opportunity in the planning and decision-making process. This shall assure an early open 
forum for discussion of adverse effects arid available alt~rnatives. and t~at the decision
makers will be enlightened to any envirohmental consequen'ces of the proposed action 
briortodecisioomaking. : ' I ·, ' 

, I 

(c) . l n prepanng any document. proposing agencies~and appHEants shall:' 
(1) [make] Make every etto·tt to convey the\ req\iired information succinctly in a form 

easily. understood, both by hiembers of the public and by government decision

makers. giving attention to the· substance of the information conveyed rather than 
to the particular form. or length, of the document: 

. ,.. ·- - ~·-,. ·,
(~) [care shall be taken] iliake care to concentrate on important issues and to ensure 

that the document ~~mains an essentially self-contained document. capable of 

being understood by the rkader without the need for undue cross-reference;and 
(3) Conduct any required CC>n$ultation as mutual, open and direct. two-way 

fcmimumcat1on, in go ocffaith.-to secure the meaningfulpartlcipationof agencies 
and the publlcTn thefenv1ronmentalreviewpr ocess. 

/ 

[Eff j (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-1, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
6 

http:staterrien.ts


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 

§ 11-200.1 -2 Definitions 

As used in this chapter: 

"Acceptance" means a formal determination [of acceptability] that the document required to be 
filed pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, fulfills the definitions and requirE:rments of an environmental 
impact statement JEIS). [adequqtely describes identifiable eny~ron,men!al impacts, an~ . 
satisfactorily responds to comme~ts received during the revie\\' bf the statement] as prescribed 
by section 11-::200.1-28. Acceptance does not mean that the action i~ environmentally sound or 
unsound, but only that the document complies with chapte'r 343, HRS, and this chapter. A 
determination of acceptance is required prior to implementing or approving the action. . . 

"Accepting authority" means the [fi.AfH] official who,' or agericy that, [determines the 
acceptability of the EIS document] makes thedetermmafionthat a final EIS is reciufredto be 
filed: pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, and that the fina .EIS fulfills the definitions and requirements 
.of an EIS. ' ·, 

"Action" means any program or project to be initiated by an agency or applicant.
• I I , \ 

I 

"Addendum" means an attachment_t_o ;a draft [environmE;ntal as~essment] EA or draft 
[environmental impact statement] Eis, prepared at thJ discretion· 9f the proposing agency,: [eF] 
~pplicant, or approving agency, and _dist il}ct from a supplemental EIS [statement], for the 
purpose of disclosing and addressing clerical ~rrors such as inadvertent omissions, corrections, 
or clarificatiqns to information ~lre~dy contained in the draft [environmental assessment] '.EA or 
the draft [efi¥ironmental impact state~«:;mt] Eis already filed with the office. 

< . 
"Agency" meaps any department, office,\ board, or commission of the state or county 
government [whiffi] that is part of the}ex~cutive branch of that government. 

! 

"Applicant" means any person [wl=!G] that, pursuant to statute, ordinance, or rule, officially 
requests approval frQm an a~~n'cy for a proposed action. 

"Approval" means a discr~tionary consent required from an agency prior to [aswat] 
implementation of an action. [Giscretionary consent means--a--eonsent, sanetion, or 
recommendation from an ageney for which judgment and free will may be exercised by the 
issuing agency, as distinguished from a ministerial consent. Ministerial consent means a 
oonsent, sanetion, or reeommendation from an agency upon a given set of facts, as prescribee 
by-law or rule without the use of judgment or discretion--.] 

"Approving agency" means an agency that issues an approval prior to [~] implementation 
of an applicant action. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
7 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

"Council" [or "EC"] means the environmental council. 

"Cumulative impact" means the impact on the environment [wl=HGR] l hat results from the 
incremental impact of the action when added to other past,· present, and reasonably 
foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency or person undertakes such other 
actions. Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but collectively slgnificant 
actions taking place over a period of time. 

"Discretionary consent" means a consent, sanction, or recommendation from an agency for 
which judgment.and free will may be exercised by the issuin{agency, as 8istihguished from a 
ministerial consent. Ministerial consent means a consent, ;~anction, or recommendation from an 
agency upon a given set of fads, as prescribed by law without the u's'e-of judgment or discretion. 

' 
"Draft environmental assessment" means the [environme,:ital asses~ment] E~ submitted·by a 
proposing agency or an approving agency for public review and ~omlT)ent when that. agency 
anticipates a [negative declaration] finding of no significant impac (FONSI) [determination].

' . 

"Effects" or "impacts" as used in this chapter are synonymous. · Effects may include ecological 
I ' 

effects (such as the effects on natural resources ~nd on the components, structures, and 
functioning of affected ecosystems), aesthetic Jttects, historic effects, cultural effects, 
economic effects, social effects, or health ~ffe~ts, 'whether primJry, secondary, or - - . ; ) ( 

cumulative, immediate or delayed. Effects may also· include those effects resulting from 
actions [wl=HGR] that may have both behef!cial and det(r!m~ntal -effects, even if on balance the 
agency believes th.at the effe~t will be ben~ficial. · 

"EIS preparation noticew·~ [Gf] fEISPN", or "preparation notice" means a determination 
[based or:i •an environmental asse~smert that the subjeet] ihat an action may have a significant 

• " ~ - 1 \ - ~ ~ - --- - ~ - - - - - - ~ -

effect ._o'n the environment and, therefore, will require the preparation of an [environmental 
impaet statement] EIS, based on eittier an EA or an agency's judgment and experience that the 

-- . - i - -
proposed action may have a significant effect on the environment.I 

.. ' I / 

"EIS public scoping meeting" means•a meeting in wh1ch-agencies1 - citizen groups, and the 
general public are notified of the opportunity to assist the proposing agency or applicant in 
~etermining t he rang-e of act'foiis."aiternatives, impacts, and-proposed mitigation measures td 
be considered in the draftB&and the significant issues to be analyzed in depth in the draft 
EIS"! 

"Emergency action" means an action to prevent or mitigate loss or damage to life, health, 
property, or essential public services in response to a sudden unexpected occurrence 
demanding such immediate action. 

·"Environment" means humanity's surroundings, inclusive of all the physical, economic, cultu ral, 
and social conditions that exist within the area affected by a proposed action, including land, 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
8 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

human and animal communities, health, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and 
objects of historic, cultural, or aesthetic significance. 

"Environmental assessment" or ''EA", means a written evaluation (te-eetermine whether an 
aBtie mental effect] ihat serves to provide sufficient evidence.and 
analysis to determine.wh.ether an action may have a significant effect. 

["Environmental impact" means an effect of any kind, 11,«hether immediate or delayed, on any 
component of the environment.] 

. / 

"Environmental Impact statement/~ "statement.".1 or "EIS" means an informational document 
prepared in compliance with chapter 343, HRS[, and this chapter and..i1,hich fully complies 1,vith 

,- I ( •, .. 
subchapter 7 of this chapter]. The initial (statement] EIS filed for public review shall be referred 
to as the draft [environmental impact statement] BS and shall be distinguisheo from the final 
[environmental impact statement] EIS, which is the documellt that h·as incorporated the public's 
comments and the responses to those comments. The final [environmental impact statement] 
EIS is the document that shall be evaluated for acceptability py the [respeisti;.ie] accepting 
authority. 

["Exempt classes of action" means exceptions fyom the requirements Qf chapter 343, HRS, to 
prepare environmental assessments, for a <?las~ of actions, based ,on a determination by the 

• I

proposing agency or approving agency,that the class 9f actions will P,FObably ha1.ie a minimal or 
no significant effect on the environment.] ' 1 

• 
. I I,: 

"Exemption notice" means a [brief notice kept on file by the proposing agency, in the case of a 
[public action, or the agency with the power of approval, in the case of a private action, when it 
has determined that the-pra13esed-project is an exempt or emeF§~eet] notice -produced Tn' 
accordancewithsubchapter 8for an action thata proposing agency .oi- approving agencyon 
behalf of an applicant determines to be exempt from preparation of an EAl 

"Final environmental assessment" means either the [environmental assessment]~ submitted 
by a proposing agency or an approving agency following the public review and comment 
period for the draft [Ofl-Vifenmental assessment] ~ and in support of either a FONSI or [a 
preparation notice] .an EISPN. '[determination; or the environmental assessment submitted by a 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
9 

http:respeisti;.ie


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

proposing agency or an approving agency subject to a publ-iG-Bensultation period when such an 
agency clearly determines at the outset that the proposed action may have a significant effect 
and hence will require the preparation of a statement.] 

"Finding of no significant impact" or "FONS!" means a determination by an agency based on 
an EA that an action not otherwise exempt will not have a significant effect on the 
environment and therefore does not require the preparation of an EIS. A FONSI is required 
prior to implementing or approving the action. 

"Impacts" means the same as "effects'; .I 

"Issue date" means the date imprinted on the periodic builetin req~lred by s~ction 343-3, HRS. 

"National Environmental Policy Act" br ''NEPA'\ means the National Environmental Policy 
Act of 1969, Public Law 91-190, 42 U.S.C. [§] sectfons 432~-4347, a~ amendea. . 

["Negative declaration" or "finding of no significant impact" means a determination by an agency 
based on an environmental assessment that a given action n·ot other.vise mcempt does not have 
a significant effect on the environment and thererore does not require the preparation of an EIS. 

I ' 

A negative declaration is required prior to implemerting or ,appro~.«ing tpe action.] 

"Office" means the .Office of~nvironmehtal ,Quality Qohtrol. 
I 

"Periodic bulletin" or j'bulletin'~ m~an's the documen\ required by section 343-3, HRS, and 
published by the office. 

"Person" includes any individual, partnership, firm, association, trust, estate, private corporation, 
or other legal entity other than an agency. 

["Prep~ration notice" or "EIS prepardtion notice_means a determination based on an 
• • I \ ' 

environmental assessment that the subje,ct action may have a significant effect on the 
. I , 

environment dn.d, therefore, will require the preparation of an environmental impact statement.] 

"Primary impact-". eF "primary effect:"· Of "direct impact-" or "direct effect" means effects 
~ . .a. .a. • '· • .1 J. :.a. J. 

[wl=Hsh] .that are caused oy the action and occur at the same time and place. 

1'Project" means adiscrete, pianned undertaking that has a defined-begTnnmg and end time. Ts 
site specific, and has a specific goal or purpose; 

FProgram" means a series of one ofmore projects to be carried out concurrently or in- phases 
fwithin a general timeline, that may include multiple sites or geographic are.as, and is undertaker/ 
r,;- - . -- - -- ... - -- ...... - -- - - - - - - -- - ' 
for a broad goal or purpose. A program may include: a number of separate projects in a given 
~eographic area which, if considered singly, may have minor impacts, but if considered togetherl 

- -- • • - - - ·- - - -·- • - -- • -- •• -- -- - · -· I 
may have significant impacts; separate projects having generic or common impacts; an entire 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
10 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

plan having wide application or restricting the range of future alternative policies or actions,: 
lnciuding new·significant changes to existmg landuseplans, develo-pment plans,zonin-g 
r - . -- - - -- ·- -
regulations, or agency comprehensive resource management plans: implementation of a single 
,·- -· -· --- - - -- - -- . - - - - -- . -1
project or multiple projects over a long timeframe: or implementation of a single project over a 
large geographic area~ 

1•Proposlng agency" means any state or county agency that proposes an action underchapter: 

343.HR& 

"Secondary impact[:;:}"~[ei:] "secondary effect[:;:}"~ [ei:] "indireqt impact[;:]" !)r.l'indirect effect" 
I -- ·- ~ • \ . • 

means an [effests] effect [WRiGfl] that [are] i§ caused by the action and [are] is later in time or 
farther removed in distance, but [a-Fe] !§ still reasonably foreseeable. [Indirect] lA.n inctlrect 
[effects] effect may include~ growth~inducing [effects] ~ffEict ~nd other effects r~lated to 
induced changes in the pattern of land use, population density or growth rate, ~nd related 
effects on ai( [a-Ra] water.1 and other natural systems, incluqirig ecosystems. 

. . 

"Significant effect" or "significant impact" means the sum of effects on.,the quality of the 
~-- '· 

environment, including actions that irrevocably c9mmit a natur~I resource, curtail the range of 
beneficial uses of the environment, are contrary to the [stat&s] State's environmental policies or 
long-term environmental goals and guidelines a§ established by law, [ei:] adversely affect the 

' I ' 

economic welfare, [ei:] social welfare, or cultural practices..,of the c0mmunity and state,: or are 
otherwise set forth in section [1 1 200 12];il\ioIT-14 fbf this chapter]. 

' !
I , \ 

"Supplemental [statement] EIS" m~earis an [additional environmental impact statement] '.updated 
Efs' prepared for al) action fo[ which [a stat~ment] ~n EIS w9s previously accepted, but which 

has since changed supsta11tively in size,· scope, intensity, use, location, or timing, among other 
things. 

A "triggef' means any use or activity listed in section 343-5{a), HRS, requiring preparation of an' 
r - - -, ' ' 
environmental assessment. · 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 34~-5; 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-2, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
11 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 

§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 

In computing any perlod of time·-prescribed or allowed by this chapter~ order of the council, or by 
any apolicable statute, the day of the act. event. or default after which the designated periodof 
tfme is to ru·n. shall not be included.--The last day of the period so computed shall be included 
unlessit isa Sundayor legal holiday.' 

! 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 1-29, 8-1, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 1-29, 8,-1, 343-6) 

<-: 

I 
I I 

.{. 

\ 

\ 
J 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
12 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic 
Bulletin 

§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 

(a) The periodic bulletin shall be issued on the eighth and twenty-third days of each month. 

(b) [The office shall inform the public through the publication of~ periodic bulletin of the · 

following:] When filed in accordance with section· 11~200\~ -5, tlile' office shall publish ttie 
following in the periodic bulletin to inform the publitbfactions undergoing chapter 343, 
HRS env.ironmental review and the associated pu@Tc commeri't perioG:ls provided here or. 

- - - -- • -, l / "' •, 

.elsewhere by statute: 
(1) Determmations that an existing exemption, FONSl~r, accepted EIS satisfies 

chapter 343, HRS for a proposed activity; < 

(2) Elcemptlon notices and lists.of actions an.agency has determined to Be exempt: 
(3) (Notices filed b•1 agencies of the availaoility of environmental assessments] Draft 

EAs and appropriate addendum dbcuments -for ~ubi12 review and [comments] 

thirty-day comment period, including notice ofaiianticipated FG>NS( 
(4) Final EAs, including notice of a FONSI, or~ ISP.N·with thirty-day comment 

'period and notice of EIS public scoping meeting~and appropriate addendum' 
tlocuments: I ,. I 
~~~~· . 

(5) Notice of an EISPN,wlth thirty-day com'ment peri0a and notice of EIS public 
sc.oplng.meeting-;'and appropi-iateaddendum ddcuments; 

(6) [Notices filed by agencies of] Evaluatlons and determinations that 'supplemental 
, - ' ' (statements] EISs are required or not required; 

(7) . . [The availability of.statements] 9 rnft EISs, including draft supplemental 
(statements] EiSsJ and appropriate addendum documents for public review and 

forty-five day commeilt period; 
(8) F1narEiss~1ncluding fi al supplemental EISs, and a·ppropriate addendum 

oocuments; / 
(9) (The) Notice of ~cceptance or non-acceptance of (statements] EiSs, including 

~upplemental EISs; · 
(10) J~epublit:ation otanychapter343, HRS noticeS:-documents, or cfeterrmnatfons:· 

l •• ..._,...___ ~~- -- r""'-•- -- - - - -· - -, 

(11) Notices of withdrawal of any chapter 343, HRS notices, documents, ori 

.determinations; 
(12) Other notices required by the rules of the council. 

(c) When filed in accordance with thJS subchapter, theoffice shall publishother notices 

'required by statute or rules, including those not specifically related to chapter 343, HRS.. 

(d) The office may, on a space b r time available basis, publish other notices not specifically 
related to chapter 343, HRS. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
13 

http:lists.of


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-3, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 

(a) Anything required to be pub[shed in-fh_e.bulletin shaH be submitted to the office before 
Hie closeof business four business days prior-to the issuedate: 

(b) All submittals to the office for publication in the bulletin shall be accompanied by a 
completed informational form [WAffiR] that provides whatever·information the office needs 
to properly notify the public. The information requested may include the following: the 
title of the action: the islands affected by the proposed action: tax map key numbers: 
street addresses: nearest geographical landmarks: latitudinal and longitudinal 
coordinates or ofher ge.ographic data:applicablepermits,Tnc1ficllilg for, a1;>pflcants, the . - - - -- " -~ - ·-- .· ., , ·,
approval requiring chapter 343, HRS environmental re'iliew1 whether the proposed 
action is an agency or an applicant action: a citation 'of the applicable federal or state 
statutes requiring preparation of the document: the type of docu·inent prepared: the 
names, addresses, email addresses~ phone numbers and contact persons as applicable 

/ ' ' ' of the accepting authority, the proposing.agency, the.approving agency, the 
applicant, and the consultant: and a brief narrative ~ummary of the 'proposed action 
[WRiGR] That provides sufficient detail to convey the full impact of the proposed action to 
the public. ' · 

(c) The office shalfnot accept untlmely submittaTs or reviSIOnS t~ereto afterthe issue date 
deacffine forwhich the submittal was onginally\filed haspas sed! 

\ . 

(d) 

(e) a'o be pul:5lished in the bulletin, all submittais to the office siiaii meet the filing 
requirements•in subsections1(aI=lc} andbeprepared in accordancewTffithischapfer and=----r . . -- . . - . . 1 

:Chapter 343, HRS1 as appropriate. The following shall meet additional filing 
~equlrements:: 
(1) When the d~ment ls a-draftEAwith an anticfuatecl FONSI, the-proposing 

r-- -:agency or approving agency shall: 
(A) file thedocument and determination with the office: 
(B) Deposit, or require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing 

[par;3qraph (5)] fcltFie office, one paperi copy of the draft (environmeA-tal 
assessment] ;EA. at the nearest state library in each county in which the 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
14 



- - -

Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 · 

proposed action is to occur and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents 

Center: and 

(C) Distribute, concurrently (with the filing in paragraph (5),1 the draft 

[environmental assessment] EA to other agencies having jurisdiction or 
expertise as well as citizen groups and individuals which the proposing 
agency reasonably believes to be affected: 

(2) When the document is a final EA with- a FON.SI, the proposing agency or 

approving agency shall: 

. (A) fncorporate,or require the-applicant to incorporate, the FONSI into the 

contents of Th-e finaf EA~-as prescnbed in section 1 :r=-20O.1 ::-21, section11-
20cf1-22, a-nd s-ection · 11-26cf.1 ~i3: · 

(8) Flle the finalEA andthem corporate'cf FONSI with the office: and 
(C) Deposit," or require the- applicant to Beo'osiCconc rrently with the filing to 

the office,-one- paper.copy of ·the final-EA\vffii ffie HawaTioocume-nts 
t - • "· ./•,

.Center:, , 
• - - - -- . • - -·· - - .• 1 . 

(3) When the document is a final EA with an EISPN, the proposing agency or 
~pproving agency shaTf :· '-

(A) Incorporate; or regurre the applicant to incorporate, the EISPN into the 

t ontents oHhe tlnalEA, as pre'scriliea in section 11~ 1'-21 ,section 11-
200:22, andsection-IT-2ffiDT=z3A:: -

(8) Filetherncorporated·E·ISPN' w ith the final EA: and 

(C) Dep-os,torrequTr.effie,appttcantlo.deposiUcd'ncurrently with the filing td 
,-~ -- --,,_.,,., -- --1-7.r - - ~ - - -------- - --,
the office, one paper copy of the final EA witli the Hawaii Documents 
Center: / ·,.\ '- ' 

(4) When tile;notice is ar:i EISPNwith-out the prebaratTon of an EA the proposing 
age ncy or approving agency shall: 

(A) Fffethe EISPN with the office: and 
(8) Deposit, o require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to 

,, the office:-one paper copyc)tthe EISPN at the nearest statelibrary in 
r- . - - - -
.each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper COP¥ 
atthe FiawaTiooc1:1merits ·center: 

(5) When.the document isa draft •EIS, the.i>roposing agency or applicant sha-11: 

(A) .[¥1 Sign .ahd date [the original GOP\' of] the draft [or final] EIS [and shall]: 

(8) lndicate.inat the lliaft [statement] Eis and all ancillary documents were 

~repa.red under the signatory's direction or supervision and that the 

information submitted, to the best of the signatory's knowledge fully 

addresses document content requirements as set forth in [sections 11 
200 17 and 11 200 18, as appropriate] gubchapter 1 0: 

(C) file the draft EIS with the accepting authority and the office 
simultaneously: aoo 

(D) lSeposilor require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filingto 
' - -- -- - . -- - - ·- - - . - - -- 'C7
the office, one paper copy of the draft EIS at the nearest state library in 

,each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper cop'r( 

~tt tie Hawaii Documents Center-:-: and 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

15 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

.(fil :s u-bmit to the office one true and correct copy of the original audio file, at 
standard quality, -of alforal comme-nts received at the timedesitinated 

within theEIS public scoping meeting(s) for receiving oral comments: 
(6) When th-e document7s afinal ETS,tfieproposing agency or applica ntshall:, 

(A) [6i@l Sign and date [the original copv of) the [draft or] final EIS (and shall]; 
(B) Indicate that the finai [statement] E IS and all ancillary documents were 

prepared under the signatory's direction or supervision and that the 
information submitted, to the best of the signatory's knowledge fully 
addresses document content requirements as..set forth in [sections 11 

-· --~ - ' 200 17 and 11 200 18, as appropriate] :subcHapter 1O,, and 
(C) 'i=ilett,e final EIS with the accepting atithority,and ,tl:le,offlce 

simultaneously:, ; . 

(7) When the- notic e is an acceptance or non-,foceptance of a..finaTEIS, the 
accepting authority shafl: . ·, 

{6}. File the notice of acceptance or non-acceptance of a final,EIS\.vith'the 

office:a~ . 
{ID Simultaneously transmit the notice-to the proposing agency,ora pplicant;' 

(8) When the notice is of the withdrawal,ofan anticipated FONSl.~FONSi, or EISPN 
the proposing agen-cy or approvinga gency,shall:include a,rationale- of th~ 
Withdrawal specifying any associhle~ documfuits,to,lie withdrawn:' 

(9) Whenthe notice IS o f the wlthdrawal,ofa draffEIS'or1mal EIS, the proposing 

agency or applicant shal simultrri'eousfy file the notiee::wfUi the office and 
submit the notice witli.aE"cepting autficratv: and / ' 

(10) wiierllile submffi:al·fs a·changed versTon of'a~notic e, document, or,determination' 
previously•published and withdrawn.Tue submitta( shalfbefiled as the,iseconcf 
~ bmittal, or' "th'ird" or "f~~as appropriate.. (Example:- A draft EIS-is 
r ~ - ....,. -·- - . -· ·---,- -- -- - - ~- - -- ·- -
,witharawn ancl ct.tanged. It is then filed with the office for publication as the 

- ~ - ...... ~ 
,'second draft EIS",for the particular action.)

' \\< 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-3, 343-6)

• I 

i 
I 

§ 11 -200.1-~ R~publication of Notices, Documents, and 
Determinations 
(a) An agency or appifoaiit'responsible for filing achapter 343)fRS notice, document. 0 ~ 

- - ;;-;-,, · . ·- - . ·-·· - - - ---- - -- - - - -
rJetermination may file an unchanged, previously published submittal in the bulletin 
'provided that the fil ing requirements of this subchapter and any other publication 
~egwrements-setforth inthischapter orchapter343, HRsare·satisfied. 

(b) M/hen the publication of a previously published chapter 343, HRS notice, document, or 
determination involves a public comment period under this chapter or chagter .343, HRS: 
(1) ffhe publiccomment penod stlaITbe-as required- for that notice, documen( ori 

'.determination pursuant to this chapter or chapter 343, HRS or as otherwise 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
16 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

statutorily mandated. (F-or example, publication of a-n uncha-nqed draft EIS 
lnitiates a forty-five day pubITc comment period· upon publication inthe bulletin.); 
and 

(2) Any co-mments received during the comment period must tie considered in the 
same manner as setforthm thlschapter and chapter3~HRS, for thatnotice, 
Hcicument, or -determinatio-n type, inaddffion to- co mments received -in--any ofheri 

comment periodassocTatecf withthe pubifcation ofthenotice, -document, or1 
deterrrnnatlon. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 341-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS .§§ 341-3, 343-3, 313-5, 343-6) 

• I 

\ 
I 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
17 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 

§ 11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting 
Authority 

(a) Whenever an agency proposes an action, the [fiA.a!] authority to accept [a statement] an 
Eis shall rest with: 

(1) The governor, or [afl] the governor's authorized repnfs~ntative, whenever an 
action proposes the use of state lands or [the use of] state _funds or[,] whenever a 

state agency proposes an action [witrnfl] :i.md~li section [11 200 6(b)] ;11-200.1-9; 
I 

or < 
(2) The mayor, or [afl] the mayor's authorized representative, of the respective county 

whenever an action proposes only the use of q,ounty ]ands or coi,mty f~nds. 
ln the-event that a"n actfon Tnvofves state and county-lands, .state and count¥ funds, or: 

both state andcounty lands and funds, the governor or the governo r's authorized 
representativesilalf have authority To Eiccepttlie EIS~ . , 

(b) Whenever an applicant proposes an action, the authority for requiring an EA or 
[statements] EIS, [and for] hiakirig a determination -regarding any required EA~ and 
accepting any required [stateme11ts] 'EIS [that have been pt!3pared]'shall rest with the 

- - - ~ \ \ ' -- ---�-...,..,,. -- - - -
approving agency [initially recpiving and agre,eing] lhat initially received and agreed to 
process the request for an appf.oval. With redpet t to EIS~. this approving agency is 
'also- called th-e a ccepting i uthority; ' · . 

' 
(c) In the eifent that [there is] more than one agency [that] l~ proposing the action or, in the 

case 6f:"applicants, more than one agency has jurisdiction over the action, and these 

?gencies are unable to agr~e as to wh'ich agency has the responsibility for complying 
<with [section 343 5(c)] bhapfer 343, HRS, [the office, after consultation with] the agencies 
i~volved, shall '.consu-lt with on'eanother to determine which agency is responsible for 
,compliance. In making the [d~terminatioo] cfecfsion, the [effiGe] agencies shall take into

' /
considen~tion, i~cluding, but not limited to, the following factors: 
(1) [+he] ~iVnich ager;tcy [1Nith the] hasthe greatest responsibility for supervising or 

approving the action as a whole; . 

(2) [+he] wtlicR agency [tAat] can most adequately fulfill the requirements of chapter 
·343, HRS, and this chapter; 

(3) [+he] Which agency [that] has special expertise or greafest access to information 
1relevant to.theaction's implementation and impacts'; [aoo] 

(4) The extent of participation of each agency in the action(.-1; and 
(5) Tn the case ofan action With pro-po"sed use of state ~r county lands or·funds, 

Which agency has themostland or funds involved in the action. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
18 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(d) in the event that there is more thanone agency that is proposing the action, ·or in the 
case of applicants~ more than one agency.has Iurisdiction ovedhe action, and afteri 
appiyinq the criteria in-subsection (c) these..agencies are unable to agree asfo- whicH 
agency has the responsibility for complying with chapter 343, HRS, the office, after 
consultation wiffl the agencies invoived,- shall apply thes ame-cons1derat1ons in 
subsection (c) to decide which agency is~responsiblefur compTiance. 

(e) The office shall not serve as the accepting authority for any proposed agency or 
applicant action.' , 

(f) The office may provide recommendations to the agency br applicant responsible for the 
[environmental assessment] EA or EIS regarding any applicable ·ad~inistrative content 
requirements set forth in this chapter. 

< 
[Eff l (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

\ ' .,, 

I 
I 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
19 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 6 Applicability 

§ 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 

(a) 'Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for ariy agen'cy action that 
includes-one or more triggers as identified in se-ction .343-S(a), HRS: 

(1) Under section343-5(a), HRS,l use of state or county funds shall include any form 

of funding assistance flowing from· the State or§. county, and use of state or 
county lands includes any use (title, lease, permit, easement, licenses, etc.) or 

. ' 
entitlement to those lands. 

(2) [For agency actions, chapter 343, HRS, exe'mpts from applicability] Under sect1on 
- I ' I 

343-S(a), HRS, any feasibility or planning study for possible futur~ programs or 
projects [wh-isl:l] ffiat the agency has not approyed, adopted, or funde,d are 
exempted from chapter 343, HRS-, envlronmental review. Nevertheless1 if cfn 
agency is studying the feasibility of a proposai, it sha!I con~ider envirorimental 
factors and available alternatives and disclose these in ~ny future [assessment] 
EA or subsequent [statement] 'EIS. If[, howe11er,] the planning and feasibility 
studies involve testing or other actions [WfiiGR] lhat rpay have a significant impact' , -· .,,on the environment, [ti=leR] an [en\1ironmental assessment] .EA or EIS shall be 

I I · 
prepared. 
~ - - - - ,. --

(3) ,Under section 343-S(a)(H, HRS, actions involving agricult ral tourism under 
r - -- - . ~ ·- . - , --- - - -
section 205-2(d)(11), HIRS or section 20ffi-4.5(a)(13), HRS, must perform 
environmental reviewoHfvtwhen required under: section 205-5(b), HRS~ 

\ ' 

(b) 

(c) 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

20 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant 
Actions 

(a) Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for any applicant action that: 
(1) Requires one or- more fa§eflsy] approvals prior to implementation: and 
(2) Includes one or more-triggers identified in sectfon .343-5(a), HRS.I 

(A) '.Under Chapter 343-5(a), HRS.I use of state or county funds shall include 

any form of funding assistance flowing from' the State or acounty, and use 
of state or county lands includes any use (title, lease, permit, easement. 

licenses; etc.) or entitlement to those lands. ' ' 
(8) Under section 343-5(a)(1), HRS, actions involving.agricultural tourism 

under section 205-2(d)(11), HRS cir :secfio n 205-°[S(af(~ 3), HRS, must 
performenviromnentalreview on.Iv when requlrea under seciion20S:S(b), 
'f-fRS~ 

(b) Chapter 343, HRS does not require environmental review for.applicant actions,wn en: 
ill Notwithstandfng a ny ofher law to the contrar,,:lor any primary action that requires 

!a permit or approval that is not subject to a disctetionary consent and that involves 
'a-secondaryaction that isancTiiacyancf Iimite to tne.1nsta1lation, improvement: 
re-no vation, construction~ordeveloFme ntof~m structurewffllTn"an existing pubTic 
right-of-way or highway, that secondary acticm shal be exempt from this chapter: 
provided that the applicant for the primarwaction snail sub.mit documentation' 
f rom thea ppropriate agency confummg tRat no- fuftherd.iscretionary approvals are 
~~quired. •' · ' · 

!2.} As usea in this .subsectiom 

ffi1 !1Oiseretioraaryc onsent" means an action as defined in section 343-2; or 
,: - ~--.... --- ------ - - - ~- .,~ 

an approval from a decisio ~making authority in an agency, which approval 
'is subject to a pl!lblf c heariii'ii1 

'.tfil f lnfrastruc ture" inoludeswaterlines and water facilliies~wastewater Tines 
a nd wastewat~ facilities, gas lines and.ga-s facilities, drainage fac ilities ~ 
e lectrical, comm1m1cations, telephone,-and cable television utilities, and 
highway, roadway, and driveway improv ements: 

:tQi /IRrimary ac~ means an action outside of the highway or public right-of
. ay that1Sori"private properti 

ill}_ ''Secondary action" means an action involving infrastructure within the 
highway orpubilc right: ot=wa? 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § §343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
21 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 

§ 11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Actions 

A group of actions proposed by an agency or an applicant shall be treated as a single action 
when: 

(1) The component actions are phases or increments of a larger total undertaking; 
(2) An individual [f}ffijeGt] action is a necessary precedent [fef] fo a larger [13FejeGt] 

action'; 

(3) An individual [project] action' represents a commitment to a larger [f}ffijeGt] action; 
or 

(4) The actions in question are essentially identical and, a 'single EA orl [statement] 
EIS will adequately address the impacts of each' individual action and those of 
the group of actions as a whole. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 

~ 

§ 11 -200.1 -11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Ffndings ·of No Significant 
Impact, or Accepted Environmentaj Impact Statements to Satisfy 
Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed {-\ctivitie9· 

.@) 

When an ageney-determineslilat a prior exemption', FONSI, or-an accepted EIS satisfies • 
,chapter 343, HRS fur a proposecf aciMty~the agency maysubmita brief writfenratronale 
.to the office fofpublicationpursuant to section 11-200.1-4 and the proposed activity may 
'proceed without further1chapter 343, HRS environmental revieWJ 

When an agency determines that the proposed activity warrants environmental review, 
1the agency may submit a brief written rationale to the officefor publication pursuant to 
~ection 1 f -2Ci0.1-4 andtheagency-shall proceed to compiy with subchapter 7.I 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
22 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 

§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of Previous Dete_rminations and 
Accepted Statements 

[fa1] [Chapter 343, HRS, provides that whenever an agency proposes to implement an action 

or receives a request for approval, the agency may consider and, when applicable and 
appropriate, incorporate by reference, in whole or in part, pr¢vipus determinations of 
whether a statement is required, and previously accepted statements.] 

\ ' 

[(e)] A proposing agency or applicant may incorporate informati0fi or analysis from a 
"relevant £Previous] prior [determinations] ,exemption notfcllinal EAl rand previously 
accepted statements may be incorporated] or acceptedEIS into an exemption notice, 
EA, EIBP~orEis; (by applicants and agencies] fudiproposedaction Wh!;)r:iever the 
information :or analysis [contained therein] is pertinent [to the ~eciston at hand] and has 
logical relevancy and bearing to the proposed actfon [!?eing con~ider~d]. (For example, 
aproject that was broadly-c-onsidered aspar:fof an accepted programmatic EIS may 
lncoroorate refevantportions fromtheacc'epted programmaticEISby reference.) 

( ,' l -

[tGJ] [Agencies shall not, •1,1ithout cons_ider,able pre exa'mi_nation and comparison, use past 
determinations, and previous s,atement to app,ly t9 the action'at hand. The action for 
which a determination is SO\Jght, shall be thoroyghly revieWed prior to the use of previous 
determinations and previou~ly aocqpted statements. F·urther, when-previous 

determin~tions and previous statem'ents are considered or incorporated by reference, 
they shaU be substantially similar· to and,rele1,ant to the action then being considered.] 

' ' 

' [Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HF{S §§ 343-5, 343-6) 
< 

I 

\ 
I 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
23 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 

§ 11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 

(a) In considering the significance of potential environmental effects, agencies shall consider 
the sum of effects on the quality of the environment[,] and shall evaluate the overall and 

cumulative effects of an action. 

(b) In determining whether an action may have a significant effect on the environment, 
the agency shall consider every phase of a proposed action, the expected 

[GefIBequences] impacts, both primary and secondary, and the cumulative as well as 
I 

the short-term and long-term effects of the action. In most instances, an action shall be 

determined to have a significant effect on the environ~e~t jf it is'fikely to: 
(1) [Involves an irrevocable oommitment to loss· or destruction of any natural or 

cultural resouroe] Irrevocably commit a natJral,' cultura( or historic resource; 
(2) [Curtails] C urtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment; ' 
(3) [CenffiGts] Conffict w ith the [state!s] State' s [long term] environmental poLicies pr 

long-term environmental goals [and guideline~ as expressed in chapter 344, HRS, 

or other laws,] asestabffshed by°iaw [and any revisions thereof and amendments . ' 
thereto, court decisions, or executive orders]; 

,- - - -~ ~ -;-,,,-; ~ 1.-

(4) [Substantially affects] Have a substantial adverse effect on the economic .welfare, 

[Of] social welfare, or cuituraf practices of the 'community or State; 
(5) [Substantially affects] Have a su stantial ad~etse effect on public health; ~- --~·· ' \ . \
(6) [Involves] Involve adverse secondary impacts, such as population changes or 

1 
effects on public facil[! i~s; . \ 

(7) [Involves] 'Involve a -~ub~taptial degradation of environmental quality; 

(8) Is inqividually !imited but cumulatively h~s [considerable] ~ubstantial adverse 

effect upon the ·enyironment or involves a commitment for larger actions; 

(9) [Substantialiy-affects] Have"""a substantial-adverse effect on a rare, threatened, or 

endangered species, or its habitpt; 

, (10) [Detrimentally affects] Have a suBstantial adverse effect on air or water quality or 
ambient noise levels; , 1 

(11) [l\ffects] Have a suhstantial adverse effect on or is likely to suffer damage by 

being .!ocated in an en\tirohmentally sensitive area such as a flood plain, tsunami 

zone, sea level rrserexposure area~ beach, erosion-prone area, geologically 

hazardous·l~nd, estuaty, fresh water, or coastal waters; 
(12) [Substantially affects] Have a substantial adverse· effect on scenic vistas and 

viewplanes, during dayormghl identified in county or state plans or studies; or,
~ - ·- · ' --- ..

(13) [Requires] Require substantial energy consumption or ~mit substantial 
grnenhousegases. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-2, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 

24 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 

(a) For.an agency action, through its judgment and experience, [an agency proposing an' 
actio-n] aproposing agency shall assess the significance of the potential impacts of the 

action, Tncludm g the overall cumulative impact in lfoht of related past, present, a nd 
reasonably-foreseeableactions inthe area affected,· to' determine the-level of 

:environmentai revlew necess·ary for the action.' 

(b) For an applicant action, within thirty days from the receipt of.the-applicant's request.for 
approvai to- the-approving agency, t hrough its judgment ar;1d experience, an approving 
age-ncy shall assess.the signfficance o(the potential impacts of the action-, includinqthe 

bverall cumulative impact in light of related past, (resent, and1reasonably foreseeable 
actions in the area affected, to determine the levehofe!nvironmental review necessary for 

11·hea~t1on. • .,. -~ -

(c) 

(d) 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
25 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice 
Requirements 

§ 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 

(a) [Chapter 343, HRS, states that a list of classes of actions shall be drawn up which, 
because they will probably have ·minimal or no significant effret on the environment, may 

be declared exempt by the proposing agency or approving agency from the preparation
I • 

of an environmental assessment provided that agencies declaring an action exempt 

under this section shall obtain the advice of other outside agencies or.individuals having 

jurisdiction or expertise as to the propriety of the e~emption.) Some ·a2tions, because 
' - --- - - . ~ - :-. . -. 

they will individually and cumulatively probably have·minihial or no significant effects, 
can- be decl arede xempt fromt hepreparation of aii EA~ ; .. •. 

(b) Actions declared exempt from the preparation of ar) [environmental_assessment] EA 
under this [seetion] subchapter are not exef!.lpt from complying with a·ny other applicable 

statute or rule. 

(c) The following [list represents exempt cldssti.s of ac~on] general types-of actions are 
eligible for exemption: ·. • 

1 

(1) Operations, repairs, or maintenance of existing str\jctures, facilities, equipment, or 

topographical featur:&s, lnvplving [negli~ibl~ Of [lO] iiifnor, expansion or minor, 

change of use beyond that ·previously existing; 
. \ 

(2) Replacement or reconstruction of existing structures and facilities where the new 

structure will be lo~at~d generally .on the same site and will have substantially the. 

same purpose, capacitY,, density, height, and dimensions as the structure 

replaced; ' 
(3) Construction and location of single, new, small facilities or structures and the 

alteration and modific~tion'. of the same and installation of new, small, equipment 
and f~cilities and the alter.~tion and modification of same, including, but not limited 

' to: 
(A) Single-family residences less than 3,500 square feet; as me·asllred by-the 

I'" ' - . - . · - --- - ·- - -- -- - -- . - ---- ----· 
.comtrolling law under which the proposed action is being considered, if not 

in conjunction with the building of two or more such units; 

(B) Multi-Unit structures designed for not more than four dwelling units if not in 
conjunction with the building of two or more such structures; 

(C) Stores, offices, and restaurants designed for tota l occupant load of twe nty 

[J3eFseR-S] i ndividuals or [tess) fewer! per structure, if not in conjunction w ith 

the building of two or more such structures; and 

(D) W ater, sewage, electrical, gas, telephone, and other essential public utility 

services extensions to serve such structures or facilities; accessory or 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

26 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

appurtenant structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming 
pools, and fences; and, acquisition of utility easements; 

(4) Minor alterations in the conditions of land, water, or vegetation; 
(5) Basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource and 

Infrastructure testing and evaluation activities [WA-i-ffi] that do not result in a 
serious or major disturbance to an environmental resource; 

[fa-)] Construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities-;-
[R] Interior alterations involving things such as partitions, plumbing, and electrical 

conveyances; 
([8]§) Demolition of structures, except those structure~ [located on any historic site as 

designated in] that are listed on or that meet ff1e criteria for'ffstin-g on the national 
register or Hawaii [register as provided for ip th~ Natiopal Historic Preservation 
/\ct of 1966, Public Law 89 665, 16 U.S.C. §470, as amend~d, or chapter 6E, 
MRS] Register of Historic Places; . 

([Q]Z) Zoning variances except shoreline set-back v~riances; [aoo] 
([4Q]§) Continuing administrative activities +RGJ.uding, but not limited to purchase of 

supplies and personnel related actions; 
([44]ID Acquisition of land and existing structures, including single or multi-unit dwelling

' ' 
units, for the provision of affordabJe housing, involving no material change of use 
beyond [#lat] previously existing tises~ 1 and for whi_ch th~ legislature has 
appropriated or otherwise c!u,thorized funding [.,.J;_filb 
,- - - :.. ~ _J. ----.c--r-:- -- - -

(10) New construction of affordable housing,1where afforaable'housing is defined by 
the controlling law appl[cab'ie for the state br co-untyproposing agency or 
r - - - __,_ ~ ~ - - .,,
approving agency, that meets the following~ 
(A) Raslhe use-of state -or countylands or funds or is· within Waikiki as the 

sole triggers for compttance-with chapter.343~ HRS: 
(B) Asprop0sed conforms wifht fie"exfstingstate urban land classification; 
(C) As proposed is consistent witht he existing cou-nty zoning classification 

provided that allows housing( a-nd 
· (D) As proposed d0es not require variances for shoreline setbacks or siting in 

-· - 'I - - -
an environmentally sensitive area.' 

I. 

(d) All exemptions under [the classe.§ in this section] subghapter 8 are inapplicable when the 
cumulative irt1pact _o~ planned successive actions in the same place, over time, is 
significant, or when an action that is normally insignificant in its impact on the 
environment may b~ significant in a particularly sensitive environment. . 

(e) Any agency, at any time, may request that a new exemption [Glass] type be added, or 
that an existing one be amended or deleted. The request shall be submitted to the 
council, in writing, and contain detailed information to support the request as set forth in 
section 11-201-16, HAR. environmental council rules. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
27 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-16 Exemption Lists 

(a) Each agency, through time and experience, [sl:la-U} may develop its own exemption list 
consistent with both' the letter and intent expressed in-this subchapter and in chapter3431 
HRS,:of . 

(1) Routine activities and ordinary functions within the jurisdiction or exp-ertise of the 
;agency that by their n-ah.ire do not have the potentTul fo in-dividuafiy 0~ 

cumulative·ivacfversely affect the environmentm·ore than negllgibly and that the 
agency considers ton ot rise to the level of req-urring -chapter343, HRS 
environmental revfew. Examplesof routine activities and- ordinary functions may 
lnclude~ amongothers: -routine repair, routine maintenance: 1purchase ofsupplies, 
~nd continuing administrativ-e activities involving .,.pe-rsonnel only, nondestructive 
data collection, installation of routine signs aiicrmarkers, financial transactions: 

- ·- -~--
personnel-related matters, construction or placement.of minor structures 
accessory to existing facilities: interior alterations involving things -such as 
r· - -·• - - -- - ~~- .,_
partitions, plumbing, and electrical conveyances: and ' 

(2) [specific types of actions 1Nhich fall within the exempt cli;isses as long as these 
lists are consistent with both the letter and intent,expressed in tbese exempt 
classes and chapter 343, HRS] Types of actions that the agency considers fo be 
lncluded wfthin the exempt gener-al types listed in section 11-200. 1-15! 

'-

- --.,:.· ' 1-- ,_,.;; - .. . 
(b) An agency may use part one of,its exemption ,list, developed pursuant to (a)(1), to 

'exempt a specific activity from pi:eparation-of a'ii"EAand th'e r equirements of section 11-
~ -- ---- - _,.. -- -- --- --- ---~ 

:200.1-17 because the agency considers the specific activity to be de minimis. 

(c) An agency ~ ay use part two if its exemption list, developed pursuant to (a)(2), to 
exemptfrom preparation of an EAaspecific action that the agency determfnesio be 
1nclucie'dunder thetypes of actions in its exemption list, provide d thatthe agency fulfillst'..,.... --, - - ·---.,,..-;- - - . - ·----J 

) he exemption notice requirements set fortH in section 11-200.1-17 of this subchapter 
ancichapter 343, HRS: 

1(d) These' exemption lists and 'fAny amendments to the exemption lists shall be submitted 
to the council for review ~n"d concurrence ho later thansevenyears after the previous 
. -"' - .,- - - -,:\. 

:concurrence, pr.ovided.that, in the event the council is unable to meet due to quorum 
, - . --~ r - . - . - -· . ' 
when a concurrence for an agency exemption list is seven years or older, the agenc't 
may submit a letter totne council acknowledging that the existing exe-mption list isstlTI 
valid. Upon attaining ..quorum, the council shall r eview the·e xemptionlist for 
concurrence'. [The lists shall be reviewed periodically by the col.JRGi-h] ifhe council may 
reviewagencye xemption lists perTodically.l 

[Eff . ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
28 

http:placement.of


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 

(a) Each agency shall [maintain records of] create an exemption -notice for an action that it 

has found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of an [etwironmental 
assessmeR-t] f;A pursuant to section 11-200.1-16(a)(2) or that an agency considers to be 
included within a general type o f action pursuant to section T1-200:f-T5.' [and each 
agency shall produce the exemption -Rotices for review-Hf)en request}. An agencimay 
ere-ate an ·exemptfon noticEdor an actlvity that is has foun'd to he exemptfrom- the 

regukements for preparation of an EA pursuant to section ff-200~{-Ts(a}(fforthat an,· - -- - -- - . - - ·- - -- - - - . - ~ - - - - -- ·- -
agency considers to be a routine activity and ordinary function within the jurisdiction or, 
expertise- of the agency that by its nature d-oes not have'the potentialt'o'Tndivlduaily- on 
cumulatively adversely affect the-environment more than ne gligil:>M 

' ' 
~ - - - . . ,,. - - . - . 

(b) rro declare an exemption prior to implementing an action, an agency'shall undertake an 
analysis to determine whether the-action merits exemptionpursuant to section 1 :1t:2Q0.1-- - .... - - - ~ - .,-;--;-,- - - - ~-_______.,,,,. ...... 

.15 and is consistent with one or several of the general types lis ed in section 11-200.1-15 
or the agency's exemption list produced in accordance with s ection 11-20Q.1:"'-j'6, and 
whether significant cumulative impacts or particularly seiisffive environme-ntsWould 
make theexemption inappttcablei° An age cy 'shall obtain.the a dvice of'otheroutsfd~ 
~gencies-or indwfduals having jurisdicti0no'r expertise.en ffie~roprie@'of thd 
I - - - - - - -r--i - . . _., - - ~ 

exemption. This analysis and consultation shall be documeriteo in an exemption notice. 
U nless consultation and publicatieri'are notrequlredunder!subsection (c), the agency 
shall· publish theexemption no'tlce3wlth the officethrough'ttiefiling process set forth in 
subchapter~4! ,/ \ 1 1 . , 

(c) Consultation regarding ar.id pub licati0n of an exemption notice is not required when: 
11----,,.- ~ - -- - -- - - ~ - ' 

(1) [he agency has created an•exemption list pursuant to section 11-200.1-16; 
~ ~ - - ~-- ----- - - - - - - - - - . - ' .

(2) IT'he council has 00@curred with ttie agency's exemption list no more than 
1
seven years before the agency frilple"ments the action or authorizes· an--applic-ant -~' 
.to implement the actiom · 1 

(3) ftheac"tfonTscorisfstent with theJetter and intent of theagency's exemption- list 
1

and ' 
;::::::;-- - ,,I,: .,. - - - - - - - - - -

(4) ifhe,action does-not have any potential. individually or cumulatively, to.produce 
signmEa'i,tTrnpatts! , 

(d) Each agency shall produce [the] Hs exemption notices for review upon request by the 
- - _,.. - - - . . - -- - - --·,
public or an agency, and shall submit a list of exemption notices that the agency has 
created since the previous publication submittal deadline to the office for publication in' 
~he bulletin pursuant to subchapter 4 .: 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
29 

http:expertise.en


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental 
Assessments 

§ 11 -200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental 
Assessment 
(a) A proposing agency shall, or an approving agency shall require ari applicant to [Seek] 

seek, at the earliest practicable time, the advice and input of the county agency 

responsible for implementing the county's general plan for each county in which the 
proposed action is to occur, and consult with other agencies having lurisdiction or 

expertise as well as those citizen groups and individuai's [~] that the proposing 
agency or applicant reasonably believes [tel may be ·affect~d. 

(b) 

(c) 

·- ··' . - - . ,.r, . - .. . - . . ' . - - -
(d) A draft E~ shall ·contain, but not be limited to, the following information: 

(1) ldenti ficaticin of..th~ applicant or proposing agency: 
(2) Fc,r applicant actions~ (Identification] identification of the approving agency[.# 

applicable];" , 
(3) List of all required_permits and approvals (State, federal, county) [roEj-Yifed] and: 

for appTicants.Tdentification of which approval necessitates chapter 343.~HM 
.envfronmentalrevfew; 

(4) Identification of agencies, citizen groups, and individuals consulted in [mal<ing] 

preparing the Braff [assessment] EA: 
(5) General description of the action's technical, economic, social, bulturai and 

environmental characteristics; 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
30 



Environmental Council 

Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(6) Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and 
adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood Insurance Rate Maps, 

Floodway Boundary Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps: 

(7) Identification and [summary] analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 

(8) Prnposed mitigation measures; 

(9) Agency or approving agency [determination or, for draft environmental 

assessments oR-iy--aHJ anticipated determination~inclucffng findings· and reasons 

supportiri"g the a·ntfdpated FONSI, ff appttcabie; -and 

(10) Written comments and responses to the comments [~) received andmade . 
- -- I . 

p'ursuant td the early consultation provisions of [sections 11 200 9(a)(1), 11 200 

9(b)(1), or 11 200 15,J subsection(a) and statutorily,pr~scribed public review 

periods. 

[Eff 1 (Auth: HRS §§ 34~-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination fQ~ Draft Environmental 

Assessments 

(a) After: 
(1) [preparing] 'Preparing; or causindto be prepared , [an environmental assessment] 

:,, . 7 ' • -a draft EA: [aRti] , . , 
(2) [reviewing) ·Reviewing any public and agency comments, Uf-a-1wd and 
(3) [applying] Applying' the ~ignificance crit~ria' in secticm'r11 200 12) moo.-1-13[,];, 

if the proposing agency or the approving ag~ncy anticipates that the proposed action 
is not likely to have asignificant effect, [ft) the pr6ptising agency or approving agency 
shall issue a,notice of [determination •.•ihich shall be] an anticipated '[negative declaration) 

FONSI subject to the public review provisions of section [11 200 9.1] ;11-200.1-26. 
,, ' ' ' 

' 
(b) · (:The proposing agency or approving ageri~y shall [alse] file [Sl::IGR] the notice bf 

ariticipii°ted determination wtien applicable and supporting draftEA with the office as 
early ·as pdssible 1n accordane'ewith subchapter4 after the determination is made 

pursuanMo arid in accordan6e with [section 11 200 91 this 'subchapteri and the 
requirements in subsection (c)·ot this seci:Ton.-'[akmg with four copies of the supporting 

environmentai·assessFTJent: In addition to the above, the anticipated negative declaration 

determination fo~'anv applicant action shall be mailed to the requesting applicant b'{ the 
approving agencv.] For applicant actions,-th-e approving agency shall also -send the 

anticipated FONSI to the applicant! 

(c) The notice of an anticipated FONSI determination shall [ind icate] ~nciud~ in a concise 

manner: 
(1) Identification ofth·e [applicant or] proposing agency brapplicant; 
(2) Identification of ~he approvTng agency on accepting authority; 
(3) [@fief] ~-brYet description of ffie [pr-ef}OSBG] action: 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

31 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(4) (Determination] :The anticipated FONSI: 
(5) Reasons supporting ffi-e anticipafed FONSI (determination]: and 

(6) (Name] The name. title email address. physical address. and phone number of (a 
contact person] an7ncffvicfua l representatTvecifthe proposing agency or 

applicant who maybe contacted for further information. 

(Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requir~ments for 
Draft Environmental Assessments [for Anticipat~d Negative 
Declaration Determinations & Addenda to Draft :Environmental . ' 

Assessments] 

(a) This section shall apply only if a proposing agency 6r an approving agency anticipates 

a (negative declaration] FONSI determination for a proposed action and (#lat] ttie 
proposing agency or the applicant proposing tfieactlon· has completed the draft EA 
requirements of [section 11 200 ?(a) paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6) ~nd (7), or 

I. • } - • ' 

section 11 200 Q(b), paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5).and (6), as appropriate] sections 11-
200~1-Hfand 1·1-200-19. ' . 

(b) [The period for public re'liew ari~ for submitting v,•ritten comments for both agency actions 

and applicant actions shall _pegifl :;is of the initial issue dat~ that notice of a'lailability of the 

draft environmental assessment 111as published in the periodic bulletin and shall continue 
for a period or ihirty days.] Unless ~ andated otherwise y statute, the period for public 
- , - ... -=--- -~~- - - -- -- - - - - - -- -
'review and for submitting written c0mments shall be thirty days from the date of 
publication of fhe draft EA in -the- bulletin: Written comments (to-tAe proposing agency or 

i3ppro1Jing agency, whiche\1\lr is' µpplicabl9, with a copy of the comments to the applicant 
·ior proJ?osing agency] shall b~ received ~ or postmarked to the proposing agency or 

approving agency andapplfcant[,] within the thirty-day period. Any comments outside 

of the thirty-day period need ~ot ~e (considered or] responded to nor considered in the 
.-f. I ~ . ma EAi -

(c) For agency act.ions, U-le proposing agency shall, and- for applicant actions. the 
. -- ·-- "'-I ' -- - . . . - . 
·applicant shall,;_r~spond in [writing] in the final EA in the manner prescribed in this 

~ecticm to all substantive comments received or postmarked during the [thirty day] 
r- -- ·-- - --, r ,- --- . --, 

.statutorily mandated review period, incorporate comments into the final EAi as 

appropriate(;]and [aweoo] lncfude the comments and responses in the final 
[environmental assessment] .EA. [Each response shall be sent directly to the person 

wmmenting, with copies of the response also sent to tho office.l rlfanumber of 

:commentsare identioal or ;jery similar, the proposing agency o-r applicant mav grouf) 
~mments and prepare a single-siandard re.sponse for-each group. VI/hen -grouping 

Eomments. the name of each commenter. when known. shall be included along with the 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
32 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

grouped response. One representative oopv of oomments that are identioal or verv similar 
mav ~be inoluded in the finalEA •.vith a list of the name-s of ea-oh oommenter, whenl<n-OW:Ai 
that submitted the ldenffoal oomments rather tiian reproduoing eaoh individualeomment. 
·,iiJlindividuaf commenis and representative oopies-ofldentioalor very' sim1larcomments 
must be inoluded mthe final EA regardless of wh-ether the agen cy-or applicant believes 
the oommenfo merit individual disouss1on 1n the bodv of the final EA.] In- deciding 
whether a wrltten comment is substantive, the proposing age ncy or applicant shall g ive 
careful consideration to the validity~-sign if1cance, and relevanceof the· comment to the 
scope, analysis, or process of the EA, bearing in mind the purpose of this chapter and 
chapter 34~ HRS. Writtenc ommentsdeemedby the proposing agency or applicant 
as Mn-substantive and to which no response.was provided s hal( b'e clearly indicate<i 

I ~: 

[{fl-)] [For applicant actions, the applicant shall respond in writing ·to all comments reoeived 
or postmarked during the thirty day review period and the approving agency _shall 
inoorporate or append the oomments and responses )n the t'inal environmE:ntal 
assessment. Eash response shall be sent direotly to the persori·o_ommenting ~ith a oopy 
to the office. A oopy of eaoh response shall be sent .to the approving agenoy for its 
timely preparation of a determination and notice thereof pursuant to sections 11 200 9(b) 
and 11 200 11.1 or 11 200 11.2.] · ·· 

.(g} Proposing agencies and applicants shall respond in the final EA to all substantive 
written comments in one of two-.ways, or a comt>ination of oath, so long as each 
I - - ~ _. - -~ • 
.substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
ill By grouping comment responses undeK topic headings and addressing each 

substantive-comment raised by an individual comme-rrtor under that topic heading 
bifssue. When grouping comments bytopic and issue:-fhe nam-esof 
commenfors who raised-an i ssue under a topic headTng shall be clearly i dentified 
r Y - • ..,.,-, ~ • . --- • - , 

in a distinctly labelled section with ttiat topic heading. All substantive comments 
within a single comment 'letter mustoe addressed, but may be addressed 
throughout the applicable topic areas with the commentor identified in each 
applicabletopfo ar ea. fAift-omments, except those descrfbed in subsection (e) ,' 
must be appended in.full to the final document: or 

ill By;providimi a·sepa- ate"and-dfstinct response toeach comment clearly identifying· 
the commentor and the comment receiving a response for each comment letter. 
submitted. ~!( comments, except those.described in-(e), must either be-ind ucted 
With the response or appended in full to the final document. 

W ifor·comments that are forml e-tters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identica l 
fanmia-ge, arid thatraise the same issues on the same topic: 
ill frhe r esponse may be gro·uped under (d )(1) with theresponse to other comments 

underthesarnetopic and issuewittia lf commentorsidenfilied in the distincti¥ 
labelled sectionicfentifyfng commentors by topic: or m fA single response may be provided th.at addresses an substantive comments' 
within the form letter or po.titian and th.at includes a distinct section lfstmg the 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
33 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

individual commentors who submitted the form letter or petition. At least one 
representative sample- of the form letter or petition shall be.appeii-dedtothe final' 
documenf and 

.Q} Provided that if a commentor adds a distinct substantwe comment to a form letter: 
or petition~ tha t ·comment'mustberespondedto·pursuantto subsection (d)1 

ill In responding to substantive written comments, proposing agencies·and applicants 
shali endeavor toresolve conflicts: inconSIBtencies, or concerns fcfentlfied-and to provide 
a response that is commensur ate with thecontent of those comments. The response 
'shall indicate.changes that have -been made-to the text of the draft EA. The response 
shall describe the disposition of-significant"environinental issues raTsea. For example, the 
1
response may point to revisions fo the proposed action to miffgate ahticipated-impacts 
orobjectionsr aised mthe-comment. 7n particular~ the issues raised wheri theproposlng 
~gency's-or applicant's -position is at variance with recommendations .and objections 
raised in the comments shall be a·ddressed in detail, giving reasons why specific ' 
'comments and suggestions were not accepted, and factors,ofi overriding im15o[anc 
warranting an-override ofthe suggestions.I 

([e] g) An addendum document to a draft [environmental assessment] E~ shall-reference the 
original draft [environmental assessment] EA it attaches to an~ shall comply with all 
applicable fffing, public review and 9pmment requirements set forth in [sections 11 200 3 
and 11 200 9] subchapters 4 ancf'9. 

I 
' J ' ,

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5, 343-6) 

§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 

[The propdsing agency or approving agency shall prepare any draft or final environmental 
assessfnent of each proposed actioF) and determine whether the anticipated effects constitute a 
significant effect in the context of chcipter 343, HRS, and-section 11 200 12. The environmental

1

assessment] !A. final EA shall contain,/but not be limited to, the following information: 
(1) · lc;fentifi!?ation of appljtant'or proposing agency; 
(2) Identification of apptoving agency, if applicable; 
(3) ldentifi9atidn of agencies, citizen groups, and individuals consulted in [making] 

preparing the [assessment] EA; 
(4) General description of the action's technical, economic, social, cultural and 

environmental characteristics; 
(5) Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and 

adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood Insurance Rate Maps, 
Floodway Boundary Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps; 

(6) Identification and [summary] analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 
(7) Proposed mitigation measures; 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
34 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(8) The [Agency] agency determination and the findings and reasons supporting the 
determination (or, for draft environmental assessments only, an anticipated 

determination]; 
[(9)] [Findings and reasons supporting the agency determination or anticipated 

determinatioaj 
[(-Ul)] [A§oocies to be consulted in the preparation of the EIS, if an EIS is to bo 

prepared]; 
(9) List of all required permits and approvals (State, federal, county) [required] and, 

for appiicarrts. identification of which approval necessitates chapter343, H-RS~-
- - 1 , ... 

.environmental review; and 
(10) Written comments and responses to the comments [oodeF] eceived pursuant to' 

the early consultation provisions [of sections 11. 200 Q(a)(1), 1-1 200 Q(b)(1), or 
1120015] of subsectfon 11-200.1-18(a), and ~tatutorily prescribe9 public review 
periods in accordance with section 11~200. 1-20. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Envirdnmental 
Assessments 

(a) After~ 
(1) [preparing] :Preparing, o( causing fo be,prepared, a final ·[environmental 

1assessment] EA, -.. \ ,· r 

(2) [reviewing] Reviewing any public and agency comments, [if-any,] and 
(3) Igpplying] !A.ppiylruj the significance criteria in section (11 200 12] ~ f:200.1-13, 
the proposing agenc.y or the approving agency shall issue [one of the following 
notices] a notice of [determination] ~ FONSfor-EISPN in accordance with [section 11 

200 Q(a) OF 11 200 Q(b)] subch~pter 9, and file the notice with the office Ill accordance 
.- itli subchapter 4 .l [addressiflg ttie requirements in subsection (c), along with four copies . . ' 
of'the s·upporting final environmental assessment, provided that in addition to the above, 
all notic;;es·of determination to/ an~ applioant aotion shall be mailed to the requesting 

'\ ., I ' • -- -- - - ---· - - -- - --- -- ,
applicant by thQ appro11ing;,3gen6y:] For applicant actions, the approving agency shall 
\ssue a.determination witliin thirty days of receiving thetmafEA. 

' ' / . 

(b) [Negative deolaration] OONSI. If the proposing agency or approving agency 
determines that a proposed action is not likely to have a significant effect, it shall issue 
a notice of [determination which shall be] a [negative declaration,] 'i=bNSI. '[ and tho 
f}fE}Posing agency or approving agency shall file such notice with the office as early as 
possible after the determination is made pursuant to and in accordance with seotion-:l-1-

~-

(c) [environmental impact statement pre~on notice] EISPN. If the proposing agency or 
approving agency determines that a proposed action may have a significant effect, it 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
35 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

shall issue [a--RetiBe--ef] [Eleteimfnation which shall bo] an [environmental impact 
statement preparation notice] EISPN [and such notice shall be filed as early as possible 

after the determination is made pursuant to and in accordance-with section 11 200 9]. 

(d) T he proposing agency or approving agency shall file in accorda.nce with subchapfer 4 
'the notice and the supporting final EA with the office as early as possible-after the 

determination IS made, address ing the· requirements in subsedion (e). F or applicant 
actions, the approving agency shall send the notice of determ,natlon for anEISPN~or 
FONSI fu thea ppiicant! 

(e) [The office shall publish the appropriate notice of determin~tion in the ·periodic bulletin 
following receipt of the documents in subsection (a) by the office in accordance with 
section 11 200 3.] ' ' 

(e) The notice of [determination] a FONSi shall indicate tn a concise manner: 

(1) Identification of the applicant or proposing ~gency; 
(2) Identification of the approving agency or: accepting authori~y; 
(3) [Bfief] 'V\ brief description of the prop0sed action; 
(4) [Determination] Jhe determination; 

(5) Reasons supporting th~ determiriati6n; and 

(6) [Name] The name, t itle, contact information, includmg the email address, physical 

address, and phone number of [a contact person] an1ridlvrdualrepresen tative of -~ - - - ----..- ~ --- -~-- -
the proposing agency or applicant who may be contacted for further 
information. <;. ·, ·, i '. · ' 

(e) The notice of determination for an EISPN shall be prepared pursuant to section 11-200.1-
23. 

[(Em (VI/lien an agency withdraws a' determination pursuant to its rules, the agency shall 

submit to the office a 1••.1ritt6n letter informing the office of its withdrawal. The-office shall 

publish notice of agency witHdra~•,als in accordance with section 11 200 3.]
' . 

I 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343~.6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

36 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact 
Statements 

§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement 

(a) An EISPN, including one resulting from an agency authorizing the ·preparation of an EIS 
without first requiring an EA, shall indicate m a concise.manned 
(1) lden tificationoHfie proposing-agency or appfiln( 
(2) ldentificationof the accepting authority: ,. 
(3) Ust of all required permits and approvals (State, federal, county) and, for. 

applic-antslden-tification of which approval necessitates chapter 343, HRS, 
r -
.environmental review; 

.• • , 

(3) 
(4) 

The d-etermmation toprepare an EIS; 
Reasons supporting the determ1nation to prepare an BS: 

(5) 
(6) 

(7) 
(8) 

(9) 

(b) In the preparation of a draft EIS, proposi.ng agencies -and applicants shall consult all 
, ~ppropriate agencies.1 [noteq_ in section 11 200 10(10), and other] lnciuding the county 
agency responsible for implementing the"county'sgerierafolan fureachcountymwhlch 
-· - ~ - -- - ,..--,-- - - - - - --·- --- -- . . ·-
the proposed action is to occur and agencies having jurisdiction or expertise, as well as 

thoseciti,?:en groups, and cqricenied individuals [as noted in ~ections 11 200 9 and 11 
200 9.1] ffiat the,,propos1ng~agency reasonably b-etteves tobe affected. To this end, 

"" . _.., - . 
agencies ana ~ppli~, nts shall endeavor to develop a fully acceptable draft EIS prior to 
the time the .draft EIS is filed with the office, through a full and complete consultation 
process, and shall hqt rely solely upon the review process to expose environmental 
concerns. 

(c) Upon publication of [a preparation notice] ,an EISPN in the periodic bulletin, agencies, 
groups, or individuals shall have a period of thirty days from the initial [issHeJ 'publication 

date [¼A- which to request to become a consulted party-aRe] to make written comments 
regarding the environmental effects of the proposed action. [-IJpoR-WFitteR--request by . 
#IB-Gensu lted party and upORiJ0ee--sa-use-5fl6WR,] With good cause, the approving 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
37 

http:proposi.ng


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

agency or accepting authority may extend the period for comments for a period not to 
- - • - - - - - - • f 

exceed thirty additional days. Written comments and responses to the substantive 

comments shall be included in.the draft EIS pursuant fo section 11-200~1-24. Fon 
purposes of the- Sco-pi-ng meeting, substantive-com merits shaifbethose pertaming to the 

scopeof the EiS. 

(d) [Af-tl:le discretiOA-ef.41::iB-f)feposiAg-ageney-er an applicarn,a] No fewer than one [AR] EIS 
public scoping meeting [to receive comments on the final environmental assessment 
(for the EIS preparation notice determination) setting forth] 'addressing' the scope of the 
draft EIS [may] shali be held on-the island(s) most affected ]'y the proposed action,i within 
the public review and comment period in subsection_[~j' (Ql [; provlded that the 

proposing agency or applicant shall treat oral and \tlfitten comments receii.1ed at such a 
meeting as indicated in subsection (d)]. The EIS pLbli~ scopTnwmeeti~g,shall include a 
' - - - ~ .. - ~ -- --

separate portion reserved for oral public comments and tliat portion oMhe scoping 
meeting sh-allbe audiorecorded.• •. 

[fet] [Upon receipt of the request, the proposing agency or applicant shall, provide the 
consulted party with a copy of the environllJenta! assessfllent or reqµested portions 
thereof and the environmental impact stat6ment preparation notice Additionally, the 
proposing agency or applicant may pro1~ide, any ot~efr infqrmati?n it deems necessary. 
The proposing agency or applicant may also contact other agencies, groups, or 

individuals which it feels may p~ovide pertinent.additional i9tormation.] 

[fej] [Any substantive comments' recki1}ed by the p;bposing agency or applicant pursuant to 
\ ' 

this section shall be re ...sponded to in.writing and.as _appropriate, incorporated into the draft 

EIS by ~he proposing agency or applicant prior to the filing of the draft EIS with the 
approving agency or accepting authority. Letters submitted which contain no comments 
on the projects but only i erve to acknoi.\11edge receipt of the document do not require a 

' I ' 

, (wittqn response. Acknowledgement of receipt of these items must be included in the 
final environmental assessm~nt or final statement.] 

. i I 

' ,·' J ' 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS~§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§ 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact 
Statement 

(a) The draft EIS, at a minimum, shall contain the information required in this section. The 
contents shall fully declare the environmental implications of the proposed action and 
shall discuss all [relevant and feasible] reasonably foreseeabie consequences of the 
action. In order that the _public can be fully informed and that the !accepting- authority 
can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on 
environmental effects, [a statement] an EIS shall include responsible opposing views. if 
any, on significant environmental issues raised by the proposal. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
38 



Environmental Council 

Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(b) [In the dovelej3tng the EIS preparers shall make every effort to convey the required 

information suooinotly in a form easily understood, both by members of the poolio and by 

13oolio decision makers, giving attention to thD-St1bstance of the informatiOfl--6GA-VeYed

rather than to the particular form, or length, or detail of the statement.] The scope of the 
[statement] draft EIS may vary with the scope of the proposed action and its impact.' 
takinginto consfderatronwhether-the action7s a pro1ect or a program. Data and 

analyses-in a [statement] draft EIS shall be commensurate with the importance of the 

impact, and less important material may be summarized, consolidated, or simply 
referenced. [Statements] A draft EIS shall indicate at appropriate points in the text any 

underlying studies, reports, and other information obtained and cor1sidered in preparing 
the [statement] tlraftEIS, including cost benefit anaiyses and r.eports required under other 
legal authorities. ' " 

(c) 

(d) The draft EIS shall contain asummary sheet [whlcRl thaf concisely discusses the 
following: 

(1) Brief description bf the action; 
(2) Significant beneficia·1~nd adverse i~pacts (including cumulative impacts and 

secondary impac~); 
,_ (3) Proposed mitigation ·measures; 
(4) Alternatives considered; ,_

! I 

(5) Unresolved issues; aoo , 
(6) Compatibility with la11d' us~ plans and policies, and listing of permits or 

approvals[J: and 
(7) A list of reievanvdocuments for actions considered in the analysis of the 

preparat~ f~EIS~ 

(e) The draft EIS shall contain a table of contents. 

(f) The draft EIS shall contain a separate and distinct section that includes [a statement of] 
ihe purpose and need for the proposed action. 

(g) The draft EIS shall contain a [~ect] description of the action [WHiGR] that shall include 

the following information, but need not supply extensive detail beyond that needed for 
evaluation and review of the environmental impact: 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
39 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

(1) A detailed map (preferably a United States Geological Survey topographic map, 

Flood Insurance Rate Maps.1 or Floodway Boundary Maps as applicable) and a 

related regional map; . 
(2) [Statement of objectives] Obje-ctives of the proposed action; 
(3) General description of the action's technical, economic, social, bultural, and 

environmental characteristics; 
(4) Use of[~] state or county funds or lands for the action; 
(5) Phasing and timing of the action; 
(6) Summary technical data, diagrams, and other information necessary to [~] 

.enable an evaluation of potential environmental i~pact by cofTlmenting agencies 

and the public; and 

(7) Historic perspective. 

(h) The draft EIS shall describe in a separate and distinct section 'reasonable alternatives
1

[WfHBR] that could attain the objectives of the action [regardless of cost, in sufficient detail 

to explain why they were rejected]. The section shall include a rigorous exploration and 

objective evaluation of the environmental impacts of ?II such alterm\~ive actions. 
Particular attention shall be given to alternatives that might enhance environmental 

quality or avoid, reduce, or minimize some or all of the adverse env'ironrriental effects, 
costs, and risks btthe action. Examples of alternatives include: 

(1) The alternative of no action; 
(2) Alternatives requiring a9tions of a significantly diffe,rent nature [WfHBR] that would 

provide similar benefits with different environmental impacts; 
/ ' 1' I \ 

(3) Alternatives related ·to different designs or details of the proposed actions [wJ:HGR]
t:" - \ \ • 

that would present different e,nvironmental impacts; 
(4) Ttie alt_erngitive of P,Ostponing action pending further study; and, 

(5) Alternative locations for the proposed [prejest] action. 
In. each case, the analysis shall be suffi<;iently detailed to allow the comparative 

<e~al4ation of the environmental ·benefits, costs, and risks of the proposed action and 

each reasonable alternative. 'For alternatives that were eliminatedf rom detailed study, 

the seGtion shall contain a brief discussion ofthe reasonsfor notstudyingthose 

alternatives in detaii: For any ag~ncy actions, the discussion of alternatives shall 

include, where' relevant, thci~e alternatives not within the existing authority of the agency. 

(i) The draft EIS shall include a description of the environmental setting, including a 
description of the environment !n the vicinity of the action, as it exists before 

commencement of the action, from both a local and regional perspective. Special 
emphasis shall be placed on environmental resources that are rare or unique to the 
region and the action site (including natural or human-made resources of historic, 

:Cultural: archaeological, or aesth etic significance); specific reference to related actions, 
public and private, existent or planned in the reg ion shall also be included for purposes of 

examining the possible overall cumulative impacts of such actions. Proposing 
.agencies and applicants shall also identify, where appropriate, population and growth 

characteristics of the affected areaJ-aAd] any population and growth assumptions used to 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 

40 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

justify the proposed action.i. and [determine] any secondary population and growth 
impacts resulting from the proposed action and its alternatives. In any event, it is 
essential that the sources of data used to identify, qualify, or evaluate any and all 
environmental consequences be expressly noted 'in the draft EIS. 

U) The draft EIS shall include a [statement] description of the relationship of the proposed 
action to land use and natural or cultural resource plans, policies, and controls for the 
affected area. Discussion of how the proposed action may conform or conflict with 
objectives and specific terms of approved or proposed land u~e and resource plans, 
policies, and controls, if any, for the area affected shall qe ir)'cluded. Where a conflict or 
inconsistency exists, the [statement] draft EIS shall describe the extent to which the 
agency or applicant has reconciled its proposed c1ctiqn with p,e pla·n, policy, or control, 
and the reasons why the agency or applicant has decided tb proceed, notwithstanding 
the absence of full reconciliation. 

(k) The draft EIS shall also contain a list of necessary approvals, required for th~ action, 
from governmental agencies, boards, or commission~ or other similar groups having 
jurisdiction. The status of each identified approval shall also be described. 

(I) The draft EIS shall include [a statement] 1an' analysis of the propable impact of the 
proposed action on the environment, and impacts cif the natural or human.,.., , . 
environment on the [projeot] action. [, •,vhioh] 1 His'analysis shall include consideration of 
all phases of the action and ~o·rsiperation of a'II consequyhces on the environment[ih 
lncluding direct and indire<{t effects [shall be irioluded]. The lnterrelationships and 
cumulative environme[ltal impacts qf the proposed c!~tion and other related [projeets] 
actions shall _b_e di~cussed in the 9raft EIS. [It should be realized] The draft BS shouid 
tecogrilze that several actions, in particular those that involve the construction of public 
f~cifities or structures (e.91, highways, airports, sewer systems, water resource [projects] 

<action s, etc.) may well stimulate or induce secondary effects. These secondary 
effects may be equally important,as, or more important than, primary effects, and shall 

I 
be thoroughly discussed to fully d1=lscribe the probable impact of the proposed action on 
the environment. The popul~tion and growth impacts of an action shall be estimated if 
expected to be significant, and an evaluation shall be made of the effects of any possible 
change in population pptt~rns or growth upon the resource base, including but not limited 
to land use, water, and public services, of the area in question. Also, if the proposed 
action constitutes a direct or indirect source of pollution as determined by any 
governmental agency, necessary data regarding theseimpacts shall be incorporated 
into the EIS. The significance of the impacts shall be discussed in terms of s ubsections 
[U), (k), (I), and (m)] i(m), (n), (o), and (p). 

(m) The draft EIS shall include in a separate and distinct section a description of the 
relationship between local short-term uses of humanity's environment and the 
maintenance and enhancement of long-term productivity. The extent to which the 
proposed action involves trade-offs among short-term and long-term gains and losses 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
41 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 

shall be discussed. The discussion shall include the extent to which the proposed action 
forecloses future options, narrows the range of beneficial uses of the environment, or 
poses long-term risks to health or safety. In this context, short-term and long-term do not 
necessarily refer to any fixed time periods, but shall be viewed in terms of the 
environmentally significant consequences of the proposed action. 

(n) The draft EIS shall include in a separate and distinct section a description of all 
irreversible and irretrievable commitments of resources that would be involved in the 
proposed action should it be implemented. Identification of unavoidable impacts and 
the extent to which the action makes use of non-renewable, resources during the phases 
of the action, or irreversibly curtails the range of po~ehtial uses of the environment shall 
also be included. The possibility of environmental accipents rr sulting trom any phase of 
the action shall also be considered. [Agencies shall avoid construing the term 
"resources" to mean only the labor and materials devoted to an action. "Res?urces" also 
means the natural and cultural resources committed to loss or.destruction by the action.] 

< '• 

(o) The draft EIS shall address all probable adverse environmental effects [wi=liGR] that 
cannot be avoided. Any adverse effects such as water 9r air pollution, _urban congestion, 
threats to public health, or other consequences adverse to environmental goals and 
guidelines established by environmental response laws, coastal zone management laws, 
pollution control and abatement laws, a~d environmental policy [such as that} including 
those found in chapters 128D f Environmental Response Lcfw>" 205A fcoastalZone 

r- - --.--~- .---- - • - ~- -- - _. I --,- - - ---, ~ 

Management), 3428 (Air Pollution Control), 34;2C (Ozone1Layer Protection), 342D (Waten 
Pottution}', 342E (Nonpoint Source -Pollution Manage~ment and Control)', 342F [Noise 
Pollution}, ~42G Ontegrated Solid Waste M an agement), 342H ?sciiid Waste-Recycimg), 

• . - -- .., . f, -- - - - - - -- - - --

3421 (Special Wastes RecyclingJ, ~42J (Hazardous Waste, including Used Oil), 342L 
11.Jnd~rgrgund _§torage T~ ks},[ ~] 34~P {Asbestos-and Leacfl. and 344 f state 
'Em:ifronmental Policy), HR~, [shall be inclu.ded, including] and those effe'cts discussed in 

~other [actions] subsections of th',~ [paragraph] section [wi=liGR] t iiat are adverse and 
unavoidable under the proposed ~ction must be addressed in the draft EIS. Also, the 
rationale for proceeding with aproposed action, notwithstanding unavoidable effects,

I 

shall be clearly set forth in this section. The draft EIS shall indicate what other interests 
and considerations of governmental policies are thought to offset the adverse 
environmental effects of the proposed action. The draft [statement] Eis shall also 
indicate the extent to ·which these stated countervailing benefits could be realized by 
following reasonaole ·alternatives to the proposed action that would avoid some or all of 
the adverse environmental effects. 

(p) The draft EIS shall consider mitigation measures proposed to avoid, minimize, rectify, or 
reduce [impact] Frmpacts, including provision for compensation for losses of cultural, 
community, historical, archaeological, fish and wildlife resources, including the acquis ition 
of land, waters, and interests therein. Description of any mitigation measures include d in 
the action plan to reduce significant, unavoidable, adverse impacts to insignificant 
levels, and the basis for considering these levels acceptable shall be included. Where a 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
42 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

particular mitigation measure has been chosen from among several alternatives, the 
measures shall be discussed and reasons given for the choice made. [+A6H:!eea] The 
'draft EIS shall include, where possible [and appropfiate], [sl=leH!e---ee] specific reference to 
the timing of each step proposed to be taken in [tRe] any mitigation process, what 
performance bonds, if any, may be posted, and what other provisions are proposed to 
assure that the mitigation measures will in. fact be taken. 

(q) The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that summarizes unresolved 
issues and contains either a discussion of how such issues will be resolved prior to 
commencement of the action, or what overriding reasons th'ere are for proceeding 

,- - I ~ • 

without resolving the [problems] issues. 

' ,. 

(r) The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains a list identifying 
all governmental agencies, other organizations and private individuals consulted in 
preparing the statement, and .shall disclose the identity of the persons, firms, or agency 
preparing the statement, by contract or other authorization[, shall be disclosed]. 

(s) The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains~ 
(1) [fef}Foductions] Reproductions of all [substantive} written' comments [arn:i 

feSPOAses made] submitted duripg ~he [consultation prqcess] C'nsultation period 
required in sedion 11-200.1-23: 

m Respon-ses fo alrsubstantive wrltfon comments made.durmg the consultation 
period required in secticfrll1-200.1-23.f°Pnoposing agenci.es and applicants 
~hall respond in the•,draftEIS to- all sulJstantfve-written comments7n one- of two 
~ays, or a combination ?f l::ioth, so long as ..each substantive comment has clearh~ 
received a response: 

(ill - By grouping comment responses unde-r topic headings and 
adaressing ead, substantive comment raise d byan indfuidual 
'comment0r under that 'topic headlng by issue. Wheri grouping' 
comments 1by-•topic and issue, the names of com men-furs who 
' - - - - - - . - - - .. - - --- - ·•~ " 

raised aA issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified in a 
distinctly labelled section with that topic heading. All substantive 
comrneiifs.within a single comment letter must be addressed, but 
may be ,iddresse-dthroughout the a pplicable different topic areas 
wltirthe commenter identified in each applicable topic area. All 
comments, exceptthose described- in subsection (3)~mustbe 
\3ppended-,n full to the final document: ori 

{ID .By providing a separate and distinct response to each comment 
clearly identifying the commenter and the comment receiving a 
response b-eing responded to for each comment leiter submitted .' 
Allcomments, except those.described-in (3),must either be 
lnciuded wfththe response, -or appendedin full to the final 
pocument; 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
43 

http:agenci.es


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near..: 
identical lang ua ge, and that raise the same issues on the sametopic: 

ffil Jhe response may be grouped under (2}(A) with the response to 
other comments under the same · topic and lssue- withall 
bomment ors frfentifiedin -the distinctTylabelied section Tdentifvf ng 
commentors by topic: or 

.(fil AsTngleresponse ma y be provided that addresses all substantive 
com-me nts w ithin theform l etter o r petition- an d thaTTncludesa 
distinct section listing the individual commentors who submitted the 
form lette r or petition . Atleast one representative sample of·the 
form letter or petitionshall beappendet:I to ffie fihal documentand 

:cg} Prov1dedttia[ if a commentor adds a distinct substantive co-mment 
foa form Tetter-or petition~ then That cornmen'tinusTbe respo.nded 
fo pursuant to-subsection (2):' . 

A summary·of any EIS public scoping meetings, including a written gen~ ai 
~ummary of the oral comments made, and a representa ive sampleof any 
handoufreiafed to the actionprovlded aTihe Eis p"ubll c scoping meeting(s): 
A list of those persons or agencies Who were 'cq_nsulteci and ha9 no comment 
[shall be included in the draft EIS] 1~ a manner indicatfng that~no comment was 
provided; and ' '. · 
~ - - - I ~_(fil 'A representative sample of the apency consultatio , request letter. 

(t) An addendum [GeGUmem-} to,a,draft environmental impact statement Eis shall reference 
the original draft [environmentai impact statement] EIS tbwhTch' it attaches [te] and 
comply with .all applicable filing, public review, and comment requirements set forth in 
subchapter [-71 10. ' · 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) ,(Imp: HRS§§ 343-2, 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
44 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft 
Environmental Impact Statements 

(a) Public review shall not substitute for early and open discussion with interested persons 
and agencies[,] concerning the environmental impacts of a proposed action. Review of 
the ~raft EIS, shall serve to provide the public and other agencies an opportunity to 
discover the extent to which a proposing agency or applicant has examined 
environmental concerns and available alternatives. 

(b) The period for public review and for submitting written comments shall pommence [as-ef] 
,from the date i hat notice of availability of the draft EIS is initially issued in the periodic 
bulletin and shall continue for a period of forty-five days, unless mandated otherwise by 
,statute. Written comments to the [approving agency or] accepting auth-brity[, whichever 

' -
is applicable,] with a copy of the comments to the [applicant or] proposing agency or 
applicant, shall be received !2Y or postmarked to the approving agency or accepting 
authority, within [saW] the forty-five-day comment period. Any comments outside of the 
forty-five day comment period need not be [consicleretj or] responded to nor c:onsrdered. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-26 Comment R_~sponse Requiremer,ts for Draft 
Environmental Impact Statet)ients 

(a) In accordance with.the content requirements of section ~ 1-200.1-27, [-TI:le] the proposing 
agency or applicant shall respond [in writing] \.v1thin the-finar-ETS to [tRe] all ~ubstantive 
written comments received QY or postmarked to the approving agency during the forty
five-day review period~[and incorporate the comments and responses in the final 

~ EI-Sl:[The response to com111ents shall inch,Ide:] fn decfding whether a written -comment is 
substantive, the proposing-agency or applicant shaifgTve caretuf conslderatfonfo Hie 
~alidity, significance, and relevance of the co-mmen1 to the scope, ana lysis, or process of 
ttie.EIS, bearlngrn- mincfthe-purpose -of t his chapter and-ct1apte-r 343~ HRS.Vi/ntten 

'.comments.deemed by the .pror.><>sing agency or applicant as non-substantive and to 
which no resp0r:ise was~provlded shalfbe clearly indicated.i 

fu.i Proposing agencies arid a-pplicants shall respond in the final Els·to all-suhstantive 
Written comments in one of two ways. or a combination of both; so long as each 
I - ·- - ---- - - - - - • - - -- - - •
;Substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
• ' • - - - -- - - Iill By grouping comment responses under topic headings and addressing eacH 

I • • • - - ·- - - - - - - - - - - - - -
:substantive comment raised by an individual com mentor under that topic heading 
15y issue. When grouping comments by topic and issue. the names of 
commentors who raised an issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified 
fti a distinctly labelled section with that topic heading. All substantive comments 
Within a sfngle com.ment letter must be addressed, but may be addressed 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
45 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

throughout the applicable topic areas with the commentor identified in each 
applic-able topic a rea. Alfooniinents,· except those descrl6ed in subsection (c),: 
must be a-ppended in- full to the.final doc·unient: Oli 

m Byproviding aseparate and distinct response-to each comment clearly identifying 

Hie corrimeritor a nct the comment re-ceiving aresponsetor each comment letter 
submitted .. _ Alfcomm.ents, except those described in (c), must either beincluded 

with the responseorappended in full-to the final document! 

For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identical . 
language, and that raise the.same ·issues o n-the same topic! 

ill Theresponse-maybe grouped underTb57l) w fth-the re sponseto..other comments 

under the same topic and issue with all commentors Identified in the distinctly 
iabelled section identifying commentors by opici or 
Asingle.response-may be provided thata ddresses all-Substantive comments 

withTnt he form letterer petition and that includes a distinct section listihg_ffi'"e 
fncflvidual commentors-who submitted the-form· letter,. 0r. petition. At least one 
representative sample of the form letter or-petition shall.be appended to the final 
1- -------
(jocument: and 
Provided that if a commentor adds a distinct substantive comment to a form letter 
b r petition, then that commenfm·usfbe responded to pursuanTTosubsection (d). 

In responding to substantive written com'ments, 1proposingf agencies and applicants 
I ,• ' r:- - - -- ~ 

{Responses} shall endeavor to resolve conflicts, inconsistencies, or concerns identified 
and to provide a response tliat is commensur~te with the ce~tent of those comments~ 
[Response l_etters reproduced in the text of the final f;:IS] :The r es·ponse shall indicate 
[verbatim] changes that have been made to the text of the draft EIS. The response shall 
descrio~ the dlsposition of significant environmental issues raised. [(&.g.;] Fo·r example: 
,.- " -- - - ...., . - -
the response may point to revisjons to t~e proposed [project] action to mitigate 

. antic_ipated impacts or objections 'raised in-tne comment[,et&.-]~. In particular, the issues 
raised i.vhen the [applicant's dr] p~oposing agency's o r.appilcant's ~position is at 
variance with recommendatio~s a'nd objections raised in the comments shall be , , 
address_ed iil ~etail, giving reasors why specific comments and suggestions were not 
accepted;· and faptors of overriding importance warranting an override of the suggestions. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
46 

http:shall.be


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 

§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact 
Statement 

(a) The final EIS, at a minimum, shall contain the information required in this section. The 
contents shall fully declare the environmental implications of the proposed action and 
shall discuss all [~d feasible] teasonabli toreseeable consequences of the 
action. In order that the public can be fully informed and that the accepting authority 
can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on 
environmental effects, [a statement] an EIS shall include responsible opposing views, if 
any, on significant environmental issues raised by the pr~po'sal. • 

(b) The final EIS shall consist of: 
(1) The draft EIS prepared in compliance with-this si.Jbchapter, as _revised to 

incorporate substantive comments received during the (consultatjon and] review 
processes in conformity with sect ion fi -200.1-'26, including -reprodtJctior:i-·of all 

p • 'V --, .. 

.comments and responses to substantive written comments; 
[~] (Reproductions of all letters received containing substantii.«e questions, comments, 

or recommendations and, as appliqable, summaries of any scoping meetings 
Rela;] ' 

[~]ill A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies ·commenting on the draft 

EIS; .. 
~ A Tist of those persons 0r agencies who were consultea wTth in preparing the final 

Eis and had no comment shall be inclueed- in a~manner indicating that no 
' ("; ' 
'comment was provii:fed: 

(4) [The·reI;ponses of the a pplicant or proposing agency to each substantive 
q·uestion, comment, or recommendation received in the review and consultation 
prooesses,] A written general summary of-oral comments made at anypubiid,.. ·~ 

meetings; and 
"\. 

· 
1 (5) The text of the final ElS [11~hioh shall bo] written in a format [wh¼GR] that allows the 

reader to easily distinguish changes made to the text of the draft EIS. 
• , / l 

[Eff l (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (fmp: HRS §§ 343-2, 343-5, 343-6) .. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
47 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11 -200.1-28 Acceptability 

(a) Acceptability of [a statemem] a final EIS shall be evaluated on the basis of whether the 

[statement} final EIS, in its completed form, represents an informational instrument 
[WA-iBA] ~hat fulfills the [defi.rutieA-of an EIS] intent and provisions of chapter.343, HRS, 

and adequately discloses and describes all identifiable environmental impacts and 
satisfactorily responds to review comments. 

(b) A [statementl final EIS shall be deemed to be an acceptable c;locument by the accepting 
authority or approving agency only if all of the following criteria are satisfied: 

(1) The procedures for assessment, consultation process, review, and the preparation 
and submission of the [statementl EIS, from proposal oMhe action to pubHcation 

of the final Els;·have all been completed satisfactorily a_s specified in this chapter; 
(2) The content requirements described in this chapter have been satisfied; and 

(3) Comments submitted during the review process have r~ceived responses 
satisfactory to the accepting authority, or apj)roving agency, 1ncludind properiy 
1dentiMng-commentsas· substantive -and respondi.ng in,aiway co·mmensura1e- to 

the comment,: and have been 'appropriate!¥ incorporated [¼fl] into the [statement} 
final EIS. . 

(c) For actions proposed by agencies, the proposing agency may r~quest the office to 

make a recommendation regard,irig the acceptc)bility or non:~acceptability of the EIS. Hthe 

·office decides to make a recommendation, it shali submit the recommendation to the 
~ - -- - --- - r - - - . -
accepting authority and pr.oposing agency. In all cases involving state funds or lands, 

the governor or [cm] the governor's' authorized representative shall have final authority to 
" . :"\,. -

accept the EIS. In cases involving orily county funds or lands, the mayor of the 

respective county or [cm] the mayor's authorized representative shall have final authority 

to at:cept the EIS. The accepting authority shall take prompt measures to determine 
the acceptability or non~acdepta'bility of the proposing agency's [statementl EIS. In the 

\ - -- ., -
event tbat the action involves [ooti:l] state and county lands [e,:Ji state or count¥ funds, or, 
both state.and county lands and state and county funds, the governor or [an] The 
.-- - .... j f 

governor's authorized representative shall have final authority to accept the EIS. 
~ .• 

(d) Upon acceptance or non-acceptance of the EIS, a notice shall be filed by the appropriate
'·· 

accepting authqrity with both the proposing agency and the office. For any non-

accepted EIS, the n<:>tice shall contain specific findings and reasons for non-acceptance. 
The office shall publish notice of the determination of acceptance or non-acceptance in 

the periodic bulletin in accordance with [seGtion 11 200~] subchapter4. Acceptance of 

a required statement shall be a condition precedent to the use of state or county lands or 

funds in implementing the proposed action. 

(e) For actions proposed by applicants requiring approval from an agency, the applicant 
or accepting authority, which is the approving agency, may request the office to make 

a recommendation regarding the acceptability or non-acceptability of the [statement] B S. 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
48 

http:respondi.ng


Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 

If the office decides to make a recommendation, it shall submit the recommendation to 
the applicant and the approving agency within the [thirty day] period requiring an 
approving agency to determine the acceptability of the final EIS [and described in 
seBtien 343 5(o), HRS]. Upon acceptance or non-acceptance by the approving 
agency, the agency shall notify the applicant of its determination, and provide specific 
findings and reasons. The agency shall also provide a copy of this determination to the 
office for publication [ef..a----Ae-tiGe] in the periodic bulletin. Acceptance of the required 
EIS shall be a condition precedent to approval of the request and commencement of the 
proposed action. [An approving agenoy shall take prompt n;i~asures to determine the 
aooeptability or non acceptability of the applioant's statemeeft.] The agency shall notify 
the applicant and the office of the acceptance or non-a'ccept~nce of the final EIS within 
thirty days of the final EIS ~ubmission to the agency [;]~provided that the thirty-day period 

-- 1 I
may, at the request of the applicant,,be extended [at the request of the appUGam] for a 
period not to exceed fifteen days. The request shall be made to the accepting authority 
in writing. Upon receipt of an applicant's .wrltten req~uest for an extension of the thirty
day acceptance _period, the accepting authority shall notify the pffice and applicant in 
writing of its decision to grant or deny the request. -The notice shall be accompanied by a 
copy of the applicant's request. An extension of the thirty-day acc;:eptance period shall 
not be [allowed] granted merely for the convenience of the accepting authority. In the 
event that the agency fails to make a de'ter,mination of acceptance or non-acceptance 

• -, I 

[fe!:] of the [statement] EIS within thirty days of the receipt of the final EIS, then the 
statement shall be deemed accepteq. , ,' 

(f) A non-accepted EIS may be revised by a prop~sing ag~ncy or applicant. The revision 
shall take the form of a revised draft EIS [document] which shall fully address the 
inadeqyacies of the non-accepted EIS and shall completely and thoroughly discuss the 
cha~ges made. The requirerr1ents for filihg, distribution, publication of availability for 
review, acceptance or non-acc~ptance, and r,otification and publication of acceptability 

. shall be the same as the req~irel'T1ents prescribed by [seotions 11 200 20, 11 200 21, 11 
200 22,_ and 11 200 23] .subchapters 4·and 1ti for an EIS submitted for acceptance. In 

I 

addition, the [re1,ised draft EIS] subsequent revised final EIS shall be evaluated for 
acceptability on the basis of~ hether it satisfactorily addresses the findings and reasons 
for non-acceptance. 

{g) A proposing agency or applicant may withdraw an EIS by simultaneously sending a 
[fettei:] written notification to the office and to the accepting authority informing the 
office of the proposing agency's or applicant's withdrawal. Subsequent resubmittal of 
the EIS shall meet all requirements for filing, distribution, publication, review, 
acceptance, and notification as a [Rew] draft EIS. 

[Eff ] {Auth: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) {Imp: HRS § 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
49 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

§ 11-200.·1-29 Appeals to the Council 

An applicant, within sixty days after§. non-acceptance defermlnatTon by the app-roving agenc¥ 
:under section 11 -200. 1-28 of [a statement] a final EIS [by an agORBY], may appeal the non
acceptance to the council, which within thirty days of receipt of the appeal, shall notify the 
applicant appealing of its determination to affirm the approving agency's non-acceptance -or to 
reverse ii. The council chairperson shall include the appeal cin th-e a g-erid-a-of the next co-uncil 

meeting following-receipt ofthe appeal. In any affirmation or reversal of an appealed non
acceptance, the council shall provide the applicant and the agency with specific findings and 
reasons for its determination. The agency shall abide by the coun~ll's decision. 

\ ' .. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact St~tements 
r 

(a) [A statement] An EIS that is accepted with respect to 'a particular action is usually 
qualified by the size, scope, location, intensity, use, and timing of the action, among ·, 

other things. [/1. statement] An EIS that is aocept~d with respect tq a pa[iicular action 
shall satisfy the requirements of this chapt~r and no [atAef] suppiemental [statemeflt] 

'e"is for that proposed action shall be required, to the extent' th?t the action has not 
changed substantively in size, scope, intensity, ~se, location or timing, among other 
things. If there is any change in any 'of these characteristics which may have a 
significant effect, the origina_l ~tatement that wa~ changdd shall no longer be valid 
because an essentially different a~tion would be under consideration and a 
supplemer:ital [statem_ent] Eis shall be prepared and reviewed as provided by this 
chapter. As long as there Js no ch~nge in a proposed action resulting in individual or 
cumulative impacts nqt originally aisclosed, the [statement] EIS associated with that 
a~tion shall be deemed to comply with this chapter. 

(b) The accepting authority or approving agency in coordination with the·original 
acc·epting authority shall be responsible for determining whether a supplemental 
[statement] EIS is required. t his 'determination will be submitted to the office for 

• ' • I 

publication in the periodic bulletin. Proposing agencies or applicants shall prepa re 
for public review supplemental [statements] EISs whenever the proposed action for 
which [a] an [statement] Eis was accepted has been modified to the extent that new or 
different environme n,tal impacts are anticipated. A supplemental [statement] EIS sh all 
be warranted when the scope of an action has been substantially increased, when the 
intensity of environmental impacts will be increased, when the mitigating measures 
originally planned [are] ,will not to be implemented, or where new circumstances or 
evidence have brought to light different or likely increased environmental impacts not 
previously dealt with. 

(c) The contents of the supplemental [statement] E IS shall be the same as required by this 
chapter for the EIS and may incorporate by reference unchanged material from the same; 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
50 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

however, in addition, it shall fully document the proposed changes from the original EIS, 
including changes in ambient conditions or available information that have a bearing on a 
proposed action or its impacts, the positive and negative aspects of these changes, and 
shall comply with the content requirements of fse6tien 11 200-4-e] subchapter 10 as they 
relate to the changes. 

(d) The requirements of the thirty-day consultation, [fflifl§-] public notice filing , distribution, the 
forty-five-day public review, comments and response, and acceptance procedures, shall 
be the same for the supplemental [statement] EIS as is prescribed by this chapter for an 

· EIS. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §343-5, 343-6) 
I I 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
51 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 

§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: 
Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 

When (tRe-si-HKltion occurs where] a certain action will be subject both to the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (Public Law 91 -1 90, as amended by Public Law 94-52 and 
Public Law 94-83; 42 U.S.C. [§J sectlons 4321-4347) and chapter 3~3, HRS, the following shall 
occur: 

(1) The applicant or agency, upon discovery of its proposed action being subject to 
both chapter 343, HRS, and the [National E1wironmeotal Policy Act] NEPA, shall 

1 

notify the responsible federal [agency] entity, the office; and any agency with a 
definite interest in the action (as prescribed by chapter 343, HRS) [ef.41::!e 
situation]. 

(2) When a federal entity determines that the proposed action is exempt from review 
under the NEPA, this determination•'l:ioes not automatically,c<:mstitute an 
- - - - - - - -- -, -- - - -- - -~ ~ 

exemption for the purposes of this chapter. lr-i such cases, state and county 
r - - - - ,- - - -
agencies remain responsible foricompliance with this chapter. However, the 
federal ex emption may be considered in- the s1ate or county agency, 
tfetermination.' . , 

(3) 

(4) The [National Environrpental Policy /\ct] 'NEPA requires that [draft statements] 
EISs be prepared by the responsible federal (agency] entity. ln the caseof 
actions for which an asrpursuant t6 tile NEPA•hasbee npreparedbv-the 
responslble federal entity.the-draft and final fede ral EISmay be. subrrutted to 
I - • • C""7' , -- -
.comply witti this chapter, so long as the federal EIS satisfies the EIS content 
requirements of ttus- chapter and is not found to be inadequate under the-NE-PA: 
by a court: 8y..the Council on Environmental Quality (or IS at issue in pre-decision 
feferral to Council on Environmental Quality) under the NEPA regulations: or by 
fhe administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency under. 
r - -- - - -- - ----
section 309 of the Clean Air Act, 41 U.S.C. 1857, 

(5) When the responsibility of preparing an EIS is delegated to a state or county 
agency, this chapter shall apply in addition to federal requirements under the 
[National Envir-oomontal Polisy---ABt] 'NEPA. The office and state or county 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
52 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

agencies shall cooperate with federal [8-§00Gies] entities' to the fullest extent 
possible to reduce duplication between federal and state requirements. This 
cooperation, to the fullest extent possible, shall include joint [environmental impact 
statemefl-ts] EISs with concurrent public review and processing at both levels of 
government. Where federal law has [environmental impact statement] EIS 
requirements in addition to but not in conflict with this chapter, the office and 
agencies shall cooperate in fulfilling the requirements so that one document shall 
comply with all applicable laws. 

(6) Where the NEPA process requires earlier or more stf:ingent public review.[af!G 
processing] fifing~ and distnbution than under.thls'·chapter, ftien that NEPA 

- -- -·- -t-:-:-, - --
process shall satisfy this chapter so that duplicative consultation or review do not 
occur. The responsible federal entity's supplemental EIS requ1rements shali 
' ~ --;-'7".. -- -

:apply in these cases in place of this chapter's supplemental EIS ,requirements. 
. ' ~-

<( 

(7) In all actions where the use of state land or funds is propqsed, the final 
[statement] EIS shall be submitted to the governor or an authprized 
representative. In all actions when the use of county land or funds is proposed 
an·d no us·e of state land or funds is-proposed, the final [stateme~t} Eis shall be 
submitted to the mayor, or an authorized representai1ve. The final [statementl EIS 
in these instances shall first ~e accepted by the governor or mayor (or an 
authorized representative), pripr to the submission of ,he same to the 
[Environmental Protecti<;m Agency or] rj3sp~msible feqeral [agency] ,e-ntity. 

; 

' 
(8) Any aoceptan~e obtained pu_rsuant to [paragraphs (1) to (3)] this section shall 

satisfy chapt_er 343, HRS, and np other [statement] Els for the proposed action 
shall be required. 

[Eff l (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (l,mp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
53 



Environmental Council 
Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 

§ 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 

@} The rules shall apply immediately upon taking effect, except as otherwise provided below. 

.{Q} ·Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) chapter 11-200 shall continue to apply to 
environm-ental review of agency and applicant actions which began prior to the 
actoption of HAR ch-apter 11-200.1~ providedt hat: .. 

For EAs, if the draftEA was published by tlie office prior'to the adoption of HAR 
• - --- -- - .. -- 4 -- ,,,._.... - - -

chapter 11-200.1 and has not received a dete~mination within a period of five 
years from the implementation of HAR ch.apter 11-2oo.1, then the proposing 
agency or-applicant must comply with the requirements of HAR ch apter f:1-'l 
200.1. All -subsequent environmental review, inclucflrig an EISPN mu st comply 
with HAR chapter1 1-2-00. f '· 

For EISs, if the EISPN was published oy theb ffice prior to the adoption of HAR 
bhapter-11-200.1 and the-final EIS Has not beeiiacceptecl withm five ye ars from 
.-- - -- --- -- -- t .... ----, -- _,___ -- - -- ---,
the implementation of HAR chapter 11-200.1, then the proposing agency or. 
applicant must comply with the requirements of HAR ,chapter IT-2051~ 

' . 

A judicial proceedlng regar.ding the probosed.actlon~shall not count towards the 
five-yea r, time period .1 

' 
, ' 

;(£) Exemption ITsts that tiave received concurrence under HAR chapter 11~200 may be used 
for,.13 period of seven years after the adoption of HAR chapter 11-200.1; duringwhich time 

.-lf1eagencymusfreviseTts list and obtain concurrence from the counciTm confor mance' 
'w7ffiHAR chapter 11-200.1. , \ 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS § 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 

If any provision of this ch,ipt~r or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held 
invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this chapter which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application; and to this end, the provisions of this 
chapter are declared to be severable. 

[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-6, 343-8) 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
54 



Environmental Council 

Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

Note 
Historical Note: Chapter 11-200, HAR, is based substantially on the Environmental Impact 
Statement Regulations of the Environmental Quality Commission. [Eff 6/2/75; R 12/6/85] 
Amendments to and compilation of chapter 200, title 11, Hawaii Administrative Rules, and the 
repeal of§ 11-200-11, Hawaii Administrative Rules were adopted on March 27, 1996 following 
public hearings held on November 14, 1995, November 16, 1995, November 17, 1995, 
November 20, 1995 and November 21, 1995 after public notice was given in the Honolulu 
Advertiser, Honolulu Star-Bulletin, Maui News, The Garden Island, Wf?st Hawaii Today, Hawaii 

Tribune-Herald and Molokai Dispatch on October 12, 1995. ' 

Amendment in 2007 to section 11-200-8 to include an exemption cla_&S for affordable housing. It 

has not been compiled. 

This note wijl l:>e updated pending <!doption of the Pr<;>1:>c:>sed .@..[eaj 

I 
..\ 

·•: \ 
\ 

v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
55 



Version 0.4a Rationale 

Proposed Revisions to Hawaii Administrative Rules 
Title 11 Department of Health Chapter 200 
Environmental Impact Statement Rules 

I 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Environmental Council Meeting 

Prepared with the assistance of the Office of Environmental Quality Control (OEQC). 

IO)lli©U Wlli~ 

lJ1] MAR 1YJ,GP ~ 
.-5;&.,e 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Table of Contents 
I. Introduction 5 

A. Historical Background on the Rules 5 

B. Historical Background on the Rules Update (2012-2014) 5 

C. Current Efforts (2016-present) 5 

i. Drafting Process; Public Input Process, Pre- and Post- Permitted Interaction Group 5 

ii. Version 0.1 6 

iii. Version 0.2 7 

iv. Version 0.3 8 

v. Version 0.4 9 

D. Process Moving Forward 1 0 

II. Global Discussion Points 11 

A. Reorganization 11 

B. General Changes 14 

C. Topical Changes 14 

Digitizing the Process 14 

Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program 15 

"Green Sheet" 16 

Exemptions 17 

Affordable Housing 18 

Climate Change 18 

"Direct-to-EIS" 18 

Republication of EAs or EISs 19 

Response to Comments 20 

Scoping Meetings 22 

NEPA-HEPA ·23 

Retroactivity 23 

Ill. Section-Specific Changes 25 

Subchapter 1 Purpose 25 

§ 11-200.1-1 Purpose 25 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 26 

§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 26 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 30 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
2 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 30 

Subchapter 4 Filing and PubJication in the Periodic Bulletin 31 

§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 31 

§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 32 

§ 11-200.1-6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations 33 

Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 34 

§ 11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 34 

Subchapter 6 Applicability 35 

§ 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 35 

§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant Actions 36 

§ 11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Actions 36 

§ 11-200.1-11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Findings of No Significant Impact, and Accepted 
Environmental Impact Statements to Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed Activities 37 

Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 39 

§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of Previous Determinations and Accepted Statements 39 

§ 11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 40 

§ 11-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 42 

Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 44 

§ 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 44 

§ 11-200.1-16 Exemption Lists 48 

§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 49 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 51 

§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 51 

§ 11-200.1-19. Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 53 

§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for 
Draft Environmental Assessments · 53 

§11 -200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 54 

§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 55 

Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 56 

§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 56 

§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact Statement 58 

§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact Statements 60 

§ 11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for 
Draft Environmental Impact Statements 61 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
3 



Environmental Council v0.4a . 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 61 

§ 11-200.1-28 Acceptability 62 

§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 63 

§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 64 

Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 65 

§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: 

Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 65 

Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 67 

§ 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 67 

§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 67 

Note 67 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
4 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

I. Introduction 

A. Historical Background on the Rules 

The current Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 11, Chapter 200 rules were promulgated 
and compiled in 1996 (the "1996 Rules"). An amendment to add an exemption class for the 
acquisition of land for affordable housing was added in 2007, although it has not been compiled 
with the rest of the rules. 

B. Historical Background o·n the Rules Update (2012-2014) 

In 201 1, the public formally petitioned the Environmental C_ouncil (the "Council") to update 
chapter 11-200, HAR. The Council initiated consultation with state and county agencies for 
recommendations on issues to address and language revisions. In 2012, the Council released 
a preliminary draft of revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR (referred to as "Version 1 ") that 
incorporated proposed revisions from previous Council efforts and issues raised by agencies 
and the public. The Council also distributed an Excel file called a "comment matrix" to receive 
feedback on Version 1. Agencies and the public (including individuals, applicants, consultants, 
and nonprofit organizations) submitted comments via the comment matrix. The Council 
organized the feedback into a master comment matrix and tasked the Rules Committee with 
addressing the feedback af)d making revisions to the rules language. The Rules Committee 
met regularly over the course of 2012-2014 to revise Version 1. However, due to various 
administrative challenges, including maintaining quorum, the Council was not able to complete 
its work. 

C. Current Efforts (2016-present) 

In February 2016, following Governor lge's appointment of seven members to the Council, the 
Council resumed moving forward on revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. As part of this effort, the 
Council wanted to recognize the extensive outreach and drafting that the 2012 Council 
conducted. Multiple discussion drafts, as described below, were made available to agencies, 
interested stakeholders, and the general public throughout the pre-consultation period and 
comments were sought at every stage of the process. 

i. Drafting Process; Public Input Process, Pre- and Post- Permitted 
Interaction Group 

At the February 23, 2016 Council meeting, the Council established a Permitted Interaction 
Group (PIG) to draft revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. The PIG was tasked with investigat ing 
and considering specific language for inclusion in the revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. The 
Pl G's work was not for the purpose of decision-making and was limited to work that would be 
proposed to the Rules Committee for its consideration and decision-making to make 
recommendations to the Council. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
5 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Permitted.Interaction Group Principles 
The PIG drafted language within the following principles established by the. Council: 

• Be consistent with the intent and language of chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes 

(HRS). 
• Align statutes, case law, and practice wherever feasible. 

• Increase clarity of the process and legal requirements. 
• Align with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) where applicable. 

Permitted Interaction Group Process 
Following the Council's establishment of the PIG, the PIG met monthly or biweekly to review the 
previous Council's work. The PIG revieweq the 2012 draft rules language, the 2012 comment 

matrix produced by the prior Rules Committee, and the responses to the public comments that 
the Rules Committee developed over 2012-2014. The PIG categorized the comment matrix into 

two groups: (1) comments resolved and direction provided/draft language, and (2) outstanding 

comments still needing policy direction or draft language. For the former group, the PIG 

integrated the resolved language into a draft called Version 1.1. 

For the second group, the PIG developed language in consultation with the Rules Committee 

and the Office of Environmental Quality Control (OEQC). Further, the PIG developed language 

in response to requests from the Rules Committee and OEQC for issues that arose since 2012. 

At the July 11, 2017 meeting, the Council agreed that the PIG could present its report directly to 

the Council at its meeting on July 27, 2017. 

ii. Version 0.1 

On July 27, 2017, the PIG presented its report and submitted Version 0.1 of the draft revisions 

to the 1996 Rules to the Council for its consideration in rulemaking to update the 1996 Rules . 

(Refer to Version 0.1 for additional background information.) The Council approved Version 0.1 
at its meeting on August 8, 2017 as the baseline document for further edits and to serve as a 

foundation for early consulting with affected agencies, interested stakeholders, and the general 

public. The Council's approval of Version 0. 1 concluded the work of the PIG. 

The PIG recommended the following revisions to the Council as a baseline starting point for 

discussion going forward. Among the themes addressed were: 

• "Housekeeping" - revisions that modernize grammar and clarify language. 
• Clarifying roles and responsibilities at various stages of environmental review. 

• Modernizing submittals and deadlines to recognize electronic communication. 

• Setting clearer thresholds for exemptions and the role of exemption lists. 

• Clarifying when and how to proceed directly to preparing an environmental impact 

statement (EIS) instead of an environmental assessment (EA). 
• Clarifying when and how to do programmatic EISs and supplemental EISs. 

• Responding to comments in EAs and EISs. 

• Conducting joint federal-state environmental review. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
6 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

In August 2017, OEQC and the Council began working with a drafting team from the William S. 
Richardson School of Law to continue drafting language for the revisions to the 1996 Rules. 
OEQC also set up an online comment platform using CiviComment, allowing for an additional 
means of commenting on the rules update, as well as a webpage on the OEQC website tracking 
the rules update schedule, Council meetings on the rules update, and comment deadlines. See 
httpJJh.aalth,tlawaii.go¥,IQs.q.c.lrule&~updateJ. Those who signed up with OEQC were sent 
notifications via email regarding changes to the rules update schedule and comment deadlines 
posted to the rules update webpage. 

iii. Version 0.2 
Version 0.2 was introduced to the Council on September 5, 2017 as a discussion document that 
incorporated public and agency comments, as well as comments received from Council 
members. The Council closed comments on Version 0.2 on October 20, 2017. 

Version 0.2 proposed changes affecting almost every section of the 1996 Rules. In addition to 
the numerous "housekeeping" revisions, the following major topics were addressed in Version 
0.2: 

• Clarifying definitions and aligning them with statutory definitions. 
• Explicitly incorporating cultural practices in accordance with Act 50 (2000). 
• Updating requirements and procedures to publish in the OEQC periodic bulletin (i.e., 

The Environmental Notice). 
• Aligning the "triggers" requiring environmental review for agencies and applicants with 

statutory language. 
• Clarifying the environmental review process emergencies and emergency actions. 
• Clarifying roles and responsibil ities of proposing agencies and approving agencies. 
• Revising the requirements and procedures for creating exemption lists and exempting 

actions from further environmental review. 
• Modernizing submittals, deadlines, comment and response, and distribution to recognize 

electronic communication. 
• Revising th~ comment and response requirements and procedures for EAs and EISs. 
• Clarifying style standards for EAs and EISs, including when an action is a program or a 

project. 
• Clarifying significance criteria thresholds for determining whether to issue an exemption 

notice, Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI), or EIS Preparation Notice (EISPN). 
• Clarifying requirements and procedures for directly preparing an EIS instead of an EA. 
• Revising requirements for conducting scoping meetings following an EISPN. 
• Clarifying content requirements for draft and final EISs. 
• Revising procedures for appealing non-acceptance to the Council. 
• Revising procedures for joint federal-state environmental review. 
• Revising the requirements and procedures for determining when to do a Supplemental 

EIS, including aligning the requirements with statute and case law. 
• Adding a retroactivity section for actions that have already completed environmental 

review or are undergoing review at the time the Proposed Rules (as defined below) 
would be promulgated. 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
7 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

iv. Version 0.3 
Version 0.3 made multiple changes to Version 0.2 based on agency and public comments and 
Council input. Most notably, Version 0.3 reorganized, added, and deleted sections of the 1996 

Rules to c·reate Chapter 11-200A, HAR. The purpose of the reorganization was to ensure that 

the structure of the rules more closely followed the sequence of steps in the environmental 

review process. 

Because Version 0.3 reorganized the subchapters and sections, confusion could arise when 
referencing subchapters and sections. To ease discussion of differences between the 1996 

Rules and changes proposed in Version 0.3, Version 0.3 called the proposed rules "HAR 

Chapter 11-200A" and appended an "A" to the end of each subchapter and section number. A 

reference to a section number without using "A" was understood to be a reference to the 1996 

Rules. 

For example, section 3 in the 1996 Rules applies to the periodic bulletin, whereas section 3A in 

Version 0.3 was about the computation of time. What was Section 3 in the 1996 Rules had 

been moved to subchapter 4A Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin and the content that 

was in section 3 was divided into three sections: 4A, 5A, and 6A. 

Version 0.3 did not carry forward all proposed additions and deletions considered in Versions 

0.1 and 0.2. Rather, Version 0.3 only showed changes with respect to the existing 1996 Rules 
and 2007 amendment for consideration in that working draft. 

Version 0.3 reorganized the 1996 Rules almost entirely and proposed changes affecting almost 

every section of the 1996 Rules. In add ition to the reorganization and numerous 

"housekeeping" revisions, the following major topics were addressed in Version 0.3: 

• Clarifying definitions and aligning them with statutory definitions. 
• Incorporating cultural practices in accordance with Act 50 (2000). 

• Updating requirements and procedures to publish in the OEQC periodic bulletin (i.e., 
The Environmental Notice), including for unusual situations involving publishing again. 

• Aligning the "triggers" requiring environmental review for agencies and applicants with 
statutory language. 

• Clarifying the environmental review process as it applies to states of emergency and 
emergency actions. 

• Clari~ying roles and responsibilities of proposing agencies and approving agencies in the 
environmental review process. 

• Revising the requirements and procedures for creating exemption lists and exempting 

actions from further environmental review. 

• Modernizing submittals, deadlines, comment and response, and distribution to recognize 
electronic communication. 

• Revising the comment and response requirements and procedures for EAs and EISs. 

• Clarifying style standards for EAs and EISs, including when an action is a program o r a 

project. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
8 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200. 1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2 018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

• Clarifying significance criteria th resholds for determining whether to issue an exemption 

notice, FONS!, or EISPN. 

• Clarifying requirements and procedures for directly preparing an EIS instead of an EA. 

• Revising requirements for conducting scoping meetings following an EISPN. 

• Clarifying content requirements for draft and final EISs. 
. • Revising comment and response requirements. 

• Clarifying acceptance criteria. 
• Clarifying procedures for appealing non-acceptance to the Council. 

• Revising procedures for joint federal-state environmental review. 
• Consolidating into one section the requirements and procedures for determining when to 

do a Supplemental EIS, including aligning the requirements with statute and case law. 

• Adding a retroactivity section for actions that have already completed environmental 

review or are undergoing review at the time the rules would be enacted. 

v. Version 0.4 
Version 0.4 was released to the public a nd the Council on February 20, 201 8 for discussion at 
the Council's February 20, 2018 meeting. Version 0.4 made multiple changes to Version 0.3 

based on agency and public comments and Council input. Most notably, Version 0.4 introd uced 

the following new topics: 

• Providing a-new process, referred to as the "green sheet" for agencies to examine: (1) 

whether a proposed activity is covered by an existing environmental review document; 

(2) the level of review necessary for proposed action, and (3) whether a proposed action 
requires additional review. 

• Exemptions - requiring agency exemption lists to be categorized into two parts: (1) 
allowing for agencies to designate certain activities as de minimis and therefore not 

requiring exemption documentation; and (2) those activities requiring exemption 
documentation and publication in the periodic bulletin. 

• Explicitly requiring consideration of the impacts of sea level rise and greenhouse gases 
as significance criteria. 

• Requiring submission to OEQC of an audio recording of oral comments received at the 

public scoping meeting(s) on an EIS. 

The Council considered Version 0.4 for decision-making at its March 6, 2018 meeting and voted 

[INSERT VOTE COUNT] to approve Version 0.4 [, AS AMENDED] (hereinafter, the "Proposed 

Rules"). At this meeting, the Council a lso voted to approve the Public Notice of Rulemaking, 

this Rules Rationale, and the Changes from the 1996 Rules documents (the Proposed Rules, 

Public Notice of Rulemaking, Rules Rationale, and the Changes from the 1996 Rules 

documents are collectively referred to as the "Rules Package") and voted to recommend that 
Governor lge approve the Rules Package for formal public hearing and ~o send the Rules 

Package to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for review. On March _ _ , 
2018, the SBRRB reviewed the Rules Package and voted to recommend to that Governor lge 

set the Rules Package for public hearing. 

v0Aa-HAR-Chapter- 11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
9 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

On ____, 2018, Governor lge approved the Rules Package. On ___, 2018, the 
Director of the Department of Health published the notice of public hearing for the Proposed 
Rules. 

D. Process Moving Forward 

OEQC and the Council will take comments on the Proposed Rules during .the 30-day comment 
period, which begins on ___, 2018 and ends on _ __, 2018. During the 30-day 

·comment period, OEQC will hold public hearings on the Proposed Rules on the following dates 
and times in the fol lowing locations: 

• City & County of Honolulu: TBD 
• Kaua'i County: TBD 
• Maui County: TBD 
• Hawaii County: TBD 

In addition to comments received at the above listed public hearings, CiviComment will continue 
to be available for use during the 30-day public comment period. 

At the close of the 30-day comment period, the Rules Committee will review all comments and 
revise the Proposed Rules, as needed. All revisions to the Proposed Rules will be presented to 
the Council for decision-making. If the Council approves the revisions and no substantive 
changes are made, the Department of Health will promulgate the final rules as chapter 11-
200.1, HAR. (If substantive changes are made, additional public hearings may be required on 
the Proposed Rules.) 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
10 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

11. Global Discussion Points 

A. Reorganization 
The overall reorganization of the 1996 Rules is proposed to make the rules clearer and to reflect 
the sequence of going through environmental review. 

The 1996 Rules repeat or cross-reference many steps in the process. For example, the 1996 
Rules have Section 3 on publishing in The Environmental Notice, but has additional publication 
requirements in the following sections: 9, 15, and 20. The Proposed Rules consolidate 
directions on how to publish into one section. 

The order of the sections in the 1996 Rules do not reflect the order of going through the 
environmental review process. For example, the significance criteria are found in Section 12, 
following the draft EA section, yet the significance criteria are part of the initial decision to 
prepare an exemption, EA, or EIS. The Proposed Rules move the significance criteria to earlier 
in the order prior to deciding the appropriate level of review. 

Similarly, the 1996 Rules group the EA and EIS steps by content and then process. For 
example, the 1996 Rules organize the EIS sections in the following order: consultation prior to a 
draft EIS, general content requirements for EISs, content for a draft EIS, then content for a final 
EIS, followed by style, filing, distribution, review, and acceptability. The Proposed Rules 
reorganize these sections into the flow of the process: consultation prior to preparing a draft 
EIS, content requirements for a draft EIS, public review of a draft EIS, comment responses for a 
draft EIS, content requirements for a final EIS, and the acceptability of a final EIS. The 
Proposed Rules consolidate fil ing and distribution requirernents into the subchapter on filing and 
publishing in the periodic bulletin. 

While versions 0.1 and 0.2 retained the 1996 Rules sequence of sections but added some new 
sections, Version 0.3 introduced a complete reorganization of the sections. To make discussion 
of the rules in Version 0.3 easier, the organized rules were referred to as Chapter 11-200A and 
had "A" appended to the end of each section number. 

For Version 0.4, the Proposed Rules are referred to as "Chapter 11-200.1 " because the 1996 
Rules would be repealed and in their place Chapter 11-200.1 would be promulgated. 

The fol lowing table shows where sections from the 1996 Rules appear in the Proposed Ru les 
for Version 0.4. In general, almost every section includes new and moved 1996 language. The 
1996 Rules sections cited below are the primary sources for the corresponding Proposed Rules 
sections. "New" indicates that the section is almost entirely new or incorporates important 
points from a 1996 Rules section. 

Note the sequence of sections have been modified from the order in Version 0.3. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
11 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

· February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

-• 

1996 SectionVersion 0:4 Chapter 11'-200.1, HAR . .
' 

Subchapter 1 Purpose · ' 
,, ,. .: " 

1, 14, 19 §11-200.1-1 Purpose 
.,. . .. 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 
•: 

2§ 11-200.1 -2 Definitions 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
;' .. 

New§11-200.1-3 Computation ofTime (new) 

Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin . 

3,11.2,21,27§11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 

3,9,10,1 1.1, §1 1-200.1 -5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 
11 .2, 20, 23 

§11~200.1 -6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations New 

Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 

3,4,23§11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 

,.Subchapter 6 Applicability 
,.' 

§11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions New, 5, 8 

§ 11-200.1-9 Appl icability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant Actions New, 5, 6 

§11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Actions 7 

§11-200. 1-1 1 Use of Prior Exemptions, Findings of No Significant Impact, or New 

Accepted Environmental Impact Statements to Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for 

Proposed Activities 

Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance ; .. 

§ 11-200.1 -12 Consideration of Previous Determinations and Accepted Statements 13 

§11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 12 

§1 1-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review New, 5, 8 

,. 
Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 

' 

§11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 8 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
12 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Version 0.4 Chapter 11-200.1, HAR . 1996 Section 

§11-200.1 -16 Exemption Lists 8 

§11-200.1 -17 Exemption Notices 8 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 

§11 -200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 9, 10, 19 

§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 11.1 

§1 1-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmehtal 9.1 
Assessments 

§1 1-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 10 

§1 1-200.1 -22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 9, 11.2 

Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 

§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 9, 15 

§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact Statement 16, 17, 19,22 

§1 1-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 22 
Statements 

§11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 22 
Statements 

§11-200.1 -27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 16, 17, 18 

§11-200.1-28 Acceptability 23 

§11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 24 

§11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 26,27,28,29 

,. 
Subchapter 12 National Environmental Policy Act 

§1 1-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: Applicability to Chapter 25, New 
343, HRS 

Subchapter 13 RetrC?activity and Severability 

§1 1-200.1-32 Retroactivity New 

§11-200.1-33 Severability 30 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
13 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR ·Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

B. General Changes 

The Proposed Rules make numerous changes to the rules that enhance readability. In general, 
changes to grammar and spelling, breaking long paragraphs into lists, reordering paragraphs, 
deleting redundant language, or similar edits are considered housekeeping and are not 
discussed in the sections below. 

The most frequent general change is editing ''.which" to "that". '.'Which" is appropriate where the 
following clause is not necessary to the meaning of the sentence an_d is descriptive of the clause 
that precedes it. "That" is appropriate when the preceding clause is dependent on the clause 
following "that"; the words after "that" are essential to the meaning of the sentence. Numerous · 
instances of "which" in the 1996 Rules are changed to "that" in the Proposed Rules. 

While the Legislative Reference Bureau (LRB) recommends to_ not use acronyms or 
abbreviations in rules, the LRB recognizes that in some cases their use is appropriate. For 
example, in Chapter 11-55, HAR, Water Pollution Control, "National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System" is abbreviated as "NPDES". This reflects the reali.ty that most people 
interacting with these administrative rules use "NPDES" more than the full name and use of the 
abbreviation enhances readability of the rules. 

Similarly, in the environmental review process, use of certain acronyms and abbreviations is 
integral to meaningfully participating in the process. In particular, the following are considered 
important and integral acronyms and abbreviations and therefore are used in the Proposed 
Rules to enhance readability: 

• EA: environmental assessment 
• EIS: environmental impact statement 
• EISPN: environmental impact statement preparation notice 
o FONSI: finding of no significant impact 
• HAR: Hawaii Administrative Rules 
• HRS: Hawaii Revised Statutes 
• NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 

The Proposed Rules replace all instances of "assessment" with "EA" and clarify whether it is 
specifically referring to a draft or final EA. Also, the Proposed Rules replace all instances of 
"statement" with "EIS" and clarify whether it is specificaily referring to a draft or final EIS. 

C. Topical _Changes 

Digitizing the Process 

When the 1996 Rules were promulgated, home use of computers was just beginning. Internet 
was still paid for by the minute and most communication still relied ori physical mail. The 
Environmental Notice was physically mailed to subscribers. Proponents also physically mailed 
copies of EAs and EISs to Parties requesting it. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale
14 . 

http:reali.ty


Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Today, The Environmental Notice is distributed electronically and EAs, EISs, and other 
environmental review documents are freely available in OEQC's online database. Many of the 
mailing and print-copy requirements for environmental review documents were included in the 

I 

1996 Rules to ensure access. With widespread digital distribution, these concerns are no 
longer as prominent. The Proposed Rules, therefore, make modifications in a number of areas 
related to digitization. For example, proposing agencies and applicants are no longer required 
to mail individual responses to commenters because the responses are easily accessible in the 
document posted online. Some paper copies of EAs and EISs, however, are still required in the 
Proposed Rules. For example, a copy of a draft EA must be given to the library in the area 
most affected by the action and one f iled with the State Library Document Center. 

Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program 
The Proposed Rules weave in the concept of programmatic environmental review that may 
apply to an exemption, EA, or EIS. This approach has evolved from Version 0.1 to the current 
Proposed Rules. Programmatic environmental review is sometime referred to as being at the 
"planning-level," and project-based environmental review is sometimes referred to as "site
specific". Programmatic environmental review is most appropriate for evaluating the impacts of 
a wide range of individual projects; implementation over a long time-frame; or implementation 
across a wide geographic area. The level of detail in programmatic environmental review 
should be enough to make an informed choice among planning-level alternatives and broad 
mitigation strategies. This type of review allows for analysis of the interactions of a number of 
planned projects or phases in a plan. This broader level review may satisfy compliance with 
chapter 343, HRS as described in the new section on use of prior exemptions, FONS ls, and 
accepted EISs or may be followed by site- or component-specific exemptions, EAs, or EISs that 
are based off of the approved or accepted programmatic document, a process known as 
"tiering," as the elements of the program are proposed to be implemented. 

Version 0.1 of the Proposed Rules proposed a distinct section covering "Programmatic EISs." 
The Council realized that setting forth a programmatic approach to EISs in a distinct section 
would require that same section to be replicated for exemptions, EAs, and potentially 
supplemental EISs as well. This approached also would have resulted in the default process 
becoming the "project" process and would have created a bifurcated process for projects and 
programs that raised questions about being within the authority set by chapter 343, HRS. It also 
raised questions about rights to action involving this bifurcated process; whether someone could 
sue to require someone to undergo the "project" versus the "program" pathway. 

In Version 0.2, the proposed distinct section was deleted, and the concept of a preparation of a . 
programmatic EA or EIS was inserted into a proposed "Environmental Assessment Style" 
section and the existing "Environmental Impact Statement Style" section. In general, those 
sections clarified that more detail was necessary for actions that had site-specific impacts and 
less detail was necessary for broader actions that were still in a more conceptual phase and 
intended to be implemented in multiple locations or in phases. Versions 0.1 and 0.2, howev er, 
did not define "project" or "program," which made discussion of "programmatic" environmental 
review more complicated. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
15 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

While the Council was draftin9 Version 0.3, the Supreme Court of Hawaii issued its decision in 
Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 284 (Haw. 2017). 
Because chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules lacked a definition for project or program, the 
court looked to the Merriam-Webster Dictionary for the plain-meaning of those terms. The court 
provided: '"Program' is generally defined as 'a plan or system under which action may be taken 
toward a goal.' '.Project' is defined as 'a specific plan or design' or 'a planned undertaking"' 
(Umberger v. Department of Land and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 290 (Haw. 2017)). In 
drafting, th_e Council noted that the definition for "program" provided by the court included the 
word "action," which is defined in chapter 343, HRS as "a project or program." Therefore, the 
Council believed that further clarification was necessary. 

In order to provide greater clarity and to be able to discuss the concept of "programmatics" more 
succinctly, in Version 0.3 the Council proposed definitions for "project" and "program". The 
Proposed Rules substantially retain these proposed definitions from Version 0.3. Using the 
definitions to distinguish between projects and programs, the Proposed Rules also allow for the 
preparation of programmatic exemptions, EAs, and EISs. 

"Green Sheet" 
The "green sheet" process is an adaptation of the City and County of Honolulu Department of 
Planning and Permitting's internal. review process (referred to as the green sheet) for 
documenting chapter 343, HRS analysis. The Council has modified this concept to incorporate 
considerations that the U.S. Bureau of Land Management and U.S. DOT use in their own NEPA 
adequacy analysis. 

During the Council's rules revision process, questions arose about standardizing how agencies 
conduct evaluations of the need to prepare a supplemental EIS. Other stakeholders raised 
questions about how an agency would resolve whether an action is covered by a previous 
determination or accepted EIS; a project is covered by a programmatic exemption, EA or EIS; or 
a federal NEPA EA or EIS meets the requirements of chapter 343! HRS. Others recommended 
incorporating the U.S. Department of Transportaion's (DOT) re-evaluation process for 
considering when a Supplemental EIS may be warranted. 

For the supplemental EIS question, the 1996 Rules (Section 27) provide that an agency submit 
to OEQC for publication a determination of whether a Supplemental EIS is required or not 
required. The Proposed Rules retain this requirement. Note that the Proposed Rules group the 
Supplemental EIS section into the subchapter on EISs. The "green sheet" is ·a process 
proposed in section 11-200.1-11 that helps an agency with documenting its decision-making 
about whether a proposed action fits within an existing chapter 343, HRS document or 
determination or requires additional environmental review. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
16 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Section 11-200.1-11 is a new section that directs agencies on applying a new activity to an 
existing HEPA process but providing three criteria for determining when an activity is covered: 

(1) The proposed activity was a component of, or is substantially similar to, an action 
that received an exemption, FONSI, or an accepted EIS (for example, a project that 
was analyzed in a programmatic EIS); 

(2) The proposed activity is anticipated to have direct, indirect, and cumulative effects 
similar to those analyzed in a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS; and 

(3) In the case of a final EA or an accepted EIS, the proposed activity was analyzed 

within the range of alternatives. 

Concluding "yes" to the three criteria means that the proposed act.ion fits within one of the 
circumstances. Concluding "no" means that a separate chapter 343, HRS analysis is needed; 

that is, the agency needs to decide if an exemption, EA, or EIS is appropriate. In either case, 
the agency may choose to publish the determination with the OEQC for publication in the 
periodic bulletin. · 

For NEPA, an agency, in the act of issuing an exemption, FONSI, or acceptance, would in effect 
"certify" that the federal document and process meets the requirements of chapter 343, HRS. 
That is, if an agency were to issue a FONSI for a federal EA that was not published in the 
periodic bulletin, then the agency would be at fault for not fully complying with chapter 343, 

HRS. Similarly, an agency issuing an acceptance based on a federal EIS would be affirming by 
issuing the acceptance that the federal EIS meets the content and process requirements of 
chapter 343, HRS, including any particular provisions related to NEPA as set forth in section 11-
200. 1-31. 

Following adoption of the Proposed Rules, the OEQC will develop guidance on creating a 
"green sheet" equivalent (i.e., a standardized form) that helps agencies with tracking 
determinations that an activity is covered by an existing chapter 343, HRS process, such as a 
programmatic EIS covering the action; whether a supplemental EIS is required; and whether 
NEPA is an aspect of the action. 

Exemptions 
One of the Council's goals was to update the exemption process. The overall proposed 
changes are intended to increase agency use of exemptions, provide incentives for updating 
exemption lists and obtain Council concurrence with the lists on a regular basis, and increase 
timely public access to information about exemptions. See the sections of this Rationale 
Document regarding subchapter 8, Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements for a 

detailed discussion of the proposed changes to the exemptions subchapter. The following is the 
primary change in the Proposed Rules from Version 0.3. 

Section 11 -200.1 -1 6 revises the exemption list to consist of two parts. The first part would be 

those types of actions that the agency considers to be the equivalent of de minimis; that is, they 
are routine operations and maintenance, ongoing administrative activities, and other similar 
items. This category of activities was proposed under section 11-200.1-8, General Applicability, 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
17 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

in Version 0.3. The Proposed Rules removed that section and now require agencies to consider 
in advance what activities the agency considers to be de minimis, and to include those in Part 1 
of the agency's exemption list. By including them in the exemption list, the agency is able to 
make staff aware of occasions where an activity might be in the gray area of a project -or 
program for the purposes of chapter 343, HRS but perhaps not rising to the level of requiring 
environmental review as explained by the Hawaii Supreme Court in several of its decisions. 
Activities that are included in the first part of the exemption list would be presumed to not 
require documentation (i.e., an exemption notice) or consultation. In effect, these are the 
everyday things that government does, from repainting buildings to fixing plumbing and 
purchasing office supplies. Many of these items already exist on agency lists because they fall 
under one or more of the classes in the 1996 Rules. After adoption of the Proposed Rules, the 
agency would have seven years to reorganize and update its exemption list to comply with the 

Proposed Rules (see section 11 -200.1-32, Retroactivity for more). 

Affordable Housing 
See the discussion in Section 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption for 
discussion about the exemptions regarding affordable housing. 

Climate Change 
The Proposed Rules incorporate sea level rise into significance criterion 11. Under the 
Proposed Rules, when determining whether preparation of an EIS is required approving 
agencies must consider whether a proposed action is likely to have a substantial adverse effect 
on a sea level rise exposure area, such as exacerbating coastal erosion. They must also 
consider whether the proposed action is likely to suffer damage if it is implemented due to being 

located in a sea level rise exposure area. 

Additionally, the Proposed Rules amend criterion 13 to require approving agencies to consider 
in a significance determination whether a proposed project will emit substantial greenhouse 
gases at any stage or may emit substantial greenhouse gases as an indirect or cumulative 

impact. 

The Hawaii Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Adaptability Report, released in December 2017 
by the Department of Land and Natural Resources, calls on the OEQC to develop guidance on 
addressing climate change in EAs and EISs. Guidance from the OEQC will be forthcoming after 
the rules update is completed. In developing the guidance, the OEQC will look to the Final 
Guidance for Federal Departments and Agencies on Consideration of Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions and the Effects of Climate Change in NEPA Reviews, issued by the Council on 
Environmental Quality Control on August 5, 2016 (81 FR 51866). 

"Direct-to-EIS" 
In 2012 the Legislature amended chapter 343, HRS to allow for agencies and applicants to 
directly prepare an EIS when there was a clear potential for significant impact. The 1996 Rules 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
18 



Environmental Council v0Aa 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

are written such that an EA that is prepared prior to an EIS is part of the definition of an EIS and 
is one of the steps in the process of developing an EIS. The Proposed Rules remove 
preparation of an EA from the definition of an EIS and allow for EISs to begin at the EIS 
preparation notice stage without first preparing an EA. 

Th.e 1996 Rules created confusion about the requirements for an EISPN when an applicant or 
proposing agency began with an EIS versus beginning with an EA and finding that an EIS is 
needed. To reduce this confusion, the Proposed Rules standardize the requirement of an 
EISPN regardless of how an applicant or proposing agency begins an EIS. 

The Proposed Rules include a public scoping meeting requirement and incorporation of public 
feedback from the scoping meeting into the draft EIS. In the past, the preparation of an EA 
would provide the public an early opportunity to provide comments on an action. The scoping 
meeting requirement at the EISPN phase balances the increased efficiency of proceeding 
directly to an EIS with providing adequate opportunity for public engagement. 

Because the 1996 Rules assumed that an EA would be done before an EISPN, the content 
requirements for an EISPN are few. In the Proposed Rules, those details are intended to be 
filled out with the preparation of the draft EIS and with incorporation of public feedback from the 
mandatory scoping meeting and any other public consultation. 

Republication of EAs or EISs 
On occasion, an agency or applicant would like to extend a public comment period for an EA or 
EIS. The statute is silent on extending public comment periods. However, it does allow for an 
applicant to request an agency to extend the acceptance period by 15 days (HRS§ 343-S(e)). 

In the past, agencies have offered extended comment periods to allow the public more time to 
engage in the process and provide additional feedback. While this is laudable, it creates 
complications for the environmental review process. If an agency does not announce this 
extension through The Environmental Notice, then not all stakeholders may be aware of the 
extension. In effect, this gives some members of the public more time than others. Also, an 
extension of time creates uncertainty in legal standing for individuals who submit comments 
after the statutory deadline of a comment. The statute sets clear limitations on rights to pursue 
legal remedies, one of which is having commented during the draft EIS comment period. 
Extending comment deadline creates questions of standing for the courts. 

In order to meet the need of additional comment time while staying within the statute, the 
Proposed Rules add a new section on republishing EAs and EISs for additional comment time. 
This creates a second comment period of thirty days for draft EAs and EISPNs, and forty-five 
days for draft EISs. 

For someone commenting during the republication period, their comment would be treated the 
same as having been submitted during the initial publication period. That is, the proponent 
would have to respond to the comment and the commenter would have legal standing. For 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
19 



Environmental Counci l v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
I 

comments received in between publication periods, these would not have legal standing 
because they would not be submitted during a legal window. 

The OEQC will publish guidance to agencies recommending that they contact any members of 
the public who submit comments between publication periods to recommend that the 
commenter resubmit the comment during the re-publication comment period. 

Response to Comments 
The Proposed Rules make several changes to how proposing agencies and applicants respond 
to comments. As discussed below, the Council also considered removing but ultimately 
retained the qualifying word_"substantive" in the Proposed Rules as a threshold for the response 

requirement. 

Individually Mailed Responses, Comment Grouping, and Form Letters/Petitions 

When the 1996 Rules were promulgated, the main method of EA/EIS dissemination was 
through paper copies of the documents. It was also essential that hardcopies of responses be 
mailed to commenters so that they could access the response, which wou ld otherwise 
predominantly be available only through a paper copy of the EA or EIS at the library or other 

certain physical locations. 

Today, EAs, EISs, and other environmental review documents are easily accessible through the 
OEQC website. Accordingly, the Proposed Rules have introduced a number of changes based 
on the wide accessibility of EAs and EISs online. 

First, the Proposed Rules no longer require a written response to be physically mailed to each 
commenter. Comments must still, .however, be responded to arid appended to the final EA or 

final EIS, with some minimal exceptions. 

Second, because comments no longer must be mailed individually to commenters, the 
Proposed Rules allow proposing agencies and applicants to respond to comments based upon 
the "grouping" model that federal environmental review under NEPA allows. Proposing 
agencies and applicants may analyze the comment letters they receive, identify the topics and 
issues raised in those comment letters, and then prepare a single response for each issue 
raised by topic. This particularly increases efficiency when a number of comment letters are 
received that raise the same issues. Grouping also gives the approving or accepting agency, 
and the public, a comprehensive understanding of all the issues raised under a sing le topic. 

The Council received and considered comments from the public that "grouping" may allow 
proposing agencies or applicants to side-step substantive comments by not addressing specific 
details raised within a comment on a particular topic. To prevent this, the Proposed Rules draw 
a distinction between "topic" and "issue." As an example, a number of comment letters may 
contain portions address ing endangered species. Some may be concerned about monk seals, 
while others may be con·cerned about hawksbill turtles. A proposing agency or applicant could 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
20 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

group all the comments related to endangered species under one topic, and then have two 
separate issues: monk seals and hawksbill turtles. Within those issue headings, the proposing 
agency or applicant must then address each substantive comment related to monk seals or 
hawksbill turtles. Although the comments may be grouped, the substance of each substantive 

comment must be addressed. 

There were also concerns that without a physical letter, commenters would not be able to 
determine whether their comments received a response. To address this, when grouping 
comments, proposing agencies and applicants must include a list of the commenters whose 
comments are being addressed under each topic heading or section. Further, all comment 
letters containing substantive comments must be appended to the final document (e.g., FEIS). 

The Proposed Rules also allow proposing agencies and applicants to continue the current 
practice of providing a separate response for each comment letter, wherein each substantive 
comment presented in the comment letter must be addressed. Under this practice, the 
response letter is usually included before or after the comment letter, and the commenter may 
clearly identify that a response has been provided. Although not required, proposing applicants 
and agencies may mail written responses to commenters. 

The Proposed Rules additionally address the increasing use of form letters and petitions. The 
Proposed Rules attempt to ensure recognition of the commenters who submit identical or near
identical comments and to provide an efficient process to respond to the raised issues. 

To do this, the Proposed Rules allow proposing agencies and applicants to respond to form 
letters and petitions with a single response or, if following the grouping procedure, to address 
the issues raised in the form letter in the appropriate topic areas. Only one representative 
sample of a form letter or petition must be appended to the document. However, all the 
commenters who submitted the form letter or signed the petition must be identified either in the 
single response, or in the topic response. If it is more efficient, instead of listing the names 
included on a petition, the proposing agency may simply include all cdpies of the petition, and 
similarly, may also include all copies of the form letter rather than including a sample and listing 
the names of those who provided the identical or near-identical comments: 

The Council received feedback that the form letter process may allow proposing agencies or 
applicants to overlook form letter comments that add in additional substantive points. The 
Proposed Rules address this by requiring that form letters that have additional substantive 
points be appended in full to the document, and receive a response, either as a separate 
response, or as part of a grouped response. 

"Substantive" Comments 

In Version 0.2, the Council considered and received feedback on requiring a response to all 
comments, as opposed to requiring a response to "substantive" comments. Removing the word 
"substantive" ensures that all comments will receive a response, but created concerns about 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
21 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

increased burdens on the proposing agency and applicant to respond to statements within a 
comment letter that are clearly outside the scope of the action, that are inflammatory, or that are 
simply formalities or pleasantries. Taking these concerns into account, Version 0.3 reinserted 
the word "substantive" into the Proposed Rules to retain the qualification that only "substantive" 
comments require a response. Version 0.3 also emphasized that the accepting authority had to 
be satisfied that a comment was "substantive" or not and, if it was, had received a 

commensurate response. 

The Proposed Rules retain the word "substantive" and include direction to the accepting 
authority. The Council also notes that in the NEPA context "substantive" generally means that a 
comment addresses some specific aspect of the proposed action or the document ( e.g·., draft 

EA or draft EIS). 

Scoping Meetings 
In the 1996 Rules, the EISPN is followed by a 30-day comment period to help scope the 
contents of the draft EIS. The proponent has the option to hold a scoping meeting. If the 
proponent chooses to hold a scoping meeting, then the proponent must treat oral and written 
comments the sam~; that is, oral and written comments from a scoping meeting have to be 
written down and responded to in the draft EIS. In practice, many proponents choose to either 
not hold scoping meetings, or hold meetings that are similar but do not meet the legal 
description of a scoping meeting, which in turn removes the legal requirement to respond to oral 

comments. 

The direct-to-EIS change to the statute also resulted in the public expressing concerns that they 
now have less information when an EISPN is published. Prior to the statute change, an EA 
would be prepared as part of the EISPN, usually including a comment period from draft to final 
EA. Sinc.e the change in statute, most EISs begin with an EISPN and do not prepare an EA. 
Because the 1996 Rules assume an EA has been done before an EISPN, the content 
requirements for an EISPN are few. The public often requests a scoping meeting now as a way 

to get more information about-a proposed action. 

At the federal level, NEPA requires a scoping meeting for EISs. In Hawaii, given the statutory 
direct-to-EIS change and the importance of focusing the document on the important issues 
(scoping), the Council believes requiring a scoping meeting is appropriate and timely. 

In the case of a proposed action occurring on multiple islands, a scoping meeting is required to 
be held on each island affected. Requiring a scoping meeting addresses the public's need to be 
better informed about a proposed action while giving applicants the opportunity to meanin~fully 

engage the public. 

The Council recognizes that req uiring a scoping meeting will add a new cost to undertaking an 
EIS. To balance this additional cost, the Council is requiring written comments received at a 
scoping meeting be responded to in writing while oral comments be audio recorded and 
submitted to the OEQC and oral comments summarized in the draft EIS. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200. 1-Ru les-Rationale 
22 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

The Council reviewed the EISs prepared since 2012 and found that the number of EISs 
averaged about eleven per year, the majority of which agencies proposed. Only state agencies 
prepared statewide EISs over the past five years, which indicates that the requirement to hold 
scoping meetings on multiple islands would have limited relevance to applicants. Where it may 
happen to be relevant, multiple scoping meetings are unlikely to be cost prohibitive or the 
determining factor in a proposed action's process or implementation. 

NEPA-HEPA 

The Proposed Rules seek to increase efficiency and harmonization of federal and state 
environmental review where both are necessary. The Proposed Rules promote the use of a 
single document that satisfies both federal and state environmental review and goes through a 
single comment period for the purposes of both. The Proposed Rules encourage the use of the 
NEPA environmental review document, but require that each agency make an independent 
determination pursuant to chapter 343, HRS of the necessary level of environmental review. A 
NEPA document (such as an EA or EIS) cannot be used as a chapter 343, HRS document if it 
does not meet the requirements for chapter 343, HRS review (including required public 
comment periods). When a federally prepared EA or EIS meets all the process and content 
requirements, then a Hawaii decision-maker can use the federal document. This can be noted 
in the "green sheet." 

The Proposed Rules contain provisions for agency decision-makers to make their own decision 
about the necessary level of environmental review under chapter 343, HRS while taking into 
account existing federal information. For example, NEPA could allow for a categorical 
exemption, while chapter 343, HRS may require an EA or even an EIS. Alternatively, NEPA 
could require a federal EA, while chapter 343, HRS may allow for an exemption. 

Retroactivity 
During the Council's rules update process, agencies and applicants expressed concerns 
regarding how the process requirements for actions that were undergoing environmental review 
when the Proposed Rules are promulgated into law would apply. Agencies and applicants also 
expressed concerns regarding actions that may have completed the environmental review 
process but after litigation are required to go through the process a second time as a result of 
the litigation. To reduce uncertainty about when the Proposed Rules would take effect relative 
to a proposed action going through the environmental review process, the Council proposed a 
new retroactivity section in Version 0.2 and modified the language in Version 0.3. 

The principle underlying the retroactivity section is that proposed actions that have completed a 
formal public engagement step shall continue under the 1996 Rules for five years from the 
promulgation of the Proposed Rules. For EAs, this means once a draft EA has been published, 
the proposed action remains under the 1996 Rules until either it receives a determination 
(FONSI or EISPN) or five years have passed. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
23 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Similarly, for an EIS, publication of the EISPN would mean the proposed action stays under the 
1996 Rules until either a determination is made (acceptance or non-acceptance) or five years 
have passed. This ensures that_the proponent has a consistent process and the public has an 
expectation of the process for its duration. 

This section also allows agencies to maintain their exemption lists for up to seven years before 
needing to obtain Council concurrence. The retroactivity period allows for an agency to review 
its existing exemption list to reflect the changes associated with the Proposed Rules. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
24 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

agency, citizen group, or individual was "consulted with" but had "no comment" if that agency, 
citizen group, or individual is included as a "consulted" entity in the draft EIS. "No comment" 
can occur in at least two instances. First, when a person or agency responds to a written 
request for comments that it has "no comment", and second, when a proponent provides 
information but does not solicit feedback. The second is not true consultation, because it is not 
reciprocal communication. This provision was added however, in response to concerns by 
individuals and organizations whose names were listed in EISs as having been "consulted with" 
when they merely attended a public informational meeting where they received information from 
the action proponent, but were not invited to share feedback on the action. The Proposed Rules 
clarify that if the proponent desires to include attendees at informational meetings as those 
"consulted with" then it should indicate whether those individuals or organizations gave "no 
comment." This also protects individuals and organizations who wish to gather more information 
through an informational session but are not be prepared to also provide informed feedback at 
such a preliminary session from being listed as a "consulted" entity who spoke with the 
proponent on behalf of oneself or a particular community or interest group. The section also 
specifies that a summary of the oral comments made at any EIS public scoping meeting held 
pursuant to section 11-200.1-23 must be included. This section adds additional requirements 
specific to the preparation of the final EIS, including responses to comments received on the 
draft EIS and a list of persons or agencies consulted in preparing the final EIS. 

§ 11-200.1-28 Acceptability 

This section is formerly section 11-200-23, HAR (1996). The Proposed Rules introduce several 
minor clarifying amendments, including: (1) breaking up long paragraphs into subsections; (2) 
clarifying that the section applies to final EISs; (3) clarifying that the acceptability of the final EIS 
includes a review of acceptability of the full environmental review process--from the proposal of 
the action to publication of the EIS; (4) clarifying that an acceptability determination requires the 
approving agency or accepting authority to assess whether the proposing agency or applicant 
classified comments as "substantive" and have included satisfactory responses to these 
comments in a manner commensurate with the level of detail included in the substantive 
comment; and (5) clarifying that comments must have been satisfactorily incorporated into the 
final EIS. "Satisfactorily" in this section refers to the satisfaction of the approving agency or 
accepting authority that the requirements have been met. The clarifications regarding the 
designation of "substantive" comments and the responses thereto are intended to address 
concerns that proposing agencies or applicants may intentionally or unintentionally disregard 
substantive comments as non-substantive. These clarifications draw the approving agency or 
accepting authority's attention to the requirement that all components of the EIS process must 
be satisfactory to the approving agency or accepting authority, including the proposing agency 
or applicant's exercise of discretion in designating comments as substantive or non-substantive. 
In subsection (b)(3), the revised rule also adds in that approving agencies and accepting 
authorities should ensure that comments have been "appropriately incorporated into the final 
EIS." The addition of the word "appropriately" is intended as a recognition that not all comments 
will be incorporated or necessitate a change in the body of the final EIS, and that some 
comments, such as form letters or petitions, may not need to be appended if there is a 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
62 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

representative sample included pursuant to the comment response provisions of this 
subchapter. 

The revised rule also provides in subsection (c) that for actions proposed by an agency, the 
OEQC may submit a ~ecommendation regarding acceptability or non-acceptability to the 
accepting authority and proposing agency. The Proposed Rules do not place a deadline on the 
OEQC's recommendation because chapter 343, HRS does not impose a deadline on the 
determination of acceptability of agency actions. The Council took into consideration that the 
OEQC should endeavor to provide a recommendation as early as practicable, but that requiring 
a deadline may prevent the OEQC from providing a recommendation in the event that an 
accepting authority takes longer than usual to make a determination. 

Subsection (e) includes a clarification that the accepting authority for an applicant action is the 
approving agency. Subsection (e) also clarifies that the 30-day period for an approving agency 
to determine the acceptability of an EIS begins with the submission of the final EIS to the 
approving agency or accepting authority, rather than publication of the final EIS in the bulletin. 
Further, subsection (e) clarifies that the 30-day acceptance determination period may be 
extended at the request of the applicant for an additional fifteen days. 

Other minor changes were made in accordance with global edits throughout the Proposed 
Rules, such as updating section references, and replacing the term "statement" with EIS and 
clarifying that "state or county lands or funds" can include "state or county lands," "state or 
county funds" or both state and country lands and state and county funds. 

Finally, the Proposed Rules provide minor changes to clarify the process for withdrawing an 
EIS. 

§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 

This was formerly section 11-200-24, HAR (1996). The proposed amendments to this section 
are intended to clarif~ the existing language, as well as to specify the process by which the 
Council hears the appeal. 

The Proposed Rules clarify that an appeal may be filed by an applicant with the Council after 
the non-acceptance determination by the approving agency under the acceptability criteria in 
subchapter 10, "Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements." 

The Proposed Rules clarify that upon receipt of an appeal, the Council chairperson shall include 
the appeal on the agenda of the next council meeting. This connects the receipt of the notice of 
the appeal under section 343-5(e), HRS, with the timing of the next Council meeting. 

Previous versions of the Proposed Rules included provisions that an applicant may also seek 
judicial review of the non-acceptance pursuant to chapter 91, HRS and that pursuing an appeal 
to the Council does not abrogate the applicant's right under section 34-7(c), HRS to bring a 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
63 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

judicial action. The Council omitted these proposed changes from Version 0.3 and the currently 
Proposed Rules because it received feedback that such language was unnecessary and may 
be outside the scope of the rules. The Council also considered but ultimately omitted in the 
Proposed Rules including a provision that an entity other than an applicant could appeal the 
non-acceptance of an EIS to the Council. 

§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 

All language in this section comes from sections 11-200-26 to 11-200-29, HAR (1996) and 
synthesizes those sections into a single section. Minor stylistic changes were made, such as 
replacing "statement" with EIS. Subsection (a) was formerly section 11-200-26, HAR (1996). 
Subsection (b) was formally section 11-200-27, HAR ( 1996). Subsection ( c) was formerly 
section 11-200-28, HAR (1996). Subsection (d) was formerly 11-200-29, HAR (1996). 

Version 0.1 considered changes to the sections dealing with supplemental EISs that would 
have: (1) explicitly added "new information IIas a factor to consider when weighing the necessity 
of a supplemental EIS; (2) explicitly provided for which sources of new information should be 
considered when determining the necessity of a supplemental EIS; and (3) established a five
year review requirement of accepted EISs for actions that had not yet substantially commenced. 
Version 0.1 also organized the information in the currently proposed subparagraph (a) of the 
Proposed Rules (originally section 11-200-26, HAR (1996)) into subparts. 

The Council received multiple comments both in support of and raising concern about explicitly 
establishing "new information" as a factor for requiring preparation of a Supplemental EIS. 
Many practitioners expressed that this requirement was already clear in case law, particularly 
through Unite Here! Local 5 v. City and County of Honolulu, 231 P.3d 423, 430 (Haw. 2010), 
also known as the Turtle Bay case. Altering this section, they provided, could create confusion 
where the Supreme Court of Hawaii has already established precedent. 

Similarly, the Council received numerous comments both in support of and raising concerns 
regarding the five-year review period. There was some confusion over whether the proposal in 
Version 0.1 established an "expiration date." It did not. The intention was to provide a 
checkpoint for review with the exception that the review was only necessary if an action had not 
yet substantially commenced. The 1996 Rules provide that a supplemental EIS must be 
prepared in certain circumstances, but do not establish the time period or requirement for 
making that determination. The five-year review was intended to address that gap. The 
language of "substantial commencement," intended to ensure that actions that were already well 
underway or completed were not subject to the uncertainty of a supplemental EIS review, also 
posed some interpretation challenges. A definition for "substantial commencement" was also 
considered in conjunction with this section and the section on emergency actions. It was 
deleted in Version 0.3. 

In support of the five-year review, some commenters provided that a clear checkpoint--which 
the 1996 Rules lack--is necessary to create certainty. In the Turtle Bay case, a review for the 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
64 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

necessity of a supplemental EIS took place because the developer sought a discretionary 
permit necessary to proceed with the completion of the proposed action. If only ministerial 
approvals were necessary for completion, then under the 1996 Rules the necessity of a 
supplemental EIS may not have been considered. 

Taking those concerns into account, the Proposed Rules substantially retain the original 
language from the 1996 Rules and simply combine the sections into one section. The proposed 
requirement for five-year review has been removed. In its place, the Proposed Rules propose 
mandating a process (i.e., the "green sheet") for agencies to follow when considering issuing 
permits for actions with existing EAs and EISs. For further details on that process, see the 
"Green Sheet" section of this document. 

Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 
Subchapter 11 (National Environmental Policy Act) creates a distinct subchapter to describe 
how to conduct environmental review for chapter 343, HRS, when federal National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) environmental review is also applicable. Although this 
subchapter contains only one-section, creating a new subchapter is in line with creating a new 
structure for chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of the Chapter 
through the subchapter headings. 

§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: · 

Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 

This section was formerly section 11-200-25, HAR (1996). The 1996 Rules allowed cooperation 
between federal and state agencies on actions requiring both NEPA and HEPA review. The 
Proposed Rules clarify that where an action triggers both NEPA and HEPA review, the NEPA 
document may be used to satisfy the HEPA requirements, so long as it meets the required 
HEPA criteria. 

In adopting the revised language in this section, the Council emphasizes that while a particular 
level of review may be required under NEPA, the same level of review may not be required 
under. HEPA. For example, federal categorical exclusions (the federal equivalent of a state 
exemption) do not automatically result in exemptions under chapter 343, HRS. Conversely, the 
federal government may issue a FONS! for its purposes, but a state or county agency may 
require an EA or EIS be done for its purposes, or issue an exemption based on the federal 
FONSI. State and county agencies may do so, but must still make a determination, through 
their own judgment and experience, that the action is exempt, requires an EA, or may proceed 
directly to preparing an EIS, under chapter 343, HRS and the HEPA-specific content 
requirements, before determining whether the NEPA document satisfies the required level of 
review under HEPA. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
65 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

To that end, subchapter 7 and the new section 11-200.1-12 (the "green sheet") proposed by 
these rules provides a tool to guide agencies on how to prepare the evaluation of whether or not 
the NEPA document satisfies the requirements of chapter 343, HRS. 

Some of the language in this section was inspired by and based on similar language from 
Massachusetts and Washington, providing that federally-prepared EISs are sufficient so long as 
they meet the state's statutory requirements. The goal is to allow a federal EIS to meet the 
chapter 343, HRS requirements provided that it addresses chapter 343, HRS content 
requirements. In this case, state and county agencies can provide the information to the federal 
preparer for inclusion in its document rather than the state or county agency preparing a second 
document. 

This section also addresses which agency is responsible (federal, state or county) for preparing 
the document, as well as delegation of that responsibility from the federal agency to a state or 
cqunty agency. 

Furthermore, this section addresses, for example, situations where a federal agency's 
regulations may require a public scoping meeting prior to publishing a Notice of Intent to 
prepare an environmental impact statement and under chapter 343, HRS, the same action 
would also require a public scoping after the publication of an EISPN. This clause reduces the 
burden on the proposing agency or applicant to conduct two public scoping meetings. 

The rule also clarifies that in the case of joint documents, the preparation of any supplemental 
documentation would be due to federal requirements and that HEPA supplemental 
requirements would not apply. The rule further clarifies who the accepting authority is for 
federal, state, and county actions. 

Lastly, the rule explicitly states that any acceptance pursuant to this section satisfies chapter 
343, HRS and that no other EIS shall be required for the proposed action. If the NEPA process 
requires supplemental review, the responsible federal entity's supplemental review 
requirements would apply instead of requirements under chapter 343, HRS. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
66 



Environmental Council v0.4a 
Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements 

February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 

Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 
Subchapter 12 (Retroactivity and Severability) creates a distinct subchapter addressing the 
retroactivity of the Proposed Rules when enacted and the severability of the Proposed Rules. 

Section 11-200.1-32 describes when chapter 11-200. 1, HAR takes effect. Section 11-200 .1-33 
includes the severability clause . 

. § 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 

This is an entirely new section on when the Proposed Rules take effect and how the Proposed 
Rules apply to actions that have already completed the environmental review process or are 
undergoing it at the time the Proposed Rules take effect. This section was added in response to 
public comments concerning actions currently pending. This provision ensures that an action is 
not prevented from proceeding under the 1996 Rules when it otherwise would but is delayed 
due to a judicial proceeding or other reasons. 

This section also provides a period of time for agencies to update their existing exemption lists 
from "classes" to "types" of action, to designate those activities that would fall under "Part 1" of 
the list, and to reassign exemptions to the appropriate general types. 

As used in this section, publication by OEQC requires that the document was submitted and 
met all requirements for publication. 

§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 

This section was formerly section 11-200-30 in the 1996 Rules and provides that each provision 
in the Proposed Rules is severable and that the invalidity of any provision in this chapter does 
not affect the validity of the others. No amendments are proposed to this section. 

Note 
The historical note will be revised following public hearing on the Proposed Rules and 
finalization for enacting the final Proposed Rules into law. 

v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
67 



Ramseyer 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Repeal of Chapter 11-200 and Adoption of 
Chapter 11-200 . 1 

Hawaii Administrative Rules 

Month Date , Year 

1 . Chapter 11- 200 , Hawaii Administrative Rul es , 
entitled "Environmental Impact Statement Rules" , is 
repealed . 

2 . Chapter 11-200 .1, Hawaii Administrative Rules , 
entitled "Environmental Impact Statement Rules" , is adopted 
to read as follows : 



"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 11 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

CHAPTER 200 . 1 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT RULES 

Subchapter 1 Purpose 

§11-200.1-1 Purpose 

Subchapter 2 Definitions 

§11-200.1-2 Definitions 

Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 

§11- 200 .1-3 Computation of time 

Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic 
Bulletin 

§11-200 . 1-4 Periodic bulletin 
§11 - 200 . 1- 5 Filing requirements for publication and 

withdrawal 
§11-200 . 1-6 Republication of notices, documents, and 

determinations 

Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 

§11- 200 . 1- 7 Identification of approving agency and 
accepting authority 

Subchapter 6 Applicability 

§11 - 200 .1- 8 Applicability of chapter 343 , HRS, to 
agency actions 

§11-200 .1- 9 Applicability of chapter 343 , HRS, to 
app l icant actions 

§11-200 . 1-10 Multiple or phased actions 

200 . 1 - 1 



§11-200 . 1-11 Use of prior exemptions, findings of no 
significant impact, or accepted 
environmental impact statements to 
satisfy chapter 343 , HRS, for proposed 
activities 

Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 

§11-200 . 1-12 Consideration of previous determinations 
and accepted statements 

§11-200 . 1-13 Significance criteria 
§11-200 . 1-14 Determination of level of environmental 

review 

Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List , and Notice 
Requirements 

§11-200 . 1-15 General types of actions eligible for 
exemption 

§11-200 . 1-16 Exemption lists 
§11-200 . 1-17 Exemption notices 

Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 

§11-200 . 1-18 Preparation and contents of a draft 
environmental assessment 

§11-200 . 1-19 Notice of determination for draft 
environmental assessments 

§11- 200 . l - 20 Public review and response requirements for 
draft environmental assessments 

§11-200 . 1-21 Contents of a final environmental 
assessment 

§11-200 . 1-22 Notice of determination for final 
environmental assessments 

Subchapter 10 Preparation of ' Environmental Impact 
Statements 

§11-200 . 1-23 Consultation prior to filing a draft 
environmental impact statement 

§11-200 . 1-24 Content requirements; draft environmental 
impact statement 

§11-200 . 1-25 Public review requirements for draft 
environmental impact statements 

§11-200 . 1-26 Comment response requirements for draft 
environmental impact statements 

200.1-2 



§11-200 . 1-27 Content requirements; final environmental 
impact statement 

§11-200 . 1-28 Acceptability 
§11-200 . 1-29 Appeals to the council 
§11-200 . 1-30 Supplemental environmental impact 

statements 

Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 

§11-200 . 1-31 National environmental policy act actions : 
applicability to chapter 343, HRS 

Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 

§11-200 . 1-32 Retroactivity 
§11-200.1-33 Severability 

Historical note: This c hapter is based substantially 
upon chapter 11-200 . [Eff 12/6/85 ; am and comp AUG 31 1996; 
am 2007; R ] 

SUBCHAPTER 1 

PURPOSE 

§ 11-200 . 1-1 Purpose. (a) Chapter 343, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes (HRS), establishes a system of 
environmental review at the state and county levels that 
shall ensure that environmental concerns are given 
appropriate consideration in decision-making along with 
economic a nd technical considerations . The purpose of this 
chapter is to provide agencies and persons wi th procedures, 
specifications regarding the contents of environmental 
assessments and environmental impact statements, and 
criteria and definitions of statewide application . 

(b) EAs and EISs are meaningless without the 
conscientious application of the environmental review 
process as a whole, and shall not be merely a self-serving 
recitation of benef its and a rationalization of the 
proposed action . Agencies and applicants shall ensure that 
EAs and EISs are prepared at the earliest opportunity in 
the planning and decision-making process. This shall 
assure an early , open forum for discussion of adverse 
effects and available alternatives, and that the decision-

200 . 1-3 



makers wi l l be enlightened to any environmental 
consequences of the proposed action prior to decision
making . 

(c) In preparing any document , proposing agencies and 
applicants shall: 

(1) Make every effort to convey the required 
information succinctly in a form easily 
understood, both by members of the publi c and by 
government decision-makers , giving attention to 
the substance of the information conveyed rather 
than to the particular form , or length , of the 
document; 

(2) Take care to concentrate on important issues and 
to ensure that the document remains essentially 
self-contained, capable of being understood by 
the reader without t he need for undue cross 
reference; and 

(3) Conduct any required consultation as mutual, op en 
and direct, two-way communication, in good faith, 
to secure the meaningful p a rticipati on of 
agencies and t h e public in the environmental 
review process . [Eff ] (Auth : 
HRS §§343- 5 , 343- 6) (Imp : HRS §§343-1 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

DEFINITIONS 

§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions. • As used in this chapter : 
"Acceptance " means a f ormal dete r mination- that the 

document required to be filed pursuant to chapter 343, HRS , 
fulfills the definitions and requirements of an EIS, as 
prescribed by section 11-200 . 1-28. Acceptance does not mean 
that the action is environmentally sound or unsound , but 
only that the document complies with chapter 343 , HRS , and 
this chapter . A determination of acceptance is required 
prior to implementing or approving the action . 

"Accepting authority" means the official who, or 
agency that, makes the determination that a final EIS is 
required to be filed, pursuant to chapter 343 , HRS, and 
that the final EIS fulfills the definitions and 
requirements of an EIS . 

"Action" means any program or project to be initiated 
by an agency or applicant . 

200 . 1-4 



"Addendum" means an attachment to a draft EA or draft 
EIS, prepared at the discretion of the proposing agency, 
applicant , or approving agency , and distinct from a 
supplemental EIS, for the purpose of •disclosing and 
addressing clerical errors such as inadvertent omissions , 
corrections , or clarifications to information already 
contained in the draft EA or the draft EIS filed with the 
office . 

"Agency" means any department, office, board , or 
commission of the state or county government t hat is part 
of the executive branch of that government . 

"Applicant " means any person that , pursuant to 
statute , ordinance , or rule, officially requests approval 
from an a g ency for a proposed action . 

"Approval " means a discretionary consent required from 
an agency prior to implementation of an action . 

"Approving agency" means an agency that issues an 
approval prior to implementation of an applicant action . 

"Council " means the environmental council . 
"Cumul ative impact " means the impact on the 

environment that results from the incremental impact of the 
action when added to other past , present , and reasonably 
foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency or 
person undertakes the other actions . Cumulative impacts 
can result from individually minor but collectively 
significant actions taking place over a period of time. 

" Discretionary consent " means a consent, sanction , or 
recommendation from an agency for which judgment a n d free 
will may be exercised by the issuing agency , as 
distinguished from a ministerial consent. Ministerial 
consent means a consent , sanction, or recommendation from 
an agency based upon a given set of facts , as prescribed by 
law without the use of j u dgment or discretion . 

" Draft environmental assessment " means the EA 
submitted by a proposing agency or an approving agency for 
public review and comment when that agency anti cipates a 
finding of no significant impact (FONSI ) . 

"Effects " or " impacts " as used in this chapter are 
synonymous . Effects may include ecological effects (such 
as the effects on natural resources and on the components, 
structures , and functioning of affected ecosystems), 
aesthetic effects , historic effects , cul tural effects, 
economic effects, social effects, or health effects, 
whether primary, secondary, or cumulative , -immediate or 
delayed . Effects may also include those effects resulting 
from actions that may have both beneficial and detrimental 

200 . 1-5 



effects , even if on balance the agency believes that the 
effect will be beneficial . 

"EIS preparation notice " , "EISPN", or "preparation 
notice" means a determination that an action may have a 
significant effect on the environment and, therefore , will 
require the preparation of an EIS, based on either an EA or 
an agency's judgment and experience that the proposed 
action may have a significant effect on the environment . 

" EIS public scoping meeting " means a meeting in which 
agencies , citizen groups , and the general public assist the 
proposing agency or applicant in determining the range of 
actions , alternatives , impacts, and proposed mitigation 
measures to be considered in the draft EIS and the 
significant issues to be analyzed in depth in the draft 
EIS. 

"Emergency action" means an action to prevent or 
mitigate loss or damage to life , health, property, or 
essential public servi ces in response to a sudden 
unexpected occurrence demanding the immediate action . 

" Environment " means humanity's surroundings , inclusive 
of all the physical , economic, cultural , and social 
conditions that exist within the area affected by a 
proposed action, including land, human and animal 
communities, health, air, water , minerals, flora, fauna, 
ambient noise , and obj ects of historic, cultural, or 
aesthet i c significance. 

"Environmental assessment" or "EA" means a written 
evaluation that serves to provide sufficient evidence and 
analysis to determine whether an action may have a 
significant effect . 

"Environmental impact statement", "statement", or 
"EIS " means an informati onal document prepared in 
compliance with chapter 343, HRS. The initial EIS filed 
for public review shall be referred to as the draft EIS and 
shall be distinguished from the final EIS, which is the 
document that has incorporated the public's comments and 
the responses to those comments. The final EIS is the 
document that shall be evaluated for acceptability by the 
accepting authority . 

"Exemption list " means a list prepared by an agency 
pursuant to subchapter 8 . The list may contain in part one 
the types of routine activities and ordinary functions 
within the jurisdiction or expertise of the agency that by 
their nature do not have the potential to individually or 
cumulatively adversely affect the environment more than 
negligibly and that the agency considers to not rise to the 

200.1-6 



level of requiring furth er chapter 343 , HRS, environmental 
review. In part t wo, the list may contain the types of 
action s the agency finds fit into the general types of 
action enumerated in section 11-200 . 1-15. 

" Exemption notice " means a notice produced in 
accordance with subchapter 8 for an action that a proposing 
agency or approving agency on behalf of an applicant 
determines to be exempt from preparation of an EA . 

"Final environmental assessment " means either the EA 
submitted by a proposing agency or an approving agency 
following the public review and comment period for the 
draft EA and in support of either a FONSI or an EISPN . 

" Finding of no significant impact " or " FONSI" means a 
determination by an agency b ased on an EA that an action 
not otherwise exempt will not have a significant effect on 
the environment and therefore does not require the 
preparation of an EIS. A FONSI is required prior to 
implementing or approving the action. 

" Impacts " means the same as "effects ". 
" Issue date " means the date imprinted on the periodic 

bulletin required by section 343-3, HRS . 
"National Environmental Policy Act" or "NEPA" means 

the National Euvlronmental Policy Act of 1969, Public .Law 
91-190, 42 U.S . C. sections 4321-4347, as amended . 

"Office " mea ns the office of environmental quality 
control . 

" Periodic bulletin" or "bulletin" means the document 
required by section 343- 3, HRS, and published by the 
office . 

"Person" includes any individual, partnership, firm, 
association, trust , estate, private corporation , or other 
legal entity other than an agency. 

" Primary impact" , "primary effect", "direct impact " , 
or "direct effect" means effects that are caused by the 
action and occur at the same time and place. 

" Project " means a discrete, planned undertaking that 
has a defined beginning and end time, is site-specific, and 
has a specific goal or purpose . 

"Program" means a series of one of more projects to be 
carried out concurrently or in phases within a general 
timeline , t hat may include multiple sites or geographic 
areas, and is undertaken for a broad goal or purpose. A 
program may include : a number of separate projects in a 
given geographic area whi ch , if considered singly, may have 
minor impacts, but if considered together , may have 
significant impacts; separate projects having generic or 

200 .1-7 ., 



common impacts ; an entire plan having wide application or 
restricting the range of future alternative policies or 
actions, including new significant changes to existing land 
use plans , development plans, zoning regulations , or agency 
comprehensive resource management plans; implementation of 
a s ingle project or multiple projects over a long time 
frame ; or implementation of a single project over a large 
geographic area. 

" Proposing agency " means any state or county agency 
that proposes an action under chapter 343, HRS . 

"Secondary impact", " secondary effect", " indirect 
impact " , or " indirect effect" mea ns an effect that is 
caused by the action and is later in time or farther 
removed in distance, but is still reasonably foreseeable . 
An indirect effect may include a growth-inducing effect and 
other effects related to induced changes in the pattern of 
land use, population density or growth rate, and related 
effects on air, water, and other natural systems, including 
ecosystems ·. 

"Significant effect" or " significant impact " means the 
sum of effects on the quality of the environment , including 
actions that irrevocabl y commit a natural resource, curtail 
the range of beneficial u~es of the environment , a r e 
contrary to the State's environmental policies or long-term 
envi ronmental goals and guidelines as established by law, 
adversely affect the economic welfare, social welfare, or 
cultural practices of the community and State, or are 
otherwise set forth in section 11-200 . 1-13 . 

" Supplemental EIS " means an updat ed EIS prepared for 
an action for which an EIS was previously accepted, but 
which has since changed substantively in size , scope, 
intensity, use , location, or timing, among other things . 

"Trigger " means any use or activity listed in section 
343-S(a) , HRS , requiring preparation of an environmental 
assessment . 

Unless defined in this section, e lsewhere within this 
chapter , or in chapter 343, HRS, a proposing agency or 
approving agency may use its administrative rules or 
statutes that they i mplement to interpret undefined terms . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp : 
HRS §§343-2 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

COMPUTATION OF TIME 

200.1- 8 



§ 11-200.1 - 3 Computation of time. In computing any 
period of time prescribed or allowed by this chapter , order 
of the council , or by any applicable statute , the day of 
the act , event, or default after which the designat ed 
period of time is to run, shall not be included. The last 
day of the period so computed shall be included unless it 
is a Saturday, Sunday , or state holiday , in which case the 
last day shall be the next business day. [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§1-29 , 8-1, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§1-2 9 , 
8-1 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

FILING AND PUBLI CATION IN THE PERIODIC BULLETIN 

§11-200.1-4 Periodic bulletin. (a) Th e periodic 
bull etin shall be issued on the eighth and twenty-third 
days of each month. 

(b) When filed i n accordance with section 11-200 . 1-5 , 
the office shall publish the following in the periodic 
bulletin to i n form t h e public of action s undergoing chapter 
343 , HRS , environmental revlew and the associated public 
comment periods provided here or elsewhere by statute : 

(1) Determinations that an existi ng exemption, FONSI , 
or accepted EIS satis f ies chapter 343 , HRS, for a 
proposed activity ; 

(2) Exemption notices and lists of actions an agency 
has determined to be exempt ; 

(3) Draft EAs and appropri ate addendum documents for 
public review and thirty-day comment period, 
i ncluding notice of an anticipated FONSI ; 

(4) Fin al EAs , including notice of a FONSI , or an 
EISPN with thirty-day comment period and notice 
of EIS public scoping meeting , and appropriate 
addendum documents ; 

(5) Notice of an EISPN wit h thirty-day comment period 
and notice of EIS public scoping meet ing, and 
appropriate addendum documents; 

(6) Eva luation s and determinations tha t supplemental 
EISs are required or not required; 

(7) Draft EISs, draft supplemental EISs , and 
appropriate addendum documents for publ ic review 
and forty-five day comment period; 

(8) Final EISs , final supplemental EISs , and 
appropriat e addendum documents; 

200 . 1-9 



(9) Notice of acceptance or non-acceptance of EISs 
and supplemental EISs; 

(10) Republication of any chapter 343 , HRS , notices, 
documents , or determinations; 

(11) Notices of withdrawal of any chapter 343, HRS , 
notices, documents, or determinations; and 

(12) Other notices required by the rules of the 
council . 

(c) When filed in accordance with this subchapter , 
the office shall publish other notices required by ·statute 
or rules , including those not specifically r elated to 
chapter 343, HRS. 

(d) The office may , on a space or time available 
basis , publish other notices not specifically related to 
chapter 343 , HRS. [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§341-
3, 343-5 , 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§341-3 , 343-3, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-5 Filing requirements for publication and 
withdrawal . (a) Anything required to ·be published in the 
bulletin shall be submitted to the office before t he close 
of business four business days prior to the issue date. 

(b) All submittals to thR office for publication in 
the bulletin shall be accompanied by a completed 
informational form that provides whatever information the 
office needs to properly notify the public . The 
information requested may include the following: the title 
of the action ; the islands affected by the proposed action; 
tax map key numbers ; street addresses; nearest geographical 
landmarks; latitudinal and longitudinal coordinates or 
other geographic data; applicable permits , including for 
applicants , the approva l requiring chapter 343, HRS , 
environmental review; whether the proposed action is an 
agency or an applicant action ; a citation to the applicable 
federal or state statutes requiring preparation of the · 
document ; the type of document prepared; the names, 
addresses, email addresses, phone numbers and contact 
persons as applicable of the accepting authority, the 
proposing agency, the approving agency , the applicant , and 
the consultant ; and a brief narrative summary of the 
propose d action that provides sufficient detail to convey 
the full i mpact of the proposed action to the public . 

(c) The office shall not accept untimely submittals 
or revisions thereto after the issue date deadline for 
which the submittal was originally filed has passed . 

200 . 1-10 



(d) In accordance with the agency's rules or, in the 
case of an applicant EA or EIS, the applicant's judgment, 
anything filed with the office may be withdrawn by the 
agency or applicant that filed the submittal with the 
office. To withdraw a submittal, the agency or applicant 
shall submit to the office a written letter informing the 
office of the withdrawal. The office shall publish notice 
of withdrawals and the rationale in accordance with t his 
subchapter. 

(e) To be published in the bulletin, all submittals 
to the office shall meet the filing requirements in 
subsections (a)to(c) a nd b e prepared in accordance with 
this chapter and chapter 343, HRS, as appropriate . The 
following shall meet additional filing requirements : 

(1) When the document is a draft EA with an 
anticipated FONSI, the proposing a gency or 
approving agency shall: 
(A) File the document and determination with 

the office; 
(B) Deposit, or require t he applicant to 

deposit, concurrently with the filing to 
the office, one paper copy of the draft EA 
at the nearest state library in each county 
in which the proposed .action is to occur 
and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents 
Center; and 

(C) Distribute, or require the applicant to 
distribute, concurrently with its 
publication, the draft EA to other agencies 
having jurisdiction or e xperti se as well as 
citizen groups and individuals that the 
proposing agency reasonably believes to be 
affected; 

(2) When the document is a final EA with a FONSI, the 
proposing agency or approving agency shall : 
(A) I ncorporate , or require the applicant to 

incorporate , the FONSI into the contents of 
the final EA, as prescribed in sections 11-
200 . 1- 21 and 11- 200 . 1- 22 ; 

(B) File the final EA and the incorporated 
FONSI with the office ; and 

(C) Deposit, or require t h e applicant to 
deposit, concurrently with the filing to 
the office, one paper copy of the final EA 
with the Hawaii Documents Center; 

200 . 1 - 11 



(3) When the document is a final EA with an EISPN, 
the proposing agency or approving agency shall : 
(A) Incorporate , or require the applicant to 

incorporate , the EISPN into the contents of 
the fina l EA, as prescribed in sections 11-
200 . 1-21, 11-200 . 1-22, and 11-200 . 1-23; 

(B) File the incorporated EISPN with the final 
EA; and 

(C) Deposit, or require the applicant to 
deposit , concurrently with the filing to 
the office , one paper copy of the final EA 
with the Hawaii Documents Center ; 

(4) When the notice is an EISPN without the 
preparation of an EA, the proposing agency or 
approving agency shall : 
(A) File the EISPN with the office ; and 
(B) Deposit , or require the applicant to 

deposit , concurrently with the filing to 
the office, one paper copy of the EISPN at 
the nearest state library in each county in 
which the proposed action is to occur and 
one paper copy at the H?waii Documents 
Center; 

(5) When the document is a draft EIS , the proposing 
agency or applicant shall : 
{A) Sign and date the draft EIS; 
(B) Indicate that the draft EIS and all 

ancillary documents were prepared under the 
s ignatory's direction or supervision and 
that the information submitte d, to the best 
of the signatory ' s knowledge fully 
addr esses document content requirements as 
set forth in subchapter 10; 

(C) File the draft EIS with the accepting 
authority and the office simultaneously; 

(D) Deposit , or require the applicant to 
deposit , concurrently with the filing to 
the office, one paper copy of the draft EIS 
at the nearest state library in each county 
in which the proposed action is to occur 
and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents 
Center ; and 

(E) Submit to the office one true and correct 
copy of the original audio file, at 
standard quality , of all oral comments 
received at the time designated within the 

200 . 1-12 



EIS public scoping meeting(s) for receiving 
oral comments ; 

(6) When the document is a final EIS, the proposing 
agency or applicant shall: 
(A) Sign and date the final EIS; 
(B) Indicate that the final EIS and all 

ancillary documents were prepared under the 
signatory's direction or supervision and 
that the informat ion submitted, to the best 
of the signatory's knowledge fully 
addresses document content requirements as 
set forth in subchapter 10; and 

(C) File the final EIS with the accepting 
authority and the office simultaneously ; 

(7) When the notice is an acceptance or non
acceptance of a final EIS , the accepting 
authority shall : 
(A) File the notice of acceptance or non

acceptance of .a final EIS with the office ; 
and 

(B) Simultaneous l y transmit the notice to the 
proposing agency or applicant; 

(8) When the notice is of the withdrawal of an 
anticipated FONSI , FONSI, or EISPN, t he proposing 
agency or approving agency shall include a 
rationale of the withdrawal specifying any 
associated documents to be withdrawn; 

(9) When the notice is of the withdrawal of a draft 
EIS or final EIS, the proposing agency or 
applicant shall simultaneously file the notice 
with the office and submit the notice with the 
accepting authority; and 

(10) When the submittal is a changed version of a 
notice, document , or determination previously 
published and withdrawn, the ·s ubmittal shal l be 
filed as the "second" submittal , or " third" or 
" fourt h ", as appropriate . Example : A draft EIS 
is withdrawn and changed . It is then filed with 
the o f f i ce for publication as t he "second draft 

- , EIS " for the particular action . [Eff 
] (Auth : HRS §§343-3 , 343- 5, 343-6) 

(Imp: HRS §§341-3, 343- 3, 343- 6) 

§11-200 .1- 6 Republication o f notices , documents, and 
determinations . (a) An agenc y or applicant responsible 

200 . 1- 13 



for filing a chapter 343 , HRS, notice, document, or 
determination may file an unchanged, previously published 
submittal in the bulletin provided that the filing 
requirements of this subchapter and any other publication 
requirements set forth i n thi s chapter or chapter 343, HRS, 
are satisfied . 

(b) When the publication of a previously published 
chapter 343 , HRS, notice, document , or determination 
involves a public comment period under this chapter or 
chapter 343, HRS : 

(1) The public comment period shall be as required 
for that notice , docum~nt, or determination 
pursuant to this chapter or chapter 343, HRS, or 
as otherwise statutorily mandated (for example, 
publication of an unchanged draft EIS initiates a 
forty-five day public comment period upon 
publ ication in the bulletin); and 

(2) Any comments received during the comment period 
must be considered in the same manner as set 
forth in this chapter and chapter 343, HRS , for 
that notice , document, or determination type, in 
addition to comments received in any other 
comment period a~sociated with the publicat.ion of 
the notice, document, or determination. [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§341-3, 343-5, 
343-6) (Imp: HRS §§341-3 , 343-3, 343-5, 343~ 6) 

SUBCHAPTER 5 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

§ 11-200.1-7 Identification of approving agency and 
accepting authority. (a) Whenever an agency proposes an 
action, the authority to accept an EIS shall rest with : 

(1) The governor, or the governor ' s authorized 
representat ive , whenever an action proposes the 
use of state lands or state funds or whenever a 
state agepcy proposes an action under section 11-
200 . 1-8; or 

(2) The mayor, or the mayor's authorized 
representative, of the respective county whenever 
an action proposes only the use of county lands 
or county funds . 

If an action involves state and county lands, state and 
county funds, or both state and county lands and funds , the 

200.1-14 



governor or the governor ' s authorized representative shall 
have the authority to accept the EIS. 

(b) Whenever -an applicant proposes an action, the 
authori ty for requiring an EA or EIS , making a 
determination regarding any required EA, a n d accepting any 
required EIS shall rest with the approving agency that 
initi ally received and agreed to process the request for an 
approval . With respect to EISs , this approving agency is 
also called the accepting authori ty . 

(c) If more t han one agency is proposing the action 
or, i n the case of applicants , more than one agency has 
juri sdiction over the action , and these agencies are unable 
to agree as to which agency has the responsibility for 
complying wi th chapter 343, HRS , the agencies invol ved 
shall consult with one another to determine which agency is 
responsible for compliance . In making the decision, the 
agencies shall take into consideration, including but not 
limited to the following factors : 

(1) Which agency has the greatest responsibility for 
supervi sing or approving the action as a whole ; 

(2) Which agency can most adequately fulfil l the 
requirements of chapter 343 , HRS , and t his 
chapter ; 

(3) Whlch agency has special expertise or greatest 
access to information relevant to the action ' s 
implement ation and impacts ; 

(4) The extent of participation of each agency in the 
action; and 

(5) In the case of an action with proposed use of 
state or county lands or funds , which agency has 
the most land or funds involved in the action. 

(d) If there is more than one agency that is 
proposing the action , or in the case of applicants , more 
than one agency has jurisdiction over the action, and after 
applying the criteria in subsection (c) these agencies are 
unable to agree as to which agency has the responsibility 
for complyi ng with chapter 3.43, HRS, the office, after 
consultation with the agencies involved, shall app ly the 
same considerations in subsection (c) to decide which 
agency is responsible for compliance . 

(e) The offi ce shall not serve as t he accepting 
authority for any proposed agency or applicant action. 

(f) The office may provide recommendations to the 
agency or applicant responsible for the EA· or EIS regarding 
any applicable administrative content requirements set 

200 .1-15 



forth in this chapter . [Eff (Auth : HRS 
§§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 6 

APPLICABILITY 

§ 11-200 . 1-8 Applicability of chapter 343, HRS, to 
agency actions. (a) Chapter 343, HRS, environmental 
review shall be required for any agency action that 
includes one or more triggers as identified in section 343-
5(a), HRS . 

( 1) Under section 343-5(a) , HRS, use of state or 
county funds shall include any form of funding 
assistance flowing from the State or a county, 
and use of state or county lands includes any use 
(title , lease, permit, easement, license, etc.) 
or entitlement to those lands . 

( 2) Under section 343-5(a), HRS, any f easibility or 
planning study for possible future programs or 
projects that the agency has not approved, . 
adopted, or funded are e xempted from chapter 343, 
HRS , environmental review . Nevertheless, if an 
agency is studying the feasibility of a proposal, 
it shall consider environmental factors and 
available alternatives and disclose these in a ny 
future EA or EIS . If the planning and 
feasibility studies involve testing or other 
actions that may have a significant impact on the 
e nvironme nt, an EA or EIS shall be prepared . . 

(3) Under section 343-5(a) (1), HRS, actions involving 
agricultural tourism. under section 205-2 (d) ( 11), 
HRS, or section 205-4.5(a) (13), HRS, must perform 
environmental review only when required under 
section 205-S(b) , HRS . 

(b) When an agency proposes an action during a 
governor-declared state of emergency, the proposing agency 
shall document in its records that the emergency action was 
undertaken pursuant to a specific emergency proclamation . 
If the emergency action h as not substantially commenced 
within sixty days of the emergency proclamation, the action 
will be subject to chapter 343, HRS. 

(c) I n the event of a sudden unexpected emergency 
causing or likely to cau se loss or damage to life, health, 
property, or essential public service , but for which a 

200 . 1 - 16 



declaration of a state of emergency has not been made, a 
proposing agency undertaking an emergency acti on shall 
document in its records that the emergency action was 
undertaken pursuant to a specific emergency and shall 
include the emergency action on its list of exemption 
notices for publication by the office in the bulletin 
pursuant to section 11-200.l-17(d) and subchapter 4 . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS 
§§343-5 , 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of chapter 343 , HRS , to 
applicant actions. (a) Chapter 343, HRS, environmental 
review shall be required for any applicant action that : 

(1) Requires one or more approvals prior to 
implementation ; and 

(2) Includes one or more triggers identified in 
section 343-5(a), HRS. 
(A) Under section 343-5(a) , HRS , use of state 

or county funds shall include any form of 
funding assistance flowing from the State 
or a county, and use of state or county 
lands includes any use (ti.tle, lease, 
permit, easement , license , etc . ) or 
entitlement t o those lands. 

(B) Under section 343-5(a) (1), HRS, actions 
involving agricultural tourism under 
section 205-2 (d) (11) or section 205-
4. 5 (a) (13), HRS, must perform environmental 
review only when required under section 
2 0 5-5 ( b) , HRS . 

(b) Chapter 343, HRS, does not require environmental 
review for applicant actions when : 

(1) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary , 
for any primary action that requires a permit or 
approval that is not subject to a discretionary 
consent and that involves a secondary action that 
is ancillary and limited to the installation, 
improvement, renovation, construction, or 
development of infrastructure within an existing 
public right-of-way or highway , that secondary 
action s hall be exempt from this chapter; 
provided that the applicant for the primary 
action shall submit documentation from the 
appropriate agency confirming that no further 
discretionary approvals are required . 

200 . 1-17 



(2) As used in this subsection : 
(A) " Discretionary consent " means an · action as 

defined in section 343-2 , HRS ; or an 
approval from a decis i on-making authorit y 
in an agency, which a pproval is subject to 
a public hearing . 

(B) " Infrastructure " incl udes waterlines and 
water facilities , wastewater lines and 
wastewater facilities , gas lines and gas 
facilities , drainage facilities , 
electrical, communications , telephone , and 
cable television utilities , and highway, 
roadway , and driveway improvements. 

(C) " Primary action" means an action ou tside of 
the highway or public r i ght-of-way that is 
on private property . 

(D) "Secondary action" means an action 
involving infrastructure within the highway 
or public right-of-way . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343-5 . 5 , 343-
6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343 . 5 . 5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200 . 1-10 Multiple or phased actions . A group of 
actions proposed by an agency or an applicant shal l be 
treated as a single act i on when : 

(1) The component actions are phases or increments of 
a larger total undertaking; 

(2) An individual action is a necessary precedent to 
a larger action ; 

(3) An individual action represents a commitment to a 
larger action ; or 

(4) The actions in question are essentially identical 
and a single EA or EIS will adequately address 
the impacts of each individual action and those 
of the group of actions as a whole . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : 
HRS §343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-11 Use of prior exemptions, findings of no 
significant impact, or accepted environmental impact 
statements to satisfy chapter 343, HRS , for proposed 
activities . (a) When an agency is considering whether a 
prior exemption, FONSI, or an accepted EIS satisfies 
chapter 343, HRS, for a proposed activity, the agency may 

200 . 1-18 



determine that additional environmental review is not 
required because : 

(1) The proposed activity was a component of, or is 
substantially similar to , an action that received 
an exemption , FONSI, or an accepted EIS (for 
example , a project that was analyzed in a 
programmatic EIS) ; 

(2) The proposed activity is anticipated to have 
d i rect , indirect , and cumulat i ve effects similar 
to those analyzed in a prior exemption, final EA, 
or accepted EIS ; and 

(3) In the case of a final EA or an accepted EIS , the 
proposed activity was analyzed withi n the range 
of alternatives . 

(b) When an agency det ermi nes that a prior exemption , 
FONSI , or an accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343 , HRS, for a 
proposed activity, the agency may submit a brief written 
determinati on explaining its rationale to the offi ce for 
publication pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-4 and the proposed 
activity may proceed without further chapter 343 , HRS, 
environmental review . 

(c) When an agency determines that the proposed 
acti vity warrants environmental review , t he agency may 
submit a brief written determination explaining its 
rationale to the office for publication pursuant to section 
11-200.1-4 and the agency shall proceed to comply with 
subchapter 7 . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 
343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 7 

DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE 

§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of previous determinations 
and accepted statements. A proposing agency or applicant 
may incorporate information or analysis from a relevant 
prior exemption notice , final EA, or accepted EIS into an 
e xemption notice , EA, EISPN, or EIS, for a proposed action 
whenever the information or analysis is pertinent and has 
l ogical relevancy and bearing to the proposed action (for 
example , a project that was broadly considered as part of 
an accepted programmatic EIS may incorporate relevant 
portions from the accepted programmatic EIS by reference) . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp : 
HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 

200 . 1-19 



§ 11 - 200 . 1-13 Significance criteria. (a) In 
considering the significance of potential environmental 
effects, agencies shall consider the sum of effects on the 
quality of the environment and s hall evaluate the overall 
and cumulative effects of an action . 

(b) In determinin g whether an action may have a 
significant effect on the environment, the agency shall 
consider every phase of a proposed action, t h e expected 
impacts, both primary and secondary, and the c umulative as 
well as the short-term a nd long-term effects of the action . 
I n most instances, an action shall be determined to have a 
significant effect on the environment if it is likely to : 

(1) Irrevocably commit a natural , cultural , or 
historic resource; 

(2) Curtail the range of beneficial uses of the 
environment ; 

(3) Conflict with the State's environmental policies 
or long-term environmental goals established by 
law; 

(4) Have a substantial adverse effect on the economic 
welfare , social welfare, or cultural practices of 
the community or State; 

(5) Have a substantial adverse effect on public 
health; 

(6) Involve adverse secondary impacts , such as 
population changes or effects on pub lic 
facilities; 

(7) Involve a substantial degradation of 
envi ronmental quality; 

(8) Is individually l imited but cumulatively has 
substantial adverse effect upon t he environment 
or involves a commitment for larger actions; 

(9) Have a substantial a dverse effect on a rare , 
threatened, or endangered species , or its 
habitat ; 

(10) Have a substantial adverse effect on air or water 
quality or ambient noise levels ; 

(11) Have a substantial adverse effect on or is l i kely 
to suffer damage by being located in an 
environmentally sensitive area such as a flood 
plain, tsunami zone , sea l evel r i se exposure 
area , beach, erosion-prone area , geologically 
hazardous land, estuary, fresh water , or coastal 
waters; 

200 . 1- 20 



(12) Have a substantial adverse effect on sceni c 
vistas and viewplanes, during day or night , 
identified in county or state plans or studies ; 
or 

(13) Require substantial energy consumption or emit 
substantial greenhouse gases. [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp: HRS 
§§343-2 , 343-6) 

§11-200.1-14 Determination of level of environmental 
review. (a) For an agency action, through its judgment 
and experience, a proposi ng agency shall assess the 
significance of the potential impacts of the action, 
including the overall cumulative impact in l ight of related 
past , present, and reasonably foreseeable actions in the 
area affected , to determine the level of environmental 
revi ew necessary for the action. 

(b) For an applicant action, within thirty days from 
the receipt of the applicant ' s complete request for 
approval to the approving agency, through its judgment and 
experience, an approving agency shall assess the 
significance of the potential impacts of the action, 
including the overall cumulative impact in light of related 
past , present, and reasonably foreseeable actions in the 
area affected , to determine the level - of environmental 
review necessary for the action. 

(c) If the proposing agency or approving agency 
determines, through its judgment and experience , that the 
action will individually and cumulatively probably have 
minimal or no significant effects , and the action is one 
that is eligible for exemption under subchapter 8 , then t he 
agency or the approving agency in the case of an applicant 
may prepare an exemption notice in accordance with 
subchapter 8 . 

(d) If the proposing agency or approving agency 
determines , through its judgment and experience, that the 
action is not eligible for an exemption, then the proposing 
agency shall prepare or the approving agency shall require 
the applicant to prepare an EA beginning with a draft EA in 
accordance with subchapter 9, unless : 

(1) In the course of preparing the draft EA, the 
proposing agency or approving agency determines, 
through its judgment and experience, that the 
action may have a significant e f fect and 
therefore require preparation of an EI S , then the 

200.1-21 



proposing agency may prepare , or the approvin g 
agency may authorize t he app licant to prepare an 
EA as a final EA to support the determination 
prior to preparing or r equiring preparation of an 
EIS in accordance with subchapte r 10; or 

(2) The proposing agency or approving agency 
determines, through its judgment and exp erience 
that an EIS is likely to be required, t hen the 
proposing agency may choose to prepare, or an 
approving agency may authorize an applicant to 
prepare, an EIS in accordance with subchapter 10, 
beginning with preparati on of an EISPN. [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS , §§343-5 , 343-6) 
(Imp : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 8 

EXEMPT ACTIONS, LIST, AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS 

§ 11-200.1-15 Ge neral types of actions eligible for 
exemption. {a) Some actions , because the y will 
individually and cumulatively probably have minimal or no 
s i gnifi cant effects, can be declared e xempt from t h e 
preparation of an EA . 

{b) Actions declared e x empt from the preparation of 
an EA under this subchapter are not exempt from complying 
with any other applicab le statute or rule. 

{c) The fol l owing general types of acti ons are 
eligible for exemption : 

(1 ) Operations , repairs , or main tenance of existing 
structures , facilities , equipment , or 
topographical features , involving minor expansion 
or mi nor c hange of use beyond t hat previously 
existing; 

(2) Replaceme nt or reconstruction of existing 
structures a n d facilit i es where t he new structure 
will be located general ly on the same site and 
will have substant ially the same purpose , 
capacity , densit y, height, and dimensions as t h e 
structure replaced; 

(3) Construction and location of single , new , small 
facilities or structures and the alteration a nd 
modification of the facil i ties or structures and 
installation of new, small equipment or 
facilities and the a lteration and modification of 

200 . 1-22 



(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 
(9) 

the equipment or facilities, including, but not 
limited to: 
(A) Single-family residences less than 3 , 500 

square feet, as measured by the controlling 
law under which the proposed action is 
being considered, if not in conjunction 
with the building of two or more such 
units; 

(B) Multi-unit structures designed for not more 
than four dwelling units if not in 
conjunction with the building of two or 
more such structures; 

(C) Stores, offices, and restaurants designed 
for total occupant load of twenty 
individuals or fewer per structure, if not 

' in conjunction with the building of two or 
l 

more such structures; and 
(D) Water, sewage, electrical, gas, telephone, 

and other essential public utility services 
extensions to serve such structures or 
facilities ; accessory or appurtenant 
structures including garages, carports, 
patios, swimming pools, and fences; and, 
acquisition of utility easements ; 

Minor alterations in the conditions of land, 
water, or vegetation; 
Basic data collection, research, experimental 
management, and resource and infrastructure 
testing and evaluation activities that do not 
result in a serious or major disturbance to an 
environmental resource; 
Demolition of structures, except those structures 
that are listed on or that meet the criteria for 
listing on the national register or Hawaii 
Register of Historic Places ; 
Zoning variances except shoreline setback 
variances; 
Continuing administrative activities; 
Acquisition of land and existing structures, 
including single or multi-unit dwelling units , 
for the provision of affordable housing , 
involving no material change of use beyond 
previously existing uses, and for which the 
legislature has appropriated or otherwise 
authorized funding; and 

200 . 1-23 



(10) New construction of affordable housing, where 
affordable housing is defined by the controlling 
law applicable for the state or county proposing 
agency or approving agency, that meets the 
following : 
(A) Has the use of state or county lands or 

funds or is within Waikiki as the sole 
triggers for compliance with chapter 343, 
HRS; 

(B) As proposed conforms with the existing 
state urban land use classification; 

(C) As proposed is consistent with the existing 
county zoning classification that allows 
housing; and 

(D) As proposed does not require variances for 
shoreline setbacks or siting in an 
environmentally sensitive area. 

(d) All exemptions under subchapter 8 are 
inapplicable when the cumulative impact of planned 
successive actions in the same place, over time, is 
significant, or when an action that is normally 
insignificant in its impact on the environment may be 
significant in a particularly sensitive environment. 

(e) Any agency , at any time, may request that a new 
exemption type be added, o~ that an existing one be amended 
or deleted. The request shall be submitted to the council , 
in writing, and contain detailed information to support the 
request as set forth in section 11-201-16, HAR, 
environmental council rules. [Eff (Auth: 
HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-16 Exemption lists. (a) Each agency, 
through time and experience, may develop its own exemption 
list consistent with both the letter and intent expressed 
in this subchapter and in chapter 343, HRS, of: 

(1) Routine activities and ordinary functions within 
the jurisdiction or expertise of the agency that 
by their nature do not have the potential to 
individually or cumulatively adversely affect the 
environment more than negligibly and that the 
agency considers to not rise to the level of 
requiring chapter 343, HRS, environmental review . 
Examples of routine activities and ordinary 
functions may include, among others : routine 
repair, routine maintenance, purchase of 

200 . 1-24 



supplies, and continuing administrative 
activities involving personnel only, 
nondestructive data collection, installation of 
routine signs and markers, financial 
transactions , personnel-related matters, 
construction or placement of minor structures 
accessory to existing facilities; interior 
alterations involving t hings such as partitions, 
plumbing, and electrical conveyances ; and 

(2) Types of actions that the agency considers to be 
included within the exempt general types listed 
in section 11-200.1-15. 

(b) An agency may use part one of its exemption list, 
developed pursuant to subsection (a) (1), to exempt a 
specific activity from preparation of an EA and t h e 
requirements of section 11-200.1-17 because the agency 
considers the specific activity to be de minimis. 

(c) An agency may use part two of its exemption list, 
developed pursuant to subsection (a) (2) , to exempt from 
preparation of an EA a specific action that the agency 
determines to be included under the types of actions in its 
e xemption l ist, provided that the agency fulfills the 
exemption notice requirements set forth in section 11-
200.1-17 and chapter 343, HRS . 

(d) These exemption lists and any amendments to the 
exemption lists shall be submitted to the council for 
review and concurrence no later than seven years after the 
previous concurrence; provided that in the event the 
council is unable to meet due to quorum when a concurrence 
for an agency exemption list is seven years or older, the 
agency may submit a letter to the council acknowledging 
that the e xisting exemption list is still valid. Upon 
attaining quorum, the council shall review the exemption 
list for c oncurrence. The council may review agency 
e xemption lists periodically. [Eff ] (Auth: 
HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-17 Exempti on notices. (a) Each agency 
shall create an exemption notice for an action that it has 
found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of 
an EA pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-16 ·(a) (2) or that an 
agency considers to be included wi t h in a general type of 
action pursuant to section 11-200.1-15 . An agency may 
create an exemption notice for an activity that it has 
found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of 

200.1-25 



an EA pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-16(a) (1) or that an 
agency considers to be a routine activity and ordinary 
function within the jurisdict ion or expertise of the agency 
that by its nature does not have the potential to 
individually or cumulatively adversely affect the 
environment more t han negligibly. 

(b) To declare an exemption prior to implementing an· 
action , a n agency shall undertake an analysis to determine 
whether the action merits exemption pursuant to section 11-
200.1-15 and is consistent with one or several of the 
general types listed in section 11-200 . 1-15 or the agency ' s 
exemption list produced in accordance with section 11-
200 . 1-16, and whether s i gnificant cumulativ e i mpacts or 
particularly sensitiv e environments would make the 
e xemption inapplicable . An agency shall obtain the advice 
of other outside agencies or individuals having 
jurisdiction or experti se on the propriety of the 
exemption . This analysis and consultation shall be 
documented in an e xemption notice. Unless consultation and 
publication are not required unde r subsection (c) , the 
agency shall publish the exemption notice with the office 
through the filing process set forth in subchapter 4 . 

(c ) Consultation regarding and publication of an 
exemption notice is not required when: 

(1) The a gency has created an exemption list pursuant 
to section 11-200.1-16; 

(2) The counc il has concurred with the agency ' s 
exemption list no more t han seven years before 
the agency implements the action or authorizes an 
applicant to implement t he action; 

(3) The action is consistent with the let ter and 
intent of the agency ' s exemption list ; and 

(4) The action does not have any potential , 
individually or cumul atively, to produce 
significant impacts . 

(d) Each agency shall produce its e x empt i on notices 
for review upon request by the public or an agency, and 
shall submit a list of exemption notices t ha t the age ncy 
has created to the office for publicati on i n the bulletin 
on the eighth day of each month pursuant to subchapter 4 . 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343- 5, 343- 6) (Imp : 
HRS §§343-5 , 343- 6) 

SUBCHAPTER 9 

200 . 1 - 26 



PREPARATION OF ENVI RONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS 

§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and contents of a draft 
environmental assessment . (a} A proposing agency or an 
approving agency shall require an applicant to seek, at the 
earliest practicabl e time , the advice and input of the 
county agency responsible for implementin g the county ' s 
general plan f or each county in which the proposed action 
is to occur, and consult with other agen cies havi ng 
jurisdiction or expertise as well as those citizen groups 
and indivi duais that the proposing agency or applicant 
reasonably believes may be affected . 

(b} The scope of the draft EA may vary with the scope 
of the proposed action and its i mpact , taking into 
consideration whether the action is a project or a program . 
Data and analyses in a draft EA shall be commensurate with 
the importance of the impact, and less important material 
may be summarized, consolidated, or simply referenced . A 
draft EA shall indicat e at appropriate points in the text 
any under lyi ng studies, reports, and other information 
obtained and considered in p r eparing the draft EA, 
including cost-benefit analyses and reports r equired under 
other legal authorit i es. 

(c) The level of dctQil in a draft EA may be more 
broad for programs or component s of a program for which 
site-specific impacts are not discernible , and shall be 
more specific for components of the program for whi ch site
specific, project-level impacts are discernible . A draft 
EA for a program may, where necessary , omit eval uati ng 
issues that are not yet ready for decision at the project 
level. Analysis of the program may be based on conceptual 
information in some cases and may discuss in general terms 
the constraints and sequences of events likely to result in 
any narrowing of future options . It may present and 
analyze in general terms hypothetical scenarios that are 
likely to occur. 

(d} A draft EA shall contain, but not be limited to, 
the followi ng information : 

(1) Identi fication of the appl icant or proposing 
agency ; 

(2) For applicant actions , identification of the 
approving agency; 

(3) List of all required permi ts and approvals 
(state , federal , and county} and, for applicants , 
identification of which approval necessitates 
chapter 343, HRS , environmental revi ew ; 

200 . 1-27 



(4) Identification of agencies , citizen groups, and 
individuals consulted in preparing the draft EA; 

(5) General description of the action's technical, 
economic, social, cultural, and environmental ' 
characteristics; · 

(6) Summary description of the affected environment, 
including suitable and adequate regional, 
location and site maps such as Flood .Insurance 
Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary ·Maps, or United 
States Geological Survey topographic maps ; 

(7) Identification and analysis of impacts and 
alternatives considered; 

(8) Proposed mitigation measvres; 
(9) Agency or approving agency anticipated 

determination, including findings and reasons 
supporting the anticipated FONSI , if applicable; 
and 

(10) Written comments, if any , and responses to the 
comments received, if any, and made pursuant to 
the early consultation provisions of subsection 
(a) and statutorily prescribed public review 
periods. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS 
§§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200 . 1-19 Notice of determination for draft 
environmental asse ssments . (a) After: 

(1) Preparing, or causing to be prepared, a draft EA; 
(2) Reviewing any public and agency comments; and 
(3) Applying the significance criteria in section 11-

200 . 1-13; 
if the proposing agency or the approving agency anticipates 
that the proposed action is not likel y to have a 
significant effect, the proposing agency or approving 
agency shall issue a notice of an anticipated FONSI subject 
to the public review provisions of section 11-200 . 1-20. 

(b) The proposing agency or approving agency shall 
file the notice of anticipated determination when 

_applicable and supporting draf t EA with the office as early 
as possible in accordance with subchapter 4 after the 
determination is made pursuant to and in accordance with 
this subchapter and the requirements in subsection (c) . 
For applicant actions, the approving agency shall also send 
the anticipated FONSI to the applicant . 

(c) The notice of an anticipated FONSI shall include 
in a concise manner : 

200 . 1-28 



(1) Identification of the proposing agency or 
applicant; 

(2) Identification of the approving agency or 
accepting a uthority; 

(3) A brief description of the action; 
(4) The anticipated FONSI ; 
(5) Reasons supporting the anticipated FONSI; and 
(6) The name, title, email address, physical address, 

and phone number of an individual representative 
of the proposing agency or applicant who may be 
contacted for further information . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp : 
HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-20 Public review and response requireme nts 
for draft environmental assessments. (a) This section 
shall apply only if a proposing agency or an approving 
agency anticipates a FONSI determination for a proposed 
action and the proposing agency or the applicant proposing 
the action has completed the draft EA requirements of 
sections 11- 200 . 1-18 and 11-200- 19. 

(b) Unless rnHndated otherwise by statute , the period 
for public review and for submi tting written comments shall 
be thirty days from the date of publication of the draft EA 
in the bull etin . Written comments shall be received by or 
postmarked to the proposing agency or approving agency and 
applicant within the thirty- day period . Any comments 
outside of the thirty-day period need not be responded to 
nor considered in the final EA . 

(c) For agen c y actions, the proposing agency shall , 
and for applicant actions , the applicant shall : respond in 
the final EA in t he manner prescribed in this section to 
all substantive comments received or postmarked during the 
statutorily mandated review period, incorporate comments 
into the f inal EA as appropriate , and include the comments 
and responses in the final EA . In deciding whether a 
written comment is substantive, the proposing agency or 
applicant shall g ive careful consideration to the validity, 
significance, and relevance of the comment to the scope , 
analysis , or process of the EA, bearing in mind the purpose 
of this chapter and chapter 343, HRS . Written comments 
deemed by the proposing agency or applicant as non
substantive and to which no response was provided shall be 
clearly indicated . 

200.1-29 



(d) Proposing agencies and applicants shal l respond 
in the final EA to all substantive comments in one of two 
ways, or a combination of both, so long as each substantive 
comment has clearly received a response: 

(1) By grouping comment responses under topic 
headings and addressing each substantive comment 
raised by an individual commenter under that 
topic heading by issue . When grouping comments 
by topic and issue, the names of commenters who 
raised an issue under a topic heading shall be 
clearly identified in a distinctly labeled 
section with that topic heading. All substantive 
comments within a single comment letter must be 
addressed, but may be addressed throughout the 
applicable topic areas with th~ commenter 
identified in each applicable topic area . All 
comments, except those described in subsection 
(e) , must be appended in full to the final 
document; or 

(2) By providing a separate and distinct response to 
each comment clearly identifying the commenter 
and the comment receiving a response for each 
comment letter submitted . All comments, except 
those described in subsection (e), must either be 
included with the response or appended in full to 
the final document . 

(e) For comments that are form letters or petitions, 
that contain identical or near-identical language, and that 
raise the same issues on the same topic: 

(1) The response may be grouped under subsection 
(d) (1) with the response to other comments under 
the same topic and issue with al l commenters 
identified in the distinctly labeled section 
identifying commenters by topic ; or 

(2) A single response may be provided that addresses 
all substantive comments within the form letter 
or petition and that includes a distinct section 
listing the individual commenters who submitted 
the form letter or petition. At least one 
representative sample of the form letter or 
petition shall be appended to the final document; 

provided that , if a commenter adds a distinct substantive 
comment to a form letter or petition, that comment must be 
responded to pursuant to subsection (d). 

(f) In responding to substantive written comments, 
proposing agencies and applicants shall endeavor to resolve 

2QO . l-30 



conflicts, inconsistencies, or concerns identified and to 
provide a response that is commensurate with the content of 
those comments. The response shall indicate changes that 
have been made to the text of the draft EA. The response 
shall describe the disposition of significant environmental 
issues raised (for example, the response may point to 
revisions to the proposed action to mitigate anticipated 
impacts or objections raised in the comment) . In 
particular, the issues raised when the proposing agency's 
or applicant's position is at variance with recommendations 
and objections raised in the comments shall be addressed in 
detail, giving reasons why specific comments and 
suggestions were not accepted, and factors of overriding 
importance warranting an override of the suggestions. 

(g) An addendum document to a draft EA shall 
reference the original draft EA it attaches to and shall 
comply with all applicable filing , public review and 
comment requirements set forth in subchapters 4 and 9. 
[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-3, 343-5 , 343-6) 
(Imp : HRS §§343-3, 343-5, 343-6) 

§11-200 . 1-21 Contents of a final environmental 
assessment . A final EA shall contain , but not be limited 
to, the following information : 

(1) Identification of applicant or proposing agency; 
(2) Identification of approving agency, if 

applicable; 
(3) Identification of agencies, citizen groups, and 

individuals consulted in preparing the EA; 
(4) General description of the action's technical, 

economic, social, cultural, and environmental 
characteristics; 

(5) Summary description of the affected environment , 
including suitable and adequate regional, 
location and site maps such as Flood Insurance 
Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary Maps, or United 
States Geological Survey topographic maps; 

(6) Identification and analysis of impacts and 
alternatives considered; 

(7) Proposed mitigation measures; 
(8) The agency determination and the findings and 

reasons supporting the determination; 
(9) List of all required permits and approvals 

(state, federal, and county) and, for applicants, 

200 . 1-31 



identifi cation of which approval necessitates 
chapter 343 , HRS , environmental review; and 

(10) Written comments, if any, and responses to the 
comments received , if any , pursuant to the early 
consultation provisions of section 11-200 . 1-
18(a) , and statutorily prescribed public review 
periods in accordance with section 11-200 . 1-20 . 
[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§343- 5 , 
343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of determination for final 
environmental assessments . (a) After : 

(1) Preparing, or causing to be prepared, a final EA; 
(2) Reviewing any public and agency comments ; and 
(3) Applying the significance criteria in section 11-

200 . 1-13 , 
the proposing agency or the approving agency shall issue a 
notice of a FONSI or EISPN in accordance with subchapter 9, 
and file the notice with the office in accordance with 
subchapter 4 . For applicant actions, the approving agency 
shall issue a determination within thirty days of receiving 
the final E~ . 

(b) If the proposing agency or approving agency 
determines that a proposed action is not likely to have a 
significant effect, it shall issue a notice of a FONSI . 

(c) If the proposing agency or approving agency 
determines that a proposed action may have a signifi cant 
effect , it shall issue an EISPN. 

(d) The proposing agency or approving agency shall 
file in accordance with subchapter 4 the notice and the 
supporting final EA with the office as early as possible 
after the determination is made , addressing the 
requirements in subsection (e) . For applicant actions, the 
approving agency shall send the notice of determination for 
an EISPN or FONSI to the applicant . 

(e) The notice of a FONSI shall indicate in a concise 
manner : 

(1) Identification of the applicant or proposing 
agency; 

(2) Identification of the approving agency or 
accepting authority; 

(3) A brief description of the proposed action; 
(4) The determination; 
(5) Reasons supporting the determination; and 

200 . 1-32 



(6) The name , title, email address," physical address, 
and phone number of an individual representative 
of the proposing agency or applicant who may be 
contacted for further information . 

(f) The notice of determin ation for an EISPN shall be 
prepared pursuant to section' 11-200 .1-23 . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-
5 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 10 

PREPARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENTS 

§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation prior to filing a draft 
environmental impact statement . (a) An EISPN , including 
one resulting from an agency authorizing the preparation of 
an EIS without first requiring an EA, shall indicate in a 
concise manner : 

(1) Identificati on of the proposing agency or 
appl i cant; 

(2) Identification of the accept ing authority; 
(3) List of all required p e r mits and approvals 

(state, federal, and county) and, for applicants , 
identification of which approval necessitates 
chapter 343, HRS, environmental review ; 

(4) The determination to prepare an EIS; 
(5) Reasons supporting the determination to prepare 

an EI S ; 
(6) A description of the proposed action and its 

location; 
(7) A description of the affected environment , 

including regional, location , and site maps ; 
(8) Poss i ble alternatives to the proposed action ; 
(9) The proposing agency' s or applicant ' s proposed 

scoping process, including when and where the EIS 
public scoping meeting or meet i ngs will be held; 
and 

(10) The name , title, email address, physical address , 
and phone number of an individual representative 
of the propos i ng agency or applicant who may be 
contacted for further information . 

(b) In the preparation of a draft EIS, proposing 
agencies and appl icants shall consult all appropr i ate 
agencies , including the county agency responsible for 
implementing the county ' s general plan for each county in 

200 . 1-33 



which the proposed act i on is to occur and agencies having 
jurisdiction or expertise, as well as those citizen groups, 
and concerned individuals that the proposing agency 
r easonably b elieves to be a f fected. To this end, agencies 
and applicants shall endeavor to develop a fully acceptable 
draft EIS prior to the time the dr aft EIS is filed with the 
office, through a full and complete cons ultat ion process , 
and shal l not rely solely upon the review process to expose 
env ironmental concerns . 

(c) Upon publication of an EISPN in the periodic 
bulletin, agencies , groups , or individuals shall have a 
p eriod of thirty days from the initial publication date to 
make written comments regarding the envi ronmental e ffects 
of the proposed action. With good cause , the approving 
agency or accepting a uthori ty may extend the period for 
comments for a period not to exceed t hirty addit i ona l days . 
Written comments and responses to the substantive comments 
shall be included in t he draft EIS pursuant to section 11-
200 . 1-24 . For purposes of the scoping meeting , substantive 
comments shall be those pertaining to the scope of the EIS . 

(d) No fewer than one EIS public scopi ng meeting 
addressing the scope of the draft EIS shall be held on the 
is land(s) most affected by the proposed action , within t h e 
publi c review a nd comment period in subsection (c) . The 
EIS public scoping meeting shall include a sep arate portion 
reserved for oral public comments and that portion of the 
scoping meeting shall be audio recorded . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343- 5 , 343- 6) (Imp : HRS §343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-24 Content requirements ; draft 
environmental impact statement. (a) The draft EIS, at a 
minimum, s hal l contain t h e information required in this 
section . The contents shall fully decl are the 
environmental implications of the proposed action and shall 
discuss a ll reasonably foreseeable consequences of the 
action . In order that the public can be fully informed and 
that the accept ing authority can make a sound decision 
based upon the ful l range of responsible opinion on 
environmental e ffects, an EIS shall include responsible 
opposing views , if a ny , on significant environmental issues 
raised by t h e proposal . 

(b) Th e scope of the draft EIS may vary with the 
scope of t h e proposed action and its impact , taking int o 
consideration whether t h e action is a project or a program . 
Dat a and analyses in a draft EIS shall be commensurate with 

200.1-34 



the importance of the impact, and less important material 
may be summarized, consolidated, or simply referenced . A 
draft EIS shall indicate at appropriate points in the text 
any underlying studies, reports, and other information 
obtained and considered in preparing the draft EIS , 
including cost benefit analyses and reports required under 
other legal a u thorities . 

(c) The level of detail in a draft EIS may be more 
broad for programs or components of a program for which 
site-specific impacts are not discernible, and shall be 
more specific for components of the program for which site
specific, project-level impacts are discernible . A draft 
EIS for a program may, where necessary, omit evaluating 
issues that are not yet ready for decision at the project 
level . Analysis of the program may be based on conceptual 
information in some cases and may discuss in general terms 
the constraints and sequences of events likely to result in 
any narrowing of future options. It may present and 
analyze in general terms hypothetical scenarios that are 
likely to occur . 

(d) The draft EIS shall contain a summary that 
concisely discusses the following : 

(1) Brief description of the action; 
(2) Significant beneficial and adverse impacts 

(including cumulative impacts and secondary 
impacts); 

(3) Proposed mitigation measures; 
(4) Alternatives considered; 
(5) Unresolved issues ; and 
(6) Compatibility with land use plans and policies, 

and listing of permits or approvals ; and 
(7) A list of relevant documents for actions 

considered in the analysis of the preparation of 
the EIS . 

(e) The draft EIS shall contain a table of contents . 
(f) The draft EIS shall contain a separate and 

distinct section that includes the purpose and need for the 
proposed action. 

(g) The draft EIS shall contain a description of the 
action that shall include the following information, but 
need not supply extensive detail beyond that nee d e d for 
evaluation and review of the environmental impact : 

(1) A detailed map (preferably a United States 
Geological Survey topographic map, Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps, or Floodway Boundary Maps as 
applicable) and a related regi onal map; 

200 .1- 35 



(2) Objectives of the proposed action; 
(3) General description of the action's technical, 

economic, social , cultural, and environmental 
characteristics ; 

(4) Use of state or county funds or lands for the 
action; 

(5) Phasing and timing of the action; 
(6) Summary technical data, diagrams, and other 

information necessary to enable an evaluation of 
potential environmental impact by commenting 
agencies and the public; and 

(7) Historic perspective. 
(h) The draft EIS shall describe in a separate and 

distinct section reasonable alternatives that could attain 
the objectives of the action . The section shall include a 
rigorous exploration and objective evaluation of the 
e nvironmental impacts of a ll such alternative actions. 
Particul ar attention shall be given to alternatives that 
might enhance environmental quality or avoid, r~duce, or 
minimize some or al l of the adverse environmental effects, 
costs, and risks of the action . Examples of alternatives 
include : 

(1) The alternative of no action; 
(2) Alternatives requiring actions of a significantly 

different nature that would provide similar 
benefits with different envi ronmental impacts; 

(3) Alternatives related to different designs or 
details of the proposed actions that would 
present different environmental impacts; 

( 4) The alternative of postponing action pending 
further study; and 

(5) Alternative locations for the proposed action . 
In each case , the anal ysis shall be sufficiently detailed 
to allow the comparative evaluation of the environmental 
benefits, costs, and risks of the proposed action and each 
reasonable alternative . For alternatives that were 
eliminated from detailed study, the section shall contain a 
brief discussion of the reasons for not studying those 
alternatives in detail . For any agency actions , the 
discussion of alternatives shall include , where relevant, 
those alternatives not within the existing authority of the 
age·ncy. 

(i) The draft EIS shall include a description of the 
environmental setting, including a description of the 
environment in the vicinity of the action, as it exists 
before commencement of the action, from both a local and 

200 .1-36 



regional perspective. Special emphasis shall be placed on 
environmental resources that are rare or unique to the 
region and the action site (including natural or human-made 
resources of historic, cultural, archaeological, or 
aesthetic significance); specific reference to related 
actions , public and private , existent or planned in the 
region shall also be included for purposes of examining the 
possible overall cumulative impacts of such actions . 
Proposing agencies and applicants shall also identify, 
where appropriate , population and growth characteristics of 
the affected area, any population and growth assumptions 
used to justify the proposed action, and any secondary 
population and growth impacts resulting from the proposed 
action and its alternatives . In any event, it is essential 
that the sources of data used to identify, qualify, or 
evaluate any and a l l environmental consequences be 
expressly noted in the draft EIS . 

(j) The draft EIS shall include a description of the 
relationship of the proposed action to land use and natural 
or cultural resource plans, policies , and controls for the 
affected area . Discussion of how the proposed action may 
conform or conflict with objectives and specific terms of 
approved or proposed land use and resource plans, policies , 
and controls , if any, for the area affected shall be 
included. Where a conflict or inconsistency exists, the 
draft EIS shall describe the extent to which the agency or 
applicant has reconciled its proposed action with the plan , 
policy, or control, and the reasons why the agency or 
app l icant has decided to proceed, notwithstanding the 
absence of full reconciliation. 

(k) The draft EIS shall also contain a list of 
necessary approvals required for the action from 
governmental agenci es, boards , or commissions or other 
similar groups having jurisdiction . The status of each 
identified approval shall also be described . 

(1) The draft EIS shall include an analysis of t h e 
probable impact of the proposed action on the environment, 
and impacts of the natural or human environment on the 
action . This analysis shall include consi deration of all 
phases of the action and consideration of all consequences 
on the environment, including direct and indirect effects. 
The interrelationships and cumulative environmental impacts 
of the proposed action and other related actions shall be 
discussed in the draft EIS. The draft EI S should recognize 
that several actions, in particular those that involve the 
construction of public facilities or structures (e . g., 

200 . 1 - 37 



highways, airports, sewer systems, water r e sour ce actions , 
etc . } may wel l stimulate or i nduce secondary effects. 
These secondary eff ects may be equally important as , or 
more i mportant than, primary effects, and shall be 
thoroughly discussed to fu l ly describe the p robable impact 
of the proposed action on the environment . The population 
and gro~th impacts of an action shal l be estimated i f 
e xpected t o be significant, a nd an evaluation shall be made 
o f the effects of any p ossi ble chan ge in population 
pat terns or growth upon the resource base , including b u t 
not limited to land use , water, and public services , of the 
area in question . Also, if the proposed action constitutes 
a direct or indirect source of pollution as determined by 
a ny governmental agency , necessary data regarding these 
impacts shall b e incorporated into the EIS . The 
signifi cance of the impacts s ha l l be discussed in terms of 
subsections (m} , (n), _(o), and (p} . 

(m) The .draft EIS shall include in a separate and 
distinct section a description of the relationship between 
local short-term uses of humanity's environment and the 
maintenance a nd enhancement o f long-term productivity . The 
extent to which t he proposed action involves trade-offs 
among short -term and long-Lerm gains a nd losses s hall b e 
discussed. The discussion shall i n clude the extent to 
which the p roposed action forecloses future options , 
nar rows the range of beneficial uses of the environment , o r 
poses long-te rm risks to health or safe ty . In this _ 
contex t , s h ort-term and long-term do not necessarily refer 
to a ny f ixed time periods, but shall be viewed i n terms of 
the envi r onmentally s i gnifi cant consequ ences of the 
proposed action . 

(n} The draft EIS shall include i n a separate and 
distinct section a description of all irreversibl e a nd 
irretrievable commi tments of resources that would be 
involved in the proposed acti o n should it be implemented . 
Iden tification of unavoidable impacts and the extent to 
which the action makes use of non-renewable resources 
dur i ng the phases of the action, o r i r r eversibly curtail s 
the ran ge of potenti al uses of the environment shal l also 
be included. The possibility of environmental accidents 
resu lting from any phase of the action shall also be 
consider ed . 

(o) The draft EIS shall address all probable adverse 
environment al effects that canno t be avoided . Any adverse 
effects s uch as water or air polluti on, urban congestion , 
threats to public health, or other consequences adverse to 

200.1 - 38 



envi ronmental goals and guidel ines established by 
environmental response laws , coastal zone management laws , 
pollution control and abatement laws , and environmental 
policy including those found in chapters 128D 
(Environmental Response Law) , 205A (Coastal Zone 

Management) , 3428 (Air Pollution Control) , 342C (Ozone 
Layer Protection) , 342D (Water Pollution) , 342E (Nonpoint 
Sour ce Pollution Management and Control) , 342F (Noise 
Pol l uti on) , 342G (Integrated Solid Waste Management) , 342H 
(So l id Waste Recycling), 3421 (Special Wastes Recycling) , 
342J (Hazardous Waste, including Used Oil) , 342L 
(Underground Storage Tanks) , 342P (Asbestos and Lead), and 
344 (State Environmental Policy) , HRS , and t hose effect s 
discussed in thi s section that are adverse and unavoidable 
under the proposed action must be addressed in the draft 
EIS . Also , the rationale f or proceeding with a proposed . 
action, notwithstanding unavoidable effects , shall be 
clearly set forth i n this section . The draft EIS shall 
indicate what other interests and considerations of 
governmental policies are thought to offset the adverse 
e nvironmental effects of the p roposed action . Th e draft 
EIS shall also indicate the extent to which these stated 
countervailing benefits could be realized by following 
reasonable alternatives to the proposed action thaL would 
avoid some or all of the adverse environmental effects . 

(p) The draft EIS shall consider mitigation measures 
proposed to avoid, mi n imi ze , rectify, or reduce impacts , 
including provision for compensation for losses of 
cul t ural, community, h istorical, archaeological, fish and 
wildlife resources, including the acquisition o f land , 
waters , and i nterests therein . Description of any 
mitigation measures included in the action ·plan to reduce 
significant, unavoidable , adverse impacts to i n significant 
levels , a n d the bas is for considering these levels 
acceptable shall be incl uded . Where a particular 
mitigation measure has been chosen from among several 
alternatives , t h e measures shall be discussed and reasons 
given for the choice made . The draft EIS shall include, 
where possibl e, specific reference to the t i ming of each 
step proposed to be taken in any miti gation process , what 
performance bonds, if any, may be posted, and what other 
provisions are proposed to ensure that the mitigation 
measures will in fact be taken . 

(q) The draft EIS shall include a separate and 
distinct section that summarizes unresolved issues and 
contains either a discussion of how such issues wi ll be 

200.1-39 



resolved prior to commencement of the action , or what 
overriding reasons there are for proceeding without 
resolving the issues. 

(r) The draft EIS shall include a separate and 
distinct section that contains a list identifying all 
governmental agencies , other organization s and private 
individuals consulted in preparing the statement, and s hal l 
disclose the identity of the persons, firms , or agency 
preparing the statement , by contract or oth er 
authorization. 

(s) The draft EIS shall include a separate and 
distinct section that contains: 

(1) Reproductions of all written comments submitted 
during the consul tation period required in 
section 11-200 . 1-23; 

(2) Responses to all s ubstantive written comments 
made during the consultation period required in 
section 11-200 . 1-23 . Proposing agencies and 
applicants shall respond in t h e draft EI S t o all 
substantive written comments in one of two ways, 
o r a combination of both, so long as each 
substantive comment has clearly received a 
response: 
(A) By grouping comment responses under topi c 

headings and addressing each substantive 
comment raised by an individual commenter 
under that topic heading by i ssue . When 
grouping comments by topic and issue, the 
names of commenters who raised an issue 
under a topic heading shall be clearly 
identified in a distinctl y labeled section 
with that topic heading . All substantive 
comments within a single comment letter 
must be addressed, but may be addressed 
throughout . the applicable different topic 
areas with the commenter identified in each 
applicable topic area . All comments, 
except those described in paragraph (3), 
must be appended in full to the final 
document; or 

(B) By providing a separate and distinct 
response to each comment clearly 
identifying the commenter and the comment 
rece i ving a response being responded to for 
each comment letter submitted. All 
comments, except those described in 

200 .1-40 



paragraph (3), must either be included with 
the response, or appended in full to the 
final document; 

(3) For comments that are form letters or petitions,. 
that contain identical or near-identical 
language, and that raise the same issues on the 
same topic : 
(A) The response may be grouped under paragraph 

(2) (A) with the response to other comments 
under the same topi c and issue with all 
commenters identified in the distinctly 
labeled section identifying commenters by 
topic; or 

(B) A single response may be provided that 
addresses all substantive comments within 
the form letter or petition a nd that 
includes a d istinct section listing the 
i ndividual commenters who submitted the 
form letter or petition. At least one 
representative sample of the form letter or 
petition shall be appended to the final 
document; and 

(C) Provided that, if a commenter adds a 
distinct substantive comment to a form 
letter or petition, t hen that comment must 
be responded to pursuant to paragraph (2); 

(4) A summary of any EIS publ ic scoping meetings , 
including a written general summary of the oral 
comments made, and a represen tative sample of any 
handout related to the action provided at the EIS 
public scoping meeting(s) ; 

(5) A list of those persons or agencies who were 
consult ed a nd had no comment in a manner 
indicating that no comment was provided; and 

(6) A representative sample of the agency 
consultation request letter . 

(t) An a ddendum to a draft EIS shall reference the 
original draft EIS to which it attaches and comply with all 
app l icable filing , public review, and comment requirements 
set forth in subchapter 10 . [Eff J (Auth: 
HRS §§343- 5 , 343- 6) (Imp: HRS §§343-2, 343-5 , 343- 6) 

§ 11- 200.1-25 Public review ~equirements for draft 
e nvironme ntal impact ~tateme nts . (a) Public review shall 
not substitute for early and open discussion with 

200.1 - 41 



interested persons and agencies concerning the 
environmental impacts of a proposed action. Review of the 
draft EIS shall serve to provide the public and other 
agencies an opportunity to discover the extent to which a 
proposing agency or applicant has examined environmental 
concerns and available alternatives . 

(b) The period for public review and for submitting 
written comments shall commence from the date that notice 
of availability of the draft EIS is initially issued in the 
periodic bulletin and shall continue for a period of forty
five days, unless mandated otherwise by statute . Written 
comments to the accepting authority with a copy of the 
comments to the proposing agency or applicant, shall be 
received by or postmarked to the approving agency or 
accepting authority , within the forty-five- day comment 
period . Any comments outside of the forty-five day comment 
period need not be responded to nor considered . [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS 
§§343-5, 3 43-6) 

§11-200.1-26 Comment response requirements for draft 
environmental impact statements. (a) In accordance with 
the content requi rements of section 11-200 . 1-27, the 
proposing agency or applicant shall respond within the 
final EIS to all substantive written comments received by 
or postmarked to the approving agency during the forty
five-day review period . In deciding whether a written 
comment is substantive , the proposing agency or applicant 
shall give careful considerat~on to the validity, 
significance, and relevance of the comment to the scope, 
analysis , or process of the EIS, bearing in mind the 
purpose of this chapter and chapter 3 43, HRS . Written 
comments deemed by the proposing agency or applicant as 
non-substantive and to which no response was provided shall 
be clearly indicated . 

(b) Proposing agencies and applicants shall respond 
in the final EIS to all substantive written comments in one 
of two ways, or a combination of both, so long as each 
substantive comment has clearly received a response: 

(1) By grouping comment responses under topic 
headings and addressing each substantive comment 
ra i sed by an individual commenter under that 
topic heading by issue . When grouping comments 
by topic and issue , the names of commenters who 
raised an issue under a topic heading shall be 

200.1-42 



clearly identified in a distinctly labeled 
section with that topic heading. All substantive 
comments wi thin a single comme nt letter must be 
addressed , but may be addressed throughout the 
applicable topic areas with the commenter 
identified in each applicable topic area . Al l 
comments, except those described in subsection 
(c) , must be appended in full to the final 
document; or 

(2) By providing a separate and distinct response to 
each comment clearly identifying the commenter 
and the comment receiving a response for each 
comment letter submitted. All comments , except 
those described in subsection (c), must either be 
incl uded wi th the response or appended in full to 
the final document . 

(c) For comments that are form letters or petitions, 
that contain identical or near-identical language, and that 
raise the same issues on the same topic : 

(1) The response may be grouped under subsection 
(b ) (1) with t h e response to other comments under 
the same topic and issue with all commenters 
identified in the distinctly l abeled section 
identifying commenters by topic ; or 

(2) A single response may be provided that addresses 
all substantive comments within the form letter 
or petition and that includes a distinct section 
listing the individual commenters who submitted 
the form letter or petition. At l eas t one 
representative sample of the form letter or 
petition shall be appended to t h e final document; 

Provided that if a commenter adds a distinct substantive 
comment to a form letter or petition, then that comment 
must be responded to pursuant to subsection (d). 

(d) In responding to substantive written comments, 
proposing agencies and appl icants shall endeavor to resolve 
conflicts , inconsistencies, or concerns identified and to 
provide a response that is commensurate with the content of 
those comments . The response shall indicate changes that 
have been made to the text of the draft EIS . The response 
s hall describe the d i sposition of significant environmental 
issues raised (for example, the response may point to 
revisions to the proposed action to mitigate anticipated 
impacts or objections raised in the comment ). In 
particular, the i ssues raised when the proposing agen cy's 
or applicant ' s position is a t variance with r ecommendations 

200 . 1- 43 



and objections raised in the comments shall be addressed in 
detail, giving reasons why specific comments and 
suggestions were not accepted, and factors of overriding 
importance warranting an override of the suggesti ons . [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp: HRS 
§§343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-27 Content requirements ; final 
environmental impact s tatement. (a) The final EIS, at a 
minimum, shall contain the information required in this 
section . The contents shall fully declare the 
environmental implications of the proposed action and shall 
discuss all reasonably foreseeable consequences of the 
action . In order that the public can be fully informed and 
the accepting authority can make a sound decision based 
upon the full range of responsible opinion on environmental 
effects , an EIS shall include responsible opposing views, 
if any, on significant environmental issues raised by the 
proposal. 

(b) The final EIS shall consist of: 
( 1) The draft EIS prepared in compliance with this 

subchapter , as revised to incorporate substantive 
comments received during the review processes in 
conformity with section 11-200 . 1-26, including 
reproduction of all comments and responses to 
substantive written comments; 

( 2) A list of persons , organizations , and public 
agencies commenting on the draft EIS; 

( 3) A list of those persons or agencies who were 
consulted with in preparing the final EIS and had 
no comment shall be included in a manner 
indicating that no comment was provided; 

(4) A written general summary of oral comments made 
at any public meetings ; and 

(5) The text of the final EIS written in a format 
that allows the reader to easily d i stinguish 
changes made to the text of the draft EIS . [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 34 3-6) 
(Imp: HRS §§343-2 , 343-5, 343-6) 

§ 11 - 200. 1-2 8 Ac c eptability . (a) Acceptability of a 
final EIS shall be evaluated on the basis of whether the 
final EIS, in its completed form, represents an 
informational instrument that fulfills the intent and 

200 . 1 - 44 



provisions of chapter 343, HRS, and adequately discloses 
and describes all identifiable environmental impacts and 
satisfactorily responds to review comments . 

(b) A f i nal EIS shall be deemed to be an acceptable 
document by the accepting authority or approving agency 
only if all of the following criteria are satisfied : 

(1) The procedures for assessment, consultation 
process , review, and the preparation and 
submission of the EIS, from proposal of the 
action to publication of the final EIS, have all 
been completed satisfactorily as specified in 
this chapter; 

(2) The content requirements described in this 
chapter have been satisfied; and 

(3) Comments submitted during the review process have 
received responses satisfa ctory to the accepting 
authority , or approving agency , including 
properly identifying comments as substantive and 
responding in a way commensurate to the comment , 
and have been appropriately incorporated into the 
final EIS . 

(c) For actions proposed by age ncies, the proposing 
agency may n =iquest the office to make a recommendation 
regarding the acceptability or non-acceptability of the 
EIS. If the office decides to make a recommendation , it 
shal l submit the recommendation to the accepting authority 
and proposing agency. In all cases involving state funds 
or lands, the governor or the governor~s authorized 
representative shall have final authority to accept the 
EIS. In cases involving only county funds or lands, the 
mayor of the respective county or the mayor's authorized 
representative shall h ave final authority to accept the 
EIS . The acc epting authority shall take prompt measures to 
determine the acceptability or non-acceptabi l ity of the 
proposing agency's EIS. If the action involves state and 
county lands, state or county funds, or both state and 
county lands and state and county funds, the governor or 
the governor's authorized representative shall have final 
authority to accept the EIS. 

(d) Upon acceptance or non- acceptance of the EIS, a 
noti ce shall be filed by the appropriate accepting 
authority with both the proposing agency and the office. 
For any non-accepted EIS, the no_tice shall contain specific 
findings and reasons for non-acceptance . The office shall 
publish notice of the determination o.f acceptance or non
acceptance in the p e riodic bulletin in accordance with 

200.1-45 



subchapter 4 . Acceptance of a required statement shall be a 
conditi on precedent to the use of state or county lands or 
funds in implementing the proposed action . 

(e) For actions proposed by applicants requiring 
approval from an agency, the applicant or accepting 
authority, which is the approving agency, may reques t the 
office _to make a recommendation regarding the acceptability 
or non-acceptability of the EIS. If the office decides to 
make a recommendation , it shall submit the recommendation 
to the applicant and the approving agency within the period 
requ iring an approving agency to determine the 
acceptability of the final EIS . Upon acceptance or non
acceptance by the approving agency, the agency shall notify 
the applicant of its determination, and provide specific 
findings and reasons . The agency shall also provide a copy 
of this det ermination to the office for publication in the 
periodic bulletin. Acceptance of the required EIS shall be 
a condition precedent to approva l of the request and 
commencement of the proposed action . The agency shall 
notify the applicant and the office of the acceptance or 
non-acceptance of the final EIS within thirty days o f the 
final EIS submi ssion to the agency ; provided that the 
thirty-day period may, at the request of the applicant, be 
extended for a period not to exceed fifteen days . The 
request shall be made to the accepting authority in 
writing . Upon receipt o f an applicant ' s written request 
for an extension of the thirty-day acceptance period, the 
accepting authority shall notify the office and appl i cant 
in writing of its decision to grant or deny the request . 
The notice shall be accompanied by a copy of the 
appl icant ' s request . An extension of the thirty-day· 
acceptance period shall not be granted merely for the 
convenience of the accepting authority . If t h e agency 
fails to make a determination of acceptance or non
acceptance of the EIS within thirty days of the receipt of 
the final EIS, then the statement shall be deemed accepted . 

(f) A non-accepted EIS may be revised by a proposing 
agency or applicant . The revision shall take the form of a 
revised draft EIS which shall fully address the 
inadequacies of the non-accepted EIS and shall completely 
and thoroughly discuss the changes made. The requirements 
for filing , distribution, publication of availability for 
review , acceptance or non-acceptance, and notification and 
publication of acceptability shal l be the same as the 
requirements prescribed by subchapters 4 and 10 for an EIS 
submitted for acceptance . In addition, the subsequent 

200 . 1 - 46 



revised final EIS shall be evaluated for acceptability on 
the basis of whether it satisfactorily addresses the 
findings and reasons for non-acceptance . 

(g) A proposing agency or appl icant may withdraw an 
EIS by s i multaneously sending a written notification to the 
office and to the accepting authority informing the office 
of the proposing agency ' s or applicant ' s withdrawal . 
Subsequent resubmittal of the EIS shall meet all 
requirements for filing, distribution, publication, review, 
acceptance , and notification as a draft EIS. [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5 , 343- 6) (Imp : HRS §§343-
5 , 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the council. An applicant, 
within sixty days after a non-acceptance determination by 
the approving agency under section 11-200.1-28 of a final 
EIS , may appeal the non-acceptance to the council, which 
within the statutorily mandated peri od after recei pt of the 
appeal , shall notify the applicant appealing of its 
determination to affirm the approving agency's non
acceptance or to reverse it . The council chairperson shall 
include the appeal on the agenda of the next council 
meeting following receipt of the appeal . In any 
affirmation or reversal of an appealed non-acceptance, the 
council shall provide the applicant and the agency with 
specific findings and reasons for its determination . The 
agency shal l abide by the council's decision . [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343- 5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-
5, 343-6) 

§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental environmental impact 
statements. (a) An EIS that is accepted with respect to a 
particular action is usually qualified by the ~ize , scope, 
location , intensity, use , and timin g of the action, among 
other things . An EIS that is accepted with respect to a 
particular action shall satisfy the requirements of this 
chapter and no supplemental EIS for that proposed action 
shall be required, to the extent that the ~ction has not 
changed substantively in size, scope, intensity, use, 
location, or timing , among other things . If there is any 
change in any of these characteristics which may have a 
significant effect, the original statement that was changed 
shall no longer be valid because an essentially different 
acti on would be under consideration and a supplemental EIS 

200.1- 47 



shall be prepared and reviewed as provided by this chapter . 
As long as there is no change in a proposed action 
resulting in individual or cumulative impacts not 
originally disclosed, the EIS associated with that action 
shall be dee~~d to comply with this chapter . 

(b) The accepting authority or approving agency in 
coordi nation with the original accepting authority shall be 
responsib l e for determining whether a supplemental EIS is 
required . This determination will be submitted to the 
office for publication in the periodic bulletin . Proposing 
agencies or applicants shall prepare for public review 
supplemental EISs whenever the proposed action for which an 
EIS was accepted has been modified to the extent that new 
or different environmental impacts are anticipated . A 
supplemental EIS shall be warranted when the scope of an 
action has been substantially increased, when the i ntensity 
of environment al impacts will be increased, when t he 
mitigating measures originally planned will not be 
implemented, or where new circumstances or evidence have 
brought to light different or likely increased 
environmental impacts not previously dealt with . 

(c) The contents of the supplemental EIS shall be the 
same as required by this chapter for the EIS and may 
incorporate by reference unchanged material from the same ; 
however, i n addition, it shall fully document the proposed 
changes from the original EIS , including changes in ambien t 
conditions or availabl e informat ion that have a bearing on 
a proposed action or its i mpact s, the positive and negative 
aspects of these changes , and shall comply with the content 
requirements of subchapter 10 as they relate to the 
changes . 

(d) The requ irements of the thirty-day consultation , 
public notice filing, distribution, the forty-five-day 
public review, comments and response , and acceptance 
procedures , shall be the same for the supplemental EIS as 
is prescribed by this chapter for an EIS. [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343 - 5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-
5, 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 11 

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT 

§11-200.1-31 Na tional environmental policy act 
actions: appli cability to chapte r 3 43 , HRS . When a 

200 . 1 - 48 



certain action will be subject both to the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) , as amended (P.L. 
91-190 , 42 U.S . C . sections 4321-4347, as amended by P . L . 
94-52, July 3, 1975, P . L. 94-83, Aug . 9 , 1975, and P . L. 
97~258 section 4(b), Sept. 13 , 1982) and chapter 343, HRS, 
the following shall occur: 

(1) The applicant or agency, upon discovery of its 
proposed action being subject to both chapt er 
343, HRS, and the NEPA, shall notify the 
responsible federal ,entity, the office, and any 
agency with a definite interest in the action (as 
prescribed by chapter 343 , HRS). 

(2) When a federal entity determines that the 
proposed action is exempt from review under the 
NEPA, this determination does not automatically 
constitute an exemption for the purposes of this 
chapter . In these cases, state and county 
agencies remain responsible for compliance with 
this chapter . However, the federal exemption may 
be considered in the state or county agency 
determination . 

(3) When a federal entity issues a FONSI and 
concludes that an EIS is not required under the 
NEPA, this determination does not automatically 
constitute compliance with this chapter. In 
these cases, state and county agencies remain 
responsible for compliance with this chapter . 
However, the federal FONSI may be considered in 
the state or county agency determination . 

(4) The NEPA requires that EISs be prepared by the 
responsible federal entity. In the case of 
actions for which an EIS pursuant to the NEPA has 
been prepared by the responsible federal entity , 
the draft and final federal EIS may be submitted 
t o comply with this chapter, so long as the 
f ederal EIS satisfies the EIS content 
requirements of this chapter and is not fo und to 
be inadequate under the NEPA: by a court; by the 
Council on Environmental Quality (or is at issue 
in pre- decision referral to Council on 
Environmental Quality) under the NEPA 
regulations ; or by the administrator of the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
under section 309 of the Clean Air Act, title 41 
United States Code section 7609 . 

200.1-49 



(5) When the responsibil i ty of prepari ng an EIS is 
delegated to a state or county agency, . this 
chapter s h a l l appl y in addition to federal 
requirements under the NEPA . The office and 
state or county agencies shall cooperate with 
federal ent ities to t he fullest e xtent possible 
to reduce duplication between federal and state 
requirements. This cooperation , to the fullest 
extent possible, shall include joint EISs with 
concurrent public review and processing at both 
levels of government . Where federal l aw has EI S 
requirements in addition to but not in conflict 
with this chapter , the offi ce and agencies shall 
cooperate i n fulfilling the requirements so that 
one document shall comply with all applicable 
laws. 

(6) Where the NEPA process requires earlier or more 
stringent public review, filing, and distribution 
than under this chapter, that NEPA process shal l 
satisfy this chapter so that duplicative 
consultation or review does not occur . The 
respons i ble federal entity's supplemental EIS 
requirements shall apply in these cases in p l ace 
of this chapter ' s supplement al EIS requirements . 

(7) I n all actions where the use of state land or 
funds is proposed, the final EIS shall be 
submitted to the governor or an aut horized 
representative . In all actions when the use of 
county land or funds is proposed and no use of 
state land or funds is proposed, the final EIS 
shall be submitted to the mayor , or an authorized 
representative. The final EIS in these instances 
shall first be accepted by the governor or mayor 
(or an authorized representative) , prior to the 
submission of the same to the responsible federal 
entity . 

(8) Any acceptance obtai ned pursuant to thi s secti on 
shall satisfy chapter 343 , HRS , and no other EIS 
for the proposed action shall be required . [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
(Imp·: HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) 

SUBCHAPTER 12 

RETROACTIVITY AND SEVERABILITY 

200 . 1 - 50 



§ 11-200 .1-32 Retroactivity. (a) Thi s. chapter shall 
apply immediately upon taking effect , except as otherwise 
provided below. · 

(b) Chapter 11-200 shall continue to apply to 
environmental review of agency and applican~ actions which 
began prior to the adoption of chapter 11-200:1, provided 
that: 

(1) For EAs , if . the draft EA was published by the 
office prior to_the adoption of this chapter and 
has not received a determination within a period 
of five years from the implementation of this 
chapter, then the proposing agency or applicant 
must comply with the requirements of this 
chapter . All subsequent environmental review, 
including an EISPN must comply with this chapter. 

(2) For EISs, if the EISPN was published by the 
office prior to the adoption of this chapter and 
the final EIS has not been accepted within five 
years from the implementation of this chapter, 
then the proposing agency or applicant must 
comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

(3) A judicial proceeding pursuant to section 343-7, 
HRS , ' shall not count towards the five-year time 
period. 

(c) Exemption lists that have received concurrence 
under chapter 11-200 may· be used for a period of seven 
years after the adoption of this chapter, dur i ng which time 
the agency must revise its list and obtain concurrence from 
the council in conformance with this chapter. [Eff 

] (Auth : HRS §343-6) (Imp: HRS §343-6) 

§11-200 . 1-33 Severability. If any provision of this 
chapter or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not 
affect other provisions or applications of this chapter 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application; and to this end, the provisions of this 
chapter are declared to be severable ." [Eff 

] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-6, 
343-8) 

3 . The repeal of chapter 11-200 and the adoption of 
chapter 11-200 . 1, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take 

200 .1-51 



effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor . 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules 
drafted in the Ramseyer format, pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 
which were adopted on MONTH DATE, YEAR and filed with the 
Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 

(Name), Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM : 

Deputy Attorney General 

200.1-52 



IV. New Business 

D.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 

to HAR Title 15, Chapter 15, Land Use 
Commission Rules, promulgated by DBEDT 



RULE-MAKING CHECKLIST 

FOR 

"SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT" 

(§201M-2, SLH 1998, am L 2008) 

DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY: Land use Commission 

Chapter and Title: Chapter 15, Title 15 

Name and Phone Number of Contact Person: Daniel Orodenker (587-3826) 

A. Description: 

_ Newrule(s) _ Repeal ofRule _x_ Amendment to rule(s) 

B. Provided are the following information described in Items 1-7 of the Policy Section in the 
Governor's Administrative Directive No. 09-01 

1. Exact Changes and Reasons for Changes. 

The LUC has amended various sections of its rules for the purposes of clarification, 
conf01mance to various appeals and to incorporate rules requiring disclosure ofproject impacts 
on climate change and sustainability issues in confo1mance with the State Plan (Chapter 226, 
Hawai'i Revised Statutes). A complete description of the changes is attached hereto. As the 
LUC is a quasi-judicial body, the purpose of the rules is primarily to clarify the requirements for 

a petition and the methodology for presenting evidence to the Commission. 

2. How would the proposed changes affect Deprutment operations or functions? 

The proposed rules would not change the responsibilities, functions, or activities of the 

Department. The rules clarify existing operations and/or codify statutory mandates already in 
place and operating. 



a. Is the proposed rule authorized by a federal or state law or statute that does not 

require an agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the law or statute? 

______x_ Yes No 

b. Is the proposed rule an emergency regulation? 

Yes__lLNo 

c. Will the proposed rule affect small business because it: 

1) will apply to a for-profit enterprise consisting of fewer than 100 full-time 

or part-time employees? 

______x_ Yes No 

2) will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small 

business? 

Yes __lLNo 

3) is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion ofa small 

business? 

Yes__lLNo 

Provide the info1mation requested in only Items 3-7 (Skip Items 8-11) 

• Ifyou answered YES to either Item 2. a. or Item 2. b. ; or 

• Ifyou answered NO to Item 2. c. (1); or 

• Ifyou answered YES to Item 2. c.(l), and NO to both Item 2. c. (2) and Item 2. c.(3). 

Provide the inf01mation requested in Items 3-11: 

• Ifyou answered YES to Item 2. c. 1), and YES to either Item 2. c. 2) or 2. c. 3). 

3. Departmental Impact (i.e. fiscal, personnel, program)? 

~ Yes _x_ No (If yes, describe long and short-range impacts, estimated in dollar 

amounts or personnel, due to enforcement, administration, execution, or implementation 



of the proposed rule that may result in a savings or shortfall under the cunent program 
budget.) 

The Depaitment does not anticipate a long or short range negative impact from 
enforcement, administration, or implementation of the proposed rules. The area is already 
managed under the existing administrative rules and the proposed amendments are not expected 

to increase costs. 

4. Impact on General Public (i.e. individuals, consumers, and businesses)? 

_ Yes _K._ No (If yes, describe long- and short-range impacts due to the 
enforcement, implementation, or execution of the proposed rule.) 

5. Impact on state economy? 

_ Yes _x_ No (If yes, describe long and sh01t-range impacts.) 

The proposed rules are not expected to negatively impact the state's economy. 

6. Final result anticipated from the proposed rule. 

The LUC process will be clearer and more streamlined. It should provide certainty to 
landowners and streamline the process by clai·ifying requirements. 

7. Other alternatives explored to carry out the statutory purpose other than rulemaking. 

The proposed rules ai·e the most efficient way to implement legal requirements of 

Chapter 205. 

Small Business Impact Statement: 

8. Is there a new or increased fee or fine? 

_ Yes _x_ No (If yes, provide the following info1mation): 

a. Amount of the cunent fee or fine and last time it was increased. 

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and percentage increase. 



c. Reason for new or increased fee or fine. 

d. Administrative cost to implement or enforce the proposed rule. 

e. Amount agency expects to collect annually from change in fee or fine. 

f. Will fee revert to general fund? If not, specify where and how monies will be 

allocated. 

g. Criteria used to determine amount of fee or fine. (Example: cost of specific service, 
general overhead or overall program cost, or no relationship to cost). · 

9. Will the proposed rule affect small business? 

_ Yes __x_ No (Ifyes, provide the following info1mation): 

a. Describe the type(s) of small business that will be directly or adversely affected 
by, bear the costs of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule. 

There will be no impact on small business. 

b. Description of any increase in direct costs, in estimated dollar amounts, to small 
business, such as fees or fines, or other direct costs associated with compliance. 

There will be no impact on small business. 

c. Description of any increase in indirect costs, in estimated dollar amounts, to small 

business, such as rep01ting, record keeping, equipment, construction, labor, 
professional services, revenue loss or other costs associated with compliance. 

There will be no impact on small business. 

d. Description ofhow small business was involved in the development of the 

proposed rules. 

e. Methods considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as: 

• Simplification, 

• Consolidation, 

• Varying schedule for fees or fines, 

• Modified compliance or reporting requirements, or 



• Other alternative or less stringent measures proposed by affected businesses 

and, ifproposed, why those proposals were not adopted. 

f. If the proposed rule is more stringent than those mandated by governing federal or 
state law or statute, explain how and why the proposed rule is more stringent. 

n/a 

10. Was the depaiimental advisory committee on small business or other small businesses or 
organizations consulted during the drafting ofthe proposed rule, and were the 

committee's recommendations, if any, incorporated into the proposed rule? 

There will be no impact on small business. 

11. Did the Small Business Regulatory Review Board or a small business make any 
recommendation to the depaiiment or agency regarding the need for any rule change that 

may be related to the proposed rule? 

There will be no impact on small business. 



LUC Rule Amendments Guide 

2018 

The proposed changes to the LUC Rules have been developed over the past several years. Because many 
sections ofthe LUC rules have not been updated since the advent of Climate Change and Sustainability issues a 
comprehensive attempt has been made to bring the rules into line with the State sustainability plan and the State 

Plan and to conform them to modem practice. 

As the changes or amendments are often small and repetitive it was deemed inefficient and cumbersome to do a 

line by line analysis of the proposed amendments. 

This document is designed as a guide to the proposed amendments to the Land Use Commission's rules of 
Practice and Procedure (Hawaii Administrative Rules Chapter 15-15). The proposed rules generally consist of 

three major categories, or types, of changes. 

1. Modernization changes - These amendments are intended to update the rules to conform to modem 

parlance (such as changing "counsel" to "attorney") or to modern technology (such as changing 
document submittal requirements from an original and fifteen copies to one original, one copy and an 

electronic version). Often they are repeated verbatim in various sections. 

2. Clarification language -Amendments of this type are designed to clarify existing rules and/or · 
memorialize practical interpretations of existing rule that have resulted, or been noted, as a result of 
various cases or petitions, appeals from LUC decisions or situations that have arisen in the course ofthe 

staff or the Commission's attempts to deal with varied situations. These changes can be either in 
substantive, procedural or administrative areas. They include insertion of language from one section 

into another to clarify applicability of a paiticular provision, consolidation of language covering the 

same topic from multiple sections into one. 

3. New sub-sections - New rules or additions are primai·ily associated with the issue of Sustainability. The 
Land Use Commission is bringing its rules into line with the State Plan which addresses issues of 
sustainability and climate change. The proposed rule amendments require petitioners before the Land 
Use Commission to address issues associated with Sustainability and Climate Change impacts as a pait 
of a petition. 

This document should be read in conjunction with the attached Amended Rules". Note that deleted language in 
the document is crossed out and new language is underlined. Retained language is left in its original format. 



[Ramseyer format] 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS , 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPME~lT , AND TOURISM 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 15-15 
Hawai 'i Administrative Rules 

October llMonth Date , -2-G-H2018 

1. Ch a p ter 15- 1 5 , Hawai i Administrat i ve Rules , 
ent i tled " La nd Use Commi ssion Rul es , " i s a mended and 
compi led to rea d as follows : 

SUMaARY 

1. §15 15 02 is repealed 

2. §15 15 03 is amended. 

3 . §15 15 05 is amended. 

4 . §15 15 06 is amended . 

5 . §15 15 06 . 1 is amended. 

6 . §15 15 07 is amended. 

7 . §15 15 08 is amended . 

8 . §15 15 09 is amended . 

9. §15 15 10 is amended . 

10 . §15 15 12 is repealed . 

1. §15 15 13 is amended . 

12 . §15 15 14 is amended . 

13. §15 15 15 is amended . 

1 4 . §15 15 16 is amended . 

i 



15 . §15 15 18 i s amended . 

2 . §15 15 19 is amended. 

3 . § 15 15 20 is amended .. 

18 . §15 15 21 i s amended . 

19 . § 15 15 22 is amended . 

20 . §15 15 25 is amended . 

21. §15 15 27 is amended . 

22 . §15 15 29 is amended . 

23 . §15 15 34 i s amended. 

24. §15 15 34.1 is added . 

25 . §15 15 35 is amended . 

26. §15 15 36 is amended . 

27 . §15 15 37 is amended . 

28 . §15 15 38 is amended . 

29 . §15 15 39 is amended . 

30 . §15 15 40 is amended . 

31. §15 15 41. is amended . 

32 . §15 15 42 is amended . 

33 . §15 15 4 4 is amended . 

34 . §15 15 45 is amended . 

4 . §15 15 45 . 1 is addedamended . 

36 . §15 15 45 . 2 is a dded . 

37 . §15 15 47 is amended . 

38 . §15 15 48 is amended . 

39 . §15 15 49 is repea l od . 

5 . §15 15 50 is amended . 

ii 



50 . 5 is added. 

50.6 i s added . 

51 is amended . 

52 is amended. 

53 is amended. 

5 4 is a mended . 

55 is a me nded . 

55 . 1 i s amended . 

56 is amended . 

57 is am:ended . 

58 i s amen ded . 

59 is amended . 

60 is amended . 

61 is amended . 

62 is amended . 

63 is amended . 

64 is repealed . 

66 is amended . 

67 is amendec;:i . 

68 is repealed . 

69 is amended . 

is amended . 

70 . 1 i s added . 

41. §1 5 15 

42 . §1 5 15 

43. §15 15 

4 4 . §15 15 

45 . §15 15 

46 . §15 15 

47. §15 15 

48. §15 15 

49 . §15 i s 

50 . §15, 15 

51. §15 

52 . §15 

53 . §15 

54 . §15 

55. §15 

56 . §15 

57 . §15 

58 . §15 15 

59 . §15 15 

60 . §15 15 

61. §15 15 

6 . §15 15 70 

63 . §15 15 

15 

15 

15 

15 

15 

15 

15 

7 . §15 15 7 4 is amended. 

8 . §15 15 76 75 is amended . 

9 . §15 15 77 is amende d . 

iii 



67. § 15 15 78 is amended . 

68 . §15 15 79 i s amen ded . 

69. § 15 15 80 i s amen ded. 

10 . §1 5 15 82 is amended . 

71. §15 15 82 . 1 is a dded . 

72 . § 15 15 83 i s amended. 

73 . §15 15 84 is amended. 

7 4 . §15 15 85 is amended. 

75 . §15 15 85 . 1 is added . 

7 6 . §15 15 86 is amended . 

77. §15 15 87 is amended . 

78 . §15 15 88 i s amended . 

79. §15 15 89 is amended . 

80. §15 15 90 is amended . 

81. §15 15 92 is amended . 

11. §15 15 93 is amended. 

83 . §15 15 94 is amended. 

84 . §15 15 95 is ame n ded. 

85 . §15 15 95 . 1 is added. 

86 . §15 15 96 is amended . 

87 . §15 15 96.1 is added . 

12 . §15 15 97 is amended . 

89. §15 15 97 . 2 is added . 

90 . §15 15 98 is amended . 

91. §15 15 99 is amended . 

92 . §15 15 100 is amended . 

iv 



93 . §15 15 

94. §15 15 

95 . §15 15 

96 . §15 15 

97 . §15 15 

98 . §15 15 

99 . §15 15 

100 . §15 15 

101. §15 15 

102 . §15 15 

103 . §15 15 

104. §15 15 

101 io amended . 

102 is repeal ed . 

103 i s amended. 

10 4 is amended . 

105 is ame nded . 

106 io amended . 

10 7 is ame nded. 

107 . 1 i s added . 

109 is amended. 

11 0 is ame nded . 

12 0 is a dded. 

121 is a dded . 

13 . §15 15 122 is amendedadded. 

106 . §15 15 123 is added . 

14 . §15 15 124 is amendedadded . 

108 . §Cl=½aI3ter 15 i s eem~iled 15 15 125 i s added . 

109 . §15 15 126 is a dded . 

110 . § 15 15 127 is added . 

111. § 15 15 128 is added . 

15 .8Heel=iaJ?ter 18 is reI3eal e d . 

113 . Cl=½aI3t cr 15 is eomJ?iled 

V 



"HAWAI'I ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 15 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS, 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT , AND TOURISM 

CHAPTER 15 

LAND USE COMMISSION RULES 

Subchapter 1 General Provisions 

§15-15-01 
§15-15-02 
§15- 15-03 
§15-15-04 
§15- 15-05 
§J_5--15-0 6_ 
§15- 15-06 . l 
§15-15-07 
§15-15-08 
§15- 15-09 
§15-15-10 
§15-15-11 
§15-15-12 
§15-15-13 

§15-15-14 
§15-15-15 
§15-15-°16 

Purpose 
Repealed 
Definitions 
Grammatical usage 
Office and office hours 
Chairperson and vice-chairperson 
Hearings officer 
Executive officer 
Chief clerk 
Public records 
Meetings; generall y 
Executive meetings 
Repealed 
Quorum and number of votes necessary for 

a decision 
Removal of persons from meetings 
Minutes o f meetings 
Computation of time 

Subchapter 2 Establishment of State Land Use 

§15-15-17 
§15-15-18 

§15-15-19 

§15-1 5-20 

§15-15-21 

§15-15-22 

Distri cts 

Districts; district maps 
Standards for determining " U" urban 

district boundaries 
Standards for- determi ning "A" 

agricultural district boundaries 
Standards for determining " C" 

conservation district boundaries 
Standards for determining " R" rural 

district boundaries 
Interpretation of district boundaries 



Subchapter 3 Permissible Land Uses 

§ 15-15- 23 
§15-15-24 

Permissible uses; generally 
Permiss i ble uses within the II u r, u r ban 

district 
§15-15-25 Permissible uses with in the IIA" 

agricultural district 
§15-15-26 Permissible uses within the "C" 

conservation d i strict 
§15-15-27 Permissi ble uses within the II RII rural 

distri ct 

Subchapter 4 Non-conformance 

§15-15-28 Statement of intent 
§15- 15-29 Non- conforming uses of structures and 

lands 
§15 - 15- 30 Non-con forming areas and parcels 
§15-15-31 Casual or illegal use of land 
§15-15- 32 Existence of non-conforming use is a 

question of fact 
§15-15-33 Illegal uses 

Subchapter 5 Proceedings Before the Commission 

§15-15- 34 Quasi-judicial proceedings ; waiver or 
suspension of rules 

§15-15-34 . 1 Verbatim transcripts 
§15- 15-35 Appearance before the commission 
§15-15-36 Decisions and orders 
§15- 15- 37 Fi ling documents; place and time 
§15-15-38 Format 
§15-15- 39 Verification 
§15-15-40 Copies 
§15-15-41 Defective filings 
§15-15-42 Ex tension s of time 
§15-15-43 Amended pleadings 

2 



§15-15-44 Retention of documents 
§15-15-45 Service of process 
§15-15-45.1 Fees 
§15-15-45.2 Fees Not Refundable 

Subchapter 6 Application Requirements for 
Boundary Amendment Petitions 

§15- 15-46 Standing to initiate boundary amendments 
§ 15-15-47 Filing 
§15-15-48 Service of petition 
§15-15-49 Repealed 
§15-15-50 Form and contents of petition 
§15-15-50.5 Dismissal of petition for failure to 

provide additional information or 
correct defects 

§15-15-50.6 Withdrawal or amendment of petition 

Subchapter 7 Agency Hearing and Post Hearing 
Procedures 

§15-15-51 

§15-15-52 

§15-15-53 

§15-15-54 
§15-15-55 
§15-15-55 . l 
§15-15-56 

§15-15-57 

§15- 15-58 
§15-15-59 
§15-15-60 
§15-15- 61 
§15-15-62 
§15-15-63 
§15- 15- 64 
§15-15-65 

Notice of hearing for boundary amendment 
petitions 

Intervention in proceeding for district 
boundary amendments 

Intervention in other than district 
boundary amendment proceedings or 
important agricultural lands 
designation proceedings 

Consolidation 
Statement of position 
Filing of exhibits 
Stipulation as to findings of fact, 

conclusions of law, and conditions of 
reclassification 

Prehearing conference; exchange of 
exhibits; prehearing conference order 

Procedure for witnesses 
Conduct of hearing 
Presiding officer 
Disqualification 
Ex parte communications 
Evidence 
Repealed 
Limiting testimony 

3 



§15-15-66 
§15-15-67 
§15-15-68 
§15-15-69 
§15-15-70 . 
§15-15-70 . 1 
§15-15-71 
§15-15-72 
§15-15-73 
§15-15-74 
§15-15-75 
§15-15-76 

Removal from proceeding 
Co-counsel 
Repealed 
Subpoenas 
Motions 
Protective Orders 
Substitution of parties 
Correction of transcript 
Post hearing procedures 
Decision 
Appeals 
Re-application by the petitioner for 

boundary amendment 

Subchapter 8 Decision-Making Criteria for 
Boum:iary Amendments 

§15-15-77 

§15-1 5-78 
§15-15-79 

Decision-making criteria for boundary 
amendments 

Incremental districting 
Performance time 

Subchapter 9 Post Hearing Procedures for 

§15-15-80 
§15-1 5-81 
§15-15-82 
§15-15-82 . 1 

§15-15-83 
§15-15-84 

Hearings Before the Commission 

Briefs 
Oral argument 
Issuance of decision and orders 
Stipulation as to findings of fact, 
conclusions of law, conditions of 
reclassification and decision and order 
Service of decisions and orders 
Recons i deration of decision 

Subchapter 10 Post Hearing Procedures for Hearing 

§15-15-85 
§15-15-85 . 1 
§15-15-86 

§15-15-87 

§15-15-88 
§15-15-89 
§15-15-89.1 

Conducted by Hearings Officer 

Recommendation of heari ngs officer 
Proposed decision 
Exception to hearings officer's report 

and recommendations 
Support of hearings officer ' s report and 

recommendations 
Oral argument before the commission 
Repealed 
Final decision 

4 



Subchapter 11 Conditions : Filing, Enforcement, 

§15- 15-90 
§15-15-91 
§15- 15-92 

§ 15-15-93 

§15-15-94 

Modification, Deletion 

Imposition of conditions; generall y · 
Applicability 
Filing procedure for conditions imposed 
by the commission 
Enforcement of conditions , 

representations , or commitments 
Modi fication or deletion of conditions 

or orders 

Subchapter 12 Speci al Permits 

§15-15-95 

§15-15-95 . 1 
§15-15-96 

§15-15-96 . 1 

Peti t i on before county planning 
commission 

Applicab i lity of subchapter 5 
Decision and order by the land use 

commission 
Modification of special permit 

Subchapter 13 Government Sponsored Housing 
Projects 

§15-15-97 Procedure for processing petitions for 
housing projects under section 201H-

38, HRS 
§15-15-97 . 1 Repealed 

Subchapter 14 Declarat ory Orders 

§ 1 5-15-98 
§ 15 - 15-99 

§15-15-100 
§15-15-101 

§15-15-102-
§15-15-103 
§15-15-104 

Who may petition 
Petition for declaratory order; form and 

content s 
Declaratory orders ; commis.sion action 
Declaratory orders ; dismissal of 

petition 
Repealed 
Declarator y orders ; requ est for hearing 
Appl icability of declaratory order 

Subchapter 15 Rulemaking Proceedings 

§15-15-105 Initiation of rulemaking proceedings 
§15-15-1·06 Rulemaking ; form and contents of 

5 



- - - - --- --

- --- --- - -
--- ----- -

- - - - --- --

- - - - - - ---

- - - - - --- -

petition 
§15-15-107 Rulemaking; action on petition 
§15-15-107 . 1 Commission action 
§15-15-108 Rulemaking ; notice of public hearing 
§15-15-109 Rulemaking; conduct of public hearing 
§15-15-110 Emergency rulemaking 

Subchapter 16 Land Use District Boundaries 

§15-15-111 Land use district boundaries 

$15-15- 112 to 15-15-119 reserved 

Subchapter 17 Important Agricultural Lands 

15-15-120 Criteria and procedures for t he 
.- identification of important 

a gri cultural lands 
15- 15-121 Petition by farmer or landowner 
15-15-122 Petition by farmer or landowner for 

designation of important agricultural 
1 and and urban, rural or conservation 
reclassifi cation~ - ~-~ --- -15- l 5 - l23 Adherence to chapter 343 , HRS 

15-15-124 Private landowner credits in important 
- - agri cultural land proceeding 

1 5-1 5-125 County identification of important 
agricultural lands 

15-15-126 Criteri a for designation of lands as 
- important agricultural lands 

--pursuant to county 
recommendation 

15-15-127 Standards and criteria for the 
reclassification or rezoning of 

important a gri cultural lands 
15-15-128 · Periodic review and amendment of 

important agricultural lands maps 

Subchapter 18 (Repealed) 

Historical Note : This chapter is based 
substantially upon Rules of Practice and Procedure, 
Part I of the land use commission [Eff.: 4/21/62; am and 
ren . 8/4/69; am and ren . 1/5/75 ; am and ren . 12/21 /75; 
am 3/27/77 ; R 10/27/86) and State Land Use District 

6 



Regulations , Part II of the land use commission [Eff. 
8/23/64; am and ren . 8/4/69; am and r e n . 1/5/75; am and 
ren . 12/21/75 ; R 10/27/86] and land use commission 
rules, chapter 15-15. [Eff 10/27 /86; am 3/20/87; am 
7/12/93 ; am- 3/24/94 ; am 7/18/94; am and comp 8/16/97; 
am and comp 5/08/00 ; am and comp comp 
11/2/2013 ; am and comp ] 

SUBCHAPTER 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§ 15-15- 01 Purpose. This chapter governs the 
practice and procedure before the land use commi ssion, 
and shall be construed to secure the just and efficient 
determination of every proceeding . This chapter shall 
be liberally construed to preserve, protect, and 
encourage t h e development and preservation of lands in 
the State for those uses to which they are best suited 
in the interest of public health and welfare of the 
people of the State of Hawai ' i . The rules under this 
chapter are promulgated pursuant to authority provided 
by secti ons 205-1 and 205-7 , HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am 
and comp 8/16/97; co~p 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
~______ comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 
205-7) ( I mp : HRS §205-7) 

§15- 15- 02 REPEALED. [R 8/16/97] 

§ 15-15-03 . De finitions. As used in this chapter : 
"Accessory building or use" means a subordinate 

building or use which is incidental to and customary 
with a permi t ted use of t he land. 

"Agency" means each state or county board, 
commission , department, or office author"ized by law . to 
make rules or to adjudicate contested cases , except 
those in legislative or judicial branches . 

"Agency hearing " refers only to a hearing held by 
an agency immediately prior to a judicial review of a 
contested case as provided in section 91-14, HRS . 

"Agricultural park" means the same as in section 
1 66-2, HRS . 

"Building" means any structure having a roof, 

7 



including, b ut not limited to, attached carports and 
similar structures . 

"Chairperson " means the chairperson of the 
commission. 

"Chief clerk" means the person who is responsible 
for receiving , recording, and preserving the records of 
all matters brought before the commission . 

"Commission" means the land use commission of the 
State of Hawai'i . 

"Commissioner" means a member of the commission . 
"Contested case" means a proceeding in which legal 

rights , duties , or privileges of specific parties are 
required by law to be determined after an opportunity 
for agency hearing . 

" District " means an area of land , including lands 
underwater , established as an urqan, agricultural, 
conservation, or rural district . 

" Dwelling" means a building designed or used 
exclusively fo r · single family residential occupancy, 
but not including house trailer, multi-family unit, 
mobile home, hotel, or motel . 

"Economic feasibility" means the degree to which 
the market demand for the proposed project, 
development, or use by the petitioner is accurately 
estimated and appears to be substantial enough t o 
indicate the probabili ty of a v i able endeavor to 
justify the boundary amendment . 

"Executive officer" means the i ndividual appointed 
by the commission to be the administrative officer of 
the commission . 

"Facsimile " means a document produced by a 
receiver of signals transmitted over telecommunication 
lines , after translati ng the signals , to produce a 
duplicate of an original document . 

" Farm dwelling" means a single-family dwel l ing 
l ocated on a nd used in connecti on with a farm or where 
agricultural activity provides income to the family 
occupying the dwelling . 

" Filing" means t h e submittal of documents with the 
chief clerk . A document will be considered filed at 
the time it is received in the chief clerk ' s office, as 
evi denced by the date and time endorsed on the document 
by or at the direction of the chief clerk . Unless 
otherwise specifically provided in these rules, 
electronic or facsimile transmission of documents to 
the chief clerk or executive officer of the commission 
does not constitute f i ling . This definition is to be 
distinguished from the definition for "proper filing" 
f or petitions to amend a district boundary . 

"Hearings officer " means a person or persons duly 

8 



designated and authorized by the commission to conduct 
proceedings on matters within the jurisdiction of the 
commission for purposes of taking testimony and to 
report the person ' s f i ndings and recommendations to the 
commission. 

- " HRS " means the Hawai 'i Revised Statutes . 
" Intervenor" means a person who properly seeks by 

application to intervene and is entitled to be admitted 
as a party in any contested case proceeding before the 
commission. 

"Land" means all real property in the State 
including areas under water within t he boundaries of 
the State . 

"Landowner" means a person or party with a fee 
simple interest in the land . 

"Lot " means a single parcel of land of record in 
the real property tax records of the county in which 
the land is located . 

"Map " means the land use district boundaries maps 
of the commission . 

"Meeting" means the convening of the commission 
for which a quorum is required in order to make a 
decision or deliberate toward a decision upon a matter 
over which the commission has supervision, control , 
jurisdiction, or advisory power. 

" Party" means a person named or admitted as a 
party or entitled as of righ t to be admitted as a party 
in any contested case proceeding before the commission . 

" Person" means any individual, corporation, firm, 
association , partnership, society, or oth er legal 
entity, and any federal, state, and county department 
or agency . 

" Petitioner" means a person who seeks permission 
or authorization from the commission in any matter for 
which the commission is authorized to grant relief . 

" Planning commission " means the planning 
commissions of the various counties, including the city 
and county of Honolulu . 

" Presiding officer" means any commissioner or a 
hearings officer duly designated as such . Unless 
otherwise designated, the chairperson shall be t h e 
presiding officer . 

" Proceeding" means any matter brought before the 
commission over which the commission has jurisdiction 
and shall include , but not be limited to : 

(1) Petitions for district ·boundary amendment; 
(2) Petition s for .special permit; 
(3) Proceedings for the adoption , amendment, or 

repeal of rules under sections 91-3 and 
205-7, HRS ; 

9 



(4) Petitions for declaratory orders under 
section 91-8, HRS; 

(5) An investigation or r eview instituted or 
requested to be initiated by the commission; 
a nd 

(6) All other matters in the administration of 
chapter 205, HRS . 

"Proper filing," as applied in section 205-4, HRS, 
means after a petition for district boundary amendment 
has been filed with the chief c lerk , and the executive 
officer has made a determination that the petition 
conforms to the requirements of section 15-15-50 and 
accepts t he petition for processing. 

" Public record s " means the same as "government 
records" a s defined in chapter 92F, HRS. 

" Public institution or building" means any 
institution or building being used by a federal, state, 
or county agency for a public purp ose . 

"Res ponde n t " means a person subject to any 
statute , rule, or order administered by the commission 
and upon whom an order or notice is issued by t h e 
commission instituting an agency hearing to show cause . 

" Shoreline" mean.s the same as in section 205A-1 , 
HRS. 

"Single-family dwelling" means a dwelling occupied 
exclusively by one family . 

"State" means the State of Hawai'i. 
"Structur_e " means a constructed or erected 

material or combination of materials, which requires 
location on the ground , including, but not limited t o, 
buildings, radio towers , sheds, storage b i n s , fences , 
and signs . · 

" Unauthorized ex parte communication " means 
private communications or arguments with members of the 
commission, or its hearings officer as to the merits of 
a proceeding with a view towards influencing the 
outcome of the petition or proceeding . [Eff 10/27/86; · 
am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and am and comp 
11/2/201 3 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) 
(Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 205-1, 205-7) 

§15-15-04 Grammatical usage. (a) Words used in 
the present tense include the future tense . 

(b) The singular number includes the plural; and 
the plural, the singular . 

(c) The word " s hall" is always mandatory . 
(d) The word "may " is always permissive. 
(e) Terms not defined in this chapter shall have 

10 



the meaning customarily ass i gned to them. [Eff 
10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00;- comp 11/2/2013; 
comp -=--=-=--=- ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, - 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§§91-2 , 205-7) 

§ 15-15-05 Office and office hours. (a) The 
office of the commission is in Honolulu, Hawai'i . All 
communications to t h e commission , including requests 
for information and submittals , shall be in writing 
and, shall be addressed to the commission ' s o f f ice , 
unless oth erwise directed by the commissi on . 

(b) The office of the commission shall be open 
from 7 : 45 a . m. to 4 : 30 p . m. , Monday through Friday, 
excepting legal holidays as designat~d pursuant to 
section 8-1 , HRS, and any day or any part of a day on 
or for which the governor has granted administrative 
leave in the St ate , unless otherwise provided by 
s t atute or execut i ve o r der. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and am and comp 11/2/2013 ; 
comp ---~-c-----,,--~] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-
7) (Imp : HRS §§80-1 , 91-2, 205-7) 

§ 15-15-06 Chairperson and vice-chairperson. (a) 
The commissioners shall annually elect a chairperson 
and one or more vice-chairpersons from its members . 

(b) The chairperson s hall have the 
responsibilities and duties prescribed in t h is chapter . 

(c) In the absence of the c h a i rperson , t he vice
chairperson or vice-chairpersons s hall have t h e 
responsibilities and duties of the chairperson 
prescribed in this chapter. In case of resignation or 
incapacity of the chairperson , a vice-chairperson shall 
perform such duties as are imposed on the chairperson 
until such time as the commission shall elect a new 
chairperson . I n the event the chairperson or a vice
chairperson resigns , the commission s hall elect a new 
chairperson or vice-chairperson, as the case may be , as 
soon as practicable after such resignation . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and am 
a-R-d-comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS 

· §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp .: HRS §§91-2 , 205-7) 

§ 15-15- 06.1 He arings office r. (a) The 
commissi on may appoint a hearings officer pursuant to 

11 



section 92-16 , HRS . 
(b) If for any reason the hearings officer 

designated i s unable to complete a hearing , the 
commissi on , without abatement of the proceedings , may 
assign the matter to another hearings officer . [Eff and 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
-=-=c-=-:~~- -=--=-= §§92-16 , 205-1) 

§ 15-15-07 Executive officer. (a) The executive 
officer shall be appointed by the commission to serve 
as the administrative hea d of the commission staff and 
have responsibilities a nd dut i e s as prescribed by t he 
commission. The executive officer shall be directly 
responsible to the commi ssion, and shall have control 
of and responsibility for the execution of the 
commission ' s policies , the administration of its 
affairs , and the employment and supervision of its 
personnel , subject to the commission's oversight . From 
time to time, or as requested , the executive officer 
shall furnish the commission members with such 
information and make such recommendations as shall be 
necessary to effect the purposes of the commission and 
for the proper administration of its affairs . The 
executive officer shall deyel op annual budgets , 
authorize and certify payrolls , requisitions, invoices, 
and other such documents essential to the proper 
administration of the commission . 

(b) The executive officer shall prepare a 
hearings calendar and the agenda for all meetings and 
hearings , under the direction of the chairperson . 

(c) The executive officer or such other person as 
may be authorized by the commission shall certify all 
decisions and orders and other actions of the 
commission . 

(d) The executive officer may be appointed by the 
commiss i on to serve as hearings officer . 

(e) The ~xecutive officer may i nterpret land use 
district boundaries at the request of the public. 
Interpretation of district boundaries shall be done in 
compl i a nce with section 15-15-22 . 

(f) The executive officer may conduct the 
preheari ng conf erence provided under·section ·15-15-57 . 
[Eff 10/27 /8 _6 ; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and 
comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-1) 

12 



§15-15-08 Chief clerk . (a) Under the 
supervision of the executive officer , the chief clerk 
shall have custody of the commission's official records 
and shall be responsible for the maintenance and 
custody o f the docket files, including the transcripts 
and exhibits, the minutes of all of the commission ' s 
meetings and hearings, and all of the commission ' s 
d ecisions , orders , opinions , rules , and approved forms . 

(b) In addition to other duties , the chief clerk 
shall maintain a docket fi l e of all proceedings fi l ed 
with the commission , including all petitions for 
d istrict boundary amendments , all app_lications for 
special permits , and all petitions for rule-making or 
declaratory ruling filed with the commission, and each 
docket shall be assigned a number . [Eff 10/27/86; am 
and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am a nd comp 11/2/2013 ; 
comp ] (Atith : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : §§91-2, 
205~1) 

§ 15-15-09 Public records . All public records 
shall be available for inspection at the office of the 
commission during regular business hours . Public 
information on matters within the juri sdiction of the 
commission, but which excludes confidential 
information, may be obt ained by inquiring in person 
during regular business hours , or by submitting a 
written request to the commission . Requests made . via 
facsimile or elect r on ic mail to the commission are 
acceptable . Commission staff may respond to any inquiry 
or request by making the records available at the 
commission office . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2 /2013; comp ) 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 2 05-7) (Imp : HRS §§92F-1 , et 
seq . ) 

§15-15-10 ,Meetings; generally. (a) The 
commission may meet and exerci se i ts power in the State 
of Hawai 'i . Except as provided in sections 92-4 and 
92-5 , HRS , all of the commission meetings and hearings 
are open to the public . Unless waived by the 
chairperson, the parliamentary procedure to be utilized 
by the commission i n the conduct of its meetings a nd 
hearings shall be based on the current edition of 
Robert ' s Rules of Order Newly Reyised , but only if it 
does not conflict with chapters 91 and 92 , HRS , or 

13 



these rules. 
(b) The commission shall allow all interested 

persons an opportunity to submit data, views, arguments 
or p r esent oral testimony on any agenda item i n an open 
meeting . The commission may provide for the 
recordation of all presented oral testimony . The 
commission may impose .limitations on the submission of 
data , views , arguments , or oral testimony in the 
interest of preserving due process concerns of the 
contested case proceeding . 
- - -+ [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 
5/8/00; ~am and comp 11/2/201 3 ; comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 92-3, 92-
7) 

§ 15-15-11 Executive meetings. (a) The 
commission ma y hold an executive meeting from which the 
public may be excluded, for those purposes permitted by 
section 92-4, HRS , but only i f there is an affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the members present at the 
meeting ; provided the affirmative vote constitutes a 
majority of t he members to which the commission is 
entitled . The reason for holding the executive meeting 
shall be publicly announced and the vote of the members 
shall be recorded and entered i nto the minutes of the 
meeting . 

(b) The commission shall not make a decision or 
del iberate toward a decision in an executive meeting on 
matters not directly related to the purposes specified 
in section 92-5(a) , HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8 / 00 ; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
- (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§92-4 , 92-5) 

§ 15-15-12 REPEALED . [~R--R 11/2 /2013) 

§ 15-15-13 Quorum and number of votes necessary 
for a decision.! (a) Unless otherwise provided by law, 
a majority of all the members to which the commission 
is entitled shall constitute a quorum to do business , 
and the concurrence of a majority of all the members to 
wh ich t he commission is entitled shall be ne cessary to 
make a commission decision valid ; provided all 
approvals of petition s for boundary amendments under 
section 205-4 , HRS , shall require six affirmative votes 

14 



and approvals for special permits under section 205-6, 
HRS, s hall require five affirmative votes . [~ 
petition receives siJE affirmative votes , any subsequent 
vote reflecting the commission's approval of the form 
of the order shall require five affirmative votes . ] 

(b) If the commission ' s action to approve a 
pet ition for boundary amendment under section 205-4 , 
HRS, fails to obtain six affirmative votes , findings of 
fact , conclusions of law, and decision and order 
denying the petition shall be filed by the commi ssion . 
[ If a petition fails to receive siJE affirmative votes, 
any subsequent vote reflecting the commission ' s 
approval of the form of the order shall require five 
affirmative votes.] 

(c) If the commission ' s action to approve a 
petition for a specia l permit under secti on 205-6, HRS, 
fails to obtain five affirmative votes, findings of 
fact, conclusions of law, and a decision and order 
denying the petition shall be filed by the commission . 
[If a petition fails to receive five affirmative votes, 
any subsequent vote reflecting the commission's 
approval of the form of the order shall require five 
affirmative votes. ] 

(d) In contested cases, commission members who 
have not heard and examined all of the evidence may 
vo t e only after the procedures set forth in section 
91-11, HRS, have been complied with. [Eff 10/27/86; am 
and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am a nd comp 
11/2/2013 ; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§91-
13 . 5 , 205-1, 2.05-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-13 . 5 , 92-15, 205-4, 
205-6) 

§ 15-15-14 Removal of persons from meetings. The 
presiding officer or executive officer may remove any 
person who willfully disrupts a meeting or hearing or 
other proceeding before the commission . [Eff 10/27 /8 6; 
comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am a n d comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : . HRS §§205-1 , 205-
7) (Imp : HRS §92-3) 

§15-15- 15 Minutes of meetings. (a) The 
commission shall keep written minutes of all meetings. 
Unless otherwise r equired by law, neither a full 
transcript nor a recording of the meeting is required, 
but t h e written minutes shall give a true reflection of 
the matters discussed at the meeting and the views of 

15 



the participa nts. The minutes shall include, but need 
not be limited t o : 

(1) The date, time , and place of the meeting ; 
(2) The members of the commission recorded as 

either present· or absent ; 
(3) The substance of al l matter s proposed, 

discussed, or decided, and a record, by 
individual member, of any votes taken; and 

(4) Any other information that any member of the 
commission requests be included or reflected 
in the minutes . 

(b) The minutes shall be public and shall be 
available within thirty days after the meeting except 
where the disclosure would be incons i stent with section 
92-5 , HRS . The commission may withhold publication of 
ihe minutes of executive meetings so long as their 
publication would defeat the lawful purpose of the 
executive meeting . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] 
- (Auth : HRS §§205:-1 , 2·05-7) (Imp: HRS §92-9) 

§ 15-15- 16 Computation of time. In computing any 
period of time prescribed by this chapter , by notice , 
or by any order, or rule of the commission , or any 
appl~cable statute, the time begins with the day 
following the act, event, or def ault and includes the 
last day of the period unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, 
or legal holiday, or a day or a part of a d ay on or for 
which the governor has granted administrative leave in 

· the State, in which event the period runs until the end 
of the next day which is riot a Saturday, Sunday , or 
legal holiday . Unless otherwise specified in these 
rules, when the prescribed period of time is less than 
seven days , Saturdays, Sundays , or legal h o lidays 
within the designated period shal l not be included in 
the computation. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
- (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205- 7) (Imp: HRS §91- 2) 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

.ESTABLISHMENT OF STATE LAND USE DISTRICTS 

§ 15-15-17 Dis tricts; district maps. (a) In 

1 6 



order to effectuate the purposes of chapter 205 , HRS, 
all the lands in the State shall be divided and placed 
into one - of the four land use districts : 

(1) "U" urban district ; 
(2) "A" agricultural district ; 
(3) " C" conservation district; or 
(4) " R" rural district . 
(b) The boundaries of .land use districts are 

shown on the maps e ntitled "Land Use District 
Boundaries , dated December 20, 1974, " as amended, 
maintained and under the custody of the commission . 
Not all ocean areas and offshore and outlying islands 
of the State in the conservation district are shown 
when deemed unnecessary to do so . [Eff 10/27/86; am 
and comp 8/16/97; am a n d comp 5/8/00; ----a-Ra comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-2) 

11 u 11§15-15-18 Standards for determining · urban 
district boundaries. Except as otherwise provided in 
this chapter , in determining the boundaries for the " U" 
u r ban district, the following standards shall be used : 

(1) It shall include lands characterized by 
"city- like " concentrations of people; 
structures , streets, urban level of services 
and other related land uses ; 

(2) It shall take into consideration the 
following specific factors : 
(A) Proximity to centers of trading and 

employment except where the development 
would generate new centers of trading 
and employment; 

(B) Availability of basic services such as 
schools , parks, wastewater systems , 
solid waste disposal, drainage, water, 
transportation systems, public 
utilities, and police and fire 
protection; and 

(C) Sufficient reserve areas fo r foreseeable 
urban growth ; 

(3) It shall include lands with satisfactory 
t opography, drainage, and reasonably free 
from the danger of·any flood , tsunami , 
unstable soil condit i on, and other adverse 
environ·mental effects ; . 

(4) Land contiguous with exi sting urban areas 
shall be given more consideration than 
non- contiguous l and , particularly when 

17 



indicated for future urban use on state or 
county general plans or county community 
plans or development plans ; 

(5) I t shall include lands in appropriate 
locations for new urban concentration s and 
shall give consideration to areas of u rban 
growth as shown on the state and county 
general plans or county community plans or 
d evelopme nt plans ; 

(6) It may include lands which do not con form to 
the standards in paragraphs (1) to (5) : 
(A) Whe n s u rrounded by or adjacent to 

existing urban development ; and 
(B) Only when those lands represent a minor 

portion of thi s district ; . 
(7) It shall not i nclude lands , the urbanization 

of which will contribute toward scattered 
spot urban d evelopme n t , necessitating 
unreasonable investment in public 
infrastructure or support s ervices ; a nd 

(8) It ma y include lands with a genera1 · s1ope of 
twenty per cent or more if the commission 
finds that those lands are desirable and 
suitable for urban purposes and that the 
d esign and construction controls, as adopted 
by any federal , state , or county agen cy , are 
adequate to protect the public health , 
welfare and safety, and the public ' s 
interests in t h e aesthetic quality o f the 
landscape . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 
8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am - and comp 11/2/2013; 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 
20 5-2 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205- 2 ) 

§ 15-15-19 Standards for determining "A" 
agricultural district b oundarie s . Except as otherwise 
p rovided in t his c hapter , in determining the boundaries 
for the "A" agricultural district, t h e following 
standards shall apply : 

(1) It shall include l ands with a high capacity 
for a gricultural production ; 

(2) It may include lands with significant 
potential for g razing or for other 
agricultural u ses; 

(3) It may include lands surrounded by or 
contiguous t o agricultu ral lands or which are 
not s uited to agricultural and ancillary 
activities by rea son of topography, soils , 

18 

' , 



and other related characteristiCSi and 
(4) It shall include all lands designated 

important agricultural lands pursuant to part 
III of c hapter 205 , HRS. [Eff 10/27/86 i am 
and comp 8/16/97i comp 5/8/00 i am and comp 
ll/2/2013 i comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 
205-2, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 

11 C11§ 15-15-20 Standards f o r dete rmining 
conservation district boundaries. Except as otherwise 
provided in this chapter, in determining the boundaries 
for the "C" conservation district, the following 
standards shall apply: 

(1) It shall include lands necessary for 
protecting watersheds, water resources, and 
water suppliesi 

(2) It may include lands susceptible to floods 
and soil erosion, lands undergoing major 
erosion damage and r equiring corrective 
attention by the state and federal 
government, and lands necessary for the 
protection of the health and wel fare of the 
publ ic by reason of the land's susceptibility 
to inundation by tsunami and flooding, to 
volcanic activity, and landslides; 

(3) It may include lands used for national or 
state parks; 

(4) It shall include lands necessary for the 
conservation, preservation, and enhancement 
of scenic, cultural , historic , or 
archaeologic sites and sites of unique 
physiographic or ecologic significance; 

(5) It shall include lands necessary for 
providing and preserving parklands, 
wilderness and beach reserves , for conservi ng 
natural ecosystems of indigenous or endemic 

. plants, fish , and wildlife , including thos-e 
which are t hreatened or endangered, and for 
forestry and other related activities to 
these uses; 

(6) It shall include lands having an elevation 
below the shoreline as stated by section 
205A-l, HRS, marine waters, fish ponds, and 
tidepools of the State , and accreted portions 
of lands pursuant to sections 501-33 and 669-
1, HRS , unless otherwise designated on the 
land use district maps. All off shor e and 
outlying islands of the State are classified 

19 



conservation unless otherwise designated on 
the land use district maps; 

(7) It shall include lands with topography, 
soils, climate, or other relat ed 
envi ronmental factors that may not be 
normally adaptable or presently needed for 
urban , rural , or agricultural use, except 
when those lands constitute areas not 
contiguous to the conservation district; 

(8) It may include land s with a general slope of 
twenty per cent or more which provide for 
open space amenities or scenic values ; and 

(9) It may include lands suitable for farming, 
flower gardening, operation of nurseries or 
orchards , growing of commercial timber, 
grazing, hunting, and recreational uses 
including faci l ities accessory to those u ses 
when the facilities are compatible with the 
natural physical envi ronment . [Eff 10/27/86; 
am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1, 205-2, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 

§ 1 5-15-21 Standards for determining "R" rural 
district boundaries. Except as otherwise provided in 
this chapter , in determining the boundaries fo r the '' R" 
rural district , the following standards shall apply: 

(1) Areas consisting of small farms ; provided 
that the areas need not be included in this 
district if their inclusion will alter the 
general characteristics of the areas ; 

· (2) Activities or uses as characterized by 
low-density residential lots of not less than 
one-half acre and . a density of not more than 
one single family dwelling per one-half acre 
in areas where " city-like" concentrations of 
p eopl e , structures , streets , and urban 
l evels of services are absent , and where 

.small fa rms are intermixed with the 
low-density res ide ntial lots; and 

(3) It may also include parcels o f land which are 
surrounded by, or contiguous to this 
district , a nd are not suited to low-density 
resid~ntial uses for small farm or 
agricultural uses . [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1 , 205-2 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2 ) 

20 



§ 15-15-22 Interpretation o f dis trict boundaries. 
(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter : 
(1) A district name or letter appearing on the 

land use district map applies throughout the 
whole area bounded by the district boundary 
lines ; 

(2) Land having an elevation below the shoreline 
as stated by section 205A-l , HRS, marine 
waters, fish ponds, and tidepools of the 
State, and accreted portions of lands 
pursuant to sections 501-33 and 669-1, HRS, 
unless otherwise designated on the land use 
district maps , shall be included in t h e 
conservation district; 

(3) All offshore and outlying islands o f the 
State are classified conservation unless 
otherwise designated on the land use district 
maps; and 

(4) All water areas within the State are 
considered to be within a district and 
controlled by the applicable district rules . 

(b) All requests for boundary interpretations 
shall be in writing and include the tax map key 
identification of the property and a print of a map of 
the property . All requests for boundary 
interpretations involving shoreline properties shall be 
accompanied by a survey map showing the locations of 
the shoreline as provided for in section 205A-42 , HRS. 
Any erosion or accreti on through natural processes 
shall be reflected on the map. Further, any shoreline 
structure, piers, a n d areas of man-made fill which were 
constructed or completed since the date of adopt ion of 
the state land use district boundaries existing as of 
the date of the request for boundary interpretation 
shall be reflected on the map. 

(c) The executive officer may request the 
followi ng information: 

(1) Additional copies of the print, including a 
reproducible master map of the print or an 
electronic copy in a recognized format of . the 
executive officer's designation; and 

(2) Additional information such as , but not 
limited to, tax map key maps, topogrqphic 
maps, aerial photographs, certified shoreline 
surveys , and subdivision maps relating to the 
boundary interpretation . 

The executive officer may employ, or require that the 

21 

( 



party r e ques ting the boundary i nterpretation employ , at 
its sole expense , a registered professional land 
surveyor to prepare a map for interpretation . 

(d) The executive officer may use all applicable 
commission records in determining district boundaries. 

(e) The foilowing shall apply whenever 
uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of 
the various districts : 

(1) Whenever a district lin e falls within or 
abuts a street , alley, canql , n avigable or 
non-navigable stream or r i ver , it may be 
deemed to be in the midpoint of the 
foregoing. If the actual location of the 
street~ alley , canal , navigable or 
non-navigable stream or river varies slightly 
from the location as shown on the district 
map, then the actual locati on shall be 
controlling; 

(2) Whenever a district line is s hown as being 
located within a specific distance from a 
street line or other fixed phjsical feature, 
or from an ownership line, this distance 
shall be c o_n trolling ; and 

(3) · Unless otherwise indicated, the district 
lines s hall be determined by the use of the 
scale contained on the map . 

(f) Whenever s ubsections (a) , (b) , (c) , (d) , or 
(e) cannot resolve an uncertainty concerning the 
location of any district l ine , the commission , upon 
written application or upon its own mot ion, shall 
determine the location of those district lines. [Eff 
10/27/86; am a nd comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (I mp : HRS §205-1) 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

PERMISSIBLE LAN D USES 

§15- 15-23 Permissible uses; gene rally . Except as 
otherwise provided in t his c hapter , t he following l and 
and building uses are compatible and permitted within 
the fo l lowing l and use districts , except when 
applicable county ordinances or regulations are more 
restrictive . Except as otherwi se provided in thi s 
chapter , uses not expressly permitted are prohibited . 

22 



[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; ---a-Re comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 

§ 15- 15-24 Permissible uses within the "U" urban 
district . Any and a ll uses permitted by the counties , 
either by ordinances or rules may be allowed within 
this d i strict, subject to any conditions imposed by the 
commission pursuant to section 205-4(g), HRS . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/1 6/97; comp 5/8/00 ; comp 
11/2/201 3 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
2 0 5 - 7 ) (Imp : HRS § 2 0 5-2 ) 

§ 15-15- 2 5 Pe rmissible uses within the "A" 
agricultural distric t. (a) Permissible uses within 
the agricultural d i strict on land with soil classified 
by the land study bureau ' s detailed land classification 
as overall (master) productiv~ty rat ing class A or B 
shall be those uses set forth in section 205-4 . 5, HRS. 

(b) Permissible uses within the agricultural 
d i strict on land with soil classified by the land study 
bureau ' s detailed land classification as overall 
(master) productivity rating class of C, D, E , and U 
shall be those uses as set forth in sections 205-2, 
205-4 . 5, and 205-5 , HRS, and also uses compatible to 
the activities described in 205-2(d), HRS . . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11 /2/20 1 3; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-2, 205-4 . 5) 

§ 15- 15-2 6 Permissible uses within the "C" 
conservation district. Uses of land within a 
conservation district shall be governed by the rules of 
the state department of land ·and natural resources, 
tit l e 13, and chapter 183C, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; comp 11 /2/2013 ; comp 
...,,..,,...~ ----=-- - --] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§205- 2) 

§ 15- 15-27 Permissible uses within the "R" rural 
district. (a) Permissible uses within the rural 
district shall include the followi ng activities : 

(1) All agricultural related activities and uses 

23 



permitted under ~ection 15-15-25; 
(2) Low-density residential lots of not more than 

one dwelling house per one-half acre , except 
as provided by county ordinance p ursuant to 
section 46-4(c), HRS ; 

(3) Golf courses and golf driving ranges and 
golf-related facilities ; 

(4) Public , quasi-public and public utility 
facilit i es ; and 

(5) The commission for good cause may allow one 
lot of less t han one-half acre, but not 
less than 18 ,500 square feet , or an 
equivalent residential density , provided all 
other lots in the subdivision have the 
minimum l ot size of one-half acre . A 
petition for variance may be processed under 
the special permit procedure pursuant to 
subchapter 12 . This exception shall apply to 
lots of record existing prior to January 1, 
1977, and of not more than two acres. There 
shal l be no . more than one single-family 
dwelling per one-half acre, except as may be 
provided for in this section. [Eff 10/27/86; 
am and comp 8/1 6/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am 
and arn and comp 11 /2/2013; comp 
] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§205-2) 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

NONCONFORMANCE 

§ 15-15-28 Statement of intent. This subchapter 
is intended to expedite the eventual elimination of 
existing uses or structures that are not in conformity 
with the provisions of subchapter 3 because their 
continued existence violates basic concepts of health , 
safety, and welfare as well as pri nciples of good land 
use. However, in applying subchapter 3 , no elimination 
of nonconforming uses or structures shall be effected 
so as to cause unreasonable interference with 
established property rights . [Eff 10/27 /86; comp 
8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp:-----,.....,....,,--~ --
HRS §205- 8) 

24 



§ 15 - 15-2 9 Nonconforming uses . (a) Any lawful 
use of l a nds or buildings existing prior to the 
establishment of a land use district, may be continued 
even though those uses d o not conform to the provisions 
thereof . 

(b) Except as otherwise provided, the following 
provi sions shall apply to nonconforming uses or 
structures withi n any d i s t rict : 

(1) It shall not be changed to another 
nonconforming use or structu re ; 

(2) It shall not be expanded or increased i n 
i n tens i t y of ·u se ; and 

(3) It shall not be reestablished after 
discontinuance and abandonment for a 
continuous period of one year . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7)
-,--- - ----= 
(Imp : HRS §205-8) 

§ 15- 15-30 Nonconformi ng areas and parcel s. A lot 
of recor d or any proposed subdivision of land which is 
not in conformi ty with t his subchapter, b ut which has 
received approval by the county havi ng j u risdiction 
prior to the e s tablishment of the land use district , 
shall be permitted as a nonconf orming area subject to 
the ordi nances a nd rules of the coun ty . All lots 
within the nonconforming area shall be considered 
non con forming parcel s . [Eff 10/27/86; am and , 
comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7 ) (Imp : HRS 
-=§-=-o 5- =-c-- -2 -=-=-- 8 ) - -

§15 -15-31 Casual or illegal use of land. A 
casual, intermittent, temporary, or illegal use of 
l a nds or buildings shall not be s ufficient to establish 
the e x istence of a nonconforming use. [Eff 10/27 /86 ; 
comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; - comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS ---=-...,,...,.,--,,-,-- - --
§205-8) 

§ 15-15-32 Existence of n on conformin g use is a 

25 



question of fact . Whether a nonconforming use exists 
s hall be a questi on of fact and s hall be decided by the 
board, commission, or agency having jurisdiction over 
u ses within t he district . [Eff 10/27/86 ; am and 
comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth: HRS .§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS -=-=-=-=,...---,,....,..---- -
§205-8) 

§15- 15- 33 Illegal uses. An illegal use of lands 
or buildings shall not be validated by the adoption of 
this chapter . [Eff 10/27 /8 6 ; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 
5/8/00 ; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1, 205-7) ( Imp : HRS §205-8) 

SUBCHAPTER 5 

PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE COMMISSION 

§ 15-15-34 Quasi- judicial proceedings; waiver o r 
suspension of rul es. (a) The intent and purpose of 
chapter 205, HRS , is to establish quasi- judicial 
procedures whi ch wou ld ensure the effective application 
of established state land use policies through an 
adversarial process i n a heari ng in which diverse 
i nterests will have an opportunity to present their 
views in an open and orderly manner. Accordingly , the 
commission expects all persons and partie·s to comply 
with this subchapter and chapter 91 , HRS, so that the 
commission will have a full and complete record upon 
which it can render its decision. 

(b) Unless contrary to statute , the commission 
may waive or suspend any rule when the commission 
determines that : (1) good cau se exists for such 
waiver; and (2) strict enforcement of such procedural 
rule would impose a manifest injustice upon a party or 
person who has substantially complied with the 
commission ' s rules in good faith . No rule relating to 
jurisdictional matters shall be waived or suspended b y 
the commission . [Eff 10/27/86 ; am and comp 8/16/97; am 
and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
___ _ _ _ __] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: 
HRS §91-3) 

26 



§ 15-15- 34 . 1 Verbatim transcripts. Verbatim 
tran script s of hearings and other proceedi ngs before 
the commission pursuant to chapter 91, HRS, shall be 
made and kept by. the commission. [Eff and comp 
11 /2/20 1 3 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-9) 

§ 15- 15-35 Appeara nc e before the commission. (a) 
Any party to a proceeding before the commission may 
appear on the party ' s own behalf . A partnership, 
corporation, trust , or association, or other legal 
entity, may be represented by a duly authorized agent . 
- An officer or employee of a department or agency of 
the State or a political subdi vision may represent that 
department or agency in any proceeding before the 
commission . . 

(b) A party may be repres~nted by a n attorney . 
Th e attorney who appears before the . commission shall be 
a member in good standing of the Hawai'i state bar . A 
member of the bar of another jurisdiction may appear by 
motion or by association with a member in good standing 
of the Hawai'i stat e bar . All pleadings and documents 
shall be served on the member of the Hawai 'i state bar . 

(c) The United States or any of its agencies may 
be represented by an employee of the agency or any 
attorney who is a member in good standin g of the bar of 
any state and who is employed as an attorney by the 
United States or one of its agencies . 

(d) Any person who signs a pleading or brief, 
enters an appearance at a hearing, or transacts 
business with the commission, by such an act represents 
that the person i s legally authorized to do so and 
shall comply with the laws of this State and the 
several counties , and the rules of the commission. 
Further , the person shall maintain the respect due to 
the commission , and shall never deceive or knowingly 
p r esent any false statements of fact or law to the 
commission . The commission at any time may require any 
person appearing before the commission in a 
representative capacity to prove the person ' s authority 
and qualification to act in that capacity . 

(e) All former employees of the State, as that 
term is defined in section 84-3, HRS , shal l comply with 
the provisions of chapter 84 , HRS , standards of 
conduct, prior to making an appearance in a 
representative capacity before the commission. [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am 
and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS 

27 · 



- - - --- --

§§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS § 91-2) 

§ 15 - 15-3 6 Dec isions and o r o e rs. (a) All 
decisions and orders for boundary amendment and special 
permit applications s hall be s i gned by the chairperson 
or presiding officer (b) Unless otherwise indicated i n 
the order , the effective date of a decision a nd otder 
shall be the date it is filed by the chief clerk . 

(c) Official copies of decisions and orders and 
other commission actions shall be effectuate d under the 
signa t ure of the chairperson, executive officer , or by 
t h e chief clerk . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp -G-±-3+ 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: HRS 
§91-12) 

. § 15 - 15-37 Filing do cume nts ; place and time . All 
pleadings , briefs , submittals , petitions , reports, 
maps, exceptions, memoranda , and other legal papers 
required or permitted to be fi l ed with the commission 
in any proceeding shall be filed at the office of the 
commission before or on the date prescribed by s t atute, 
rules , or order of the commiss i on . Unless otherwise 
ordered and except as provided by section 15-15-50, the 
date on which the origi nal papers are filed by or at 
the direction of the chief clerk shall be regarded as 
the date of filing. The commis$ion will not accept a 
facsimile or electronic copy of any document for fili ng 
purposes unl e ss oth e rwise permitted by the execut ive 
officer . [Eff 10/27/86; am 3/24/94; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; ·am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§§91- 2 , 205-4; SLH 1992, Act 227 , §1) 

§15- 15- 38 Format . (a) All documents exceeding 
seventy five pages s hall be p laced in three-ring 
binders or equivalent (prongs and rubber bands are not 
acceptable) and be printed upon white paper 8-1/2 x 11 
inches in size . Twelve point font or larger shall be 
used . Tables, maps, chart s , exhibits , or appendi ces 
may be l arger and shal l be folded to t hat s i ze where 
practical and tabbed . All pleadings shal l be printed 
and shall be one a n d a half spaced or greater, e x cept 
that footnotes and quotat i ons in excess of a few lines 

28 



may be s ingle-spaced . Reproduction may be by any 
process, provided all copies are clear and permanently 
l egible . El ectronic copies shall be similarly formatted 
and bookmarked . 

(b) All pleadings shall show the title of the 
proceeding before the commission and the case docket 
number assigned by the chief clerk and shall show the 
name , address , and telephone number of the person or 
attorney . 

(c) The original of each pleading shall be signed 
b y each party or the party ' s attorney . If the party is 
a corporation, association; partnership, or other legal 
entity, the pleading may be signed by an officer or 
partner thereof or other authorized person . The t i t l e 
and name of the person signing shall be typed below the 
s ignature . 

(d) In addition to the paper ori ginals and one 
p aper copy , the parties shall also submit documents and 
pleadings in electronic format , as directed b y the 
e xecutive officer . However, the filing date shall be 
the date the paper ori~inal is filed in the office of 
t h e commission . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00; a m and comp 1 1 /2/201 3 ; c omp 
- (Aut h: HRS §§205-1, 2 05-7) ( Imp : HRS §91-2) 

§ 15- 15- 39 Verification. (a) Petitions, 
amendments thereto , and other pleadings which initiate 
a proceeding, and amendments thereto shall be verified 
by at l east one of the persons or officers or o t her 
authorized signatory of the party fi ling t he same . 

(b) If the party filing the pleading is a 
c orporat ion, a s soci ation , partnership , or other legal 
entity, the pleading may be verified by an off icer or 
partner thereof or other authorized person . Evidence 
q f such authorization shall be provided . 

(c) The attorney for a party may sign and verify 
a pleading if the party is absent , or for some ~ause 
unable to sign and verify the pleading . [Eff 10/27 /86 ; 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7 ) (Imp: HRS 
--=-=c-:----,.-,- - - --
§91- 2) 

§ 15- 15-40 Copi es. Unless otherwise required by 
this subchapter or the commission , all parties shall 
file with the commission a paper original , one paper 
copy a nd one electronic copy of each pleading or 

29 



amendment thereof . Additional copies s hall be promptly 
provi ded if the chairperson or the executive officer so 
requests . The commission, by order , may modify the 
number or format of copies required under this section . 

[Eff 10/27/86; 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS ....,,...,,-,--=--,---- ---
§91- 2) 

§ 15-15-41 Defective or nonconforming doc uments. 
(a) The mere fact that a document has been filed or 
been deemed a proper filing by the executive officer 
pursuant to section 15-15-50 (d)and (e) shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any failure to comply with this 
subchapter. Except as provided in subsection (b) , if a 
document filed in a proceeding governed by this chapter 
is defecti ve, not in substantial conformity with the 
applicable rules of the commission, or is otherwise 
insufficient, the commission may on its own motion or 
on the motion of any party, strike or dismiss such 
document or require its amendment . If amended , the 
document shall be effective as of the date the amended 
or corrected document is deemed a proper filing by the 
executive officer . 

(b) Notwi thstanding the provisions of sections 
15-15-50(e), 15-15-50(f) , and 15-15-50 . 5 , the 
commission may, on its own motion , or on motion by any 
of the parties a ddressing alleged deficiencies of the 
pet ition, dismiss defective or nonconforming petitions 
with or without prejudice . If the petition is 
determined by the commission to be defective or 
nonconforming, the date of proper filing shall be· the 
date the commission determines that the defects are 
cured . If the defects are jurisdictional , including, 
without limitation, failure.to satisfy t he requirements 
of section 15-15-50(c) (5) , the commission shall dismiss 
the petition without prejudice . [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
______ __] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§91-2) 

§ 15- 15-42 Extensions of time. (a) Whenever a 
party is required to file a pleading within a period 
prescribed or allowed by these rules by notice given 
thereunder , or by an order , the chairperson, presiding 
officer, or the executive officer may : 

30 

http:failure.to


-------- -

(1) For good cause shown , with or without notice 
or hearing, exte nd such period if written 
request therefor is made before the 
expiration of the p e riod originally 
prescribed or as extended by a previous 
order; 

(2) Pursuant to a stipulation between all of the 
part ies , without notice or hearing, extend 
the_period; or · 

(3) Upon motion after t he expiration of the 
specified period, permi t the act to be done 
where the failure to act i s c l early shown to 
b e the result of excusable neglect ; but may 
not extend the time fo r taking any action on 
j urisdictional matters. 

(b) Extensions of time t o file any pleading or 
other document r equired by a decision and order of the 
commission must be requested more than fourteen days 
p rior to t he next sche duled hearing date on t he matter . 

Thi s section s hall not apply to extensions of t i me 
affecting .jur i sdictional matters [Eff 10/27/86; a m and 
comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

- ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 2 05-7 ) (Imp: 
HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-43 Amended pleadings. All pleadings may 
be amended at any t ime until forty-five days prior to 
the hearing date set pursuant to sect ion 15-15- 51 . 
Amendments offered prior to the hearing date shall be 
served on all parties and filed with the commission . 
All partie's· shall have the opportunity to provide any 
further response to address the amended pleading up to 
thirty days prior to the hearing date set pursuant to 
section 15- l5- 51 . No amended pleadings shall be filed 
after forty-five days prior to the date of the hearing 
and no responses shall be filed after thirty days prior 
to the hearing date , unless a stipulation is reached by 
all parties , or good cause is shown and approval of the 
chai rp~rson , presiding officer , or the chairperson ' s 
designee is obtained . [Eff 10/27 /8 6 ; a m and comp 
8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; --a-R-€l comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

~ 
] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7 , SLH 1995 ,

----c=-::--=-- ,----,--
A ct 235, §2) (Imp: HRS §§91-2 , 205-1, 205-7) 

§ 15-15-44 Retention of documents. The commission 
shall retain all documents filed with or presented to 

31 



the commission i n the files of the commission . 
However, the chai rperson- or presi ding officer may 
permit a party to withdraw original documents submitted 
by a party upon submission of properly authenticated 
copies to replace the original documents. The party 
shall not withdraw the original documents until it has 
submitted the authenticated copi es and it has given to 
the chief clerk a recei pt , specifyi ng the date and 
identifying the original documents withdrawn . [Eff 
10/27/86 ; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-2) 

§ 15- 15-45 Se rvice of proce ss . (a) The 
commission shall cause to be served all orders, 
notices, and other papers i ssued by it, together with 
any other papers that it is required by law to serve . 
All othe r papers shall be served by the parties filing 
them . 

(b) All papers served by either the commission or 
any party s hall be filed and served upon all parties or 
their attorney and shall contain a certificate of 
service. Any attorney entering an appearance 
subsequent to the proceeding shall notify all other 
attorneys then of record and .all parties not 
represented by an attorney of that fact. 

(c) The final decision and order, and any other 
paper required to be served by the commissi on upon a 
party, shall be served upon the party ' s attorney of 
record or in the absence of an attorney, upon the 
party . 

(d) Service of papers other than the notice of 
hearing and the final deci sion and order, shall be made 
personally or , unless otherwise provided by law, by 
first class mail . Notice of hearing shall be served as 
provided in section 15-15-51 , and the final deci sion 
and order shall be served by certified mail . 

(e) Service upon parties, other than the 
commission, shall be regarded as complete upon the 
occurrence of at least one of the following : (1) t he 
part y or its attorney is personally served ; (2) t he 
document is delivered to the party ' s office or i t s 
attorney ' s office and left with some responsible 
person ; or (3) the document is properly stamped, 
addressed and mailed by first class mail to the last 
known address of the party on file with t he commission 
or to the party ' s attorney. 

(f) Whenever a party has the right to do some act 

32 



or take some proceedings within a prescribed period 
after the service of a notice or other paper upon the 
person, and the notice or paper is served by mail , two 
days shall b e added to the prescribed period . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am 
and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 

§15-15-45 .1 Fees . (a) Unless otherwise provided 
herein, a motion for incremental districting approval, 
motion for amendment to a decision and order, requested 
rule making, a motion to release conditions, a motion 
for declaratory order, a motion for special permit, or 
a motion to amend a special permit , a motion for order 
to show cause, or motion for important agricultural 
land designation, by any person other than a state or 
county department or agency shall be accompanied by a 
filing fee by cashier ' s check, for $1 , 000, made payable 
to the State of Hawai 'i . State or county departments 
or agencies that s ubmi t such petitions, motions , or 
applications shall not be subject to the filing fee. 
Such petition, motion, or application filed jointly by 
a state or county department or agency and a person who 
is not a · state or county department or agency shall be 
subject to the filing f e e . 

(b) A petition for an amendment to a district 
boundary filed by any person other than a state or 
county department or agency shall be accompanie·d by a 
filing fee by cashier ' s check for $5,000, made p ayable· 
to the State of Hawai 'i . State or county departments 
or agencies that submit a petition for amendment to a 
district boundary shal l not be subject to the filing 
fee . A petition for an amendment to a district 
boundary filed jointly by a state or county department 
or agency and a person who is not a state or county 
department or agency shall be subject to the filing 
fee. 

(c) A petition for intervention in any proceeding 
filed by any person other than a state or county 
department or agency shall be accompanied by a filing 
fee by cashier ' s check in the amount of $50, made 
payable to the State of Hawai'i . State or county 
departments or agencies that submit such petitions for 
intervention shall not be subject to the f iling fee . 

(d) Except as otherwise provided by law, a copy 
of any public document or government record, including 
any map, plan diagram, photograph, or photostat, which 
i s open to inspection by the public shall be furnished 

33 



to any person requesting the same by the executive 
officer having charge or control thereof upon the 
payment of the reasonable cost of reproducing such 
copy, which amount shall not be less than 12 cents per 
page, sheet, or fraction thereof . In addition, the 
requestor shall be responsible to pay for labor costs 
for searching, reviewing, and segregating, and actual 
time for reproducing, and material costs, including 
electricity cost, equipment cost including rental cost, 
cost for certification, and other related costs of 
providing the requested public document or government 
record . 

(e) The petitioner, movant, or applicant for any 
petition, motion, or application shall, unless 
otherwise ordered by the commission, reimburse the 
commission for or pay at the direction of the 
commission any expenses related to the publication of 
any required hearing notice, expenses of court reporter 
services, expenses of the hearing room, expenses for 
audio/visual services and equipment, and any other 
hearing-related expenses. 

(f) After notice and opportunity to be heard, the 
commission may also assess any party to any proceeding 
before the commission a reasonable fee or require 
reimbursements for hearing expenses as determined by 
the commission, including without limitation, expenses 
of court reporter , hearing room, and expenses for 
audio/visual services and equipment . 

(g) The commission may assess a reasonable fee or 
require reimbursements to be made for inexcusable 
absence of a P,arty from a contested case proceeding. 
The assessment may include, but not be limited to, such 
costs for airfare, room rental fees, and publication 
fees. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; am and comp 

(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4 . 1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS 
§§91-2, 92-21, 205-4 . 1) 

§ 15-15-45 . 2 Fees n onrefundable. The fees set 
forth in this chapter shall be nonrefundable . [Eff and 
comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§§205-1, 205-4.1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 92-21, 205-
4 . 1) 

SUBCHAPTER 6 

34 



APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR BOUNDARY 
AMENDMENT PETITIONS 

§15-15-46 Standing to initiate boundary 
amendments. The following persons may initiate a 
petition to the commi ssion for district boundary 
amendment : 

(1) State departments or agencies; 
(2) County departments or agencies of the county 

in which the property is situated; or 
(3) Any person with a property interest in the 

property sought to be reclassified . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; 
comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : 

HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7) (Imp: HRS §§205-3.1 , 
205-4) 

§ 15-15-47 Filing. The petitioner shall file one 
original , and one paper copy and one electronic copy of 
a petition for boundary amendment and all supporting 
documents and exhibits , with the commission . Additional 
copies shall be promptly provided if the chairperson or 
the executive officer so requests. The number and 
format of copies required under this section may be 
modified by order of the commission . [Eff 10/27 /8 6; am 
and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2 013 ; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §§2·05-1 , 205-7) (Imp : 

HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§ 15-15-48 Service of petition. (a) At the time 
the petition is filed with the commission, the 
petitioner shall serve copies o f the petition and all 
supporting documents upon: 

(1) the county planning department and planning 
commission of the county within which the 
subject land is situated, 

(2) the appropriate island planning commission, 
(3) the state office of planning, and 
(4) all persons with a property interest in the 

subject property as recorded in the county's 
real property tax records at the time the 
petition is filed . 

(b) The petitioner shall serve copies of the 
petition upon any potential intervenor upon receipt of 
a notice of intent to intervene pursuant to section 15-
15-52 (b) . 

35 



(c) Copies of all documents filed by petitioner 
after filing of the petition shall be served upon the 
county planning department and the state office of 
planning at the same time the document is fi l ed with 
the commission . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 
205-4) 

§ 15-15-49 REPEALED . [*R--R 11/2 /2013) 

§ 15-15-50 Form and contents of petition. (a) 
The form of the petition for boundary amendment shall 
conform to the requirements of subchapters 5 and 6 . 
All petitions shall: 

(1) State clearly and concisely the authorization 
or re l ief sought; and 

(2) Cite by appropriate reference the statutory 
provision or other authority under which 
commission authorization or relief is sought . 

(b) For petitions to reclassify propert ies from 
the conservation district to any other district, the 
petition shall not be deemed a proper fi l ing unless an 
approved environmental impact statement or f inding of 
no significant impact is approved or accepted by the 
commission for the p'roposed boundary amendment request . 

Such approved or accepted environmental impact 
statement or finding of no significant impact shall be 
filed with and be part of the petition for boundary 
amendment . Notwithstanding any rule to the contrary, 
the processes provided by subsections (e) and (f) shall 
not commence until this subsection is satisfied . 

(c) The following information shall also be 
provided in each petition for boundary amendment : 

(1) The exact legal name of each petitioner and 
the location of the principal place of 
business and if an applicant is a 
corporation, trust, or association , or other 
legal entit y , the state in which the 
petitioner was organized or incorporated ; 

(2) The n ame , title , and address of the person to 
whom correspondence or communications in 
regard to the petition are to be addressed; 

(3) Description of the subject property, acreage , 
and tax map key number, with maps, including 
t he tax map , that identify the area stated in 

36 



(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

the petition . If the subject property is a 
portion of one or more tax map key parcels, 
or the petition proposes incremental 
development of the subject property on both 
increments of development, the petitioner 
shall include a map and description of the 
subject property and each increment in metes 
and bounds prepared by a registered 
professional land surveyor ; 
The boundary amendment sought and present use 
of the property , including an assessment of 
conformity of the boundary amendment to the 
standards for determining the requested 
district boundary amendment ; 
The petitioner ' s property i nterest i n the 
subject property . The petitioner shall 

·attach as exhibits to the petition the 
following : 
(A) A true copy of the deed, lease, option 

agreement, development agreement , or 
other document conveying to the 
petitioner a property interest in the 
subject property or a certified copy of 
a nonappealable final judgment of a 
court of competent jurisdiction quieting 
title in the petitioner; 

(B) If the petitioner is not the owner in 
fee simple of the subject property, or 
any part thereof, written authorization 
of all fee owners to file the petition 
and a true copy of the deed to the 
subject property; and 

(C) An affidavit of the petitioner or its 
agent attesting to its compliance with 
section 15-15-48 ; 

A description of any easements on the subject 
property, together with iden tification of the 
owners of the easements ; a description of any 
other ownership interests shown on the tax 
maps . 
Type of use or development being proposed , 
including wi thout limitation , a descri ption 
of any planned development, residential, golf 
course, open space, resort, commercial, or 
i ndustrial use; 
A statement of projected number of lots, lot 
size, number of units, densities, selling 
price , intended market , and development 
t _imetables ; 
A statement describing the financial 

37 
I 



condition together with a current certified 
balance sheet and i ncome statement as of the 
end of the last calendar year, or if the 
petitioner is on a fiscal year basis, as of 
the end of the petitioner's last fiscal year, 
a nd a clear description of the manner in 
which the petitioner proposes to finance the 
proposed use or development . If such 
informati on i s protected from disclosure 
under chapter 92F, HRS, the petitioner may 
request a protective order to protect t he 
confidentiality of the information pursuant 
to section 15-15-70 . 1. A petitioner which is 
a state or county department or agency, shall 
be e x empt from this requirement; 

--~(~1-0 (10) -1-Description of the subject property 
and 
surrounding areas including the use of the 
property over the past two years, the present\ 
use, the soil classification, the 
agricultural lands of importance to the State 
of Hawai 'i ' classification (ALISH), the 
Land Study Bureau productivity rating, the 
flood and drainage conditions, and the 
topography of the subject property; 

(11) (1 1 ) - An assessment of the impacts of the 
proposed use or development upon the 
environment , agriculture; recreational, 
cultural, historic, scenic, flora and fauna, 
groundwater, or other resources of the area. 
If required by chapter 343, HRS, e ither a 
finding of no significant impact after review 
of an environmental assessment or an 
environmental impact statement conforming to 
the requirements of c hapter 343, HRS, must be 
filed; 

(12) ----+(~1~2Y)- Availability or adequacy of public
------'--"'---

services and facilities such as schools, 
parks, wastewater systems, solid waste 
disposal, drainage, water, transport ation 
systems, public utilities, police and fire 
protection, civil defense, emergency medical 
service and medical facilities , and to what 
extent any public agency would be impacted by 
the proposed development or boundary 
amendment ; 

(1 3 ) ---~( +143+)- Location of the proposed use or 
------'---'---

development in relation to adjacent land use 
districts and a ny centers of trading and 
employment ; 

38 



( 1 4) (14 ) Economic impacts of the proposed 
boundary amendment , use, or development 
i ncluding, wi thout limitation, the provision 
of any impact on employment opportunities, 
and the potential impact to agricultural 
production in the vicinity of the subject 
property, and in the county and State ; 

(1 5) (15) A description of the manner in 
which the petitioner addresses the housing 
needs of low income, low-moderate income, and 
gap groups; 

(16 ) (16) An assessment of need for the 
boundary amendment based upon the 
relationship between the use or development 
proposed and other projects existing or 
proposed for the area and consideration of 
other similarly designated land in the area; 

(17) (17 ) An assessment of conformity of the 
boundary amendment to applicable goals, 
objectives, and policies of the Hawai'i state 
plan, chapter 226, HRS, and applicable 
priority g uidelines and functional plan 
policies; 

(1 8 ) (18) An assessment of the conformity of 
the boundary amendment to objectives and 
policies of the coastal zone management 
program, chapter 205A, HRS; 

(1 9 ) (19) An assessment of conformity of the 
boundary amendment to the applicable county 
general plans, development or community 
plans, zoning designations and policies, and 
proposed amendments required; 

(20) (20) Petitioners submitting petitions 
for boundary amendment to the urban district 
shall also represent that development of the 
subject property in accordance with the 
demonstrated need therefor will be 
accomplished before ten years after the date 
of commission approval . In the event full 
urban development cannot substantially be 
completed within such period, the petitioner 
shall also submit a schedule f or devel opment 
of the total of such project in increments 
together with a map identifying the location 
of each increment, each such increment to be 
completed within no more than a ten- year 
period; 

(2 1) (21) A [statement]written disclosure and 
analysis addressing Hawaiian customary ~nd 
traditional rights under Article XII, section 

39 



7 of the Hawai 'i State Constitution ; 
(22 ) (2 2) Any written comments received by 

the petitioner from governmental and non
governmental agencies , organizations, or 
individuals in regards to the proposed 
b oundary amendment ; [-a-R€1:] 

(23) (23) A copy of the notification of 
petition filing pursuant to subsection 
(d)[--,-]; 

(2 4 ) (24) A statement and analysis pursuant 
to section 226-109, HRS, addressing climate 
change related threats to the proposed 
development and proposed mitigation measures . 

The statement and analysis shall address, 
but not be limited to , the following issues : 

(A) The impacts of sea level rise on the 
proposed development; 

(B) Infrastructure adaptations to 
address the impacts of climate change 
including sewer, water and roadway 
improvements; 

(C) The overall carbon footprint of the 
proposed development and any mitigation 
measures or carbon footprint reductions 
proposed; and 

(D) The location of the proposed 
development and the threats imposed to the 
proposed development by sea l evel rise, based 
on the maps and information contained in the 
Hawaii Sea Level Rise Vulnerability 
Adaptation report and the proposed mitigation 
measures taken to address those impacts . 

(25) (25) A statement and analysis addressing 
the proposed development ' s adherence to 
sustainability principles and priority 
guidelines and climate change issues as 
contained in section 226-108 , HRS , the 
Hawai ' i State Plan (Sustainability) , and 
smart growth principles, including, but not 
limited to : 

(A) Walkability; 
(B) Accessibility to alternate forms of 

transportation; 
(C) Transit oriented deve l opment 

opportunities; 
(D) Green infrastructure, including 

water recharge and reuse and water recycling; 
(E) Mitigation of heat island effects; 

(F) Urban a ricultural o ortunities . 

40 



(d) The petit i oner shall send a notification of 
petition filing to persons included on a mailing list 
provided by the chief clerk . The notification of 
petition f i ling shall be in a form as prescribed by the 
executive officer, and shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following information: 

(1) Petiti oner ' s name and mailing address; 
(2) Landowner 's name; · 
(3) Tax map key identification of the property 

requested for boundary amendment; 
(4) Location of the property ; 
(5) Requested boundary amendment and approximate 

acreage; 
(6) Proposed use of the property; 
(7) A statement that detai led information on the 

petition may be obtained by reviewing the 
petition and maps on file at the office of 
the commission or the respective county 
planning department or at the commission's 
website; 

(8) A statement that informs potential 
intervenors on the mailing list provided by 
the commission that they may file a notice of 
intent to intervene with the commission 
within thirty days of the date of t he 
notification of petition filing pursuant to 
section 15-15-52(b); 

(9) A statement that informs the general public 
to contact the office of the commission for 
information on participating in the hearing; 
and 

(1 0 ) (1 0 ) A location map depicting the 
petition area. 

The notificati on of petition filing shall be sent 
to all persons on th~ mailing list on the same day .that 
the petition is filed with the commission . The 
petitioner shall submit to the commission an affidavit 
that the petitioner has sent the notification of 
petition filing pursuant to this subsection . 

(e) The executive officer shall receive and 
complete a review of the petition for completeness 
within thirty days of the filing of the petition . The 
provisions herein, however, are subject to the 
requirements of subsection (b) on petitions for 
reclassification of conservation district lands. 

(f) Upon completion of the review pursuant to 
subsection (e), the executive officer shall determine 
whether the petition is a proper filing and is accepted 
for processing. The petition shall be deemed a proper 
filing if the items required in subsections (a), (b), 

41 



(c), and (d) have been submitted. The petition may be 
deemed defective by the executive officer if any of the 
items required in subsections (a), (b), (c), or (d) 
have not been submitted. If the petition is deemed 
defective, the executive officer shall notify the 
petitioner of the determination and the reasons for the 
determination . The petition may· be deemed as a proper 
fil ing upon review of the additional information 
submitted and upon determination by the executive 
officer, and the date the petition will be deemed a 
proper filing will be the date the executive officer 
determines the defects have been cured . The executive 
officer will file'a notice of proper filing and mail 
the notice to the petitioner, the State office of. 
planning~ the county planning agency, and to persons 
who have filed a notice of intent to intervene . The 
executive officer 's determination is subject to review 
in accordance with section 15-15-41 . Th e provisions 
herein , however , are subject to the requirements of 
section 15-15-50(b) on petitions for boundary amendment 
of conservation district lands. 

(g) rhe petitioner has a continuing obligation to 
update the information submitted in the petition prior 
to and during the pendency of the hearing on the 
petiti on . [Eff 10/27/86; am 3/24/94; am and comp 
8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; am 
and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4 , 205-
7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§15-15-50.5 Dismissal of petition for failure 
to provide additional information or correct defects . 
Where the executive officer, pursuant to section 15-15-
50(f), has determined that a petition is defective or 
nonconforming and the petitioner has not provided 
a dditional information or c ured any defects within nine 
(9) months after the date of issuance of the notice 
that the petition is .defective, the executive officer 
shall notify the petitioner in writing that the 
petition is dismissed for want of prosecution unless 
objections thereto , showing good cause with specifi c

1 

reasons, are filed within ten days after the date of 
such notification . If objections are not filed within 
said ten-day period, the executive officer shall file 
an order of dismissal with or without prejudice. If 
objections are filed within said ten-day period, the 
commission shall hear t he objections upon notice and 
determine whether the pet ition should be dismissed. 
[Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : 

42 



HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) 

§15-15-50 . 6 Withdrawal or amendment of 
petition. (a) The petitioner may withdraw or amend the 
petition without prejudice : (1) at any time before a 
petition for district boundary amendment is deemed a 
proper filing or, (2) any time after a petition for 
district boundary amendment has been deemed a proper 
filing but b efore it has been set for hearing; provided 
that if substantive amendments are made, the filing 
date for the petition shall be the date the amended 
petition is deemed a proper filing , and petitioner must 
send a notification of filing of the amended petition 
in conformance with the requirements of section 15-15-
50 (d) . . 

(b) If a petition for district boundary amendment 
has been set for heari ng, the petition may be withdrawn 
only upon the commission 1 s granting of a motion for 
withdrawal filed by the petitioner . In the event the 
commission grants a motion to withdraw, the petitioner 
may not refile the petition within one year after the 
grant i ng of the motion'·for withdrawal . 

(c) If a petition for district boundary amendment 
has been set for hearing, the petition may be amended 
only in compliance with the requirements of section 15-
15-43. [Eff and comp 1 1/2/201 3 ; comp l 

(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) 

SUBCHAPTER 7 

AGENCY HEARING AND POST HEARING PROCEDURES 

§ 15-15-51 Notice of hearing for boundary 
amendment petitions. (a) Not less than sixt y days and 
not more than one hundred eighty days after t he proper 
filing of a petition for boundary amendment, a h earing 
shall be conducted by the commission or a hearings 
officer on the island in which t he subject property is 
situated . 

(b) The notice of hearing shall be served on t he 
office of planni ng , the planning commission and the 
planning department of t he county in which the subject 
property is situated, the appropriate planning 
commission of the island on which the subject property 

43 



is situated, all persons with a property interest in 
the subject property that is recorded in the county's 
real property tax records at the time the petition is 
submitted, all persons with an easement over, on, upon 
or through the subject property, and all persons who 
appear on the county tax map to have a n interest in the 
subject property . In addition, notice of the hearing 
shall be mailed to all peisons who have ~ade a timely 
written request for advance notice of bo'undary 
amendment proceedings . 

(c) The notice of hearing for a boundary 
amendment shall be published at least once in the 
county in which the la.nd sought to be redistricted is 
situated as well as once statewide at least thirty days 
in advance of the hearing. The notice of hearing shall 
also be filed with the lieutenant governor's office at 
least six calendar days before the hearing. 

(d) The notice of hearing of a boundary amendment 
shall include : 

(1) The date, time , place, and nature of the 
hearing; 

(2) The legal authority under which the hearing 
is to be held; 

(3) The particular sections of the statutes and 
rules involved; 

(4) An explicit statement in plain language of 
the issues involved; 

(5) The fact t hat parties may retain an attorney 
if they so desire and the fact that an 
individual may appear on the ·individual's own 
behalf, or a member of a partnership may 
represent the partnership, or an officer or 
authorized employee of a corporation, trust, 
or other legal entity may represent the 
corporation, trust, or other legal entity; 

(6) Where the map of the subject property or 
petition may be inspected; and 

(7) The rights of interested persons under 
section 205-4(e), HRS . 

(e) The hearing may be continued or reopened by 
the commission when necessary, provided that notice is 
given pursuant to section 92-7, HRS, a nd the continued 
or re-opened hearing shall not extend beyond three 
hundred sixty~five days from t he date the petition is 
deemed properly filed , unless an extension of time is 
requested by motion by any party, by stipulation , or by 
the commission on its own motion, so long as the 
commission votes affirmatively on the motion or 
stipulation by a two-thirds vote o f the membership .of 
the commission . The extension of time shall not exceed 

44 



ninety days beyond three hundred sixty-five days from 
the date the petition is deemed properly filed . 
[Effl0/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; 
am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : 
- HRS §§205-1, 205- 4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§1-28 . 5, 91-
9, 92-7, 92-41, 205-4) 

§ 15-15-52 Intervention in proceeding for district 
boundary amendments, except proceedings pursuant to 
chapter 201H, HRS. (a) The petitioner , the state 
office of planning, and the planning department of the 
county within which the subject land is situated shall 
appear in every case as parties, and make 
recommendations relative to the proposed boundary 
amendment . 

(b) Within thirty days .of the date of the 
notification of petition filing pursuant to section 15-
15-50(d), persons who intend to intervene may file a 
notice of intent to intervene with the commission . The 
notice of intent to intervene shall provide, but not be 
limited to , the following information : 

(1) The person ' s name and mailing address; and 
(2) The nature and extent of the person ' s 

interest in the petition . 
The notice of intent to intervene shall be served upon 
the petitioner, the state office of planning, and the 
respective county planning department . Upon receipt of 
a notice of intent to intervene, the petitioner shall 
serve a copy of the petition fi l ed with the chief clerk 
upon the potential intervenor . All persons who wish to 
formally intervene shall comply with subsections (e), 
(f) , (g) , and (h) . 

(c) Persons who may intervene upon timely 
application include : 

(1) All departments and ageneies of the State and 
of the county in which the land is situated; 
and 

(2) All persons who have a property interest in 
the land, or who otherwise oan demonstrate 
t hat they will be so directly and immediately 
affected by the proposed change that their 
interest in the proceeding is clearly 
distinguishable from that of the general 
public . 

(d) All other persons may apply for leave to 
intervene, which shall be freely granted , provided the 
commission or its hearings officer may deny an 
application to intervene when, in the commission ' s, or 

45 



hearings officer's discretion lt appears that : 
(1) The position of the applicant for 

intervention is substantially the same as the 
position of a party already admitted to the 
proceeding; and 

(2) The admission of additional parties will 
render the proceedings inefficient and 
unmanageable. 

(e) In a boundary amendment proceeding, petitions 
to intervene and become a party shall be in conformity 
with subchapter 5 and filed with the commission. An 
original and one paper copy, plus one electronic copy, 
of the petition for intervention with proof of service 
on all parties shall be filed with the commission 
within fifteen calendar days after the notice of 
hearing is published pursuant to section 15-15-Sl(c) . 
Except for good cause shown, late filing shall not be 
permitted. The number and format of copies required 
under this section may be modified by order of the 
commission . 

(f) Petitions for intervention s hall make 
reference to the following : 

(1) Nature of the petitioner ' s statutory or other 
right ; 

(2) Nature and extent of the petitioner ' s 
interest in the matter, and if an abutting 
property owner, the tax map key description 
of the property; and · · 

(3) Effect of any decision in the proceeding on 
the petitioner ' s interest . . 

(g) Petitions for intervention pursuant to 
subsection (d) shall also make reference to the 
following: 

(1) Other means available whereby the 
petitioner ' s interest may be protected; 

(2) Extent the petitioner ' s interest will not be 
represented by or differs from that of 
existing parties; 

(3 ) Extent the petitioner ' s participation can 
assist in development of a complete record; 

(4) Extent the petitioner 's participation will 
broaden the issues; and 

(5) How the petitioner's intervention would serve 
the public interest. 

(h) Petitions for intervention shall be 
accompanied by a filing fee as provided for in sect ion 
15- 15-45 .1. The fee shall not apply to state and 
county agencies . 

(i) If any party opposes the petition for 
intervention , the party shall file a p leading in 

46 



opposition within seven days after being served . 
(j) All petitions to intervene shall be heard 

prior to the scheduled hearing . 
(k) A person ·whose petition to intervene 

has been denied may appeal the denial to the circuit 
court pursuant to sect i on 91-14, HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; 
am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11 /2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 
205-4 , 205-7, SLH 1995, Act 235, §2) (Imp : HRS §205-4 , 
SLH 1995, Act 235 , §1) 

§ 15-15-53 Intervention in other than district 
boundary amendment proceeding or important agricultural 
lands designation proceeding. (a)· In any proceeding 
other than a district boundary amendment proceeding or 
important agricultural lands designati on proceeding 
before the commission , petitions to intervene and 
become a party shall conform to subchapter 5 and be 
filed no later than fifteen.days after the date of the 
publication of the hearing notice . 

(b) Contents of the petition shall conform to 
sections 15-15-52(e) and 15-15-52(f) . 

(c) Petitions to intervene in special permit 
proceedings will not be considered since the record i s 
made by and before the county planning commission . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and 
comp 11/2/20 13 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205 - 4, 205- 7) (Imp: HRS §§205 - 1 , 205-4) 

, 
§ 1 5 -15 - 54 Consolidat ion. The commission, upon 

its own initiative or upon motion by any party, may 
consolidate for hearing or other purposes, or may 
contemporaneously consider, two or more proceedings 
which involve substantially the same parties or issues 
which are the same or c l ose l y related if the commi ssion 
finds that consolidation or contemporaneous 
consideration will be conducive to the proper d i spatch 
of its business and to the ends of justice and will not 
unduly delay the proceedings . [Eff 10/27 /86 ; comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/201 3 ; comp · 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp :--~~~ =----=-~----,-
HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§ 1 5-15 - 5 5 St a t eme nts of position. No later than 

47 



thirty days after the postmarked date of notice that 
the petition has been deemed a proper filing, the state 
office of plannin g and appropriate county planni ng 
department, and any intervenor, or person or legal 
entity who filed a timely notice of intent to i ntervene 
and whose intervention petition is still pending, s hal l 
file· with t he commission a statement of position with a 
summary of reasons in support or opposition, including 
without limitation, a statement describing the 
respective positions of any department within the State 
and county that may be impacted by the boundary 
amendment. [Eff 10/27/86; a m and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 

~' 
5/8/00; am and comp _1_1~/~2~/~2~0~1_3_;...,..,.-c_o~m~p=-=-=,--c----,,-,=-=--=-:---

(Auth : HRS-§§205-1 , 205-7, SLH 1995 , Act 235 , §2) 
(Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4 , SLH 1995, Act 235 , §1) 

§15-15-55.1 Filing of exhibits. (a) No later 
than twenty-five days prior to t h e date set for hearing 
pursuant to section 15-15-51, or as specified in a 
prehearing order issued in accordance with section 15-
15-57 , all parties shall submit all exhibits to 
substanti ate their position on the boundary amendment . 

(b) No later than twenty-five days prior to the 
schedul ed hearing pursuant to section 15-15-51, or as 
specified in a prehearing order issued in accordance 
with section 15-15-57 , all intervenors granted 
intervention shall submit all exhibits to substantiate 
their positi on on the boundary amendment petition . 

(c) Each party shall h ave the opportunity to 
provide further response to address the exhibits 
submitted or amended pleadings up to twenty days prior 
to the hearing date set pur suant to section 15-15-51 or 
as specified in a prehearing order issued in accordance 
with section 15- 15-57 . 

(d) Any amendmen ts to pleadings shall be 
submitted pursuant to secti on 15-15-43 . [Eff and comp 
8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 1 1 /2/2013 ; 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7 , SLH 
1995, Act 235, §2) (Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 205-4, SLH 1995, 
Act 235 , §1) 

§ 15-15-56 Stipulations. All parties may ·enter 
into appropriate stipulations as to testimony , 
exhibits, findings of fact, conclusions of law , and 
conditions of reclassification concerning the proposed 
boundary amendment as follows : 

(1) A petitioner who desires to enter into a 
stipulation shall prepare a proposed 

48 



stipulation as to any or all testimony, 
exh ibits, proposed findings of fact , 
conclusions of law, and conditions of 
reclass i ficatio0 concerning the proposed 
boundary amendment ; 

(2) All parties shall sign the proposed 
stipulation as to any or all testimony, 
exhibits, proposed findings of fact, 
conclusions of law, conditions of 
reclassification, and a proposed decision and 
order, if at all , and shall submit such 
stipulation to the commission at least 
fourteen business days prior.to the hearing 
date ; 

(3) At the hearing, the commission may approve or 
deny the proposed stipulation and proposed 
decision and order i n whole or in part, or 
the commission may require the parties to 
submi t additional evidence concerning the 
proposed stipul ation and proposed decision 
and order; 

(4) The commission may approve the proposed 
decision and order by amending or adopt ing 
the proposed decision and order. The 
commission shall issue a decision and order 
pursuant to provisions of sections 15- 15-36 
and 15-15-74 and section 205-4(g), HRS. [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; 
am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: HRS 
§205 - 4) 

§205 4) 

§ 1 5 - 1 5-57 Pre h e aring confe r e nce; e xchange of . 
e xhibits ; p r e hearing conference order. (a) The 
chairperson, presiding officer, or the executive 
officer shall be authorized to hold one or more 
prehearing conferences with the parties for the ·purpose 
of identifying the issues, identi f ying the positions of 
t he parties, arranging for the exchange of proposed 
exhibits or proposed written testimony, setting of 
schedules, exchanging names of witnesses, limitation of 
number of witnesses, determining the extent of 
agreement as to proposed findings, and such other 
matters as may expedite orderly conduct and d isposition 
of the hearing. No motions and decisions on 
substantive matters shall occur at the p rehearing 

49 

http:prior.to


conference . 
(b) The chairperson, presiding officer, or t he 

executive officer may issue a prehearing conference 
order t hat shall establish a schedule for the. mutual 
exchange of exhibits and identification of wi tnesses , 
The prehearing conference order shall insure that all 
parties will be provided an opportunity to actively 
participate in the hearing . No party shall be allowed 
to present additional exhibits or witnesses that are 
material or substantial and not identified within the 
schedule provided by the prehearing conference order, 
unless the presenting party provides good cause or the 
exhibit or witness is being presented for rebuttal 
purposes, or by stipulation of the parties with the 
permission of the commission . [Eff 10/27 /8 6; am and 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013: comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
-=----=-=-=--==----=--=--=--=--HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§ 15- 15-58 Procedure for witnesses. (a) The 
commission may subpoena witnesses as set forth in 
section 15-15-69 . 

(b) Together with other witnesses that the 
commission may desire to hear at the hearing, the 
commission shall also allow a representative of a 
citizen or community group to testify, who indicates a 
desire to express the views of those citizen or 
community group concerning the proposed boundary 
amendment. Anyone who desires to testify shall make 
written application to be a witness prior to the 
hearing and , i f the person desires to express the views 
of a citizen or community group, shall submit written 
evidence to show that the person is a duly authorized 
representative of the citizen or community group . 

(c) The presiding officer shall place witnesses 
under oath or affirmation prior to testifying . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and 
comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91- 2, 205-4) 

§ 15- 15 - 59 Conduct of hearing . (a) The hearing 
shall be conducted in accordance with thi s subchapter . 
Unless otherwise provided by law, the party initiating 
the proceeding shall have the burden of proof, 
including the burden of producing evi dence and the 
burden of persuasion. 

50 



(b) The presiding officer shalI convene the 
hearing and summarize the proceeding . 

(c) Before presenting the case, the parties shall 
have the opportunity to make opening statements in the 
order in which they present witnesses . Opening 
statements may be waived . 

(d) Unless otherwise directed by the presiding 
officer, witnesses shall be called i n the following 
order in a district boundary amendment proceeding: 

(1) Wiinesses for the petitioner; 
(2) Witnesses for the county planning department; 
(3) Witnesses for the state office of planning; 
(4) Witnesses for each intervenor, in the order 

in which intervention was granted; 
(5) Rebuttal witnesses for the petitioner; 
(6) ·Additional witnesses as the presiding officer 

may determi ne. 
(e) Witnesses shall be examined in t he following 

order : 
. ( 1) Direct examination by the party calling the 

witness; 
(2) Cross-examination by the other parties; 
(3) Examination by the presiding officer or any 

member of the commission ; 
(4) Redirect examination by the party calling the 

witness; 
(5) Recross examination by the other parties; 
(6) Reexamination by the presidin~ officer or any 

member of the commission . 
(f) After all parties have presented their cases 

through testimony and exhibits, all parties may provide 
closing statements in the order in which they presented 
witnesses ; provided that petitioner may make a rebuttal 
closing statement. Closing statements may be waived. 
[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§ 15-15-60 Presidi ng officer. (a) Notwithstandin g 
section 15-15- 06, in all hearings before the 
commission, the chairperson, a vice - chairperson, one of 
the othe r commissioners , or a hearings officer 
appointed by the commission shall preside at the 
hearing. 

(b) The presiding officer shall convene the 
hearing and briefly state the nature of the case, 
control the schedule and course of the hearings, 
administer oaths and affirmations , receive evidence, 

51 



hold appropriate conferences before and during 
hearings, rule upon all objections or motions which do 
not involve a final determination of the proceedings, 
receive offers of proof, and fix the time for the 
filing of briefs or proposed findings of fact, 
conclusions of law and decisions and orders and 
responses or objections thereto, dispose of any other 
matter that normally and properly arises in the course 
of a hearing, and take a l l other actions authorized by 
law that are deemed necessary to the orderly and just 
conduct of a hearing . 

(c) The presiding officer may postpone or continue 
any hearing upon a mot i on of any party without a 
hearing. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/1 6/97; 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§15-15-61 Disqualification. No commissioner or 
hearings o f ficer shall sit in any p r oceeding in which 
the commissioner or hearings officer has a personal 
pecuniary or business interest , or one in which the 
commissioner or hearings officer is related within the 
first degree by blood or marriage to any part y to the 
proceeding. However, i f, after declaring the nature of 
the circumstances of the pecuniary interest or 
consangui nity to the parties , and the parties do not 
oppose the commi ssi oner or hearings officer sitting in 
the proceeding, the commissioner or hearings o fficer 
may participate in the proceeding . The record shall 
note clearly the waiver by the parties . [Eff 1 0/27 /8 6 ; 
am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91- 2 , 205- 4) 

§15-15-62 Ex parte communications. (a) No 
person whether or not a party to a proceeding before 
the commission shall make an unauthorized ex parte 
communication either oral or written about the 
p r oce eding to any member of the commission or hearings 
officer who will be a participant in the 
decision- making process or the executive officer . 

(b) The following classes of ex par te 
communications are permitted : 

(1) Communications which r e l ate solely to matt e rs 
which a commission member or he arings office r 
is authorized by the commiss ion t o d i spose o f 

52 



on an ex parte basis, including 
communications regarding scheduling or other 
procedural matters regarding the course of 
the proceeding; 

·(2) Requests for informat i on with respect to the 
status of~ proceeding; 

(3) Communications which all parties to the 
proceedi ng agree or which the commission has 
formally ruled may be made on an ex parte 
basis; and 

(4) Communications with representatives of any 
news media on matters intended to inform the 
general public. [Eff 10/27/86 ; am and comp 
8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; .am and comp 11/2/2013 ; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-13, 205- 4) 

§ 15 - 15-63 Evidence . (a) In contested cases, 
evidentiary requirements shall be controlled by this 
section. 

(b) Any oral or documentary evidence may be 
received, but the commission shall as a matter of 
policy provide for the exclusion of irrelevant, 
immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence and-no 
sanction shal l be imposed or rule or order be issued 
except upon consideration of the whole record or such 
portions thereof as may be cited by any party and as 
supported by and in accordance with the reliable, 
probative, and substantial evidence. The commission 
shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized . 
by law . Neither the commission nor a hearings officer 
is bound by the common law rules relating to the 
admission or rejection of evidence. 

(c) The presiding officer shall rule on the 
admissibility of all evidence . The rulings may be 
reviewed by the commission in determining the matter on 
its merits. In extraordinary circumstances, where 
prompt decision by the commission is necessary to 
promote justice, the presiding officer may refer the 
matter to the commission for determination . 

(d) When objections are made to the admiss i on or 
exclusion of evidence , the objecting party shall 
briefly state the grounds relied upon . Formal 
exceptions to rulings are unnecessary and need not be 
taken . 

(e) An offer of proof fo r the record shall 
consist of a state.ment of the substance of t he evidence 
to which obj ection has been sustained . 

53 



(f) With the approval of the presiding officer, a 
witness may read into the record the testimony of a 
witness on direct examination. Before any written 
testimony is read, unless excused by the presiding 
officer, the witness shall provide an original and one 
paper copy and one e l ectronic copy of the written 
testimony to the chief clerk, with a copy to each party 
to the proceeding. Admissibility shall be subject to 
the rules governing oral testimony . If the presiding 
officer deems that substantial saving in time will 
result, a copy of the written testimony may be received 
into evidence without reading, provided that the 
witness shall be subject to proper cross-examination on 
matters contained in the written testimony . Any 
amendments to written direct and rebuttal testimony, or 
the introduction of totally new matters by revisions or 
supplements shall be accompanied by a sworn a f fidavit 
or declaration explaining why these matters were not 
submitted with the original written testimony. 

(g) Documentary evidence may be received in the 
form of copies or excerpts if the original is not 
readily available; provided that upon request par ties 
shall be given an opportunity to compare the copy wi th 
the original . 

(h) Exhibits shall be legible and may be prepared 
on paper not exceeding 8-1/2 x 11 in9hes in size or 
bound or folded to the respective approximate size, 
where practical. Where practicable, sheets of each 
exhibit shall be numbered and data and other figures 
shall be set f orth in tabular form. When exhibi ts are 
offered in evidence, t he party shall furnish the 
original, one paper copy and one electronic copy of the 
exhibits to the chief clerk with a copy to each party 
to the proceeding, unless copies have been previously 
furnished or the presiding officer 
directs otherwise. The number and format of copies 
required under this section may be modif i ed by order of 
the commission . 

(i) A party may use maps or other demonstrative 
exhibits as evidence provided the parti es submit the 
number of ·1egible copi es as may be required by the 
presiding officer . The commi ssion shall not permit the 
introduction of or t estimony from any visual aid not 
introduced a s evidence . 

(j) If any matter c ontained i n the p etition or in 
a document filed as a public record with t he commission 
is offered in evidence, unless direct ed otherwise by 
the presiding officer, the document need not be 
produced as an exhibit, but may be received in evidence 
by reference, provided that the particular portions of 

54 



the document are specifically identified and are 
otherwise competent, relevant, and material . If 
testimony in proceedings other than the one being heard 
is offered in evi dence, a copy shall be presented as an 
exhibit, unless otherwise ordered by the presiding 
officer . 

(k) The commission may take official notice of 
matters as may be judicially noticed by the courts of 
the State of Hawai'i. Official notice may also be 
taken of generally recognized technical or scientific 
facts within the commission ' s specialized knowledge 
when parties are given notice either before or during 
the hearing of the material so noticed and afforded the 
opportunity to contest the facts so noticed. 

(1) At the hearing, the presiding officer may 
require the production of further evidence through 
testimony or exhibits upon any issue. The presiding 
officer may authorize the filing of specific 
documentary evidence as a part of the record after the 
close of the hearing, subject to the rights of the 
parties to request reopening of the hearing within a 
specified time after the receipt of such evidence, or 
may keep the hearing open until such time as evidence 
is received by the commission. Upon agreement of the 
parties, the presiding officer may authorize the filing 
of specific documentary evidence as a part of the 
record within a fixed time after submission, reserving 
an exhibit number therefor, but the hearing shall 
remain open. The presidin g officer is authorized to 
close the hearing when the exhibit is received, 
provided that there is no objection from any party , and 
no request to cross-examine by any party or a request 
to answer questions by a commissioner. [Eff 10/27/86; 
am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2 , 91-10, 205-4) 

§15-15- 64 REPEALED . [*R--R 11/2 /2013] 

§ 15-15-65 Limiting testimony . To avoid 
unnecessary cumulative evidence, the presiding officer 
may limit the number of witnesses or the time for 
testimony upon a particular issue . [Eff 10/27/86; 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7) (Imp : 
~H=R=s ---=§§=9=1~-~2~,-----,2~0~5,-----4) 

55 



§ 15-15-66 Re moval from proceeding. Any person 
who wilfully disrupts a hearing or other proceeding may 
be removed from the hearing room . [Eff 10/27 /86; am 
and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
HRS §§91-2 , 92-3 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-67 Co-counsel. Where a party is 
represented by more than one attorney or 
representative , only one of the attorneys or 
representatives shall be permitted to make an opening 
statement, or to examine or cross-examine a particular 
witness or to state any objections or to make closing 
statements , unless otherwise authorized by the 
presiding officer . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and. comp comp 11/2/2013 ; 
comp ] - (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : 

HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-68 REPEALED . [R 11/2--/2013) 

§ 15-15-69 Subpoenas. (a) Any party may file a 
written motion for the issuance of a subpoena requiring 
the attendance of a witness for the purpose of taking 
o ral testimony b efore the commiss i on, which motion 
shall not require a hearing . 

(b) Motions for the issuance of subp oenas duces 
tecum shall : 

(1) Be in writing; 
(2) Specify t he particular document or record, o r 

part thereof , desired to be produced; 
(3) State the reasons why the production thereof 

is believed to be material and relevant to 
the issues involved ; and 

(4) Include a statement of the reasons why the 
testimony of the witness is believed to be 
material and relevant to the issues involved . 

(c) Three original copies of the subpoenas duces 
tecum shall be submitted together wi'th the motion filed 
pursuant to subsection (b) . 

(d) The presiding officer, chairperson , or in the 

56 



chairperson ' s absence , any commissioner , may issue 
subpoenas. Subpoenas shall not be i ssued unless the 
party requesting the subpoena has compl ied with thi s 
section . Signed and sealed blank subpoenas shall not 
be issued to any person . The name and address of the 
witness shall be insert e d i n the original subpoena, a 
copy of which shall be f iled in the proceeding. 
Subpoenas shall show at whose instanc e the subpoena is 
issued. 

(e) A party requesting the subpoenas shall be 
respons i ble for ser vice of the i ssued subpoenas , and 
pay t he witnesses summoned the same fees and mileage as 
are paid wi t nesses i n c i rcuit courts of t he State of 
Hawai' i, and the fees and mileage shall be paid by the 
party at whose ins~ance the wi tness appears . 

(f ) Notwithstandi ng any rule to the contrary, t h e 
chairperson, a commissi oner , or a duly-appointed 
hearings officer may make an oral motion to request the 
issuance of a subpo.ena . [Eff 1 0/27/86 ; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp :-----~- -~ HRS §§91-2 , 92-16 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15- 70 Mot ions. (a) Any party may make 
motions before , during , or after the close of a 
hearing . 

(b) All motions, other than those made during a 
hearing, shall : 

(1) Be i n wri ting; 
(2) State the grounds for the motion ; 
(3) Set forth the relief or order sought ; 
(4) Be accompanied by a memorandum in s upport of 

the motion, if the motion i nvolves a question 
of law; and 

(5) Be filed with the commission at least ten 
business days before the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the commission. 

(c) Every motion , except one entitled to be heard 
ex parte , shall indicate whether a hearing is requested 
on t he motion . If a motion requires the consideration 
of facts not appearing of record, it shall be supported 
by affidavits or declarations . 

(d) The moving party shall ser ve a copy of all 
motion paper s on all ·other parties and shall f ile the 
original plus one paper copy and one electronic copy 
with the commission and proof of service . The number 
and format of copies required under this section may be 
modified by order of the commissi on . 

57 



(e) The opposing party or parties shall 
serve on all o t her parties and f ile counter affidavits 
and memorandums in opposition to the motion and of the 
authorities relied upon not l ater than seven days after 
being served with any written motion, or , if the 
hearing on the motion wil l occur less than seven days 
after the motion is served, at least forty-eight.hours 
before the time set for hearing , unless otherwise 
ordered by the chai rperson, chairperson ' s designee, or 
hearings officer . The chairperson, chairperson 1 s 
designee , or hearings officer may order the opposing 
party or parties to file its memorandum in opposition 
earlier than the seven day period. The oppos i ng party 
shall file t he original p l us one paper copy and one 
elect ronic . copy with the commission and proof of 
service . The number and format of copi es requi red under 
this section may be modified by order of the 
commission . 

(f) Any par ty who does not oppose a motion or who· 
intends to support a motion or who desires a 
continuance shall notify the commission , through the 
executive o f ficer, and the opposing counsel within 
seven days aft er being served or, if the hearing on the 
mot ion wil l occur less than seven days after the motion 
is served, wi t hin forty-eight hours before the time set 
for hearing . 

(g) Failure to serve or f ile memoranda in 
opposition to a motion or fa i lure to appear at the 
hearing may be deemed a waiver o f objection to the 
granting or denial of the motion. 

(h) Motions tha~ do not involve the final 
det ermination of a proceeding may be heard and 
det ermine d by the chair person, commissioner, or 
heari ngs officer . 

(i) If a hearing is requested, the executive 
officer shall set a date and time for hearing on t he 
motion . 

(j) If a hearing on the motion i s not requested, 
t he commission may decide the matter upon the 
pleadings, memoranda, and other documents filed with 
the commission , or hold a hearing on the matter . 

(k) Any mot i on, except a mot i on for relief f rom 
or release of conditions submitted by the same party or 
parties and based upon substantially the same grounds 
as a previous motion that has been considered by the 
commission or denied by the commission shall not be 
again considered . 

(1) After the hearing on the evidence is closed, 
but before the commission votes on a decis ion, a party 
for good cause shown may move to re- open the hearing to 

58 



take newly discovered evi dence . The motion shall 
specify the facts claimed to constitute good cause, 
including material changes of fact or of law alleged to 
have occurred since the closing of the hearing and 
shall provi de a descri pti on of the proposed additional 
evidence and an explanation of why the newly discovered 
evidence was not previ ous l y adduced. The party f iling 
the motion shall be responsibl e for fees and costs 
pursuant to section 1 5-15-45 .1. 

(m) Orders granti ng , denying or otherwise 
disposing of motions , [except ] including motions to 
amend decisions and orders rel ating to district 
boundary amendments and to special permits, [ma-y] shall 
be signed by the chairperson or any vice chairperson, 
or t he p r esiding officer, or the hearings officer , as 
the case may be. [Orders granting, denying , or 
otherwise disposing of motions relating to amendments 
of decisions and orders in district boundary amendment 
proceedings and to special permits shall be signed by 
the commissioners · who have heard or eJrnmined the 
evidence relating to the motion and who have voted 
affirmatively on the decision . ] [Eff 10 /2 7 /8 6; am and 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and 11/2/201 3 ; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7 ) (Imp : 

HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-70.l Protective orders. Any party or any 
person may move for a protective order to protect the 
confidentiality of information that is protected from 
disclosure under chapter 92F, HRS, or by other law. A 
motion for protecti ve order shall specifically identify 
the document or information to be protected. The 
movant shall bear the burden of establishing that the 
information should be protected. Sti pul9 tions for 
protective o r der , subject to the commi ssion ' s approval, 
may be fi led in lieu o f motions for protective orders. · 
[Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : 
HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 

§15- 15-71 Substitution of parties . Upon mot i on 
and for good cause shown , the commission may order 
substitution of parties, except that in the case of 
death of a party , substitution may be ordered without 
the filing of a motion . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00; - comp ~1_1~/~2~/~-2~0~1~3~;----,-c_o_m~p----=-=-==------=-:,:-;:-----=-- ~ ~--:;-:--

(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §91-2 , 205- 4 ) 

59 



§15-15-72 Correction of transcript. The 
chairperson, presiding o f ficer , or hearings officer 
shall determine any motion at the hearing to correct 
the transcript . Any motions after the hearing to 
correct the t ranscript shall be fi l ed with the 
commission within seven days after receipt of the 
transcript unless otherwi se directed, and shall be 
served on all parties . Such·motions shall certify the 
date when the t r anscript was received . If no 
objections are received before seven days after the 
date of service , the transcript , upon approval of the 
commission , shall be changed to reflect the 
corrections . [Eff 10/27 /86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00; comp ~1~1~/~2~/~2~0~1~3~;----=c~o_m~p'-------,--,,-,,--=--,---
(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) ( I mp : HRS §91-2) 

§ 15-15-73 Post hearing procedures. Post hearing 
procedures shall conform to subchapters 9 and 10. 
[Ef f 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-
7 ) (Imp : HRS § 91-2 ) 

§ 15-15-74 Decision. (a) For district boundary 
amendment petitions filed before December 31, 1995, 

-within a period of not more than one hundred twenty 
days after the close of the hearing, unless otherwise 
ordered by the court , the commission, by filing 
findings of fact and conclusions of law , shall 
act to approve the petition, deny the petition, or to 
modify the petition by imposing conditions in 
accordance with subchapter 11 . 

(b) For district boundary amendment petitions 
filed on or after July 14, 1998, prior to a period of 
not more than three hundred sixty-five days after the 
petition has been deemed a proper filing by the 
commission or the executive officer, unless otherwise 
ordered by a court, or unless a time extension, not to 
exceed ninety days, is establi shed by a two-thirds vote 
of the members of the commission, the commission, by 
filing f i ndings of fact and conclusions of law, shall 
act to approve the petition, deny the petition, or to 
modify the petition by imposing conditions in 
accordance wi th subchapter 11. If the commiss i on fails 

60 



to act on the petition pursuant to section 205-4(g), 
HRS, the petition shall be deemed approved , subject to 
the provisions of section 15-15-90(e) . 

(c) Notwithstanding subsections (a) [7 ] and (b) , 
decisions for petitions submitted pursuant to section 
201H-38 , HRS, shall be made i n the timeframe as 
provided in section 15-15-97 . 

(d) Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) , 
decisions on acceptance or non-acceptance of 
environmental compliance documents submitted pursuant 
to chapter 343, HRS, shall be made within thirty days 
of receipt of the final statement , provided that the 
period may be extended at the request of the applicant 
for a period not to exceed fifteen days . Notification 
of a determination of acceptance or non-acceptance will 
be by letter from the executive officer to the 
applicant and office of environmental quality control, 
pursuant to chapter 343, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86 ; am 3/24/94; 
am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§§91-13 . 5 , 205-1 , 205-4 , 205-75) (Imp : HRS§§ 91-13 . 5 , 
201G- 118, 205-4, SLH 1992, Act 227, §1, SLH 1994, Act 
261 , §1) 

§ 15-15-75 Appeals. Parties to proceedings to 
amend land use district boundaries may obtain judicial 
[reviews]review as provided in section 205-19, 
HRS . [thereof in the manner set forth in section 91 14 , 
HRS . ] [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 
1 1 /2/2013; a m and comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§~ 91-14, 20_5-4 , 205-19 ) 

§15-15-76 Re-application by the petitioner for 
boundary amendment. (a) The commission shall not 
accept any petition for boundary amendment covering 
substantially the same request for substantially the 
same land as had previously been denied by the 
commi ssion withi n one year of the date of filing 
findings ·of fact and conclusions of law denying the 
petition unless the petitioner submits significant new 
data or additional reasons which substantially 
strengthen the petiti oner ' s pos~tion, provided that in 
no event shall any new petition be accepted within six 
months of the date of filing of the findings of fact 
and conclusions of law . 

(b) Additionally, the commission shall not accept 

61 



any petition for boundary amendment for the same 
request involving the same land that was before the 
commi ssion and withdrawn voluntarily by t h e petitioner 
within one year of the date of the withdrawal . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS 
§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91- 2) 

SUBCHAPTER 8 

DECISION-MAKING CRITERIA FOR BOUNDARY AMENDMENTS 

§15-15- 77 Decision -maki ng criteria for bounda ry 
amendments. (a) The commission shall not approve an 
amendment .of a land use district boundary unless the 
commission finds upon the clear preponderance of the 
evidence that the proposed boundary amendment is 
reasonable , is not violative of section 205-2, HRS, and 
is consistent with the policies and criteria 
established pursuant to sections _205-16, 205-17 , and 
205A-2, HRS . 

(b) In its review of any petition for amendment 
of district boundaries pursuant to this ~hapter, the 
commission shall specifically consider the fo l lowing: 

(1) The extent to which the proposed boundary 
amendment conforms to the applicable goals, 
objectives, and policies of the Hawai 'i state 
plan and relates to the applicable priority 
guidelines of the Hawai'i state plan and the 
adopted functional plans ; 

(2) The extent to which the proposed 
boundary amendment conforms to the applicable 
district standards; . 

(3) The impact of the proposed boundary amendment 
on the following areas of state concern: 
(A) Preservation or maintenance of important 

natural · systems or habitats; 
(B) Preservation and [H] maintenance ] 

maintenance of valuea cultural i esource~ 
and activities, and, historical, 9r 
·natural resources , including water 
resource uses ; 

(C) Maintenance of other natural resources 
· relevant to Hawai'i ' s economy including, 
but not limited to agricultural 
resources ; 

62 



(D) Commitment of state funds and resources; 
(E) Provision for employment opportunities 

and economic development; and 
(F) Provision for housing opportunities for 

all income groups, particularly the low, 
low-moderate, and gap groups; 

(4) In establishing the boundaries of the 
districts in each county, the commission 
shall give consideration to the general plan, 
and community , development, or community 
development plans of the cqunty in which the 
land is located; 

(5) The representations and commi tments made by 
the petitioner in securing a boundary 
amendment, including a finding that the 
petitioner has the necessary economic ability 
to carry out the representations and 
commitments relating to the proposed use or 
development; 

(6) Lands in intensive agricultural , use for two 
years prior to date of filing of a petition 
or lands with a high capacity for intensive 
agricultural use shall not be taken out of 
the agricultural district unless the 
commission finds either that the action : 
(A) Will not substantially impair actual or 

potential agricultural production in the 
vicinity of the subject property or in 
the county or State; or 

(B) Is reasonably necessary for urban 
growth ; and 

(7) .In considering boundary amendments for lands 
designated important agricultural lands 
pursuant to part III, chaptir 205, HRS, the 
commission shall specifically consider the 
standards and criteria set forth in s~ction 
205-50, HRS . 

(c) Amendments of a land use district boundary in 
conservation districts involving land areas fifteen 
acres or less shall be determined by the commission 
pursuant to this subsection and section 205-3 . 1, HRS . 

(d) Amendments of a land use dist rict boundary in 
other than conservation districts involving land areas 
fifteen acres or less shall be determined by the 
appropriate county land use decision-making authority 
for the district . 

(e) Amendments of a land use district boundary 
involving land areas greater than fifteen acres shall 
be determined by the commission, pursuant to this 
subsection and section 205-3 . 1 , HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am 

63 



---

---
- --
---

- --

- --
---
- - -
- --
- - -
---
- - -

and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; 
am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-3 . 1, 205-4 , 205-16, 205-17) 

§ 15-15-78 Incremental districting . (a) If it 
appears to the commission that full development of the 
subj ect property cannot substantially be completed 
within ten years after the date of the commission ' s 
approval and t hat t h e incremental development plan 

. submitted by the petitioner can be substantially 
completed, and if the commission is satisfied that all 
ot her pertinent criteria for amending the land use 
boundary for the subject property or part thereof are 
present, t hen the commission may : 

(1) Grant the petitioner ' s request to amend the 
land use boundary for the entire subject 
property; or 

(2) Amend the land use boundary for only that 
portion of the subject property which the 

_ _ __..petitioner plans to develop first and upon 
_ __which it appears that s ubstantial development 

can be completed within ten years after the 
date of the commission ' s approval . At the 
same time , the commission shall indicate its 
approval of the future land use boundary 
amendment of the total subject ·property 
requested by the petitioner, or so much 
thereof as shall be justified as appropriate 
therefor by the petitioner, such approval to 
indicate a schedule of incremental land use 
boundary amendments over successive periods 
not to exceed ten years each . The commission 
may amend the land use boundary of the 
subject property, if it finds such an 
aamendment is justified .....,..,..--,---

(b) In amending a l and use district boundary on 
an incremental basis, in addition to standards in this 
subchapter , t he commiss_ion may cons i der projected 
population growth for the prea , other lands that have 
received boundary amendments in the area, the 
availabi lity of and impacts on resources, and the 
desirability of directing growth and development to the 
area over a long term basis . 

· (c) Upon receipt of an application for boundary 
amendment for the second and subsequent increments of 
property for which previous approval for incremental 
development has been granted by the commission, 
substantial compJetion of any offsite and onsite 

64 



--- - --- ------

improvements of the development, in accordance with the 
approved incremental plan, of the preceding increment 
that received boundary amendment will be prima facie 
proof that the approved incremental plan complies with 
the requirements for boundary amendment . 

(d) The following are procedures for processing 
incremental boundary amendment applications : 

(1) The petitioner shall f ile an original, one 
paper copy and one electronic copy of an 
application to approve the s econd or 
subsequent increments utilizing the same 
docket number as the original petition. The 
number and format of copies required under 
this section may be modified by order of the 
commission; 

(2) The petitioner shall serve copies of the 
application on all parties of record in the 
original proceeding; 

(3) The applicat ion Shall include facts, 
affidavits or decl arations, and other 
documentation, including a metes and bounds 
description and map , in support of the fact 
that t h e petitioner has substantially 
completed offsite and onsite improvements, 
complied with chapter .343, HRS, where 
applicable, and complied with conditions of 
the commission approval i n accordance wit h 
the approved incremental plan of the 
preceding increment receiving a boundary 
amendment; 

(4) A prehearing conference may be conducted 
pursuant to section 15-15-57; 

(5) A notice of hearing shall be published 
notifying the public of the time and place 
the applicat ion will be considered by the 
commission and will provide for the admission 
of public witnesses; 

(6) The procedures for hearing the application 
will be subject to the timeframes presently 
existing for district boundary amendments , 
and the provisions of section 15-15-13 ; and 

(7) The petitioner shall provide notice of the 
application to all persons having a property 
interest in the increment for which a l and 
use district boundary amendment is · sought . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7) 
(Imp : §205-4) 

65 



§ 15-15-79 Performance time . (a) Petitioners 
granted district boundary a mendments shall. make 
substantial progress within a reasonable period, as 
specified by the commissi on , from the date of approval 
of the boundary amendment, in developing the property 
receivi ng the boundary amendment . The commission may 
act to amend, nullify, change , or reverse its decision 
and order if the petitioner fails to perform as 
represented to the commission within t .he spec{fied 
period . 

(b) The commiss i on may provide by condition that 
absent substantial commencement of use of the subject 
propert y or substantial progress in developing the land 
receiving the boundary amendment in accordance with 
representations a nd commitments made by the petitioner 
to the.commission, the commission shall issue and serve 
upon the party bound by t h e condition an order to show 
cause why the property should not revert to its former 
lan d use district classification or be changed to a 
more appropriate land use district classification . 
Such conditions , if any , shall run with the land and be 
recorded in the bureau of conveyances pursuant to 
section 15-15-92 . [Eff 10/27/86 ; am and comp 8/16/97 ; 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp ,11/2/2013; comp ] 
- (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-4) 

SUBCHAPTER 9 

POST HEARING PROCEDURES FOR HEARINGS BEFORE 
THE COMMISSION 

§ 15-15-80 Briefs . The presiding o f fi c er may fix 
the time for the filing of briefs . Exhibits may be 
reprodu ced in an appendix to a brief . A brief of more 
than twenty pages shal l contain a subjert index and 
table of authorities . Requests for extension of time 
to file briefs must be made to the commission in 
writing with one original , one paper copy, and one 
electronic copy filed with the commission, and a copy 
served upon or mailed to the parties to the proceeding . 
Ordinarily , when a matter is to be submitted on 
concurrent briefs, extensions shall not be granted 
unless a stipul ation i s f i led with the commission . 

66 



[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; a m and comp 
11/2/201 3 ; comp ] - (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§15~15-81 Oral argument. The commission or the 
presiding officer may direct or permit the presentation 
of oral argument with the petitioner opening and 
concluding the argument . Not more than fifteen minutes 
on each side of the proceeding s hall be allowed for 
argument without special leave of the commission . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-9, 205-4) 

§ 15-15-82 I ssuance of decisions and orde rs . (a) 
A proceeding shall stand submitted for decision by the 
commission after t h e taking of eyidence , and the fi l ing 
of briefs or the presentation of oral argument as may 
have been prescri bed by the presiding officer or 
heari ngs officer . The petitioner · [Each party to the 
proceeding] The petitioner shall submit a proposed 
decision and o rder which shall include proposed 
findings of fact , conclusions of law, and proposed 
conditions; all other parties may submit a proposed 
decision and order including proposed findings of fact, 
conclusions of law and proposed conditions . If a party 
enters i nto a p a rtial stipulati on as authorized in 
section 15-15-82 . 1, the party shall nevertheless file a 
proposed decision and order indicating the findings of 
fact , conclusions of law and proposed conditions that 
are stipulated to and also set forth proposed f i ndings 
of fact , conclusions of law and proposed conditions 
t hat it proposes that are different than the 
stipulation . A proposed decision and order shall be 
f i led with the commission consisting of one paper 
origi nal, one paper copy, and one electronic copy, and 
a copy shall be served upon each part y to the 
proceeding . [and an opportunity given to each] Each 
party to the proceedings shall be given the opportunity 
to comment [thereon. ] on each p roposed decision and 
e rder filed with the commission. [thereon. ] 

(b) A commission member may prepare a proposed 
findings of fact and conclusions of l a w, and serve the 
document ·upon each party not less than ten business 
days prior to the meeting at which the proposed 
findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be 

67 



presented . 
(c) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter 

to the contrary , each party may provide its position on 
the commission members ' proposed findings of fact and 
conclusions of law within five business days from'the 
date of service . Any party providing .its position 
shall provide a summary of its reasons for support or 
objection . · 

(d) Every decision and order adverse to a party 
to the proceeding, rendered by the commission in a 
contested case, shall be accompanied by separate 
findings of fact and conclusions of law . 

(e) Findings of fact, conclusions of law, and 
decision and order shall be issued by the commission 
for district boundary amendment s and special permits 
deemed approved pursuant to section 91-13 . 5, HRS . The 
decision and order shall include mandatory conditions 
pursuant to section 15-15-90(e) . For orders determining 
the acceptability of environmental compliance documents 
pursuant to chapter 343, HRS , the chair or presiding 
officer shall sign for the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; 
am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013 ; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§91-13 . 5 , 205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-12, 
205-4) 

§ 15-15-82.1 Stipulation as to findings of fact , 
conclusions of law, conditions of boundary amendment, 
and decision and order. After the close of the 
evidentiary portion of the hearing, some or all parties 
may enter into stipulations as to findings of fact, 
conclusions of l aw, condit i ons of boundary amendment , 
and decision and order concerning the proposed boundary 
amendment .as follows : 

(1) A petitioner who desires to enter into a 
stipulation shall prepare a proposed 
stipulation as to any or a l l findings of 
fact, conclusions of law, conditions of 
boundary amendment, and decision and order 
concerning the proposed boundary amendment ; 

(2) Parties in agreement with a stipulation shall 
sign the proposed stipulation as to any or 
all proposed findings of fact , conclusions of 
l aw, conditions of boundary amendment , and a 
proposed decision and order, and shall submit 
such stipulation to the commission within the 
t ime frame specified by the commission ; 

(3) After the hearing, the commission may adopt 

68 



the proposed stipulation, and if it adopts 
the stipulated decision and order the 
commission may amend, accept, modify or 
reject in part or in ·whole any of the 
findings of fact , conclusions of law, 
condit i ons of boundary amendment , and 
anything else contained in the stipulation; 

(4) The commission shall issue a decision and 
order pursuant to provisions of sections 15-
15- 36 and 15-15-74 and section 205-4(g), HRS . 
[Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) 

§ 15-15-83 Se rvice of decisions and orde rs. The 
commission shall serve the decisions and orders by 
personal delivery or mailing certified copies to the 
parties of record . The effective date of the decision 
and order is the date certified by the executive 
offi cer . When a party to a proceeding has appeared by 

· a representative, service upon· the representat ive or 
attorney shall be deemed to be service up·on the party . 

[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp.5/8/00 ; am 
and comp ll/2/20 13,; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-12, 205-4) 

§ 15-15- 84 Reconsideration of decis·ion. (a) A 
motion for reconsideration shall be filed with the 
commission within seven calendar days after issuance of 
the commission ' s written decision and order. The 
motion for reconsideration shall clearly specify that 
the motion is for reconsideration . 

(b) The motion for reconsideration shall state 
specifically the grounds on which t he movant considers 
the decision or order unreasonable, unlawful, or 
erroneous . 

(c) In no event will the commission consider any 
motion for reconsideration on any petition after the 
period within which the commission is required to act 
on the petition . [Eff 10/27 /8 6; am and comp 8/16/97; 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

SUBCHAPTER 10 

69 



POST HEARING PROCEDURES FOR HEARING 
CONDUCTED BY HEARINGS OFFICER 

§15-15-85 - Recommended decision. (a) Upon 
completion of taking of t he evidence , the hearings 
officer may request the parties to submit a proposed 
findings of fact, conclusions of l aw , and decision and 
order, consisting of one origi nal, one paper copy, and 
one electronic copy . Proposed decision and orders 
submitted s hall be served upon each party to the 
proceeding and an opportunity given to each party to 
comment thereon . Upon receipt of the proposed decis i on 
anp orde rs and any comments from the parties, the 
hearings officer shal l prepare and submit to the 
commission a recommended decision which shall include 
recommended findings of fact, concl usions of law and a 
recommended decis i on and order . 

(b) The record shall include the petition and 
other pleadings , not i ce of hearing, motions, rulings, 
orders, transcript of the hearing, stipulations, 
documentary e vidence, offers of proof, proposed 
findings, or other documents submitted by the parti es, 
all matters placed in evidence , objections to the 
conduct of the hearing, the recommended decision of t he 
hearings officer, and all other matters p l aced in 
evidence . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/1 6/97 ; comp 
5/8/00; am and comp ~1~1~/~2~/~2~0~1~3~;---=c~o~m~p;___ _ _ _ _ _ ___ 

(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) 

§15-15-85.1 Proposed decision. Upon receipt o f 
the hearings offi cer's recommended decision, the 
commission may adopt it as its proposed decision , or 
may remand i t to t he hearings o fficer f or any 
clarification or correction, or may .modify or reject i t 
and issue its own proposed decision. 

A copy of any proposed decision of t he commission 
shall be served upon each party. [Eff a nd comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§2 05-1, 
205-7) 

§15 - 15- 86 Exceptions ; extension of time ; f i nality 
of proposed decision. (a) Within f ourteen calendar 
days afte r the date of mail i ng or personal service o f a 

70 



copy of the commission ' s proposed decision , a party may 
file with the commission exceptions to any part thereof 
and request review by the commission . Such party shall 
serve c opies of exceptions and briefs upon each party 
to the proceeding . 

(b) The e xceptions shall : 
(1) Set forth specifically the questions of 

procedure, fact, law, or poli cy, to which 
exceptions are taken ; 

(2) Identify that part of the proposed decision 
to which objections are made ; 

(3) Designate by page citation the portions of 
the record relied upon and specify 
authorities relied upon to sustain each 
point ; and 

(4) State all the grounds for exceptions to a 
ruling, finding, or conclusion . Grounds not 
cited or specifically urged are waived . 

(c) Any party may apply for an extension of time 
within which to file exceptions to the proposed 
decision by filing a written application setting forth 
the reason for the request . The application shall be 
filed before the expiration of the period prescribed 
for the filing of exceptions . Upon good cause shown, 
the execut ive officer may extend the time for filing 
exceptions for an additional period not to exceed ten 
(10) calendar days . 

(d) If no exception s and request for review are 
filed within the time specified, the proposed decision 
shall become final , unless the commission , on its own 
motion , orders further proceedings to be held . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 
205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-11 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-87 Support of hearings officer 's 
recommended decision. (a) Within seven days after 
service of the exceptions taken to tha proposed 
decision, any party may file with the commission a 
brief opposing the exceptions . Such party shall serve 
copies of the brief in support upon each party to the 
proceedi ng 

(b) The brief opposing exceptions shall: 
(1) Answer speci fically the points of procedure , 

fact , law, or policy to which exceptions were 
taken ; 

(2) State the facts and reasons why the proposed 
decision must be affirmed; and 

(3) Designate by page citation the portions of 

71 



the record relied upon . [Eff 10/27 /86; am 
and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; a m and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: 
HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-11, 
205-4) 

§ 15-15-88 Argument on exceptions. Upon the 
filing of exceptions by a party adversely a ffected by 
the proposed decision, t he commission shall grant such 
party an opportunity to present arguments to the 
commission . The executive officer, with direction from 
the chairperson, shall set the time and place of 
hearing 6f argument on exceptions and give written 
notice to the parties. [Eff 10/27 /8 6; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : 
-,----::-:=-=-:,--~-~-
HRS §§91-10 , 91-11 , 205-4) 

§ 15-15-89 Final decision. (a) When exceptions 
have been filed to the commission ' s proposed decision, 
the commission , within forty-five days after the 
hearing on exceptions , shall render its final decision. 

In rendering its final decision , the commission shall 
consider the whole record or s uch portions thereof as 
may be cited by the parties and shall resolve all 
questions of fact by what it deems to be the greater 
weight of the evidence thereon . The final decision 
shall contain findings of fact and conclusions of law 
upon which the decision is based. 

(b) After the commission has heard and examined 
all of the evidence , the commission , shall issue its 
decision within fort y-five days after receiving the 
evidence, or filing of any memoranda or proposed 
findings of fact and conclusions of law upon which the 
decision is based . [ Eff 10/27 /86·; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205- 1, 205-7)-,-,-------,----=-=-=,..,,.----=---=-=--( I rnp : HRS §§91-2, 92-16) 

SUBCHAPTER 11 

CONDITIONS : FILING, ENFORCEMENT, MODIFICATION, 
DELETION 

72 



§15- 15-90 Imposition of conditions; genera l l y. 
(a) In approving a petition for boundary amendment, 
the commission may impose conditions necessary to 
uphold the general intent and spirit of chapters 205, 
205A, and 226, HRS, and to assure substantial 
compliance with representations made by the petitioner 
in seeking the boundary amendment . 

(b) The commission may request the appropriate 
state or county agency to report periodicall y to the 
commi ssion on the petitioner 1 s compliance with the 
applicable conditions imposed by the commission . 

(c) The commission may require the petitioner to 
submit periodic reports indicating what· progress has 
been made in complying with any conditions that may 
have been imposed by the commission . 

(d) The commission may require the petitioner to 
notify the commission of any intent to sell, lease, 
assign, place in trust, or otherwise voluntarily alter 
the ownership interests in the property covered by the 
approved petition. 

(e) If a boundary amendment p~tition filed 
pursuant to . section 205- 4, HRS, is approved pursuant to 
section 91-13.5, HRS, or a petition filed pursuant to 
section 201H-38 , HRS , is deemed approved on the forty
sixth day, the following mandatory conditions shall 
apply : 

( 1) Petitioner shall develop the land to which 
the boundary amendment applies in substantial 
compliance with the representations made to 
the commission . Failure to so develop the 
subject property may result in reversion of 
the subject property to its former land use 
district classification, or change it to a 
more appropriate land use district 
classification; 

( 2) Petitioner shall provide notice to the 
commission of any intent to sell, lease, 
assign, place in trust, o r otherwise 
voluntarily alter the ownership interests in 
the subject property prior to or during 
development of t he subject p r operty, 
excluding, however, individual lot sales or 
lease in a residential or industrial 
development ; 

( 3) P,etitioner shall timely provide without any 
prior notice , annual reports to the 
commission, state office of planning, and the 

73 



respective county planning department in 
connection with the s t atus of the project 
proposed for t0e land to which the boundary 
a mendment applies , and petitioner ' s progress 
in complying with the conditions imposed . 
The annual report shall be submitted in a 
form prescribed by t h e executive officer of 
the commission. The annual report shall 
consist of one original, one paper copy , and 
one electronic copy, and shall be due prior 
to or on the anniversary date of the approval 
of the petition; 

(4) The commission may f ully or partially release 
the conditions provided - herein as to all or 
any portion of the land to which t he boundary 
amendment applies upon timely motion and upon 
the provision of adequate assurance by the 
petitioner of satisfaction of the conditions 
imposed ; 

(5) Within seven days of the approval dat e of the 
petition, the petitioner shall: 
(A) Record with the bureau of conveyances a 

s tatement that the l and to which the 
boundary amendment applies is subject to 
conditions imposed herein by the 
commission ; and 

(B) File a certified copy of such recorded 
statement with the commission; 

(6) Petitioner shall record the conditions 
imposed herein by the commission with the 
bureau of conveyances pursuant to section 15-
15-92; 

(7) Petitioner shall provide affordable housing 
opportunities for low, low-moderate, and 
moderate income residents of the State of 
Hawai'i to the satisfaction of the respective 
county in which the land to which the 
boundary amendment appli es is located . The 
respective county shall consult with the 
Hawai'i housing finance and development 

. corporation prior to its approval of the 
petitioner's affordable housing plan . The 
location and distribution of the affordable 
housing or other provisions for affordable 
housing shall be under such terms as may be 
mutually agreeable between the petitioner and 
the respective count y; 

(8) Provided that the proposed land uses · include 
residential units, petitioner shall 
contribute to the development, funding , and 

74 



construction of public school facilities as 
determined by an'd to the satisfaction of the 
state department of education; 

( 9) Petitioner shall participate in the funding 
and construction of adequate wastewater 
tran smission and disposal facilities , on a 
fair-share basis, as determined by the 
respective county in which the land to which 
the boundary amendment applies is located, 
and the state department of health ; 

(10) (10) Petitioner shall prepare a traffic 
-,-- --'--'----
impact 

analysis report . The traffic impact analysis 
report shall identify the traffic impacts 
attributable to the proposed development and 
recommended proposed mitigation measures . 
The report should also reflect the latest 
planning efforts for transportation . The 
report shall be reviewed and approved by the 
state department of transportation, and the 
respective county transportation agency in 
which the land to which the boundary 
amendment applies is located . Based upon the 
report, the petitioner may be required to 
participate on a fair-share basis, in the 
funding and construction of local and 
regional transportation improvements and 
programs , including dedication of rights-of
way as determined by the state department of 
transportation and the respective county 
transportation agency in which the land .to 
which the boundary amendment applies is 
located; 

(11) ·(11) Petitioner shall, on a fair-share basis, 
fund and construct adequate civil defense 
measures as determined by the state civil 
defense agency ; 

(12) (12) Petitioner shall have an archaeological 
i nventory survey conducted by a professional 
archaeologist . The findings shall be 
submitted to the state department of land and 
natural resources, state historic 
preservation division in report format for 
adequacy review and a copy shall be provided 
to the commission . The state historic 
preservation division shall verify in writing 
with a copy provided to the commission that 
the survey report is acceptable, that 
significance evaluations are acceptable, and 
that mitigation commitments are acceptable; 

75 



(13) (1 3) If significant historic sites are 
present, the petitioner shall submit a 
detailed 
historic preservation mitigation p l an for 
review by the state historic preservation 
division and a copy shall be provided to the 
commission . This plan may include 
preservation and archaeological data recovery 
subplans (detailed scopes of work). The 
state historic preservation division shall 
verify in writing with a copy provided to the 
commission that the plan has been 
successfully· executed; 

(14) (1 4) Petitioner shall stop work in the · 
immediate vicinity should any previously 
unidentified burials, archaeological or 
historic sites such a s artifacts, marine 
shell concentrations, charcoal deposits, or 
s t one platforms, pavings or walls be found . 
Subsequent work shall proceed upon an 
archaeological clearance from the state 
historic preservation division when it 
determines that mitigative measures have been 
implemented to its satisfaction; 

(15) (15) Petitioner shall participate in an air 
quality monitoring program as specified by 
the state department of health; 

(16) (16) Petitioner shall be responsible for 
i mplementing sound attenuation measures to 
bring noise levels from vehicular t raffic in 
the affected propert ies down to a level of 
fifty-five decibels ; 

(17) (17) .If the petition for a boundary amendment 
involves prime agricultural lands, petitioner 
shall be responsible for contributing to the 
protection of an equivalent amount of prime 
agricultural lands and related infrastructure 
via long-term agricultural conservation 
easements or other agriculturally-related 
assets as determined by and to the 
satisfaction of the state department of 
agriculture; 

(18) . (18) Petitioner shall notify all prospective 
buyers of property of the potential odor, 
noise, and dust pollution if there are any 
agricultural district lands surrounding the 
land to which the b oundary amendment applies; 

(19) (19) To the extent that the petition area is 
contiguous or adjacent to lands in the State 

76 



land use agricultural district, any action 
that would interfere with or restrain farming 
operations on those lands is prohibited, 
provided the farming operations are conducted 
in a manner consistent with generally 
accepted agricultural and management 
practices. Petitioner shall notify all 
prospective developers or purchasers of all 
or any portion of the petition area or any 
interest in the petition area, and shall 
require its purchasers to provide subsequent 
notification to lessees or tenants that 
farming operations and practices on adjacent 
or contiguous land in the State land use 
agricultural district are protected under 
chapter 165 , HRS, the Hawai 'i Right to Farm 
Act . This notice shall be included in any 
disclosure required for the sale or transfer 
of all or any portion of the petition area or 
any interest in the petition area; 

(20) (20) Petitioner shall fund the design and 
construction of drainage improvements 
required as a result of the development of 
the land to which the boundary amendment 
applies to the satisfaction of the 
appropriate state and county agencies; 

(21) (21 ) Petitioner shall cooperate with the 
state department of health and ·the respective 
county to conform to the program goals and 
objectives of chapter 342G, HRS, and the 
respective county ' s approved integrated solid 
waste management plans in accordance with a 
schedule and timeframe satisfactory to the 
state department of health; 

(22) (22) To the extent requi red by the state 
department of health, petitioner shall ensure 
that nearshore, offshore, and - deep ocean 
waters remain in pristine condi tion ; 

(23 ) (2 3 ) Petitione·r shall participate in the 
funding and construction of adequate water 
source, storage, and transmission facilities 
and improvements to accommodate the proposed 
uses . Water transmission facilities shall be 
coordinated and approved by appropriate state 
and county agencies . The county's water use 
and development plan shall be amended to 
reflect changes in water demand forecasts and 
in water development plans to supply the 
proposed uses; and 

(24) ( 2 4) Pet itioner shall preserve and protect 

77 



any establ i shed gathering and access rights 
of na t ive Hawaiians who have customarily and 
traditionally exercised subsistence , 
cult ural , and religious practices on the land 
to which to the boundary amendment applies . 

(f) If a special permit fil ed pursuant to section 
205-6 , HRS, is approved pursuant to section91-13 . 5 , 
HRS , the following mandatory conditions shall apply: 

(1) All condi tions listed under subsection (e); 
(2) The proposed use shall be established within 

one year from the date that the special 
permit was approved pursuant to section 91-
13 . 5, HRS ; and 

(3) The special per mit shall be valid for a 
period of five years from the approval .date 
pursuant to secti on 91-13 . 5, HRS . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and 
comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

------- - - - ] (Auth : HRS §§91 -13 . 5, 
2 0 5 - 1 , 2 0 5 - 7 ) (Imp : HRS § § 91-13 . 5 , 2 0 5 - 4 ) 

§ 15-15-91 Applicabil ity. Conditions imposed by 
the commi ssion shall run with the land and shall be 
binding upon the petitioner and each and every 
subsequent owner , l essee, sub-lessee, transferee, 
g r antee , assignee, or developer . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 
8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
-,-- --- --,-,~--,--] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) 
(I mp : HRS §205- 4) 

§ 15-15 - 92 Filing procedure for conditions imposed 
by the commission . (a) Within seven days of issuance 
of the decision and order pursuant to section 1 5-1 5-83, 
the petitioner shall f i le a notice of imposition of 
conditions , in a form prescribed by the e xecutive 
officer , with the bureau of conveyances . 

(b) All conditions imposed by the commission in 
its decision and order and conditions pursuant to 
section 15-15-90(e) , shal l be recorded at the bureau of 
conveyances and shall comply with the fol lowing 
procedures: 

(1 ) The document l i sting the conditions shal l be 
submitted to the commission for review and 
approval by the executive officer prior to 
filing with the bureau of conveyances ; 

(2) The petitioner shall record the conditi ons at 

78 



the bureau of conveyances within sixty days 
after the receipt of t h e decision and order 
requir i ng the same. The timeframe for 
recordation of the c ondition may be extended 
pursuant to section 15-15-42 ; 

(3) Evidence of recordation shall be by certified 
copy under the signature of the registrar of 
conveyances. The p e titioner shall forward a 
certified copy . to t he commission; and 

(4 ) · Description of the land shall be sufficiently 
accurate to identify the land intended to be 
affected . [ Eff 10/27 /86 ; am and comp 
8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : 
HRS §§205- 1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 

§ 15 - 15-93 Enforcement o f conditions, 
representations, or commitments .· (a) Any party or 
interested person may file a motion with the commission 
requesting an issuance of an order to show cause upon a 
showing that there has been a failure to perform a 
condition, representation, or commitment on the part of 
the petitioner . The party or person shal l also serve a 
copy of the motion for an order to show cause upon any 
person bound by the condition, representation , or 
commitment. The motion for order to show cause shall 
state : 

( 1) The interest of the movant; 
( 2) The reasons for filing the motion; 
( 3) A description and a map of the property 

affected by the condition; 
(4) The condition ordered by the commission which 

has not been performed or satisfied; 
(5) Concisely and with particularity the facts, 

supported by an affidavit or declaration , 
giving rise to a belief that a . condition 
ordered by the commiss i on has not been 
per f ormed or satisfied; and 

(6) The specific reli ef requested . 
(b) Whenever the commission shall have reason to 

believe that there has been a failure to perform 
according t o the conditions imposed , or the 
representations or commitments made by the petitioner , 
the commission shall issue and serve upon the party or 
person bound by the conditions, representations, or 
commitments , an order to s how cause why the property 
should not revert to its former land use classification 
or be changed to a more appropriate classification . 

79 



•I 

The commission shall serve the o r der to s h ow cause in 
writing by registered or certi fied mail with return 
receipt requested at least thi rty days before the 
hearing. A copy shal l be also sent to all parties in 
the boundary amendment proceedi ngs . The order to show 
cause shall include : 

(1) A statement of the date, time , place, and 
nature of the hearing; 

(2) A descripti on and a map of the property to be 
affected; 

(3) A statement o f the l egal authority under 
which the hearing is to be held; 

(4) The speci f i c sections of the statutes, or 
rules , or both, involved; and 

(5) A statement that any party may retain ·counsel 
if the party so desires . 

(c) The commission shall conduct a hearing on an 
order to show cause in accordance with the requirements 
of subchapter 7, where applicable. Any procedure in an 
order to show cause hearing may be modified or waived 
by stipulation of the parties and informal disposition 
may be made in any case by stipulation, agreed 
settlement , consent order , or default . 

(d) Post hearing procedures shall conform 
to subchapter 7 or subchapter 9. Decisions and orders 
shall be issued in accordance with subchapter 7 or 
subchapter 9 . 

(e) Absent substantial commencemen t of 
construction , the commission may revert the property to 
its former land use classification or a more 
appropriate c l assification . For the purposes of this 
subsection (e) substantial commenceme n t shall be 
determined based on the circumstances or facts 
presented in the order to show cause regardless of 
dollar amount expended or percentage of work completed . 

(f) [--f-e+-J The commi ssion shall amend its decision 
and order to i ncorporate the order to show cause by 
includi ng the reversion of the property to its former 
land use classification or to a more appropriate 
class i fication . 

J_gJ_[#+] Fees for a mot i on for order to show cause 
will be borne by the movant pursuant to section 15-15-
45 . 1 herein. However, should the motion for order to 
show cause be granted , any further fees for proceedings 
arising from the motion shall be borne by the party 
upon which the order to show cause has been issued . 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and 
comp 11/2/2013 ; a m and comp ] (Auth: 

HRS §§205-1, 205- 7) (I mp: HRS §§91-2, 205 - 4, 205-12, 
205-17) 

80 



§15-15-94 Modification or de letion of conditions 
or orders. (a) If a petit i oner, pursuant to this 
subsection, desires to have a modification or deletion 
of a condition that was imposed by the commission, or 
imposed pursuant to section 15-15-90(e) or (f) , or 
modification of the commission 's order , the petitioner 
shall file a motion in accordance with section 15-15-70 
a nd serve a copy on all part ies to the boundary 
amendment proceeding in which the condit i on was imposed 
or in which the order was issued, and to any person 
that may have a property interest in the subject 
property as recorded in the county's real property tax 
r e cords at the time that the motion is filed . 

(b) For good cause shown, the commission may act 
to modify or delete any of the conditions imposed or 
modify the commission 's order. 

(c) Any modification or deletion of conditions or 
modifications to the commission ' s order shall follow 
the procedures set forth in subchapter 11 . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and 
c omp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
- (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205- 4) 

SUBCHAPTER 12 

SPECIAL PERMITS 

§ 15-15-95 Petition before county planning 
commission. (a) Any person who desires to u se land 
within an agricultural or rural district for other than 
a permissible agricultural or rural use may petition 
the county planning commission of the county within 
which the land is located for a special permit to use 
the land in the manner desired; provided that if the 
person is not the owner or sole owner in fee simple of 
the land, the record shall include evidence that the 
person requesting the special permit has written 
authorization of all fee simple owners to file the 
petition , which authorization shall also include an 
acknowledgement that the owners and their successors 
shall be bound by the special permit and i ts 
conditions . 

81 



- --

(b) Special permits for a r eas greater than 
fifteen acres require approval of both the county 
p l anning commission and the commission. Speci a l 
permi ts approved by t he count y planning commiss i on and 
which require commission approval must be forwarded to 
the commi ssion within sixty days fo l'lowing the county 
plannin g commi ssion ' s decision . The county shall 
assure t hat prior to t h e count y heari ng on the petiti on 
for special permit, copies of t he special permit 
petition are forwarded to t he land use commiss i on, the 
state o f fice of planning, and t he department of 
agri culture for their review and comment. The decision 
of the county planning commission recommendi ng approval 
of the special permit , together with the complete 
record , including maps , chart s , other exhibits and 
other evidence , and the complete transcript of the 
proceedi_ng before the county planning commission must 
be tr~nsmitted to the commissi on. Unl ess otherwise 
required by the commiss i on, the planning commission 
s hall file with the commission an origi nal, one paper 
copy of t he complete r ecord, together with an 
e l ectronic copy of the complete record . The number and 
forma t of copies required under this sect i on may be 
modified by order of the commission. 

- (c) Certain " unusual and reasonable " uses within 
agricultural and rural districts other than those for 
which the district is class i fied may be permitted . The 
following gu idelines are established in determini ng an 
"unusual and reasonable use": 

(1 ) The use shall not be contrary to the 
objectives sought to be accomplished by 
chapters 205 and 205A, HRS , and the rules of 
the commission; 

(2) The p r oposed use would not adversely affect 
surrounding property; 

(3) The proposed use would not unreasonably 
burden public agencies to provide roads and 
streets, sewers , water drai nage and school 
improvements , and police and fire protection; 

(4) Unusual conditions , trends, and needs have 
arisen since the district boundari es and 
rules were established; and 

(5) The l and upon which the proposed use is 
sought is unsuited for the uses permitted 
within the district. 

___- (d) Petitions for issuance of a special permit 
shall specify the proposed use and state concisely the 
nat ure of the petit ioner ' s interest i n the subject 
matter and the reasons for seeking the special permit , 
and shall include any facts, views, arguments , maps, 

82 



plans, and relevant data in support of the petition . 
_ _ _ - (e) The petitioner shall comply with all of the 
rules of practice and procedure of the county planning 
commission in which.the subject property is located . 
_ _ _ - (f) The c·ounty planning commission may impose 
such protective conditions as it deems n ecessary in the 
issuance of a special permit . The county planning 
commission shall establish, among other conditio ns, a 
reasonable time limit suited to establishing the 
part icular use p r oposed, and if appropriate, a time 
limit for the duration of the proposed use , which shall 
be a condition o f the special permit ; provided, 
however, that the commission f or good cause shown , may 
specify or change the time period of the speci al 
permit . If the permitted use is not substantially 
established to the satisfaction of the county planning 
commission wi thin t he specified time , it may. revoke the 
permit . The county planning commission, with the 
concurrence of t h e commission, may extend the time 
limi t if it deems that circumstances warrant the 
granting of the extension . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 
8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
- - ~ ,-,,------ - ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
HRS §205-6) 

§15-15-95.1 Applicability of subchapter 5. 
Except as otherwise provided in this subchapter , the 
procedural provisions of subchapter 5 shall apply to 
petitions for special permits . [Eff and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205- 1, 
205-7) 

§ 15- 15-96 Decision and order by the land use 
commission. (a) Within forty-five days after receipt 
of the county planning commission's decision and the 
complete record of the proceeding before the county 
planning commission, as determined by the executive 
officer, the commission shall act to approve, approve 
with modification, or deny the petit i on . The 
commission may impose additional restrictions as may be 
necessary or appropriate in granting the approval , 
including the adherence to representations made by the 
petitioner . Upon determination by the commission, the 
petition may be remanded to the county planning 
commission for further proceedings . 

83 



(b) The commission shall not consider any 
petition for special permit covering substantially the 
same request for substantially the same land as had 
preyi ously been denied by the commission within one 
year of the date of the filing of the findings of fact, 
conGlusions of law, and decision and order denying the 
petition for special permit unless the petitioner 
submits significant new data or additional reasons 
which substantially strengthen the petitioner ' s 
position, provided that in no event shall any new 
petition be accepted within six months of the date of 
the filing of the findi ngs of fact, conclusions of law, 
and decision and order . Additionally, the commission 
shall not consider any petition for special permit for 
the same request involving the same land that was 
before the commission and withdrawn voluntarily by the 
petitioner within one year of the date of the 
withdrawal . 

(c) A denial or modification of the special 
permit, as the case may be, of the proposed use shall 
be appealable to the circuit court of the circuit in 
which the land is situated and shall be made pursuant 
to the Hawai'i rules of civil procedure . 

(d) If a special permi t is approved pursuant to 
section 91-13.5 , HRS , the provisions of section 15-15-
82(e) and section 15-15-90(f) shall apply . [Eff 
10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am 
and comp 11/2/2013 ; cqmp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§91-13 . 5, 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-13 . 5 , 205-6) 

§ 15- 15-96.1 Modification of s pecial permit . Any 
request for modification of a special permit or 
modification, release, or deletion of a condition 
imposed on a special permit , whether imposed by the 
county planning commission or the commission, shall 
first be submitted to the appropriate county plannin g 
commission and , for special permits for land greater 
than fifteen acres in size, the commission, for 
consideration and decision . ' 

The decision of the county planning commission 
with respect to modification of a special permit, or 
modification, release or deletion of a condition to a 
special permit shall comply with the requirements of 
section 15- 15-95 and 15-15-96 . [Eff and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205- 1 , 
205-7) 

84 



SUBCHAPTER 13 

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED HOUSING PROJECTS 

§15-15-97 Procedure for processing petitions for 
housing projects under section 201H-38, HRS. (a) 
Petitions for housing projects under section 201H-38, 
HRS, shall be processed according to the procedures 
provided in this section . 

(b) Not less than sixty days prior to the filing 
of a petition, the petitioner shall : 

(1) File an original , one paper copy, and one 
electronic copy of a notice of intent to file 
a petition with the commission according to a 
format provided by 
the commission; the number and format of 
copies requireJ under this section may be 
modified by order of the ·commission; 

(2) Publish the notice of intent at least once in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the 
State as well as in a county newspaper i n 
which the subject property is situated. The 
notice of intent shall include : 
(A) The name and address of the petitioner 

and the petitioner ' s property interest 
in the subject property ; 

(B) Proposed . boundary 
---amendment; 

(C) Tax map key; 
(D) Acreage; 
(E) Existing land use ; 
(F) Brief description of the proposed 

development or use; 
(G) The date that the petitioner shall f i le 

its petition with the commission; and 
(H) Inform the public of the rights of 

interested persons u_nder section 205-
4 ( e) , HRS; 

(3) Serve copies of the notice of intent to file 
a petition upon the director of the state 
office of planning, the planning department 
of the county in which the subject property 
is situated, and persons with a property 
interest in the subject property that is 
recorded in the county ' s real property tax 
records. The notice of intent to file a 
petition shall also be sent to persons on a 

85 



mailing list provided by the chief clerk . In 
proceedings related to 201H pet i tions , the 
petitioner ' s notice of intent shall also 
serve as the notice of hearing for the 
purposes of intervention; 

(4) File an original and one paper copy of an 
affidavit of mailing the notices of intent to 
the persons specified in paragraph (3) ; and 

(5) File an affidavit of publication of the 
notice of intent to file a petition in 
compliance with paragraph (2). 

(c) Persons who may intervene upon timely 
application include : 

(1) All departments and agencies of the State and 
of the county i n which the land is situated; 
and 

(2) All persons who have a property interest in 
the land, or who otherwise can demonstrate 
that they wi ll be so directly and immediately 
affected by the proposed change that their 
interest in the proceeding is clearly 
distinguishable from that of the general 
public . 

(d) All other persons may apply for leave to 
intervene, which shall be freely granted, provided the 
commission or its hearings officer may den y an 
app+ication to intervene when,, in the commission ' s or 
hearing officer ' s discretion, it appears that : 

(1) The position of the applicant for 
intervention is substantially the s ame as the 
position of a party already admitted to the 
proceeding; and 

(2) The admission of additional parties will 
render the proceedings inefficient and . 
unmanageable . 

(e) Petitions to intervene and become a party 
shall be in conformity with subchapter 5 and filed with 
the commission . An origi nal and one paper copy , 
together with one electronic copy of the petition for 
intervention with proof of service on all parties shall 
be filed with the commission within fifteen days after 
t h e notice of intent to file a petition is published 
pursuant to section 15-15-97(b) (2) . Except for good 
cause shown, late fi ling shall not be permitted . 

(f) The petition for intervention shall make 
r e ference to the following : 

(1) Nature of the proposed intervenor ' s statutory 
or other right ; 

(2) Nature and extent of the proposed 
intervenor ' s interest , and if an abutting 

86 



property owner, the tax map key descripti on 
of t he property; and 

(3) Effect of any decisi on in the proceeding on 
the proposed intervenor ' s interest . 

(g) If applicable, the petition shall also make 
reference to the followi ng : 

( 1) Other means available whereby the proposed 
intervenor ' s interest may be protected; 

(2) Extent the proposed intervenor ' s interest may 
be represented by existi ng parties ; 

(3) Extent the proposed i ntervenor ' s interest in 
the proceeding d i ffers from that of the other 
part ies ; 

(4) Extent the proposed intervenor ' s 
part icipation can assist in development of a 
complete record; 

·(5) Extent the proposed i ntervenor ' s 
participation will broaden the issues; and 

(6) Exten t the proposed intervenor ' s intervention 
would serve the publ i c i nterest . 

(h) Petitions for interventi on shall be 
accompanied by a fil i ng f ee of $50 . The fee shall no t 
apply to state and county agencies. 

(i) The commission may conduct a pre-application 
meeting with the petitioner and proposed parti es to the 
proceeding fo r the purpose of determi ning information 
requirements , possible issues , proposed stipulations , 
and other matters which may assist i n contributing to a 
more orderly hearing process. 

( j ) I f the petitioner fails to file the petition 
on the date stated in its notice of intent , the 
petitioner shall refile a notice of intent in the 
manner set forth in this secti on . 

(k) The petitioner shal l file a petition in 
conformance with subchapters 5 and 6 except that at the 
time of filing , the petition shal l i nclude : 

(1) A finding of no significant impact or 
approved 
envir onmental impact statement if 
conservation district lands are involved; 

(2) A proposed decision and order ; 
(3) An affidavit that the petitioner has met wi th 

interested community groups to discuss the 
proposed project; 

(4) A clear description of the manner i n which 
petitioner proposes to finance the proposed 
development, including a budget , a marketing 
plan, and a feasibility study; and 

(5) A certification from the Hawai'i hous ing 
finance and development corporation or county 

87 



housing agency that the petition involves a 
section[+ ] 201H-38, ~RS, housing project~ 
including a certified copy of an approved 
county council resolution approving the 
pro j ect with conditions and any exemptions 
granted. 

(1) Petitions that fail to comply with the 
requirements set forth in subsections (b) and (k) shall 
be deemed defective and the date of filing of the 
petition shall be as of the date the defect is cured . 

(m) The hearing on the appl ication shall be 
conducted in accordance with subchapter 7 , except that 
t h e time requirements for holding a hearing , statement 
of position, and decision making shall not apply . 

(n) Notice of the hearing shall be published to 
the extent provided by law . 

(o) The commission shall approve or disapprove a 
boundary amendment within forty-five days after the 
petition has been deemed a proper filing by the 
executive officer. If on the forty-sixth day the 
petition i s not disapproved, it shall be deemed 
approved by the commission, and the provisions of 
section 15-15-90(e) shall apply . [Eff 3/20/87 ; am 
7/18/94 ; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00 ; am 
and comp 11 /2/2013 ; a m and comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§201G-118, 205-1 , 205-4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§§205-4 , 201G-118) 

§ 15- 15-97.1 REPEALED. [R 5/8/00] 

§ 15-15-97 .2 Fees. The petitioner will be 
responsible for fees pursuant to section 15-15-45 . 1 . 
[Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4 . 1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 
92-21 , 205-4 . 1) 

SUBCHAPTER 14 

DECLARATORY ORDERS 

§ 15-15-98 Who may petition. (a) On petit ion of 
any interested person, the commission may issue a 

88 



declaratory order as to the applicability of any 
statutory provision or of any rule or order of the . 
commission to a specific factual situation. 

(b) A farmer or landowner with lands qualifying 
under section 205-45, HRS, may file a petition for 
declaratory order to designate the lands as important 
agricultural lands and shall file a petition that 
conforms to the requirements of this section and 
section 205-4 4 and 205-45, HRS . 

(c) Notwithstanding the other provisions of this 
subchapter , the commission, on its own motion or upon 
request but without notice of hearing, may issue a 
declaratory order to terminate a controversy or to 
remove uncertainty . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 
5/8/00; am and comp 11 /2/2013 ; comp ] 

(Auth : HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7) {Imp: HRS §§91-2, 
91-8) 

§ 15 - 15- 99 Pe titio n for declarato ry order; form 
and c ontents . The petition shall be submit ted 
consisting of one original, one paper copy, and one 
e l ectronic copy, and shall conform to the format 
requirements of sections 15- 15-38, 15-15-39, and 15-15-
40, and shall contain : 

(1) The name, addDess including zip code, and 
telephone number of each petitioner; 

(2) A statement of the petitioner's interest in 
the subject matter , including the reasons for 
submission of the petition; 

(3) A designation of the specific statutory 
provision, rule, or order in question , 
together with a complete statement of the 
relevant facts and a statement of the issues 
raised or controversy or uncertainty 
involved; 

(4) A statement of the petitioner's 
inter·pretation of the statute, rule or order 
or the petitioner ' s position or contention 
with respect thereto ; 

(5) A memorandum of authorities, containing a 
full discussion of reasons and l ega l 
authorities in support of such position or 
contention. The commission may require the 
petitioner to file additional data or 
memoranda ; 

(6) The names of any other potenti~l parties; 
(7) The signature of each petitioner; and 
(8) A statement whether the petition for 

89 



declaratory ruling relates to any commission 
docket for district boundary amendment o r 
special permit , and if so , the docket number 
a nd identification of all parties to the 
docket . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 
5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §§91-8 ,...,...--,---- ----- -2 0 5 - 1 , 2 0 5-7 ) ( I mp : HRS § § 91-2 , 91-8 ) 

§ 15-15-100 - Consideration of petition for 
declaratory order. (a) The commission , within ninety 
days after submission of a petition for declaratory 
order, shall : 

(1) Deny the petition where : 
(A) The question is speculative or purely 

hypothetical and does not involve an 
exist i ng situation or one which may 
reasonably be expected to occur i n the 
near future ; or 

(B) The pet i tionet' ' s i nterest is not of the 
type which confers suff icient standing 
to maintain an action in a court of law; 
or 

(C) The issuance of the declaratory order 
may adversely affect the interest of the 
State , the commission, or any of the 
officers or employees in any litigation 
which is pending o r may be reasonabl y be 
expected to arise ; or 

(D) The petitioner requests a rul i ng on a 
statutory provision not administered by 
the commission or the matter is not 
otherwise within . the jurisdiction of the 

. commission; or 
(2) Issue a declaratory order on the matters 

contai~ed in the petition; or 
(3) Set the petition for hearing before the 

commission or a hearings officer in 
accordance with this subchapter . The 
procedures set forth in subchapter 7 shall be 
applicable . 

(b) If the matter is set for hearing , the · 
commission shall render its f i ndings and deeision 
within one hundred and twenty days after the close of 
the hearing or, if post hearing briefs are filed, 
forty-five days after the last brief is filed , unless a 
different time period is stated at the h earing . [Eff 
10/27/86 ; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 

90 



11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§91 -
~8-, ----=2~0=5-- ~1-, -'--=2=0=5-- ~7~) --:-(I~m- p_ : ______,H=R~S=----§=§=9~1~-~2=-, 91-8) 

§ 15-15-101 Declarat ory orders ; dismissal of _ 
petition. The commission < without notice or hearing, 
may dismiss a petition for declaratory order that fails 
in material respect to comply wi th the requirements of 
this s ubchapter . The dismis§al shall be in writing and 
state the reasons t herefor . ' [Eff 1 0 /27 /8 6 ; am and comp 
8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§91-8, 205 - 1, 205-7)-,-----------~ ~-(Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91- 8) 

§ 15-15-102 REPEALED . [-i+R- - R _11 /2 /2013] 

§ 15-15-103 Declaratory o rders ; r e quest for 
hearing. The commission . may, but shall not be required 
to, conduct a h earing on a petition for declaratory 
order . Any petitioner or party in interest who des i res 
a hearing on a peti tion for a declaratory order shatl 
set forth in detail in the reques t t h e reasons why t he 
matters alleged in the petition , together with 
s upport i ng affidavit s or other wri t ten briefs or 
memoranda of legal authorities , will not permit the 
fair and expedi tious dispos i tion of the petition, and 
to the extent that the request for a hearing i s 
dependent upon factual assertion , shall accompany the 
request by affidavit establishing those facts. 
[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 
5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] 

(Aut h : HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 2 05-7 ) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 
91- 8) 

§ 15-15-104 Applicability of declaratory order. 
An order disposing of a petition shall apply only to 
the factua l situati on described in the petition or set 
forth i n the order . It shall not be applicabl e to 
different fact situations or where additional facts not 
considered in the order exist . The order shall h ave 
the same force and effect as o t her orders issued by the 
commission . [Eff 10/27 /86 ; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 
5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp J 

91 



(Auth : HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 
91-8) 

15-15-104.1 Fees . The Petitioner shall be 
responsible for fees pursuant to section 15-15-45.1 
h erei n . [Eff and comp _1~1~/ _2~/_2_0_1_3~;_c_o_m~p,...._'---- - - - -
- (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4 . 1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§§91-2, 92-21, 205-4 . 1) 

SUBCHAPTER 15 

RULEMAKING PROCEDURES 

§15-15-105 Initiation of rulemaking proceedings , 
(a) The commission, at any time on its own 

motion, may initiate proceedings for the adoption , 
amendment , or repeal of any rule of the commission . 

(b) Any interested person may petition the 
commission for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of 
any rule of the commission . The petitioner shall file 
and deliver one original , one paper copy and on e 
electronic ·copy of the petition to the office of the 
commission . The number and format of copies required 
under this section may be modifi ed by order of the 
commission . Petitions for rulemaking filed with the 
commission shall become matters of public record . [Eff 
10/27/86 ; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp . ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 91-6, 205-7) 

§15-15-106 Rulemak·ing; form a nd contents of 
petition. Petitions for rulemaking need not be in any 
special form but shall conform to the requirements of 
this subchapter and s h all c ontain: 

(1) The n 9 me, address (including zip code), and 
telephone number of each petitioner; 

(2) A statement of the petitioner's interest in 
the subject matter; 

(3) A statement of the reasons in support of the 
proposed rule , amendment , or repeal ; 

(4) The authorization or relief sought; 
(5) The citation of the statutory provision or 

92 



other authority under which commission 
authorization or relief is sought ; 

(6) A draft or the substance of the proposed rule 
or amendment or a designation of the 
provisions the repeal of which is desired; 
and 

(7) The signature of each petitioner . 
Any petition which does not conform to the foregoing 
requirements may be rejected by the commission. The 
rejection shall be in writing and shall state the 
reasons therefor . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; am and 
comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 1'1/2/201 3 ; comp ] 
- (Auth : HRS §§91-13 . 5 , 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-
13.5, 91-6, 205.:..7) 

§15-15-107 Rulemaking ; action on petition. (a) 
Within sixty days after the filing of a petition for 
rulemaking, the commission shall either deny the 
petition in writing, stating its reasons for its denial 
or initiate proceedings for the adoption , amendment, or 
repeal of the rule, in accordance with section 91-3, 
HRS . 

l 

(b) Any petition that fails in material respect 
to comply with the requirements of this subchapter, or 
that fails to disclose sufficient reasons to justify 
t h e institution of public rulemaking proceedings shall 
not be considered by the commission . The commission 
shall notify the petitioner in writing o f the denial, 
stating the reasons therefor . Denial of a petition 
shall not prevent the commission from acting on its own 
motion on any matter contained in the petition. 

(c) If the commission determines that the 
petition is in order and that it discloses sufficient 
reasons in support of the proposed rulemaking to 
justify the institution of rulemaking proceedings , the 
procedures to be followed shall be as set forth in 
sections 15-15-108 , 15-15-109, 15- 15- 110 , and chapter 
92, HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 
5/8/00; am and comp 1 1/2/2013 ; comp ] 
(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-3, 91-6, 

92-1, et seq . ) 

§15-15-107.1 Commission action. The commission 
shall consider all statements , views, comments , and 
documents of record before taking final action in a 
rulemaking proceeding. Unless otherwise provided by 

93 



law, any decision r endered pursuant to this subchapter 
shall not be subject to a motion for r econsideration or 
judicial review. The adoption, amendment or repeal of 
a rule is subject to approval of the governor and 
filing with the lieutenant governor . [Eff and comp 
11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-
1, . 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-3) 

§15-15-108 Rulemaking; notice of public hearing . 
(a) When, pursuant to a petition therefor or upon 

its own motion, the commission proposes to adopt , 
amend, or repeal any rule, the notice of hearing 
shall be published pursuant to the requirements of 
sections 1-28 .5 and 91 - 3, HRS . The notice of heari ng 
shall also be mai led to a ll persons or agencies who 
have made timely written requests for advance notice of 
the commission ' s r ulemaking proceedings at their last 
recorded address . The notice o f heari ng shall be 
published at least thirty days prior to the date set 
for public hearing. The notice of hearing shall also 
be filed with the lieutenant governor ' s office . 

(b) A notice of the proposed adoption, amendment, 
o r repeal of a rule shall i nclude : 

(1) A statement o f the date, time, and place 
where the public hearing will be held; 

(2) Reference to the authority under which the 
adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule is 
proposed ; and 

(3) A statement of the substance of the proposed 
rules . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

- - -----,=-c-_ _ ___ __] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-
7) (Imp: HRS §§1-28.5, 91-3, 92-41) 

§ 15-15- 109 Rulemaking; conduct of public hearing. 
(a) The chairperson· of the commission or, in the 

chairperson ' s absence, another member designated by the 
commission, or a duly appointed hearings officer shall 
conduct the public hearing for the adoption, amendment, 
or repeal of the rules . The commission shal l afford 
interested persons a reasonable opportunity to offer 
testimony with respect to the matter specified in the 
notice of hearing, in order to obtain a clear and 
orderly record . The presiding officer shall have 
authority to administer oaths or affirmations and to 
take all other actions necessary to the o rderly conduct 

94 



of the hearing. 
(b) Each such public hearing shall be held at the 

time and place set in the notice of hearing but may at 
that time and place be continued by the presiding 
officer from day to day or adjourned to a later date or 
to a different place without notice other than the 
announcement thereof at the hearing . 

(c) At the commencement of the hearing, the 
presiding officer shall read the notice of hearing and 
shall outline briefly the procedure to be followed. 
Testimony shall then be received with respect to t h e 
matters specifi ed in the notice of hearing in such 
order as the presiding officer shall prescribe . 

(d) Each witness, before proceeding to testify, 
shall state the witness' name, address, and whom the 
witness represents at the hearing, and shall give· any 
information respecting the witness ' appearance 
as the presiding officer may request . The presiding 
officer shall confine the testimony to -the matters for 
which the hearing has been called . In order to allow 
persons to have an equ al amount of time to testify, or 
to prevent cumulative unnecessary testimony, the 
presiding officer may limit the' amount of time for 
testimony per individual or per i ssue . Every witness 
may be subject to questioning by the members of the 
commission or by any other representative of the 
commission . Questions by other than commission members 
or staff shall be permitted only at the discretion of 
the presiding officer . 

(e) All interested persons or agencies shall be 
afforded an opportunity to submit data, views, or 
arguments orally or in writing that are relevant to the 
matters specified in the notice of hearing . A person 
may submit written comments, data, views, ·or arguments 
ten days after the close of the scheduled public 
hearing date. An original and one paper copy and one 
electronic copy of written comments, recommenda.tions, 
replies , or exhibits shall be submitted . 

(f) Unless otherwise specifically ordered by the 
commission, testimony given at the public hearing shall 
not be reported verbatim . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 
8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 

] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205 - 7)- ------=-~-~ -~ (Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 91- 3) 

§ 15-15- 11 0 Eme rge ncy rulemaking. If the 
commission finds that an imminent peril to public 
health or safety requires adoption, amendment, or 

95 



repeal of a rule upon less than thirty days notice•of 
hearing, and states in writing its reasons for that 
finding, it may adopt emergency rules pursuant to 
section 91-3(b) and 91~4, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00 ; am and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ __] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
- HRS §§91-3 , 91-4) 

SUBCHAPTER 16 

LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

- --§ 15-15-111 Land use district boundaries. (a) 
The boundaries of land use districts are shown on the 
land use district maps, entitled " Land Use District 
Boundaries, dated December 20, 1974 ," as amended, 
maintained and under the custody of the commission . 

(b) The official maps entitled " Land Use District 
Boundaries , dated December 20, 1974,'' as amended, are 
located in the commission office . [Eff 10 /27/86; am 
and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00 ; comp 11/2/2013 ; comp 
_ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
- HRS §205-1) 

SUBCHAPTER 17 
I • 

IMPORTANT AGRICULTURAL LAND DESIGNATION AND PROCEEDINGS 

§ 15-15-12 0 Criteria and procedure for the 
identification of important agricultural lands . (a) 
The commission shall not approve a petition to have 
land designated as importan t agricultural land, either 
in whole or in part, unless the commission finds upon a 
clear preponderance of the evidence, t hat the 
designation is reasonable and consistent w{th the 
policies of chapter 205 HRS and the provisions of this 
subchapter 17 . 

(b) Any petition seeking to designate lands as 
~im_ p_o-rtant- agricultural lands shall adhere to the 
requirements of subchapter 14 of this chapt er . A 

96 



petition seeking to designate lands as important 
agricultural lands and a reclassification of lands t6 
urban, rural or conservation under section 205-45, HRS , 
or a credit for reclassification of lands to urban , 
rural or conservation, shall be s~t for hearing in 
accordance with section 15-15-100 . · Any hearing set for 
determination of a petition for designation of 
important agricultural lands under this section shall 
be held pursuant to the procedures and requirements set 
forth in section 205-4, HRS, and subchapters 7 and 14 
of this chapter . Petitions to intervene shall follow 
the procedures and requirements contained in section 
15-15-52 . 

{c) In review of any petition seeking, in part or 
in whole, to have· lands classified as important 
agricultural lands, the commis-sion shall specifically 
consider the following: 

(1) - Whether the land i s c u rrently used for 

agricultural production; 

(2) The land ' s soil qualities and whether the 
growing conditions support agricultural 
production of food, fiber , or fuel- and 
energy-producing crops; 

(3) The land's classification or identification 
under agricultural productivity rating 
systems, such as the agricultural lands of · 
importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH) 
system adopted by the board of agriculture on 
January 28, 1977; 

(4) If the land has been or is a type that has 
b een associated with traditional native 
Hawaiian agricultural uses, such as taro 
cultiva tion , or unique agricultural crops and 
uses, such as coffee, vineyards, aquaculture, 
and energy production; 

(5) The land shall have sufficient quantities of 
water to support viable agricultural 
production; 

(6) I f the land ' s designation as important 
agricultural lands will be consistent with 
general, development, and community plans of 
the county; 

(7) Land that contributes to maintaining a 
critical land mass important to agricultural 
operating productivi ty; and 

97 



(8) Whether t he land has , or i s near, support 
infrastructure conducive to agricultural 
product ivity, such as transportation to 
markets, water, or power. 

(d) If a pet ition is limited solely to designation 
by a landowner of important agricultural lands, the 
commission s hall weigh the criteria set forth in 
section 15-15-120(c) against each other to meet the 
objectives of section 205-42 HRS . 

(e) Th e commission shall not accept any petition 
to designate lands as i mportant agri cultural l ands 
covering substantially the same request for 
substant iall y the same land as had previously been 
deni ed by t h e commission within one year of the date of 
filing of findings of fact and conclusions of l aw 
denying the petition . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp 

______ _ ___ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205-
45) (Imp: HRS §205- 44) 

§ 15-15-121 Petition by farmer or landowner. 

(a) A farmer or landowner seeking to have l ands 
designated important agricultural lands may file a 
petition for declaratory ruling with t he commission 
seeking to have its lands designated important 
agricultural lands . 

(b) The petition for declaratory ruling shall be 
submitted in accordance with subchapter 14 and shall 
include : 

(1) - Tax map keys of the land to be designated 
- along wi th verification and authori zation 

from the applicable landowne rs ; 

(2) - Proof of qualification for designation under 
- section 15-15-120; and 

(3) - The current or planned agri cul tural use of 
- the area to be designated . 

(c) The commission shall review the petition and 
the accompanying submissions to evaluate the 
qualifications of the land for designation as i mportant 
agricultural lands in accordance with section 15 - 15-
121. 

(d) A p etit ion for declaratory order seeki ng 
designati on of lands as important agricultural lands 
shall only be granted if a two-thirds majority of t he 

98 



commi ss i on finds , after i ts review and evaluation and 
based upon a preponderance of the evidence , that the 
subject lands qual i fy for designation as important 
agricultural lands under t h is subchapter and sections 
205-44 and 205-45 , HRS. If a pet i tion fails to receive 
the affirmative votes of two-thirds of the 
commissioners, findings of fact, conclusions of law and 
a decision and order denying t he petition shall be 
fi l ed by the commission . [Eff and comp 11/2/20,13 ; comp 
_ _ ________] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205-
45) (Imp : HRS §205- 45) 

§ 15-15-122 Petition by farmer or landowner for 
designation of important agricultural land and urban , 
rural or conservation re-classification. (a) A 
landowner may , wi t hin t h e same pet ition for .declaratory 
order as described in s ubsect ion 15-15-121, request 
the reclassific a t ion of a port ion of the land which is 
the sub j ect of the petition in the agricultural 
district to the rural, urban , or conservation district , 
or a combination thereof . The land sought to be 
reclassified as urban , rural or conservation shall : 

(1) - Be with in the same count y as the land sought 
to be designated as important agricultural 
lands ; 

(2) - If the recl assification of the land is 
proposed to the urban district , that 
reclassification to urban is consistent with 
the relevant county general and community, 
development, or community devel opment plans ; 
and 

(3) - Be no more than fifteen percent of the total 
acreage whi ch is th~ subject of the petition 
s u ch that at least eight y-five per cent of 
the total acreage wh ich is the subject of the 
petition is sought to be designated as 
important agricultural land; and 

(41 - Meet all of the requirements of subchapter 8 
herein . 

(b) In a petition for declaratory order under r , 

this sectiori seeking to designate lands important 
agricultural lands in the agricult ural district to the 
rural, conservation or urban district, the lands to be 
designa ted important agricultural lands shall be deemed 
qual ified fo r such designation only if the commission 
reasonably finds t hat the lands meet the criteria of 
sections [15 [ 115 120(c) (5) ] 15 - 15-120(c) (5) and (c) (7) . 

(c) - A petition for declaratory order under this 

99 



section shall be submitted in accordance with 
subchapter 14 and be set for initial hearing within 90 
days of submission . The procedure for the hearing 
shall be in conformance with the procedures set forth 
in subchapter 7, and shall include: 

(1) Tax map key numbers of the land to be 
designated as important agricultural lands 
and, if appl icable , t he land to be 
reclassified from the agricultural district 
t o the rural, urban, or conservat i on 
district; 

(2) Verification of ownership and/or 
authorization from the applicable landowners; 

(3) Proof of qualification for designation as 
important agricultural lands under this 
subchapter; 

(4) The current or planned agricultural use of 
the area sought to be designated as important 
agricultural lands ; and 

(5) The current or planned use of the area sought 
to be reclassified to the rural, urban, or 
conservation district . 

(d) An application for a declaratory order to 
designate important agricultural land in combination 
with the reclassification of agricultural land to the 
rural, urban, or conservation district shall not be 
deemed a proper filing until the petitioner has 
submitted a certification, issued by the state 
department of agriculture as to the quality of the land 
which i s the subject of the petition. 

(e) In review of any petition seeking to have 
lands cla ssified as important agricultural lands in 
combination wit'h a request to reclassify a portion of 
the agricultural land to the urban, rural or 
conservation designation, the commission shall review 
the petition and the accompanying submissions in 
accordance with this subchapter and section 205-44, 
HRS. The commission shall also specifically determi ne , 
by a preponderance of the evidence whether: 

(1) The land is suitable for the reclassification 
in accordance with subchapters 2 and 8; and 

(2) If the reclassification of a portion the land 
is proposed to the urban district, that 
reclassification to urban is consistent with 
the relevant county general and community , 
development, or community development plan . 

(f) Approval of a petition for designation of 
important agricultural lands in conjunction with a 
petition for urban, rural or conservation 
reclassification under this section shall require 

100 



approval by a vote of a two- thir ds majority of the 
commissioners . The commission shall include reasonable 
conditions in its order. 

(g) Should the commission find that either the 
designati~n of land~ in the pet i tion sought to be 
identified as important agricultural l a nds or the lands 
identified in the petition for reclassification to 
urban, rural , or conservatio n is not supported by a 
preponderance of the evidence and s hould not b e 
approved , the commission shall deny the petition in its 
entirety . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp 
--:-;::--:---,-,=-----=c-=--=-=c-=-=-] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205-
45 ) (Imp : HRS §205-45) 

§ 15-15-123 Adherence to chapter 343 HRS. A 
petition filed under thi s s ubsection, if applicable, 
shall adhere to the requirements of chapter 343, HRS . 
No petition under this subchapter will be deemed 
complete unles s it has met the requirements of chapter 
3 43, HRS . [Eff - and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , - 205-7 , 205-45) 

§ 15-15-124 Private landowner credits in important 
agricultural land proceeding. (q) _ The commission 
shall allow a petitioner for an important agricultural 
land designation to reserve the right to designate 
lands for reclassification t o urban , rural , or 
conservation at a future proceeding . The commission 
shall not grant a landowner the right to reserve lands 
for future reclassificat ion greater than fifteen 
percent of the total acreage of land which is the 
subject of the petition, total acreage being the land 
sought to be designated important agricultural land 
plus t he land sought to be reclassified urban , rural or 
conservation . 

(b) Where a petitioner submits a petition £or 
designatl on of lands as important agricul tural lands in 
combination with· a request to reclassify lands urban, 
rural or conservation a nd the commission grants the 
petition under this subchapter, the petitioner may, if 
specifically requested in the petition, obtain credits 
for the difference b etween fifteen percent of the 
total amount of land requested to be reclassified as 
u r ban , rural and conservation and the amount of land 
set forth in the petition to be so reclassified, if the 

101 



amount of land for reclassification to urban, rural or 
conservation set forth in the petition is less than 
fifteen percent of the total land subject to the 
petition . 

(c) In order to preserve the right to reclassify 
lands und er this section at a future proceeding a 
request for future credits must be specified in any 
petition for designation of important agricultural 
l ands or petition for designation of important 
agricultural lands in conjunction w~th a request to re
classify lands to the urban, rur?l or conservation 
district. 

(d) If a petition fails to include a request for 
future cr edits under subsection -+a+ [--f-Bt] (a) or 
rf-e+ [-fet] (b) , the petitioner's right to s u ch credits 
shall be waived and the petitioner shall be barred from 
claiming the credits at a future date . 

(e) Credits held by a petitioner under this 
section may only be applied to lands owned or held by 
the petitioner in the same county as the lands 
designated important agricultural lands in the original 
petition giving rise to the credits are located . 

(f) In order to utilize such credits to have 
lands recl assified under this section the petitioner 
must, prior to utilization of such credits and before 
the credits are applied to any land to be reclassified, 
file a petition for declaratory order pursuant to 
subchapters 5 and 14 and section 15-15-123. · 

(g) A petition for use of credit for · re
classific ation of land granted under this section must 
be filed within ten years of the effective date of the 
original order by ·which the credits were granted by the 
commission. Unused credits shall expire and become 
unusable if not used within ten years from the 
eff ective date the original order by which the credits 
were granted by the c.ommission. 

(h) Credits issued under this section may only be 
used by t he petitioner awarded the credits under the 
original declaratory order granting the credits . 
Unused or unexhausted credits awarded under this 
section may not be transferred to another person . 

(i) If a petitioner files a request for 
declarato ry order to utilize credits held pursuant to 
this section the commission shall not grant such 
petition unless: 

(1) By a preponderance of the_evidence presented, 

102 



the land is suitable for reclassification in 
accordance with sections 205-2· and 205-3 . 1, 
HRS; 

(2) The reclassification is consistent with the 
relevant county general and, development, or 
community development plans ; 

(3) By a preponderance of the evidence presented, 
the land sought to be reclassified is 
suitable for reclassification in accordance 
with subchapters 2 and 8; and 

(4) The petitioner has met all of the 
requirements of chapter 343 HRS with regard 
to the subject petition. [Eff and comp 
11/2/2013; am and comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205-45) (Imp: HRS 
§205-45) 

§15-15-125 County identification of impo rtant 
agricult ural lands. (a) Receipt of recommendations 
and maps from the plannin g department of a county under 
section 205-48 , HRS, shall not be considered a petition 
for a declaratory order designating land within its 
jurisdiction as important agricultural lands . The 
commission shall however , designate lands within the 
relevant county and adopt maps designating important 
agricultural lands in such county within 365 days of 
the s ubmission being deemed complete pursuant to 
subsection (b). Such time period for determination may 
be extended for a period of up to one hundred and 
eighty days by order of the chairperson of the 
commission. The form and cont ent of the 
county recommendations shall conform to the 
requirements of sections 205-42, 205-43, 205-44 , and 
205-47, HRS . 

(b) The county making such recommendations to 
designate land important agricultural lands shall 
provide the commission a complete record of its 
proceedings in support of its recommendation, including 
evidence the county has specifically adhered to the 
requirements of section 205-47, HRS, including records 
evidencing that : 

(1) Maps of potential lands to be considered for 
designation as important agricultural lands 
have been developed in consultation and 
cooperation with landowners, the state 

103 



department of agriculture, agricultural 
interest groups, including representatives 
from the Hawai'i farm bureau federation and 
other agricultural organizations, the United 
States department of agriculture - natur al 
resources conservation service , the state 
office of planning, and other groups as 
necessary . 

(2) Each county, through its planning department, 
has utilized an inclusive process for p ublic 
involvement in the identification of 
potential lands and the development of maps 
of l a nds to be recommended as i mportant 
agricultural lands, including a series of 
public meetings throughout the identification 
and mapping process . 

(3) The county has ta ken notice of those lands 
already de_signated ,important agricu~tural 
lands by the commission . 

(4) Upon identification of potential lands to be 
recommended to the county council as 
potential important agricu ltura l lands, each 
county has taken reasonable action to notify 
each owner of those lands by mail or poste d 
notice on the affected lands to inform them 
of the potential designation of t heir lands . 

(5) Evidence that the important agricultural 
lands mapping rel ates to, supports, and is 
consistent with the : 

(A) Standards and criteria set forth in 
section 205-44 , HRS , and this subchapter 
have . been met; 

(B) County ' s adopted land use plans, as 
applied to both . the identification and 
excl usion of important agricultural 
lands from such designation; 

(C) Comments received from government 
agencies and others identified in 
section 205-47(b), HRS; 

(D) Viability of existing agri businesses; 

(E) Represe ntati ons or position statements 
of t he owners whose lands are subject to 
the potential designation; and · 

(F) Any other relevant information. 

(6) The important agricultural lands maps have 
104 



been adopted by the county council, by 
resolution. 

(c) A submission by a county under this section 
shall not be deemed complete unless all of the evidence 
set forth in section 15-15-125(b) has been transmitted 
and accepted by the commission. 

(d) Any hear ing under this section shall adhere 
to the procedures set forth in this subchapter and 
subchapters 1 and 5, and shall be conducted as a 
rulemaking proceeding in accordance with section 15-15-
109 artd held in the relevant county . · 

(e) The commission may, under this section: 

(1) Remand the matter back to the county for 
further review or clarificati on; 

(2) Adopt the recommendations of the county in 
its entirety after receipt of the complete 
record from the county pursuant to section 
15-15-126, and designate lands in such county 
as important agricultural lands; or 

(3) Based on evidence presented, amend or revise 
the county recommendation and proposal to 
exclude, or include, certain lands from· 
designation as important agricultural l ands . 

(f) The county shall serve a file-stamped copy of 
the county report and maps submitted pursuant to a 
petition under this section on the state department of 
agriculture and the state office of planning within one 
business day of filing with the commission. The state 
office of planning and state department of agriculture 
shall review the county submi ttal pursuant to section 
205-48 , HRS, and provide comments to the commission 
within forty - five days of the county filing being 
deemed complete. 

(g) - Approval of maps and a designation of 
important agricultural lands under this section shal l 
require the affirmative vote of two- thirds of the 
commission . [Eff and comp 11 /2/2013 ; comp 

_____ _ _ _ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS 
§§205-47, 205- 48, 205-49) 

§ 15-15-126 Criteria for designation of lands as 
important agricultural lands pursuant to county 
recommendation. (a) In des i gnating important 

105 



agricultur al lands in the state, pursuant to the 
recommendations of individual counties, the commission 
shall consider the extent to which : 

- (1) The proposed lands meet the standards and 
criteria under section 205-44 , HRS , and 
section 15-15-120 ; 

(2) The proposed desi gnati on is necessary to meet 
the objectives and pol icies for important 
agricultural lands in sections 205- 42 and 
205- 43, HRS ; and 

(3) The commission has designated lands within 
.the c ounty as important agricul tural lands , 
pursuant to this subchapter . 

. I (b )- Should the commission determine that more 
than fiftypercent of a landowners ' landholdings, 
excluding lands held in the conservation district, are 
already designated as important agricul tural lands , 
pursuant to this subchapter, the commission shall not 
designate any ·additional lands of that. landowner as 
important agricultur al ·1ands except by a petition from 
the lan downer pursuant to this subchapter . 

(c) The designation of lands as important 
agricultural lands and the adoption of maps of those 
lands pursuant to this section s hall be based upon 
written findings of fact and conclusions of law, and a 
s h owing by a preponderance of the evidence that t h e 
subject lands meet the standards and criteria set fort h 
in section 15-15-120 . 

(d) Designation of agricultural lands as 
important- agricultural lands under this section shall 
be by an affirmative vote of t wo-th irds of the 
membership to which the commission is entitled. If the 
petition is not approved by a vote of two-thirds 
majority of the commission it shall be deemed deni ed. 

[Eff and comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-47 , 205-49) 

§ 15-15-127 Standards and criteria for the 
reclassification or rezoning of important agricul t ural 
lands . (a) Any land use district boundary amendment 
or change i n zoning invol ving important agricultural 
lands identified pursuant to this subchapter shall be 
con sidered as, and meet the submittal req uirements for , 
a district boundary amendment under this chapter . 

106 



(b) An application for a special permit involving 
important agricultural lands shall i nclude evidence 
that the request has been referred to the state 
department of agriculture and the state office of 
planning for review and comment and contain as part of 
the petition any comments or recommendations made by 
both the state department of agriculture and the state 
office of planning . 

(c) In addition to the criteria set forth in 
subchapter 8, any decision by the commission or county 
pursuant to this section shall specifically consider, 
and find by a preponderance of the evidence, that : 

(1) - The land t o be reclassified is not critical 
for agriculture based on the amount of 
simi larly suited lands in the area and the 
State as a whole; 

(2) - The proposed district boundary amendment or 
zone change will not harm the productivity or 
viability of existing agricultural activity 
in the area , or adversely affect the 
viability of other agricultural activities or 
operations that share infrastructure, 
processing, marketing , or other production
related costs or facilities with the 
agricultural activities on the land in 
question; 

(3) The district boundary amendment or zone 
change will not cause the fragmentation of or 
intrusion of nonagricultural uses into 
largely intact areas of lands identified by 
the State as important agricultural lands 
that create residual parcels of a size that 
would preclude viable agricul tural use ; 

(4) The public benefit to be derived f rom the 
propose·d action i s justified by a need for 
additional lands for nonagricultural 
purposes; 

(5) The proposed district boundary amendment or 
zone change will not negatively impact the 
ability or capacity of state and county 
agencies to provide and support addi tional 
agricultural infrastructure or services in 
the area; 

(6) The public benefit from the proposed district 
boundary amendment or zone change outweighs 
the benefits of retaining the land for 
agricultural purposes; 

107 



(7) The proposed action will have no significant 
impact upon the viabili ty of agricultur al 
operations on adjacent agricultural lands ; 

(8) The decision- making criteria of subchapter 8 
governi ng decisions of the land use 
commission on district boundary amendments 
have been met ; and 

(9) The decision-making criteria adopted by each 
county to govern decisions of county 
decision-making aµthor i tie s under this 
chapter have been met . 

(d) - --The reclassification of lands designated 
as important agri cultural sh~ll be based upon written 
findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to 
subchapters 7 and 11 . 

(e) A reclassification of lands designated as 
important agricul tural lands shall be by a n affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the membership to which the 
commission is entit l ed . 

(1) I f the pet i tion is not approved by a vote of 
two-thi rds of the membership of t he 
commission, it shall be deemed denied . 

(2) The commission shall not accept any petition 
to designate lands as important agricultural 
lands covering substantially the same request · 
for substantially the same land as had 
previously been denied by the commission 
within one year of the date of filing of 
finding s of fact and conclusions of law 
denying the petition . 

(f) - The commission may, upon petiti on by the 
farmer or landowner of lands desi gnated as important 
agricultural lands , remove all or a portion of those 
important agricultural lands from the "important 
agricultural lands" designation if, afte r a hearing 
held pursuant to subchapter 14 , the commission f i nds 
upon a preponderance of the evidence that a sufficient 
supply of water is n o longer available to allow 
profitable farming of the land due to governmental 
actions , acts of God, or other causes beyond the 
farmer ' s or landowner ' s reasonable control . 

(g) The commission may only remove a n important 
agricultural land designation on lands originally 
designated as important agricultural lands pursuant to 
a declaratory order that both designated land as 
important agricul tural land s and reclassified land as 

108 



urban, rural or conservation , or a combination thereof, 
with the prior authorization of the legislature as 
expressed by a two-thirds vote of each house of the 
legislature voting separately. [Eff and comp 
11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§205-1, 205-7 , 205-45) (Imp : HRS §205-50) 

§15-15 - 128 Periodic review and amendment o f 
important agricultural lands maps. (a) _ Amendment of 
the maps of important agricultural lands initiated by 
the county s hall be conducted i n accordance with 
section 15-15-109 . 

(b) In a count y-initiated proceeding for an 
amendment- of important agricultural land maps and 
designation under section 15-15-128(a), the "important 
agricultural lands'' designation shall be removed from 
lands previously designated as important agricultural 
lands where the commission finds , by a preponderance of 
the evidence, that a sufficient supply of water is no 
longer available to allow profitable farming of the 
lands due to governmental actions, acts of God, or 
other causes beyond the farmer or landowner ' s 
reasonable control . 

(c) The commission shall not remove t he important 
agricultu ral lands designation if the lands were 
designated important agricultural lands by declaratory 
order in combination with the reclassification of land 
in the agricultural district to the rural, conservation 
or urban district pursuant to section 205-45, HRS,' 
unless the legislature provides prior authorization by 
adopt ion of a concurrent resolution in accordance with 
section 205-45, HRS . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
-,--,,---=-=---=--=--c--- - - - ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
§205-52) 

SUBCHAPTER 18 

PETITIONS FOR HAWAI'I HOUSING .AUTHORITY 
RENTAL HOUS I NG PROJECTS 

Repealed 

§ 15-15-122 REPEALED. ~ [R 8/16/97] 

109 



11 0 



2 . Material , except source notes and other notes , 
to be repeal ed , is bracketed and stricken . New 
material is underscored . 

3 . Additions to update sou~ce notes and other 
notes to reflect these amendments are compilation s are 
not underscored. · 

4 . These amendments to and compilation of chapter 
15- 15 , Hawaii Administrative Rules , shall take effect 
ten days after fil i ng with the Office of the Lieutenant 
Governor. 

111 



I certify t ha t the foregoi ng a r e copi es o f t he 
rules , drafted in Ramseyer fo r mat , p u r sua n t to the 
r equireme n t s o f s ect i o n 91 - 4 . 1 , Hawaii Revised 
Statutes , which were a dopted , 2018 , 
and f ile d wit h t h e Of f ice o f t he Li e utenant Governo r . 

LUIS SALAVERIA 
Direct or of Bu s iness , 

Econ omic Develop ment , 
a nd Tour ism 

) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM : 

Deputy Attorney General 

Amendments to and compilation of chapter 15 , 
title 15 , Hawaii Administrative Rules on the summary 
page dated [October 4 , 2013) , (2013)2018 were 
adopted on [October 4 , 2013) , [2013)2018, 
following public hearings held on [September 5~, 11 , 
18, 24 , and 25 2013) . [2013)2018 
after public notice was given in the Honolulu Star- 
Adv ertiser , the Maui News, West Hawai'i Today , the 
Hawai'i Tribune llerald and The Garden Isle on [August 
5 , 2013) , [2013 ) ~ . 

They shall take effect ten days after filing with 
the Office of the Lieutenant Governor 

[RONALD I. HELLER ] 
ARNOLD WONG 
Chairperson 

112 



(RICHARD LHgJ 
LUIS SALAVERIA 

Director , Department of Business , Economi c Development 
and Tour ism 

(NEIL ABERCROMBI E] 
DAVID Y. I CE 
Gover nor 
State of Hawa i ' i 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

(DIANE ERICKSON] 
Deputy Attorney Gener al 

113 



V. Legislative Matters 

A. Update on HB2235, SB2753, and SB2885 
"Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board" 

Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 



V. Legislative Matters 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed 
Governor's Message to the State Legislature 
Submitting for Consideration the 
Gubernatorial Nomination ofMary Albitz to 
the Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
for a term to expire June 20, 2021 

Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 



V. Legislative Matters 

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed 
Governor's Message to the State Legislature 
Submitting for Consideration the 
Gubernatorial Nomination of Will Lydgate to 
the Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
for a term to expire June 30, 2021 

Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 



V. Legislative Matters 

D.Update on Governor's Message 513 and 514 
Submitting for Consideration the 
Gubernatorial Nomination of Reg Baker to the 
Small Regulatory Review Board for a term to 
expire June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2022, 
respectively 

Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 



V. Legislative Matters 

E. Discussion and Action on Senate Bill 2059, 
"Relating to Public Accountancy" 



THE SENATE 2059 
TWENTY-NINTH LEGISLATURE, 2018 S.B. NO. S.D. 1 
STATE OF HAWAII 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 

RELATING TO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANCY. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAIi: 

1 SECTION 1 . The purpose of this Act is to amend the 

2 requirements for obtaining a temporary perm"it to practice public 

3 accountancy in Hawaii, including: 

4 (1~ Specifying who may be granted a temporary permit to 

5 practice; 

6 (2) Specifying the requirements that must be met .prior to 

7 obtaining a temporary permit to practice; 

8 (3)' Requiring a person to obtain a temporary permit to 

9 practice from the board of public accountancy prior to 

10 commencing public accountancy services in Hawaii; 

11 (4) Specifying a time frame for the temporary permit to 

12 practice; 

13 (5) Requiring persons granted a temporary permit to 

14 practice to consent to and certify various 

15 obligations, including being under the authority of 

16 the board of public accountancy and paying all 

17 applicable taxes to the State; and 

2 018 - 1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 1 

lllllffll~!IIIIH~IIIWffl~~IIH~lmlHIHl~~!l~IIIIIIHl~~~Hllll~~rn11~1111 



Page 2 2059 
S.D. 1S.B. NO. 

1 (6) Making conforming amendments to the laws relating to 

2 public accountancy. 

3 SECTION 2. Chapter 466, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 

4 amended by adding a new section to be appropriately designated 

5 and to read as follows: 

6 "§466- Temporary permits to practice. (a) The board 

7 may grant a temporary permit to persons who wish to actively 

8 engage in the practice of public accountancy for a limited 

9 period of time in Hawaii. The temporary permit to practice 

10 granted pursuant to this section shall be limited to attest, 

11 peer review, or litigation support services. 

12 (b) The temporary permit to practice may be granted to any 

13· person who: 

14 ill Has attained eighteen years of age; 

15 ill Is a United States citizen, a United States national, 

16 or an alien authorized to work in the United States; 

17 ill Possesses a history of competence, trustworthiness, 

18 and fair dealing; 

19 fil Holds a valid license of certified public accountant 

20 or of public accountant issued under the laws of 

21 another state or Unit ed States jurisdiction; 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 2 

1111111m11~11~11m111m11m1~1H1mJllll!IIIHlll!~ll~IOO~IIIIIIH~ 



Page 3 2059 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 

1 ill Incidental to the person's practice in such other 

2 state or jurisdiction, desires to practice public 

3 accountancy in this State on a temporary, and not a 

4 permanent or recurring, basis; and 

5 ill Has completed an application in a form and method 

6 prescribed by the board and paid any applicable fees 

7 for a temporary permit to practice. 

8 (c) No person shall commence public accountancy services 

9 in Hawaii on a temporary basis without first obtaining a 

10 temporary permit to practice under this section. 

11 (d) A temporary permit to practice issued under this 

12 section shall be effective for a period not exceeding one 

·13 hundred twenty cumulative days in any twelve-month period, 

14 unless .otherwise extended at the discretion of the board for 

15 complicated attest, peer review, or litigation support services, 

16 and shall specify the nature and extent of the practice so 

17 permitted. A temporary permit issued pursuant to this section 

18 may be renewed in a subsequent year. More than three -requests 

19 for temporary permits to practice within three years shall be 

20 prima facie evidence that the individual is engaged in the 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

11r11~1111 Mmmm1m111111m11;1~~1110~~~~1111m1~1111111~1111~11~1111 

3 



Page4 2059 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 

1 active practice of public accountancy in Hawaii and a permit 

2 issued under section 466-7 shall be required. 

3 (e) A licensee of another state or jurisdiction who 

4 obtains a temporary permit to practice shall consent and certify 

5 to: 

6 ill The personal and subject matter jurisdiction and 

7 disciplinary authority of the board; 

8 ill Comply with this chapter and the rules adopted by the 

9 board; 

10 ill Cease to offer or render professional services in this 

11 State as an individual and on behalf of the licensee's 

12 accountancy firm if: 

13 (A) The license from the state of the licensee's 

14 principal place of business is no longer current 

15 and active; or 

16 ill The licensee's practice has been limited or 

17 conditioned in any jurisdiction, including the 

18 licensee' s principal place of business; 

19 ill Notify the board within fifteen days if: 

20 (A) Any disciplinary .action relating to the 

21 individual's license is commence d in any state , 

20l8 - 1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 4 

l~Wl~lllllllillllllllll~lilll11~1111~l~llllllll~lmlml~Hllillllmllllllll~ll~~ll~lm 



Page 5 2059 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 

1 jurisdiction, or proceeding by the board against 

2 the licensee; or 

3 (B} The licensee is convicted of any criminal offense 

4 in any state, jurisdiction, or country; 

5 ill Not to assume, use a title or designation, or use any 

6 other title, designation, words, letters, sign, card, 

7 or device that would tend to indicate that the person 

8 is a certified public accountant licensed in Hawaii or 

9 public accountant licensed in Hawaii; 

10 ill Provide the name and general excise tax license number 

11 of the licensee's Hawaii certified public accountancy 

12 firm and pay the related state income tax and any · 

13 other applicable taxes associated with the practice of 

14 public· accountancy in Hawaii; and 

15 ill Pay all costs associated with any out-of-state 

16 investigation, enforcement, and collection efforts 

17 associated with the temporary permit to practice 

18 granted under this section, as may be ordered by the 

19 board. 11 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

1~~1m1111111111rn1111H1m~iMll!lll~!llllllll~ll~llllrn~i111m1~~llilmlll~~lli 

5 



Page6 2059 
S.D. 1 S.B.. NO. 

1 SECTION 3. Section 466-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 

2 amended by adding two new definitions to be appropriately 

3 inserted and to read as follows : 

4 ""Principal place of business" means 

5 designated by a licensee for purposes of a 

6 practice issued under section 466-' 

7 "Temporary permit to practice" means 

the office location 

temporary permit to 

a _permit to actively 

8 practice public accountancy for a limited period of time in 

119 Hawaii issued under section 466-

10 SECTION 4. Section 466-7, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 

11 amended to read as follows: 

12 11 §466-7 Permits to practice. (a) A license and permit 

13 are required to actively engage in the practice of public 

14 accountancy. The board may grant or renew a permit to acti vely 

15 engage in the practice of public accountancy. Permits shall be 

16 initially issued and renewed for periods of two years but in any 

17 event shall expire on December 31 of every odd-numbered year. 

18 The board shall prescribe the methods and requirements for 

19 application. 

20 _(b) An applicant for the initial issuance or renewal of a 

21 permit shall have: 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA . doc 6 

,~~,~~~~111m11~wm~111m11~1111111m~l~l~!IWlll~llllll~~m1111w~11~ 



Page 7 2059 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 

1 (1) A valid license; 

2 (2) Completed continuing professional education hours, the 

3 content of which shall be specified by the board which 

4 may provide for special consideration by the board to 

5 applicants for permit renewal when, in the judgment of 

6 the board, full compliance with all requirements of 

7 continuing education cannot reasonably be met; 

8 (3) Completed an application; 

9 (4) Paid appropriate fees and assessments; and 

10 (5) In the case of a renewal, undergone and provided proof 

11 of having undergone the peer review process pursuant 

12 to part II. 

13 [(c) '1'he board may grant a temporary permit to actively 

14 engage in the practice of public accountancy to any person who: 

15 --{-±-}- Has attained eighteen years of age; 

16 -f:2-t- Possesses a history of competence, trustworthiness, 

17 and fair dealing, 

18 -f-3+ Holds a valid license of certified public accountant 

19 or of public accountant issued under the laws of 

20 another state, or who holds a valid comparable 

21 certificate, registration, or license or degree from a 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

1m1~1m11Hm~mm~11H11m1m1100~,1~11111m1~1~111111 

7 



Page 8 2059 
S.D. 1S.B. NO. 

1 foreign country determined by the board to be a 
I 

2 recognized qualification for the practice of public 

3 accountancy in ouch other countrj'; 

4 -f-4-t- Incidental to the person's practice in such other 

5 state or country, desires to practice public 

6 accountancy in this State on a temporarf basis, and 

7 +s+ Has completed an application. 

8 Such permit shall be effective for a period not exceeding three 

9 months, and ·shall specify the nature and mctent of the practice 

10 so permitted. 

11 -(-a-)-] (c} All firms shall obtain a permit to practice. The 

12 board may issue or renew a permit to actively engage in the 

13 practice of public accountancy to any firm which submits a 

14 completed application and demonstrates qualifications as 

15 prescribed by the board. 

16 [-fe-}-] - (d} Failure to submit the required fees, continuing 

17 education hours, or other requirements for renewal as specified 

18 in this section by December 31 of every odd-numbered year, shall 

19 constitute forfeiture of the permit. Continued performance in 

20 the practice of public accountancy without a permit shall 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

1~11~1~11111 ~llilllll~~llll~l~ll~~l~l l~~l!llilllll~l!llilllll~I Ii 
8 



Page 9 2059 
S.D. 1 S.B. NO. 

1 constitute unlicensed activity and the individual or .firm shall 

2 be subject to sections 466-9, 466-11, 487-13, and 26-9. 

3 [+€-}-] M The board may restore forfeited permits to the 

4 individual or firm [which] that satisfies the following: 

s (1) The requirements of subsection (a), (b), or (c) [-,-er 

6 (d) of this section]; and 

7 (2) Payment of required fees." 

8 SECTION 5. Section 466-8, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 

9 amended by ·amending subsections (d) and (e) to read as follows: 

10 11 (d) An application for the issuance of a biennial permit 

11 to practice for an individual or firm under section 466-7(a) and 

12 [-fa-t:-] (c) shall be accompanied by the application and permit to 

13 practice fees . 

14 (e) An application for the issuance of a temporary permit 

15 to practice under section [466 7(c)] 466- shall be accompaniE:d· 

16 by the application .and temporary permit to practice fees . " 

17 SEClION 6 . Section 466-10, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 

18 amended by amending subsection (d) to read as follows: 

19 11 (d) Nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit any 

20 person: 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

l~~l~ll~lilll~l~~fflWl[II~ l~ll~l~ll~lll~~llil~ll~i~llllffilllllilli 
9 



Page 10 2059 
S.D. 1S.B. NO. 

1 (1) Who holds a current license of certified public 

2 accountant issued under this chapter from assuming and 

3 using the title and designation "certified public 

4 accountant" or "CPA"; provided that if the person does 

5 not also hold a current permit to practice issued 

6 under this chapter, the person shall clearly indicate 

7 in assuming and using said title that the person does 

8 not hold the person's self out to be in the practice 

9 of public accountancy; 

10 (2) Who holds a current license of public accountant 

11 issued under this chapter from assuming and using the 

12 title and designation "public accountant" or "PA"; 

13 provided that if the person does not also hold a 

14 current permit to practice issued under this chapter, 

15 the person shall clearly indicate in assuming and 

16 using the title that the person does not hold the 

17 person's self out to be in the practice of public 

18 accountancy; 

19 (3) Who holds a temporary practice permit issued under 

20 [this chapter] . section 466- from using the title and 

21 designation under which the person is generally known 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 10 

11Hm11rn~1111111w111m111~1111111m1uoo~11~11111m~111111~111~11111~11rn 



Page 11 2059 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 

1 in the state or [country] jurisdiction from which the 

2 person received a valid comparable certificate, 

3 r~gi.stration, or license for the practice of ·public 

4 accountancy; 

5 (4) Who is not a certified public accountant or public 

6 accountant from serving as an employee of, or an 

7 assistant to, a certified public accountant or public 

8 accountant; provided that the employee or assistant 

9 works under the control and supervision of a person 

10 who holds a current license of certified public 

11 accountant or of public accountant and a current 

12 permit to practice issued under this chapter; and 

13 provided further that the employee or assistant does 

14 · not issue any statement or report over the person•s 

15 name except office reports to the person's employer as 

16 are customary, and that the employee or assistant is 

17 not in any manner held out to the public as a 

18 certified public accountant or public accountant; 

19 (5) Who is an officer, employee, partner, or principal of 

20 any organization from signing or affixing the person•s 

21 name to any statement or report in reference to the 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 11 

11m11Hllllll~l!IIIIWl~lll~lll~Hffll!~~,m1~111~11m11H~llrn~1~~rn 



Page 12 
S.D.1S.B. NO. 
2059 

1 affairs of that organization; provided that in so 

2 signing or affixing the person's name the person shall 

3 clearly indicate that the person is an officer, 

4 employee, partner, or principal of the organization, 

5 and the position, title, or office which the person 

6 holds therein; 

7 (6) Who is a public official or public employee from the 

8 performance of the person's duties as such; or 

9 (7) Who is an attorney at law from engaging in practice as 

10 such. 11 

11 SECTION 7 . Statutory material to be repealed i s bracketed 

12 and stricken. New statutory material is underscored. 

13 SECTION 8 . This Act shall take effect on January 1, 2019. 

14 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDI SMA.doc 

l~HWll~Hlllllllllllm~il~m11~~llH!lllll~l~IHmi~IIHm 
1 2 



S.D.1S.B. NO. 
2059 

Report Title: 
Certified Public Accountants; Temporary Permits to Practice; 
State Board of Public Acco~ntancy 

Description: 
Specifies who may be granted a temporary permit to practice 
public accountancy. Specifies the requirements that must be met 
prior to obtaining a temporary permit to practice. Requires a 
person to obtain a temporary permit to practice from the board 
of public accountancy prior to commencing public accountancy 
services in Hawaii. Specifies a time frame for the temporary 
permit to practice. Requires persons granted a temporary permit 
to practice to consent to and certify.various obligations, 
including being under the authority of the board of public 
accountancy and paying all applicable taxes to the State. Makes 
conforming amendments to the laws relating to p\,lblic 
accountancy. Takes effect on 1/1/2019. (SDl) 

The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation orevidence of legislative intent. 

2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

llll~ffl l~i~ illlllll[l~lll~lll!IDill!lll~~ijll~lll~illllll~~IIHll ~



VI. Administrative Matters 

A.Discussion and Action on the Board's 
Investigative Taskforce' s Recommendation for 
the Redesign of the existing Website 



--- - - - - - ------ ------ --

PROPOSAL - SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW 
BOARD WEBSITE 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

The purpose of the project is to redesign the website for the DBEDT Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board. The new site will allow the agency to easily administer and update their own website content, 
provide a mobile friend ly layout that works across all mobile devices and t ablets, and meet ADA 

requirements. 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 

The total project development cost will be $17,047.11 ($16,280 + $767.11 Hawaii GET). 

-l~-~ 
Task Fee 

Ana lysis $2,200 

Design prototypes $3,840 

Development $5,720 

Content Migration $2,160 

QA Testing $1,120 

Training $480 

Launch $760 

Tota l Fees $16,280 + GET 

HIC wi ll invoice SBRRB for the project developments costs per the fo llowing schedule. 

Deliverable Invoice Amount 

Website deployed to TEST $3,409.42 

Training session complete $3,409.42 

Website deployed to PROD $3,409.42 

90 days post launch (Final $6,818.85 
payment) 

http:17,047.11


PROJECT GOALS 

SBRRB has an existing website located at: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb. The ultimate goal of the redesign is to 
bring awareness of the boards existence to the many small businesses and agencies that it serves. HIC 
will work closely with SBRRB to collect, develop and design the new website through facilitated 
meetings. Additional goals include the following: 

• Modern design 
o More visuals and photos 
o Less of a government feel 
o Mobile friendly design 
o Socia l media integration 

• Capture email signups for their newsletter 
o Collect additional information including which government departments a user is most 

interested in so the SBRRB can target email distribution lists by subject area, e.g., those 
just wanting notification of DLNR rule changes, etc. 

o Integrate site with their existing Mailchimp platform 
• Improved, easier to understand language 

o Rebrand the t erm 'regulation review card' to get more responses and update form fields 
that are submitted 

o Create visual graphics or improved text explanations for explaining the various ways 
folks can be involved, such as: 

• How rules are made 
• What you can do as a small business 
• How to submit testimony 

• Provide more news on the overa ll activities of the board 
• Recruit speakers/testifiers for meetings 
• Recruit new members for the board 

PROPOSED SITEMAP 

A proposed sitemap may include the following topics (but will be revised as goals are finalized during the 
design workshops). 

a. About the board 

Mission, history & governance 
About the SBRRB 
Board meetings 
Board meeting minutes -with archive 
Meet the board members - with photos & bios 
Annual reports 
Ca lendar - Include board meeting dates, public hearing notices, dates for rule changes and 

other activities as needed. 



b. Regulation review card - Name t o be changed but mimic similar functionality. 

c. Small business impact statements - Pre and post hearing -Allow st ate and county agencies t o 
upload the "small business impact st at ements" and "small business statements after public hearing" 
and then submit the completed statements along w ith any other relat ed information as w ell as 
copies of the administrative rules. 

d. News 

e. How rules are made 

How process wo rks 
What you can do as a small business 
How rules are made 
Submit testimony 
Legislative links 

f. Contact Us 

Links to SBA, Chamber of commerce, other orgs 

g. Legislature 

Spotlight new bills 
Legislation that impacts small business 

STAGE 1: ANALYSIS 

USER NEEDS ARE RESEARCHED AND IDENTIFIED 

This initial phase includes co nducting a content review of all existing sites, analyzing similar 'competitor' 
sites such as other SBRRB boards in various stat es, initial st akeholder meetings and consolidating o ur 
findi ngs. 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 

Content review of existing website/ related sites 
Sr PM 
Designer 

4 
2 

$120 
$80 

$480 
$160 

Initial stakeholder meetings+ discussions - all stakeholders 
Sr PM 
Designer 

6 
4 

$120 
$80 

$720 
$320 

Consolidate & present stakeholder findings 
Sr PM 
Designer 

3 

2 
$120 
$80 

$360 
$160 

Sub total 21 $2,200 



STAGE 2 : DESIGN PROTOTYPES 

A PROTOTYPE IS BUILT TO MEET THE MAIN USER NEEDS 

The site will be designed per the SBRRB's requirements gathered during t he initial website discussion 
meetings. A goal of this project is to give the site a more modern design, with more visuals and ph ot os, 
and provide less of a "government" look and fee l. The site will be responsive and work across a va riety 
of mobile devices and t ablet s. Wireframes or visual mockups will be created as needed and present ed as 
each is completed for feedback. 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 

Website design 
Sr PM 
Designer 

2 
18 

$120 
$80 

$240 
$1,440 

Document/ present work 
Sr PM 

Designer 

2 
3 

$120 
$80 

$240 
$240 

Iterations based on feedback 
Sr PM 

Designer 

2 
12 

$120 
$80 

$240 
$960 

Document / present work 
Sr PM 
Designer 

2 
3 

$120 
$80 

$240 
$240 

Sub total 44 $3,840 

STAGE 3:DEVELOPMENT 

STAGE AND TEST WORKING SOFTWARE ON THE PUBLIC WEB FOR USE BY THE 
TARGET AUDIENCE 

Development accounts for building the website wit hin the Word Press system. The site will adhere t o t he 
ADA accessibility requirements list ed in the Comptroller's memorandum 2010-28 dated August 25, 
2010. 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 

Initial dev setup (GIT, project folder/assets) 
Developer 

Sys Admin 

4 
2 

$80 
$100 

$320 
$200 

Create WordPress parent theme (search, 404, etc) Developer 25 $80 $2,000 
Build site (Set up child theme, styles, install plugins, create 

CPT's, add features) Developer 40 $80 $3,200 
Sub total 71 $5,720 



STAGE 4: CONTENT MIGRATION 

MIGRATING TEXT AND IMAGES TO THE NEW SITE 

HIC will create all pages and migrate all content to provide a finished website ready for launch. 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
Migrate all text and documents from current site to new Sr PM 14 
site. Reformat content to remove unused marku . ...... 

STAGE 5: QA TESTING · 

FINAL QUALITY ANALYSIS TESTING 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
Sr PM 4 $120 $480 

Final testing prior to launch (usability, ADA, function) 
Developer 8 $80 $640 

Sub total 12 $1,120 

STAGE 6: TRAINING 

LEARN TO MANAGE YOUR WEBSITE AFTER LAUNCH 

1 hands on training session provided for up to 12 users at HIC's office . Users will learn how to manage 
website and make all updates. A help guide will be provided. 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
1 training session 
Write user hel manual 

Sr PM 2 



STAGE 7: LAUNCH 

THE WEBSITE IS LIVE TO THE PUBLIC 

Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 

Coordinate launch with SBRRB & ETS. Site to be hosted at 
Sr PM 2 

ETS. 

HOSTING & MAINTENANCE 

Typically, agencies prefer to host their site with the state at ETS for no cost . No ongoing support will 
be provided by HIC (outside 90-day window after launch) and all ongoing maintenance would be 
provided by the ETS team . 

Alternately you can choose t o host with us. HIC would administer and manage the WordPress 

inst allation for t his site. The rate would be $1,200 + GET annually. Hosting includes: 

• Website traffic statistics using Google analytics 

• Weekly backups and system administration (updates, plugins, etc) 
• File st o rage 
• Licensing 
• Support by HIC staff 

• Backups & security scans 



SCIIEDULE ESTIMATES 

The project wi ll be ca rried out according to a Milestone Schedule, which wi ll be agreed upon by HIC and 
SBRRB. Four week phases are estimated due to the fact that the board meets once per month and any 
necessary approvals that have to happen may be done during this time. 

It is understood that the milest ones and timeline below are estimated, and may be changed to 
accommodate new requirements of SBRRB or HIC, or t o comply w ith guidance received by HIC from the 
Access Hawaii Committee. All time estimates can be extended if mutually agreed upon. 

Milestone Schedule 

Estimated 
Completion 
Date Description Deliverable 

TBD Complete Statement of Work Signed SOW 
4 weeks Design workshop phase Site map 

4 weeks Approval t o proceed (From SBRRB) Sign off 

4 weeks Design prototype phase Design prototype 

4 weeks Approval to proceed {From SBRRB) Sign off 

3 weeks Development phase Website deployed in TEST environment 

2 weeks Approval to proceed {From SBRRB) Sign off 

One training session for SBRRB 
2 weeks SBRRB training and review personnel 

5 days Deployment request {From SBRRB) Sign off 

Website deployed in PROD 
1 week Website live enviro nment 

90 days Final acceptance (From SBRRB) Final payment and signofffrom SBRRB 



VI. Administrative Matters 

B. Discussion on Governor's Administrative 
Directive No. 18-02, dated January 1, 2018 



EXECUT I VE CHA M BERS 

HO IIO LULU 
DAVID I GE 

January 1, 2018 GOVERNOR 

ADMIN ISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE NO. 18-02 

To: Department Directors 

Subject: Policy and Procedure for the Adoption, Amendment, or Repeal of 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

This administrative directive updates the policy and procedure by which departments or 
agencies shall request executive approval of any proposed adoption, amendment, or 
r.epeal of administrative rules. It replaces Administrative Directive No. 09-01, Policy and 
Procedure for the Adoption, Amendment, or Repeal of Administrative Rules, dated 
October 29, 2009. 

Legal References: 

1. Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 91 

2. Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 201 M, the "Hawaii Small Business Regulatory 
Flexibility Act," requires that if a proposed rule "affects small business," the 
department or agency shall submit a "small business impact statement" and a 
"small business statement" to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board. 
Chapter 201 M does not apply to emergency rulemaking or rules adopted to comply 
with a federal requirement. 

Policy: 

1. All requests regarding Hawaii Administrative Rules must be submitted through 
Hawaii Administrative Rules.Processing Site (HARPS). 

https://hawaiioimt.sharepoint.com/sites/gov/adminrules/ 

Prior to· all submittals, the department must obtain the Attorney General's approval 
"as to form". 

2. Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act 

In accordance with Chapter 201 M, the department must complete the following 

https://hawaiioimt.sharepoint.com/sites/gov/adminrules


steps before submitting a request to conduct public hearing if the proposed rule 
affects small business: 

a. Complete Small Business Impact Statement 

i. See HRS Section 201 M-2 

b. Submit Small Business Impact Statement and proposed rules to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board 

3. Public Hearing Approval 

In the request to conduct public hearing, the department will provide response to 
the following: 

a. Summary of changes 

i. Why is this section of Hawaii Administrative Rules being amended? 

ii. What problem is the rule change meant to solve? 

iii. List all changes that are being made. 

b. Impact of changes 

i. How does this rule change address the problem? 

ii. Who are the stakeholders? Positive and negative. 

iii. What are the potential problems with the rule change? 

iv. What is the fiscal impact? 

v. What is the economic impact to the State? 

c. Consequences if changes are not made 

i. What are the consequences if the rule change does not get adopted, 
amended or repealed? 

4. Public Hearings 

Upon approval of public hearing request, the department must enter ·all public 
hearing dates, times, and locations into HARPS. 

a. The department must be considerate of all parties being affected and 
schedule public hearings to allow for adequate feedback. 

b. The department must accept written t~stimony from all parties who are 
unable to attend the public hearing. · 

c. The department will be responsible for transcribing the testimony from the 
public hearing into a public hearing summary document that will be requ ired 
upon submittal of Final Rule. 



5. Final Rule 

In the request for approval of Final Rule, the department will provide response to 
the following: 

a. Changes in Final Rule 

i. What changes were made in the Final Rule? 

ii. Why were these changes made? 

b. Other 

i. Describe how the department has worked with stakeholders to gain 
support for the rule? 

ii. Have potential problems been addressed? Do the same problems 
exist with the Final Rule? 

iii. Does the Office of the Governor staff need to meet with any 
people/organizations before the Governor signs this Final Rule? 

6. Filing of Final Rule 

Upon approval of Final Rule through HARPS, the Department will send 3 hard 
copies to Office of the Governor. When approved, these copies will be filed with the 
Office of the Lieutenant Governor. Rule will take effect 10 days after filing. 

7. Department of Budget and Finance (BUF) and Department of Business, 
Economic Development and Tourism (BED) 

BUF and BED will receive electronic notification upon submittal of public hearing 
request. Both departments will have th·e ability to submit comments and concerns 
through HARPS. Response will be due 10 business days after Final Rule is 
submitted. Comments will be optional unless the following applies: 

a. BUF will be required to provide response if the proposed rule has fees or 
other fiscal impacts. 

b. BED will be required to provide response if the proposed rule has economic 
impact or affects small business. 

Procedure: 

1. See attached PowerPoint 



VI. Administrative Matters 

C. Discussion and Action on the Board's 
Proposed Letter to Governor Ige regarding the 
current Pilot Project that allows Uber and Lyft 
Drivers to Operate at the Honolulu 
International Airport 



David Y. lgc 
Govemor 

Luis P. Salavcria 
Director, DBEDT 

Members 

Anthony Borge 
Chair 
Oahu 

Robert Cundiff 
Vice Chair 

Oahu 

Garth Yamanaka 
2nd Vice Chair 

Hawaii 

Kyoko Kimura 
Maui 

Harris Nakamoto 
Oahu 

Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
Oahu 

Reg Baker 
Oahu 

Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 

Department ofBusiness, Economic Development & Tourism Tel 808 586-2594 
No. I Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St., 5th Fl., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804 
Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 

March 22, 2018 - DRAFT 

Governor David Y. Ige 
State Capitol 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

Subject: Hawaii Department of Transpmiation (HDOT) - Airpo1i Pilot 
Program 

Dear Governor Ige: 

Recently, the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) received 
the attached December 9, 2017 letter from Ms. Dale Evans, CEO, Charley' s Taxi and 
Limousine. 

The concerns in Ms. Evans' letter relate to a recently created pilot project 
that allows Uber and Lyft drivers to operate at the Honolulu International Airpo1i 
(HNL), which Ms. Evans claims causes an unfair, inequitable and detrimental 
impact to a specific group of small businesses; i.e., current taxi operators, because 
HDOT is allowing Uber and Lyft to operate at HNL without being subject to the 
same State rules, regulations, and requirements as the taxi operators. 

In compliance with Section 201M-5(a), HRS, SBRRB considered Ms. 
Evan's request and raised the complaint about inequitable treatment with HDOT. 
SBRRB respectfully requested that HDOT explain what administrative rules 
applied to Uber and Lyft operations at HNL or, if no rules applied, that HDOT 
consider adopting rules as such rules were needed to allow for equitable treatment 
ofUber, Lyft, and the taxi operators." 

In response, HDOT stated that this is a "pilot program" and that HDOT 
has no plans to adopt administrative rules to provide the same regulations and 
requirements to Uber and Lyft drivers as applied to other vehicular transpo1i 
businesses operating at HNL. 

Since there are no rules or regulations on this pilot program, and SBRRB 
has already recommended and been refused the adoption of such rules, there is 
nothing fmiher SBRRB can do in this matter. 

mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Governor David Y. Ige 
March 22, 2018 
Page2 

A few weeks ago, HDOT announced an extension of the pilot program for 
another six months. While we are all for the growth and success of small 
businesses here in Hawaii, which is the backbone ofour economy, we also 
believe that every business needs to compete on equal terms and conditions to 
provide a level playing field for all small businesses, especially when providing 
goods and services to State agencies. 

As SBRRB can take no fmther action on this matter, we respectfully 
request that you review the concerns presented by Ms. Dale Evans to identify any 
other potential resolutions. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Anthony Borge 
Chairperson 

c: Michael McCartney, Chief of Staff, Governor's Office 
Jade Butay, HOOT, Director 
Dale Evans, CEO, Charley's Taxi 



VI. Administrative Matters 

D.Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy 

Activities and Programs in accordance with 

the Board's Powers under Section 201M-5, 

HRS 

1. Discussion and Action on Hawaii Small 

Business Conference to be held at Maui 

Arts & Cultural Center on May 2 - 3, 

2018 

Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 


	3-21-18 Agenda-1-24-18 Minutes III. Old. Bus. A. HAR 15-37 Solar Water thru C. HAR 12-44.1 Testing
	Structure Bookmarks
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting Wednesday, March 21, 2018 10:00 a.m. No. 1 Capitol District Building 250 South Hotel Street, Honolulu, HI Conference Room 436 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting Wednesday, March 21, 2018 10:00 a.m. No. 1 Capitol District Building 250 South Hotel Street, Honolulu, HI Conference Room 436 
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	Figure
	Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT) Tel 808 586-2594 No. I Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St. 5Fl., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804 Email: Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 
	th 
	dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

	AGENDA Wednesday, March 21, 2018 * 10:00 a.m. 
	AGENDA Wednesday, March 21, 2018 * 10:00 a.m. 
	David Y. Ige 

	No. 1 Capitol District Building 
	No. 1 Capitol District Building 
	Governor 

	250 South Hotel Street -Conference Room 436 
	250 South Hotel Street -Conference Room 436 
	Luis P. Salaveria 
	DBEDT Director 
	I. Call to Order 
	Members 
	Members 
	II. Approval of January 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
	Anthony Borge 
	Chai1perso11 
	III. Old Business 
	Oahu 
	A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public 
	Robert Cundiff 
	Vice Chai1person Hearing and Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 15 Chapter 37, Solar Water Heater Variance, promulgated by Garth Yamanaka Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism (DBEDT) 
	Oahu 

	2"'Vice Chai/person 
	1 

	Discussion Leader -Mark Ritchie 
	Hawaii 
	B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Harris Nakamoto Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12 Chapter 22, Wage Determinations and the Administration and Enforcement of Chapter Nancy Atmospera-Walch 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, promulgated by Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations (DLIR) -Discussion Leader -Kyoko Kimura 
	Oahu 
	Oahu 

	Kyoko Kimura C. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 44.1, 
	Maui 

	Reg Baker Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Perform Maintenance and Testing ofPortable Fire Extinguishers, Fire Director, DBEDT Protection Systems, and Fire Alarm Systems, promulgated by Hawaii 
	Oahu 

	Voting Ex Officio 
	State Fire Council / DLIR -Discussion Leader -Kyoko Kimura 
	D. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing on HAR Title 18, Chapter 23 7, General Excise Tax Law, as follows, promulgated by Depaitment ofTaxation: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Amendments to Section 8.6, County Surcharge 

	2. 
	2. 
	Proposed New Section 29.53, Exported Services 


	IV. New Business 
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13 Chapter 104, Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserves, promulgated by Depaitment ofLand and Natural Resources -Discussion Leader -Mark Ritchie 
	B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New HAR Title 4 Chapter 162, Food Safety Certification Costs Grant Program, promulgated by Department of Agriculture -Discussion Leader -Rob Cundiff 
	C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Repeal ofHAR Title 11, Chapter 200, and Proposed New Chapter 200.1, Environmental Impact Statement Rules, promulgated by Depaitment ofHealth -Discussion Leader -Harris Nakamoto 
	D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 15 Chapter 15, Land Use Commission Rules, promulgated by DBEDT / Land Use Commission -Discussion Leader -Mark Ritchie 
	D. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 15 Chapter 15, Land Use Commission Rules, promulgated by DBEDT / Land Use Commission -Discussion Leader -Mark Ritchie 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board March 21, 2018 Page2 

	V. Legislative Matters 
	A. Update on House Bill 2235, Senate Bill 2753 and Senate Bill 2885, "Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board" -Clarifies the Intent ofthe Small Business Regulatory Review Board's Powers when Reviewing State and County Administrative Rules that Impact Small Business 
	B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor' s Message to the State Legislature Submitting for Consideration ofthe Gubernatorial Nomination of Mary Albitz to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a te1m to expire June 30, 2021 
	C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State Legislature Submitting for Consideration ofthe Gubernatorial Nomination of Will Lydgate to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2021 
	D. Update on Governor's Messages 513 and 514, Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination ofReg Baker to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2022, respectively 
	E. Discussion and Action on Senate Bill 2059 "Relating to Public Accountancy" Specifies who may be granted a temporary permit to practice public accountancy. Specifies the requirements that must be met prior to obtaining a temporary permit to practice. Requires a person to obtain a temporary pe1mit to practice from the board ofpublic accountancy prior to commencing public accountancy services in Hawaii. Specifies a time frame for the temporary permit to practice. Requires persons granted a temporary permit 
	VI. Administrative Matters 
	A. Discussion and Action on the Board's Investigative Taskforce's Recommendation for the proceeding with Redesign ofthe existing Website 
	B. Discussion on Governor's Administrative Directive No. 18-02, dated January 1, 2018, updating the policy and procedure by which departments or agencies request executive approval ofany proposed adoption, amendment, or repeal ofadministrative rules 
	C. Discussion and Action on the Board's Proposed Letter to Governor Ige regarding the cunent Pilot Project that allows Uber and Lyft Drivers to Operate at the Honolulu International Airpmt 
	D. Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board's Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes: 
	1. Discussion and Action on Hawaii Small Business Conference held at Maui Arts & Cultural Center on May 2 -3, 2018 
	1. Discussion and Action on Hawaii Small Business Conference held at Maui Arts & Cultural Center on May 2 -3, 2018 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

	March 21, 2018 Page 3 
	VII. Next Meeting: Scheduled for Wednesday, April 1T8,., 2018f at 10:00 a.m., Capitol District Building, Conference Room 21-36, .ttonolu u, Hawaii 
	VIII. Adjournment 
	Ifyou require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to pa1ticipate in the public hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or parking designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2399 at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 



	II. Approval of January 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
	II. Approval of January 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
	Approved: _________ 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
	MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING -Draft January 24, 2018 Conference Room 436 -No. 1 Capitol District Building, Honolulu, Hawaii 
	I. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Borge called the meeting to order at 10:01 p.m., with a quorum present. Mr. Art Mori, this Board's newly-hired temporary assistant, was welcomed. 
	ABSENT MEMBERS: 
	ABSENT MEMBERS: 
	MEMBERS PRESENT: 

	• Harris Nakamoto 
	• Anthony Borge, Chair 
	• Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Robert Cundiff, Vice Chair 

	• 
	• 
	Garth Yamanaka, 2Vice Chair 
	nd 


	• 
	• 
	Kyoko Kimura 

	• 
	• 
	Reg Baker 

	• 
	• 
	Mark Ritchie 


	STAFF:DBEDT Office of the Attorney General Dori Palcovich Jennifer Waihee-Polk Arthur Mori 
	II. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 13, 2017 MINUTES 
	Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to accept the December 13, 2017 minutes, as presented. Mr. Baker seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 
	111. OLD BUSINESS 
	A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13, Subtitle 7, Water Resources, promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR), as follows: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Chapter 167, Rules of Practice and Procedure for the Commission on Water Resource Management 

	2. 
	2. 
	Chapter 168, Water, Use Wells, and Stream Diversion Works 

	3. 
	3. 
	Chapter 169, Protection of lnstream Uses of Water 


	Discussion leader, Mr. Ritchie explained that the proposed rules, reflecting updated statutes, were in front of this Board before the public hearing. At the hearing, all testimonies were in support of the amendments; some testifiers wanted more enforcement of the State Water Code. 
	Mr. Ritchie made a motion to pass the rules onto the Governor for adoption. Second Vice Chair Yamanaka seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 1 
	B. Re-discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Subtitle 8, Hawaii Occupational Safety and Health Division, promulgated by Department of Labor and Industrial Relations (DUR), as follows: 
	i. 
	i. 
	i. 
	Part 1, General Legal and Administrative Provisions for Occupational Safety and Health 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 50, General Provisions and Definitions 

	b. 
	b. 
	Chapter 52.1, Recording and Reporting Occupational Injuries and Illnesses 

	c. 
	c. 
	Chapter 56, Program Fees and Library Policies, General Safety and Health Requirements 


	11. Part 2, General Legal and Administrative Provisions for Occupational Safety and Health 
	a. Chapter 60, General Safety and Health Requirements 
	iii. 
	iii. 
	iii. 
	Part 3, Construction Standards 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 110, General Safety and Health Requirements 


	iv. 
	iv. 
	iv. 
	Part 5, Occupational Safety and Health Standards for Shipyard Employment 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 170, Shipyards 

	v. 
	v. 
	Part 6, Marine Terminals 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 180, Marine Terminals 


	vi. 
	vi. 
	vi. 
	Part 7, Safety and Health Regulations for Longshoring 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 190, Longshoring 


	vii. 
	vii. 
	vii. 
	Part 8, Other Safety and Health Standards 

	a. 
	a. 
	Chapter 208, Other Safety and Health Standards 


	Mr. Norman Ahu, DLIR's HIOSH Administrator, explained that since he was in front of this 
	Board last month, two stakeholder meetings were held; meeting notes were provided to the members. Most of the stakeholders' concerns related to silica regulations; it was noted that adoption of many of the changes is mandatory. 
	.,,.:.;. 
	Mr. Ahu re-emphasized that 'Table 1" benefits the employer. HIOSH is committed to continue holding stakeholder meetings going forward. One suggestion regarding exemptions is currently being discussed; and if possible, HIOSH will accommodate the suggestion and place it in the rules. 
	Testifier Mr. V\/alter Chun, PhD., a safety and health professional and State of Hawaii consultant, has forty-five years of experience in the occupational safety and health profession. He explained how the rule amendments apply to the stakeholders and distributed his written testimony which entailed: 1) HIOSH citation penalties,2) measures used by OSHA, and 3) industrial safety and health news. 
	Mr. Chun noted that the average HIOSH penalty of a homeowner in the past two years has been over $2,000. He attended HIOSH's stakeholders' meeting, which he believed went well, but there were open questions as to how changes are going to be made and what assistance HIOSH will be giving. He would like to have all the stakeholders (businesses and homeowners) able to understand exactly what the rule changes and processes entail. 
	2 
	Testifier Mr. Tim Lyons, representing the subcontractor's association, explained that 
	although he was unable to attend last month's Board meeting, his written testimony has not 
	changed. He thanked this Board for being instrumental in encouraging HIOSH to hold the 
	stakeholders' meetings. He added that while some progress has been made, there is not 
	much that HIOSH can do about the silica regulations as the federal government is forcing its 
	hands on this issue. However, the silica standard is very difficult to understand and HOISH 
	could be more helpful in assisting the business community by providing samplings of silica 
	and/or descriptions in certain situations. 
	Testifier Mr. Blake Parson, Executive Director of SMCA (Sheet Metal Contractors 
	Association of Hawaii) stated that because there are still underlying unknowns to the 
	ramifications of the rules, it would be impractical, for example, for his members to purchase 
	$10,000 worth of equipment when it turns out to be unnecessary, which is occurring now 
	with the regulations as presented. 
	Chair Borge stated that because there are so many variables and issues involved with 
	operating a small business along with understanding and following the proposed rule 
	amendments, guidance from HIOSH is essential; without such guidance, small businesses 
	run the risk of being cited. In response, Mr. Ahu expressed that HIOSH is willing to continue 
	with the stakeholder meetings for training. Because HIOSH is fully cognizant of the small 
	business' concerns, it is available to do (silica) "sampling" at no expense; he added that the 
	proposed rules are a benefit to businesses. 
	Vice Chair Cundiff thanked the HIOSH representatives for reaching out to the stakeholders. 
	Based on the discussion today, he questioned what can be done to provide the businesses 
	with correct information so they are able to comply with the set guidelines so small 
	businesses are able to comply with the rules. Mr. Ahu responded that the businesses must 1• 
	,take advantage of HIOSH's ongoing consultation,··in-house training, and guidelines. ~, 

	Mr. Ritchie made a motion to recommend that HIOSH continue with ongoing discussions with the small business stakeholders' concerns, and to move the proposed rule amendments to public hearing. Ms. Kimura seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously 
	agreed. 
	IV. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS 
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State Legislature Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination of Reg Baker to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term.to expire June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2022 
	Ms. Kimura made a motion for this Board to testify in support of the Gubernatorial 
	Nomination of Mr. Baker to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board. Vice Chair Cundiff seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 
	B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Senate and House Bills, Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board -"Clarifies the Intent of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board's Powers when Reviewing State and County Administrative Rules that Impact Small Business" 
	3 
	Chair Borge explained that these bills, which clarify the Board's powers, were currently 
	introduced in the legislature. All four bills, House Bill 2235, House Bill 2326, Senate Bill 
	2753, and Senate Bill 2885, are the same. 
	Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to provide testimony in support of all four measures, 
	House Bill 2235, House Bill 2326, Senate Bill 2753, and Senate Bill 2885, "Relating to the 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board." Mr. Baker seconded the motion, and the Board 
	members unanimously agreed. 
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
	A. Deliberation, Decision Making, and Action on the Board's Investigative Taskforce Findings and Recommendations regarding the Development and Redesign of the Board's existing Website including Contact. Features and Short-and Long-Term Goals in accordance with Section 92-2.5(b)(1)(C), HRS 
	Mr. Ritchie explained that last month's meeting minutes encompassed the proposal from the 
	website's taskforce regarding the functionality of the type of website that would be best for 
	this Board to draw small business owners to it, and to have sufficient information so users 
	can get more involved and become more interactive; as follows: 
	-The "regulation review card" is to have an ability to receive testimony on upcoming 
	meetings as well as to receive information on existing regulations; 
	-A feature to show how rules are made through the rule-making process; 
	-A link to the State's Legislative website where statutes and bills are viewed; 
	-The design of the website will have less of a government look with more pictures 
	and graphics; 
	-Dates of the agencies' pualic hearings will be accessed from the website's calendar; 
	-A sign-up e-mail link to re·deive monthly agendas and to monitor specific rules will be 
	offered. 
	Mr. Ritchie stated that for web maintenance and web design Hawaii Information Consortium (HIC) is very good, and suggested that two to three price quotes be procured. Mr. Cundiff 
	added that this Board can currently take steps regarding changes to the website for its end goal. It was suggested that a dialogue be created with the three potential web designers/services. 
	Mr. Ritchie made a motion for the website investigative taskforce to proceed with the website design by getting price quotes from at least three different IT organizations. Ms. Kimura seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 
	B. Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board's Powers under Section 201 M-5, HRS 
	Chair Borge reminded the members that he and Mr. Baker will be on ThinkTech's live-stream show, "Business in Hawaii with Reg Baker" on Thursday, January 26at 2:00 p.m. 
	th 

	4 
	VI. 
	VI. 
	VI. 
	NEXT MEETING The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 21 , 2018, in Conference room 436, 250 South Hotel Street, Honolulu, Hawaii at 10:00 a.m. 
	-


	VII. 
	VII. 
	ADJOURNMENT Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Baker seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 12:05 p.m. 
	-



	'I,, '•I • 
	5 

	III. Old Business 
	III. Old Business 
	A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 15, Chapter 37, Solar Water Heater Variance, promulgated by DBEDT 
	Figure
	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBL 
	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBL 
	w 

	TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW 
	TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW 
	TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW 
	0JJtA-&.J-=:-=-:-;r.-;;r?~__, 
	Figure


	(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201 M-3) Department or Agency: DBEDT Energy Division Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: ·
	s.c..w,..,, ... , ..varlance,"Chapter ls-37 
	Chapter Name: "Solar Water Heater Variance" Contact Person/Title: Dean Masai, DBEDT Energy Analyst Phone Number: 587-3804 E-mail Address: Date: January 16, 2018 
	dean.masai@hawail.gov 

	A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. · 
	B. Are th_e draft rules available for viewing ~erson and on the Lieutenant Governor's Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes LJ No l✓ I Not yet on Lt. Gav's sjte, but on DBEDT's 
	and Energy Office websites. (If "Yes" please provide webpage address and when and where rules may be 
	Figure
	(Please keep the proposed rules on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting.) 
	I. Rule Description: Newl✓ I Repeal D Amendment D Compilation D 
	II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l✓ I No O1f "No" no need to submit this form.) 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	"Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . .. that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the formali_on, operation, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201 M-1 

	* 
	* 
	"Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer !~an one hundred full-time or part-time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201 M-1 ' 


	Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that does not require the agenc,ll-!\> inter~r1t or describe the requirements of the statute or ordinance? YesLJ No ✓ (If "Yes" no need to submit this form.) (e.g., a federally-mandated regulation a does not afford the agency the discretion to c~nsider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201 M-2(d) 
	IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
	(HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l✓ I (If "Yes" no need to submit this form.) 
	* * * 
	REVI SEO 8/.15/20 17 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 2 
	I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED PAGES.) 
	a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? If yes, explain. If not, why not? 
	II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, please provide the following information: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were solicited. 

	2. 
	2. 
	A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 

	3. 
	3. 
	A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 

	4. 
	4. 
	The number of persons who: 


	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Attended the public hearing: 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Testified at the hearing: 


	(iii) Submitted written comments: 
	5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that affected small business? 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	If "Yes" was the change adopted? Yes D No D 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the problems or negative result of the change. 


	* * * Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT This statement may be found on thpre-and-post-public-hearing 
	Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
	e SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements

	Rev. 8/15/20 l 7 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 1 
	A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. 
	The topic ofthe proposed new rule is the automation ofthe solar water heater variance 
	approval process. ·The main purpose ofthis rnle is (1) to enable the Department ofBusiness, 
	Economic Development and Tourism to more efficiently accept and process variances 
	(exemptions),to the solar water heater mandate in Hawaii Revised Statutes §196-6.5 by 
	allowing variances to be submitted via a website and (2) to charge a fee for variance 
	submittal that offsets the administrative expenses ofthe hosting.and maintenance ofthe 
	website. 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 1 Page iofl 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 2 
	I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. · 
	The development ofthe proposed rule was solely for the purpose ofautomating the statutory 
	required variance process and to collect a processing fee for the variance. Therefore>small 
	business input was not needed. Small businesses were invited to comment at the public 
	hearing held for the proposed rule. The Depa1iment did not receive any comments from · 
	small businesses. 
	a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? If yes, explain. If not, why not? 
	The Department did not receive any recommendations from small businesses. The 
	recommendations proposed at the public hearing require State legislative action. 
	II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, please provide the following information: 
	1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were solicited. 
	A public heming notice was published in the five· major county newspapers, notice was posted on the Depaiiment's website, and notice ofthe public heming were included in e-mail correspondence with those submitting variance requests. 
	2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 
	There were two testifiers at the public hearing, neither represented small business. Both people urged the Department to revise the proposed rules to stringently enforce published legislative intent prohibiting home developers and builders from applying for solar water heater variances using the gas tankless water heater option. 
	3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 
	While the Department appreciates the intent ofthe comments, it notes that the legislative intent referenced by the testifiers is so unsupported by the strncture and actual wording ofthe curr~nt statute that it would be difficult to justify such a change without the express assent ofthe Legislature through fmther legislative action. 
	4. The number of person_s who: 
	(i) Attended the public hearing: 
	Six. 
	(ii) Testified at the hearing: 
	Two. 
	(iii) Submitted written comments: 
	One. 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 2 Page 1 o/2 
	5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that affected small business? Yes. Both testi:(iers urged the Department to revise the proposed rules to strictly enforce publicly stated legislative intent to deny home developers and builders :from , using the gas tankless water heaters as justification for a variance :from the mandatory solar water heater law. 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	If "Yes" was the change adopted? No 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the problems or negative result of the change. 


	Adopting the change recommended by the testifiers requires legislative action, which is not in the purview ofthe Department. 
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing-Page 2 Page 2 o/2 
	Figure
	HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 
	TITLE 15 DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS , ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND 
	Figure
	CHAPTER 37 
	SOLAR WATER HEATER VARIANCE 
	SUBCHAPTER I IN GENERAL 
	§1-1 Purpose 
	§1-2 Definitions 
	SUBCHAPTER 2 ELIGIBILITY FOR, SELECTION CRITERIA, AND TERMINATI ON OF SOLAR WATER HEATER VARIANCES 
	§2-1 Eligibility criteria for SWHV 
	§2-2 Procedure for SWHV 
	§2-3 Criteria for state review of SWHV requests 
	§2-4 Procedure for amendment of SWHV 
	§2-5 Procedure for termi nation of approved SWHV by the State 
	SUBCHAPTER 3 ADMINISTRATION 
	§3-1 Administration 
	§3-2 Waiver 
	§3-3 Severability 
	§1-1 Purpose . The purpose of this chapter is to provide rules for administration of the state solar water heater variance program authorized by chapter 196-6.5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (" HRS"). [Eff June 26, 2008, Act 204] 
	§1-2 Definitions . As used in this chapter, unless a different meaning c l early appears in the context : 
	"Authorized to do business in the State" means a corporation incorporated under chapter 416, HRS, a foreign corporation admitted under chapter 418, HRS, a corporation incorporated under chapter 415 , HRS, or a foreign corporation admitted under chapter 415 , HRS ; a partnership registered under chapter 425, HRS, or 425D, HRS; or a sole proprietorship. 
	"County" or "counties" means t he City and County of Honolulu and the counties of Hawaii, Kauai , and Maui. 
	"DBEDT" means the State of Hawaii Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism. .. 
	"Department" means the State of Hawaii Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism. 
	Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Variance Program · Page 1 of 6 
	"Director" means the director of the Department of 
	Business, Economic Development, and Touri sm. 
	"Fami ly" means any group of people, which may include 
	children, living together as a unit . 
	"HRS" means Hawaii Revised Statutes, the laws of the State 
	of Hawaii, which were passed by the State Legislature and signed 
	by the Governor or allowed to become law without signat ure . 
	"Program" means the state solar water heater variance 
	program authorized by chapter 196-6.5, HRS . 
	"Qualified professional" means any architect or mechanical 
	engineer l icensed to do business in the State, which is : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Subject to t he state corporate or individual i ncome tax under chapt er 235 , HRS ; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Engaged in design or engineering of a Hawaii single family dwelling . 


	"Representative" is a person who submits a Request for Variance from the Mandatory Sol ar Water Heater Law on behalf of and with the consent of the homeowner or future homeowner . 
	"Request" means a valid "Request for Variance from the Mandatory S6lar Water Heater Law" form . "Requester" is a homeowner or representative requesting a Solar Water Heating Variance (SWHV) . 
	"Single family dwelling" means a building designed for one family to live in. This excludes duplexes, triplexes, apartments, condominiums, and other structures built for multiple families . 
	"Solar water heater" ("SWH") is a device in which water is heated by the sun to provide domest ic hot water . ~ost SWH systems in Hawaii use a series of large glass and metal panels containing a metal pipe winding itself inside·. The panels are usually installed on a bui lding' s roof. The heated water is usually stored in a large tank (80 gallons or more). In an active system, an ~lectric pump pumps the water from the supply pipe through the pipe that runs through the panels and into the storage t ank. In 
	"State" means the State of Hawaii . 
	"SWHV" is a "solar water heater variance, " a request to be exempt from HRS chapter 196-6.5, which requires a solar water heating system for new single-family residential construction. 
	"Valid form" is a template, usually in Microsoft "Word" or an online form for t he Request for Variance from the Mandator y Solar Water Heater Law that is designated by the State to be the most recent version that compli es with state requirements. 
	Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 2 of 6 
	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	ELIGIBILITY FOR, SELECTION CRITERIA, AND TERMINATION OF SWHV 
	§2-1 Eligibility-crit~ria for a SWHV. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	To be eligible for a solar water heater variance, a home shall be : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Built on or after January 1 , 2010 . 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A single family dwelling . 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Located within the state of Hawaii . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The requester shal l submit to the St ate a valid, correctly completed Request for Variance from the Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The request must be submitted by a qualified professional who is an architect or mechanical engineer licensed to do business in the State of Hawaii according to HRS 464 .


	•
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	The form should be printed on the l etterhead of the architect or mechanical engineer, or correctly completed online. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	A valid form can be obtained by: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Accessing the DBEDT Energy Division Solar Water Heater Variance website and completing the online form; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Downloading a form from the DBEDT Energy Division website; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	e-mailing the program office at: 


	. ·(f) A request must be submitted for each dwelling. 
	DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii.gov

	(g) Fee : A SWHV processing fee of $25 . 00 shall be charged for each SWHV request . The request shall be processed when the fee is received. 
	§2-2 Procedure for SWHV . 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Homeowner or representative (requester) submits a properly completed, valid Request for Variance from the Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form and fee payment to the State via: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Online at the DBEDT Energy Divi sion Solar Water Heater Variance website . 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	E-mail: . 
	DBEDT.SWH-Variance@hawaii.gov


	(3) 
	(3) 
	Fax : 808-586-2536 . 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	U.S. Postal Service: SWH Variance, c/o DBEDT Energy Division, P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI 96804-2359. 

	(
	(
	5) Hand delivery. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The State reviews the request . 


	Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 3 of 6 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The State shall immediately inform the requestor of any errors on the request, if the request is on an invalid form, or if there is a problem with the fee payment. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	After review, the correct and paid requests are sent to the director or his/her designee . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The director/designee approves or denies the request. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	The requestor is notified of the director' s/designee's decisi on. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	A copy of the approved request is sent to the requestor. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	Information about the request is posted on the department' s SWHV webpage, including the director' s approval or denial of the request . 

	§2-3 Criteria for state review of SWHV request. 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	Upon receiving a Request for Variance from the Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form and f ee payment, the request is reviewed to ensure that: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Requ~st is on a valid form . 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Fee is paid. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Request is correctly completed, including: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	Printed on architect's or mechanical engineer's letterhead with name, address, e-mail address, and phone number. In lieu of a letterhead, the architect's or mechanical engineer's name, address, e-mail address, and phone number shall be written on the form or inputted into the online form. 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Return e-mail address to which the Request for· Variance from the Mandatory Solar Water Heater Law form should be returned . 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	The property's address (at least the street name), · town and island. 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	The property' s Tax Map Key (TMK) number. 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	One of the options is checked. 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	If Option 1 (installation impractical and/or costprohibitive ) is checked, a Life Cycle Cost Comparison, a lso available from the SWHV website or the program office, is included and properly completed, including architect's or mechanical engineer' s stamp and signature. 

	(G) 
	(G) 
	If Option 2 (renewable energy technology) is checked, the renewable system to be installed is circled or otherwise marked. 

	(H) 
	(H) 
	If Option 3 (gas tankless on-demand water heater) is checked, at least one additional gas appliance is listed on the line under the Option 3 paragr aph . 

	(I) 
	(I) 
	Request is signed and stamped by the architect or mechanical engineer. 


	Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 4 of 6 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The request shall be reviewed by the department and sent to t he director or director's designee for review. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The director shall approve or deny a request based upon requirements of HRS 196-6. 5. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	A requester whose variance request is denied shall be notified and provided with the reasons for denial . 

	§2-4 Procedure for amendment of a SWHV. 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	A homeowner may request amendment (or termination--see following ~ection) of an approved SWHV by submitting a written notification to the department and a revised SWHV request . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Requests for an amendment will be considered if the amendment relates to a change in the homeowner' s choice of water heating device. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If the amendment is to change to a solar water heater, no fee will be required. All other amendments require payment of the current SWHV processing fee . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The request for amendment shall be reviewed by the department and forwarded to the director or his/her designee. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	If approved by the director/designee, the amendment shall take effect on the date of approval . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	A homeowner whose application for amendment is denied by the director/designee shall be notified and provided with the reasons for denial. 


	SUBCHAPTER 3 ADMINISTRATION 
	§3-1 Administration. (a) The department is authorized to implement and enforce the rules of this chapter. 
	(b) The department shall monitor the program to assure adherence to these rules, the effect iveness of the rules, and that the purpose of the program is still relevant to the intent of HRS 196-6.5 . 
	§3-2 Fee Increases . From time to time, it may be necessary to increase the SWHV processing fee, as required in §2-l(g) . A fee increase shall be instituted when approved by the department director and posted on the department's website for 30 calendar days. 
	§3-3 Waiver. The director may waive particular provisions of this chapter to conform to applicable federal requirements . 
	Hawaii Administrative Rules : DBEDT SWH Variance Program Page 5 of 6 
	§3-4 Severability. If any part, section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter, or its application to any person, 
	·transaction, or other circumstance, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, the remaining part s , sections, sentences, cl auses, and phrases of this chapter, or its application t o other persons, transactions, or circumstances shall not be affected. ### 
	Hawaii Administrative Rules: DBEDT SWH Vari ance Program Page 6 of 6 


	III. Old Business 
	III. Old Business 
	B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 22, Wage Determinations and the Administration and Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, promulgated by DLIR 
	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 
	Department or Agency: Departmen of Labor and Industrial Relations 
	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: HAR 12-22 
	wAM. "'""''""l'o"• """Tl<EAOMINISTAATION AAD eN,oRcetAEtrro, CHAPTER,...HAWAII RE'll••o erAnrr•• 
	Ch apter ~ame: 

	Contact Person/Title: Pamela Martin 

	Phone Number: 808-586-8771 
	Phone Number: 808-586-8771 
	E-mail Address: Date: 0310812018 
	pamela.b.marting@hawall.gov 

	A To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. 
	B. Are the draft rules available for viewing ~erson and on the Lieutenant Governor's Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes lLJ No D 
	(If "Yes" please provide webpage address and when and where rules may be 
	/; 830 punchbowl St, Room 340, Honolulu, HI 96816 and all WSD olllces on Kauai, Maul and Hawaii 
	viewed in person.) 
	http:lnabor.hawall.gov/wsdlfind-a~aw

	(Please keep the proposed rules on this web page until after the SBRRB meeting.) 
	I. Rule Description: NewO Repeal D Amendment.I ✓ ! Compilation l✓ I 
	II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yesl ✓ INoOlf "No" no need to submit this form.) · 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	"Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business ... that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the .formation, operation, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201M-1 

	* 
	* 
	"Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or parttime employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1 


	· Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that does nof require the agencQo inte~'Y or describe the requirements ofthe statute or ordinance? Yes No ✓ (If "Yes" no need to submit this form.) ( e·.g., a federally-mandated reg lation a does not afford the agency the discretion to consider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201M-2(d) 
	IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? 
	.(HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l✓ I (If "Yes" no need to submitthis form.) 
	* 
	* 

	* 
	REVISED 8/15i'.Wl7 
	Figure
	Small Business Statement after Public Hearing -Page 2 
	I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	Classroom activity 
	a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules? If yes, explain. If not, why not? 
	Yes. No inclusion of reports of no-work weeks. 
	II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, please provide the following information: 
	1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were solicited. 
	Classroom activity 
	2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments . 
	. The substantive testimony focused on support of inclusion for certain types of work that is regulated under the law. 
	3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 
	We believe this testimony supports the current amendments and past treatments the Department has made through its determinations. No testimony objecting to the amendments was received. 
	4. The number of persons who: 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Attended the public hearing: 1a 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Testified at the hearing: 13 


	(iii) Submitted written comments: 2 
	5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that affected small business? 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	If "Yes" was the change adopted? Yes D No D 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the problems or negative result of the change. 


	No change was requested 
	*
	* * 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DBEDT 
	Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

	This statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: pre-and-post-public-hearing 
	http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements

	R.:1 . S I 5 20 I 7 
	Statement of the Topic of the Proposed Rules Amendments to HAR 12-22 WAGE DETERMINATIONS AND THE ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 104, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES 
	These rules are being updated to reflect 19 statutory changes over the last 20 years and to clarify some areas where the law is not clear on enforcement or administration ofthe Wages and Hours ofEmployees on Public Works Law. 
	a. Bring the rules in line with statute changes. 
	1) Amending the penalty provisions to track the current statutes, (see Subchapter 2) 
	2) Defines "falsification" (§12"22"1) 
	3) Amend the method of calculation of prevailing wages (§12"22"2) 
	4) Amend that appeals go to a hearings officer appointed by the director not the Labor and Industrial Relations Appeals Board (§12"22"9) 
	b. Provide new rules for new statutes. 
	1) Adds a new subchapter for construction on State and county leased buildings subject to the law. (See new Subchapter 4) 
	2) Adds a new subchapter for construction projects subject to Special Purpose Revenue Bonds (SPRB). (See new Subchapter 5) 
	c. Make modifications to the law to improve the enforcement and administration of the law. 
	1) Adds new subchapter for the administration of appeals. (See Subchapter 3) 
	2) Clarifies that the employer's cost of pre-paid health care is an allowable fringe benefit. (See definition of "cost of fringe benefit" §12"22"1) 
	3) Repeals the exemption for warranty work done by the manufacturer. (See definition of "construction of public work" §12"22"1) This follows the federal version of prevailing wage. 
	4) Clarifies the asphalt paving industry of delivering paving materials to spreader box trucks. (See memo dated July 13, 2013) and §12"22"1.1) 
	Figure



	foJrn®~~w~~ 
	foJrn®~~w~~ 
	l!l] MAR J,.?0/41' ~ 
	Small Business Impact Statement 
	(Sec 201 M-2, HRS) 
	,_s-c3 
	Department or Agency: Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, Wage Standards Division 
	Relevant HRS Chapter or Section: HRS Chapter 104, Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law 
	Administrative Rule Chapter and Title: HAR §12-22, Wage Determinations and the Administration and Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes 
	Name: Pamela Martin 
	Title: Administrator, Wage Standards Division 
	Phone Number: 808-586-8771 
	Email Address: 
	pamela.b.martin@hawaii.gov 

	A. Provide information described in Section 201M-2{b), HRS and in Governor's Administrative Directive No. 09-01. 
	The Wage Standards Division submitted this summary of proposed amendments to the administrative rules for Chapter 104, Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for their consideration at their November 2017 meeting. The Board suggested we hold the public hearing and then resubmit these amendments after the public hearing. 
	A public hearing was held on February 16, 2018, which was noticed State wide. (See attachment B, with copies of articles that appeared in each island newspaper.) At the public hearing 18 people signed in. Two written testimonies were received and one person provided oral comments. One of the written testimonies received and the oral comment focused on support for the inclusion of certain types of work that is regulated under the law. (See Attachment C for a photocopy of the testimony submitted). WSD believe
	The Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law, regulates the wages paid to laborers and mechanics on State and county public works construction projects, commonly referred to as a "prevailing wage" law or the Davis-Bacon Act in the federal jurisdiction. The proposed rule changes are intended to bring the rules up to date with statutory changes and provide 
	The Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law, regulates the wages paid to laborers and mechanics on State and county public works construction projects, commonly referred to as a "prevailing wage" law or the Davis-Bacon Act in the federal jurisdiction. The proposed rule changes are intended to bring the rules up to date with statutory changes and provide 
	information on procedural processes. Chapter 12-22 has not been amended since 1996. Statutory changes over the last twenty years have made many of the rules invalid and new statutory provisions were enacted without administrative or enforcement rules. 

	The rules apply to all contractors big and small that choose to work on public works projects. The intent of the law is to provide a level playing field for bidding on public works projects so that bids are won because of experience and expertise and not because a contractor chooses to pay their employees lower 
	wages. 
	The rule changes do not require any additional costs or administration that the statute already requires. There are no direct fees imposed and any existing indirect costs of reporting and record keeping have not been affected by the proposed changes. 
	In developing these updates the Wage Standards o'ivision consciously considered the existing administrative burden the law places on construction business both big and small. The Division regularly provides free workshops on understanding Hawaii's Prevailing Wage Law to promote voluntary compliance and establish a relationship with the construction industry and hear their concerns. The updates do not result in any substantial changes to administrative responsibilities for contractors. 
	Considering differing deadlines or exemptions for small business would 
	obfuscate the intent of the law as providing a level playing field to bid on public 
	works construction projects. 
	B. Rule Description. 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	New _Repeal ___x_Amendment ___x_Recompilation 

	2. 
	2. 
	Nature of Proposed Changes: 


	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Is the proposed rule authorized by a federal or State law or statute that does not require an agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the law or statute? Yes ___x_No 

	b. 
	b. 
	Is the proposed rule an emergency regulation? Yes ___x_No 

	c. 
	c. 
	Will the proposed rule affect small· business because it: 


	1) Will apply to "small business" defined as a for-profit enterprise with 
	fewer than 100 full-time or part-time employees? ___x_Yes No 
	2) Will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business? Yes ___K_No 
	3) Is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion of a small business? Yes ___x_No 
	2 
	3. Summarize the proposed rule(s) and reasons for the proposed rule(s): 
	These rules are being updated to reflect 19 statutory changes over the last 20 years and to clarify some areas where the law is not clear on enforcement or administration of the Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law: 
	a. Bring the rules in line with statute changes. 
	1) Amending the penalty provisions to track the current statutes, (see Subchapter 2) 
	2) Defines "falsification" (§12-22-1) 
	3) Amend the method of calculation of prevailing wages (§12-22-2) 
	4) Amend that appeals go to a hearings officer appointed by the director not the Labor and Industrial Relations Appeals Board 
	(§12-22-9) 
	b. Provide new rules for new statutes. 
	1) Adds a new subchapter for construction on State and county leased buildings subject to the law. (See new Subchapter 4) 
	2) Adds a new subchapter for construction projects subject to Special Purpose Revenue Bonds (SPRB). (See new Subchapter 5) 
	c. Make modifications to_ the law to improve the enforcement and administration of the law. 
	1) Adds new sub chapter for the administration of appeals. (See Subchapter 3) 
	2) Clarifies that the employer's cost of pre-paid health care is an allowable fringe benefit. (See definition of "cost of fringe benefit" 
	§12-22-1) 
	3) Repeals the exemption for warranty work done by the manufacturer. (See definition of "construction of public work" §12-22-1) This follows the federal version of prevailing wage. 
	4) Clarifies the asphalt paving industry of delivering paving materials to spreader box trucks. (See memo dated July 13, 2013) and 
	§12-22-1.1) 
	C. Small Business Impact Statement pursuant to 201M-2(b): 
	The rules do not impose any new, direct or indirect, costs for small businesses. A public hearing will be held before the adoption of any rules. 
	D. Are there new or increased fees or fines? Yes _x_No 
	Penalties are set by statute, see 104-24, HRS. 
	3 
	E. Did the agency consult small businesses, departmental advisory committees, or were other small businesses organizations consulted during the drafting of the proposed rule? _ Yes .JL No 
	If no, why not? 
	Awareness of their concerns and the intent of a level playing field is the same for individual businesses regardless ofsize. 
	F. Other alternatives or less stringent measures proposed · by affected businesses to reduce direct or indirect costs and, if proposed, why those proposals were not adopted. 
	Proposals, if any, were addressed at the legislative level. 
	G. Departmental Impact (i.e. fiscal, personnel, program)? Yes _LNo 
	If yes, describe long and short-range impacts, estimated in dollar amounts or personnel, due to enforcement, administration, execution, or implementation of the proposed rule that may result in a savings or shortfall under the current program budget. 
	H. Impact on General Public (i.e. individuals, consumers, and large businesses)? .JLYes _ No 
	If yes, describe long-and short-range impacts due to the enforcement, implementation, or execution of the proposed rule. 
	The construction of public works using tqxpayer resources will be better managed and enforced although the direct impact to the general public will be imperceptible. 
	I. Impact on state economy? .JLYes No 
	Penalty structure set out in Act 130, Regular Session 2014 and act 192, Regular Session 2016, should alleviate some General Fund pressure and put the economic burden directly on the activities generating the workload. 
	J. Final result anticipated from the proposed rule change. 
	The final result will improve the administration of Hawaii's prevailing wage law and serve to clarify enforcement for contractors. 
	4 
	K. Alternatives explored to carry out the statutory purpose other than rulemaking. 
	Public determinations and internal practices have served to bridge the gap between the statutes and the practice. 
	Attachment A: Ramseyer version of proposed rule changes. Attachment B: Public hearing notices Attachment C: Testimony received at February 16, 2018 public hearing. 
	5 
	February 16, 2018 
	LEONARD HOSHIJO, Acting Director 
	Department ofL.~bor and Indusl;rjal Relatj.op.s 
	RE;.NOTICE OFPUBLIC HEAR!NG Department ofLabor and Induslifal Relations, Wage Starldatds Division will hold a pul:,lic heaiing;t6 address a,men4ments to Hawaii A(;lmnnstrative.Rµles, Title 12, Ch~pkr 22-, relating to wage detenninations and the adrn:inistrat1on.artd e:riforcem.ent ofChapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes {HRS). The notice and public hearing;are pursuantto Wages and Hours of Employees on Public Works Law, Section 104-2.9, HRS, and. Chapter 91, BRS. 
	propos.ed 

	:O~ar Mr. l!osmJo: 
	My name is Joseph Ttehetn. I have liv~d in Hawaii for 54 year.s and wol'.l<ed ip. constructiol). for 
	.50 years. I wouid like to bring to-your attention severalpoints ofconeem as it relates to this 
	hearing mo:re specifically truck drivers transporting asphaitpavingmaterials: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Truck drivers not only deiiverpaving material. to the "Spreader Bo~•• on site but-drivers ar.e·~so·required to ·haul out excess "Cold.Planel' asphalt material fr.om the'site·ofwork.. Language.needs to .be addedto coverthe.hauling out of"Cold Planer'' asphalt material. 

	2. 
	2. 
	The lndustry standard method for calculatfog prevailing wages and overtime pay for all employees transportlng·paving material to and/or from Public Works should be the.Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

	3. 
	3. 
	Jobsite inspectors-shmild be trained·and required,to hold periodic unannounced ipspec.tions ofsubcontractors cenifi~d payrolls or ifthere are indications ofpay ihequality. 


	Historically the paving indµ~tryhas provided emiching employment for ma,ny ofHawa:il;s const:r)J.ction workers, but recently there has been a segment ofour professionthat has depressed the industry by notpayingprevailing wages. 
	Recently the str~et infront ofmy house was being paved: I went out to chat with .some ofthe wo:rkets ,and drivers. One driver told·mehe was being. paiq. .cash. ltold him he sho11ld let the jobsite :inspector know. Driver said, 'No! I would'rather not." Ifla:gged down the ilispector;and asked "•are these truck drivers supposedto be gettingprevailing wages and does the company have to pr.ovide certified payi:oils?'' He tookecf at me 1.i.ke1 wh.at are you talkmg about? 
	··

	On my s.treet alone·there were :at least 15 trucks hauling out waste asphaltmaterial and laying down new asphalt over the course ofseveral.days. Additionally they have dugout and repaved many ofthe adjoining r.oads in the area same truclc.drivers for several months now. 
	witnthe.se 

	'Failure to require cert.H1ed payroll record.s and site inspe-ctions could be fostering the paymei:its of 
	cash to workers!· Ifthese inspectors are n.ot asking questions an:d vie.wing payroll documents, we tax (layers are being short changed. 
	Thankyou for your attention in this. m.atter. lfyou have.further qu~s.tion~.please feel free to 
	·ct me. · oe Treher.ti -46-314 Kumoo Loop 
	R&n~ohe, lil 96744 Cell 8"08-233-8034 
	joetree59@hawaii.rr.com 

	[JAE-YOUNG LEE] 
	[JAE-YOUNG LEE] 
	: :-·
	[-1419 Dominis St. #607, Honolulu HI, 96827] 
	[lj99@hawaii.edu] 

	. . 
	?fl Ifl F;-,, 
	I • L'J1:J .. C.b i • ..; 
	Figure
	February, 16, 2018 
	To: Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations Wage Standards Division · Attention: Leonard Hoshijo, Acting Director, Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations 
	Re: Comment on the proposed amendments to Hawaii.Adminis(l'.ativ~Rules,. 'Utle.:12.,..Chaptei: 
	Re: Comment on the proposed amendments to Hawaii.Adminis(l'.ativ~Rules,. 'Utle.:12.,..Chaptei: 
	22, relating to wage determinations and the administration and enforcement ofChapter 104, 

	Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
	Dear Leonard Hoshijo and members ofthe Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations 
	Thank you for receiving and considering the public'.
	s viewpoint.on Hawaii Administrative Rules' 

	proposed amendment. My mµne ~s Jae-Young Lee, current 3L student at the University,Q.fI:Iawaii 
	William S. Richardson School ofLaw aµd an attorney in South Korea. I '1111 interested in the promulgation and the execution process ofthe agencies in the State ofHawaii;-especially-wifu,1egard,, to wage issues that my practice had mainly focused on. 
	I am testif)ring to express my support l:llld gratitude for the Departn1.1;~nt ofLabor -aniin_dustrial Relations,· Wage Standards Division's ("Department") thoughtful work on·the proposed amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 12, Chapter 22, relating to wage determinations and the administration and enforcement ofChapter 104,. Hawaii Revised Statutes, (hereinafter-"proposed amendment") especially, its effort to provide ~easonable a (pre) hearing process -under Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. §91-,10 (2003) 
	With regard to §12-22-47 of the proposed amendment, which provides that the_hearing officer shall render a written decision on a notification of violation with.in--si-,rty--deys,,-8'.fteT,ttie-·coocl»sio.rrof-fue-· hearing in confomiance with Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. § 104-23 (2014), I believe this will·promote the promptness ofthe administrative process, which often can be utmost l?,riorityJo the P,_arties ofthe wag~ 
	cases. 
	Unlike§ 104-23 and §12-22-47 of the propG>sed ,amendment, the-Faii,:babor---Staooanl&,A~-of. :l-9J~.2-9.. 
	U.S.C.A. § 203 (2014) (hereinafter "FLSA") does not set a deadline that the Wage and Hour Division (hereinafter "WHD") have to take actions after the_WHD enforcement ofthe FLSA.This is also true 
	1 

	.. . .... . ,. 
	~ ·in many of other hearings on the federal le~e1·and state level,where administrative resources are limited. I strongly support this amendment that can help wage cases to.be resolved in timely manner. 
	2
	3 

	Pursuantto § 12-22-46 ofthe Department's proposed amendment, "( a ]ny party shall have an opportunity to contest the facts so noticed, within the time specified by the hearings officer." Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. §91-10 ( 4) (2003),allowing any party to contest the facts to notice without putting any timely limitation on time to contest the facts· so noticed. I agree that this added phrase in this section serves the purpose ofpromoting administrative effectiveness and save administrative resources for other urge
	4 

	The Department may want to consider adding a comma after "a laborer or mechanic" in §12-22-4.1 (a) 
	ofthe proposed amendment to corivey its meaning more clearly.
	5 

	Again, I support §12-22-40-47 ofthe proposed amendment particularly ,. I suggest the Department add "reasonable" .within the· §12-22-46 of the proposed amendment. The Department may want to consider adding a comma after "a laborer or mechanic" in §,12-22-4.1 (~) of 
	withrega;d.t~-.§..:L2..22.,,4J.cf.it

	·the proposed amendment. 
	Thank you for allowing me this opportunity to testify on this proposed amendment. 
	Best Regards, 
	Jae-Young Lee 
	See, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, F:eb. 12., 2018), See 
	2 
	https://www.eeoc.gov/federal/fed employees/fag hearing.cfin#q36 (last visited 

	· also United States Department ofLabor, .do1,,g~vlappeals1B1A•~laimants.bmleflast-.v.i'sited, Feb. 12., 2018). See Colorado Department ofLabor and Employment -hearing (last visited Feb. 12., 2018). . Haw. Rev. Stat. Ann. §91-10 (4) (2003) provides: ...they shall be afforded an opportunity to contest the facts so noticed. §12-22-4.1 (a) ofthe proposed amendment provides: In determining the hourly overtime compensation due a laborer or mechanic the rate shall be computed by multiplying the basic hourly rate 
	https://www.
	3 
	https://www.colorado.gov/pacifi.c/cdle/a:fter
	4 
	5

	(> 
	AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION IN THE MATTER OF 
	Notice ofPublic Hearing 
	Notice ofPublic Hearing 
	Notice ofPublic Hearing 

	STATE OF HAWAII 
	STATE OF HAWAII 
	} 

	TR
	}ss. 

	City and.County ofHonolulu 
	City and.County ofHonolulu 
	} 


	Doc. Date:.__J'---'--A-'-'-'N'---'--1-=--5-"'2=01=8 ___ 
	Doc. Date:.__J'---'--A-'-'-'N'---'--1-=--5-"'2=01=8 ___ 
	Doc. Date:.__J'---'--A-'-'-'N'---'--1-=--5-"'2=01=8 ___ 
	# Pages:.__1_ 
	_ 

	Notary Name:cott EEN E. soRANAKA 
	Notary Name:cott EEN E. soRANAKA 
	First./vdicial.Circuit 

	TR
	.,•-'' 
	r.: 
	Q 
	. ' 11, , 

	Doc. Description:,___A_fi_id_a_vi_to_f 
	Doc. Description:,___A_fi_id_a_vi_to_f 
	.:·".,:':_·\\'.~:: ..'!..(}l,>J 
	-

	. 


	.. :·"" ,).~···· ·•, .. 
	-

	Publication 
	_.,:r~·'/ 1· :oT:11"·,· 
	.: () : ' '·"ll;: l I('
	1!10 ~ ., .. : l::"li~1•\ 1j.• -I~:':~•\ 
	20

	0: ,.,. ' 
	.JAN 1 5 

	~ 
	Notary Signature 
	Date 
	Figure
	Gwyn Pang being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is a clerk, duly authorized to execute this affidavit of Oahu Publications, Inc. publisher ofThe Honolulu Star-Advertiser, MidWeek, The Garden Island, West Hawaii Today, and Hawaii Tribune-Herald, that said newspapers are newspapers ofgeneral circulation in the State ofHawaii, and that the attached notice is true notice as was published in the aforementioned newspapers as follows: 
	Honolulu Star-Advertiser 01/14/2018 MidWeek 
	Honolulu Star-Advertiser 01/14/2018 MidWeek 
	Honolulu Star-Advertiser 01/14/2018 MidWeek 
	1 0 
	times on: times on: 

	The Garden Island 
	The Garden Island 
	0 
	times on: 

	Hawaii Tribune-Herald 
	Hawaii Tribune-Herald 
	0 
	times on: 

	West Hawaii Today 
	West Hawaii Today 
	0 
	times on: 

	Other Publications: 
	Other Publications: 
	0 
	times on: 


	And that affiant is not a party to or in any way interested in the above entitled matter. 
	The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S:C.A. §. 203 ·(2014) 
	1 




	71ry=a,
	71ry=a,
	Gwyn Pang 
	Figure
	Colleen E. Soranaka, Notary Public ofthe First Judicial Circuit, State ofHawaii My commission expires: Jan 06 2020 
	Ad# 0001059621 
	1
	-• llOTICE OF P,UBLIC.HE'ARIIIG· . . . NoUce Is hereby g'wen that theDepartment of Laboi and Industrial RelaUons, IWage Standards Division ·1v111 hold, a pubjl~ hearing to a~gress prop9sed al)lendmen1:5 to ~awall Admlnlstratl'(e; Rules,.1JU~12,'Chapter~2,relatlng to wag~
	I
	1

	deterinlnallons and the admlnlstraUon and enforcem·ent of Chapter 104, Hawah
	} 
	·Revised Statutes (HRS); Tiie noUce-and public hearing are j,uisua'ni to Wages'and } 
	Hours;o(Employees ori Public Works,Law, Section 104-29, HRS;, and Chapter 91;
	Hris·· • · , ' ·, :. • ' 
	Hris·· • · , ' ·, :. • ' 
	} 

	The proposed rule amendments 1'1111: (1) b~ng ~•~ ~les )n ilnf)YI~ ;t~lute cijanges; (2) provide new•rl!les f~r, nE[t'I ~lutes; and (3) modify, tl1e rules to
	} 
	Improve the administration and enforcem&n} ofthe law lnchl~lng:, · . } 
	!; Subchapter 1, AdmlnlstraUon: and Enforcement; repeals' the exempUon for warranty \VOik-done by I/le (llanufacturer, ctarines_. that th.e._employer's cost of
	} 
	preP.ald health care Is en· allowable fringe b~nefi~ defines 'falslflcaUon•; } 
	addresses tlie asphalt paving, lndusllY, of ·~ellyering paxlng' mal~rials · to spreader box trucks; amends,the method of calculaUon of prevalllngwages ' and ~eletes the,definlUon·oi 'average rate•; adds the method o(calculat)on of overtime 'compensation; amends that appeals of ' _a cla~lflcatlon determination go. to a tiearings.offi~e!•appointed by uie director, ~ot the labor end Industrial Relatlons Appeals Board; clarifies certified payroll and re'ccrdkeeping requlrements;. , , . .. · _. . · ,: . 
	1

	2: Subchapter 2, Penalty for VlolaUons; conforms the pene)ty provfsloQs , ,to b~ ccnslslent with the c1ment statutes;• • . ' 
	3. Subchapter 3, Hearing of Appeal;. n~w,s~bchapter wi!h.prop~sed procedures 
	' and requirements for an administrative tiearin·g of appeals of a' noURcallon of violaUon, •under Chap.ter 9·1, HRS, Including prehearing· .conference, evidence, and the right to Judlcl~Imlew.ofa'dec)slon; , >_ , 
	4, Subchapter 4, Constructfon on Proper!)' Leased by the State or !;ounty;, new subch'apter willi proposed procedures. and' requirements·for ccnstructlon on property leased bythe stale or ~u.nty; • _ 
	5. Subchapler 5, ConstrucUon Projects Financed vi!th Special •Purpose Revenue 
	· Bond~ new subchapter1Ylth proposed requlre'.nients for'ccnstructicin projeels financed l'llth special purpose revenuebonds; and 
	6. addlUonal c/Janges for tech'nlcal and clarincauon purposes. • 
	Coples,of the proposed amendments vi!II be made available for public,vlwlling from the first woridng day that the leg~I notice appears In. the. Ho'nolillu SlarAdverilser through the day the public he~ring Is tieId,. from Monday -Friday, between the hours of 2:00 p.m: -4:0Q p.m.\ at the following, IQcatlons: 830 Punchbowl•Slreet, Room 340, Honolulu,..Hawall; 2264 ~upunl Stree.t, Walluku, Hawaii; 7~ Aupunl Stree~ R_oom 108, Hilo,-HaY/all; ~1-990 Hale.kll ~lr!el, Room 2087, Kealakekoa, Hawaii; and 3060 Ell'ra
	·Accpy of the proposed-amendments v~ll'be malled· lo apy,lnlerestiid 'person,who requests a copy a),the loC\ltlons abov&-described,·~nd'pays a_prepaid fee of t~n ·cents per page for the ccpy and pastage. The profosed rules may•also be vlewe,4 at , , · , . 
	http:f/labor.hawall.gov/wsd. 

	1
	Thepublic hearing will be held ori: Fotiruary 16, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. a~ HONOLULU, OAHU Keellkolanl 8ulldlng 830 P.unchboVil Stree~ Room 314, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 The public hearing wlll be ccnUoued, ~ necessary, to the time, date,and·place 
	1 

	announced at the scheduled hearing. , , , . 
	Interested persons CJ!ay submit any, ~a\a, vje,11, or argumen_~ orally W11 wriUng, concerning the· proposed amendments. Air written' subml~lons. for the record must be submitted to \'/age Standards Division; 830 Punchbov~ Stree~ Ro9m 340, Honolulu, Hawan 96813, an( must. be received at or prior to th~ 
	1 

	scheduled public hearing. . 
	Auxlllary aids ~nd services are avallab)e up~p -~q~est to Individuals .-ivjth dlsablllUes. TDD/TTY Dial 711 !Hen ask for (808) 586-8771, or email . A'request for reasonable acccmmodaUons sho~ld be made 
	dllr.wag~~a1•ral1.gov

	no lateithan ten woridngdays prior to the peeded a~mmoda.Uons. · Ql!,led] Ja~uary,_14; 2018. · , LEONARD HOSHUO; ActJng Director, o·epartmentof Labor and,Jndustri~i RelaUons (SA10596~.Y,14/ 18) 
	, i':, 11 I 
	\ •, . ~·· . 
	.::·~ .~-:;.::·... ::..'.:'.'.•:'/,' ; 
	·· .. ;··. 
	.._,'.,.// '·: •. ·;; 1~--.. .. ·' 
	·,. ( ~_.:.. . 
	•'· .. 
	SP.NO.: L.N. 
	Figure
	DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
	Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 12-22 Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	(Dat e ,of adoption) 
	1 . Chapter 12-22, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "Wage Determinations and the Administration and Enforcement of Chapter 104, Hawait Revised Statutes", is amended and compiled to read as follows : 
	"HAWAII ADMINISTRATI VE RULES 
	TITLE 12 
	DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
	CHAPTER 22 
	WAGE DETERMINATIONS AND. THE ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 104, HAWAI I REVISED STATUTES 
	Subchapter 1 Administration and Enforcement 
	§12-22-1 Definitions §12-22-1.1 Transporting of materials, supplies, or equipment §12-22-2 Method to determine prevailing wage rates §12-22-3 Procedure for wage rate schedules 
	§12-22-4 
	§12-22-4. 1 
	§12-22-5 §12-22-6 §12-22-7 §12-22-8 
	§12-22-8 . 1 §12-22-9 §12-22-10 
	§12-22-11 §12-22-12 
	§12-22-13 
	Method to determine fringe benefit hourly rates Method to determine overtime 
	compensation rate Meeting prevailing wage requirements Apprentice rates Contract provisions Classification of laborers and 
	mechanics Investigation of complaints Appeal of classification determination Certified payroll and record keeping 
	requirements Rulings and interpretations Disbursement of accrued amounts 
	withheld on contract Computation of time 
	Subchapter 2 Penalty for Violations 
	§12-22-25 
	§12-22-25 
	§12-22-25 
	Notification of violation 

	§12-22-26 
	§12-22-26 
	Delay 
	or 
	falsification penalty 

	§12-22-27 
	§12-22-27 
	Violation penalties 


	Subchapter 3 Hearing of Appeal 
	§12-22-40 §12-22-41 §12-22-42 §12-22-43 §12-22-44 §12-22-45 §12-22-46 §12-22-47 §12-22-48 
	Definitions 
	Prehearing conference 
	Prehearing order 
	Hearing 
	Powers and duties of hearings officer 
	Rules of evidence 
	Official notice of facts 
	Decision 
	Judicial review 
	Subchapter 4 Construction on Property Leased by the St ate or County 
	§12-22-60 
	§12-22-60 
	§12-22-60 
	Definitions 

	§12-22-61 
	§12-22-61 
	Construction for 
	state and county 

	TR
	leases policy 

	§12-22-62 
	§12-22-62 
	Submission of leases 
	to department 

	§12-22-63 
	§12-22-63 
	Lease 
	required to state square 
	footage 

	§12-22-64 
	§12-22-64 
	Challenges 
	to square footage 

	§12-22-65 
	§12-22-65 
	Lessors 
	required to notify contractors 


	Subchapter 5 Construction Projects Financed with Special Purpose Revenue Bonds 
	§12-22-75 Definitions §12-22-76 Contract provisions, special purpose revenue bonds §12-22-77 Project party collective bargaining agreement 
	Historical Note : Chapter 22 of title 12 is based substantially upon Rule XVIII, Relating to Wage Determinations Under Chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and the Administration and Enforcement of said Chapter of the Department of Labor and I ndustrial Relations . [Eff 8/15/55; am 4/16/56; am 9/1/59; R 7/27/81 ) 
	SUBCHAPTER 1 
	ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
	§12-22-1 De finitions . As used in this chapter: 
	"Apprentice" shall [be as defined] have the same meaning as i n section 372-2, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS . 
	["Average rate" means the rate obtained by adding the hourly rates of wages paid to each worker in a designated class of laborers or mechanics and dividing the sum by the total number of workers in the class.] 
	"Basic hourly rate" shall [be as defined] have t he same meaning as in section 104-1, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS . 
	"Construction of public work" i ncludes without limitation new construction, reconstruction, development, improvement, alteration, repair, renovation, painting, decorating, dredging, shoring, simultaneous sewer inspection and repair,, and any other activity performed by a laborer or mechanic employed at the site of a public work or at any property used by the contractor, dedicated for the performance of the contract, such as batch plants, borrow pits, fabrication plants, mobile factories , job headquarters,
	a 
	a 
	a 
	supply, 
	service, 
	or 
	other type of 
	non-construction 

	contract: 
	contract: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Manufacturing 
	or 
	furnishing of materials, 

	TR
	articl es, 
	supplies, 
	or 
	equipment 
	on 
	the job 

	TR
	site; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Warranty work 
	[eJccept when done by the 

	TR
	manufacturer 
	on 
	defective products 
	or 

	TR
	equipment]; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Demolition 
	or 
	excavation; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Landscaping; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Termite treatment; 
	and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Installation a t 
	the construction site of 

	TR
	items 
	or articles fabricated off-site, 
	such 

	TR
	as 
	shelving, 
	drapery, 
	and communications 

	TR
	equipment. 


	"Contract" means any type of agreement over $2, 000 for construction of a public work, regardless of what the agreement may be called, including purchase orders and vouchers. 
	"Contractor" [means] shall have the same meaning 
	as in section 104-1, HRS , including but not limited to 
	the general contractor or any subcontractor, 
	[including] any individual, partnership, firm, 
	corporation, joint venture, or other legal entity, 
	acting directly or through an agent, employee, 
	consultant, corporate officer or corporate director, 
	undertaking the execution of a construction contract 
	over $2 , 000 with a governmental contracting agency. 
	"Cost. of fringe benefit" means the rate of contribution irrevocably made by a contractor to a trustee or to a third person pursuant to a fund, plan, or program in providing benefits to a laborer or mechanic for: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Health and welfare such as medical or hospital care, [compensation for injuries or illness resulting from occupational activity,] or insurance to provide for any of the foregoing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Unemployment, life insurance, sickness or disability insurance, or accident insurance; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Vacation and holiday pay; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Pensions on retirement or death; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Defraying costs of apprenticeship or other similar programs; or 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Other bona fide fringe benefits as determined by the director; 


	[provided that] except for chapter 393, HRS, where a contractor is r equired by either federal or state law to provide these benefits the rate of contribution or other costs for these benefits shall not be included. 
	"Department" means the department. of labor and industrial relations . 
	"Director" shall [be as defined] have the same meaning as in section 104-1, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS . 
	"Employed" includes every person paid in any manner for working in the construction of a work under a contract with a governmental contracting agency, regardless of any contractual relationship alleged t o exist. 
	"Falsification of records" means the submissi on 
	or fil ing of inaccurat e , misleading, or incorrect 
	payment i nformation on certified payrolls, fringe 
	benefit r eporting forms, or other documentation 
	required by this c hapter for construction work 
	performed on a public works construction project when 
	the form submitted has been attested to or certified 
	to be true and correct by the contractor or the 
	contractor' s designated r epresentati ve . 
	"Governmental contracting agency" shall [be as defined] have the same meaning as in [section] sections 104-1 and 104-2, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS. 
	"Hawaii Revised Statutes" or "HRS" means l aws enacted by the Hawaii state legislature . 
	"Prevailing area practice" means t he labor classifications of the work performed by the laborers or mechanics of t he group used by t he contractors whose wage rates were determined to be prevailing in t he locality and are incorporated into and represented i n the applicable wage rate schedule issued by the departme nt. 
	"Public work" shall [be as defined] have the same meaning as in section [104 2(a) , ] 104-1, [Hawaii Revised Statutes, ] HRS , and includes without limitation: 
	(1) Any building, structu re, road, or real property, the construction of which is undertaken: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	By authority of; and 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Through the use of funds , grants, loans, bonds, land, or other resources of the State or· any county, board, bureau, authority, commission, or other agency or instrumentality thereof, to serve the interest of the [general] public, regardless of whether title thereof is held by a state or county agency . However, subsequent construction to fixtures or appurtenances attached to the assigned space of an individual occupant , 


	lessee, or tenant of the building or structure, contracted by other than a state or county agency or instrumentality thereof, shall not be subject to chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS; or 
	(2) [Any building or stru cture constructed under private contract under the following conditions: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	The property is privately owned, but the entire building or structure is leased to the State or a political subdivision; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	The lease agreement between the lessor and the State or political subdivision, as lessee, was entered into prior to t he construction contract; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	The construction work is performed according to plans, specifications, or criteria of the State or pol itical subdivision . ] 


	A constructi on contract between private persons in accordance with section 104-2.5, HRS . 
	["Trainee" means a person participating, through employment, in a schedule of work enperience and who is a party to a trainee agreement approved by and registered with the department . ] 
	"USDOL" means the United States Department of Labor. 
	"Wages", "minimum wages", "prevailing wages", "rate of wages", and "wage rates" shall [be as defined] have the same meaning as in section 104-1, [Hawai i Revised Statutes.] HRS. [Eff 7/27/81; am and comp 4/1/96; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-29) 
	§12-22-1 . 1 Transporting of materials , supplies , or equipment. (a) Chapter 104, [Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, and [these rules] this chapter are 
	applicable, but not limited to, [transporting of]~ laborer or mechanic who is employed and performs work at a public work site and transports materials, 
	supplies, 
	supplies, 
	supplies, 
	or 
	equipment : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	To 
	or 
	from 
	a 
	public work site; 
	or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Between 
	a 
	public work site and either 

	TR
	another public work site 
	or 
	a 
	dedicated 

	TR
	site[--;
	-



	when performed by a laborer or mechanic employed at the public work site] . 
	(b) The following illustrate situations in which 
	chapter 104, [Hawaii Revised Statutes, ] HRS, and [these rules] this chapter are not applicable: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Delivery of materials, supplies, or equipment to a public work site if the delivery persons only drop off the i tems and perform no construction work at the public work site; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Hauling of excavated material away from a public work site for disposal or recycling, where the drivers are on the site only [-f'.e.r the purpose of having] to have their trucks filled; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Continuous hauling of material to and from a public work site, and the drivers perform no construction work at the public work site; or 


	(4 ) Delivery or removal of equipment to or from a public work site, and the delivery persons operate no equipment or perform no other work as a laborer or mechanic on the public work site. [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) 
	(Imp : HRS §104-29) 
	§ 12-22-2 Method to determine prevailing wage rates. [(a) In making prevailing wage determinations under chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, the director shall make separate findings of: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The basic hourly rate; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The rate of contribution or cost of fringe benefi ts paid by the employer when the payment of the fringe benefits by the employer constitutes a prevailing practice. The coot of fringe benefits shall be reflected in the wage rate schedule as an hourly rate. 


	-fb+-) M The rates of wages which the director shall regard as prevailing in each corresponding classification of l aborers and mechanics shall be [7] as defined in section 104-2 (b) (1) (A) and (B) , HRS . 
	[(1) The rate of wages paid to the majority of those employed in the State in the corresponding classes of laborers or mechanics on projects that arc similar to the contract work; or 
	(2) In the event that there is not a majority paid at the same r ate, then the rate paid to the greater number, provided t he greater number constitutes thirty per cent of those so employed; or 
	-f-3-t] J..!21 [In the event less than thirty per cent of those so empl oyed receive the same rate, ] If there is no modal rate, then the average [rate . ] of the rates that occur with the highest frequency. [Eff 7/27/81 ; am and comp 4/1/96; am and comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2) 
	§12-22-3 Procedure for wage rate schedules . (a) All schedules of wage rates for laborers and mechanics and any changes thereto shall be based on : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Surveys or methods which the director may deem necessary to obtain data for wage determinations; [&1:-) 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Wage determinations made by the Secretary of 

	Labor, USDOL, under the Davi s-Bacon Act (40 U.S . C. §§276a-276a-7) ; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Both paragraphs (1) and (2) . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Wage rate schedul es shall be regularly i ssued on or about February 15 and September 15 of 


	each year . Additional wage rate schedules, addenda, 
	and notices of changes will be issued as the director 
	deems necessary . 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Requests for determination by the director of wage r ates for classes of laborers and mechanics not listed on the current schedule of wage rates or for any change, modification, or review of wage rates shall be submitted by the governmental contracting agency or any interested party at least thirty cal endar days before advertisement of the specifications for which the determination is sought . Exceptions from this provision shall be made only upon a proper showing in unusual circumstances . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Any increase in wage rates, as determined by the director and issued in the wage rate schedule, s hall be applicable during the performance of the contract, in accordance with section 104-2(a) and (b), [Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] HRS. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	No wage rate determined by the director shall be less than the rate establi shed by the Secretary of Labor (USDOL) for the corresponding class. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Any changes to the wage rates shall be recognized by the director only upon complete and timely submission of the information, i n accordance with [section 10 4 11, Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] this chapter. [-'f--fie] Notwithstanding the effective or adoption date of a collective bargaining agreement or rates contained t herein, the effective date of these changes shall be the date of publication in the wage r~te schedule and shall not be ret~oactive. [Eff 7/27/81; am and comp 4/1/96; am and comp 


	] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §§104-2, 104-31 , 104-34) 
	§12-22-4 Method to determine fringe benefit hourly rates. In determining the hourly equivalent of a monthly rate of contribution for a fringe benefit, the monthly rate of contribution shall be divided by one hundred [-a-n-a] seventy-three hours and the quotient 
	22-10 
	shall be the hourly rate. [Eff 7/27 /81; comp 4/1/96; 
	comp (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
	HRS §104-2) 
	§ 12-22-4 . 1 Method to determine overtime compensation rate . (a) In determining the hourly overtime compensation due a laborer or mechanic, the rate shall be computed by multiplying the basi c hourly rate times the overtime multiplier according to the wage rate schedule classification and then adding the hourly fringe benefit rate . 
	(b) No credit for fringe benefits made by monthly contributions as calcul ated in section 12-224, is allowed in determini ng the o·vertime rate . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §104-2) 
	-

	§ 12-22-5 Meeting prevailing wage requirements. 
	A contractor shall pay the prevailing wages contained in a wage rate schedule applicable to laborers or mechanics in any of the following ways : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	By paying not less than the basic hourly rate to th~ laborers or mechanics and by making the contributions for the fringe benefits as specified in the wage rate schedule; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	By paying not less than the basic hourly rate to the laborers or mechanics and by making contributions for fringe benefits in a total amount not less than the total of the fringe benefits required by the wage rate schedule; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	By paying the basic hourly rate in cash directly to the laborers or mechanics and by making an additional cash payment in lieu of the fringe benefits required by the wage rate schedule; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	By paying an hourly rate, partly in cash and partly in fringe benefits, which total not less than the prevailing wages . [Eff 7/27/81; am and comp 4/1/96; comp 


	] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2) 
	§12-22-6 Apprentice [and trainee] rates. Any 
	apprentice [or trainee] wage rates established by the 
	director shall apply only to : Contractors who are a party to a bona fide apprenticeship program which has been registered with the department; 
	ill 

	[+±-+-Jill Apprentices [and trainees] who are parties to apprenticeship [and trainee] agreements which have been registered with the department or recognized by the department as a USDOL nationally approved apprenticeship program[T] , and who have been individually registered by name with the department; and 
	[--R-t]fil The number of apprentices [or trainees) on any public work which, in !elation to the number of journeyworkers in the same craft cla·ssification as the apprentices [-e-rtrainees] employed by the same employer on the same public work, is not in excess of the ratio allowed for employment of apprentices [and trainees) by the employer under the apprenticeship [or trainee) standards agreed and subscribed to by the employer and registered with or recognized by the department . A registered or recognize
	§12-22-7 Contract provisions . The governmental contracti ng agency shall cause or require to be inserted in all specifications, solicitations, and contracts made and entered into by the agency for construction of any public work, [the wage rate schedule issued] a requirement that prevailing wages be paid as determined by the director and any other 
	stipulation 
	stipulation 
	stipulation 
	or 
	provision required by chapter 104, 

	[Hawaii Revised Statutes.] 
	[Hawaii Revised Statutes.] 
	HRS . 
	[Eff 7/27/81; 
	am 
	and 

	comp 
	comp 
	4/1/96 , 
	am 
	and comp 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 

	§104-29) 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§104-2) 


	§12-22-8 Classification of laborers and mechanics. (a) The gover nmental contracting agency shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which will be employed on a public work and for which the director has not made a wage determination shall be classified by the contractor in a manner which conforms to the classifications contained in the wage rate schedule issued by the director . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	If t here is a disagreement on the proper classification or reclassification of a particular class of laborers .or mechanics to be used, the governmental contracting agency shall submit a written report of the issues in d i sagreement and refer the matter to the director for determination . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If t he governmental contracting agency fails to refer the disagreement to the director as provided by subsection (b) within ten days after a request in writing is made to the governmental contracting agency' by any interested party, the interested party may refer the question in w'ri ting to the director . [Eff 7/27/81; am and comp 4/1/96, comp ] 


	(Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §104-2) 
	§12-22-8 . 1 Investigation of complaints . Any complaint received by a governmental contracting agency with respect to matters under chapter 104, [Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, shall be referred to 
	the director for investigation and report . 
	the director for investigation and report . 
	the director for investigation and report . 
	[Eff and 

	comp 4/1/96, 
	comp 4/1/96, 
	am 
	a nd 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth: 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§104-21 ) 


	§12-22-9 Appeal[~ ] of classification determination . M Any person aggrieved by the di rector's determination made pursuant to sect ion 12-22-8 may, within ten days after mailing of the determination, appeal in writing t o the [labor and industrial relations appeals board. ] hearings officer appointed by the director in conformance with chapter 91, HRS. 
	(b) Any party to the appeal may obtain judicial review of the appeals decision in t he manner provided in chapter 91 , HRS . [Eff 7/27/81 ; comp 4/1/96; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: 
	HRS §104-2) 
	§12-22-10 [Record] Certified payroll and record keeping requirements. M Each contractor shall maintain accurate and complete payroll records and related employment r ecords during t he course of the work and preserve the records for a period of three years from the close of the project for all laborers and mechani cs working on the public works construction project in English containing the followi ng information and data on each laborer and mechanic engaged in the performance of the contract at the job sit
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Name in full ; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Home addr ess;ill Last four digits of social security number; ill Copy of the apprentice ' s regi stration with 


	the department; 
	[--f-B-Jill Job classification[y] for each 
	classification of work performed; [-t4t]ill Rate of pay; [-t§-t]J..ll Hours worked each workday and t otal 
	hours worked each workweek; [+€>+]ill_ Total weekly straight-time earnings; [-f-++]ill Total weekly overtime earnings; [-Total weekly gross earnings; [+9-t]l1.l_L The amount and purpose of each 
	f-8+]J.1.Ql 

	deduction; [-aft€l] [-f--l-G-+]J.111 Total net wages paid and the date paid[-,-]; and 
	('

	(13) 
	(13) 
	(13) 
	Other information as the director may require. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Whenever a contractor provides fri nge benefits to covered workers, the contractor shall further maintain records showing the irrevocable commitment to provide the benefits is enforceable, that the p l an or program is f i nancially responsible, and that the plan or -program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing the benefits . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Contractors employing apprentices under an approved program shal l maintain a written record of the registration of the apprenticeship program, the registration of the apprentices, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed fof the applicable program. 
	1


	(d) 
	(d) 
	A contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any construction work is performed a copy of all certified payrolls to the contracting agency. The certified payrolls submit ted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintaineq under this chapter . The general contractor is responsible for the submission of the certified payroi1 records for all subcontractors . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Each certified payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance", signed by the contractor or the contractor's designated representative and shall certify or attest that: 


	ill 
	ill 
	ill 
	The 
	i nformation for the payroll period 

	ill 
	ill 
	reported is correct and complete; Each laborer or mechanic, or apprentice 

	TR
	empl oyed 
	on 
	the 
	contract during 
	the payroll 

	TR
	period has been paid the full 
	weekly wages 

	TR
	earned, 
	without 
	rebate, 
	either directly or 

	TR
	indirectly, 
	and that 
	no 
	deductions have been 

	TR
	made 
	either directly or 
	indirectly from 
	the 

	TR
	full wages 
	ear ned, 
	other than permissible 

	ill 
	ill 
	deductions as set forth by law; and Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 

	TR
	less than the applicable prevailing wage and 

	TR
	fringe benefits 
	or cash equivalent for the 

	TR
	classification of work performed, 
	as 

	TR
	specified in the wage 
	rate schedule 

	TR
	applicable 
	to the public work 
	constructi on 

	TR
	project 
	at 
	the time 
	t he work 
	was 
	performed. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Certified payrolls submitted shall be 


	numbered consecutively from the first week in which work is performed. Subsequent weeks shall be numbered in chronological order with the final week in which work is performed to be labeled "final" . 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Amended certified payrol l records submitted' shall be labeled amended with a detailed explanation of the reason for the amendment. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	The falsification of any of t he required documents may subject a contractor to civil penalties including suspension or criminal prosecution, or both . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	The contractor shall provide a n electronic copy of the records or make the records available for inspection and photocopying, or transcripti on by the director and the director ' s authorized representatives. The contractor shall permit the director or the director's representatives to privately interview employees during working hours on the job. If a contractor fails to submit required records or to make the records available, or fails to allow private interviews with employees, the director may take suc


	and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §§104-3, 104-22, 104-25) 
	§ 12-22-11 Rulings and interpretations . All questions arising in any governmental contracti ng agency relating to the [application] applicability and int erpretation of chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, and of this chapter shall be referred to the director for ruling and interpretation. The director, in making the ruling or interpretation, shall take into consideration the prevailing practice 
	of the 
	of the 
	of the 
	construction industry in the locality. 
	[Eff 

	7/27/81; 
	7/27/81; 
	comp 
	4/1/96; 
	am and comp 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 

	§104-21) 
	§104-21) 


	§12-22-12 Disbursement of accrued amounts withheld on contract. (a) Within sixty days from the date of written request by the director, the contracting agency shall pay or transfer specified amounts from accrued payment withheld on a contract to the director for : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Wages, overtime compensation, or both due to l aborers and mechanics; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Penalties assessed for a first [-er]L secondL or third violation; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Both paragraphs (1) and (2) . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Amounts collected or transferred for back wages shall be deposited or credited to the wage claim fund of the department . Amounts collected for penalties shall be deposited or credited to the general fund . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The department shall disburse from the wage claim fund any wages or overtime compensation due to laborers or mechanics . [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and comp (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §§104-2, 104-21) 


	§ 12-22-13 Computation of time. The time in which any act provided by these rules is to be done is computed by excluding the first day and including the last, unl ess the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday and then i t is also excluded. As used in this section, "hol iday" includes any day designated as such pursuant to section 8-1, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] 
	HRS . 
	HRS . 
	HRS . 
	[Eff and comp 
	4/1/96; 
	am 
	and comp 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§104-29) (Imp: HRS 

	§104-29) 
	§104-29) 


	[§§12 22 14 to 12 22 24 (Reser.·ed) ] 
	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	PENALTY FOR [FIRST VIOLATION] VIOLATIONS 
	§12-22-25 Notification of violation. (a) Where the department, either as a result of its own investigation or as a result of a report by a contracting agency, finds that a [first] violation of chapter 104 , [Hawaii Revised Statutes, ] HRS, has been committed, the department shall issue a not i fication of violation to the contractor. Each notice of violation shall involve only one project . Each offense shall be as described in section 104-24(e), HRS. 
	(b) A first violation refers to the first invest igation in which the department f inds that a contractor has failed to compl y with chapter 104, [Hawaii Revised Statutes,] HRS, or a violation which occurs more than t wo years afte r the date of notification of first violation. [A first violation investigation may involve more than one project; however, offenses shall be determined separately for each project.] A second violation refers to a 
	violation which occurs within t wo years of the date of the first notifi cat ion of violation. A third violati on refers to a violation which occur s within t hree years of t he dat e of t he second notificati on of violation. Additional violations occurring after the third violati on shall be treated in the same way as the third violation . 
	(c) A notification of violation shall be final and conclusive twenty days after the date of mailing to the contractor, unless a written notice of appeal is filed with the director, as provided in section [10 4 5 (b) , ] 104-23, [Hawaii Revised Statutes.] HRS. [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §§104-23, 104-24) 
	§12-22-26 [Penalty.] Del ay or fals ification 
	pena lty. (a) A penalty of [up to $1, 000] $10, 000 per [offense] project shall be assessed against a contractor for [a first violati on of chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes . ] interference or delay including failure to provide requested records under section 104-3, HRS, or failure to allow employees to be i nterviewed during worki ng hours on the job . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	[In determining the offenses committed by a contractor, the department shall assess a separate penalty for each section of chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, under which t he contractor is cited, with respect to each project and each employee. ] An additi onal penalty of $1 , 000 for each day thereafter that the contractor fails to comply shall be assessed against the contractor. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	A penalty of $10, 000 per project shal l be assessed against a contractor for fal sification of 


	records . 
	records . 
	records . 

	[ ( C) 
	[ ( C) 
	The 
	amount 
	of the penalt y 
	for 
	a 
	firs t 

	violation 
	violation 
	shall 
	be determined by applicatio
	n of the 

	following 
	following 
	criteria: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The 
	severity of the offense; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Whether the 
	contractor has 
	made 
	a 
	good faith 

	TR
	effort 
	to 
	comply with the provisions of 


	chapter 104, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and these rules ; and 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Other relevant factors as determined by the director. ] 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The contractor shall be immediat ely suspended for a period of three years . 


	[-f-Ei+JM Concurrent with or after the issuance of a notification of violation, and within a reasonable period after completion of the investigation, the department shall notify the contractor of vi olations of the chapter committed and t he penalty assessed, which shall then be due and payable within twenty days from the date of the mailing of the notification of viol ation. 
	[(e) Appropriate penalty shall be assessed even if the contractor, after being i nformed of the offense by the department, initiates immediate action to correct the offense . ] [Eff and comp 4/1/96; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §§104-22, 104-24, 104-25) 
	12-22-27 Violation penalties. (a) Where the department finds that a first, second, or third violation has been committed, penalties shall be as described i n sections 104-22, 104-24, and 104-25, HRS. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Additional violati ons committed after the third violation shall be penalized in the same way as the third violation. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Concurrent with or after the issuance of a notification of violation, and within a reasonable period after completion of the investigation, the department shall notify the contractor of violations of the chapter committed and the penalty assessed, which shall then be due and payable within twenty days from the date of the mailing of the notifica t ion of violation . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §§104-24, 104-25) 


	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	HEARING OF APPEAL 
	§12-22-40 Definitions. As used in this subchapter: "Hearing" shall have the same meaning as the term agency hearing as defined in section 91-1, HRS . 
	"Party" or "parties" s hall have the same meaning as in section 91-1, HRS and shall include any other person such as the contractor or contractor ' s representative, the department, or both. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §§91-1 , 104-23) 
	§ 12-22-41 Prehearing conference. (a) Upon docketing an appeal, but prior to a hearing, the hearings officer may hold a prehearing conference with the parties . 
	(b) Any matter not raised at the prehearing conference shall not be allowed during the hearing. Matters to be discussed at the prehearing conference may include but are not l imited to the fol lowing : 
	ill A discussion of the issues raised by the appellant and the explanations a nd defenses to be presented by the parties at the 
	hearing; . ill The necessity or desi rability of amendments to the pleadings; ill_ The possibility of obtaini ng stipulations which will avoid unnecessary proof;ill The possibility of a settl ement between the parties ; and ill Other matters that may aid in the disposition of the case . 
	(c) If the parties agree to the terms of a settlement at the prehearing conference, the settlement shall be reduced to writing, signed by the parties, and approved by the hearings officer. If 
	(c) If the parties agree to the terms of a settlement at the prehearing conference, the settlement shall be reduced to writing, signed by the parties, and approved by the hearings officer. If 
	approved, the case will be dismissed without a finding on the merits of the complaint and a copy of the final prehearing settlement shall be sent by mail to the department and the appellant . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	A prehearing settl ement shall not affect the processing of any other case, including but not limited to complaints in which t he allegations are like or related to the individual allegations settled. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Prehearing conference statements shall be filed by the parties n o later than three business days before th~ scheduled prehearing conference covering those areas identified in the notice of prehearing conference . Additional conferences may be schedul ed 


	at the hearings officers' 
	at the hearings officers' 
	at the hearings officers' 
	discretion. 
	[Eff and comp 

	TR
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp : 
	§104
	-


	23) 
	23) 


	§12-22-42 Prehearing order. (a) When a prehearing conference is held, the hearings officer may enter a prehearing order which recites the action taken at the prehearing conference, including; 
	ill The agreements made by the parties as to any of the matters considered; 
	ill The issues for hearing not otherwise disposed of by stipulation or agreement of the parties; and 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	The exchange of exhibits, witness l ist, and prehearing memorandum deadlines . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The prehearing order shall control the subsequent cou rse of the appeal, unless modified by the hearings officer at the hearing or prior thereto to prevent manifest injustice. The prehearing order shall supersede the pleading where there is any conflict and shall supplement the pleading in all other respects . [Eff and comp ] 


	(Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : §104-23 )" 
	§ 12-22-43 Hearing. (a) Any hearing under this subchapter shall be held in accordance with chapter 91, HRS . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The hearing on appeal shall be held within sixty days of the notice of appeal . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	All parties shall be given written notice of hearing at least fifteen days before the hearing . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The parties shall be present at the hearing, and shall be allowed to call, examine, and crossexamine witnesses, and introduce papers, documents, or other evidence, in person or by counsel . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	At the discretion of the hearings officer, any other person may be allowed to participate, in person or by counsel, for the purposes and to the extent that the hearings officer shall determine. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Witnesses at the hearing shall be examined orally, under oath or affirmation, and a record of the proceedings shall be made by the hearings officer. The hearings officer or a person designated by the hearings officer may administer oaths or affirmations at the hearing. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	The hearings officer may continue a heari ng from day to day or adjourn it to a later day or to a different place by announcement thereof at the hearing or by appropriate notice to all parties. The hearings officer may also continue a hearing upon request of any party. At the discretion of t he heari ngs officer, a hearing may be reopened. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	If the employer or employer's. representative is absent without notice, the hearings officer shall 


	base the decision 
	base the decision 
	base the decision 
	on 
	the available evidence . 
	[Eff and 

	comp 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp: 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§§91-9 . 5, 
	104-23) 


	§12-22-44 Powers and duties of hearings officer. 
	(a) The hearings officer shall have full power and 
	authority to: ill Control the procedures of the hearing;ill Admit or exclude testimony or other 
	evidence; 
	Figure
	Rule upon all motions and objections; Call and examine witnesses; Direct the production of papers or other 
	matter present in the hearings room; and 
	ill ~ake other actions that are necessary and 
	proper for the conduct of the hearing . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The hearings officer may issue subpoenas either at will or upon written request of a party to the proceeding whenever necessary to compel the attendance of witnesses and the introduction of books, records, correspondence, documents, papers, or any other evidence, which relates to any matter in question before the hearings officer. Where a subpoena is issued at the ·instance of a party to the proceeding other than the hearings officer, the cost of service and witness and mileage fees s hall be borne by the p

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The hearings officer, whenever necessary or required during the hearing and on terms and conditions as the hearings officer may determine, shall take or cause to be taken deposition of witnesses residing within or without the State of Hawaii in the manner prescribed by law for deposition in civil actions . A request by a party other than the hearings officer for deposition of witnesses shal l be in writing . The cost of any deposition shall be borne by the party at whose request the deposition was taken. [E


	§12-22-45 Rules of evidence . (a) The admissibility of evidence at hearing shall not be governed by the laws of evidence, and all relevant oral or documentary evidence shall be admitted if it is the kind of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs. Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious material shall not be admitted into 
	§12-22-45 Rules of evidence . (a) The admissibility of evidence at hearing shall not be governed by the laws of evidence, and all relevant oral or documentary evidence shall be admitted if it is the kind of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs. Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious material shall not be admitted into 
	evidence . The hearings officer shall give effect to 

	the rules of privilege recognized by law. 
	(b) Documentary evidence may-be received in the form of copies, provided that, upon request, all other parties to the proceeding shall be given an opportunity to compare the copy with the original . If the original is not available, a copy may stil l be admissible, but the unavailability of the original and the reasons therefor shall be considered by the hearings officer when considering the weight of the documentary evidence. [Eff and comp 
	(Auth: HRS §§91-2, §104-29) (Imp : HRS §§91-10, 10423) 
	-

	§12-22-46 Official notice of facts. The hearings officer may take official notice of those matters that may be judicially noticed by the courts of the State. The hearings officer may also take official notice of generally recognized technical or scientific facts within the agency's specialized knowledge, upon notice to all parties before or during trial. Any party shall have an opportunity to contest the facts so noticed, within a reasonable time specified by the hearings officer . [Eff and comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §§91-2 , §104-29) (Imp : HRS §§91-10, 104-23) 
	§12-22 -47 Decision . (a) The hearings officer shall render a written decision on a notification of violation within sixty days aft er the conclusion of the hearing, which shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law. 
	(b) A certified copy of the decision shall be served by personal del ivery or by mail upon each party. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104 -2 9 ) (Imp: HRS § 10 4 -2 3 ) 
	§ 12-22-48 Judicial review. Any party aggrieved by the decision of the hearings officer shall be entitled to judicial review as provided by secti on 9114, HRS . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp: HRS §104-26) 
	-

	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	CONSTRUCTION ON PROPERTY LEASED BY THE STATE OR COUNTY 
	§12-22-60 Definitions . As used in this chapter : 
	"Assignabl e square feet" means the total area of the project available for lease as determined by t he master lessor. 
	"Leasing agency" means the state or county agency who i s the lessee of a leased space . 
	" Project" means all the buildings, other improvements, or both, on the property where a lease is located including the leasi ng agency' s leased area . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2 . 5) 
	§12-22-61 Construction for state and county leases policy. Where construction work to property to be leased by the state or any county agency is to be undertaken, the laborers and mechanics working on that construction project shal l be paid prevail ing wages required under section 104-2, HRS , provided that more than fifty per cent of the assignable square feet of the project is or will be leased by the state or any county agency. [Eff and comp 
	(Auth: HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2. 5) 
	§12-22-62 Submission of leases to department. Upon executi on, renewal, termination, or any change to a lease, the leasing agency shall submit the lease to the department and the department of accounting and general services within thirty days of the execution, 
	renewal, 
	renewal, 
	renewal, 
	termination or change in the lease. 
	[Eff and 

	comp 
	comp 
	] (Auth: 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp: 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§104-2 . 5) 


	§ 12-22-63 Lease required to state square footage. Every lease entered into by the state or any county agency shall state the total assignable square footage of the project and the amount leased by the state or any county agency leasing space in or on the proj ect . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2 . 5) 
	§12-22-64. Challenges to square footage. All questions or challenges of t he stated measurement of the square footage of the project of the lease shall be filed, heard, and decided by the hearings officer appointed by the director in conformance with chapter 91, HRS . [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §104 -2 9) (Imp : HRS § 104 -2 . 5 ) 
	§12-22-65 Lessors required to notify contractors. A lessor contracting any construction work to the leased property that is subj ect to section 104-2 . 5, HRS, shall provide written notice to t he contractor that prevailing wages shal l be paid to all laborers and mechanics employed on the construction project. [Eff and comp (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2.5) 
	SUBCHAPTER 5 
	CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FINANCED WITH SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE BONDS 
	§12-22-75 Definitions. As used in thi s chapter: 
	"Project agreement" shall have the same meaning as in chap~er 39A, HRS . 
	"Project party" shall have the same meaning as in chapter 39A, HRS . 
	"Special purpose revenue bonds" shall have the 
	same 
	same 
	same 
	meaning as in chapter 39A, 
	HRS . 
	[Eff and comp 

	TR
	(Aut h: 
	HRS 
	§104-29) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 

	§104-2) 
	§104-2) 


	§ 12-22-76 Contract provisions, special purpose revenue bonds . (a) The director of finance shall require in a construction project under chapter 39A, HRS , that the pr oject party insert in all solicitations and contracts made and entered into by the project party that prevailing wages i n accordance with chapter 104, HRS , be paid to the labor ers and mechanics employed. 
	(b) The following provisions shall be incl uded in any agreement f or construction of a project funded by special purpose revenue bonds between a project party and t he contractor: 
	ill The project party or the contractor retained by the project party shall maintain and be r esponsi b l e for all payroll records in accordance with the requirements and be the responsible entit y for compliance with chapter 104, HRS, and this chapter, including the maintenance of the certified payroll record s during the course of the construction work and preserve these records for a period of t hree years from the cl ose of the project for all laborers and mechanics so empl oyed; and 
	ill Any other information or requirement as the 
	director may require under chapter 104, HRS, 
	or this chapter. [Eff and comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : 
	HRS §104-2) 
	§12-22-77 Project party collective bargaining 
	agreement . Where the project party has entered into a 
	collective bargaining agreement with a bona fide labor 
	union governing the . project party ' s workforce, as set 
	forth in section 104-2(h), HRS, the terms of that 
	coll~ctive bargaining agreement and associated 
	provisions shall be deemed the prevailing wages such 
	that the project party shall not be required to pay to 
	its laborers and mechanics covered by the collective 
	bargaining agreement the wages in comparable 
	classifications as publi shed by the director in the 
	wage rate schedules, unless otherwise required under 
	the director ' s enforcement powers contained in section 
	104-2(g), HRS." [Eff and comp 
	(Auth : HRS §104-29) (Imp : HRS §104-2) 
	2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. New material is underscored. 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	. Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are not underscored . 

	4 
	4 
	. These amendments to and compilati on of chapter 12-22, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall t ake effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 


	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised 
	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised 
	Statutes, which were adopted on and fil ed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 

	LEONARD HOSHIJO Director of Labor and Industrial Relations 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
	Deputy Attorney General 
	III. 
	III. 
	III. 
	Old Business 

	C. 
	C. 
	Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 44.1, Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Perform Maintenance and Testing of Portable Fire Extinguishers, Fire Protection Systems, and Fire Alarm Systems, promulgated by Hawaii State Fire Council/D LIR. 


	LEGAL NOTICE Notice ofProposed Rulemaking Public Hearing 
	Pursuant to chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes, notice is hereby given that the Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, State Fire Council ("SFC") will hold a public hearing on March 13, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the auditorium at the Honolulu Fire Department Headquarters, 636 South Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, to hear all persons interested inthe proposed rules pertaining to Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Perfotm Maintenance ofPmtable Fire Extinguishers, Fire Protection System
	The purpose ofthe hearing is to adopt a new administrative rule in accordance with HRS §132-16 for the testing, _certifying, and credentialing .individuals who perfonn maintenance and testing ofportable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, and fire alarm systems that will be administered by the county fire departments. 
	A copy ofthe proposed rules will be made available for public viewing from the first working day that the legal notice appears in the Honolulu Star-Advertiser. Hawaii TribuneHerald1 West Hawaii Today, The Maui News, and The Garden Island. through the day-the public hearing is held. from Monday ~ Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.rn. -4:00 p.m., at the following locations: · 
	Honolulu Fire Department 636 South Street Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
	Department ofFire and Public Safety, CoW1ty of Maui Fire Prevention Bureau 313 Manea Place Wailuku., Maui, Hawaii 96793 
	Kauai County Fire Department 4444 Rice Street, Suite.315 Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766 
	Hawaii County Fire Department 25 Aupuni Street, Suite 2501 Hilo, Hawaii, 96720-4245 
	Depruiment of Labor and Industrial Relations 830 Punchbowl Street, Room 321 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
	The proposed rules may also be viewed at: / 
	http://labor.hawaii.gov/sfc

	Figure
	A copy ofthe proposed rules can also be mailed at no cost to any interested party, upon written request to the State Fire Council at 636 South Street, Honolulu, ID 96813 
	Interested persons may present written or oral testimony at the time ofthe public hearing. All persons wishing to submit written testimony are requested to submit 5 copies oftheir vvritten testimony before the public hearing to the State Fire Council, 636 South Street, Honolulu, ID 96813 or 5 copies may be submitted to the presiding officer at the public hearing. _The public hearing will be. continued, ifnecessary, to a time, date, and place announced at the scheduled hearing. 
	Interested persons unable to attend the public hearing, shall submit five copies oftheir written testimony concerning the proposals to the State Fire Council, 636 South Street, Honolulu, HI 96813. All submissions must be received at or prior to the scheduled public hearing. 
	Individuals who require special needs accommodations can call the State Fire Council at (808} 723-7176(voice) or the Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations at (808) 586-8847 (TTY) or} ..888-569-6859 (TTY neighbor islands) at least ten working days prior to the hearing. 
	Dated: Febmary 2, 2018 Leonard Hoshijo Acting Director Department ofLabor aqd Industrial Relations 
	2 
	DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
	Adoption of Chapter 12-44.1 Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	SUMMARY 
	Chapter 12-44.1, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "Testing, Certifying, and Credentialing Individuals Who Pe rform Maintenance and Testing of Portable Fire Extinguishers, Fire Protection Systems, and Fire Alarm Systems," is adopted to read as follows: 
	Figure
	Figure
	44.1-1 
	§12-44 . 1-1 
	HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES TITLE 12 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS SUBTITLE 7 BOARDS CHAPTER 44 . 1 TESTING, CERTIFYI NG, AND CREDENTIALING INDIVIDUALS WHO PERFORM MAINTENANCE AND TESTING OF PORTABLE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS, FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS, AND FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS 
	Subchapter 1 Rules of General Applicability 
	§12-44 . 1-1 
	§12-44 . 1-1 
	§12-44 . 1-1 
	Definitions 

	§12-44.1-2 
	§12-44.1-2 
	General provisions 

	§12-4 4.J-3 
	§12-4 4.J-3 
	Appli cation for certificate of fitness 

	§12-44.1-4 
	§12-44.1-4 
	Violations 

	§12-44.1-5 
	§12-44.1-5 
	Appeals 


	§12-44 . 1-1 Definitions. The following definition~ shall apply to this chapter. 
	"Certificate of fitness" means a credential issued by t he county fire department to any person for the purpose of granting permission to such person to conduct or engage in any operation or act to maintain and test portable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, or fire alarm systems~ or any combination of the above . 
	"Fire alarm system" means a system or portion of a combination system that consists of components and circuits arranged to monitor and annunciate the stat us of fire alarm or s upervisory signal-initiating devices 
	44.1-2 
	§12-44.1-1 
	and to initiate the appropriate response to those signals. 
	"'Fire protection system" means any fire alarm device. or system, or fire extinguishing device or system, or any combination of the above, that is designed and installed for detecting, controlling, or extinguishing a fire or otherwise alerting occupants or the fire department or both that a fire has occurred. 
	"Other fire extinguishing system" means any fixed fire extinguishing system which uses an extinguishing agent other than water . They may include dry chemical, foam, halogen-type (including nonhalogenated) , carbon dioxide, and special hazard systems . 
	"Portable fire extinguisher" means a portable device, carried or on wheels and manually operable, containing an extinguishing agent that can be expelled under pressure for suppressi ng or extinguishing fire . 
	" Private fire hydrant" means a valved connection on a water supply system having one or more outlets that is used to supply hose and fire department pumpers with water and is located on private property. 
	"Water-based fire extinguishing system" means any class I , II, or III standpipe system, and combined standpipe system, automatic sprinkler system, or automatic water spray fixed system utilizing water a~ an extinguishing agent . [Eff 
	(Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp: HRS §132-16) 
	§12-44 . 1-2 General provisions . 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Certificates of fitness may only be issued to a person 18 years of age or older. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Certificates of fitness are nontransferable. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Certificates of fitness are valid for three years . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The holder of a certificate of fitness may only perform maintenance and testing on the type or types of extinguishers or systems for which the 


	44 . 1-3 
	§12-44.1-2 
	certificate of f itness was issued. [Eff (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp : HRS §132-16) 
	§12 .44.1-3 Application for certi ficate of fitness. (a) An application for a certificate of fitness to maintain and· test portable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, or fire alarm systems, or any combination of the above, found on the State Fire Council website, shall be submitted to a county fire department along with copies of the following supporting documents: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Applicant's driver's license; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Approved third-party certificate; 
	and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Proof of applicable training regarding 

	TR
	private fire hydrants. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	A 
	current 
	listing of approved third


	party certifying organizations may be found on 
	the State Fire Council website. 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The county fire departments shall issue certificates of fitness to persons who are qualified to maintain and test portable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, or fire alarm systems or any combination of the above. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The county fire departments shall collect applicable fees . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The fee for each certificate of fitness is payable by check or money order to the county f i re department and is nonrefundable . Cash will not be accepted. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp: HRS §132-16) 


	§12-44 . 1-4 Violations. (a) The county fire department may deny or suspend the certificate of f i tness for up to one year if it finds that the holder of the certificate of fitness: 
	44 .1-4 
	§12-44 .1-4 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Violated any portion of the state fire code in maintaining and testing portable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, or fire alarm systems; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Falsified any record requi red to be maintained by the state f ire code; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Falsely obtained or attempted to obtain a certificate of fitness; or 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Engaged in testing and maintaining a portable fire extinguisher, fire protection system, or fire alarm system, or any combination of the above, for which a certificate of fitness is required under this chapter during the suspension or expiration of any certificate of fitness. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	No new certificate of fitness shall be issued to a person for a period of up to one year from the date the certificate of fitness was suspended during which time the person shall cease all operations as a maintainer and tester of portable fire extinguishers, fire protection systems, or fire alarm systems, or any combination of the above. [Eff (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp : 


	HRS §132-16) 
	§12-44 .1-5 Appeals . (a) Appeal of a certificate of fitness application denial or r suspension must be in writing and filed with the county fire chief from which the denial or suspension was issued within 20 d ays after the date of mailing of the denial or suspension . Deposit of an appeal in the mail addressed to the county fire chief from which the denial or suspension was issued with a postmark dated within the 20 days shall be deemed a t imely filing. 
	(b) A hearing shall be held in accordance with chapter 91, Hawaii Revised Statutes. Computation of time s hall be in accordance with section 1-29, Hawaii Revised Statutes. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §132-16) (Imp : HRS §132-16) 
	44 .1-5 
	DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
	The adoption of chapter 12-44.1, Hawaii Administrative Rules, on the Summary Page dated _ _ _ _ ___, was adopted on _ _ _ _ ___, following a public hearing held on 
	after public notice was given in the
	-------
	, 

	Honolulu Star Advertis-er on 
	The adoption of chapter 12-44.1 shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 
	Manuel P. Neves, Chairperson State Fire Council 
	APPROVED: 
	David Y. Ige Gover nor State of Ha waii 
	Dated: 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
	Deputy Attorney General . 
	Filed 
	44.1-6 



	III Old. Bus D. HAR 18-237 Genl Excise Tax - Sec 8.6 - Sec. 29.53
	Structure Bookmarks
	III. Old Business 
	III. Old Business 
	D. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing on HAR Title 18, Chapter 237, General Excise Tax Law, as follows, promulgated by Department ofTaxation 
	D. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing on HAR Title 18, Chapter 237, General Excise Tax Law, as follows, promulgated by Department ofTaxation 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Amendments to Section 8.6, County Surcharge 

	2. 
	2. 
	Proposed New Section 29.53, Exported Services 


	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) Department or Agency: Department ofTaxation (Department) Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 18-237 Chapter Name: General Excise Tax Law Contact Person/Title: Jacob Berlitz, Administrative Rules Specialist Phone Number: (808) 587-5334 E-mail Address: Date: March 13, 2018 Webpage address for draft rules: tax.hawaii.gov/legal/taxlawandrules General Description of Proposed Rules: 
	Jacob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov 

	The proposed rules amend sections 18-237-8.6-01 through 18-237-8.6-10, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), relating to the county surcharge to the general excise tax (GET). 
	Generally, each county is authorized to impose a county surcharge on gross income and gross proceeds subject to GET. The current mies provide the method of allocating gross income and gross proceeds to each county. The proposed rules simplify the allocation method by HAR, which are simultaneously proposed for enactment, to determine allocation of gross income and gross proceeds from services. 
	eliminating the "nexus" analysis. Additionally, the proposed rules refer to section 18-237-29.53, 

	· Rule Description: D New D Repeal ~ Amendment D Compilation 
	I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	The Department invited public comment at the public hearing, but did not directly involve small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	Small Business Statement After Hearing 
	Department of Taxation 
	Proposed HAR §18-237 
	March 13, 2018 Page 2 of2 
	II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, please provide the following information: 
	1. A description ofhow opinions or comments from affected small businesses were solicited. 
	The Department invited the general public, including small businesses, to provide comments on the proposed rules twice in its notices ofpublic hea1ing published on the Department's website and in statewide newspapers September 7, 2017 and November 6, 2017. 
	2. A summary of the public's and small businesses' comments. 
	The Department received one item of testimony: comments from the Tax Foundation of Hawaii. The comments raised some concerns with the rules eliminating the "nexus" requirement discussed above. 
	3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 
	The Department respectfully disagrees with the Tax Foundation analysis and elected to adopt the proposed rules as-is. 
	4. The number ofpersons who: 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Attended the public hearings: 2 on October 17, 2017; 2 on December 11, 2017 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Testified at the hearing: 1 on October 17, 2017; 1 on December 11, 2017 


	(iii) Submitted written comments: 1 on October·17, 2017 
	5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that affected small business? 
	No. 
	Figure
	DEPARTME~T OF TA.x.ATION Amendments to Chapter 18-237, fiawaii Adrninistrative Rules 2017
	--------
	--------
	I 

	SUMMARY 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	§§18-237-8.6-01 to 18-237-8.6 -03 are amended . 

	2. 
	2. 
	§18-237-8.6-04 -is repealed, 

	3. 
	3. 
	§§18 -237 -8.6-05 to 18-237-8. 6-06 are amended. 


	4 . §18-237-8 . 6-07 . is repealed. 
	5. §§18-237-8.6-08 to 18-237-8:6-10 are amended. 
	§18-237-8.6-01 Definitions . As used in sections 
	18-237-8.6-01 to 18-237-8.6-10, unless the 
	context otherwise requires: 
	Control means to exercise restraining or 
	11
	11 

	directing influence over. 
	Hawaii district" means the taxation district for 
	11 

	the county of Hawaii .. 
	"Intangible property" means, but is not limited 
	to, franchises, patent, copyright, formula, process, 
	design, pattern, know how, format, or other similar 
	items. 
	means the taxation district for 
	"Kauai district
	11 

	the county of Kauai. 
	"Maui district" means the taxation district for 
	the counties of Maui and Kalawao, which incl udes the 
	islands of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai. 
	"Oahu district" means the taxation district for 
	the city and county of Honolulu. 
	Tangible personal property" is generally 
	11

	property that may be touched or felt. 
	"Taxation district" means the Kauai district, Hawaii district, Maui district, or Oahu distric~, as those districts are defined in this section. (Eff 12/7/06; am ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8 . 6) 
	18 -237-8.6-02 Allocation of gross income and gross proceeds from sales of tangible personal property. Except as provided in this section, the gross income and gross proceeµs of sale derived from a taxpayer ' s sale of tangibl e personal property shall be allocated to the taxation district where the property is delivered, regardless of where the title to the property passes . 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer, a retailer located in the Oahu district, receives an order for products from Purchase~. Taxpayer accepts the order and delivers the products to the 
	Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from the sale to the Maui district, where the products were delivered. 
	Example 2: 
	Taxpayer, a retailer located in the Maui district, sells products to Purchaser located in the Oahu district. Pursuant to Purchaser's instructions, Taxpayer directs Taxpayer's product manufacturer, who is located in the Kauai district, to deliver the products to Purchaser's office i'n the Maui district . Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from the sale to the Maui district, where the products were delivered. 
	Example 3: 
	Retailer, located out of state, sells and delivers products to Purchaser in the Oahu district. Retailer shall allocate the gross income from the sale to the Oahu district, where the products were delivered. 
	[Eff 12/7/ 06; am ] (Auth: HRS § § 231-3 ( 9) , 2 3 7 -8) (Imp: HRS § 2 3 7 -8 . 6} 
	§18-237-~.6-03 Allocation of gross income from contracting and services . (a) Gross income from contracting or services performed by a taxpayer engaged in a·service business or calling shall be allocated to the taxation district where the services are used or consumed, as provided in sections 18-237 29.53-03 to 18-237-29.~3-13. 
	-

	(b) If services are used or consumed in more than one taxation district, gross income shall be allocated using any reasonable method; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably quantifies the proportionate benefit received by each 
	taxation district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
	(Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp : HRS §237-8.6) 
	§18-237-8.6-04 Repealed. [R 
	§18-237-8.6-05 Allocation of gross income from the rental, lease, oi license of tangible and intangible personal property. (a) Except as provided in this section, gross income from the rental, lease, or license of tangible and intangible personal property shall be allocated to the taxation district where the property is used. 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer is engaged in the business of renting motor vehicles in each of the four taxation districts. Taxpayer rents a vehicle to a customer in the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income received from the rental to the Maui district, where the vehicle is used. 
	Example 2: 
	Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, is engaged in the business of renting equipment. Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ, located in the Maui district, for a job in the Kauai district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from this rental to the Kauai district.L where the property is used. 
	Exampl e 3: 
	Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, wrote and copyrighted a song. A musician pays Taxpayer a royalty to perform that song for profit in a hotel in the Maui district, Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income 
	from the license of the copyright to the Maui district where the property is used, 
	(b) Where a taxpayer rents or leases tangible personal property or licenses or receives a royalty from intangible personal property that is used in more than one taxation district, gross income shall be allocated using any reasonable method; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably quantifies the proportionate benef~t received by each taxation district. This rule also applies to property that is constantly in transit between taxation dist
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ to be used in the Maui district and the Oahu district. The equipment will be used in the Maui district for six months and in the Oahu district for six months. Taxpayer shall allocate fifty per cent of the gross income _ from the rental of the equipment to the Maui district and fifty per cent to the Oahu 
	district. 
	district. 
	district. 
	[Eff 12/7/06; 
	am 

	(Auth: 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§231-3 (9) 1 
	237-8) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 

	§237-8.6) 
	§237-8.6) 


	§18-237-8,6-06 Allocation of gross income from the rental or lease of real property, Gross income from a taxpayer's rental or lease of real property in the State shall be allo~ated to the taxation district where the real property is located. 
	. Example 1: 
	Taxpayer rents condominium units located in each of the four taxation districts. Taxpayer shall allocate the 
	gross income from the rental of each unit to the taxation district where the condominium unit is located. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
	] (Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 
	§18-237-8.6-07 Repealed. [R 
	§18-237-8.6-08 Allocation of gross income from s investment interest shail be allocated to the taxation district where the investment is controlled. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using any reasonable method; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and is supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit received by the taxation district . 
	interest, (a) The gross income from a taxpayer 
	1 

	Example 1 : 
	Taxpayer has retail locations in all taxation districts and has corporate offices located in the Oahu district. Taxpayer has a central cash management account controlled by the corporate office located in the Oahu district that places the gross receipts from all retail locations into one interest bearing bank account, Taxpayer shall allocate the interest received from this bank account to the Oahu district because the account is controlled by the corporate office located ih the Oahu district. 
	Example 2: 
	Assume the same facts as in example 1, except t hat a separate bank account is created for the Maui district retail locations. The money deposited into that bank account is used for improvements to the 
	Maui district stores and controlled by the Maui district retail locations. Interest on this bank account shall be allocated to the Maui district. 
	(b) When interest is earned from the sale of tangible personal property on a deferred or installment payment plan, the interest shall be allocated to the taxation district where the tangible personal property·is delivered. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by usin$ any reasonable method; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit received by the taxation district . . 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer, located in the Hawaii district, sells equipment to Purchaser, located in the Kauai district, on an installment payment plan. Taxpayer delivers the equipment to Purchaser in the Kauai ' district. Every month for twelve months, Taxpayer receives a payment from Purchaser, which includes principal and interest. Taxpayer shall allocate the interest received from each payment to the Kauai district . 
	{c) When interest is earned from the sale of real property on a deferred payment plan, the gross income from the interest shall be allocated to the taxation district where the real property is located, 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer sells real estate locat ed in the Oahu district pursuant to an agreement of sale, which provides for deferred · payments of the sales price and an interest charge. Taxpayer shall allocate the 
	interest received to the Oahu district because the real estate that is the subject of the agreement of sale is located in the Oahu district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
	] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 2 3 7 -8) (Imp : HRS § 2 3 7 -8 . 6) . 
	§18-237-8.6-09 Allocation of gross income of theaters, amusements, etc, The gross income from the business of operating a theater, opera house, moving picture show, vaudeville, amusement park, dance hall, skating rink, or any other place where amusements are offered to the public shall be allocated to the taxation district where the event takes· place. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using any reasonable-method; provided that the·method is consistently used by the taxpayer and s
	§18-237-8,6-10 All others. If sections 18-2378.6-02 to 18-237-8,6-09 do not apply, gross income shall be allocated to a taxation district based upon the rules for allocating gross income which are the 
	-

	· most relevant to the taxpayer's particular business activity. Alt~rnatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using any reasonable method; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit received by the taxation district. [Eff 12/7/06; am 
	(Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
	DATE : 
	DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION; Amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawa·ii Administrative Rules; Standard format amendments to §§18-237 -8.6I 18-237-8 • 6-06 / 18-237-8.6 -08, 18-237-8,6-09, and 18-237-8.6-10 and repeal of §§18-237-8.6-04 and 18-237-8.6-07 for pre-hearing approval pursuant to Hawaii Administrative Directive 09 -01. 
	-
	01 / 18-237-8, 6-02 / 18-237-8, 6-03, 18-2]7-8 , 6-05 

	DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 
	Amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	, 2017 
	1. Section 18-237-8.6-01, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8 . 6-01 Definitions. [Where] As used in 
	sections 18-237-8.6-01 to 18-237-8.6-10, unless the 
	context otherwise requires: 
	[ Amusements mean• operating a theater, opera 
	11
	11 

	house, moving picture shciw, vaudeville, amusement 
	park, dance hall, skating rink, radio broadcasting 
	station, or any other place at which amusements arc 
	offered to the pu~ 
	Businessmeans the same as the term is defined in chapter 23?, HR8. Contractingmeans the same ao the term is defined. in chapter 237, HRS. Contractoru means the same as the term is defined in chapter 237, HR8.] Control means to exercise restraining or directing influence over. 
	11
	11 
	11
	11 
	11
	11 
	11 

	[ Documentedmeans recorded, by means of letters, figures, or marks, the original, official, or legal form of so,mething·, which is admissible as an evidence in a court of law. 
	11 
	11 

	Gross income means the same as the term is defined in chapter 237 1 HR8. "Gross proceeds of sale" means the same as the term i • defined in chapter 23?, HRS.] 
	11 
	11 

	• Hawaii district" means the taxation district for the county of Hawaii . 
	11 

	(.ll.Heme officemeans the prineipal place ef business in this State from \thich the trade or business of the taxpayer is directed or managed, ] 
	11 

	rntangible·propertymeans, but is not limited to, franchise~, patent, copyright, formula, process, 
	rntangible·propertymeans, but is not limited to, franchise~, patent, copyright, formula, process, 
	11 
	11 

	design, pattern, know how, format, or other similar 

	i terns . . 
	[ 11 .Job site" means the place where a structure or 
	group ef ~tructures was, is, or is to be located: It 
	is a location of a property or a plot of land prepared 
	fer or underlying a structure or development.] 
	"Kauai district" means the taxation district for 
	the county of Kauai . 
	"Maui district" means the taxation district for 
	the.counties of Maui and Kalawao, which includes the 
	islands of Maui, Molokai, and Lanai . 
	( 11 NCJmo 11 means, but is not limited to, physical 
	presence in the State or the taxation district as the 
	centext may require.] 
	"Oahu districtmeans the taxation district for 
	11 

	the city and county of Honolulu. 
	["Physical presence" means the presence of one or more employees, representatives, property, or closely related subsidiaries, 
	"Place of eusineosmean• a physical location in this State at which the trade or business of the taxpayer is conducted. Thie term does not include----a transient or insubstantial location or facilities,. ouch as hotel reom•, dropbmces, telephone number listings, or telephone answering services, 
	11 

	11 Profit centers" are measurement tools used by many different industries. They arc a means by wlt-i-eh management of a company can analyze revenues and related expenses generated by a profit unit, A profit unit can be a product, a line of business or a person. 
	"Real property" means the same as the term is defined in chapter 231 1, HRS . 
	"Reasonable allocation method" is a method used to distribute or apportion gross income or gross proceeds in a clear, fair and proper manner and properly reflects the gross income to each taJCation district, such as based on the amount of time spent. 
	11 Service business" means the same as the term is defined in chapter 237, HRS.] "Tangible personal propertyis generally property[, ~{hich] that may be touched or felt. 
	11 

	"Taxation district" means the Kauai district, Hawaii district; Maui district, or Oahu district, as those districts are defined in this section. 
	[ Taxpayermeans any person liable fer taJc under chapter 237, HRS.) [Eff 12/7/06; am ) (Auth: HRS .§§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8. 6) 
	11
	11 

	2 . Section 18-237-8.6-02, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	18-237-8,6-02 Allocation of gross income and gross proceeds from sales of tangible personal property. Except as provided in this section, the gross income and gross proceeds of sale derived from a 7] shall be allocat ed to the taxation district (-t-e--w-Me-h] where the property is delivered, regardless of where the title to the property passes. (The ·coi:inty surcharge pursuant to section 237 8.6, HRS, shall be imposed on gross income and gross proceeds for sales of tangible personal property shipped or del
	taxpayer's sale of tangible personal property[

	purposes of the ~aunty surcharge under section 237 8. 6, HRB.) 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer, a retailer located in the Oahu district, receives an order for products from Purchaser. Taxpayer accepts the order and delivers the product_s to the Maui district, Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from [these sales] the sale to the Maui district, where the product s were delivered. [TaJcpayer shall not be subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge because the surcharge is .levied on gross income f r om 
	products delivered in the Oahu districi and the destination of the shipment is outside of the Oahu district, 
	Eacample 2 : 
	Taxpayer, a retailer located in the Maui district with an office or store in the Oahu district, delivers products to Purchaser in the Oahu district . Tru~aycr shall allocate the gross income or gross proceeds from-these sales to the Oahu district, where the preducts were delive.red. Taxpayer shall be subject to the 0 .5 per cent county surcharge because substantial neJcus with the Oahu district is established through its office or store in the Oahu district . ] 
	Example [3-t-] 2: 
	Taxpayer,· a retailer l ocat ed in the Maui district, sells products to Purchaser locat ed i n t he Oahu distri ct. Pursuant to s instructions, Taxpayer directs Taxpayer's product manufacturer, who is located in the Kauai di strict, to deliver the products to Purchaser's office [er project] in the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income [or gross proceeds] from [these sales] the sale to the Maui dist rict, where the products were delivered. (Tmcpayer shall not be subj eat to the 0.5 per cent
	Purchaser 
	1 

	(EJcample 4 : 
	Company XYZ, located in the Matl-idistrict, does not have an office, store, er 
	other representatien in the Oahu district, delivers products to Customer ABC, whe maintains a central warehouse in the Oahu district. 8ubscqucntly, Customer ABC delivers the products to its branch stores located in other tmeation districts . Company XYZ shall allocate the gross income or gross proceeds from these sales to the Oahu district, where the products were delivered. Company XYZ shall not be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge because Company XY3 does not have an office, store, or other rep
	Example (-5-+] ~ 
	RctailcrL located [out o.f state] out of state, [has a • ales agent in the Oahu district,] sells and delivers products to Purchaser in the Oahu district. [Retailer shall be subj eet to the general mccise tax for the sales in the Oahu district because -EH:l-£)• tantial neJcuo with the State is established through its sales agent in the Oahu district. Retailer shall also be subject to the 0.5 per cent county durcharge because substantial neJCUS with the Oahu district is established through its sales agent in 
	[EJtamplc 6: 
	Sarne facts as in mcample 5, except that Retailer docs not have an office, employees or other representation, including any sales person, in t he Oahu district. Retailer shall not be subjeet to t he general excise taJC for 
	the sales in the Oahu district because Retailer does not have an office, store, or e-t-her representation in the Oahu district, thus there is no substantial neJeus with ·the State. Retailer shall not be subject to the 
	0.5 per cerit county surcharge either because Retailer does net have an office, store, or ether representation in the Oahu district, flC}EUS with the Oahu 
	thus substantial 

	district is not 
	district is not 
	district is not 
	established.] 
	[Eff 12/7/06; 

	am 
	am 
	. 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§231-3(9), 

	2 3 7 -8) 
	2 3 7 -8) 
	(Imp: . HRS 
	§ 2 3 7 -8. 6) 


	3. Section 18-237-8.6-03, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237.-8.6-03 Allocation of gross income [received by. service busineeees.J from contracting and services , J.tl Gross income [received] from contracting or services performed by a taxpayer engaged in a service business or calling shall-be allocated to the taxation district [-i-ft.--.-wh..i] where the services are [intended to be] used or consumed[. 
	Alternatively, the taJCpayer may allocate the gross 
	income by using any reasonable allocation method that clearly, fairly, and properly reflects the gross 
	income to the appropriate taxation district, provided 
	that the allocation method is documented. The county surcharge pursuant to section 237 8.6, HRS, shall be imposed on gross. income and gross proceeds for services intended to be used or consumed in the Oahu district provided the taJCpayer has substantial nexus with the Oahu distriet . ] , as provided in sections 18237-29.53-03 to 18-237-29,53-13. 
	-

	(b) If ser·vices are used or consumed in more · than one taxation district, gross inco~~-~~all be allocated using any reasonable methodi provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably quantifies the proportionate benefit received by each taxation district. 
	[Example 1: 
	TaJCpayer, an attorney whe0e effice is in the Oahu district, is retained by a client in the Maui district to prepare a lease for lancl in the Kauai district. TaJcpayer shall allocate the income to the Kauai :., where the services are intended to be consumed. TaJepayer shall not be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge because the services are intended to be consumed outside the Oahu district. 
	distr:i.ct

	~ample 2: 
	Ta;;cpayer is an accounting firm . TaJcpayer has a home office in the Oahu district, which constitutes substantial neJCus with the Oahu district. Taxpayer's employees travel to other taJcation districts to conduct audits of clients. Taxpayer shall allocate income to the taJcation district•., where the services arc intended to be consumed by the clients. TqJcpayer shall be subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge for services intended to be consumed in the 
	·oahu district. 
	Figure
	Taxpayer provides dentistry services from places of business in all of the ta,cation districts. TaJEpayer has a home office in the Maui district . Taxpayer travels to the Oahu district to provide dentistry services . TaJEpaycr shall allocate the gross income to the taJcation districts where the services arc intended to be used I 'substantial neJEUS is established by Taxpayer's physical presence in the Oahu district. Tmcpayer 
	Taxpayer provides dentistry services from places of business in all of the ta,cation districts. TaJEpayer has a home office in the Maui district . Taxpayer travels to the Oahu district to provide dentistry services . TaJEpaycr shall allocate the gross income to the taJcation districts where the services arc intended to be used I 'substantial neJEUS is established by Taxpayer's physical presence in the Oahu district. Tmcpayer 
	or c~nsurncd. In this case 

	shall be subject to the O.S per cent county surcharge for services intended to be used or consumed· i n the Oahu district but shall not be subject ~o the 0.5 per ce~t county surcharge for services intended to be consumed in taJcation districts other than the Oahu district. 

	BJtample 4: 
	Taxpayer 'is a law firm comprised of sixty five attorneys. Sixty attorneys ~erk in TaJcpaycr' s home office in the Oahu district and five work in TaJcpayer' • place of business located in the Hawaii district . Taxpayer is retained by a client in the Hah'aii district for a court case ii;i the Ha;mii district. Tmcpayer shall allocate §ifErSS income from services performed by the attorneys to the Hmmii district where Taxpayer's services are intended to be used or consumed, notwithstanding incidental travel, me
	Hawaii district.] [Eff 12/7/06; am ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 
	4. Section 18-237-8.6-04, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is repealed. 
	(§18 237 8 . 6 01 Allocation of gross inee-me from eemmissions. Commission income received by a taJCpayer shall be allocated to the taleation district in Hhich 
	Figure
	Purchaser 
	CJCCCpe that district. 
	Tmcpayer shall allocate the commission 
	-i-H-eome to the Oahu district, where the 
	services of selling the travel package for 
	Disney World, Florida arc rende~cd by 
	TaJCpaycr . Tmcpayer shall he sub3 cct to the 
	o.s per cent county surcharge because s~ch services are rendered in the Oahu dist rict-.---
	ElJcamp 1e 3 : 
	same f.acts as in eJcample 1, eJcccpt that TaJepaycr .is located in the Maui ~is~riet. Tmepaycr shall allocate the comm1ss1on -:i:fte.omc to the Maui district, where the services of selling the travel package for Disney World, Florida are rendered by Taxpayer. Taxpayer shall not be subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge because such services are rendered outside of the Oahu district . 
	ElJcampl c 4 : 
	Bame facto as in eJcample 1, cJCcept that TaJcpayer is located in the Maui district and 
	'. ,;i• I-' t
	Purchaser is located in the Hawa11 u1.scr1c. TaJepaycr shall allocate the commission income to the Maui district, where the services of selling the travel ·package for Disney World, Florida arc rendered ~y Tmcpaycr, TaJepaycr shal1 not be sub3 cct to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge becauqe such se~vices arc rendered outside of the Oahu dist:det. 
	EJ)Eamplc 5: 
	.Taxpayer is a securities broker that has an offiec in the Oahu district, sells securities to Purchaser who is located in the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the commission income to the Oahu district 
	where the services of selling securities are rendereel-. TaJcpaycr shall be subject te the 
	0.5 per cent county surcharge because ouch services arc rendered in the Oahu district. 
	Example g : 
	, TaJCpayer is a real estate company licensed as a real estate broker under chapter 167, HRS. Tmcpayer ABC has places of 
	l3 ' '
	us1ncss in the Oahu district Kauai d' t ' . ' 
	, Maui district, and Hawaii district . Each of Taxpayer's brokers and salesp~rsons is baaed in one of the places of busa.ness . The brokers and salespersons t avel to other taJeat.ion districts to meet with clients, manage clients• properties show properties, negotiate, review and close transactions . Brokers and Balesperson• sell a property in the Oahu district. Taxpayer shall allocate the commission income received to the taJcation district• where the rea~ property is located. The gross income derived fro
	1s~ra.ct
	7

	property in the Oahu district shall be allocated to the Oahu district where the ~l prop~rty is located, All of the gross income paid to Ta1cpayer and TaxpayerIo brokers and salespersons shall be subject te the 0.5 per cent county surcharge in this case because the real property is located in the Oahu district . Taxpayer and each of TaJcpayer s brokers and salespersons shall allocate the income that TaJepayer, Brokers qr Balesperoons receives under section 237 18 (e) , HR8, ~o the tmcation district where the
	I 

	0.5 pdr cent county surcharge for real 
	,. 
	property • old in the Oahu. distriet.J [Eff 12/7/06; R 
	) 
	5. Section 18-237-8.6-05, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8.6-05 Allocation of gross income from the rentalL [e-r] lease, or license of tangible and intangible personal property, (a) Except as provided in this section, gross income from· the rental, [er) lease, or license. of tangible and intangible personal 7] shall be allocated to the taxation district [in which] where the property is used. [H the property is used in more than one taxation district, the tmcpayer shall" allocate the gross income by using any reasonable allocation method that clearly, fair
	property[

	pursuant to section 237 8.6, IIR8, shall be imposed on gross income and gross proceeds for renting or leasing of personal property to the mctent that the property is used in the Oahu district.] 
	Example 1: 
	·Taxpayer is engaged in ~he business of renting motor vehicles [from a place of business] in each of the four taxation districts. Taxpayer rents a vehicle to a customer in the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income received from the rental to the [tmcation district in whleh the motor •,,•chicle is used. ) Maui district, where the vehicle is used. 
	[Ta1cpaycr oha11 be subject to the O. 5 per cent county surcharge on the gross income from motor vehicles used in the Oahu district because the personal property is being used in the Oahu district.] 
	Example 2: 
	Taxpayer, located in the Oahu district, 
	is engaged in the business of renting 
	equipment . Taxpayer rents equipment to XYZ, 
	located in the Maui distri ct, for a job in 
	the Kauai district. Taxpayer shall allocate 
	the gross income from this rental to the 
	Kauai districtL where the property is used. 
	(Taxpayer shall net be subject to the 0.5 
	per cent eeunty surcharge because the 
	property is net used in the Oahu distFict ,] 
	Example 3: 
	Taxpayer, l ocated in the Oahu district, 
	(~]wrote and copyrighted a song, A musician pays Taxpayer a royalty to perform t hat song for profit in a hotel i n the Maui district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from the l icense of the copyright to the Maui district where t h e property is used. [TaJcpayer shall not be subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge because the property is not used in the Oahu EH:-B-H--4-e-t---.
	-

	Exampl,e 4: 
	Same facts as in example 3, eJccept that TaJ~ayer is located in the Maui district. TaJCpayer shall allocate the gross income from the license or royalty of his intangible personal property to the Maui district where the property is used . Taxpayer shall not be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge because t he property is not used in the Oahu district.] 
	-E,fample 5: 
	&ame facts as in eJCample' 3, except that Taxpayer is located in the Maui distri€t aRd the licensee io in the Oahu district. Tm~ayer shall allocate the gross income from the license of his copyright to the Oahu district where the property is used. Taxpayer shall be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge because the property is used in the Oahu district. ] 
	(b) Where a taxpayer rents or leases tangible personal property(y] or licenses or receives~ royalty from intangible personal property(~] that is used in more than one taxation district, t-t::-he] gross income shall be allocated [to the tmcation districts ey) using any reasonable [allocation] method [~ clearly, fairly, and properly reflects the gross -i-fleome to each taxation district]; provided that the 
	[allocation] method is (documented,] consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably quantifies the proportionate benefit received by each taxation district, This r ule also applies to property[-,-wh4-eh) that is constantly in transit between taxation districts, such as barges, containers, and aircraft~ without home ports or bases . 
	[TaJ~ayer shall be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge to the eJCtent that the gross income from the rental or lease of the personal property is allocated to the Oahu district pursuant to a reasonable allocation method.] 
	Example 1: 
	Taxpayer [is engaged in the business of renting] rents equipment to XYZ to be used in the Maui district and the Oahu district. The equipment will be used in the Maui district fo~ six months and i n the Oahu district for six months, Taxpayer shall allocate fifty per cent of the gross income 
	from· the rental of the equipment to the Maui 
	district and fifty per cent to the Oahu district. [Taxpayer shall be subject to the 
	Q,S per cent county surcharge on fifty per 
	cent of the gross income because using a re-a-oonable allocation method based on time used, the equipment i • used fifty per cent of the time in the Oahu district.] 
	Figure
	Ta.JCpayer is engaged in the business of leasing contai~erq to XYZ. The~e containers are constantly in transit between taxation district s. Tm~ayer shall allocate the gross income by using a reasonable allocation method among the tamq.tion districts t hat clearly, fairly, and properly reflects gross income in each taxation district and document that allocation method. TaJcpayer shall be subject to the. 
	0.5 per cent county surcharge on the gross proceeds allocable to the Oahu district as determined under a reasonable allocation 
	method.] 
	method.] 
	method.] 
	[Eff 12/7/06; 
	am 
	· 

	(Auth: 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§231-3 ('9), 
	237-8) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 

	~237-8.6) 
	~237-8.6) 


	6. Section 18-237-8.6-06, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended ·to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8.6-06 Allocation of gross income from the rental or lease of real property. Gross income from a taxpayer's rental or lease of real property in (-th4-s-] the State shall be allocated to the taxation district where the real property is located. [Lessors are subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge for rental or lease of real property located in the Oahu district. Lessors in tmcation districts other than -t-he Gahu district are subject to the county surcharge if 
	they rent or lease real property located in the Oahu district.] 
	Example h·] 1: 
	Taxpayer rents condominium units located in each of the four taxation districts. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from the rental of each unit to the taxation district [in which] where the condominium unit is located . [T~xpayer -ehall be subject te the 0.5 per cent county oureharge on gross income from the condominium units rented in the Oahu district because the real property is located in th.e oah\cl district,) [Eff 12/7/06; am ) (Auth: HRS § § 231-3 ( 9) , 2 3 7 -8) (Imp: HRS § 2 3 7 -8 . 6) 
	7 . Section 18 -237-8.6-07, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is repealed. 
	[§18 237 8.6 07 Allocation of gross income from contracting. Gross income from contracting shall be allocated to the taxation district where the job site is located. Contractors, with a home office in -e-a-xation districts other than the Oahu district are subject to the 0.5 per -cent county surcharge if the job site is l ocated in the Oahu district. Gross income · from contracting in the Oahu district shall be allocated to the Oahu district because the job site is located in the Oahu district. 
	~ample 1. 
	Tmcpayer with an office located in the Oahu district contracts for a construction project in the Maui district , TaJcpaycr shall allocate the gross income from this proj cct 'ts the Maui district. Taxpayer shall not be subject to the 0.5 per cent 
	county Sl¼-rchargc because the job site is located the Oahu district. 
	outside.of 

	ElJtamplc 2 : 
	Assume the same facts in 8Jmmplc 1, e)Ccept that Taxpayer is the prime contractor for the project and Taxpayer subcontracts various aspect~ of the job to architect W and engineer X, located in the Oahu district. Taxpayer shall allocate the gross income from this project to the Maui district . Wand X shall allocate the gros--s
	•income they receive from Taxpayer to the Maui district. Taxpayer, W, and X shall not be subject to the 0 .5 per cent county surcharge because the job site is located outside of the Oahu district.] [Eff 12/7/06; R ] 
	8. Section 18-237-8.6-08, Hawaii Administrative Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8 .6-08 Allocation of gross income from interest. (a) The gross income from a taxpayer ' s investment interest shall be allocated to the taxation district where [the control of] the investment is 
	[located unless the taJEpayer can show that a different location should control.) controlled. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using any reasonable [allqcation) method [that clearly, fairly and properly reflccts the gross income to -t-fle taxation district); provided that the [allocation] method is [documented. ) consistently used by the taxpayer and is supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit .received by the taxation district, [Ta,cpayer shall be subjec
	0.5 per cent county surcharge if t he business's eentrol of the invcstffient is in the Oahu district .) 
	Example l: 
	Taxpayer has retail locations in all taxation districts and has corporate offices l ocated in the Oahu district. Taxpayer has a central cash management account controlled by the corporate office l ocated in ' the Oahu district that places the gross receipts from all retail locations into one interest bearing bank account. Taxpayer shall allocate the interest received from this bank account to the Oahu district because the account is controlled by the corporate office located in the Oahu district. (Therefore
	Example 2: 
	Assume [!:Fhe) the same facts as in example 1, except that a separate bank account is created for the Maui district retail locations. The money deposited into that bank account is used for improvements to the Maui district stores and controlled by the Maui district retail locations. Interest on this bank account [shall not ae subject to the 0.5 per ceflt county surcharge bceause the account is being controlled outside of ,the Oahu district . ] shall be allocated to the Maui district. 
	(b) [The §'ross income from a taJcpayer s ·deferred J?'frYffient interest] When interest is earned from the sale of tangible personal property on a deferred or installment payment plan, the interest shall be allocated to the taxation district (in which] where the [sale that generated the interest is assigned under section 18 237 8 , 6 02 or 18 237 8.6 06 .) tangible personal property is delivered. [TaJcpa~ter shall be subject to the 0.5 per cent county surcharge on t~e interest if the sale that generated th
	I 

	interest is allocated to the Oahu district.] Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocate the gross income by using any reasonable [allocation] method 
	[that clearly, f~irly, and properly reflects the gross 4-Hcome to the appropriate taJcation district] ; provided that the [allocation] method is [documented.] consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit received by the taxation district. 
	Example 1: 
	[TaJCpayer has retail locations in all of the taJmtion districts. Taxpayer sells goods en an installment basis er deferred payment basis. TaJcpayer shall allocate the -interest received en the sales by credit or on the installment basis to the taJcation Ebi:-s-triet in which the sales that generated the interest is assigned under section 18 237 8,6 02 . The interest ·income generated from sales that are allocated to the Oahu a-i-otrict are likewise allocatecl te tl'ie Oahu district and subject to the 0.5 pe
	months, Taxpayer receives a payment from Purchaser, which includes principal and 
	. interest. Taxpayer shall allocate the interest received from each payment to the Kauai district. 
	(c) When interest is earned from the sale of real property on a deferred payment plan, the gross income from the interest shall be allocated to the taxation district where the real. property is located. 
	Example [-2--:--) l..:_ 
	Taxpayer[, who dee• net have an effice in the State,] sells [business or rental] real estate located in the Oahu district pursuant to an agreement of sale, which provides for deferred payments of the sales price and an interes t charge, Taxpayer shall [be subj e_et to the O. 5 per cent eount:y surcharge en the interest income from the agreement ef sale because] allocate the interes~_ received to _the Oahu di str~~t because the real estate that is the subject of the agreement of sale is located in the Oahu d
	] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 2 3 7 -8 ) ( I mp : HRS § 2 3 7 -8 . 6 ) 
	9. Section 18-237-8.6-09, Hawaii Administrative Rules, .is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8.6-09 Al location of g r oss i n come of t h eaters, amusements, etc . The gross income from the busi~ess of operating a theater, opera house, moving picture show, vaudeville, amusement park, dance hall, skating rink, or any other place [at which] where amusements are offered to the public shall be allocated to the taxation district [~ri which] wh~re the event takes place . [Taxpayer•. shall be subject to the 0 . 5 per cent county surcharge en gross inceme generated from events in the Oahu district
	verifiable data that reasonably reflects the benefit received by the taxation district . [Eff 12/7/D6; am ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8.6) 
	10. Section 18-237-8.6-10, Hawaii Administrativi Rules, is amended to read as follows: 
	§18-237-8.6-10 All others. [The gross i--fl:€-eme or gross proceeds received by a tmcpayer who reports bus~ness activity on Form G 45 or Form G 49 under the classification "all others") If sections 18-237-8.6-02 to 18-237-8 . 6-09 do not apply, gross income shall be allocated to a taxation district based upon the rules for allocating gross income [for the business activity] · which [-i-s,) arc the most [similar) relevant to the taxpayer's particular business activity. Alternatively, the taxpayer may allocat
	~onsistently used by the taxpayer and supported by yerifiable data that rE:,asonably reflE_:cts the ben~f.~t received by the taxation district, [Eff 12/7/06; am 
	J (Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-8. 6) 
	~ 
	t 
	\. t' 
	11. 
	11. 
	11. 
	Material to be repealed is bracketed and stricken, New material is underscor~d. 

	12. 
	12. 
	These amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the· Lieutenant Governor. 


	I certify that the. foregoing are copie£ of the rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on October ·g, 1981, and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	Director Department of Taxation 
	Figure
	SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT "AFTER" PUBLIC HEARING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 
	Department or Agency: Department ofTaxation (Department) 
	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 18-237 
	Chapter Name: General Excise Tax Law 
	Contact Person/Title: Jacob Berlitz, Administrative Rules Specialist 
	Phone Number: (808) 587-5334 
	E-mail Address: JDate: March 13, 2018 
	acob.L.Herlitz@hawaii.gov 

	Webpage address for draft rules: tax.hawaii.gov/legal/taxlawandrules 
	General Description of Proposed Rules: 
	The proposed rules amend chapter 237, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), by adding thirteen new sections which clarify how to determine whether gross income derived from services or contracting is exempt from the General Excise Tax as exported services or contracting. 
	from contracting or services performed by a person in the State for use outside the State is exempt from General Excise Tax. Specifically, these proposed rules clarify this exemption by adding definitions and creating rules for particular contracting or service transaction types. For example, the proposed rules create new rules dealing with services related to real prop~rty, services related to tangible personal property, services provided by travel agencies and tour packagers, legal services, and more. 
	Generally, under section 237-29.53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, all gross income derived 

	Rule Description: [gj New D Repeal D Amendment D Compilation 
	I. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	Figure
	Small Business Statement After Hearing 
	Department ofTaxation 
	Proposed HAR §18-237 
	March 13, 2018 
	Page 2 of 3 
	Figure
	The Department invited public comment at the public hearing, but did not directly involve small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	II. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted above, please provide the following information: 
	1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses were solicited. 
	The Department invited the general public, including small businesses, to provide comments on the proposed rules twice in its notices of public hearing published on the Department's website and in statewide newspapers September 7, 2017 and November 6, 2017. 
	2. A summary ofthe public's and small businesses' comments. 
	The Department received three items of testimony: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Comments from the Tax Foundation of Hawaii. The comments were generally supportive of the rules but contained some recommended amendments for clarity. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Comments submitted on behalf of Priceline and Expedia. The comments expressed concern that the rules violate federal law under the Internet Tax Freedom Act. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Comments submitted on behalf of Priceline and Expedia after the second public hearing. The comments reiterated their earlier concerns. 


	3. A summary of the agency's response to those comments. 
	The Department considered the testimony submitted and elected to make some amendments to the rules for clarity, including adding a new example. 
	The Department respectfully disagrees with the concerns that the rules violate the Internet Tax Freedom Act and instead chooses to rely on the Department of the Attorney General's approval of the rules as to form. 
	DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 
	Amendments to Chapter 18-237, Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	, 2018 
	SUMMARY 
	1. New-§§ 18-237-29. 53-01, 18-237-29. 53-02, 18-237
	-

	29. 53-03, 18-237-29. 53-04, 18-237-29. 53-05; 18
	-

	.. -· ·-··-·-·--·-·· ..··.... ·-.....,-2-3-7---2-9.....5-30-6-, -:l-8·-2-3-7--·2-9.-S-3-0.:J,-·-±-8 --2-3.'.7---2-9.-S-30-81--=-,-------18-237-29. 53-09, 18-237-29.53-10, 11, 18-237-29. 53-12, and 18-237-29.53-13 are added . 
	..
	--
	--
	-
	18-237-29.53
	-

	§18-237~29.53-0l Defin~tions. As used in sections 18-237-29.53-01 to 18-237-29.53-13: "Collection actions" means all actions taken to enforce a money judgment or collect a debt . means an agent that : 
	· ".Commissi oned agent 
	II 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	sells, buys, leases, or procures property; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	sells, buys, or procures services; or (3i sells, books, or arr~nges transient 


	accommodations or travel-related bookings on behalf of a principal, with the principal's assent, for a predetermined fee . When a commissioned agent 
	----·------~ent-e-r-s--i-A•i:-0·-a--sa-±es-"t=--r-a-nsa0-"t=--i-0n-wi-i:h.--a-·t-h.J.-r-d-·!='a-r,,&y----0n-~-------------behalf of a principal, t he total price of t he sale is controlled by the principal; the total price cannot .be unilaterally determined by the agent . 
	---

	"Customer" means the person personally receiving the service . 
	"Noncommissioned negotiated contract rates" means the rates specified in a negotiated contract between a travel agent or tour packager and operator of a transient accommodation or operator of a travelrelated booking that the operator of a transient accommodation or operator of a travel-related booking will receive for a transaction booked by the travel agent or tour packager. When transient accommodations are furnished or travel-related bookings are made through arrangements made by a travel agent or tour 
	Transient accommodation" means the same as the term is defined in section 237D-1, HRS. 
	11 

	"Travel-related booking" includes tours, excursions, transportation, rental vehicl es, shows, dining, spa services, and any other reservation or booking made by a travel agent or tour packager. 
	Example 1: 
	World Travel Inc. enters into a contract with Gold Hotel whereby World Travel Inc. may sell t h~ right to occupy rooms in Gold Hotel at $100 per room per night. The contract further provides t hat World Travel I nc. will receive a fee of ten per cent for each sale. World Travel Inc. is a commissioned agent of Gold Hotel . 
	-•··-·· .. __ -----..--. -..-• . ...-Example -2 -: ... -.. -----·•----·........ ... --·-----.. .... . -... -·---····--·
	--
	-

	Assume the same facts as in Example 1, except that the contract between World Travel Inc. and Gold Hotel provides that World Travel Inc . will r eceive a fee of eight per cent if total sales for the month are less than $10,000 or ten per cent if total sales for the month are $10, 000 or more. World Travel Inc. is a commissioned agent of Gold Hotel. 
	Example 3: 
	Island Planner Co. enters into a contract with Silver Hotel whereby Island Planner Co. may sell the right to occupy rooms in Silver Hotel. For each booking made by Island Planner Co., Silver Hotel will receive $100 per room per night. Isl and Planner Co . may unilaterally determine the mark-up and set the total price charged to the customer. Island Planner Co. is arranging transient accommodations at noncommissioned negotia½ed contract rates. 
	Example 4: 
	Assume the same facts as in Example 3, except that, for each booking made by Island 
	-·----------... ---..---·-···•---..... 
	Planner Co., Silver Hotel will receive ninety per cent of the net rate, the best available rate offered by Silver Hotel to the public .at the time of the transaction . Island Planner Co. may unilaterally determine t he mark-up of the net rate and set the total price charged to the customer. Island Planner Co. is arranging transient accommodations at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. 
	•-----~---·•·---· --ExampJ.e --•5 ··-·····---.. -··· -·· --. -· .. -··-................... ---· .... ·-...•-······ ...... •···-~-···-··· ·-·--·· ·· ··· -· --·· 
	··

	Hawaii ' s Best Inc., a travel agent, enters into a contract with Oceanside Spa to sell massage and facial treatments .. For each massage or facial sold by Hawaii's Best Inc. , Oceanside Spa will receive $80. Hawaii ' s Best Inc. may unilaterally determine the mark-up and set the total price charged to the customer. Hawaii's Best Inc. is making travel-related bookings at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS § § 231-3 (9) , 237-8 ) (Imp : HRS § 237-29 . 53) 
	§18-237-29.53-02 Exemption for contracting and services exported out of state, in general. (a) Absent bad faith, all of the value or gross income derived from contracting or services performed by a pers~n engaged in a service business or caliing are exempt from general excise tax if t he contracting or services are used or consumed outside of the State; provided that services performed for a _purchas~r who resells t he services are exempt from general excise t ax only if the purchaser resells all of t he se
	•··~···..... ,_.:_________.,___ --(-b)------I-f-e::0n-t-:i:--aet-i-ng--or-se.:r;..v~ie::es...a-:r:e--u-sed--GE--~--··----·----·------·consumed both in and outside of the Stat e, all of the value or gross income will be subject to general excise tax in proportion to the _benefit received in the State. Any reasonable method of apportioning all of the value or gross income may be used; provided that the method is consistently used by the taxpayer and supported by verifiable data that reasonabl y quantifies the
	··
	-

	§18-237-29.53-03 Contracting. Contracting is used or consumed where the real property to which the contracting activity pertains is located. 
	Example 1: 
	General LLC, a general contractor based in Hawaii, is hired by Devel oper LLC, a Hawaii developer, for a construction project located in Guam. Employees of General LLC and Developer LLC meet in Hawaii on a weekly 
	-~-~----------ba.s-is-t-h-.t:0ughout~the-du.:i;:a;t-ion-o.f--the-... --···--·· --........ _ ..___ -·•· .... • •· -····-· ··· -· ·-· · construction project to discuss plans, progress, and other matters r elated to the project. All of the value or gross income that General LLC receives for the construction project is exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because the contracting is used or consumed in Guam, where the real property is located. 
	Example 2: 
	Second Hawaiian Bank, a bank with its headquarters in Hawaii, hires General LLC, a general contractor based in Hawaii, to buiid two new branches, one in Guam and one in Hawaii. All of the value or gross income that General LLC receives for the Guam branch is exempt under section , HRS , because th·e contracting i s used or consumed in Guam, where the real property is l ocated. All of the value or gross income that General LLC receives for the Hawaii branch is not exempt under section 23729.53, HRS , because
	237-29.53
	-
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-04 Services related to real property. Services rel ated to real property are used or consumed where the real property is located. Services related to real property i nclude, but are not limited to, property management, real estate sales, real estate inspections, and real estate appraisals. 
	Example 1: 
	RPM Co., a Hawaii real property management company, is hired by RE Investor 
	...,. ·-· ···--·· --· --··· -----· •··· ·-I-ne-.--;--a---Hawai-i--e0-1:-p0:i::a-t-:i-0n,-t:0--ma-na:ge-a-------------California property. All of the value or gross income that RPM Co . receives from RE Investor Inc . to manage the California property i s exempt under section , HRS, because t he property management services are used or consumed in California, where the .real property is located. 
	··
	237-29.53

	Example 2: 
	CPM LLC, a California real property management company, is hired by Irene Investor, a California resident who owns real property in Hawaii, to manage her property. All of t he value or gross income that CPM LLC receives to manage the Hawaii property is not exempt under section 23729.53, HRS, because the property management services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where the real property is located. 
	-

	Example 3: 
	The Hawaii office of Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, is hired by Lisa Landlord, a Hawaii resi dent, to draft lease agreements for her rental properties in Hawaii, Arizona, and Nevada. Legal Services LLP charges Lisa Landlord $200 each for the 
	The Hawaii office of Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, is hired by Lisa Landlord, a Hawaii resi dent, to draft lease agreements for her rental properties in Hawaii, Arizona, and Nevada. Legal Services LLP charges Lisa Landlord $200 each for the 
	Hawaii lease, Arizona l ease, and Nevada lease, for a total fee of $600 ; Legal Services LLP shall report $600 in gross income on its general excise tax return and may claim two-thirds, or $400, as exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because twothirds of the services relate to real property located outside Hawaii and are therefore used or consumed out side Hawaii. 

	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §237-29 . 53) 
	-·----·--·---... ..----··--·--····-··--·---··· ·-·· ... --· ___.._ , __ ,..., --·--,----········-·· ----· --------·-----------------····· ......_,.., ... ,..._.. ...... 
	--
	-

	§18-237-29 . 53-05 Services related to tangible personal property. Services related to tangible personal property are used or consumed where the tangible personal property is delivered after the services are performed. Services related to tangible personal property include, but' are not limited to, inspection, appraisal, testing, and repair of tangible personal property. Services related to tangible personal property do not i nclude services performed by commissioned agents . 
	......·--------·--···----~Example..1 ·-·-............... 
	Tom Tourist; a resident of Montana vacationing i n Hawaii, takes his broken mobile phone to Fixer LLC, an electronic repair shop in Hawaii. After Fixer LLC repairs the mobile phone, Tom Tourist picks it up from Fixer LLC's shop in Hawaii. All of t he value or gross income that Fixer LLC receives is not exempt under section 237
	-

	29.53, HRS, because Fixer LLC's service is used or consumed in Hawaii, where the property was del ivered after the service was performed. 
	Example 2: 
	Assume t he same facts as in Example 1, except that Fixer LLC, upon Torn Tour i st's request, ships the mobile phone to Tom Tourist's home in Montana after completing the repai r . All of the value or gross income that Fixer LLC receives is exempt under· section , HRS, because Fixer LLC ' s service is used or consumed in Montana, where the property was delivered after the service was performed. 
	237-29.53

	Example 3: 
	' 
	Assume the same facts as in Example 1, except that Fixer LLC is unable to repair Tom Tourist rs mobile phone at its shop in Hawaii . Fixer LLC sends the phone to its warehouse in Arizona, where the repair is compl eted. The mobile phone is shipped back to Fixer LLC ' s shop in Hawaii, where Torn Tourist pi cks it up. All of the value or· gross income that Fixer LLC receives is not 
	--·---~--------~--ex-emp.t--l:lnder-sect-i-or.i.---2-3-7-=-2-9..-.53.,--H-RS-,-beca.use..-·Fixer LLC ' s service is used or consumed in Hawaii, where the property was delivered after t he service was performed. 
	-

	Example 4: 
	Derrick Driver, a resident of Hawaii, calls Aloha Auto Finder, LLC, a car broker located in Hawaii, and hires it to find and negotiate a purchase price for a green classic car. Derrick Driver provides Aloha Auto Finder, LLC with a list of specifications that the car must have and the total amount he is willing to pay for the car. Derrick Driver a nd Aloha Auto Finder, LLC agree that Aloha Auto Finder, LLC will be paid a flat fee of $500 . Aloha Auto Finder, LLC finds a green classic car in.Michigan and nego
	-

	------· -· -·
	services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where Aloha Auto Finder, LLC is located. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 2 3 7 -8 ) ( Imp : HRS § 2 3 7 -2 9 . 5 3 ) 
	§18-237-29.53-06 Services provided by a travel agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. (a). When transient accommodations are furnished through arrangements made by a travel agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates, the travel agency's or tour packager's service is used or consumed where the transient accommodation is located. 
	(b) When travel-related bookings other than transient accommodations are made or sold by a travel agency or tour packager at noncommissioned negotiated 
	----·-----cont-r.a.ct-r.a.tes.,-,the-tr.a.vel-agency..!,s ___ service is used or consumed where the travel-related booking is located. 
	o.r. .. t.o.ur._pa.ckag.er...!..s

	Example 1: 
	Travel Services Corporation ("TSC") sells a five-night stay at Luau Loft, a hotel in Hawaii, to Tammy Traveler, a resident of New Jersey. TSC arranges the transient accommodation at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates . The contract between TSC and Luau Loft provides that Luau Loft will receive ninety per cent of the net rate, the best available rate offered by Luau Loft to the public at the time of the transaction, and that TSC may unilaterally determine the mark-up of the net rate and set the total 
	237-29.53

	at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. 
	Example 2: 
	Assume the same facts as in Example 1, except that TSC books a five-day rental of a vehicle i n Hawaii for Tammy Traveler. TSC arranges the travel-related booking at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates. The contract between TSC and the rental 
	-------v:eh-i-e-1e-G0mpa,n-y--p.r,0-v-i-Eies--t-ha.t--t-tle-r.en-t-a-l---·-. -----··---·-··----·.. -~.. • •-----.... -----· · vehicle company will receive $50 per day for each vehicle rented and that TSC may unilaterally determine the mark-up and set the total price charged to the customer. TSC charges Tammy Traveler $300 for the booking. All of the value or gross income that TSC receives is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53 , HRS . TSC s service is used or consumed in Hawaii, where the travel-related bo
	1 

	Example 3: 
	Alex Adventurer, a resident of Hawaii, visits the office of Maui Travel Agency ("MTA"), a travel agency located in Hawaii, to pl an a vacation to Alaska. MTA sells a seven-night stay at Glacier Hotel, a hotel in Alaska, to Alex Adventurer. MTA arranges the transient accommodation at noncommiss.ioned negotiated contract rates . The contract between MTA and Glacier Hotel provides that Glacier Hotel will receive $100 per room per night and that MTA may independently determine the mark-up and set the total pric
	booking, unilaterally determining to charge a mark-up of $300. All of the value or gross income that MTA receiv·es is exempt under section , HRS. MTA ' s service is used or consumed in Alaska, where t he transient accommodation is located. The transient acc9mmodation was furnished through arrangements made by a travel agency at noncommissioned negotiated contract rates . 
	237-29.53

	.. ....... .... , _ ........ _ ................. Example --4-:---..--
	-

	..-..------·-·--------·"·-----·•-·-------
	---
	--
	-

	Assume the same facts as in Example 3, except that the contract between MTA and Glacier Hotel provides that MTA may book rooms at Glacier Hotel for $125 per room pe~ night and that, for each booking, MTA will receive ten per cent of the sale. MTA, does not have the authority to mark up or unilaterall y change the total price charged to the customer. Section 18-237-29 . 53-06 does not apply because transient accommodations are not being furnished through arrangements made by a travel agency at noncommissione
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-07 Legal services in an action or proceeding. Legal services provided t o a party in a judicial action or proceeding, administrative proceeding, arbitration, mediation, or other method of dispute resolution are used or consumed where the case or matter is filed . For purposes of this section, "party'' means a party in an action or proceeding, including but not limited to, a plaintiff, defendant, petitioner, respondent, appellant, appellee, or real party in interest. 
	..........-······-· .. -·.······~---· ··---·-·· ·-····-~--··---..·-····-······ ---·-··· ·•··-··---~ -·--· ____ __.....,.. _________________ 
	·· 

	Example 1 : 
	Annie Attorney, an attorney based in Hawaii, is hired by Aaron Appellant, a Hawaii resident, to represent him in an appeal pending in the Court of Appeals in California. Annie Attorney drafts the briefs in her of+ice in Hawaii and attends the hearing in California. All of the value or gross income that Annie Attorney receives from Aaron Appellant is exempt under section , HRS, because Annie Attorney's services are used or consumed in California, where t he· case was filed . 
	237-29.53

	Example 2: 
	Annie Attorney,· an attorney based in Hawaii, is hired by Daniel Defendant, an Oregon resident, to represent him in a lawsuit filed against him in Hawaii . All of the value or gross income that Annie Attorney receives from Daniel Defendant is not exempt under section 237-29 .53, HRS, be·cause Annie Attorney's services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where the case was filed. 
	, ,.___. _______._ ---------..,.-----· 
	_
	__

	Example 3 : 
	XYZ, a multistate business, hires Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, including California and Hawaii, to represent i t in a lawsuit filed in the United States District Court in Hawaii. The California office of Legal Services LLP performed eight y hours of work on the case and the Hawaii of fice of Legal Services LLP performed twenty hours of 
	---------wo.:r::k--on--t-he-case...-A1-l--of--the-v:a.l.ue--o.:i;.-g.ross -····-····· -· -·--·· income that Legal Services LLP receives for its work performed in the California and Hawaii offic~s is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because Legal Services LLP ' s services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where the case was filed. 
	Example 4: 
	Chris Client, a Hawaii resident, hires Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, t o represent him in a personal injury case in California.. Legal Services LLP drafts a complaint to be filed in California. Before the complaint is fil ed, however , Legal Services LLP settles t he dispute. Because the complaint was not -filed, section 18-237-29. 53-07 does not apply. Instead, section 18-237-29 . 53-11 will apply . [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §) 
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-08 Debt collection services. Debt collection services are used or consumed where the collection actions take place. This section does not apply to busi nesses that engage in collection actions to recover their own debts . ·· 
	Example 1 : 
	I rene Investor, a California resident, hires Repo LLC to enforce a civil judgment against David Debtor, a Hawaii resident. 
	-~-.---Rep0---LLC--pe;i;.:f0;i;ms......tfle-wo-i-k-r-i.eGes.s a . .i;y--t-0----lev.y-~-----------David Debtor ' s bank accounts and garnish David Debtor's wages in Hawaii . All of the value or gross income that Repo LLC receives is not exempt under section , HRS , because Repo LLC's services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where the collection actions took .place. 
	237-29.53

	Example 2 : 
	Sam Spender, a California resident, has an outstanding debt owed to Credi t Card Company . Cash Collectors Inc., a corporation located in Hawaii, purchases David Debtor ' s debt from Credit Card Company and takes actions to recover the debt from Sam Spender. Section , HRS, does not apply because Cash Collectors Inc., in attempting to recover its own debt , is not engaging in a service business or calling. [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §) 
	237-29.53 
	237-29'.53

	§18-237-29.53-09 Services requiring customer to be physically present. Except as provided in sections 18-237-29.53-03 to 18-237-29.53-08, services that require the customer to be physically present at the time the service is performed are used or consumed where the service is performed. 
	Example 1: 
	Fiona Facial, an esthetician in Hawaii, sells a spa package consisting of a facial 
	------·---·---and-man-i,cu.r.e-,to.-Ca.r.ol-Col-or.ado.,.-a-.Color.ado -····-·· .. --····· ... ---·---· .. -· .... resident. Carol Colorado purchases the spa package online as a gift for her ~other for an upcoming vacation to Hawaii. Carol Colorado ' s mother travels to Hawaii, where she receives the facial and manicure from Fiona Facial . All of the value or gross income that Fiona Facial receives is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because Fiona Facial ' s services are used or consumed in Hawaii
	Example 2: 
	ABC Company, an Arizona corporation, holds a corporate retreat in Hawaii. ABC Company hires Sue Speaker, a motivational speaker who resides in New Mexico, t o fly to Hawaii and speak to ABC Company and its employ'ees at the corporate retreat . All of the value or ~ross income that Sue Speaker receives from ABC Company is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because ABC Company must be physically present (through the presence of its employees) in Hawaii at the time the service is performed. 
	Example 3 : 
	Assume the same facts as in Example 2 except that some employees of ABC Company are unable to attend the corporate retreat in Hawaii. Sue Speaker ' s presentation is live-streamed to ABC Company's office in Arizona for the employees in Arizona to view . Al l of the value or gross income that Sue Speaker receives from ABC Company is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because 
	., ....... -·------···-··-·· . --. ------ABG--C0mpa-r-i.y.-mus.t--be--ph.y.s-i-Ga-l-l.y-p.:i;eser.i-t------------------·--(through the presence of its employees) in Hawaii at the time the service is performed, notwithstanding the fact that some of its employees are not required to be physically present . 
	-

	Example 4 : 
	ABC Company, an Arizona corporation, hires Paul Presenter, a motivational speaker who resides in Hawaii, to speak to ABC Company and its employees via live-stream from Hawaii. The live-stream is accessed solely from ABC Company ' s office in Arizona . Paul Presenter's service does not require ABC Company to be physically present where the service is performed. Accordingly, section 18-237-29 . 53-09 does not apply . Instead, section 18-237-29.53-11 will apply. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3 {9) , 237-8) {Imp : HR
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-10 Services performed by commissioned agents. (a) Except as provided in section 18-237-29.53-04, services performed by a commissioned agent are used or consumed where the agent is located at the t ime the agent 's services are performed; provided that : 
	(1) when property is sol d, purchased, leased, or procured online through a commissioned agent, the agent ' s service is used or consumed where the property is delivered; 
	(2) when services are sold, purchased, or , _ _____________,._______...-pr.ocu.r.ed-onl-ine~th,r:ough-.a-commissioned-------·-~--·---agent , the agent ' s service i s used or 
	-

	consumed where the transacted services are performed; 
	(3) when transient accommodations or travelrelated bookings are sold, purchased, or arranged online through a commissioned agent, t he agent ' s service is used or consumed where the transient accommodation or travel-related booking is located. 
	(bl For purposes of this section, "online" means that the transaction occurs exclusively through a website or web application without any in-person contact . 
	Example 1: 
	Alex Adventurer, a resident of Hawaii, visits the office of Maui Travel Agency ("MTA'' ) , a travel agency l ocated in Hawaii, to plan a vacation to Alaska . MTA sells a seven-night stay at Glacier Hotel, a hotel in Alaska, to Alex Adventurer. The contract between MTA and Glacier Hotel provides that MTA may book rooms at Glacier Hotel for $125 per room per night and that, for each booking, MTA will receive ten per cent of . the sal e . MTA_does not have t he authority to ma~k up or unilaterally change t he 
	not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS , because MTA is a commissioned agent and its services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where MTA is located. 
	Example 2: 
	Assume the same facts as in Example 1, except t hat Alex Adventurer books the stay at Glacier Hotel online through MTA ' s website and does not visit MTA ' s office . 
	----·--------.--.-AlJ._of-.the-v.al.ue-.o.r_gr.oss-income_tha.t._MT.A_~~ receives is exempt under section , HRS . MTA ' s service is used or consumed in 
	237-29.53

	, Alaska, where the transient accommodation is located, because the transient accommodation was booked online through MTA, a commissioned agent. 
	Example 3 : 
	Vacation Rentals Online (uVROu) operates a website that allows guests to book transient accommodations listed for rent by owners. Ryan Renter, a resident of Florida, uses VRO's website to book a twonight stay at Olivia Owner ' s unit in Hawaii for $100 per night. The contract between VRO and Olivia Owner provides that for each booking of Oliva Owner'$ unit made through VRO ' s website, VRO will receive ten per cent of the rental price, which is determined solely by Olivia Owner . VRO also charges Ryan Rent
	237-29.53

	Example 4 : 
	Errand Runner Inc. operates a website through which users can request or offer the performance of short-term services, such as picking up dry cleaning, dog walking, and grocery shopping. Carrie Consumer, a resident of Virginia, uses Errand Runner Inc. to hire Andy Assistant, a resident. of Hawaii, to stand in line at the Hanauma Bay State Park in Hawaii, where the first one 
	. . ----hundred.. pe-r.sons.-to-en.te-r-the-par.k-w.i.l-1-----•··--------------·---..--receive a collectible item. The terms of service between Errand Runner Inc . and Andy Assistant provi des that Errand Runner Inc. will re ceive ten per cent of the income Andy Assistant receives for services booked through Errand Runner Inc. The amount charged for Andy Assistant ' s services are determined solely by Andy Assistant . Errand Runner Inc. also charges Carrie Consumer a fee of ten dollars for using its websit
	Assistant ' s service was booked online through Errand Runner Inc., a commissioned agent . 
	Example 5: · 
	Derrick Driver, a resident of Hawaii, calls Aloha Auto Finder, LLC, a car broker located i n Hawaii, and hires it to find and negotiate a purchase price for a green classic car. Derrick Driver provides Aloha Auto Finder, LLC with a l ist of specifications that the car must have and the total amount he is willing to pay for 
	the 
	the 
	the 
	car. 
	Derrick Driver and Aloha Auto 

	Finder, 
	Finder, 
	LLC agree that Aloha Auto Finder, 

	LLC 
	LLC 
	will be paid 
	a 
	flat fee of $500. 
	Aloha 

	Auto 
	Auto 
	Finder, 
	LLC 
	finds 
	a 
	green classic car 

	in Michigan and negotiates 
	in Michigan and negotiates 
	a 
	purchase price 

	on 
	on 
	behalf of Derrick Driver . 
	Derrick Driver 

	purchases the 
	purchases the 
	car 
	and instructs the 
	seller 

	to ship the 
	to ship the 
	car 
	from Michigan 
	to 
	Derrick 

	Driver's second home 
	Driver's second home 
	in Rhode 
	Island. 
	All 

	of the value 
	of the value 
	or gross income that Aloha Auto 

	Finder, 
	Finder, 
	LLC receives is not 
	exempt 
	under 

	---·---·-··-----·--·
	---·---·-··-----·--·
	-
	-
	-

	--section--23.7.;::.2.9.53.,--·HRS.,--because.Aloha-Auto -
	..
	..
	-

	.. 
	·-··· 
	... -. -. -··-•-· 
	-... 
	•· •• 

	TR
	Finder, 
	LLC i s 
	a 
	commissioned agent and its 

	TR
	services 
	are 
	used 
	or 
	consumed in Hawaii, 

	TR
	where Aloha Auto 
	Finder, 
	LLC 
	is located. 

	TR
	[Eff 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§231-3(9) , 

	TR
	237-8) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§237-29 . 53) 


	§18-237-29.. 53-11 Other se~vices. (a) Except as provided in sections 18-237-29.53-03 to 10: 
	18-237-29.53
	-

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	If the customer is a business and the service relates to the customer 's business activities, the service is used or consumed where the related business activities occur; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	If the customer is a business and the service is unrelated to the customer ' s business activities, the service is used or consumed where the customer's principal 


	--•·~·-•··~----·-···-··---·----·······----P·lace...of-business.~i.s..-located.;---·---'--·-·----
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	If the customer is an individual, the service is used or consumed where the individual resides; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	I f the customer i s the military or federal, state, or local government, t he service is used or consumed where the benefit of the service i s received. 


	(b) For purposes of this section, "business activities" means the transactions and activities engaged in the regular course of trade or business for the ultimate purpose of obt aining gains or profits, or if the business i s a tax-exempt organization, also includes the transactions and activities that further the exempt purpose of the organizati on. 
	Example 1: 
	Chris Client, a Hawaii resident, hires Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, including Hawaii, to represent him in a personal injury case in California. Legal Services LLP drafts a complaint to be filed in California . Before the complaint is filed, however, Legal Services LLP settl es t he dispute . All of the value or gross income that Legal Services LLP receives is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS , because Legal Services LLP ' s services are used or consumed 
	resides, pursuant t o section ll(a) (3). 
	18-237-29.53
	-

	' Example 2: 
	\ 

	ABC Company, an Arizona corporat ion with its principal place of business in Arizona, hires Paul Presenter, a motivational speaker who resides in Hawaii, to speak to ABC Company and its employees via live-stream from Hawaii. The 
	--------------m0t-i-va-t-i-0na.J:-s-FJeeeh-i-s-a-pe,1;-s0na-l--•-beBe-f-i-t-------------··--·---that ABC Company provides t o its empl oyees and is not related to its business activities. The live-stream is accessed solely from ABC Company ' s office in Arizona . All of the value or gross income that Paul Presenter receives is exempt under section , HRS , because Paul Presenter' s service is used or consumed in Arizona, where ABC Company's principal place of business is located, pursuant to section 18237-2
	237-29.53
	-

	Example 3: 
	Annie Attorney, a Hawaii attorney, i s hired by Wendy Wyoming, a Wyoming resident who owns stock and partnership interests in various enterprises, as well as Hawaii real property, to prepare her estate plan. All of the value or gross income that Annie Attorney receives to prepare Wendy Wyoming ' s estate pl an is exempt under section 23729.53, HRS , because Annie Attorney ' s services are used or consumed in Wyoming, where Wendy Wyoming resides, pursuant to section 18-237-29 . 53-11 (a) (3). 
	-

	Example 4 : 
	XYZ, a multistate business, hires Legal Services LLP, a law firm with offices throughout the United States, including Hawaii, to represent it in a contract dispute relating to business activities in Hawaii. Legal Services LLP settles the case before a lawsuit is filed and charges XYZ $30, 000 in legal fees . Attorneys from Legal Services LLP ' s Hawaii office performed 
	------twer,i.t;.-y--•J.:)e-r--0e,Rt:.-0.f-the-w0.:i;k--a-r.i.d-a-t-.-t;.0:i:;:.r.i.e:y.s --······· .......-.. .... •-·--· ---· ·from Legal Services LLP ' s . California office performed the remaining eighty per cent of work. All of the value or gross income that Legal Services LLP receives i s not exempt under section , HRS , because the legal services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where the business activities relating to the legal services occurred, pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1) . 
	--
	-
	237-29.53

	Example 5: 
	Arnold Accountant, an accountant located in Hawaii, is hired by Mary Mover, a Californi a resident, in 2017 to prepare her 2016 federal and st ate tax returns . Mary Mover must file state tax returns in California~ where she resided for the first half of 2016, and Hawaii, where she currently resides . All of the value or gross income that Arnold Accountant receives from Mary Mover is not exempt under section , HRS, because Arnold Accountant ' s services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where Mary Mover resid
	237-29.53

	Example 6: 
	XYZ, a multistate business, hires Accounting Services LLP, a Hawai i accounting firm, to perform accounting services related to XYZ's business activities in Hawaii. All of t he value or gross i ncome that Accounting Services LLP receives from XYZ is not exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because Accounting Services LLP 's services are used or consumed i n Hawaii, where XYZ'~ business 
	--·----··-• ···---•-· -•· ----a-et..J.-v-i-t-:he-s--neJ:a.t,e0-t-0-t-he--a•GG0-1,u1-t-i-GG-··-·--------services occur, pursuant t o section 18-23729.53-ll(a) (1). 
	··
	-
	-

	Example 7: 
	SP LLC, a software programmer located in Hawaii, is hired by MedServ, Inc ., a medical service provider doing business in several states, including Hawaii, to create a customized and integrated pati ent file and billing program for use at all of i t s medical offices for a fee of $70,000 . MedServ, Inc . has two. of its seven medical offices in Hawaii. SP LLC ' s services are used or consumed where MedServ, Inc . 's business activities relating to SP LLC ' s services occurred, pursuant to secti on 18237-29 
	-
	-
	237-29.53

	--·--·..·----..····---···· -· ·-· ·-.. · 
	··

	Example 8: 
	Honolulu Hut, a Hawaii retailer, hires GD Company, a graphic design company in California, to design a company logo that will be used on Honolulu Hut ' s merchandise sold in Hawaii and in marketing materials distributed in Hawaii. GD Company contracts with Ashley Artist, a Hawaii resident, to create a digital image, which GD Company will incorporate into the logo it designs 
	-----------,for~ H0:r.i0.lulu-H-u.t..-Al--l-o-f-the--v:al.ue... o.r-g.ross.... .. income that GD Company receives from Honolulu Hut is not exempt under section , HRS, because GD Company's services are used or consumed in Hawaii, where Honolulu Hut's business activities related to the design services occur, pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1). All of the value or gross income that Ashley Artist receives is also not exempt under section , HRS, because Ashley Artist ' s services are resold by GD Compa
	237-29.53
	237-29.53

	Example 9: 
	California Surf Co . , a retail store in California, hires Hawaii Designs LLC, a Hawaii graphic design company, to design a logo that will be used on Cali~ornia Sur f Co. 's merchandise sold in California and in marketing materials distributed in California . Hawaii Designi LLC hires Ashley Artist, a Hawaii resident, to design a digital image, which Hawaii Designs LLC 
	--------···-·· --·· --··· --·-· 
	incorporates into the logo it designs for California Surf Co . All of the value or gross income that Hawaii Designs LLC receives i s exempt under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, because Hawaii Designs LLC's services are used or consumed in California, where California Surf Co . ' s business activities related to the design services occur, pursuant to section 18-237-29. 53-11 (a) (1) . Al l of the value or gross income t hat Ashley Artist receives is also exempt under section 
	.. ······ ..... · ······ •· -• ···· · • ....-2-3.:;i.--2.9.,....§J.;--HRS,--beea-t:1se-Ash-1ey---A-.r:--s-i-s-V-s------·-·-·-·----------services are resold for use or consumption in Cal ifornia . ·Pursuant to section 18-237
	-

	29. 53-02, services performed for a purchaser who resells the services are exempt from general excise tax if the purchaser resells all of the services for use or consumpt ion outside t he State. 
	Exampl e 1 0: 
	Data Inc ., a company l ocated in Hawaii, is paid $10, 000 by the United States Navy t o analyze data and prepare reports that will be used by Naval Base Guam. Naval Base Guam is the only naval base that will benefit from Data Inc . 's services . All of the value or gross i ncome that Data Inc. receives is exempt under section , HRS, because the services are used or consumed by the military in Guam, where t he benefit of t he service is received, pursuant to section 18237-29. 53-11 (a) (4) . 
	237-29.53
	-

	Example 11 : 
	Data Inc. , a company located in Hawaii, is paid $10, 000 by the United States Navy to analyze data and prepare reports that wil l be used by the United States Pacific Fleet. Data Inc . ' s reports will be used by and 
	benefit the United States Pacific Fleet in Hawaii, where its headquarters is located, as well as in other locations in the United States and abroad . Because Data Inc. ' s service is used or consumed both in and
	. 
	. 

	outside of the State, Data Inc . shall ·apportion its income pursuant to section 18237-29.53-02(b) . Data Inc. shall report $10,000 in gross income on its general excise tax return and may claim an exemption under section 237-29 . 53, HRS, for the 
	-

	--···· .. -.. ··· ··---··-···· ··-·· ---p0-:r=-t-j,.0n---0-f--ine0me•-a•t-&r-ib1:1-"E-a-ble-t-0-se,r,v-tces-······ -· -------· --·-·-···..----·· used or consumed outside of the State. 
	··

	Example 12: 
	Remodelers Hawaii LLC, a general contractor, is hired by the United States Army to renovate a building at Schofield Barracks in Hawaii. Section 18-237-29.53-11 does not apply because Remodelers Hawaii LLC is performing contracting work, which is governed by section 18-237-29.53-03. Under that rule, all of the value or gross income that Remodelers Hawaii LLC receives is not exempt because the contracting is used or consumed in Hawaii, where the real property is located. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§231-3(9), 237-8) (
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-12 Cancellation and forfeiture charges. Section , HRS, shall not apply where all of the value or gross income is derived from cancellation fees, forfeited deposits, or other charges resulting from the cancellation or , nonperformance of services. 
	237-29.53

	Example 1: 
	ABC Company, an Arizona corporation with its principal place of business in 
	· · -·--···-·· · ···· · ·..... · .. · Ari:zona--;-·-hi-res--~Pa-u-l--·P:resen'l:e:!:-';-~-a--•-··-····..--------·····--·-----~-----·--···-·-~---·-· motivational speaker who resides in Hawaii, to speak to ABC Company and its employees via live-stream from Hawaii. The live-stream will be accessed solely from ABC Company's office in Arizona. Two days before the live-stream event, ABC Company cancels the event. Paul Presenter charges ABC Company a cancellation fee pursuant to their contract. The gross income th
	··
	237-29.53

	§18-237-29.53-13 Telecommunication services. Sections 18-237-29.53-01 to 18-237-29.53-12 shall not apply to interstate or foreign common carrier telecommunication services. [Eff ] 
	(Auth: HRS §§231-3 (9), 237-8) (Imp: HRS §) 
	237-29.53

	32 . 
	DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 
	Chapter 18-237 , Hawaii Adrninistrati_ve Rules, on the Summary Page dated ______ , was adopted on , following public hearings hel d on 
	.October 17 and December 11, 2017 after publi c notice was given in t he Honolulu Star Advertis·er, the Garden Isle, the Maui News, West Hawaii Today, and the Hawaii Tribune-Herald on September 7 , 2017 an9 November 6, 2017, respectively. 
	··--~··---·--------·--·--------·-·--·~------·-·--·------·-·---~-·-···---
	··
	-

	These amendments to chapter 18-237 shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	LINDA CHU TAKAYAMA Director of Taxation 
	APPROVED: 
	DAVID Y. IGE Governor State of Hawaii 
	Dated: 
	AP ROVED AS TO FORM : 
	I 
	I I D General 
	Fil ed 




	IV. New Bus A. HAR 13-104 Forest Reserves - B. HAR 12-162 Food Safety
	Structure Bookmarks
	IV. New Business 
	IV. New Business 
	A.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13, Chapter 104, Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserves, promulgated byDLNR 
	A.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 13, Chapter 104, Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserves, promulgated byDLNR 
	PRE-PUBLIC HEARING SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEME TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW OA,~------=----=-'=---__, 
	(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201 M-2) :, Bol(ZQ 
	Department or Agency: _D_L_N_R__________________~-
	-

	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: _H_A_R_ 1_3_-1_0_4____________ 
	Chapter Name: Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserve\s 
	Contact Person/Title: Ryan Peralta, Forest Management Supervisor I 
	Phone Number: 808-973-9784 
	E-mail Address: Date: September 28, 2017 
	ryan.k.peralta@hawaii.gov 

	A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §927, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. 
	-

	B. Are the draft rules available for viewing ~inerson and on the Lieutenarit Governor's Website pursuant to HRS §92-7? Yes ✓ Non (If Yes, please provide webpage address and when and where ru es mayTe viewed in person© 
	-104.pdf 
	https://dlnr.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/FDraftHARCh 13

	Figure
	(Please keep the proposed rul~s on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting.) 
	I. Rule Description: New l✓ I Repeal l✓ I Amendment D Compilation D 
	II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l✓ I No D (If No, no need to submit this form.) 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	. "Affect small business" is defined as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business ... 

	that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the formation, op~ration, or expansion of a small business." HRS §201M-1 

	* 
	* 
	"Small business" is defined as a "for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or parttime employees in Hawaii.". HRS §201M-1 


	Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the statute or ordinance? Yes D No l✓ I (If Yes, no need to submit this form.) 
	(e.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the agency the discretion to consider less restrictive alternatives.) HRS §201 M-2(d) 
	IV. Is the proposed rule bei~adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HRS §201M-2(a)) Yes LJ No l✓ I (If Yes, no need to submit this form.) 
	* * * 
	Revised 8/15/2017 
	Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement Page 2 
	If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 
	1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the proposed rules and how they may be adversely affected. 
	No adverse effect on small businesses as current Forest Reserve Rules do not allow any of the new activities being proposed. The proposed rules create more opportunity for small businesses. 
	2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance. 
	No increase in fees. The proposed rules will establish a fee schedule. 
	If the proposed ru_le imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 
	a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. No current fee. 
	b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 
	Fee schedule will be based on the potential impact to the natural resources. The fee increases with as the potential impact increases. Pedestrian=$5, Bicycle=$7, Commercial film permit=$100, Commercial cabin rentaI=$100 
	c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 
	To promote a mixed use management strategy in Forest Reserves. To promote eco-tourism in Hawaii. To increase revenue to supplement DLNR management. 
	d. Criteria or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee. or fine 
	(i.e., Consumer Price Index, Inflation rate, etc.). The fee schedule was modeled after existing fee schedules being used by other DLNR agencies. 
	3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected, including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys 
	will be used. 
	It is unknown much revenue will be generated. Approximately 30 commercial film permits are issued per year. This proposed rule will provide an additional $3,000 for DLNR. 
	Revised 8/15/2017 
	Pre-Public Hearing Smali business Impact Statement Page 3 
	4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than design standards, exemption, or other mitigating techniques. · 
	N/A. Current rules provide more opportunities for small businesses. 
	5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 
	N/A. Without proposed rules, commercial activities in the Forest Reserves would not be possible. 
	6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small businesses. The businesses that wili be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or directly benefit from the proposed rules. 
	N/A. Without proposed rules, commercial activities in the Forest Reserves would not be possible. 
	7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 
	Proposed fee schedules are modeled after existing fee schedules. 
	a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the recommendations· incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If no, why not. 
	N/A 
	8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, w ith an explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 
	N/A 
	If yes, please provide· information comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rules to the costs ar:id benefits of the comparable federal, state, or county law, including the following: 
	Revised 8/15/20 I 7 
	· Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact St atement Page 4 
	a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 
	To promote a mixed use management strategy in Forest Reserves. To promote eco-tourism . in Hawaii. To increase revenue to supplement DLNR management. 
	b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information about the purposes and applicability of the law. 
	Proposed fee schedule pursuant to: HAR 13-104-18: Fees and charges as set by the board may be assessed when permits are granted for the 
	exclusive use of areas or facilities, orwhen charges are necessary to defray the cost of special facilities, services, or supplies provided by the State, or 
	as otherwise determined by the board or its authorized representative when necessary to carry out the provisions of chapter 183, Hawaii Revised 
	Statutes. Charges may be waived by the board or its authorized representative if the waiver Is in the public interest. 
	· c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and administration. 
	See attached. 
	d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with the costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, or county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any additional fees from the proposed rule will be used. 
	All proposed fees are not currently in the rules. Revenue generated from fees will be 
	deposited into Forest Stewardship fund and will be. used to benefit Forest Reserve 
	management. 
	e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or county law. 
	No adverse effects on small business as current rules do not allow small businesses to operate in the Forest Reserves. Therefore, the proposed rules create more opportunities for small businesses. · · 
	* * * 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DB EDT Phone: (808) 586-2594 
	Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

	This Statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: 
	http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/small-business-impact-statements-pre-and-post-pubic-hearing 

	Revised 8/15/2017 
	DRAFT RULES PENDING PUBLIC ·HEARING AND FINAL APPROVAL 
	Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 13-104 Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	(date) 
	1. _Chapter 13-104,. Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "Rules Regulating Activities Within Forest Reserves", is amended and compiled to read as follows: 
	"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES TITLE 13 DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBTITLE 5 FORESTRY AND WILDLIFE PART 1 FORESTRY 
	CHAPTER 104 RULES REGULATING ACTIVITIES WITHIN FOREST RESERVES 
	Subchapter 1 General Provisions 
	§13-104-1 Purpose and applicability §13-104-2 Definitions §13-104-3 Penalty 
	Subchapter 2 Public Use 
	§1 3-104-4 Preservation of public property and 
	resources §13-104-5 Litter and sanitation §13-104-5.5 Abandoned and unattended property §13-104-6 Report of injury or damage §13-104-7 Fire use restrictions §13-104-7.5 Closing of areas 
	Figure
	104-1 
	NOV 30,2..o11' 
	Figure

	s 
	Figure
	Figure
	§13-104-8 §13-104-9 §13-104-10 §13-104-11 §13-104-12 §13-104-13 §13-104-14 §13-104-15 §13-104-16 §13-104-17 
	§13-104-18 §13-104-19 §13-104-20 §13-104-21 §13-104-22 §13-104-23 §13-104-24 
	§13-104-25 §13-104-26 §13-104-27 §13-104-28 §13-104-29 §13-104-30 §13-104-31 §13-104-32 §13-104-33 
	Hunting and fishing Firearms or other weapons Swimming and bathing Vehicles and transportation Animals Audio devices and noi se Explosi ves Disorderly conduct Camping Compliance with laws 
	Subchapter 3 Permits 
	General provisions for permits Camping permits Special use permits Collecting permits Commercial permits Access permits Commercial activities 
	Subchapter 4 Fees and Charges 
	General statement Payment Camping and cabin rental fees Commercial use permit fees Kiln fees Permit processing fees Parking and entrance fees Fee for copies of rules Negotiable instruments; service charge 
	Historical Note: Chapter 104 of Title 13, Administrative Rules , is based substantially upon Regulation 1 [Eff . 12/9/43; am 8/12/76) and Regulation 10 [Eff. 12/12/59) of the Division of Forestry, Departme nt of Land and Natural Resources [R 9/28/81) . 
	SUBCHAPTER 1 
	GENERAL PROVISIONS 
	[§13 104 1 Purpose and applicability.] §13-104-1 Purpos e and applicability. (a) The purpose of [these rules] this chapter is to regulate activity within forest reserves established pursuant to sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
	(b) These rules shall apply to all persons entering the boundaries and jurisdiction of a forest reserve . All persons shall observe and abide by officially posted signs within forest reserves . Everyone using the forest reserves should conduct themselves in a safe and courteous manner . Users of the forest reserves should be aware that there are [certains] certain 
	inherent risks involved due 
	inherent risks involved due 
	inherent risks involved due 
	to other 
	users 
	and the environment 

	and should 
	and should 
	use 
	caution at 
	all time s. 
	[Eff 9/28/81; 
	am 
	and comp 

	10/15/93; 
	10/15/93; 
	am 
	and comp 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 

	(Imp: 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§§183-1.5, 
	183-2) 


	[§13 104 2 Definitions. ] §13-104-2 Defini tions . As used in [these rules,] this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 
	"Abandoned and unatte nded property" means any and all property, including personal property, items, materials, equipment, fixtures , motor vehicles, or vessels that have been 
	l eft unattended 
	l eft unattended 
	l eft unattended 
	on 
	land owned 
	or 
	controlled by the State 
	for 
	a 

	continuous period of 
	continuous period of 
	more 
	than 
	forty-eight 
	hours without 
	the 

	written permission of the board 
	written permission of the board 
	or 
	its authorized 

	representative. 
	representative. 


	"Administrator" means the administrator of the division of forestry and wildli fe . 
	"Authorized represent ative" means the administrator, foresters, conservation enforcement officers, and other persons authorized by the board [of land and nat ur al resources] to act for the board. 
	"Board" means the board of land and natural resources . 
	"Camping" or "to camp" means [being i n possession of a backpack, tents, blankets, tarpaulins, or other obvious camping paraphernalia,] a person's physical presence any time [a fter] one hour after sundown until s unrise in a forest reserve . Indicia of camping includes the use of a forest reserve one hour 
	after sundown until sunrise for living accommodation purposes, 
	including, but not limited to: sleeping activities or making 
	preparations to sleep (including the laying down of bedding for 
	the purpose of s l eeping); storing personal belongings; making 
	any fire ; the presence or use of any tent s, temporary shelters, 
	unauthorized structures or vehicles ; or digging or breaking 
	ground without proper authorization . 
	"Commercial activity" means the use of or activity in the forest reserve for which compensation is received by any person for goods or services or both rendered to customers or participants in that use or activity. Soliciting, demanding, or requesting gifts, money, or services shall be considered commercial activity. Commercial activities incl ude activities 
	[whose] with base of operations [a-re] outside the boundaries of 
	the forest reserve, display of merchandise, or activities which provide transportation to or from the forest reserve . 
	"Commercial use" is any type of commercia l activity which is considered compatible with the functions and purposes of each individual area, facility, or unit within a forest reserve . 
	"Compensation" includes but is not l imited to, monetary fees, donations, barter, or services in-kind. 
	[" Division" means the division of forestry and wildlife . ] 
	"Department" means the department of land and natural resources . "Division" means the division of forestry and wildlife. "For est product" means any natural material from a forest 
	1 

	reserve, including but not limited to timber, seedlings, seeds, fruits, greenery, tree fern, cinder, lava roc k, ti leaves, and bamboo . 
	"Forest reserve" means those lands designat ed as forest reserves by the department pursuant to sections 183-11 and 18315, Hawaii Revised Statutes , and other lands for pl ant sanctuaries, facilities, nurseriesL and baseyards under the custody and control of the division . 
	-

	"Motorized vehicle" means a vehi cle of any shape or form that depends on a motor (gas, electric , or other fuels) for propulsion . 
	"Non-motorized vehicle" means a vehicle of any shape or form that depends on human, animal, wind, springL and other nonmotorized means for propulsion . 
	["Residing" means being in the same forest reserve for more than seven (7) continuous days . ] 
	["Spark arrester" means a device construct ed of nonflammable mat erials specifically for the purpose of removing and retaining carbon and ot her f l ammable particles ov er 0.0232 of an inch in size from the exhaust flow of an internal 
	104-4 
	combustion engine that is operated by hydrocarbon fuels.] 
	"Structure" means any object or improvement constructed, installed, or placed on state lands, including but not limited to buildings, sheds, lean-tos, picnic tables, memorials, hunting blinds, tree stands, mobile homes, campers, trailers; provided that tents, campers, vehicles, and other temporary objects related to authorized activities shall not be considered structures for the purposes of this definition; provided further that the objects are in compliance with rules and regulations governing those activ
	"Tree harvesting" means the removal of live trees from a forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am 12/9/02; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §18 32) 
	-

	[§13 104 3 Penalty . ] §13-104-3 Penalty. ..@.l Any person violating any of the provisions of [these rules] this chapter shall be [guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be penalized] subject to penalty as provided by law . All revenues generated from fines or penalties imposed pursuant to this section shall be deposited into the forest stewardship fund . Any equipment, article, instrument, aircraft, vehicle, business record, or natural resource used or taken in violation of the provisions of this chapter may be
	(b) Restrictions and prohibitions imposed by this. chapter shall not apply to state empl oyees or their agents acting in the scope of their employment while within the forest reserve. Any penalty imposed may take into account emergency situations, such as fire or other disasters or where necessary to protect life or 
	property. 
	property. 
	property. 
	[Eff 9/28/81; 
	am 
	and comp 
	10/15/93; 
	am 
	and comp 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS §183-2) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS §§183-4, 
	183-5, 

	183-16, 
	183-16, 
	195D-8, 
	199-7) 


	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	PUBLIC USE 
	(§13 104 4 Preserv9tion of public property and resources. ] §13-104-4 Preservation of public property and resources. The following activities are prohibited within a forest reserve : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To remove, injure, or kill any form of plant or animal life, either in whole or in part, except as authorized by the [Board] board or authorized representative or as provided by the rules of the [Board;] board; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To r emove, damage, or disturb any natural feature or resource (e.g .L natural stream beds) except as authorized by the board or its authorized representative; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To remove, damage, or disturb any historic or prehistoric remains; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To remove, damage, or disturb any notice, marker, or structure; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To enter, occupy, or use any building, structure, facility, motorized vehicle, machine, equipment, or tool within [or on] ~ forest reserve except as authorized by the board or its representative; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	To engage in any construction or improvement except as authorized by the board[.]~ 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	To sell, peddle, solicit, or offer for sale any merchandise or service except with written authorization from the board[.]~ 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	To distribute or post handbills, circulars, oi other notices[.]~ 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	To introduce any plant or animal except as approved by the [Board . ] board; and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	To enter or remain within ~ forest [reserves when] reserve while under the influence of alcohol , narcotics, or drugs, to a degree that may [endanger oneself or] endanger or cause annoyance to other persons , or endanger onesel f or property. The use or possession of narcotics, drugsL or alcohol within forest reserves is prohibited . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2, 183-17) 


	[§13 104 5 Litter and sanitation.] §13-104-5 Litter and sanitation . The following acts are prohibited within a forest r e serve: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To drain, dump, or leave any litter, ani mal waste or remains, or any other material which pol lutes or is likely to cause pollution in the forest reserveL including streams and other water sources; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To deposit any body waste in areas without comfort stationsL without digging a hole and coveri ng all 


	104-6 
	signs of the waste; 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	To deposit any body waste within 150 feet of a spring, stream, lake, or reservoir; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To leave or abandon (a vehicle or) any [other] large refu~eL such as refrigerators or stoves, household garbage or t rashL or other forms of waste or debris . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ) (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 


	§ 13-104-5 . 5 Abandoned and unattended p roperty . No person 
	shall abandon or leave personal property unatt ended within a 
	forest reserve for any purpose not otherwise authorized or 
	inconsistent with the purposes of the forest reserve. All such 
	property may be seized, impounded, or otherwise confiscated .by 
	the board or any authorized representative.ill If unattended personal property, including but not limited to motor vehicles, interferes with the safe or orderly management of a forest reserve or is stored on the publicly-managed lands, the personal property may be seized or impounded by the board or its authorized representative. Any article or instrument that is dangerous, noxious, hazardous, or considered as contraband under the laws of the State of Hawaii, which could endanger the health, safety, or welf
	_ill All impounded vehicles shall be towed to a place of storage. Owners of towed vehicles shall contact the division or the division of conservation and resource enforcement branch office for information on towed vehicles . Towing, storage, and other related costs shall be assessed pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	ill All impounded or confiscated property, other than vehicles, shall be moved to a place of storage, and the owner shall be assessed moving , storage, and other rel ated costs . Additionally, the owner of this property shall bear the responsibil ity for the risk of any loss or damage to their property.
	ill Abandoned vehicles may be sold at public auction pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	104-7 
	All other impounded or confi scated property shall be disposed of pursuant to section 171-31 . 5 , Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff and comp J 
	(Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§171-31.5, 183-2, 290-11) 
	[§13 104 6 Report of injury or damage . ] §13-104-6 Report of injury or damage . All incidents resulting in injury or death to persons or damage to property shall be reported by the person or persons involved as soon as possible to the board or its authorized representative. This report does not relieve persons from the responsi bility of making any other accident reports which may be required under federal , state, or county statutes, ordi nances , and rules . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth
	(§13 104 7 Fire use restrictions . ] §13-104-7 Fire use restrictions . The following acts are prohibited within a forest 
	reserve : 
	reserve : 
	reserve : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	To build any fire on the ground or in any structure[T) 

	TR
	not otherwise authorized by this section; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To build any fire without using a portable stove or 

	TR
	other self-contained unit; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To l eave a fire unattended without extinguishing all 

	TR
	traces of heat; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To deposit or discard any potential fire-producing 

	TR
	materialL such as embers, coals, or ashes that are too 

	TR
	hot to touch; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To set on fire or cause to be set on fire any live or 

	TR
	dead vegetation except for department fire control 

	TR
	measures; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	To start a fire in windy conditions in a place or 

	TR
	manner that is likely to cause live or dead vegetation 

	TR
	to be set on fire [; and 

	-t7+ 
	-t7+ 
	To use any motor vehicle, motorized equipment, 

	TR
	internal combustion engines, or electric motors unless 

	TR
	equipped with efficiently operating fire or spark 

	TR
	arresting equipment] . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 

	TR
	10/15/93; am and comp ] (Aut h : HRS 

	TR
	§183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2 , 185-7) 


	104-8 
	§13-104-7 . 5 Closing of areas . (a) The board, or its 
	chairperson, may close or restrict the public use of all or any 
	portion of a forest reserve in the event of an emergency or when 
	deemed necessary for: 
	ill The protect ion of t he biological , geological, or 
	cultural resources of the area; 
	ill Health, safety, or welfare reasons; 
	ill The protection of property; or 
	ill Management activities, by the posting of appropriate signs indicat ing the duration, 
	extent, and scope of cl osure . 
	(b) The chairperson is authorized to effect a given closure or restriction under subsection (a) for a period of not more than ninety days . The board is authorized to effect a closure or restriction for any period as deemed necessary to accommodate the condition or conditions indicated under subsection (a). [Eff and comp (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1 . 5, 183-2, 185-3) 
	[§13 104 8 Hunting and fishing.] §13-104-8 Hunting and fishing. The hunting, fishing, trapping, or disturbing of any fish, animal, or bird is prohibited except as permitted by department hunting or fishing rules. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
	(Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 9 Firearms or other weapons . ] §13-104-9 Firearms or other weapons. Fi rearms and other weapons, including those discharging projectiles by air or gas [operated,] opeiation; or bow and arrowL [and other weapons] are prohibited except as permitted by department hunting rules and are subject to all applicable federal, state, and county statutes , ordinances, and rules~ [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp 
	(Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 10 Swimming and bathing.] §13-104-10 Swimming and bathing. Swimming and bathing in all waters wi thin a forest reserve are permitted at an individual's own r i sk except in waters and at times where the activities are prohibi ted by the 
	104-9 
	board or its authorized representative i n the i nterest of public health and safety. The [eHcepted] prohibited waters and times 
	shal l 
	shal l 
	shal l 
	be designated by posted signs. 
	[Eff 9/28/81; 
	am 
	and comp 

	10/15/93; 
	10/15/93; 
	am 
	and 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 
	· 

	(Imp : 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 


	[§13 10 4 11 Vehicles and transportation. ] §13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation . [+a+] The following acts are prohibited while under the jurisdiction of the state within a forest reserve: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To drive, operate, or use any motori zed or non

	TR
	motorized land vehicle, glider, hang glider, aircraft, 

	TR
	unmanned aircraft system, balloon, or parachute 

	TR
	carelessly and without due caution for the rights or 

	TR
	safety of others and in a manner that endangers any 

	TR
	person or property; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To launch or land [airplanes,] aircraft, gliders, 

	TR
	heli copters, balloons, parachutes, or other s i milar 

	TR
	means of transportation without a [special use] permit 

	TR
	for t ha t purpose from the board or its authorized 

	TR
	representati ve; provided[, however, ] that landing is 

	TR
	authorized without a permit in case of any emergency; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To drive , operate, or use any motorized vehicle in any 

	TR
	area or trails not designated for that purpose[+]L 

	TR
	including areas requiring four-wheel drive only; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To park any motorized or non-motorized vehicle or 

	TR
	trailer except in designated areas; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To drive, l eadL or ride a horse, mule, other animal, 

	TR
	or non-motorized land vehicle in areas and on roads or 

	TR
	trails that are posted against such activity; [a-R-Ei-] 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	To drive, operate, or use any motorized [ground] land 

	TR
	vehicle without a functioning street legal muffler, 

	TR
	and without a valid vehicle license plate, 

	TR
	registration and safety sti cker if required by [ea-e-l=t] 

	ill 
	ill 
	the appropriate respective county[.]; and To launch, land, or operate any unmanned aircraft 

	TR
	system wi thout a permit for that purpose from . the 

	TR
	board or its authorized representative. 

	[ (b) 
	[ (b) 
	Any vehicle or property left unattended within a forest 


	reserve f or longer than fort y eight hours without prior written permission from the board or its authorized representative shall be considered abandoned. Any abandoned vehicle or property may be impounded or towed away by the board or its authcirized representative at the eEpense of the owner.] [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth: HRS 
	104-10 
	§183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1. 5, 183-2) 
	[§13 10 4 12 Animals . ] §13-104-12 Animals. (a) Dogs, cats, and other animals are prohibited within a forest reserve unless crated, caged, or on a leash, at all times except for hunting dogs when permitted by chapters [122 and 123, Administrative Rules.] 13-122 and 13-123. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All dogs used for hunting shall be crated, caged, or leashed or otherwise under restrictive control during transportation while in transi t at all times, to and from hunting areas within the fo~est reserve . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Dogs, cats, or other domestic animals, observed by an authorized representative of the board to be running at large or in the act of killing, injuring, or molesting humans, wildlife, or property, may be disposed of in the interest of public safety 


	and the protection of t he forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81 ; 
	and the protection of t he forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81 ; 
	and the protection of t he forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81 ; 
	am 
	and 

	comp 
	comp 
	10/15/93; 
	am 
	and comp 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§18
	3-2) 

	(Imp: 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 


	(§13 104 13 Audio devices and noise . ] §13-104-13 Audio devices and noise. Creating noise or sound within a forest reserve, either vocally or otherwise ([:i:--.---e.--] e . g . , public address systems, radios, television sets, musical instruments) or use of any noise producing devices ([:i:--.---e.--] e . g . , electric generating plants or other equipment driven by motors or engines) i n a manner and at times which creates a nuisance is prohibited. [Eff 9/28/81 ; comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §
	[§13 104 14 EHplosives . ] § 13-104-14 Explosives. The use or possession of fireworks, firecrackers, or explosive devices within a forest reserve is prohibited . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 15 Disorderly conduct . ] §13-104-15 Disorqerly conduct . Disorderly conduct, as defined in section 711-1101, Hawaii Revised [Statues,] Stat utes, is prohibited within a 
	104-11 
	forest reserve. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and 
	comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2, 
	711-1101)" 
	[§13 104 16 Residence on forest reserve lands . Residing within a forest reserve is prohibited e1wept with written permission from the board. ] §13-104-16 Camping . No person shall camp, erect any tent, tarpaulin, or other structure, or use recreational trailers or other camper units wi thin any forest reserve, except with the prior written authorization of the board or its authorized representative and as permitted by the rules of the department . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183
	[§13 104 17 Compliance with laws. ] §13-104-17 Compliance with laws. All persons entering the boundaries of a forest reserve shall comply with all federal, state, and county laws , ordinances, and rules . [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	PERMITS 
	[§13 104 18 General provi s i ons for permits.] §13-104-18 General provisions for pe rmits . (a) The board or its authorized representative may issue the following types of permits: 
	(1) Camping; 
	(2) Special use; (3) Collecting; 
	( 4) [Commercial harvest;] Commercial; and 
	(
	(
	(
	5) Access . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	All permits are subject to the following provisions : 

	(
	(
	1) Permits are subject to denial, cancellation, or t ermination at any time by the board or its authorized representative upon violation of these rules or any conditions of the permit or any federal, state, or county statutes, ordinances, and rules or for danger to the public or because of natural causes . Persons 


	104-12 
	(2) (3) 
	(4) 
	(5) (6) 
	(7) 
	(8) 
	ill_ JlQl 
	who have violated permit conditions or the rules may be ordered by the department to leave the forest reserve. Permittees who have violated permit conditions or the rules may be denied future permits for forest reserves or subject to.the imposition of additional permit restrictions; Permits shall not be transferable[~JL Persons or organizations to whom permits are issued shall be held responsible for all conditions [stipulated) on the permit[~]L All persons eighteen years of age or older shall be eligible t
	when permits are granted for the exclusive use of areas or facilities, or when charges are necessary t o defray the cost of special facilities, services, or supplies provided by the State, or as otherwise determined by the board or its authorized representative when necessary to carry out the provisions of chapter 183, Hawaii Revised Statutes. [Charges] Fees and charges contained in this chapter may be waived or reduced by the board or its authorized representative if the waiver or reduction is in the publi
	104-13 
	comply with all the terms and conditions of the permit, as well as applicable laws and regulations; and consent to present the permit to a duly authorized representative of the department upon request; and 
	Qll Persons applying for a permit shall provide, if requested, identification for all persons included on a permit, satisfactory to the board or i ts authorized representative . The board or its authorized representative may require the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all persons included on a permit. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-1. 5, 183-2) 
	[§13 104 19 Camping permits.] §13-104-19 Camping permits. 
	(a) All persons, groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp within a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit authorizing the use of the specific area and facilities for camping purposes[~] for the stated date or dates. 
	[(b) Camping permits shall be obtained from the district offices of the division during regular working hours of the department. 
	(c) Persons applying for a permit shall provide, if requested, identification for all persons included on a permit, satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . 
	-fa-+-] fil Each camping permit will reserve the use of a designated area for the stated date or dates of use. Camping is permitted only in designated areas or sites . 
	[+e-)-] J..sj_ No person, group, organization, or association shall remain at any one specific camping site for longer than seven days; provided that the board or its authorized representative may extend the length of stay for good cause[T provided further that the length of stay (including the extension as well as the permitted stay) shall not eicceed fourteen days]. 
	(-tf-+-] ill After [the eHpiration] issuance of a camping permit, a period of at least thirty days shall pass before another camping permit for the same designated area may be· issued to [the same person for the same designated area . ] any person listed on any previousl y valid or current camping permi t. 
	[This restriction shall apply to all persons named on the expired permit . ] The board or its authorized representative may waive a portion of the thirty=day period for good cause. 
	(+g+] M [Permits] Camping permits may be denied, canceled, or termi nated for the following reasons: 
	104-14 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	When the size of the group will exceed or exceeds the capacity of the existing site or facilities; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	When there are inadequate facilities to meet the immediate needs of the camper or campers; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	When repairs or improvements are being made at the campsite; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	When a state of emergency is declared or for other reasons involving the health, safety, and welfare of 


	the applicants or permittees; [by the board or its 
	authorized representative) upon the declaration of the board or its authorized representative . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ) (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 20 Special use permits.) §13-104-20 Special us e permits . (a) Special [uses are permitted within a forest reserve only by a permit) use permits are only issued by t he board or its authorized representative . Special uses are [aH types of uses other than) those provided for [herein) in thi s section and which are considered compatible with the functions and purposes of each individual area, facility, or unit within a forest reserve . Special uses incl ude but are not limited to communi ty activiti
	(b) Applications for special use permits shall be received by the board or its authori zed representative at least fifteen working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in effect, [unless otherwise received and accepted by the board or its authorized representative . ] however , the deadline may be waived by the board or its authorized representative upon a showing of good cause. 
	{c) A request for a special use permit shall be considered on its own meritsL including its potential effect on [-t:-fte premises, facil ities,) forest reserve resources and the public' s use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
	(Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 21 Collecting permits.] §13-104-21 Collecting permits. (a) Persons wishi ng to collect forest [items) products [ (e.g. ti leaves, bamboo)] for personal use and at no 
	104-15 
	charge shall obtain a collecting permit authorizing the collection in a specific area . 
	[(b) Collecting permits shall be obtained from the district offices of the division during regular working hours of the department . 
	(c) Persons applying for a permit shall provide, their names and addresses and shall produce if requested, identification of all persons named on a permit, satisfactory to -t-he-board or its authorized representative. 
	-f--El+l (b) Each application for a collecting permit shall be considered on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve. 
	l£)_ Collecting permits shall specify: 
	( 
	( 
	( 
	1) The date or dates of collection; 

	( 
	( 
	2) The quantities and [items] products to be collected; 

	( 
	( 
	3) The areas of collection; and 


	( 4) Any other terms and conditions deemed necessary by the board or its authorized representative. [+e+l fil Permits shall not be issued f or collecting [items] products for sale . 
	[-f-#] M No permits shall be issued for t he collection of endangered or threatened wildlife or plants except as provided by chapter [124, Administrative Rules.] 13-124. 
	(f) No more than one permit within a seven-day period may be issued to the same person or persons, group, organization, or association listed on the permit for collecting any of t he same forest products. [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 22 Commercial harvest permits.] §13-104-22 Cornme.rcial permits . (a) Commercial use permit s. The board or its authorized representative may issue commercial use permits.
	ill Applications for commercial use permits shall be received by the board or its authorized representative at least thirty working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in effect; however, the deadline may be waived by the board or its authorized representative upon a showing of good cause. 
	ill A request for a commercial use permit shall be considered on its own merits, including its pot ential effect on forest reserve resources and the publ ic's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve. 
	ill The value of the commercial act ivity shall be decide d 
	104-16 
	by the board or its authorized representative and 
	shall not exceed $10,000. 
	ill The time of entry for the commerci al activity shal l not exceed thirty days, except that the board or its authorized representati ve may extend this time for good cause. [+a+] (b) Commercial harvest permits. The board or its 
	aut horized representative may i ssue permits for the purpose of 
	purchasing[T) and harvesting [, and removing] forest products 
	from a forest reserve [ (e . g ., timber, seedlings, greenery, tree 
	fern, cinder, and lava rock) ] . [(b) Permits shall be obtained from the district offices of the division during r egular working hours of the department . 
	+e+-J ill Each application for a commercial harvest permit shall be considered on its own meritsL including its potential effect on [the premises] forest reserve resources and the public's use and e n joyment of the forest reserve[.]; provided further that t ree harvesting shall be done in accordance with a management plan as required by section 183-16.5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [ (d) Permits will not be issued for harvesting material for 
	direct resale . +e+] ill The value of the raw material to be harvested shall not exceed $10, 000 . The quantity to be harvested shall be decided by the board or its authorized representative . 
	[#t] ill The time of entry for harvesting shall not exceed 
	[HJ fourteen days for permits with designated raw 
	material value not in e xcess of $1,000, or [~ ] thirty 
	days for permits with designated raw material the 
	value of which exceeds $1,000 but does not exceed 
	$10,000, except t hat the board or its authorized 
	representat ive may ext~nd this time for good cause . 
	[+tt-J ill No more than one permit within a thirty day period or six permits within a calendar year may be issued to the same person, group, organization, or association for harvesting the same product . 
	[-fh+] ill Each permit shall specify: [-f-±+-l (A) The products to be harvested; [-f-2+] ill The amount to be harvested; (-f-3+-] fil The dollar value of the products; [+4+] J...Ql The designated area to be harvested; (-f-§.+-] ill The date or dates the harvesting may take place; 
	and 
	(-f-6+-] (F) Any other terms or conditions deemed necessary by 
	104-17 
	the board or its authorized representative. 
	(c) Commercial salvage permits . The board or its authorized representative may issue commercial sal vage permits for .the purpose of purchasing and removing dead or hazardous trees . 
	ill A request for a commercial salvage permit shall be considered on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . 
	ill The value of the raw material to be salvaged shall not exceed $10,000. The quantity to be salvaged shall be decided by the board or its authorized representative . 
	ill The time of entry for salvaging shall not exceed fourteen days for permits with designated raw material value not in excess of $1 , 000, or thirty days for permits with designated raw material the value of which exceeds $1,000 but does not exceed $10,000, except that the board or its authorized representative may extend this time for good cause. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; am 10/4/05; am and comp 
	(Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 23 ~ccess permits.] §13-104-23 Access permits. 
	[+a+] Permits for access to or entry into forest reserves may be required by the board or its authorized representative for the following [purpose:] purposes: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To comply with the requirements of private landowners or lessees who permit access to forest reserves through their land; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To control the number of people using a forest reserve or an area within a forest reserve in order to minimize [t-he] any impact upon environmentally sensitive [area;] areas; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To control the types of uses of a forest reserve or an area within a forest reserve in order to minimize the dangers of incompatible uses in the same area (e . g.~ horseback riding and motorcycle riding); [a-ft€!.] 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	To control [periods of use] uses of a forest reserve , 

	[especially during periods when fire danger levels are high. ] or any portion thereof, which may be under closure or otherwise restricted; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	[To collect plants or animals for scientific purposes.] For scientific research activities t hat are otherwise prohibited by this chapter. 


	104-18 
	[(b) Access permits shall be obtained from the district offices of the division during regular working hours of the department. 
	(c) Persons applying for an access permit shall provide their names and addresses and shall produce identification satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . The board or its authorized representative may require the names, addresses , and telephone numbers of all persons included on a permit.] [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	[§13 104 24 Commercial activities.] §13-104-24 Commercial activities. No person shall engage in commercial activities of any kind in a forest r eserve without a written permit from the board or its authorized representative. [Eff 12/9/02; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	FEES AND CHARGES 
	FEES AND CHARGES 

	§13-104-25 General statement . (a) This subchapter establishes user fees and charges for services, facilities, and activities for forestry and recreational purposes , where appli cable under the jurisdict ion of the division . 
	(b) The fees and charges are : ill Collected to offset the expenses of operating, maintaining, and managing the faci lities and services; 
	ill Fixed with due regard to the primary purposes of providing public outdoor r ecreational facilities and promoting an appreciation and connection with Hawaii ' s forests; and 
	ill Set by categories . 
	(c) The acceptance o f payment or billings shall not waive the nature of trespass or rati fy or permit . illegal camping. [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2 ) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	§13-104-26 Payment. (a) Method of payment of fees and charges shall be online by cr edit card or by business check, 
	104-19 
	cashier' s check, money order, or cash at division branch offices or the administration office . 
	(b) All fees shall be paid in advance of issuance of a permit, except as specified by chapter 13-104 . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	§ 13-104-27 Camping and cabin rental fees. The camping and cabin rental fees shall be set according to the amounts in Schedule A -Camping and Cabin Rental Fees -12/28/16 . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	Schedule A 
	Schedule A 
	Schedule A 

	Camping 
	Camping 
	and 
	Cabin Rental 
	Fees 

	12/28/ 16 
	12/28/ 16 

	Max i mum No . Campsit es 
	Max i mum No . Campsit es 
	Maximum No . Persons p er c ampsite 
	Re sident Fee ($/ night / c amp site) 
	Nonre sident Fee ($/ night/ c ampsite) 

	Category 1 
	Category 1 
	I 
	Up 
	to 
	5 
	I 
	Up 
	to 
	15 
	I 
	$12* 
	I 
	$18** 


	Unimproved campsite or improved campsite with minimal amenities 
	(i . e . , trailside camping or a campsite with picnic table and shelter and clivus toilet) 
	I $30/night per I $50/night per
	Category 2 1 Cabin Up to 6
	cabin*** cabin *** 
	I I 

	Improved campsite or small cabin that houses no more than 6 persons 
	$60/night per I $90/night per
	I 

	Category 3 1 Cabin Up to 20
	I I cabin*** cabin*** Improved campsite or large cabin that houses 7 or more persons 
	* A resident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $12 . Additional persons will cost $2 per person. A nonresident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $18. Additional persons will cost $3 per person . ***Fee reflects total cost for cabin rental r egardless of number of persons staying overnight. 
	** 

	§13-104-28 Commercial use pe rmit f ees . Commercial use permit fees are listed in Schedule B -Commercial Use Permit Fees -12/28/16 and shal l apply depending on the applicable commercial activity or activities; provided that the requested recreational facil ity is approved for commercial use by the forestry and wildlife manager . [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	104-20 
	Schedule B 
	Schedule B 
	Schedule B 

	Commercial Use 
	Commercial Use 
	Permit Fees 

	12/28/16 
	12/28/16 

	Base 
	Base 
	commercial 
	use 
	permit processing 
	fee 
	$10 

	Price per pedestrian 
	Price per pedestrian 
	$5 

	Price per 
	Price per 
	non-motorized bicycl e 
	or 
	horseback rider 
	$7 

	Price per motorized vehicle 
	Price per motorized vehicle 
	up 
	to 
	5 people 
	$25 

	Price per motorized vehicle 
	Price per motorized vehicle 
	up 
	to 
	8 
	people 
	$50 

	Price per motorized vehicle 
	Price per motorized vehicle 
	up 
	to 
	12 people 
	$75 

	Price per motorized vehicl e 
	Price per motorized vehicl e 
	up 
	to 
	15+ people 
	$100 

	Price per operator and/or passenger of aerial craft launching from and/or landing in a forest reserve 
	Price per operator and/or passenger of aerial craft launching from and/or landing in a forest reserve 
	$5 

	Price per 
	Price per 
	c ampsite, 
	facility, 
	or 
	cabin per day 
	$100 

	Price per commercial 
	Price per commercial 
	film permit 
	$100 

	Price per item/activity (miscel laneous) 
	Price per item/activity (miscel laneous) 
	$20 

	§ 13-104-29 Kiln fees. Kiln fees are l isted in Schedule C -Kiln Fees -12/28/16 and shall be paid no later than fifteen days after kiln services are rendered. [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	§ 13-104-29 Kiln fees. Kiln fees are l isted in Schedule C -Kiln Fees -12/28/16 and shall be paid no later than fifteen days after kiln services are rendered. [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 


	Schedule C 
	Kiln Fees 
	12/28/16 Unit 
	Unit Cost· 
	1 -900 Board Feet 
	$0.70 each 901 -1000 Board Feet 
	$0.60 each 1001 -1500 Board Feet 
	$0.50 each 1501 and up Board Feet 
	$0.40 each 
	§ 13-104-30 Permit processing fees. The fee for the processing of an access permit for scientific research purposes 
	shall be $50 . 
	shall be $50 . 
	shall be $50 . 
	The 
	fee 
	for processing any other permit 
	shall be 

	$10 . 
	$10 . 
	[Eff and comp 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 
	(Imp: 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§183-2) 


	_§_1_3_-_1_0_4_-_3_1__P_a_r_k_i_n_g~_a_n_d_e_n_t_r_a_n_c_e_f_e_e_s_. The fee for parking a vehicle may be assessed at $5 per vehicle, per day. [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §183-2) 
	104-21 
	§13-104-32 Fee for copie s of rules. The fee per copy of these rules shall be 10 cents per page. No fee shal l be charged for copies furnished to federal, state, or local governmental agencies. The fee may be waived i n other instances at the discretion of the admi nistrator or the administrator's authorized representative when a waiver is in the public interest. [Eff and comp (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§91-2 . 5, 183-2) 
	§13-104-33 Negotiable instruments; service charge . The service charge for any di shonored check, draft, certificate of deposit, or other negotiable instrument is $10. " [Eff and comp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed and stricken. New material is underscored. 
	3 . Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are not underscored . 
	4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 13-104 , Hawaii Administrati ve Rul es, shall take effect ten days after filing with t he Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 
	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format , pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on 
	, and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	Suzanne D. Case Chairperson, Board of Land and Natural Resources 
	104-22 
	APPROVED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
	/s/ Colin J. Lau 
	DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL . 
	1 04 -23 
	Existing rule 
	PURPOSE ofthe RULES 
	§13-104-1 Purpose and applicability. (a) The purpose of these rules is to regulate activity within forest reserves establishe~ pursuant to sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes . (b) These rules shall apply to all persons entering the boundaries of a forest reserve . Everyone usi ng the forest reserves should conduct themsel ves in a safe and courteous manner . Users of the forest reserves should be aware that there are certains inherent risks involved due to other users and the environment an
	NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 
	NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 
	§13-104-2 Definitions. As used in these rules, unless context requires otherwise : "Administrator" means the administrator of the division of forestry and wildlife. 
	[No comparable existing rule provision~] 
	"Authorized representative" m~ar;1s· the admini strator, foresters, cori,::;ervation enforcement officers, and other persons authorized by the board of land and natural resources to act for the board . 
	"Board" means t he board of land and natural 
	resources. 
	"Camping" means being in possession of a backpack, tents, blankets, tarpaulins, or other obvious camping paraphernalia, any time after one hour after sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve . 
	1· 
	I 
	Rule Change 
	PURPOSE of the RULES 
	[§13 1oq 1 Purpose and applicability .] §13-104-1 Purpose and applicability. (a) The purpose of [these rules] this chapter is to regulate activity within forest reserves established pursuant to sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
	(b) These rules shall apply to all persons entering t he boundaries and jurisdiction of a forest reserve . All persons shall observe and abide by officially posted signs within forest reserves. Everyone using the forest reserves should conduct themselves in a safe and courteous manner . Users of the forest reserves should be aware that t here are [certains] certain inherent risks involved due to other users and the e nvironmeht and should use caution at all times. 

	NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 
	NEW and UPDATED DEFINITIONS 
	I 
	[§13 104 2 Definitions . ] §13-104-2 Definitions. As u$ed in [these rules,] this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise : 
	"Abandoned and unattended property" means any and all property, including personal property, items, materials, equipment, fixtures, motor vehicles, or vessels that have be~n left unattended on land owned or controlled by the State forr"a continuous period of more than forty-eight hours without ,the! 
	written permission of the board 
	written permission of the board 
	written permission of the board 
	or 
	its authorized representalt i ve . I 

	TR
	i 

	No Change 
	No Change 


	No Change 
	"Camping" or "to camp" means [being in .possession of a: wekpack, tents, blankets, tarpaulins, or other obvious cam_0ing paraphernalia,] a person's physical presence any time [afte~] one hour after sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve. Indi~ia of camping includes the use of a forest reserv~ one hour after! ! including, but not limited to : sleeping activities or making preparations to s l eep (including the laying down of beddin~ for the purpose of sleeping); storing personal belongings; maki ~g any fi
	sundown until sunrise for living accommodation purposes, 

	"Commercial activity" means t he use of or activity in the forest reserve for which compensation is received by any person for·goods or services or both rendered to customers or participants in that use or activity. Commercial activi ties include activities ~hose base of operations are outside the boundaries o~ the forest reserve, or provide transportation to or from the forest reserve. 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	"Compensation" includes but is not limited to, monetary fees, barter, or services in-kind. 
	"Division" means the division of forestry and 
	wildlife. 
	"Department" means the department of land and 
	natural resources . 
	"Forest reserve" means those lands designated as forest reserves by the department pursuant to 
	sections 183-11 and 183-15, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and other lands for plant sanctuaries, facilities, nurseries and baseyards under the custody and control of the division. 
	[No comparable existing rul e provision . ] · 
	"Motorized vehicle" means a vehicl e of any shape or form that depends on a motor (gas, electric, or ot0er fuels ) for propul sion. 
	"Non-motorized vehicl e " means a vehicle of any shape or form that depends on human, animal, wind, spring and other nonmotorized means for propulsion . 
	"Residing" means being in the same forest reserve for more than seven (7) continuous days . 
	"Spark arrester" means a device constructed of 
	vithout proper authorization . 
	"Commercial activity" means the use of or activity in the :orest reserve for which compensation i s received by any person :or goods or services or both rendered to customers or )articipants in that use or activity. Soliciting, demanding, or :equesting gifts, money, or services shall b e considered :ommercial activity. Commercial activities i nclude activi ties [whose] with base of operations [a-re] outside the boundaries of ~he forest reserve, display of merchandise, or activities which )rovide transportat
	"Commercial use" is any type of commercial activity which is :onsi dered compatible with the functions and purposes of each _ndividual area, facility, or unit within a forest reserve . 
	"Compensation" includes but is not limited to, monetary fees , ionations, barter, or services in-kind. 
	No Change 
	No Change 
	No Change 
	"Forest product" means any natural material from a forest ~eserve, including but not limited to timber, seedlings, seeds, :ruits, greenery, tree fern, cinder, lava rock, ti leaves, and Jarnboo . 
	No Change 
	No Change 
	["Residing" means being in the same forest reserve for more :han seven (7) continuous days . ] 
	["Spark arrester" means a device constr ucted of nonfl ammable wterial s specifically for the-purpose of removing and ret aining 
	nonfl ammable materials specifically for the 
	purpose of removing and retaining carbon and other flammable particles over 0 . 0232 of an inch in size from the exhaust flow of an internal combustion engine that is operated by hydrocarbon fuels . 
	[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 

	PENALTIES 
	PENALTIES 
	§13-104-3 Penalty . Any person violating any of the provisions of these rules shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be penalized as provided by law. 
	• Current rules limits the Department's enforcement ability and needs to be updated to be more consistent with enforcement capacity for Department land management areas. 
	:arbon and other flammable particles over 0 . 0232 of an inch in .ize from the exhaust flow of an internal combustion engine that .s operated by hydrocarbon fuel s. ] 
	"Structure" means any object or improvement constructed, .nstalled, or placed on state lands, including but not limited to ,uildings, sheds, lean-tos, picnic tables, memorials, hunting ,linds, tree stands, mobile homes, campers, trailers; provided 
	hat tents, campers, vehicles , and other temporary objects related 
	o authorized activities shall not be considered structures for .he purposes of this definition; provided further that the objects .re in compliance with rules and regulations governing those .ctivities on state lands. 
	"Tree harvesting" means the removal of live trees from a orest reserve . 

	·ENALTIES 
	·ENALTIES 
	[§13 104 3 Penalty.] §1 3-104-3 Penalty . ...@l_ Any pe-rson ·iolating any of the provisions of [these rules] this chapter hall be [guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be penalized] subject 
	o penalty as provided by law_. All revenues generated from fines ,r penalties imposed pursuant to this section shall be deposited nto the forest stewardship fund . Any equipment, article, nstrument, aircraft, vehicle, business record, or natural ·csourcc used or taken in violation of the provisions of this hapter may be seized and subject to forfeiture as provided by ection 199-7, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and chapter 712A, Hawaii .cviscd Statutes . 
	b) Restrictions and prohibitions imposed by this chapter shall .ot apply to state employees or their agents acting in the scope ,f their employment while within the forest reserve. Any penalty .mposcd may take into account emergency situations, such as fire ,r other disasters or where necessary to protect life or property. 
	§13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation.... 
	(b) Any vehicle or property left unattended within a forest reserve for longer than forty-eight hours without prior written permission from the board ·or its authorized representative shall be considered abandoned . Any abandoned vehicle or property may be impounded or towed away by the board or its authorized representative at the expense of the owner . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93) (Auth: HRS §183-2) 
	(Imp : HRS §183-2) 
	• This rule is proposed to be repealed and replaced by the new rule 
	§13-104-7 Fire use restrictions . The following acts are prohibited within a forest reserve : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To build any fire on the ground or in any structure; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To build any fire without using a portable stove or other self-contained unit; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To leave a fire unattended without 


	§13-104-5.5 Abandoned and unattended property. No person shall 
	,andon or leave personal property unattended within a forest reserve 
	,r any purpose not otherwise authorized or inconsistent with the 
	trposes of the forest reserve . All such property may be seized, 
	tpounded, or otherwise confiscated by the board or any authorized 
	:presentative. If unattended personal property, including but not limited to motor vehicles, i nterferes with the safe or orderly management of a forest reserve or is stored on the publiclymanaged lands, the personal property may be seized or impounded by the board or its authorized representative . Any article or instrument that is dangerous, noxious, hazardous, or considered as contraband under t he laws of the State of Hawaii, which could endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the public, or public 
	ill 

	ill All impounded vehicles shall be towed to a place of storage. Owners of towed vehicles shall contact the division or the division of conservation and resource enforcement branch office f or information on towed vehicles . Towing, storage, and other related costs shall be assessed pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
	ill All impounded or confiscated property, other than vehicles, shall be moved to a place of storage, and t he owner shall be assessed moving, storage, and other related costs . Additionally, the owner of this property shall bear the responsibility for the risk of any l oss or damage to their property. 
	ill Abandoned vehicles may be sold at public auction pursuant to section 290-11, Hawaii Revised Statutes. All other impounded 
	or confiscated pr oper ty shall be disposed of pursuant section 171-31 . 5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS 31. 5, 183-2, 290-11) • This new rule provides more detail and procedure. 
	or confiscated pr oper ty shall be disposed of pursuant section 171-31 . 5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS 31. 5, 183-2, 290-11) • This new rule provides more detail and procedure. 
	or confiscated pr oper ty shall be disposed of pursuant section 171-31 . 5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS 31. 5, 183-2, 290-11) • This new rule provides more detail and procedure. 
	to §§171
	-


	(1) 
	(1) 
	§13-104-2 
	Definitions. 

	"Abandoned and roperty, including 
	"Abandoned and roperty, including 
	unattended property" means any and all personal propert y , items, materials, 


	1uipment, fixtures , motor vehicles, or vessels that have been =ft unattended on land owned or controlled by the State for a )ntinuous period of more than forty-eight hours without the ri tten permission of the board or its authorized representative. 
	• A new definition ofAbandoned and unattended property has been added in the propose rule change. 
	§13-104-7 Fire use restrictions. The following acts are rohibited within a forest reserve : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To build any fire 
	on 
	the ground 
	or in any 
	structure[T] 
	not 

	TR
	otherwise 
	authorized by this section; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To build any fire without using 
	a 
	portable 
	stove 
	or other 

	TR
	self-contained unit; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To 
	leave 
	a 
	f i re 
	unattended without extinguishing all traces 


	extinguishing all traces of heat; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	To deposit or discard any potential fireproducing material such as embers, coals, or ashes that are too hot to touch; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To set on fire or cause to be set on fire any live or dead vegetation except for department fire control measures; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	To start a fire in windy conditions in a place or manner that is likely to cause live or dead vegetation to be set on fire ; and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	To use any motor vehicle, motorized equipment, internal combustion engines, or electri~ motors unless equipped with efficiently operating fire or spark arresting equipment . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93] (Auth: "HRS §183-2) (Imp: HRS §§183-2, 185-1) 


	• Existing rule prohibits the use motors in the forest reserve unless it is equipped with working fire or spark arresting equipment. This is meant to provide a measure reducing ignition of wildfire,from motorized equipment. 
	§13-104-23 Access permits. (a} Permits for access to or entry into forest reserves may be required by the board or its authorized representative for the following purpose: 
	(2) 
	(4) To control periods of use of a forest reserve, especially during periods when fire danger levels are high . 
	[Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93] (Auth : HRS §183 -2 ) (Imp : HRS § 183-2 ) 
	• Highlighted in yellow is the existing provision (imbedded within access permits) that provided the mechanism for the Division to close a forest reserve when it was needed due to natural resources concerns or for health and public safety. 
	of heat; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	To deposit or discard any potential fire-producing materialL such as embers, coals, or ashes that are too hot to touch; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To set on fire or cause to be set on fire any live or dead vegetation except for department fire control measures; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	To start a fire in windy conditions in a place or manner that is likely to cause live or dead vegetation to be set on fire[; and 


	-f7+ To use any motor vehicle, motorized equipment, internal combustion engines, or electric motors unless equipped with efficiently operating fire or spark arresting equipment] . [Eff 9/28/81; am and comp 10/15/93; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§1832, 185-7) 
	-

	• 
	• 
	• 
	The proposed rule change removes the requirement that motors must be equipped with working fire or sparkarresting equipment. 

	• 
	• 
	The definition ofspark arrester has been repealed from HAR§13-104-2 in the proposed rule change 


	§13-104-7.5 Closing of areas . (a) The board, or its chairperson, .ay close or restrict the public use of all or any portion of a forest eserve in the event of an emergency or when deemed necessary for : 
	ill The protection of the biological, geological, or cultural 
	resources of the area; 
	ill Health, safety, or welfare reasons; 
	_ill The protection of property; or 
	ill Management activities, y the posting of appropriate signs indicating the duration, extent, and cope of closure . 
	(b) The chairperson is authorized to effect a given closure or estriction under subsection (a) for a period of not more than ninety ays . The board is authorized to effect a closure or restriction for ny period as deemed necessary to accommodate the condition or onditions indicated under subsection (a) . [Eff and omp ] (Auth: HRS §183-2) (Imp : HRS §§183-1.5, 183-2, 85-3) 
	• This new proposed rule (above) provides clear language and procedure for closing a forest reserve. 
	§ 13-104-23 Acce ss permits . -fa+ . . . 
	(4) To control [periods of use] uses of a forest reserve, 
	[especially during periods when fire danger levels are high.] or any portion thereof, which may be under closure or otherwise restricted; and 
	• Highlighted in yellow are the corresponding changes being made to current access pennit rules that served as the ori inal forest reserve closure mechanism. 
	§13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation. (a) The following acts are prohibited within a forest reserve : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	To drive, operate, or use any motorized or non-motorized land vehicle, glider, hang glider, aircraft, balloon, or paracnute carelessly and without due caution for the rights or safety of others and in a manner that endangers any person or property; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	To launch or land airplanes, gliders, helicopters, balloons, parachutes, or other similar means of transportation without a special use permit from the board or its authorized representative; provided, however, t hat landing is authori zed without a permit in case of any emergency; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To drive, operate, or use any motorized vehicle in any area or trails not designated for that purpose; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To park any motorized or non-motorized vehicle or trailer except i n designated areas ; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To drive, lead or ride a horse, mule, other animal, or non-motorized land vehicle in 


	§13-104-11 Vehicles and transportation. [+a+] The following acts Lre prohibited while under the jurisdiction of the stat e within a forest ·eserve : 
	(1) To drive, operate, or use any mot orized or non-motorized land vehicle, glider, hang glider, aircraft, 
	-

	balloon, or para chute carel essly and without due caution for the rights or saf ety of others and in a manner that endangers any person or property; 
	Figure

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	To launch or land [airplanes,] aircraft, gliders, helicopters, balloons , parachutes , or other similar means of transportation without a [special use'] permit for that purpose from the board or its authorized representative; provided[, however, ] that landing is authorized without a permit in case of any emergency; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	To drive, operate, or use any motorized vehicle in any area or trails not designated for that purpose[T], including areas requiring four-wheel dri ve only; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	To park any motorized or non-motorized vehicle or trailer except in designated areas; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	To drive, lead~ or ride a horse , mule, other animal, or nonmotorized land vehicle in areas and on roads or trails that are posted against such activity; [-a-ft€l:] 


	(6 ) To drive , operate, or use any motorized [ground] land vehicle 
	areas and on roads or trails that are posted against such activity; and 
	(6) To drive, operate, or use any motorized ground vehicle without a functioning street legal muffler, and without a valid vehicle license plate, registration and safety sticker if required by each respective county . 
	• The existing rules on vehicles and transportation are shown abq.ve. 
	§13-104-16 Residence on forest reserve lands. Residing within a forest reserve is prohibited except with written permission from the board. 
	• The proposed rule change repeals and replaces this rule with a prohibition on camping. 
	§13-104-19 Camping permits. (a) All persons, groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp within a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit authorizing the use of t he specific area and faciliti es for camping purposes . 
	• The current rules that contain provisions that require permits for camping in the forest reserve. 
	§13-104-2 Definitions. . .. "Camping" means being in possession of a backpack, tents, blankets, tarpaulins, or other obvious camping paraphernalia, any time after one hour after 
	sundown until sunrise in a forest reserve . 
	• Current definition ofcamping in the forest reserve rules 
	"Residing" means being in the same forest reserve 
	for more than seven (7) continuous days. 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Current definition ofresiding in the forest reserve rules 

	• 
	• 
	The "residing" definition has been repealed in the proposed rule change 


	without a functioning street legal muffler, and without a valid vehicle license plate, registration and safety sticker if required by [ea-eh) the appropriate respective county[~)~ and 
	Figure
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The proposed rule changes to vehicles and transportation were done to include regulation for unmanned aircraft systems such as drones (highlighted above). 

	• 
	• 
	All other changes are non-substantial and were done for clarification purposes. 


	1§13 101 16 Residence on forest reserve lands . Residing wi thin a ~orest reserve is prohibited except with written permission from the >oard.)§13-104-16 Camping. No person shall camp, erect any tent, :arpaulin, or other structure, or use recreational trailers or other :amper units within any forest reserve, except with the prior written tuthorization of the board or its authorized representative and as >ermitted by the rules of the department. [Eff 9/28/81; comp 10/15/93; till and comp ] (Auth : HRS §183-2
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The tenn residing has been replaced by Camping. 

	• 
	• 
	This proposed rule provid~s clear language and procedure for the prohibition on camping in the forest reserve without a permit. 


	:13-104-2 De finitions . . .. "Camping" or "to camp" means [being in >Os session of a backpack, tents, blankets , tarpaulins, or other >bvious camping paraphernalia,] a person's physical presence any .ime [after] one hour after sundown until sunrise in a forest :eserve . Indicia of camping includes the use of a forest reserve >ne hour after sundown until sunrise for living accommodation >Urposes, including, but not limited to : sleeping activities or 1aking preparations to sleep (including the laying down o
	• The definition of "Camping" and has also been revised. 
	§13-104-2 Definitions. . .. Structuremeans any obj ect or _mprovement constructed, installed, or placed on state lands, _ncluding but not limited to buildings, sheds, lean-tos, picnic :ables, memorials, hunting b linds, tree stands, mobile homes, :ampers, trailers; provided that tents, campers, vehicles, and )ther temporary objects related to authori zed activities shall. not le considered structures for the purposes of this definition; >rovided further that the objects are in compliance with rules and :egu
	11 
	11 

	• A new definition of"Structure" has been added in the propose rule change. 
	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	PERMITS 
	§13-104-18 General provisions for permits . (a) The board or its authorized representative may issue the following types of permits: 
	(1) Camping; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Special use; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Collecting; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Commercial harvest; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Access . 


	(b) All permits are subject to the following provisions: 
	(1) Permits are subject to denial, cancellation, or termination at any time by the board or its authorized representative upon violation of these rules or any conditions of the permit or any federal , state, or county statutes, ordinances , and rules or for danger to the public or because of natural causes . 
	( 2) 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Regulation highlighted in yellow is proposed to be repealed 

	TR
	from the following provisions: 

	TR
	HAR §13-104-19(c) 

	TR
	HAR §13-104-2l(c) 

	TR
	HAR §13-104-23(c) 

	• 
	• 
	Regulation highlighted in blue is proposed to be repealed from 

	TR
	the fo llowing provisions: 

	TR
	HAR §13-104-2l(c) 

	TR
	HAR §13-104-23(c) 


	Figure
	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	PERMITS 
	[§13 104 18 General provisions for permits.] §13-104-18 General 
	,rovisions for permits . (a) The board or its authorized 
	·epresentative may issue the following types of permits: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Camping; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Special use; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Collecting; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	[Commercial harvest;] Commercial; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Access . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	All permits are subject to the following provisions: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Permits are subject to denial, cancellati on, or termination at any time by the board or its authorized representative upon violation of these rules or any conditions of the permit or any federal , state, or county statutes, ordinances, and rules or for danger to the public or because of natural causes . Persons who have violated permit conditions or the rules may be ordered by the department to leave the forest reserve . Permittees who have violated permit conditions or the rules may be denied future permi


	(2) 
	( 8) The board may set and approve a forest product price list. Charges may be assessed when permits are granted for forest products. The forest product price list shall reasonably reflect fair market value and be periodi cally updated by the 
	board; 
	( 9) 
	Jl.Ql By signing the permit and entering into the forest reserve, all persons included on the permit agree to comply with all the terms and conditions of the permit, as well as appl i cable laws and regulations; and consent to present the permit to a duly authorized representative of the department upon request; and 
	J.1Jj_ Persons applying for a permit shall provide, if requested, identification for all persons included on a permi t , satisfactory to the board or its authorized representative . 
	Figure
	§13-104-19 Camping permits . (a) All persons, groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp within a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit authorizing the use of the specific area and facilities for camping purposes. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Camping permits shall be obtained from the district offices of the division during regular working hours of the department . 

	(c) 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	No person, group, organization, or association shall remain at any one specific camping site for longer than seven days; provided that the board or its authorized representative may extend the length of stay for good cause; provided further that the length of stay (including the extension as well as the permitted stay) shall not exceed fourteen days . 

	(f) 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Permits may be denied, canceled, or terminated for the following reasons: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	When the size of the group exceeds the capacity of the existing site or facilities; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	When there are inadequate facilities to meet the immediate needs of the camper or campers; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	When repairs or improvements are being made at the campsite; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	When a state of emergency is declared by the board. or its authorized representative 




	(§13 101 19 Camping permits.] §13-104-19 Camping permits. (a) ,11 persons , groups, organizations, or associations wishing to camp ,ithin a forest reserve shall obtain a camping permit authorizing the .se of the specific area and facilities for camping purposes[7] for the 
	tatcd date or dates . [(b) Camping permits shall be obtained from the district offices of :he division during regular working hours of the department . 
	[-fe+] M No person, group, organization, or association shall ·emain at any one speci fic camping site for longer than seven days; irovided that the board or its authorized representative may extend the 
	ength of stay for good cause[; provided further that the length of stay including the e1rtension as well as the permitted stay) shall not e1rcecd 'ourteen days] . 
	[-fg-t] J.tl [Permits] Camping permits may be denied, canceled, or .erminated for the following reasons : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	When the size of the group will exceed or exceeds the capacity of the existing site or facilities ; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	When there are inadequate facilities to meet the i mmediate needs of the camper or campers; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	When repairs or improvements arc being made at the campsite; or 

	(
	(
	4) When a stat e of emergency is declared or for other reason s involving the health, safety, and welfare of the applicants or permittees ; [by the board or its authorized representative]upon the declaration of the board or its authorized representative . 


	§13-104-20 Special Use Permits . (a) ... 
	(b) Applications for special use permits shall be received by the board or its authorized represe~tative at least fifteen working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in effect, unless otherwise received and accepted by the board or its authorized representative. 
	§13-104-21 Collecting permits . (a) Persons wishing to collect forest items (e .g . ti leaves , bamboo) for personal use and at no charge shall obtain a collecting permit authorizing the collection in a specific area 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	§13-104-22 
	§13-104-22 
	§13-104-22 
	Commercial harvest permits. 
	(a) 
	The 

	board or 
	board or 
	its authorized representative may 
	issue 

	permits 
	permits 
	for 
	the purpose of purchasing, 
	harvesting, 
	and 

	removing 
	removing 
	forest products 
	(e . g., 
	timber, 
	seedlings, 

	greenery, 
	greenery, 
	tree 
	fern, 
	cinder, 
	and lava rock) . 


	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	nJ-104-20 Special Use Permits. (a) ... 
	(b) Applications for special use permits shal l be received by the )Oard or its authorized representati ve at least fifteen working days in 1dvance ·of the date the permit is to be in effect, [unless otherwise ~eceived and accepted by the board or its authorized representative . ] 1owever, the deadline may be waived by the board or its authorized ~epresentative upon a showing of good cause. 
	[§13 104 21 Collecting permits.] §13-104-21 Collecting permits . :a) Persons wishing to col lect forest [-i-t-em.&] products [-(e . g . ti .eaves, bamboo)] for personal use and at no charge shall obtain a :oll ecting permit authorizing the collection in a specific area. 
	-te+-J (b) Each application for a collecti ng permit shall be :onsidered on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest ~eserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest ~eserve . 
	(f) No more than one permit within a seven-day period may be issued :o the same person or persons, group, organization, or associati on .isted on the permit for collecting any of the same forest products . 
	§13-104-2 Defiriitions . ... "Forest product" means any natural taterial from a forest reserve, including but not limited to timber, eedlings, seeds, fruits, greenery, tree fern, cinder, lava rock, ti eaves and bamboo . 
	[§13 104 22 Commercial harvest permits.] §13-104-22 Commercial ,ermits. (a) Commercial use permi ts . The board or its authorized epresentative may issue commercial use permits . 
	(1) Applications for commercial use permits shall be received by the board or its authorized representative at least thirty working days in advance of the date the permit is to be in effect; however, the deadline may be waived by the board or its authorized representative upon a showing of good cause . 
	[No comparable existing rule provision.] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision . ] 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	The board or its authorized representative may issue permits for the purpose of purchasing, harvesting, and removing forest products (e.g.', timber, seedlings, greenery, tree fern, cinder, and lava rock) . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Each application for a harvest permit shall be considered on its own merits including its effect on the premises and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Permits will not be issued for harvesting material for direct resale . 


	[No comparable existing rule provision.] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision.] 
	[No comparable existing rule provisi on.] 
	A request for a commercial use permit shall be considered on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . 
	ill 

	The value of the commercial activity shall be decided by the board or its authorized representative and shall not exceed $10,000. 
	ill 

	ill The time of entry for the commerci al activity shall not exceed thirty days, except that the board or its authorized representative may extend this time for good cause . 
	[-fa+-] (b) Commercial harvest permits. The board or its authorized :epresentative may issue permits . for the purpose of purchasing[T] and 1arvesting[, and removing] forest products from a forest reserve [(e.g ., :imber, seedlings, greenery, tree fern, cinder, and lava reek) ] . 
	-{-€-}-] ill Each application for a commercial harvest permit shall be. considered on its own meritsL incl uding its potential effect on [the p remises] forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve [~]; provided further that tree harvesting shall be done in accordance with a management plan as required by section 183-16 . 5, Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	[(d) Permits will not be issued for harvesting material for :lireet resale . 
	(c) Commercial salvage permits. The board or its authorized representative may issue commercial salvage permits for the purpose of purchasing and removing dead or hazardous trees . 
	ill A request for a commercial salvage permit shall be considered on its own merits, including its potential effect on forest reserve resources and the public's use and enjoyment of the forest reserve . 
	The value of the raw material to be salvaged shall not exceed $10,000. The quantity to be salvaged shall be decided by the board or its authorized representative . 
	ill 

	( 2) The time of entry for salvaging shall not exceed fourteen days for permits with designated raw material value not in excess of $1,000, or thirt days for ermits with desi nated 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	! 
	[No comparable existing rul e provision.] [No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision. ] 
	raw material the value of which exceeds $1 , 000 but does not e xceed $10,000, except that the board or its authorized representative may extend this time for good cause . 
	§13-104-2 Definitions. "Tree harvestingu means the removal of Live trees from a forest reserve . 
	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	FEES AND CHARGES 
	§13-104-25 General statement. (a) This subchapter establishes 1urisdiction of the division. 
	1ser fees and charges for services, facilities, and activities fo~ :orestry and recreational purposes, where applicable under the 

	(b)ill 
	(b)ill 
	(b)ill 
	The fees and charges are: Collected to offset the e xpenses 
	of operating, maintaining, 

	TR
	and managing the facil ities and services; 

	ill_ 
	ill_ 
	Fixed with due 
	regard to the primary purposes of providing 

	TR
	public outdoor 
	recreational 
	facilities a~d promoting 
	an 

	TR
	appreciation and 
	connection.with Hawaii's 
	forests; 
	and 

	ill 
	ill 
	Set by categories. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The 
	acceptance 
	of payment 
	or 
	billings shall not waive the 


	1ature of trespass or ratify or permit illegal camping . 
	§13-104-26 Payment. (a) Method of payment of fees and charges ;hall.be online by credit card or by business check, cashier's check, 1oney order, or cash at division branch offices or the administration >ffice . 
	(b) All fees shall be paid in advance of issuance of a permit, !Xcept as specified by chapter 13-104. 
	§13-104-27 Camping and cabin rental fees. The camping and cabin ~ental fees shall be set according to the amounts in Schedule A ~amping and Cabin Rental Fees -12/28/16. 
	-

	Schedul e 
	Schedul e 
	Schedul e 
	A 

	Camping 
	Camping 
	and Cabin Rental Fees 

	12/28/16 
	12/28/16 

	TR
	Maximum No. Campsites 
	Maximum No . Persons per campsite 
	Resident Fee ($/night/ campsite) 
	Nonresident Fee ($/night/ campsite) 

	Category 1 
	Category 1 
	I 
	Up to 5 
	I 
	Up to 15 
	I 
	$12* 
	I 
	$18** 


	Unimproved campsite or improved campsite with minimal amenities 
	(i . e . I trailside camping or a campsite with picnic table and shelter and clivus toilet) 
	I $30/night per I $SO/night per
	Category 2 1 Cabin Up to 6
	cabin *** cabin *** 
	I I 

	Improved campsite or small cabin that houses no more than 6 persons 
	$60/night per I $90/night per
	I 

	Category 3 1 Cabin Up to 20
	cabin*** cabin *** 
	I I 

	Improved campsite or large cabin that houses 7 or more persons 
	, [No comparable existing rule provision. ] , 
	, [No comparable existing rule provision. ] , 
	, [No comparable existing rule provision. ] , 

	[No comparable existing rule provision.] 
	[No comparable existing rule provision.] 

	(No comparable existing rule provision .] [No comparable existing rule provision .] 
	(No comparable existing rule provision .] [No comparable existing rule provision .] 


	* A resident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $12 . Additional persons will cost $2 per person. ** A nonresident camping permit for up to 6 persons is $18 . Additional persons will cost $3 per person. ***Fee refl ects total cost for cabin rental regardless of number of persons staying overnight . 
	§13-104-28 Commercial use permit fees. Commercial use permit :ees are listed in Schedule B -Commercial Use Permit Fees -12/28/16 tnd shall apply depending on the applicable commercial activity or tctivities; provided that the requested recreational facility is tpproved for commercial use by the forestry and wildlife manager . 
	Schedule B Commercial Use Permit Fees 12/28/16 
	$10 $5 
	commercial use permit processing fee 
	Base 

	trian $7
	Price per 
	pedes

	Price per non-motorized bicycle or horseback rider $25
	Price per motorized vehicle up to 5 people Pce per motorized vehicle up to 8 people 
	ri

	$50 $75
	Price per motorized vehicle up to 12 people motorized vehicle up to 15+ people 
	Price per 

	$100 Price per operator and/or passenger of aerial craft launching 
	$5 from and/or landing in a forest reserve 
	$100 $100 
	Price per campsite, faci lity, or cabin per day 
	Price per commercial film permit Price per item/activity (miscellaneous) 
	$20 
	§13-104-29 Kiln fees. Kiln fees are listed in Schedule C -Kiln 'ees -12/28/16 and .shall be paid no later than fifteen days after kiln :ervices are rendered. 
	Schedul e C Kiln Fees 
	12/28/16 Unit 1 -900 Board Feet 901 -1000 Boar d Feet 
	Unit Cost $0.70 each $0.60 each 1001 -1500 Board Feet $0.50 each 1501 and up Board Feet 

	$0.40 each §13-104-30 Permit processing fees. The fee for the processing of tn access permit for scientific research 
	purposes shall be $50. The fee 

	:or p rocessing any other permit shall be $10. 
	:or p rocessing any other permit shall be $10. 

	§13-104-31 Parking and en trance fees . The fee for parking a re hicle may be assessed at $5 per vehicle, per day. 
	[No comparable existing rul e provision.] [No comparable existing rule provision . ] 
	[No comparable existing rul e provision.] [No comparable existing rule provision . ] 
	[No comparable existing rul e provision.] [No comparable existing rule provision . ] 


	§13-104-32 Fee for copies of r ules . The fee per copy of these rules shall be 10 cents per page . No fee shall be charged for copies furnished to federal, state, or local governmental agencies . The fee may be waived in other instances at the di scretion of the administ rator or the administrator's authorized representative when a waiver is in the public interest . 
	§13-104-33 Negotiable instruments; service charge. The service charge for any dishonored check, draft, certificate of deposit, or other negotiable instrument is $10. " 


	IV. New Business 
	IV. New Business 
	B.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 12, Chapter 162, Food Safety Certification Costs Grant Program, 
	promulgated by DoAg 
	promulgated by DoAg 
	Figure
	PRE-PUBLIC HEARING SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
	J,8e:_e,_g 
	J,8e:_e,_g 
	TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201 M-2) 
	Department or Agency: _A_g_r_ic_u_lt_u_re_ ____ _ ___ ___---=-----Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: _C_h_a_p_te_r_4_-_16_2______ ___ _ _ Chapter Name: Food Safety Certification Costs Grant Program Contact Person/Title: Jeri Kahana, Quality Assurance Division Administrator 
	-

	Phone Number: 832-0705 E-mail Address: Date: December 20, 2016 
	Jeri.M.Kahana@hawaii.gov 

	To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. 
	Are the draft rules available on the Lieutenant Governor's Website pursuant to HRS §91-2.6? Yes• No[Z] If Yes, provide webpage address: ______________ ___ 
	Please keep the proposed rules on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting. 
	I. Rule Description: l✓ I New D Repeal D Amendment D Compilation 
	II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? Yes l✓ I No D 
	"Affect small business" is deff ned as "any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business .. . that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a · small business, or is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion of a small business." (HRS §201 M-1) 
	"Small business" is defined as a "for-profit enterprise consisting of fewer than one hundred full-time or part-time employees." (HRS §201 M-1) (If No, you do not need to submit this form .) 
	Ill. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the statute or ordinance? (e.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the agency the discretion to consider _less restrictive alternatives.) (HRS §201M-2(d)) Yeso Nol✓ ! (If Yes, you do not need to submit this form.) 
	IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HRS §201 M-2(a)) Yes D No l✓ I {If Yes, you do not need to submit this form.) 
	Pre-Public Hearing Sniall business Impact Statement Page 2 
	* * * 
	If the proposed rule(s) affect small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 
	1. Description of the small businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or directly benefit from the proposed rules, that are required to comply with the proposed rules, and how they may be adversely affected. 
	The proposed rules is a grant program to provide farmers with assistance pay for costs associated with the compliance with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration's (FDA) Food Safety Modernization Act (FSMA). 
	2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance. 
	There are no fees or fines. The costs for farmers may vary depending on their present infrastructure, training, and other food safety practices. 
	If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. 

	b. 
	b. 
	Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 

	c. 
	c. 
	Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 

	d. 
	d. 
	Criteria used to determine the amount of the fee or fine. 


	None 
	None 
	None 
	None 
	3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected, including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used. 
	The costs to the agency will be personnel costs to administer the grant money. 
	Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement Page 3 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than design standards, exemption, or other mitigating . techniques. 

	This program will benefit small business with monetary assistance to comply with a federal requirement. 

	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 

	None. 

	6. 
	6. 
	6. 
	Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small 

	businesses. None. 

	7. 
	7. 
	How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 


	The agency has conducted outreach training with farmers on food safety practices. 
	a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If no, why not. 
	No recommendations were provided. Criteria is based on the necessary requirements in meeting the federal rule. 
	8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 
	We are not aware of any other similar state programs. 
	Pre-Public Hearing Small business Impact Statement Page 4 
	If yes, please provide information comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rules to the costs and benefits of the comparable federal, state, or county law, including the following: 
	a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 
	Federal law and most other state's programs do not have a limit on cultivated acres. Limiting the acreage is necessary for the department at this time given the pilot program nature of the project, and the lack of personnel available to conduct sampling. Hawaii's program will have one inspector, Colorado, for example, has 13 inspectors to conduct sampling. 
	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information about the purposes and applicability of the law. 

	c. 
	c. 
	A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and administration. 


	See "a." 
	d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with the costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, or county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any additional fees from the proposed rule will be used. 
	The benefit to the state is increased revenue of $250 for each additional 10 acres, and a manageable program given current resources. Additional fees will go to the special fund to defray the administrative costs of the program. The financial benefit of deferring to the no acreage limit of federal and other state's laws, is that more growers may apply, but that is an unknown benefit. 
	e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or county law. 
	Small businesses will have to pay $250 for each additional 10 acres they wish to cultivate. Most prospective small businesses surveyed did not wish to grow more than 10 acres of industrial hemp, so this rule will effect comparatively few growers. 
	* 
	*

	* 
	Small Business Regulatory Review Board/ DBEDT Phone: (808) 586-2594 Ema
	il: sbrrb@dbedt.hawaii.gov 
	Website: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 

	This Statement may be found on the / sbrrb/small-business-impact-statements-preand-post-public-hearing 
	SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov

	·.~ 
	DEPARTMENT OF AGRI CULTURE 
	Adoption of Chapter 4-162 Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	<Date of Adoption> 
	1 . Chapter 4-162 , Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "FOOD SAFETY CERTIFICATION COSTS GRANT PROGRAM", is adopted to read as follows : 
	Figure
	1 
	HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES TITLE 4 DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE SUBTITLE 7 QUALITY ASSURANCE DIVISION CHAPTER 162 FOOD SAFETY CERTIFICATION COSTS GRANT PROGRAM 
	§4-162-1 
	§4-162-1 
	§4-162-1 
	Definitions 

	§4-162-2 
	§4-162-2 
	Purpose of program 

	§4-162-3 
	§4-162-3 
	Eligibil ity requirements 

	§4-162-4 
	§4-162-4 
	Eligible 
	costs 

	§4-162-5 
	§4-162-5 
	Ineligible costs 

	§4-162-6 
	§4-162-6 
	Applications 

	§4-162-7 
	§4-162-7 
	Invoicing 

	§4-162-8 
	§4-162-8 
	Grant 
	amounts 


	§ 4-162-1 Definitions. As used in this chapter : "Department" means the department of agriculture . "Farming or ranching" means operations that grow, 
	harvest, and pack fresh produce; or grow, harvest, pack, and hold fresh produce; or grow, harvest, manufacture and hold livestock feed for commercial sale purposes . 
	"FDA" means the federal Food a nd Drug Administration. "FDA regulations" means title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations, parts 112, 112, 117, and 507. "FSMA" means the FDA Food Safety Modernization Act (P.L. 111-353). "Program" means the Hawaii food safety certification costs grant program. "HRS" means the Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	"Good agricultural practices and good handling practices audits" means audits performed by a third party government agency or private company to verify that fruits and vegetables are produced, packed, handled, and stored as safely as possible to minimize risks of microbial food safety hazards . 
	"Produce Safety Alliance" means the collaboration between Cornell University, the FDA, and t he USDA to prepare fresh produce growers to meet the regulatory requirements included in the FSMA' s Produce Safety Rule . 
	"Food Safety Preventive Controls All iance" means the collaboration between Illinois Institute of Technology and the FDA to help industry comply with the FSMA preventive controls rules for human and animal food. 
	"State" means the State of Hawaii . 
	"State food safet y laws" means chapter 321, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and chapter 11-50, Hawaii Administrative Rul es. 
	"USDA" means the United States Department of Agriculture . [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp : HRS §141-12.5) 
	§ 4-162-2 Purpose of program. The purpose of the Hawaii food safety certification costs grant program is to provide grants to assist farmers or ranchers in meeting the costs of complying with the FSMA, FDA regulations, and state food safety laws. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 
	§ 4-162-3 Eligibility requirements . (a) To be eligible for a food safety certification costs grant, an applicant shall: 
	(1) Be engaged in farming or ranching in the State as defined in this chapter; and 
	(2) Be : 
	(A) An individua l person residing in the State; 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	An institution of hi gher education i n 

	TR
	the State; 
	or 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	A business 
	entity having its principal 

	TR
	place of business in the State with 

	TR
	employees 
	for whom the business 
	is 

	TR
	legally requi red 
	to provide empl oyee 

	TR
	benefits . 

	[Eff 
	[Eff 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§141-12 . 5) 
	(Imp: 

	HRS §141-12.5) 
	HRS §141-12.5) 


	§4-162-4 Eligible costs. (a) Grants s hall be awarded to reimburse costs i ncurred for practices necessary for compliance with the FSMA, FDA regulations , or state food safety laws. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Eligible costs may incl ude : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Training 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Training recognized by the FDA to be equi valent to the Produce Safety Alliance' s standardi zed curricul um; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Training recognized by the FDA to be equi valent to the Food Safety Preventive Control Alliance' s standardized curriculum; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	.Training recognized by t he FDA to comply with the hazard analysis and risk-based preventi ve control s for human foods rule; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Training recognized by t he FDA to comply with the hazard analysis and risk-based preventive controls for ani mal foods rule; and 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Preventive controls systems trai ning emphasizing prevention of hazards before they occur, such as hazard analysis critical control point, or hazard analysis and risk-based preventive controls; 




	(2 ) Water systems, sanitizer treatment supplies, and monitoring meters; 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Microbial testing of water, raw pr oduce, or facility; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	Personal hygiene equipment and supplies, including: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Fixed or portable restroom, but not including septic systems or sewer connections; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Rental of portable restroom including cleaning and disposal of waste; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Hand washing sinks; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Hand sanitizer and sanitizing stations; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Worker protection clothing; and 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	First aid kits; 



	(5) 
	(5) 
	Harvest and packing supplies to reduce food safety risks; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Costs associated with food and safety compliance in the production of livestock feed for resale, including forage grasses,


	I 
	hay, grains ; 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	Wildlife fencing and pest deterrents and traps; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Good agricultural practices and good handling practices audit costs with a passing score; 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	General clean-up of farm and removal of hazardous debris; 

	(11) 
	(11) 
	Traceability software, tools, and supplies; 

	(13) 
	(13) 
	Food grade sanitizing sol utions and detergents; and 

	(15) 
	(15) 
	Costs of other pract ices necessary for compliance with the FSMA, FDA regulations, or state food safety laws . 


	(c) Only costs that were incurred within five years prior to the time the application for the grant is received by the department shall be eligible for reimbursement. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5). (Imp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 
	§4-162-5 Ineligible costs . Costs t hat are not eligible for reimbursement include but are not limited to : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Costs 
	that 
	are 
	not 
	directly related to, 
	and 

	TR
	necessary for, 
	complia_nce 
	with the 
	FSMA, 
	FDA 

	TR
	regulations, 
	or 
	state food safety laws; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Costs 
	related to 
	the general operation of 

	TR
	the applicant's business; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Wages, 
	compensation, 
	or benefits for the 

	TR
	applicant's employees; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Costs 
	of travel, 
	entertainment, 
	or 
	lobbying 

	TR
	activities; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Costs 
	of vehicles 
	and related vehicle 

	TR
	expenses; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Costs 
	for which the applicant already has 

	TR
	been 
	or 
	will be reimbursed; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Insurance 
	costs; 
	and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Costs 
	incurred more 
	than five years prior to 

	TR
	the time 
	the applicat ion for grant is 

	TR
	received by 
	the department. 

	[Eff 
	[Eff 
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§141-12. 5) 


	(Imp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 
	§4-162-6 Applications. (a) Each applicant for a food safety certification costs grant shall submit a signed, complete, accurate, and legible application, on a form provided by the depar tment, and shall include the following: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The applicant' s name, and business name if different, mailing address, farm or ranch's physical address, phone number, and if applicable, electronic mail address; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	If the applicant is an individual or partnership, the date of birth of the individual or partners; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Proof of compliance with the State's business registration, tax, and labor laws; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A photocopy of the appl icant' s general excise tax license; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A completed W-9 tax information form signed by the applicant; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Evidence of the implementation of farm food safety plan and practices, including photographs of equipment and their use; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Proof of third party audit of good agricultural practices or good handling practices; and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	The applicant's agricultural operation details, including but not limited to: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Acreage in production; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Crops produced; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Agricultural production experience; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Food safety plan information; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Farm size; 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	Good agricultural practices certifications, i f any; 

	(G) 
	(G) 
	Applicable income categories, as specified by the FSMA; and 




	(b) The application shall also include applicant' s acknowledgment and agreement to the following terms 'and conditions : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The applicant has the legal authority to authorize, and by submitting an application does authorize, the department to enter the applicant' s place of business at reasonable times to inspect records, facilities, and the premises either in the processing of the application or in the administration of the grant; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The applicant certifies that all information and documents submitted in support of the application are correct and complete to the best of the applicant's knowledge; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The appli cant has all licenses, permits, and other approvals required by federal, state, or county governmental entities to conduct its operations and implement the practices for which the grant is intended; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The applicant shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination against any person on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, creed, sex, age, sexual orientation, or disability; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The appli cant shall allow the State full access to its records, files, and other 


	related documents for the purpose of measuring t h e effectiveness, and ensuri ng the proper expenditures, of the grant . 
	(c) The department may requir e additional documentation to verify compliance with thi s chapter . 
	Any incomplete application for 
	Any incomplete application for 
	Any incomplete application for 
	a 
	grant 
	shall be 

	denied. 
	denied. 
	[Eff 
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§141-12 . 5) 

	(Imp : 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§141-12.5) 


	§4-162-7 Invoicing. (a) All applications shall be accompanied by invoices or receipts showing eligibl e costs incurred for practices necessary for compliance wit h the FSMA, FDA regulations, or state . food safety laws . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Invoi ces and receipts shall be original and shall include : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The date of purchase, the vendor' s name, mailing address , and phone number; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	An itemization of each good or service; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Veri fication of payment by the applicant . 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	The department may require additional documentation to verify compliance with this chapter. [Eff J (Auth: HRS §141-12 . 5) (Imp: HRS §141-12.5) 


	§ 4-162-8 Grant amounts. (a) Al l grants are subject to available funding. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Grant awards shall be made on a reimbursement, pro-rata basis out of the funds avail able for food safety certification costs grants . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The maximum grant amount to any one applicant in a fiscal year shall not exceed $5, 000. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §141-12.5) (I mp: HRS §141-12 . 5) 


	2. The adoption of chapter 4-162, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after filing with the Offi ce of the Lieutenant Governor . 
	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to t he requirements of section 91-4. 1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on Mont h xx, xxxx, and filed with Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	SCOTT E. ENRIGHT Chairperson Board of Agriculture 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM 
	Deputy Attorne y General 






	IV. New Bus C. HAR 11-200 and 11-200.1 Env. Impact Statements - Part  2
	Structure Bookmarks
	111. Section-Specific Changes 
	111. Section-Specific Changes 
	Subchapter 1 Purpose 
	Subchapter 1 (Purpose) creates a distinct subchapter for the section setting forth the purpose of chapter 11-200.1, HAR. Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of the chapter through the subchapter headings. 
	§ 11-200.1 -1 Purpose 
	§ 11-200.1 -1 Purpose 
	Section 11-200.1-1 expresses the purpose of chapter 11-200.1, HAR. It consolidates the policy 
	statements about conducting EISs into this section and reframes the policy statements to be 
	about the environmental review process as a whole. Section 11-200-1, HAR (1996) was a 
	standalone paragraph. It is now numbered and combines other sections from chapter 11-200, 
	HAR (1996) addressing the purpose of EAs and EISs. Subsection (a) of 11-200.1-1 was 
	formerly section 11-200-1, HAR ( 1996). 
	Subsection (b) derives from 11-200-14, HAR (1996), "General Provisions", which is the first section in subchapter 7, "Preparation of Draft & Environmental Impact Statements" under the 1996 Rules. It is modified to apply to both EAs and EISs. The subsection emphasizes that EAs and EISs should be prepared at the earliest practicable time and the spirit in which the documents should be prepared. It emphasizes that the purpose of preparing the documents is to enlighten decision-makers about any environmental co
	Subsection (c) combines language from section 11-200-19, HAR (1996) regarding 
	Environmental Impact Statement Style to make it applicable to both agencies and applicants and to all environmental review documents. Applicants are authorized to prepare both the EA and EIS. The language is modified to be grammatically correct and increase readability. 
	Paragraph (c)(3) is new language regarding consultation. Council members and numerous commenters raised concerns that the process of "consultation" had in some cases become a mere formality, without a true, open, and mutual dialogue occurring between action proponents and members of the public. Paragraph (c)(3) provides the spirit in which consultation should be conducted with both agencies and members of the public. 
	Several housekeeping changes are made consist with the discussion above in the General Changes section. In addition, the terms "environmental impact statement" and "environmental assessment" are introduced and the acronyms "EIS" and "EA" provided. The syntax of the sentences is also revised to improve readability as appropriate. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 2 Definitions 
	Subchapter 2 (Definitions and Terminology) creates a distinct subchapter for the section setting 
	forth definitions and terminology used in chapter 11-200.1, HAR. Although this subchapter 
	contains only one section, creating a new subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for 
	chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of the Chapter through the . 
	subchapter headings. 
	§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 
	§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 
	Section 11-200.1-2 Definitions and Terminology was formerly section 11-200-2, HAR (1996). It sets forth the definitions and terms used in chapter 11-200.1, HAR. New language in the Proposed Rules direct agencies to use their own statutes anp rules when a term is not defined in this chapter or in chapter 343, HRS. Several housekeeping changes are made, including arranging definitions into alphabetical order based on revisions to their wording. Various definitions are also amended to remove process steps, to 
	The Proposed Rules propose to modify and amend the following definitions in the following 
	ways: 
	The definition for "acceptance" is modified to remove redundant language. The modifications 
	also remove process steps and redirect the reader to the appropriate section for determining 
	those steps. 
	The definition for "accepting authority" is modified by removing the word "final" before "official who, or agency that" because the word "final" did not contribute additional meaning to the definition. The 1996 Rules provided only that the accepting authority "determines the acceptability of the EIS document". The modified definition replaces that language and clarifies that the role of the accepting authority is to determine both that a final EIS is required to be filed pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, and th
	The definition "addendum" is modified to incorporate housekeeping changes and to include that an "applicant" also may attach an addendum to a draft EA or EIS. 
	The definition "approval" is modified to remove the word "actual" from the phrase "prior to the actual implementatio·n of the action" because "actual" was an unnecessary adjective. The definitions of "discretionary consent" and "ministerial consent" that were embedded in the 1996 definition of "approval" have been removed and made into a standalone definition under "discretionary consent". 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
	The definition "approving agency" is modified to remove the word "actual" from the phase "prior to the actual implementation of the action" because "actual" was an unnecessary adjective. The word "applicant" was added before the word "action" because an approving agency is only necessary within the environmental review context for applicants. Chapter 343, HRS only applies to applicants when an applicant action needs a discretionary consent (an approval) to proceed and contains a trigger under section 343-5,
	The definition "cumulative impact" is slightly modified for housekeeping purposes ("which" to 
	"that"). 
	The definitions of "discretionary consent" and "ministerial consent" are removed from the 1996 
	definition of "approval" and made into a standalone, combined definition (discretionary consent 
	and ministerial consent). The definition of "discretionary consent" is consistent with both 
	chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules language. The definition of "ministerial consent" is 
	consistent with the 1996 Rules language. It is not a defined term in chapter 343, HRS. 
	The definition "draft environmental assessment" is modified for housekeeping purposes, and 
	also to use the term "finding of no significant impact" in place of "a negative declaration 
	determination". 
	The definition of "effects" and "impacts" is slightly modified for housekeeping purposes 
	(changing "which" to "that"), and to incorporate the language "immediate or delayed" that is part 
	of the 1996 Rules definition of "environmental impact", which is proposed to be deleted due to 
	redundancy. 
	The definition of "EIS preparation notice" re-orders the words "EIS preparation notice" and 
	"preparation notice", and adds in the acronym "EISPN" because "EISPN" and "EIS preparation 
	notice" are used most frequently throughout the rules. The definition is accordingly put in 
	alphabetical order. The definition is updated to incorporate the direct-to-EIS route, which, 
	pursuant to section 343-5(e), HRS, begins with an EISPN. Note that section 343-5(e), HRS, only allows an agency to use its judgment and experience to determine whether an agency or applicant may begin with an EISPN. An applicant must consult with an agency first to receive this authorization. Housekeeping changes are also included. 
	The definition of "EIS public scoping meeting" is added. An EIS public scoping meeting is a new requirement as part of the EIS preparation process and is outlined in section 11-200.1-23. 
	The definition of "environment" is modified to include health, in order for it to correspond with the definition of "effects" or "impacts" under both chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules. It is also modified to include "cultural", as required by Act 50 Session Laws Hawaii of 2000. 
	The definition of "environmental assessment" is modified to clarify that an EA needs to provide sufficient evidence to make a significance determination as opposed to merely making that assertion, or, on the opposite end of the spectrum, providing an unduly long analysis. The 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	statutory and 1996 Rules provide only that an EA is a written evaluation "to determine whether 
	an action has a significant environmental effect". The proposed definition expands it to "a 
	written evaluation that serves to provide sufficient evidence and analysis to determine whether 
	an action may have a significant effect". 
	The definition of "environmental impact" is deleted because it was unnecessary with both 
	"impact" and "environment" already included as defined terms. The words "immediate or 
	delayed" have been incorporated into the definition of "effect" or "impacts". 
	The definition of "environmental impact statement" is modified with housekeeping changes. 
	The definition of "exempt classes of action" is deleted because the concept of "classes of action" is removed in subchapter 8A. Subchapter 8A uses the term "general types" of action that may be exempted in order to be more cot1sistent with chapter 343, HRS. 
	The definition of "exemption list" is added because it is a frequently used term in subchapter 8A. 
	The definition of "exemption notice" is modified to reflect the updates to the exemption process 
	under subchapter 8A. It recognizes that an exemption notice may be prepared for both agency 
	and applicant actions. Further, it removes the reference that the notice be kept on file because 
	in some circumstances a notice may be required to be published in the bulletin. 
	The definition of "final environmental assessment" is modified to reflect that chapter 343, HRS, 
	now provides for a direct-to-EIS pathway when, based on an agency's judgment and 
	experience, the agency concludes that the proposed action may have a significant effect on the 
	environment. The agency may then directly proceed to an EIS, or in the case of an applicant, 
	may authorize an applicant to proceed directly to the preparation of an EIS. For both proposing 
	agencies and applicants, the EIS preparation begins with an EISPN. Because the direct-to-EIS 
	pathway exists, it is less likely that an agency will submit or require the applicant to submit a final EA without the preparation of a draft EA. The line referring to this process has therefore 
	been removed. The definition has also been modified to include housekeeping changes. 
	The definition of "finding of no significant impact" removes the previous reference to "negative declaration" and reorders the definition alphabetically. The acronym FONSI is used most frequently in the Proposed Rules and in practice. 
	The definition of "impacts" is added to redirect the reader to "effects". "Impacts" and "effects" are used synonymously throughout the Proposed Rules. 
	The definition of "National Environmental Policy Act" is slightly modified to include housekeeping changes, including adding iri the acronym "NEPA". 
	The definition of "negative declaration" is deleted and moved alphabetically under "finding of no significant impact". 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	The definition of "office" includes minor housekeeping changes. 
	The definition of "periodic bulletin" is modified to include "bulletin" as an abbreviated reference 
	to the "periodic bulletin". 
	The definition of "preparation notice" is deleted and moved under "Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice" or "EISPN". The term EISPN is used more frequently throughout the Proposed Rules. 
	The definition of "primary impact" is modified slightly to incorporate housekeeping changes. 
	The definition of "project' is added to distinguish projects and programs from one another and to facilitate discussion of a programmatic approach to environmental review. The proposed definition is aligned with but expands upon the definition set forth by the Supreme Court of Hawaii in Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P .3d 277, 290 (Haw. 2017). See the section on "Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program" for additional details. 
	The definition of "program" is added to distinguish projects and programs from one another and 
	to facilitate discussion of a programmatic approach to environmental review. The proposed 
	definition is aligned with but significantly expands upon the definition set forth by the Supreme 
	Court of Hawaii in Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 290 
	(Haw. 2017). See the section on "Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and 
	Program" for additional details. 
	A definition of "proposing agency" is added because the term is used frequently throughout both the 1996 Rules and the Proposed Rules, but was not previously defined. 
	The definition of "secondary impact", "secondary effect", "indirect impact" or "indirect effect" is modified to cofrect grammar and readability. 
	The definition for "significant effect" or "significant impact" is amended according to Act 50 of the 2000 legislative session, which added "cultural practices of the community and State" to the definition of "significant effect" in chapter 343, HRS. 
	The definition of "supplemental EIS" is amended to refer to an "updated" instead of an "additional" EIS. 
	The definition of "trigger" is added to refer to any use or activity listed in section 343-S(a) HRS. The 1996 Rules listed out what were commonly referred to as the "triggers" from section 343S(a), HRS, which determine whether an action requires chapter 343, HRS environmental review. The Proposed Rules remove the list and refer to the "triggers" as establishing whether an action requires environmental review. 
	-

	vo .4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
	Subchapter 3 (Computation of Time) creates a distinct subchapter standardizing the 
	time for all time periods prescribed by this chapter and chapter 343, HRS. 
	computation.of 

	Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new subchapter is in line with 
	creating a new structure for chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of 
	the chapter through the subchapter headings. 
	§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 
	Section 11-200.1-3 (Computation of Time) is a new section. It clarifies and standardizes how days should be counted when there are time requirements within the Proposed Rules. The language is drawn from the Environmental Council Rules of Practice and Procedure, specifically section 11-201-14, HAR (1985), to ensure that the computation of time for all Council-related business is consistent. 
	This new section is intended to remove confusion about when comment periods begin and end. Section 343-5, HRS sets the comment periods for EAs as 30 days and for EISs as 45 days from the publication date. The section clarifies that for counting purposes, the publication date is day zero and the last day of the period Is included. Holidays and weekends (see HRS § 1-29 and HRS§ 8-1) are counted when counting to 30 or 45. However, when the last day falls on a state holiday or non-working day, the deadline is t
	For example, the OEQC publishes the periodic bulletin on April 8, 2018, whic_h is a Sunday. For a draft EA published on that date, April 8 is counted as zero. Holidays and weekends are included in counting to 30 days, but if the deadline falls on a state holiday or non-working day, the deadline is the next working day. In this example, the comment period deadline is Tuesday, May 8, 2018. 
	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin 
	Subchapter 4 (Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin) (The Environmental Notice) creates a distinct subchapter setting forth information about the periodic bulletin and requirements for filing submittals to OEQC for publication in the periodic bulletin. This subchapter reorg anizes the previous periodic bulletin subchapter from the 1996 Rules into three sections. 
	Section 200.1-4 addresses the purpose of the periodic bulletin and requirements for its publication. Section 200.1-5 establishes procedures for filing submittals for publication and consolidates previous language in various sections of the 1996 Rules regarding filing requirements into one place. Section 200.1-6 includes new language addressing occasions when an agency or applicant seeks to publish the same notice, document, or determination that it has published before and addresses the associated comment p
	§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 
	Section 11-200.1-4 (Periodic Bulletin) sets forth the publication requirements for the periodic 
	bulletin. This section derives from sections 11-200-3, 11 .2, 21, and 27 of the 1996 Rules. Jhe 
	previous Section 11-200-3, HAR (1996) has been divided into two sections in the Proposed 
	Rules, including this section and one specific to filing (§ 11-200.1-5). 
	This section explicitly lists the types of notices, documents, and determinations published in the periodic bulletin, pursuant to chapter 343, HRS. The Proposed Rules require publishing lists of exempted actions, which the 1996 Rules do not require. This section also acknowledges that other statutes and rules (e.g., HAR § 13-222-12) have requirements for publication in the bulletin, such as shoreline certifications. 
	This section makes explicit that the OEQC may publish additional items in the bulletin on a time available basis as well as a space available hasis. Given that the process is moving to a digital format, space is a less of a concern. However, the Proposed Rules reduce the submittal deadline from eight days to four days (see section 5 for more) so the capacity of the OEQC at any given point (i.e., staffing fluctuations) may limit the ability of the OEQC to include nonmandatory material in the bulletin. 
	This section also explicitly allows for the republication of any chapter 343, HRS notices, documents or determinations, and for notices of their withdrawal in accordance with other applicable requirements of the chapter. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 
	This is a new section synthesizing language from multiple sections of the 1996 Rules (Sections 3, 9, 10, ·11.1, 11.2, 20 and 23). In the 1996 Rules, the filing requirements are integrated into content or process steps and require numerous cross-references. This section consolidates and standardizes the filing requirements for each type of submittal document or determination into one section, making it easy to know where to look, who is responsible for the submittal, and to reference one section. 
	This section also captures notices, documents, and determinations required under chapter 343, 
	HRS as well as requirements for publication pursuant to other statutes or administrative rules 
	(e.g., HAR § 13-222-12 for shoreline applications). 
	Other changes of note include: decreasing the submission deadline from eight days to four 
	business days as the OEQC no longer needs eight days to prepare the periodic bulletin; 
	clarifying that the OEQC may ask for geographic data such as that included in a standard 
	geographic information systems file; clarifying that the OEQC may require identification of the 
	specific approval requiring an applicant to undertake environmental review; and adding 
	language regarding the submission of paper copies to the State Library. 
	This section consolidates language on withdrawal from environmental review and makes explicit that both documents and determinations can be withdrawn for any level of review. 
	The Proposed Rules require paper copies in only two circumstances, both related to the State Library. In line with the State Library's archival requirements, the Proposed Rules require submission of one paper copy of any draft or final EA or EIS to be deposited with the State Library Document Center. The second is that a paper copy of a draft EA, EISPN, or draft EIS must be deposited in the local library nearest to the proposed action. This is so that those living nearest to the proposed impacts and have li
	For EISs, section 18 includes a requirement to record oral comments at the public scoping meeting. This requirement is incorporated into this section as part of the submittal requirement for a draft EIS. It is incumbent upon the preparer of the draft EIS to ensure that one unaltered/unedited copy of the recording of the oral comments is submitted to the OEQC. Therefore, it is recommended that backup methods for recording oral comments are implemented in the event of file corruption. Standard audio quality m
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
	§ 11-200.1-6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations 
	This is a new section addressing the practice of republication of chapter 343 notices, documents, and determinations. Chapter 343, HRS is silent on whether comment periods may be extended. In practice, proposing agencies, applicants, and approving agencies have sought to extend comment periods. When this occurs outside of the standard time period for public comment or outside of the notification process through the periodic bulletin, inconsistencies arise in the process creating questions of public notifica
	This section also provides that any agency or applicant that filed a chapter 343 notice, 
	document, or determination may withdraw and republish a notice, document, or determination 
	that has not been changed. Other submittals to the OEQC required by council rules, statute other than chapter 343, HRS, or an agency's administrative rules other than this chapter, may also be withdrawn and republished, but must be done in accordance with that statute or those rules. There is no chapter 343, r!RS obligation to publish an unchanged document again; however, a proposing or approving agency's own statutes, rules, or procedures may require or call for it. 
	Lastly, this section clarifies when a public comment period is required with the republication of a chapter 343, HRS notice, document, or determination and how comments received in two or more comment periods for an unamended but republished notice, document, or determination are to be handled. The requirement to address comments in all comment periods resulting from multiple publications is to reduce the possibility of repeated publications to achieve fewer comments. Comments received outside of the multip
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
	Subchapter 5 (Responsibilities) creates a distinct subchapter identifying the decision-making 
	authority when agencies and applicants undergo chapter 343, HRS environmental review in 
	various circumstances. Although this subchapter contains only one section, creating a new 
	subchapter is in line with creating a new structure for chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear 
	outline of the contents of the Chapter through the subchapter headings. 
	§ 11-200.1 -7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 
	This section was previously section 11-200-4, HAR (1996). All language in this section comes 
	from sections 11-200-3, -4, and -23, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. 
	This section clarifies a number of points in the 1996 Rules: 
	State or County Lands and Funds Trigger. Language and cases where a proposed action has 
	mixed state and county lands or funds or both lands and funds. 
	Approving Agency & Accepting Authority for Applicants. Provides that, in the case of applicants, the approving agency for environmental review compliance is also the accepting authority. Section 343-S(e), HRS states that for applicants "the agency initially receiving and agreeing to process the request for approval shall require the applicant to prepare an [EA] of the proposed action," which is the approving agency. It further states that the "authority to accept a final statement shall rest with the agency
	Selection of Accepting Authority: Guidance to agencies on how to select the most appropriate accepting authority. This section instructs agencies and the OEQC to consider which agency has the most land or funds involved in an action when deciding which agency will be responsible for complying with chapter 343, HRS. Specifically, the changes to subsections (c) and (d) of this section provide a process for agencies to decide amongst themselves which agency shall be responsible for complying with chapter 343, 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 6 Applicability 
	Subchapter 6 (Applicability) creates a distinct subchapter setting forth procedures for 
	determining whether an activity requires chapter 343, HRS environmental review. This 
	subchapter reorganizes the previous applicability subchapter from the 1996 Rules to show the 
	chronological steps that a proposing or an approving agency will follow when making this 
	determination. 
	Section 11-200.1-9 addresses applicability of chapter 343, HRS environmental review with 
	regard to agency actions and in particular, the use of state or county lands or funds trigger, and 
	emergency actions. Section 11-200.1 -10 addresses applicability with regard to applicant 
	actions and incorporates section 343-5.5, HRS. Section 11-200.1-11 addresses the treatment 
	of multiple or phased actions. 
	§ 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 
	Formerly section 11-200-5, HAR (1996). All language in this section comes from section 11
	-

	200-5, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This section includes language in response to 
	Umberger v. Department of Land and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277 (Haw. 2017) ("For an 
	activity to be subject to HEPA environmental review, the second requirement is that it must fall 
	within at least one category of land uses or administrative acts (known as "triggers", now 
	defined as a term in the Proposed Rules) enumerated in section 343-5(a), HRS (2010)"). 
	This section specifically: 
	Lists the section 343-5, HRS triggers that necessitate environmental review under chapter 343, 
	HRS. 
	Agricultural Tourism: Addresses exemptions for agricultural tourism (HRS § 343-5(a)(1 )). 
	Emergency Actions: Addresses situations where an agency must respond to an emergency 
	and that response would fall within the scope of chapter 343, HRS, but the nature of the 
	emergency requires immediate response. For example, during a forest fire, an emergency firebreak may need to be cut. In the case of King Tides, an issue raised by one commenter, it would not extend to reconstruction of homes after the emergency has passed, but may apply to 
	immediate measures taken to address the situation. The Proposed Rules emphasize that an agency must take immediate action to address the emergency in order for the exemption to apply. The agency has a responsibility to document the exemption when it undertakes an emergency action, whether an emergency proclamation has been made or not, in case a question arises about the lack of an assessment. That documentation, like other non-published exemptions, must be available upon public request and must be included
	-

	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	days of the emergency proclamation. (Under chapter 127A-14(d), HRS, a state of emergency 
	automatically terminates after sixty days.) The Council notes that supplemental emergency 
	proclamations would re-start the sixty-day count and extend the time that an action has to reach 
	substantial commencement. This provision does not explicitly reference the possibility for 
	extension because the extension is provided for under section 127A-14(d) and the Council does 
	not have rulemaking authority under chapter 127A, HRS. The term "substantially commenced" 
	is not defined here because the intent is to provide direction to agencies to timely implement the 
	action but not define the standard for all agencies in all situations. 
	§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant Actions 
	Formerly section 11-200-6, HAR (1996), this section has been reorganized and is intended to clarify that there are two essential elements necessitating chapter 343, HRS review for applicant actions: a discretionary consent and a statutory trigger under section 343-5, HRS. This section further recognizes that an applicant action may require multiple approvals. These should be considered as part of the whole action and not as creating discrete actions. By incorporating reference to section 343-5(a), HRS in pr
	This section explicitly includes an exception to the general requirements of chapter 343, HRS 
	for agricultural tourism as provided under section 343-5(a)(1 ), HRS and chapter 205, HRS 
	(which allow the counties to require an EA under chapter 343, HRS for any agricultural tourism 
	use and activity in certain circumstances). 
	Additionally, this section includes the exclusion to chapter 343, HRS environmental review as 
	provided for in section 343-5.5, HRS. That provision was added to chapter 343, HRS through the 2012 legislative amendments (L 201 2, c 312 § 1). 
	This section includes definitions of four terms that'apply only to subsection (b) of this section 11
	-

	200.1 -1 0: "discretionary consent", "infrastructure", "primary action", and "secondary action". 
	§ 11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Act'ions 
	The language in this section comes from section 11-200-7, HAR (1996). The revised language replaces "project" with "action". This section is meant to assist with clarifying the scope of an action in order to reduce the potential for segmentation. This section also clarifies that multiple or phased actions may be reviewed in an EA or EIS and do not necessarily require an EA prior to preparing an EIS. 
	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	§ 11-200.1-11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Findings of No Significant Impact, and Accepted Environmental Impact Statements to Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed Activities 
	This is a new section drawing from section 11-200-13, HAR (1996). Section 11-200-13, HAR (1996) allowed the use of prior determinations and accepted EISs to satisfy chapter 343, HRS for proposed actions if the prior determination or accepted EIS was pertinent and relevant to the proposed action. The 1996 Rules admonished agencies to take a hard look before allowing use of prior determinations and accepted EISs in place of additional chapter 343, HRS environmental review. That section also inclµded the conce
	Proposed section 11-200. 1-11 separates out and clarifies how and when an agency may determine that a prior exemption, final EA or accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS for a proposed activity. In order for a proposed activity to use a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS, the proposed activity must have been considered a component of or be substantially similar to the action that received the exemption, FONS!, or acceptance; the proposed activity must be anticipated to have similar direct, indirect
	This section particularly applies to situations where a programmatic EIS, and later in time a component of that programmatic EIS that was analyzed in detail is ready to be implemented. The component may on its own be considered an action for purposes of chapter 343, HRS, but because it was a component of an accepted EIS, is anticipated to have similar direct, indirect, and cumulative effects as those analyzed in the accepted EIS, and the proposed activity was analyzed in the range of alternatives in the acc
	This rationale for determining whether chapter 343, HRS review is necessary is an existing practice for many agencies when they are considering whether to undergo chapter 343, HRS environmental review or deciding whether an applicant must undergo chapter 343, HRS environmental review. The Proposed Rule intends to create a consistent process and provide 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	agencies with direction on what to consider when determining if a proposed activity is covered under a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS. The rules also create a mechanism for agencies to publish a determination and brief rationale that a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS satisfies the chapter 343, HRS requirements for a proposed activity. 
	The proposed rule also provides that when an agency determines that a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS does not satisfy chapter 343, HRS environmental review for a proposed activity, then the proposing agency or applicant should proceed to subchapter 7 to determine the level of environmental review necessary. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 



	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
	Subchapter 7 (Determination of Significance) creates a distinct subchapter to provide direction to agencies in deciding the level of review necessary to satisfy chapter 343, HRS. This subchapter logically follows subchapter 6 (Applicability) because it is the next step that agencies will take upon determining that chapter 343, HRS environmental review is applicable. This subchapter reorganizes the previous determination of significance subchapter from the 1996 Rules to show the chronological process that an
	Section 11-200.1-12 addresses circumstances in which an agency may consider previous 
	determinations and previously accepted EISs when deciding the appropriate level of review for 
	a new action and introduces the evaluation tool informally called the "green sheet" based on the 
	City and County of Honolulu Department of Planning and Permitting worksheet. Section 11
	-

	200.1-13 provides that the proposing or approving agency use its judgment and experience to 
	initially determine whether the appropriate level of environmental review is an exemption, 
	preparation of an EA, or direct preparation of an EIS. Section 11-200.1-14 presents the 
	significance criteria that agencies use as a basis for determining the appropriate level of review. 
	§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of Previous Determinations and Accepted Statements This section is former section 11-200-13, HAR (1996). The 1996 Rules section included three concepts: (1) the use of prior determinations and accepted EISs in place of chapter 343, HRS review for a proposed action; (2) tiering an exemption, EA, or EIS for a proposed action off of a prior determination or accepted EIS; and (3) incorporation of information from a prior determination or accepted EIS into an exemption, EA, or EIS for
	Proposed section 11-200.1-12 also precedes this section, and it is assumed that an agency or applicant will consider the applicability of section 11-200.1-12 to a proposed activity prior to considering whether previous determinations or accepted EISs could be used in preparation of an exemption, EA, or EIS. Therefore, the subsection emphasizing that prior determinations and accepted statements must receive a hard look when used in place of chapter 343, HRS review has been deleted. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	§ 11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 
	Formerly section 11-200-12, HAR ( 1996), all language in this section comes from section 11
	-

	200-12, HAR ( 1996) or is in addition to it. This section presents the criteria that an agency is to 
	use for determining whether an exemption, FONSI, EISPN, or acceptance is appropriate. 
	This section replaces the word "consequences" with "impacts" because both "primary impact" 
	and "secondary impact" are defined, but the use of "consequences" introduced a new, 
	undefined term that had been understood as a synonym for "impact". 
	While section 345-5, HRS provides that an EIS is required for an action that "may" have a significant effect, the Hawaii Supreme Court has interpreted the word "may" to mean "likely". For example, in Kepoo v. Kane, 103 P.3d 939, 958 (Haw. 2005) the Court held that the proper inquiry for determining the necessity of an EIS is whether the proposed action will "likely" have a significant effect on the environment. The Proposed Rules adopt this language to make it clearer to stakeholders what the court's interp
	The Proposed Rules add the word "adverse" to each of the specific criteria (where applicable). 
	This language more closely matches the definition of "significant effect" in section 343-2, HRS, 
	including mirroring the emphasis on "adverse" effects. The definition of "significant effect" in 
	section 343-2, HRS: 
	means the sum of effects on the quality of the environment, including actions that irrevocably commit a natural resource, curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment, are contrary to the State's environmental policies or long-term environmental goals as established by law, or adversely affect the economic welfare, social welfare, or cultural practices of the community and State. (emphasis added) 
	The Proposed Rules retain the word "substantial" from the 1996 Rules. 
	Combining "substantial" and "adverse" is meant to set a standard that is higher than just having an effect and emphasizes that the focus is on negative effects rather than positive ones. 
	This change addresses the question of whether an action having substantial beneficial effects would require the preparation of an EIS or make an action ineligible for an exemption. The introductory language of the section still requires agencies to consider the sum of effects on the quality of the environment and the overall and cumulative effects of an action. For example, a proposed renewable energy project may have substantial beneficial effects with respect to energy and greenhouse gases but may also ir
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	In addition to the above changes to the significance criteria, the following changes are also in 
	the Proposed Rules. Criteria (2), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10) have only the above grammatical 
	and/or "substantial adverse" changes proposed. 
	Criterion (1 ): Rephrases the language to match the statutory phrasing while retaining the inclusion of "cultural" fr<?m the 1996 Rules and inserting "historic", reflecting the requirement that historic sites are a trigger in chapter 343, HRS and are given prominent consideration in the environmental review process. While NEPA may consider historic properties as a subset of cultural resources, the Proposed Rules use the "historic" and "cultural" in sequence in the definitions for "environment" and "effect".
	Criterion (3): Includes other laws because the statutory definition of "significant effect" is not 
	narrowed to chapter 344, HRS and many other statutes set forth environmental policies or 
	goals. This language acknowledges other laws with environmental goals such as the State 
	Planning Act or section 269-92, Renewable Portfolio Standards, HRS. "Laws" may be broadly 
	understood to include common law and executive orders so long as they establish long-term 
	environmental policies or goals, but not to encompass all statutes, administrative rules, and 
	court decisions. 
	Criterion (4): Revises language to match the definition of "significance" in section 343-2, HRS. 
	Statutory language was amended by Act 50 (2000) to include cultural practices as part of the 
	definition of significance. 
	Act 50, Session Laws of Hawaii 2000 requires the consideration of impacts on cultural practices when making a determination of significance effect. It amended the definition of "significant effect" in section 343-2, HRS to mean "the sum of effects on the quality of the environment, including actions that irrevocably commit a natural resource, curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment, are contrar.y to the State's environmental policies or long-term environmental goals as established by law, or
	Act 50 also amended the definition of "environmental impact statement" or "statement" in section 343-2, HRS to include the disclosure of effects of a proposed action on-cultural practices, as follows: 
	"environmental impact statement" or "statement" means an informational document prepared in compliance with the rules adopted under section 343-6 and which discloses the environmental effects of a proposed action, effects of a proposed action on the economic welfare, social welfare, and cuitural practices of the community and State, effects of the economic activities arising out of the proposed action, measures proposed to minimize adverse effects, and alternatives to the action and their environmental effe
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	The initial statement filed for public review shall be referred to as the draft statement and shall be distinguished from the final statement which is the document that has incorporated the public's comments and the responses to those comments. The final statement is the document that shall be evaluated for acceptability by the respective accepting authority. 
	Per Act 50, cultural practices are an integral component of the significance criteria and must be 
	considered in making a significance determination. 
	Criterion (11 ): Adds the sea level rise exposure area to the list of example areas that could be 
	considered environmentally sensitive. 
	The included language incorporates sea level rise exposure area from the December 2017 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation Commission report. This criterion addresses concerns related to climate change adaptation such as impacts from sea level rise, increased hurricane frequency and/or intensity, and endangered species migration. Note that the list is not exhaustive and other areas not listed here may be considered environmentally sensitive, including areas likely to experience wave inundation, increas
	Criterion (12): Clarifies that both the daytime and nighttime effects on scenic vistas and 
	viewplanes must be considered when determining if an action is likely to have a significant 
	effect. Bright lighting around a site at night, for example, may disrupt scenic vistas or 
	viewplanes even though the site is not conspicuous and does not otherwise have a substantial 
	adverse effect on the scenic vista or viewplane during the day. 
	Criterion (13): This criterion addresses concerns related to energy and implicitly climate change mitigation. The Proposed Rules make this explicit by adding greenhouse gas emissions to this criterion. This criterion was the only addition to the significance criteria when the 1996 Rules were promulgated. Since then, the best available science indicates that greenhouse gas emiss·ions have cumulative impact and have more sources than fossil fuel burning. A proposed action having substantial emissions (relativ
	§ 11-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 
	This is a new section that describes the pathways of chapter 343, HRS environmental review: exemption, EA resulting in a FONSI or EISPN, and EIS resulting in an acceptance or nonacceptance. Once an agency concludes that the proposed action is not covered by a previous determination or accepted statement (via the "green sheet"), the agency must then determine the appropriate review using its judgment and experience: exemption, EA, or EIS . 
	This section modifies language from sections 11-200-S(a) and 11-200-9(b)(3), HAR (1996) and from section 343-S(b), HRS, and section 343-S(e), HRS. This section requires agencies to 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	inform applicants within 30 days of request for an approval of what level of environmental review the applicant must undertake. This section also sets forth the standard for an exemption using language from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) and drawn from section 343-6(a)(2), HRS ("actions [that] will probably have minimal or no significant effects on the environment"). 
	Where an exemption is not appropriate arid an action requires chapter 343, HRS environmental review, preparation of an EA beginning with a draft EA is required unless one of two situations exist. The first is that a proposing agency may begin with a final EA or an approving agency may authorize an applicant to begin with a final EA when it is anticipated that an EIS will be required, but more information is required to substantiate that determination (this was the process prior to the "direct-to-EIS" statut
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 
	Subchapter 8 (Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements) creates a distinct subchapter 
	addressing the matter of exemptions. This subchapter divides the section 11-200-8, HAR 
	(1996) regarding exemptions into three distinct sections. 
	Section 200.1-15 establishes the general types of actions under which an exemption may be 
	declared. Section 200.1-16 provides direction to agencies for the creation of an exemption list. 
	Section 200.1-17 provides direction to agencies on how to prepare an exemption notice, 
	including when an agency is required to consult on the exemption and when the exemption 
	notice must be published in the bulletin. 
	§ 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 
	All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This section sets forth the general types of actions eligible for exemption. It adds statutory language directly from section 343-6(2), HRS on the standard for declaring actions exempt: because they will probably individually and cumulatively have minimal or no significant effects. 
	The Proposed Rules remove the 1996 language regarding "classes of actions" as the statute does not use the term "classes" and the word has caused confusion. In its place, the Proposed Rules use "general types" to mirror the statute and frame the "types" of exemptions on agency exemption lists so that the hierarchy is clearer: general types (in rules), types (in agency-specific exemption lists), and exemptions (exemption notices). 
	The Proposed Rules do not include the "classes" 6 and 7 in the 1996 Rules as they are now included as a de minimis level of routine activities and ordinary functions in the Proposed Rules. They are addressed further in section 11-200.1-16, Exemption Lists. 
	The Proposed Rules make no changes to the language incorporated from the 1996 Rules for general types (2), (4), and (7), based on numbering in the Proposed Rules. 
	The remaining general types are revised as follows (numbering based on the Proposed Rules). 
	General Type (1 ): Replaces "negligible" with "minor" and removes "or no" before "expansion or change" because activities that are "negligible" and require "no expansion" and "no change" are now captured in the de minimis category and should be reflected in Part 1 of an agency's exemption list. · 
	General Type (3): Agencies, including different agencies within the same county, measure residence area differently. This language acknowledges the difference and directs the proposing agency or approving agency to use its own method of measuring for 3,500 square 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200. 1-Rules-Rationale 
	feet. The language also replaces "persons" with "individuals" because "person" is a defined 
	term in chapter 343, HRS and the Proposed Rules and that meaning is not used in this context. 
	General Type (5): Incorporates infrastructure testing such as temporary interventions on 
	roadways to test new designs or effects on traffic patterns. 
	General Type (6): The Proposed Rules revise the general type for demolition of structures to better balance the concerns of historic preservation. The 1996 Rules did not allow for the use of the exemption if the structure was designated on the state or federal registers. This meant that structures that might be eligible for designation could still be demolished under an exemption (barring the standard exception to exemptions). However, stakeholders expressed concern that eligible buildings of potential sign
	... The property meets or possesses, individually or in combination, the following criteria or 
	characteristics: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The quality of significance in Hawaiia'n history, architecture, archaeology, and culture, which is present in districts, sites, buildings, structures and objects of State and local importance that possess integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, AND: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	That are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to broad patterns of our American or Hawaiian history; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	That are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	That embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of construction, or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic value, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity \('/hose components may lack individual distinction; OR 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	That have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history; 



	(2) 
	(2) 
	Environmental impact, i.e., whether the preservation of the building, site, structure, district, or object significantly enhances the environmental quality of the State; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The social, cultural, educational, and recreational value of the building, site, structure, district, or object, when preserved, presented, or interpreted, contributes significantly to the understanding and enjoyment of the history and culture of Hawaii, the pacific area, or the nation. 


	This means that structures that are more than fifty years old but otherwise lack any historic significance or integrity could still use this exemption (assuming the standard caveats for any exemption). This language also better aligns the exemption standard with the helicopter facilities trigger in section 343-5(a)(8)(C) regarding any historic site as designated or under 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	consideration for designation. The Proposed Rules also remove redundant citations of the federal and state statutes. 
	General Type (8): The Proposed Rules retain the general type for continuing administrative activities but delete the reference to purchase of supplies and personnel-related activities because those two items are captured in the de minimis category and should be reflected in Part 1 of an agency's exemption list. 
	General Type (9): The Proposed Rules incorporate an amendment to the 1996 Rules that was never compiled and promulgated. fn 2007, the Environmental Council formally amended section 11-200-8, HAR to add the eleventh exemption category for affordable housing. Note that the term "affordable housing" was not defined at that time. Affordable housing should be understood in the same way as proposed under Proposed General Type (11 ). 
	General Type (10): The Proposed Rules add a new general type for affordable housing that meets certain criteria. The purpose of this proposed gel'll:lral type of exemption would be to support the orderly development of affordable housing in urbanized areas where affordable housing is a designated and zoned use. Per section 11-200-8(b), HAR (1996) and proposed section 11-200.1-1 S(d), HAR, exemptions are inapplicable when the cumulative impact of planned successive actions in the same place, over time, is si
	Agencies define affordable housing differently. The Council considered multiple approaches to affordable housing, ranging from requiring 100% affordable housing at various mixtures of area median income (AMI) percentages to the language as proposed. Setting a specific mixture or requiring 100% affordable housing would set a standard unlikely to be met. Creating a standard for an exemption under chapter 343, HRS separate and distinct from a standard set by a proposing agency or approving agency but not groun
	· would be difficult to justify. Because chapter 343, HRS is about disclosure by agencies to the public prior to making a decision or implementing an action, the Council believes that the public is best served by the agency using its own standard when considering whether a proposed action meets the meaning of "affordable housing". This is also consistent with General Type (.10), acquisition of affordable housing, which is not defined, and with the Council's direction in section 11-200.1-2 to agencies to use
	In addition, the potential to integrate mixed-use (e.g., offices, retail) with affordable housing is an explicit goal of some state and county agencies. Allowing for the potential of mixed use while keeping the agency to its own criteria for affordable housing could promote better urban communities that are multi-income and multi-use. Therefore, this exemption directs agencies to use their respective affordable housing law. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	For example, section 201H-36(a)(4), HRS sets forth one standard: 
	affordable rental housing where at least fifty per cent of the available units are for households with incomes at or below eighty per cent of the area median family income as determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, of which at least twenty per cent of the available units are for households with incomes at or below sixty per cent of the area median family income as determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
	This would apply when the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development' Corporation is approving 
	a proposal related to that standard, whereas each county has its own county ordinance that 
	would be the controlling law for the respective county agency mak_ing decisions about whether 
	to use county lands or funds. Note that chapter 343, HRS applies before chapter 201 H, HRS 
	and the Proposed Rules would not alter that order. 
	To reinforce the purpose of this exemption, several additional criteria are included. 
	This exemption would be applicable only when one or both of two possible triggers apply: the use of state or county lands or funds and Waikiki. The limitation to these two triggers is to keep the focus on the involvement of the state or county to support affordable housing development where the only reason someone would undergo environmental review is because government is subsidizing funding or leasing out land to assist the production of affordable housing. The Waikiki trigger is included because it is a 
	The exemption would only be eligible for actions on land that has already been classified by the 
	State Land Use Commission as urban. If the proposed action involves land classified as agriculture, conservation, or rural, or includes a boundary amendment to change the classification to urban, then the exemption would not be applicable. 
	The exemption would be eligible for land that has already been zoned by the county for housing. Each county organizes its zoning differently (or has distinct features) so this language is meant to acknowledge this variability. If the existing zoning for the proposed parcels do not allow housing, then this exemption would not be applicable. For example, Maui County has pyramid zoning, so industrial is not allowed in residential but residential is allowed in industrial. This language would account for this va
	The exemption would not be eligible if a variance for shoreline setback is included. This acknowledges General Type (9), which states that zoning variances may be exempted except for shoreline setback variances. This also reinforces the significance criteria that identify the sea level rise exposure area and erosion-prone areas as environmentally sensitive areas. 
	vOAa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	In (d), reference to "subchapter 4" is added to capture both general types under section 200.115 and activities in the de minimis category to the provision specifying that an exemption may not be granted when the cumulative impact of planned successive actions is significant, or when an action that is normally insignificant in its impact on the environment may be significant in a particularly sensitive environment. For example, it may be routine groundwork to remove a small ailing tree outside an agency bui
	-

	§ 11-200 .1-16 Exemption Lists 
	§ 11-200 .1-16 Exemption Lists 
	All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. 
	The Proposed Rules acknowledge that agencies are not required to create exemption lists and 
	some agencies may not regularly conduct activities that rise to the level of requiring chapter 
	343, HRS environmental review. An agency without an exemption list may still apply an 
	exemption by meeting the other requirer:nents of this subchapter. To capture the discretionary 
	nature of developing an exemption list, the Proposed Rules use the word "may" in subsection 
	11-200.1-1 6(a). 
	The Proposed Rules update the 1996 Rules language to reflect the other changes made to the 
	exemption process in sections 15 and 17, such as renaming the "classes" to "general types". 
	This section revises the exemption list to consist of two parts. The first part would be those 
	types of actions that the agency considers to be the equivalent of de minimis; that is, they are 
	routine operations and maintenance, ongoing administrative activities, and other similar items. This category of activities was proposed under section 11-200.1-8, General Applicability, in Version 0.3. The Proposed Rules removed that section and now require agencies to consider in advance what activities the agency considers to be de minimis, and to include those in Part 1 of the agency's exemption list. By including them in the exemption list, the agency is able to make staff aware of occasions where an ac
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	The second part of the exemption list consists of the general types identified in section 11
	-

	200.1-15 and what types of actions the agency regularly undertakes which it considers to be exempt but for which documentation of the exemption is appropriate. Individual actions would be recorded in exemption notices as set forth in 11-200.1-17. 
	The Proposed Rules also clarify that both applicant and agency actions may be exempt. An approving agency may determine that a proposed activity does not rise to the level of an action that requires an exemption notice because the proposed activity likely will have no or negligible environmental impact (Part 1 of the agency's exemption list). The agency may also exempt a proposed action based on either part two of the approvinQ agency's exemption list, or in accordance with a general type under section 11-2
	Agencies are required to submit their exemption lists for review and concurrence by the Council. 
	§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 
	All language in this section comes from section 11-200-8, HAR (1996) or is in addition to it. This section requires an agency to: create exemption notices for actions exempted under Part 2 of its exemption list or that the agency determines to be included within a general type of activity according to section 11-200.1-15; to maintain the exemption notices on file; and to provide a list of all exemption determinations created since the previous publication submittal deadline to the OEQC for publication in th
	The Proposed Rules generally require consultation with outside agencies or individuals that have jurisdiction or expertise as to the propriety of the exemption, documentation of that consultation in the exemption notice, and publication of the exemption notice unless: (1) the agency has created an exemption list in accordance with the enacted rules; (2) the agency received Council concurrence within seven years of the proposed implementation of the proposed action; and (3) the action is consistent with the 
	This provision allows for agencies that do not have exemption lists to exempt an activity or action as the need arises. Not all agencies regularly interact with chapter 343, HRS and therefore, the Proposed Rules do not require all agencies to create exemption lists. When the occasion arises that an agency without an exemption list must comply with chapter 343, HRS and an exemption is the applicable level of environmental review, then consultation, documentation, and publication of the exemption in the bulle
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	On the other hand, agencies that regularly interact with chapter 343, HRS already have exemption lists. However, many age·ncy exemption lists are decades old. The proposed consultation and publication exception is intended to create an efficiency incentive for agencies to create or update existing exemption lists and have those lists reviewed and concurred with by the Council on a consistent basis. The public has an opportunity to comment on the propriety of exemption lists during Council review and concurr
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 
	Subchapter 9 (Preparation of Environmental Assessments) creates a distinct subchapter addressing EAs. This subchapter provides direction to an agency when it has decided that preparation of an EA is the appropriate level of chapter 343, HRS environmental review. The sections are ordered chronologically to show the process that will be followed, starting with the consultation requirement prior to beginning a draft EA, and ending with the determination to issue an EISPN or a FONSI. 
	Section 11-200.1-18 describes the requirement of early consultation, addresses the scope of analysis and level of detail required in a draft EA, and the content requirements for a draft EA. Section 11-200.1-19 describes the process and content requirements for issuing a notice of an anticipated FONSI based on a draft EA. Section 11-200.1-20 describes the requirements for public review and response to comments for a draft EA. Section 11-200.1-21 describes the contents of a final EA. Section 11-200.1-22 descr
	§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 
	§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-10 of the 1996 Rules, which addressed the contents of both a draft and final EA. The provisions related to the contents of a draft EA are retained here, but in line with the effort of the Proposed Rules to order the environmental review steps chronologically, the provisions related to the contents of a final EA were moved into a separate section in this subchapter, section 11-200.1-21. 
	The revised rule sources language from former section 11-200-9 of the 1996 Rules Version 0.3 proposed definitions for "project" and "program", and this section describes how the distinction between a project and program influences the style of the document and the breadth and specificity of analysis and information contained therein. 
	Subsection (b) is a modification of the former section 11-200-19 of the 1996 Rules applying the style guidelines for an EIS to an EA. It mirrors the language included in the proposed 11-200.124 for the contents of a draft EIS, and provides that the scope and specificity within an EA will be commensurate with the scope of the action and the degree of specificity to which impacts are discernible at the time of preparation. Because a final EA is a draft EA revised to incorporate responses to comments, this sec
	-

	This section clarifies that a programmatic EA may omit issues that are not ripe for discussion on a more narrow scale. In the case of such an omission, a subsequent project may require its 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	own chapter 343, HRS determination. Subchapter 7 of the Proposed Rules assists with understanding this situation . 
	. Because most environmental review focuses on site-specific and discrete projects, the revised rule distinguishes between the level of detail and style of assessment for programs, which may be more broad and conceptual in nature, and that for projects, which are site-specific and discrete. By providing language on the level of detail and style of assessment for different types of actions, the rules give dire9tion regarding how to address projects or programs at risk of segmentation and acknowledges the ten
	The revised rule also focuses on analyzing instead of summarizing impacts. The use of the word "analyze" should not be understood to mean a lengthy discussion. It means that the impact discussion section should identify an impact and provide enough information to support a conclusion. In some cases, summaries tend to be assertions of impact and the degree of significance without presenting a supporting argument. 
	This section also requires applicants to identify which approval, when combined with a trigger, necessitated chapter 343, HRS environmental review. 
	This section also requires an indication of when individuals, organizations, or agencies were "consulted with" but had "no comment" if those persons or agencies are included as "consulted" entities in the draft EA. "No comment" can occur in at least two instances. First, when a person or agency responds to a written request for comments that it has "no comment", and second, when a proponent provides information but does not solicit feedback. The second is not true consultation, because it is not reciprocal 
	. received information from the action proponent, but were not invited to share feedback on the action. The proposed rules clarify that if the proponent desires to include attendees at informational meetings as those "consulted with" then it should be indicated whether those individuals or organizations gave "no comment." This also protects individuals and organizations who wish to gather more information through an informational session but who would not be prepared to also provide informed feedback at suc
	Lastly, this section incorporates language from former sections 11-200-10(8) and -10(9) requiring a draft EAto include specific agency or approving agency findings in the draft EA supporting agency determinations, including a FONSI. 
	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 


	§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-11.1 of the 1996 Rules. It aligns the EA process with changes to chapter 343, HRS that enable applicants to prepare their own EAs, as opposed to agencies preparing EAs on behalf of applicants. It separates language from the 1996 Rules into subsections to increase clarity. 
	Notably, this section simplifies the submittal requirement to one copy of the notice of determination and one copy of the final EA, which may be submitted electronically. This section also incorporates the filing requirements set forth in subchapter 4, and clarifies that approving agencies have a responsibility to send their determination to the applicant directly, but not necessarily via postal mail (electronic distribution is also acceptable). 
	The rule further clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual with authority and knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its environmental review must be provided in the document. A generic phone line or email address of the proposing agency or applicant without an individual identified will not satisfy this requirement. The person· should be able to answer questions regarding the action or refer to someone within the agency or applicant's organization who

	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-9.1 of the 1996 Rules. If an agency does not anticipate a FONS!, then it will likely move to or authorize an applicant to directly move to prepare an EIS. This determination requires the approving agency to use its judgment and expertise. In some cases, although an agency may anticipate a FONSI, the FONS! may not be issued until an EA is completed. 
	The revised rule reflects the practice that the applicant, rather than the approving agency, prepares the EA. 
	This rule further acknowledges that the public review period may differ from the standard 30 days provided under chapter 343, HRS and these rules for certain actions by statute. For example, the development or expansion of forensic facilities of the department of health or instate correctional facilities have 60-day comment periods for draft EAs (and EISs), per sections 
	334-2.7 and 353-16.35, HRS, respectively. 

	The Council found that the requirement to send a response to every individual person commenting on an environmental review document can be extremely burdensome for agencies and applicants, and was not justified by any real benefit to interested stakeholders and the public that cou ld not be satisfied by notifying the commenter via publication of the final EA. The 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	revised rule allows agencies and applicants to respond to issues raised by comments received on the draft EA within the final EA and deletes the former requirement to send individual responses directly to each commenter. This is intended to modernize and simplify the environmental review process. Commenters must still be identified in the response within the EA. The widespread availability of electronic documents to commenters and interested stakeholders relieves the necessity of sending individual written 
	The language proposed in .this rule is drawn from the United States Council on Environmental Quality's (CEQ) "Forty Most Asked Questions Concerning CEQ's National Environmental Policy Act Regulations", #29a and aligns with NEPA practice, which allows grouping of identical or similar comments and providing one response that covers the issues raised in identical or similar comments. Because individual responses would no longer be sent, the requirement for the OEQC to receive a copy of the responses to comment
	This section also incorporates language from the comment response requirements for EISs in section 11-200.1-26 providing guidance on how to discern substantive from non-substantive comments, and the level of detail a proposing agency or applicant should include at a minimum in responses. 
	This section is also modified to reflect that applicants prepare their own documents. Accordingly, the timely preparation of an EA or EIS by the approving agency is no longer applicable and is deleted. 
	Lastly, the Proposed Rules update references to filing and publication of addenda to a draft EA and public review of draft environmental assessments. 
	§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	This section is taken from the former section 11-200-10 of the 1996 Rules and lists the specific content requirements for a final EA. Changes to this section focus on analyzing instead of summarizing impacts. The rule also clarifies that the use of the word "analysis" should not be understood to mean a lengthy discussion. It means that the impact discussion section should identify an impact and provide a discussion detailed enough to support a conclusion. Summaries, in some cases, tend to be assertions of i
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	agencies to identify for applicants which discretionary permit necessitates environmental review 
	under chapter 343, HRS. 

	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	Formerly section 11-200-11.2 of the 1996 Rules, this section sources language from sElction 11200-9(b )(8) of the 1996 Rules. The revised rule aligns the process with Act 172 (2012), Directto-EIS, which requires the applicant to prepare documents instead of the approving agency. It also updates reference to subchapter 9, which encompasses the process and requirements for preparation of an environmental assessment previously included in sections 11-200-9(a) and 11-200-9(b) of the 1996 Rules. 
	-

	The revised rule simplifies the submittal requirement to one copy of the notice of determination 
	and one copy of the final EA, which may be submitted to the OEQC electronically. The specific filing and publication requirements are set forth in subchapter 4. 
	The rule clarifies that approving agencies have a responsibility to send their determination to the applicant directly, but not necessarily via postal mail (electronic distribution is sufficient). For applicant actions, the rule also explicitly requires the agency to issue its determination within 30 days of receiving the final EA. . 
	The revised rule adds language regarding the approving agency for the case of applicants because the accepting authority is applicable only for EISs and, in the case of applicant EISs, the accepting authority and approving agency are the same. 
	The revisions modernize the requirements to include email as a requirement for contact information. Most written communication today is done by email so providing that is just as important as a physical mail address. 
	The rule clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual with authority and knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its environmental review must be provided. A generic phone line or email address of the proposing agency or applicant without an individual identified will not satisfy this requirement. The person should be able to answer questions regarding the action or refer to someone within the agency or applicant's organization who can provide answers. 
	The revised rule further creates a standard set of content requirements for an EISPN regardless of whether the EISPN is a result of a final EA or a direct-to-EIS determination. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 
	Subchapter 10 (Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements) creates a distinct subchapter that addresses EISs. This -subchapter provides direction to an agency when it has decided that an EIS is the appropriate level of review, whether by the direct-to-EIS pathway as addressed in subchapter 7 (Determination of Significance) or by the issuance of an EISPN after a final EA, as addressed in subchapter 9 (Preparation of Environmental Assessments). The sections in this subchapter are ordered chronologically t
	Section 11-200.1-23 describes the contents of an EISPN, as well as the requirement of full and 
	complete consultation, the EIS .public scoping meeting, and the comment period following the 
	publication of an EISPN. Section 11-200.1-24 describes the content requirements for a draft 
	EIS, the scope of analysis and level of detail required in a draft EIS, and the response 
	requirements to comments received during the 30-day scoping period. Section 11-200.1-25 describes the public review requirements for a draft EIS. Section 11-200.1-26.sets forth the requirements for responding to comments received on a draft EIS. 
	Section 11-200.1 -27 describes the content requirements for a final EIS. Section 11-200.1-28 specifies the criteria for deeming a final EIS an acceptable document and outlines the steps following an acceptance or nonacceptance determination. Section 11-200.1-29 describes how an applicant may appeal an agency determination of non-acceptance to the Council. Section 
	11-200.1-30 addresses circumstances when a supplemental EIS may be required after acceptance of an EIS. 


	§ 11-200, 1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	§ 11-200, 1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-15 in the 1996 Rules and governs the content requirements for an EISPN. As discussed in the rationale for section 11-200.1-10, this section retains the 1996 Rules requirement for the identification of all permits and approvals expected for the project, and adds for applicants the identification of which specific discretionary approval that, combined with a trigger from section 343-5, HRS, necessitated the applicant to undergo environmental review. This is a requireme
	The revised rule further clarifies that the name and contact information of a specific individual with authority and knowledge to answer questions regarding the proposed action and its 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapt'er-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	environmental review must be provided. A generic phone line or email address of the proposing agency or applicant without an individual identified will not satisfy this requirement. The person should be able to answer questions regarding the action or refer to someone within the agency or applicant's organization who can provide answers. 
	The revised rule removes the requirement for an individual to become a consulted party in order to engage directly in providing and receiving public documents and determinations related to the proposed action. All documents and determinations are now published online and available 
	through the OEQC's website: http://oeqc2.doh.hawaii.gov/EA EIS Library/ 

	Most notably, this section makes the public scoping meeting a requirement and emphasizes that the meeting is about what the scope of the draft EIS should be. Proposing agencies and applicants acting within the spirit of chapter 343, HRS should engage meaningfully with individuals, organizations, and agencies early and often throughout the environmental review process. 
	The revised rule also shifts the focus to written comments submitted during the EISPN comment period and public scoping meeting and removes the requirement for the EIS preparer to transcribe individual oral comments. Instead, the revised rule provides that oral comments must be recorded, and a summary of the oral comments must be included as a separate section in the draft EIS. Written comments require responses to the comments in the draft EIS pursuant to section 11-200.1-24. 
	While the 1996 Rules allowed for a public scoping meeting, it was not required. The Council received comments both in favor of and opposed to requiring a public scoping meeting. The changes to the oral and written comments treatment were made after extensive consultation with interested stakeholders on this provision and as an effort to balance this new requirement for public scoping meetings and increased consultation, with the burden on the agencies and applicants preparing statements. 
	This section also allows the approving agency or accepting authority, with good cause, to extend the comment period on its own initiative or at the request of another party. 
	The draft EIS content requirements that were formerly in this section were relocated to section 11-200.1-24. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	' 
	§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft En~ironmental Impact Statement 
	§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft En~ironmental Impact Statement 
	This section was formerly-section 11-200-17 in the 1996 Rules and sets forth the content 
	requirements for draft El$s. Other language in this sectiqn is sourced from sections 11-200-16 
	and 11-200-19 of the 1996 Rules. 
	A number of language edits in this section were made to bring it in line with NEPA language. 
	This rule .also provides that the scope and specificity within an EIS will be commensurate with 
	the scope of the action and the degree of specificity to which impacts are discernible at the time 
	of preparation. 
	Some new concepts are introduced in the Proposed Rules: 
	Project Specific and Programmatic EISs. Version 0.3 proposed definitions for "project" and 
	"program", and this section describes how the distinction between a project and program 
	influences the style of the document and the breadth and specificity of analysis and information 
	contained therein. · 
	This section clarifies that the programmatic EIS may omit issues that are not ripe for discussion 
	on a more narrow, project-specific level. In the case of such an omission, a subsequent project 
	may require its own chapter 343, HRS determination or environmental review. Proposed 
	subchapter 7 A assists with understanding this situation. 
	The revised rule also distinguishes between the level of detail and style of assessment for programs, which may be more broad and conceptual in nature and that for projects, which are site-specific and discrete. Most environmental review focuses on site-specific and discrete projects. By providing language on the level of detail and style of assessment for different types of actions, the rules give direction regarding how to address projects or programs at risk of being viewed as segmented and acknowledges 
	Response to Comments. This section emphasizes that the comments are written comments that are submitted during the consultation period. Revised language in this section aligns with language in section 11-200.1-26 that changes the requirement to respond to voluminous and nearly identical comments individually. It also focuses attention on the content of the comments and the issues raised, rather than on responding to each individual commenter separately. It further clarifies that responses shall be made and 
	The rule requires that when batching comments and responses, the preparer must include the names of the individual commenters who provided comments on that topic and who have been 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	grouped, so that those commenters can see whether their comment was addressed and what 
	the response is. 
	The general summary of oral comments from the public scoping meeting does not need to be 
	an exhaustive or verbatim transcript, but does need to be a written summary included in the 
	draft EIS. It is intended to capture generally the comments made at the scoping meeting. Oral 
	comments are not required to be responded to directly in the EIS, but must be taken into 
	consideration in identifying likely effects. A court reporter or transcriber is not required at the 
	public scoping meeting. 
	The revised rule also requires that a representative sample of the handouts prepared for and 
	distributed at any public scoping meeting, including the agenda, must be included in the draft 
	EIS. Handouts not related to the action need not be included. For example, general 
	promotional materials for the applicant need not be included, but a fact sheet outlining the 
	proposed action should be included. 
	The revised rule also distinguishes between a consultation in which an agency, citizen group, or individual provides comments to the proposing agency or applicant regarding the action and a consultation in which the proposing agency or applicant only provides information about the action to the agency, citizen group, or individual. The revised rule includes requirements for when individuals, organizations, or agencies were "consulted with" but had "no comment." This can occur in at least two instances. Firs
	The rule makes explicit that only one representative copy of the agency consultation letter is required, similar to requiring only one reproduction of identical comments, such as form letters. 
	Public Scoping Meeting Location: The Council discussed where public scoping meetings would be required to be held. The Council sought to balance community input and engagement with reducing the burden on proposing agencies and applicants. Different options were considered, including requiring a public scoping meeting in the "county," or "island" or on the "islands" where the action will have the greatest effect. The Council noted the importance of holding the scoping meeting closest to where there will be a
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	those likely impacts. Therefore, the word "county" was inappropriate because public scoping meetings for actions proposed in Maui County could be held on an island different than that of the action. The Council also considered but left for future guidance documents that accessibility must be taken into account when planning the scoping meeting. For example, an action that will have an impact on individuals in the Hilo area of the Island of Hawaii should hold a meeting in the vicinity of Hilo, not Kana. The 
	Other Changes: 
	The revised rule also clarifies that the list of relevant documents means documents other than 
	chapter 343, HRS, environmental review documents. The documents may be used to identify 
	potential segmentation or cumulative impacts of a proposed action, or for other purposes in 
	preparation of the EIS. 
	The revised rule also clarifies that not all alternatives to the action must be considered--only 
	those that are considered by the proposing agency or applicant to be "reasonable" need to be 
	rigorously explored and objectively evaluated. This qualification is drawn from NEPA's 40 CFR 
	1502.14(a): "Rigorously explore and objectively evaluate all reasonable alternatives, and for 
	alternatives which were eliminated from detailed study, briefly discuss the reasons for their 
	having been eliminated." The revised rule also requires discussion of the reasons for omitting 
	detailed study of alternatives. 
	The revised rule also updates the subsection listing laws containing environmental goals and guidelines that the draft EIS must address adverse effects on, as applicable. In considering 
	which environmental laws and policies to address, include the ones listed in paragraph (o) as applicable and any laws relevant to the significance criteria or criterion under section 11-200.1
	-

	13 that required preparation of the EIS. 
	Subsections (i) and U) explicitly include "cultural" resources as part of the impacts to be analyzed in line with Act 50 (2000). 

	§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact Statements 
	§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact Statements 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-22, HAR (1996). The rule encourages open and early. consultation with interested stakeholders, and for an applicant EIS, that the approving authority and accepting agency are the same. This section also ties back to section 11-200.1-1, which provides the spirit in which consultation should be conducted to align with the purpose of the chapter. 
	The rule provides that the standard comment period for a draft EIS is forty-five days, and also acknowledges that the public review period may be something other than forty-five days for certain actions by statute. For example, the development or expansion of forensic facilities of 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	the department of health or in-state correctional facilities have 60-day comment periods for draft EISs (and EAs), per 
	sections 334-2.7 and 353-16.35, HRS, respectively. 

	§ 11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for Draft 
	Environmental Impact Statements 
	Environmental Impact Statements 
	This rule was formerly section 11-200-22 in the 1996 Rules, which has been divided into two 
	sections including this section and the preceding section 11-200.1-25. This section more 
	specifically addresses response requirements for written comments received during the 45-day 
	public review and comment period. 
	The comment response requirements for an EIS mirror those for an EA, found in subchapter 9. This section similarly explicitly allows for batching comments, akin to what is allowed under NEPA, and in doing so, changes the requirements for responding to voluminous and nearly identical comments individually. The rule also focuses attention on the content of the comments and the issues raised, rather than on responding to each individual commenter separately. If the batching option is used, the individuals, age

	§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 
	§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 
	Formerly section 11-200-18 of the 1996 Rules, this section sets forth the content requirements for a final EIS. The revised rule incorporates the content requirements for a draft EIS set forth in section 11-200.1-24 and requires that the reproduction and response to comments on the draft EIS within the final EIS conform with the requirements set forth in section 11-200.1-26. 
	In subsection (a), this section amends the requirement for a final EIS to discuss all "relevant and feasible consequences" to "all reasonably foreseeable consequences." The Council proposed this revision because the phrase "reasonably foreseeable" is a phrase line from NEPA. Therefore, there is more case law history and federal guidance to assist in its interpretation and application to various circumstances. 
	Like section 11-200.1-24 for draft EISs, this section lists the specific content requirements for the final EIS. This section also distinguishes between a consultation in which an agency, citizen group, or individual provides comments to the proposing agency or applicant regarding the action and a consultation in which the proposing agency or applicant only provides information about the action to the agency, citizen group, or individual. It requires an indication of when an 






	IV. New Bus C. HAR 11-200 and 11-200.1 Env. Impact Statements - Part 1
	Structure Bookmarks
	IV. New Business 
	IV. New Business 
	C.Discussion and Action on Proposed Repeal of HAR Title 11, Chapter 200, and Proposed New Chapter 200.1, Environmental Impact Statement Rules, promulgated by DOH 
	C.Discussion and Action on Proposed Repeal of HAR Title 11, Chapter 200, and Proposed New Chapter 200.1, Environmental Impact Statement Rules, promulgated by DOH 


	Version 0.4 Ramseyer 
	Version 0.4 Ramseyer 
	Proposed Revisions to Hawaii Administrative Rules Title 11 Department of Health Chapter 200 Environmental Impact Statement Rules , 
	,; 
	February 20, 2018 

	Prepared with the assistance of the Office of Environmental Quality,Control (OEQC). 
	' 
	,. 

	' 
	,, \ ', 1 / ' 
	Figure
	Proposed.HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	How to Read Version 0.4 
	Version 0.4 presents proposed amendments to the Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Chapter 11-200, Environmental Impact Statements (EISs ), which this document refers to as the "1996 Rules". Because the proposed reorganization and various revisions, the Environmental Council ("Council") intends to repeal Chapter 11-200, HAR and promulgate a new chapter. The new chapter would be numbered Chapter 11-200.1, HAR, which is reflected in this version. The proposed chapter is referred to as the ''Proposed Rules" in 
	Version 0.4 presents a similar organization and formatting as Version 0.,3. It.does not carry 
	. ( ' . ·. 
	forward all proposed additions and deletions considered in yersions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3. Version 0.4 only shows changes with respect to the existing 1996 Rules, including those changes proposed 
	I ' ..... • ~ 
	in and retained from versions 0.1, 0.2, and 0.3 and those newly propo$ed in Vers1on 0.4. 
	Unlike the previous versions, Version 0.4 does not have footnotes. Instead, it has a companion document providing the rationale for changes between the 1996 Rules'af)d Versiori QA. 
	Version 0.4 provides a "Ramseyer-like" style of fortnattir19 to en~ance und~rstar,ding of the proposed changes from the 1996 Rules. The style adapts the Legi_slative Reference Bureau format, while enhancing readability. ' · · · 
	• Defined terms are balded throughout the text to reader's attention to the fact 
	draw,t.he 

	,... \ \ ~ ' ' 
	that the term has a particular meaning within the context ofrthe Proposed Rules. 
	I • I , 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Pursuant to Ramseyer style, l!riderlining indicates! languag·e that is moved between sections (i.e., 1996 language· f~o\n ia section other than tli~ o'ne that the proposed section correlates t9) and new languagl3 intrs>duced in Versjon 0.4 of the Council's proposed rules working draft. 

	• 
	• 
	Highlightirg, i~ addition to t.in~erlining, distinguishes new language introduced in Version 


	0:l 'of the council's propos€ld rl.J!es working d~aft from 1996 rules language that has been , rnov~a. To help contrast with Ve~sion 0.3'; Version 0.4 uses a magenta highlight color. 
	• I \ 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Pwsua11t to Ramseyer style, ~eletions of 1996 rules language are bracketed and struck-thrdugh. / I 

	• 
	• 
	Deletions of language that was ri~wly inserted in versions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3 have been complet~·ly rerrioyed to pr~s~nt-a clean document that captures the language retained todate in the ViOrking drfts. In some cases, the new language in Version 0.4 may be identical or revised l~hguage considered in previous working drafts. 
	9



	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	2 
	Examples of Formatting 
	Table
	Original 1996 rules language that is in a proposed section that correlates with an existing 1996 rules section. 
	Original 1996 rules language that is in a proposed section that correlates with an existing 1996 rules section. 
	The original 1996 language looks like this without any formatting. 

	Original 1996 rules language that has been moved from a section of the 1996 Rules that does not specifically correlate with the section it is now in, or is part of a new proposed section combining provisions from existing sections of the 1996 Rules. This is referred to as "moved" language. 
	Original 1996 rules language that has been moved from a section of the 1996 Rules that does not specifically correlate with the section it is now in, or is part of a new proposed section combining provisions from existing sections of the 1996 Rules. This is referred to as "moved" language. 
	Moved original 1996 language looks like this. 

	New language in Version 0.4, including language that was introduced and retained from versions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3. 
	New language in Version 0.4, including language that was introduced and retained from versions 0.1, 0.2, or 0.3. 
	New langua gelliom Versfo~ 0.4.ii;funder,ITned and-highligf.lted,in a".>light orange~ ' 

	Original 1996 rules language that is proposed to be deleted is bracketed and struck-through. 
	Original 1996 rules language that is proposed to be deleted is bracketed and struck-through. 
	19.96 Rules ·ianguage t'hat i~ tq be deleted [looks like) his].' · · 

	' 
	' 
	\ 

	Example #1: 
	Example #1: 

	Original 1996 rules language that inclddes 
	Original 1996 rules language that inclddes 
	Th1 py'rpose o(t~is chapter is to provide 

	defined terms ("agencies" "persons'', \ I f , ., · I 
	defined terms ("agencies" "persons'', \ I f , ., · I 
	agencies and persons with procedures, 

	"environmental assessments", "environmental 
	"environmental assessments", "environmental 
	' -~ • ,., • • ---, • -l""" -...,' specification~ [ef] regarding the. contents of 
	-


	impact statements''.-), propose_d lang'uage to be 
	impact statements''.-), propose_d lang'uage to be 
	environmental assessments (EAs) and 

	deleted ("of'), and new ls3nguage_.("(EAs)", "(EISs)"). 
	deleted ("of'), and new ls3nguage_.("(EAs)", "(EISs)"). 
	environmental impact statements ieiSs}., and criteria and definitions of statewide 

	TR
	TD
	Figure

	application. 

	' \ I 1Example.#2: , Moved 1996 rules language that inc!ude,s a defined term ("office"), proposed ws:>'rds,to be deleted ("agency" and ."section 11.:209:.3") and new language inserted ('!and the° rc!ti6nale" and "this subchapte?'). . 
	' \ I 1Example.#2: , Moved 1996 rules language that inc!ude,s a defined term ("office"), proposed ws:>'rds,to be deleted ("agency" and ."section 11.:209:.3") and new language inserted ('!and the° rc!ti6nale" and "this subchapte?'). . 
	The office shall publish notice of [agency] withdrawals and the rationale in accordance with [section 11 200 3] rhis subc hapter. 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 3 
	Table of Contents 
	Table of Contents 
	Table of Contents 4 Subchapter 1 Purpose 6 § 11-200.1-1 Purpose 6 Subchapter 2 Definitions 7 § 11-200.1-2 Definitions 7 Subchapter 3 Computation ofTime · ~ 12 § 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 12


	N ._, 
	N ._, 
	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin~r: 13
	..,.l~,, 
	§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin :,/'.1Y 13 § 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Wi ij~.,., 14 
	16 
	18 18 20 20 21 22 
	22 23 23 24 
	25 
	26 
	26 
	28 § 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 29 Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 30 § 11-200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 30 § 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 31 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	4 
	4 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental 
	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental 
	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmental 

	Assessments [for Anticipated Negati'le Declaration Determinations & Addenda to Draft 
	Assessments [for Anticipated Negati'le Declaration Determinations & Addenda to Draft 

	Environmental Assessments] 
	Environmental Assessments] 
	32 

	§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	34 

	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	35 

	TR
	TH
	Figure

	37 

	TR
	37 

	TR
	38 

	TR
	45 

	TR
	45 

	TR
	47 

	TR
	48 

	§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council t-lT~ 1:-,. • l" ( ,,. . § 11-2.00.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Im •,ftState , 
	§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council t-lT~ 1:-,. • l" ( ,,. . § 11-2.00.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Im •,ftState , 
	50 50 

	Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy 
	Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy 
	€','f 
	· 
	52 

	§ 11-200.1-31 National Environment~~qlicy , Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS r·:P 
	§ 11-200.1-31 National Environment~~qlicy , Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS r·:P 
	52 

	Subchapter 12 Retrnactivity and Sei~0ility 
	Subchapter 12 Retrnactivity and Sei~0ility 
	54 

	§ 11-200.1-32 
	§ 11-200.1-32 
	~ 
	e~tjy,i~ 
	~· 
	54 

	§ 11A-200.1-~~~il 
	§ 11A-200.1-~~~il 
	at5m\ 
	\;.. ~f, 
	54 

	Note 
	Note 
	-··
	-

	1 -~:. 
	55 

	• 
	• 
	I 
	' 
	, 

	. ..; _.:; 
	. ..; _.:; 
	.~ 

	"' 
	"' 

	. 
	. 
	. 
	. 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 5 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 5 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	Subchapter 1 Purpose . 
	Subchapter 1 Purpose . 
	§ 11 -200.1-1 Purpose 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Chapter 343, i-lawaTI Revlsed Statutes,! !HRS1, establishes a system of environmental review at the state and county levels [Wffiffi] that shall ensure that environmental concerns are given appropriate consideration in decision making along with economic and technical considerations. The purpose of this chapter is, to provide agencies and persons with procedures, specifications IefJ regard1ng-the c,bnterts of environmental ·assessments {EAs) and environmental impact (EISs), and criteria and definitions of s
	staterrien.ts 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	[An EIS] EAs~and EISs [is] .are meaningless without the conscientious application of the [€-1-Sj ~nvironm.ental review process as a whole. and shall not be merely a.seit~serving recitation of benefits and a rationalization of the proposed 'action. Agencies and . 


	----~----------"-'· 
	-

	applicants shall ensure that [statements] EAs and EISs are prepared at the earliest opportunity in the planning and decision-making process. This shall assure an early open forum for discussion of adverse effects arid available alt~rnatives. and t~at the decisionmakers will be enlightened to any envirohmental consequen'ces of the proposed action 
	I ·, ' 
	briortodecisioomaking. : ' 

	, I 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	. ln prepanng any document. proposing agencies~and appHEants shall:' 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	[make] Make every etto·tt to convey the\req\iired information succinctly in a form easily. understood, both by hiembers of the public and by government decisionmakers. giving attention to the· substance of the information conveyed rather than to the particular form. or length, of the document: 


	. ,.. ·--~·-,. ·,
	(~) [care shall be taken] iliake care to concentrate on important issues and to ensure that the document ~~mains an essentially self-contained document. capable of being understood by the rkader without the need for undue cross-reference;and 
	(3) Conduct any required CC>n$ultation as mutual, open and direct. two-way fcmimumcat1on, in go ocffaith.-to secure the meaningfulpartlcipationof agencies and the publlcTn thefenv1ronmentalreviewpr ocess. 
	/ 
	[Eff j (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-1, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	6 
	Subchapter 2 Definitions 
	§ 11-200.1-2 Definitions 
	As used in this chapter: 
	"Acceptance" means a formal determination [of acceptability] that the document required to be filed pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, fulfills the definitions and requirE:rments of an environmental impact statement JEIS). [adequqtely describes identifiable eny~ron,men!al impacts, an~ . satisfactorily responds to comme~ts received during the revie\\' bf the statement] as prescribed by section 11-::200.1-28. Acceptance does not mean that the action i~ environmentally sound or unsound, but only that the document c
	. 
	. 

	"Accepting authority" means the [fi.AfH] official who,' or agericy that, [determines the acceptability of the EIS document] makes thedetermmafionthat a final EIS is reciufredto be filed: pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, and that the fina .EIS fulfills the definitions and requirements 
	.of an EIS. ' ·, 
	"Action" means any program or project to be initiated by an agency or applicant.
	• I I , \ I 
	"Addendum" means an attachment_t_o ;a draft [environmE;ntal as~essment] EA or draft 
	[environmental impact statement] Eis, prepared at thJ discretion·9f the proposing agency,: [eF] 
	~pplicant, or approving agency, and _distil}ct from a supplemental EIS [statement], for the 
	purpose of disclosing and addressing clerical ~rrors such as inadvertent omissions, corrections, 
	or clarificatiqns to information ~lre~dy contained in the draft [environmental assessment] '.EA or 
	the draft [efi¥ironmental impact state~«:;mt] Eis already filed with the office. 
	< . 
	"Agency" meaps any department, office,\ board, or commission of the state or county 
	government [whiffi] that is part of the}ex~cutive branch of that government. 
	! 
	"Applicant" means any person [wl=!G] that, pursuant to statute, ordinance, or rule, officially 
	requests approval frQm an a~~n'cy for a proposed action. 
	"Approval" means a discr~tionary consent required from an agency prior to [aswat] implementation of an action. [Giscretionary consent means--a--eonsent, sanetion, or recommendation from an ageney for which judgment and free will may be exercised by the issuing agency, as distinguished from a ministerial consent. Ministerial consent means a oonsent, sanetion, or reeommendation from an agency upon a given set of facts, as prescribee by-law or rule without the use of judgment or discretion--.] 
	"Approving agency" means an agency that issues an approval prior to [~]implementation of an applicant action. 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	7 
	"Council" [or "EC"] means the environmental council. 
	"Cumulative impact" means the impact on the environment [wl=HGR] l hat results from the 
	incremental impact of the action when added to other past,· present, and reasonably 
	foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency or person undertakes such other 
	actions. Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but collectively slgnificant 
	actions taking place over a period of time. 
	"Discretionary consent" means a consent, sanction, or recommendation from an agency for 
	which judgment.and free will may be exercised by the issuin{agency, as 8istihguished from a 
	ministerial consent. Ministerial consent means a consent, ;~anction, or recommendation from an 
	agency upon a given set of fads, as prescribed by law without the u's'e-of judgment or discretion. 
	' "Draft environmental assessment" means the [environme,:ital asses~ment] E~ submitted·by a proposing agency or an approving agency for public review and ~omlT)ent when that. agency 
	anticipates a [negative declaration] finding of no significant impac (FONSI) [determination].
	' . 
	"Effects" or "impacts" as used in this chapter are synonymous. · Effects may include ecological 
	I ' 
	effects (such as the effects on natural resources ~nd on the components, structures, and 
	functioning of affected ecosystems), aesthetic Jttects, historic effects, cultural effects, 
	economic effects, social effects, or health ~ffe~ts, 'whether primJry, secondary, or 
	--. ; ) ( 
	cumulative, immediate or delayed. Effects may also· include those effects resulting from 
	actions [wl=HGR] that may have both behef!cial and det(r!m~ntal -effects, even if on balance the 
	agency believes th.at the effe~t will be ben~ficial. · 
	"EIS preparation noticew·~ [Gf] fEISPN", or "preparation notice" means a determination 
	[based or:i •an environmental asse~smert that the subjeet] ihat an action may have a significant 
	• " ~ -1 \ -~ ~ -----~ ------~ 
	-

	effect ._o'n the environment and, therefore, will require the preparation of an [environmental 
	impaet statement] EIS, based on eittier an EA or an agency's judgment and experience that the 
	--. -i -
	-

	proposed action may have a significant effect on the environment.I 
	.. ' I / 
	"EIS public scoping meeting" means•a meeting in wh1ch-agencies-citizen groups, and the 
	1 

	general public are notified of the opportunity to assist the proposing agency or applicant in 
	~etermining t he rang-e of act'foiis."aiternatives, impacts, and-proposed mitigation measures td 
	be considered in the draftB&and the significant issues to be analyzed in depth in the draft 
	EIS"! 
	EIS"! 
	"Emergency action" means an action to prevent or mitigate loss or damage to life, health, 
	property, or essential public services in response to a sudden unexpected occurrence 
	demanding such immediate action. 
	·"Environment" means humanity's surroundings, inclusive of all the physical, economic, cultural, and social conditions that exist within the area affected by a proposed action, including land, 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	8 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	human and animal communities, health, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and 
	objects of historic, cultural, or aesthetic significance. 
	"Environmental assessment" or ''EA",means a written evaluation (te-eetermine whether an aBtie mental effect] ihat serves to provide sufficient evidence.and analysis to determine.wh.ether an action may have a significant effect. 
	["Environmental impact" means an effect of any kind, 11,«hether immediate or delayed, on any 
	component of the environment.] 
	. / 
	"Environmental Impact statement/~ "statement.".1 or "EIS" means an informational document 
	prepared in compliance with chapter 343, HRS[, and this chapter and..i1,hich fully complies ,vith 
	1

	,-I ( •, .. 
	subchapter 7 of this chapter]. The initial (statement] EIS filed for public review shall be referred to as the draft [environmental impact statement] BS and shall be distinguisheo from the final [environmental impact statement] EIS, which is the documellt that h·as incorporated the public's 
	comments and the responses to those comments. The final [environmental impact statement] EIS is the document that shall be evaluated for accepting authority. 
	acceptability py the [respeisti;.ie] 

	["Exempt classes of action" means exceptions fyom the requirements Qf chapter 343, HRS, to prepare environmental assessments, for a <?las~ of actions, based ,on a determination by the 
	• I
	.ie a minimal or no significant effect on the environment.] ' • 
	proposing agency or approving agency,that the class 9f actions will P,FObably ha
	1
	1 

	I
	. I 

	,: 
	Figure
	"Exemption notice" means a [brief notice kept on file by the proposing agency, in the case of a [public action, or the agency with the power of approval, in the case of a private action, when it has determined that the-pra13esed-project is an exempt or emeF§~eet] notice -produced Tn' accordancewithsubchapter 8for an action thata proposing agency.oi-approving agencyon behalf of an applicant determines to be exempt from preparation of an EAl 
	"Final environmental assessment" means either the [environmental assessment]~ submitted by a proposing agency or an approving agency following the public review and comment period for the draft [Ofl-Vifenmental assessment] ~ and in support of either a FONSI or [a preparation notice] .an EISPN. '[determination; or the environmental assessment submitted by a 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	proposing agency or an approving agency subject to a publ-iG-Bensultation period when such an 
	agency clearly determines at the outset that the proposed action may have a significant effect 
	and hence will require the preparation of a statement.] 
	"Finding of no significant impact" or "FONS!" means a determination by an agency based on 
	"Finding of no significant impact" or "FONS!" means a determination by an agency based on 
	an EA that an action not otherwise exempt will not have a significant effect on the 
	environment and therefore does not require the preparation of an EIS. A FONSI is required 
	prior to implementing or approving the action. 
	"Impacts" means the same as "effects';.I 
	"Issue date" means the date imprinted on the periodic builetin req~lred by s~ction 343-3, HRS. 
	"National Environmental Policy Act" br ''NEPA'\ means the National Environmental Policy 
	Act of 1969, Public Law 91-190, 42 U.S.C. [§] sectfons 432~-4347, a~ amendea. . 
	["Negative declaration" or "finding of no significant impact" means a determination by an agency 
	based on an environmental assessment that a given action n·ot other.vise mcempt does not have 
	a significant effect on the environment and thererore does not require the preparation of an EIS. 
	I ' 
	A negative declaration is required prior to implemerting or,appro~.«ing tpe action.] 
	"Office" means the .Office of~nvironmehtal ,Quality Qohtrol. 
	I 
	"Periodic bulletin" or j'bulletin'~ m~an's the documen\ required by section 343-3, HRS, and 
	published by the office. 
	"Person" includes any individual, partnership, firm, association, trust, estate, private corporation, 
	or other legal entity other than an agency. 
	["Prep~ration notice" or "EIS prepardtion notice_means a determination based on an 
	• • I \ ' 
	environmental assessment that the subje,ct action may have a significant effect on the 
	. I , 
	environment dn.d, therefore, will require the preparation of an environmental impact statement.] 
	"Primary impact-". eF "primary effect:"· Of "direct impact-" or "direct effect" means effects 
	~ . .a. .a. • '· • .1 J. :.a. J. 
	[wl=Hsh] .that are caused oy the action and occur at the same time and place. 
	'Project" means adiscrete, pianned undertaking that has a defined-begTnnmg and end time. Ts site specific, and has a specific goal or purpose; 
	1

	FProgram" means a series of one ofmore projects to be carried out concurrently or in-phases fwithin a general timeline, that may include multiple sites or geographic are.as, and is undertaker/ 
	r,;--. -----... ---...... ------------' 
	for a broad goal or purpose. A program may include: a number of separate projects in a given ~eographic area which, if considered singly, may have minor impacts, but if considered togetherl 
	---• • ---·----·-• ---• --•• -----· -· I 

	may have significant impacts; separate projects having generic or common impacts; an entire 
	may have significant impacts; separate projects having generic or common impacts; an entire 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	plan having wide application or restricting the range of future alternative policies or actions,: 
	lnciuding new·significant changes to existmg landuseplans, develo-pment plans,zonin-g 
	r -. ------·-
	-

	regulations, or agency comprehensive resource management plans: implementation of a single 
	,·--· -· ----------. ------. -1
	project or multiple projects over a long timeframe: or implementation of a single project over a 
	geographic area~ 
	large 

	1•Proposlng agency" means any state or county agency that proposes an action underchapter: 
	343.HR& 
	"Secondary impact[:;:}"~[ei:] "secondary effect[:;:}"~[ei:] "indireqt impact[;:]" !)r.l'indirect effect" 
	"Secondary impact[:;:}"~[ei:] "secondary effect[:;:}"~[ei:] "indireqt impact[;:]" !)r.l'indirect effect" 
	I --·-~ • \ . • 
	means an [effests] effect [WRiGfl] that [are] i§ caused by the action and [are] is later in time or 
	farther removed in distance, but [a-Fe] !§ still reasonably foreseeable. [Indirect] lA.n inctlrect 
	[effects] effect may include~ growth~inducing [effects] ~ffEict ~nd other effects r~lated to 
	induced changes in the pattern of land use, population density or growth rate, ~nd related 
	effects on ai( [a-Ra] water.1 and other natural systems, incluqirig ecosystems. 
	. . 

	"Significant effect" or "significant impact" means the sum of effects on.,the quality of the 
	"Significant effect" or "significant impact" means the sum of effects on.,the quality of the 
	~--'· environment, including actions that irrevocably c9mmit a natur~I resource, curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment, are contrary to the [stat&s] State's environmental policies or long-term environmental goals and guidelines a§ established by law, [ei:] adversely affect the 
	' I ' 
	economic welfare, [ei:] social welfare, or cultural practices..,ofthe c0mmunity and state,: or are otherwise set forth in section [11 200 12];il\ioIT-14 fbf this chapter]. 
	' !
	I , \ 
	"Supplemental [statement] EIS" m~earis an [additional environmental impact statement] '.updated Efs'prepared for al) action fo[ which [a stat~ment] ~n EIS ws previously accepted, but which has since changed supsta11tively in size,· scope, intensity, use, location, or timing, among other things. 
	9

	A "triggef' means any use or activity listed in section 343-5{a), HRS, requiring preparation of an' 
	r ---, ' ' 
	environmental assessment. · 
	Figure
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 34~-5; 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-2, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	11 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 



	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
	§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 
	In computing any perlod of time·-prescribed or allowed by this chapter~ order of the council, or by any apolicable statute, the day ofthe act. event. or default after which the designated periodof tfme is to ru·n. shall not be included.--The last day of the period so computed shall be included unlessit isaSundayor legal holiday.' 
	! 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 1-29, 8-1, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 1-29, 8,-1, 343-6) 
	<-: 
	I 
	I I 
	.{. 
	\ 
	\ 
	J 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	12 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin 
	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin 
	§ 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	The periodic bulletin shall be issued on the eighth and twenty-third days of each month. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	[The office shall inform the public through the publication of~ periodic bulletin of the · following:] When filed in accordance with section· 11~200\~ -5,tlile' office shall publish ttie following in the periodic bulletin to inform the publitbfactions undergoing chapter 343, HRS env.ironmental review and the associated pu@Tc commeri't perioG:ls provided here or. 


	-----• -, l / "' •, 
	.elsewhere by statute: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Determmations that an existing exemption, FONSl~r, accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS for a proposed activity; < 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Elcemptlon notices and actions an.agency has determined to Be exempt: 
	lists.of 


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(Notices filed b•1 agencies of the availaoility of environmental assessments] Draft EAs and appropriate addendum dbcuments-for ~ubi12 review and [comments] thirty-day comment period, including notice ofaiianticipated FG>NS( 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Final EAs, including notice of a FONSI, or~ ISP.N·with thirty-day comment 


	'period and notice of EIS public scoping meeting~and appropriate addendum' I ,. I 
	tlocuments: 

	~~~~· . 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	Notice of an EISPN,wlth thirty-day com'ment peri0a and notice of EIS public sc.oplng.meeting-;'and appropi-iateaddendum ddcuments; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	[Notices filed by agencies of] Evaluatlons and determinations that 'supplemental , -' ' 


	(statements] EISs are required or not required; 
	(7). . [The availability of.statements] 9rnft EISs, including draft supplemental (statements] EiSsJ and appropriate addendum documents for public review and forty-five day commeilt period; 
	(8) F1narEiss~1ncluding fi al supplemental EISs, and a·ppropriate addendum 
	oocuments; / 
	oocuments; / 
	(9) 
	(9) 
	(9) 
	(The) Notice of ~cceptance or non-acceptance of (statements] EiSs, including ~upplemental EISs; · 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	J~epublit:ation otanychapter343, HRS noticeS:-documents, or cfeterrmnatfons:· 


	l •• ..._,...___ ~~---r""'-•-------· --, 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	Notices of withdrawal of any chapter 343, HRS notices, documents, ori .determinations; 

	(12) 
	(12) 
	Other notices required by the rules of the council. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	When filed in accordance with thJS subchapter, theoffice shall publishother notices 'required by statute or rules, including those not specifically related to chapter 343, HRS.. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The office may, on a space br time available basis, publish other notices not specifically related to chapter 343, HRS. 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-3, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Anything required to be pub[shed in-fh_e.bulletin shaH be submitted to the office before Hiecloseof business four business days prior-to the issuedate: 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	All submittals to the office for publication in the bulletin shall be accompanied by a completed informational form [WAffiR] that provides whatever·information the office needs to properly notify the public. The information requested may include the following: the title of the action: the islands affected by the proposed action: tax map key numbers: street addresses: nearest geographical landmarks: latitudinal and longitudinal coordinates or ofher ge.ographic data:applicablepermits,Tnc1ficllilg for, a1;>pfl


	. -----" -~ -·--.· ., , ·,
	approval requiring chapter 343, HRS environmental re'iliew1 whether the proposed action is an agency or an applicant action: a citation 'of the applicable federal or state statutes requiring preparation of the document: the type of docu·inent prepared: the names, addresses, email addresses~ phone numbers and contact persons as applicable 
	/ ' ' ' 
	of the accepting authority, the proposing.agency, the.approving agency, the applicant, and the consultant: and a brief narrative ~ummary of the 'proposed action [WRiGR] That provides sufficient detail to convey the full impact of the proposed action to the public. ' · 
	(c) The office shalfnot accept untlmely submittaTs or reviSIOnS t~ereto afterthe issue date deacffine forwhich the submittal was onginally\filed haspassed! 
	\ . 
	(d) 
	(e) a'o be pul:5lished in the bulletin, all submittais to the office siiaii meet the filing 1(aI=lc} andbeprepared in accordancewTffithischapfer and
	requirements•in subsections



	=----r . . --. . -. . 
	=----r . . --. . -. . 
	1 
	:Chapter 343, HRSas appropriate. The following shall meet additional filing ~equlrements:: 
	1 

	(1) When the d~ment ls a-draftEAwith an anticfuatecl FONSI, the-proposing 
	r--
	-

	:agency or approving agency shall: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	file thedocument and determination with the office: 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Deposit, or require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing [par;3qraph (5)] fcltFie office, one paperi copy of the draft (environmeA-tal assessment] ;EA. at the nearest state library in each county in which the 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	14 
	Environmental Council 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 · 
	proposed action is to occur and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents Center: and 
	(C) Distribute, concurrently (with the filing in paragraph (5),1 the draft [environmental assessment] EA to other agencies having jurisdiction or expertise as well as citizen groups and individuals which the proposing agency reasonably believes to be affected: 
	(2) When the document is a final EA with-a FON.SI, the proposing agency or approving agency shall: 
	. (A) fncorporate,or require the-applicant to incorporate, the FONSI into the contents ofTh-e finaf EA~-as prescnbed in section 1 :r=-20O.1::-21, section1120cf1-22, a-nd s-ection · 11-26cf.1 ~i3: · 
	-

	(8) 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	Flle the finalEA andthem corporate'cf FONSI with the office: and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Deposit,"or require the-applicant to Beo'osiCconc rrently with thefiling to the office,-one-paper.copy of·the final-EA\vffii ffie HawaTioocume-nts 


	t -• "· ./•,
	.Center:, , 
	• -----. • --·· --.• 1 . 
	(3) When the document is a final EA with an EISPN, the proposing agency or ~pproving agency shaTf :· '
	-

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Incorporate; or regurre the applicant to incorporate, the EISPN into the tontents oHhe tlnalEA, aspre'scriliea in section 11~ 1'-21,section 11200:22, andsection-IT-2ffiDT=z3A:: 
	-
	-


	(8) 
	(8) 
	Filetherncorporated·E·ISPN' with the final EA: and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Dep-os,torrequTr.effie,appttcantlo.deposiUcd'ncurrently with the filing td 


	,-~ ----,,_.,,., ----1-7.r --~ -------------,
	the office, one paper copy of the final EA witli the Hawaii Documents 
	Center: / ·,.\ '-' 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	When tile;notice is ar:i EISPNwith-out the prebaratTon of an EA the proposing agency or approving agency shall: 

	(A) Fffethe EISPN with the office: and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Deposit, o require theapplicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to ,, 


	the office:-one paper copyc)tthe EISPN at the nearest statelibrary in 
	r-. ---
	-

	.each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper COP¥ atthe FiawaTiooc1:1merits ·center: 
	(5) When.the document isa draft•EIS, the.i>roposing agency or applicant sha-11: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	.[¥1 Sign .ahd date [the original GOP\' of] the draft [or final] EIS [and shall]: 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	lndicate.inat the lliaft [statement] Eis and all ancillary documents were ~repa.red under the signatory's direction or supervision and that the information submitted, to the best ofthe signatory's knowledge fully addresses document content requirements as set forth in [sections 11 200 17 and 11 200 18, as appropriate] gubchapter 1 0: 


	(C) file the draft EIS with the accepting authority and the office simultaneously: aoo 
	(D) lSeposilor require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filingto 
	' ------. ----·---. ----'C7
	the office, one paper copy of the draft EIS at the nearest state library in 
	,each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper cop'r( 
	~tttie Hawaii Documents Center-:-: and 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	15 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	.(fil :s u-bmit to the office one true and correct copy of the original audio file, at standard quality,-of alforal comme-nts received at the timedesitinated within theEIS public scoping meeting(s) for receiving oral comments: 
	(6) When th-e document7s afinal ETS,tfieproposing agency or applica ntshall:, 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	[6i@l Sign and date [the original copv of) the [draft or] final EIS (and shall]; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Indicate that the finai [statement] EIS and all ancillary documents were prepared under the signatory's direction or supervision and that the information submitted, to the best of the signatory's knowledge fully addresses document content requirements as..set forth in [sections 11 


	-· --~ -' 
	200 17 and 11 200 18, as appropriate] :subcHapter 1Oand 
	,, 

	(C) 'i=ilett,e final EIS with the accepting atithority,and ,tl:le,offlce simultaneously:, ; . 
	(7) When the-notice is an acceptance or non-,foceptance of a..finaTEIS, the accepting authority shafl: . ·, 
	{6}. File the notice ofacceptance or non-acceptance of a final,EIS\.vith'the 
	office:a~ . 
	office:a~ . 
	{ID Simultaneously transmit the notice-to the proposing agency,ora pplicant;' 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	(8) 
	When the notice is of the withdrawal,ofan anticipated FONSl.~FONSi, or EISPN the proposing agen-cy or approvingagency,shall:include a,rationale-of th~ Withdrawal specifying any associhle~ documfuits,to,lie withdrawn:' 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Whenthe notice IS of the wlthdrawal,ofa draffEIS'or1mal EIS, the proposing agency or applicant shal simultrri'eousfy file the notiee::wfUi the office and submit the notice witli.aE"cepting autficratv: and / ' 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	wiierllile submffi:al·fs a·changed versTon of'a~notice, document, or,determination' previously•published and withdrawn.Tue submitta(shalfbefiled as the,iseconcf ~ bmittal, or' "th'ird" or "f~~as appropriate.. (Example:-A draftEIS-is 


	~ -....,. -·--. -· ·---,-------~----·-
	r 
	-

	,witharawn ancl ct.tanged. It is then filed with the office for publication as the 
	-~ -...... ~ 
	,'second draft EIS",for the particular action.)\
	' 

	\
	< [Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 341-3, 343-3, 343-6)
	• I 
	i 
	I 
	§ 11-200.1-~ R~publication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations 
	(a) An agency or appifoaiit'responsible for filing achapter 343)fRS notice, document. 0 ~ 
	--;;-;-,,· . ·--. ·-·· -------------
	-

	rJetermination may file an unchanged, previously published submittal in the bulletin 'provided that the filing requirements of this subchapter and any other publication ~egwrements-setforth inthischapterorchapter343, HRsare·satisfied. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	M/hen the publication of a previously published chapter 343, HRS notice, document, or determination involves a public comment period under this chapter or chagter.343, HRS: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	ffhe publiccommentpenod stlaITbe-as required-for that notice, documen( ori '.determination pursuant to this chapter or chapter 343, HRS or as otherwise 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	statutorily mandated. (F-or example, publication of a-n uncha-nqed draft EIS 
	lnitiates a forty-five day pubITc comment period· upon publication inthe bulletin.); 
	and 
	(2) Any co-mments received during the comment period must tie considered in the manner as setforthm thlschapter and chapter3~HRS, for thatnotice, Hcicument, or-determinatio-n type, inaddffion to-comments received-in--any ofheri comment periodassocTatecf withthe pubifcation ofthenotice,-document, or1 deterrrnnatlon. 
	same 

	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 341-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS .§§ 341-3, 343-3, 313-5, 343-6) 
	• I 
	\ 
	I 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
	§ 11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Whenever an agency proposes an action, the [fiA.a!] authority to accept [a statement] an Eis shall rest with: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The governor, or [afl] the governor's authorized repnfs~ntative, whenever an action proposes the use of state lands or [the use of] state _funds or[,] whenever a state agency proposes an action [witrnfl] :i.md~li section [11 200 6(b)] ;11-200.1-9; 


	I 
	or < 
	(2) The mayor, or [afl] the mayor's authorized representative, of the respective county 
	whenever an action proposes only the use of q,ounty ]ands or coi,mty f~nds. ln the-event that a"n actfon Tnvofves state and county-lands, .state and count¥ funds, or: both state andcounty lands and funds, the governor or the governo r's authorized representativesilalf have authority To Eiccepttlie EIS~ . , 
	(b) Whenever an applicant proposes an action, the authority for requiring an EA or [statements] EIS, [and for] hiakirig a determination-regarding any required EA~ and accepting any required [stateme11ts] 'EIS [that have been pt!3pared]'shall rest with the 
	~ \ \ ' -----•-...,..,,. ----
	---
	-

	approving agency [initially recpiving and agre,eing] lhat initially received and agreed to process the request for an appf.oval. With redpet t to EIS~. this approving agency is 'also-called th-e a ccepting i uthority; '· . 
	' 
	(c) In the eifent that [there is] more than one agency [that] l~ proposing the action or, in the case 6f:"applicants, more than one agency has jurisdiction over the action, and these ?gencies are unable to agr~e as to wh'ich agency has the responsibility for complying 
	<with [section 343 5(c)] bhapfer 343, HRS, [the office, after consultation with] the agencies i~volved, shall '.consu-lt with on'eanother to determine which agency is responsible for ,compliance. In making the [d~terminatioo] cfecfsion, the [effiGe] agencies shall take into
	/
	' 

	considen~tion, i~cluding, but not limited to, the following factors: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	[+he] ~iVnich ager;tcy [Nith the] hasthe greatest responsibility for supervising or approving the action as a whole; . 
	1


	(2) 
	(2) 
	[+he] wtlicR agency [tAat] can most adequately fulfill the requirements of chapter ·343, HRS, and this chapter; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	[+he] Which agency [that] has special expertise or greafest access to information 1relevant to.theaction's implementation and impacts'; [aoo] 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The extent of participation of each agency in the action(.-1; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Tn the case ofan action With pro-po"sed use of state ~r county lands or·funds, Which agency has themostland or funds involved in the action. 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(d) in the event that there is more thanone agency that is proposing the action, ·or in the case of applicants~ more than one agency.has Iurisdiction ovedhe action, and afteri appiyinq the criteria in-subsection (c) these..agencies are unable to agree asfo-whicH agency has the responsibility for complying with chapter 343, HRS, the office, after consultation wifflthe agencies invoived,-shall apply thes ame-cons1derat1ons in subsection (c) to decide which agency is~responsiblefur compTiance. 
	(e) The office shall not serve as the accepting authority for any proposed agency or applicant action.' , 
	(f) The office may provide recommendations to the agency br applicant responsible for the [environmental assessment] EA or EIS regarding any applicable ·ad~inistrative content requirements set forth in this chapter. 
	< [Eff l (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	\ ' 
	.
	,, 
	I 
	I 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	Subchapter 6 Applicability 
	§ 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	'Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for ariy agen'cy action that includes-one or moretriggers as identified in se-ction .343-S(a), HRS: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Under section343-5(a), HRS,l use of state or county funds shall include any form of funding assistance flowing from· the State or§. county, and use of state or county lands includes any use (title, lease, permit, easement, licenses, etc.) or 


	. ' 
	entitlement to those lands. 
	(2) [For agency actions, chapter 343, HRS, exe'mpts from applicability] Under sect1on 
	-I ' I 
	343-S(a), HRS, any feasibility or planning study for possible futur~ programs or projects [wh-isl:l] ffiat the agency has not approyed, adopted, or funde,d are exempted from chapter 343, HRS-, envlronmental review. Nevertheless1 if cfn agency is studying the feasibility of a proposai, it sha!I con~ider envirorimental factors and available alternatives and disclose these in ~ny future [assessment] EA or subsequent [statement] 'EIS. If[, howe11er,] the planning and feasibility studies involve testing or other
	, -· .,,
	' 

	on the environment, [ti=leR] an [en\1ironmental assessment] .EA or EIS shall be 
	I I · 
	prepared. 
	~ ----,. -
	-

	(3) ,Under section 343-S(a)(H, HRS, actions involving agricult ral tourism under 
	~ ·-. -, -----section 205-2(d)(11), HIRS or section 20ffi-4.5(a)(13), HRS, must perform 
	r----. 
	-

	environmental reviewoHfvtwhen required under: section 205-5(b), HRS~ \ ' 
	(b) (c) 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	20 
	20 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	§ 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant Actions 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for any applicant action that: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Requires one or-more fa§eflsy] approvals prior to implementation: and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Includes one or more-triggers identified in sectfon .343-5(a), HRS.I 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	'.Under Chapter 343-5(a), HRS.I use of state or county funds shall include any form of funding assistance flowing from' the State or acounty, and use of state or county lands includes any use (title, lease, permit, easement. licenses; etc.) or entitlement to those lands. ' ' 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Under section 343-5(a)(1), HRS, actions involving.agricultural tourism under section 205-2(d)(11), HRS cir:secfion 205-°[S(af(~3), HRS, must enviromnentalreview on.Iv when requlrea under seciion20S:S(b), 'f-fRS~ 
	perform




	(b) 
	(b) 
	Chapter 343, HRS does not require environmental review for.applicant actions,wn en: 


	Notwithstandfng a ny ofher law to the contrar,,:lor any primary action that requires !a permit or approval that is not subject to a disctetionary consent and that involves 'a-secondaryaction that isancTiiacyancf Iimite to tne.1nsta1lation, improvement: re-no vation, construction~ordeveloFme ntof~m structurewffllTn"an existing pubTic right-of-way or highway, that secondary acticm shal be exempt from this chapter: provided that the applicant for theprimarwaction snail sub.mit documentation' from thea ppropria
	ill 

	~~quired. •' · ' · !2.} As usea in this .subsectiom !1Oiseretioraaryc onsent" means an action as defined in section 343-2; or 
	ffi1 

	,: -~--.... ------------~-.,
	~ 
	an approval from a decisio ~making authority in an agency, which approval 'is subject to a pl!lblf c heariii'ii1 
	flnfrastructure" inoludeswaterlines andwater facilliies~wastewater Tines and wastewat~ facilities, gas lines and.ga-s facilities, drainage facilities ~ electrical, comm1m1cations, telephone,-and cable television utilities, and highway, roadway, and driveway improv ements: 
	'.tfil 

	:tQi /IRrimary ac~ means an action outside of the highway or public right-of. ay that1Sori"private properti ill}_ ''Secondary action" means an action involving infrastructure within the highway orpubilc right:ot=wa? 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § §343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 21 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 
	§ 11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Actions 
	A group of actions proposed by an agency or an applicant shall be treated as a single action 
	when: 
	when: 
	when: 

	TR
	(1) 
	The component actions are phases or increments of a larger total undertaking; 

	TR
	(2) 
	An individual [f}ffijeGt] action is a necessary precedent [fef] fo a larger [13FejeGt] 

	TR
	action'; 

	TR
	(3) 
	An individual [project] action' represents a commitment to a larger [f}ffijeGt] action; 

	TR
	or 

	TR
	(4) 
	The actions in question are essentially identical and, a 'single EA orl [statement] 

	TR
	EIS will adequately address the impacts of each' individual action and those of 

	TR
	the group of actions as a whole. 


	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 
	~ 
	§ 11 -200.1 -11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Ffndings ·of No Significant Impact, or Accepted Environmentaj Impact Statements to Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed {-\ctivitie· 
	9

	.@) 
	When an ageney-determineslilat a prior exemption', FONSI, or-an accepted EIS satisfies • ,chapter 343, HRS fur a proposecf aciMty~the agency maysubmita brief writfenratronale .to the office fofpublicationpursuant to section 11-200.1-4 and the proposed activity may 'proceed without furtherchapter 343, HRS environmental revieWJ 
	1

	When an agency determines that the proposed activity warrants environmental review, 
	1the agency may submit a brief written rationale to the officefor publication pursuant to 
	~ection 1 f -2Ci0.1-4 andtheagency-shall proceed to compiy with subchapter 7.I 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 
	Environmental Council 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
	§ 11-200.1-12 Consideration of Previous Dete_rminations and Accepted Statements 
	[fa1] [Chapter 343, HRS, provides that whenever an agency proposes to implement an action or receives a request for approval, the agency may consider and, when applicable and appropriate, incorporate by reference, in whole or in part, pr¢vipus determinations of whether a statement is required, and previously accepted statements.] 
	\ ' 
	[(e)] A proposing agency or applicant may incorporate informati0fi or analysis from a "relevant £Previous] prior [determinations] ,exemption notfcllinal EAl rand previously accepted statements may be incorporated] or acceptedEIS into an exemption notice, EA, EIBP~orEis; (by applicants and agencies] fudiproposedaction Wh!;)r:iever the information :or analysis [contained therein] is pertinent [to the ~eciston at hand] and has logical relevancy and bearing to the proposed actfon [!?eing con~ider~d]. (For examp
	a

	( ,' l 
	-

	[tGJ] [Agencies shall not, •1,1ithout cons_ider,able pre exa'mi_nation and comparison, use past determinations, and previous s,atement to app,ly t9 the action'at hand. The action for which a determination is SO\Jght, shall be thoroyghly revieWed prior to the use of previous determinations and previou~ly aocqpted statements. F·urther, when-previous determin~tions and previous statem'ents are considered or incorporated by reference, they shaU be substantially similar· to and,rele1,ant to the action then being
	' ' 
	' 

	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HF{S §§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	< 
	I 
	\ 
	I 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 201 8 
	§ 11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	In considering the significance of potential environmental effects, agencies shall consider the sum of effects on the quality of the environment[,] and shall evaluate the overall and cumulative effects of an action. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	In determining whether an action may have a significant effect on the environment, the agency shall consider every phase of a proposed action, the expected [GefIBequences] impacts, both primary and secondary, and the cumulative as well as 


	I 
	the short-term and long-term effects of the action. In most instances, an action shall be determined to have a significant effect on the environ~e~t jf it is'fikely to: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	[Involves an irrevocable oommitment to loss· or destruction of any natural or cultural resouroe] Irrevocably commit a natJral,'cultura( or historic resource; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	[Curtails] Curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment; ' 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	[CenffiGts] Conffict with the [state!s] State's [long term] environmental poLicies pr long-term environmental goals [and guideline~ as expressed in chapter 344, HRS, or other laws,] asestabffshed by°iaw [and any revisions thereof and amendments 


	' 
	. 

	thereto, court decisions, or executive orders]; 
	,----~ ~ -;-,,,-; ~ 1.
	-

	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	[Substantially affects] Have a substantial adverse effect on the economic .welfare, [Of] social welfare, or cuituraf practices ofthe 'community or State; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	[Substantially affects] Have a su stantial ad~etse effect on public health; 


	~---~·· ' \ . \
	(6) [Involves] Involve adverse secondary impacts, such as population changes or 
	1 
	effects on public facil[!i~s; . \ 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	[Involves] 'Involve a -~ub~taptial degradation of environmental quality; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Is inqividually !imited but cumulatively h~s [considerable] ~ubstantial adverse effect upon the·enyironment or involves a commitment for larger actions; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	[Substantialiy-affects] Have"""a substantial-adverse effect on a rare, threatened, or endangered species, or its habitpt; 


	, (10) [Detrimentally affects] Have a suBstantial adverse effect on air or water quality or ambient noise levels; , 
	1 

	(11) 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	[l\ffects] Have a suhstantial adverse effect on or is likely to suffer damage by being .!ocated in an en\tirohmentally sensitive area such as a flood plain, tsunami zone, sea level rrserexposure area~ beach, erosion-prone area, geologically hazardous·l~nd, estuaty, fresh water, or coastal waters; 

	(12) 
	(12) 
	[Substantially affects] Have a substantial adverse· effect on scenic vistas and viewplanes, during dayormghl identified in county or state plans or studies; or,


	~ -·-· ' ---..
	(13) [Requires] Require substantial energy consumption or ~mit substantial grnenhousegases. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-2, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	For.an agency action, through its judgment and experience, [an agency proposing an' actio-n] aproposing agency shall assess the significance of the potential impacts of the action,Tncludm g the overall cumulative impact in lfoht of related past, present, a nd reasonably-foreseeableactions inthe area affected,· to' determine the-level of :environmentai revlew necess·ary for the action.' 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	For an applicant action, within thirty days from the receipt of.the-applicant's request.for approvai to-the-approving agency, through its judgment ar;1d experience, an approving age-ncy shall assess.the signfficance o(the potential impacts of the action-, includinqthe bverall cumulative impact in light of related past, (resent, andreasonably foreseeable actions in the area affected, to determine the levehofe!nvironmental review necessary for 
	1



	1
	• .,. -~ 
	1·hea~t1on.
	-

	(c) (d) 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 

	Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 
	Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 
	§ 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 
	(a) [Chapter 343, HRS, states that a list of classes of actions shall be drawn up which, because they will probably have·minimal or no significant effret on the environment, may be declared exempt by the proposing agency or approving agency from the preparation
	I • 
	of an environmental assessment provided that agencies declaring an action exempt under this section shall obtain the advice of other outside agencies or.individuals having jurisdiction or expertise as to the propriety of the e~emption.) Some·a2tions, because 
	' ------. ~ -:-. . 
	-

	. 
	they will individually and cumulatively probably have·minihial or no significant effects, 
	can-be decl arede xempt fromt hepreparation of aii EA~ ; •. 
	.. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Actions declared exempt from the preparation of ar) [environmental_assessment] EA under this [seetion] subchapter are not exef!.lpt from complying with a·ny other applicable statute or rule. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The following [list represents exempt cldssti.s of ac~on] general types-of actions are • 
	eligible for exemption: ·. 


	(1) 
	(1) 
	Operations, repairs, or maintenance of existing str\jctures, facilities, equipment, or topographical featur:&s, lnvplving [negli~ibl~ Of [lO] iiifnor, expansion or minor, change of use beyond that ·previously existing; 


	1 
	. \ 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Replacement or reconstruction of existing structures and facilities where the new structure will be lo~at~d generally.on the same site and will have substantially the. same purpose, capacitY,, density, height, and dimensions as the structure replaced; ' 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Construction and location of single, new, small facilities or structures and the alteration and modific~tion'. of the same and installation of new, small, equipment and f~cilities and the alter.~tion and modification of same, including, but not limited 


	' 
	to: 
	(A) Single-family residences less than 3,500 square feet; as me·asllred by-the 
	I'" ' -. -. ·-----·---------. ---------· 
	.comtrolling law under which the proposed action is being considered, if not in conjunction with the building of two or more such units; 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	Multi-Unit structures designed for not more than four dwelling units if not in conjunction with the building of two or more such structures; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Stores, offices, and restaurants designed for total occupant load of twenty [J3eFseR-S] individuals or [tess) fewer! per structure, if not in conjunction w ith the building of two or more such structures; and 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Water, sewage, electrical, gas, telephone, and other essential public utility services extensions to serve such structures or facilities; accessory or 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	appurtenant structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming 
	appurtenant structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming 
	appurtenant structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming 

	pools, and fences; and, acquisition of utility easements; 
	pools, and fences; and, acquisition of utility easements; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Minor alterations in the conditions of land, water, or vegetation; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource and 

	TR
	Infrastructure testing and evaluation activities [WA-i-ffi] that do not result in a 

	TR
	serious or major disturbance to an environmental resource; 

	[fa-)] 
	[fa-)] 
	Construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities-;
	-


	[R] 
	[R] 
	Interior alterations involving things such as partitions, plumbing, and electrical 

	TR
	conveyances; 

	([8]§) 
	([8]§) 
	Demolition of structures, except those structure~ [located on any historic site as designated in] that are listed on or that meet ff1e criteria for'ffstin-g on the national 

	TR
	register or Hawaii [register as provided for ip th~ Natiopal Historic Preservation 

	TR
	/\ct of 1966, Public Law 89 665, 16 U.S.C. §470, as amend~d, or chapter 6E, 

	TR
	MRS] Register of Historic Places; 
	. 

	([Q]Z) 
	([Q]Z) 
	Zoning variances except shoreline set-back v~riances; [aoo] 


	([4Q]§) Continuing administrative activities +RGJ.uding, but not limited to purchase of supplies and personnel related actions; ([44]ID Acquisition of land and existing structures, including single or multi-unit dwelling' ' 
	units, for the provision of affordabJe housing, involving no material change of use beyond [#lat] previously existing tises~ and for whi_ch th~ legislature has appropriated or otherwise c!u,thorized funding [.,.J;_filb 
	1 

	,---:.. ~ _J. ----.c--r-:----
	-

	(10) New construction of affordable housing,1where afforaable'housing is defined by the controlling law appl[cab'ie for the state br co-untyproposing agency or 
	~ ~ --.,,approving agency, that meets the following~ 
	r ---__,_ 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Raslhe use-of state -or countylands or funds or is· within Waikiki as the sole triggers for compttance-with chapter.343~ HRS: 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Asprop0sed conforms wifht fie"exfstingstate urban land classification; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	As proposed is consistent witht he existing cou-nty zoning classification 


	provided that allows housing( a-nd · (D) As proposed d0es not require variances for shoreline setbacks or siting in 
	-· -'I --
	-

	an environmentally sensitive area.' 
	I. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	All exemptions under [the classe.§ in this section] subghapter 8 are inapplicable when the cumulative irt1pact _o~ planned successive actions in the same place, over time, is significant, or when an action that is normally insignificant in its impact on the environment may b~ significant in a particularly sensitive environment. . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Any agency, at any time, may request that a new exemption [Glass] type be added, or that an existing one be amended or deleted. The request shall be submitted to the council, in writing, and contain detailed information to support the request as set forth in section 11-201-16, HAR. environmental council rules. 


	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.1-16 Exemption Lists 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Each agency, through time and experience, [sl:la-U} may develop its own exemption list consistent with both' the letter and intent expressed in-this subchapter and in chapter3431 HRS,:of . 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Routine activities and ordinary functions within the jurisdiction or exp-ertise of the ;agency that by their n-ah.ire do not have the potentTul fo in-dividuafiy 0~ cumulative·ivacfversely affect the environmentm·ore than negllgibly and that the agency considers ton ot rise to the level of req-urring -chapter343, HRS environmental revfew. Examplesof routine activities and-ordinary functions may lnclude~ amongothers: -routine repair, routine maintenance: 1purchase ofsupplies, ~nd continuing administrativ-e ac


	-·-
	-

	~-
	-

	minor structures accessory to existing facilities: interior alterations involving things -such as 
	personnel-related matters, construction or placement.of 

	~~-.,_partitions, plumbing, and electrical conveyances: and ' 
	r· --·• -----

	(2) [specific types of actions 1Nhich fall within the exempt cli;isses as long as these lists are consistent with both the letter and intent,expressed in tbese exempt classes and chapter 343, HRS] Types of actions that the agency considers fo be lncluded wfthin the exempt gener-al types listed in section 11-200. 1-15! 
	'
	-

	---.,:.· ' 1--,_,.;; -.. . 
	(b) An agency may use part one of,its exemption ,list, developed pursuant to (a)(1), to 'exempt a specific activity from pi:eparation-of a'ii"EAand th'e requirements of section 11
	-

	~ -------_,.. ------------
	-

	~ 
	:200.1-17 because the agency considers the specific activity to be de minimis. 
	(c) An agency ~ ay use part two if its exemption list, developed pursuant to (a)(2), to exemptfrom preparation of an EAaspecific action that the agency determfnesio be 1nclucie'dunder thetypes of actions in its exemption list, provide d thatthe agency fulfills
	·----J 
	t'..,.... --, --·---.,,..-;---. -

	) he exemption notice requirements set fortH in section 11-200.1-17 of this subchapter ancichapter 343, HRS: 
	1
	(d) These'exemption lists and 'fAny amendments to the exemption lists shall be submitted to the council for review ~n"d concurrence ho later thansevenyears after the previous 
	. -"' -.,----,:
	\. 
	:concurrence, pr.ovided.that, in the event the council is unable to meet due to quorum 
	,-. --~r -. -. --· . ' 
	when a concurrence for an agency exemption list is seven years or older, the agenc't may submit a letter totne council acknowledging that the existing exe-mption list isstlTI valid. Upon attaining ..quorum, the council shall r eview the·e xemptionlist for concurrence'. [The lists shall be reviewed periodically by the col.JRGi-h] ifhe council may reviewagencye xemption lists perTodically.l 
	[Eff . ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.1-17 Exemption Notices 
	(a) Each agency shall [maintain records of] create an exemption -notice for an action that it has found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of an [etwironmental assessmeR-t] f;A pursuant to section 11-200.1-16(a)(2) or that an agency considers to be included within a general typeof action pursuant to section T1-200:f-T5.' [and each agency shall produce the exemption-Rotices for review-Hf)en request}. An agencimay ere-ate an ·exemptfon noticEdor an actlvitythat is has foun'd to he exemptfrom-t
	,· -------. --·-------. -~ ------·-
	-

	agency considers to be a routine activity and ordinary function within the jurisdiction or, expertise-of the agency that by its nature d-oes not have'the potentialt'o'Tndivlduaily-on cumulatively adversely affect the-environment more than ne gligil:>M 
	' ' 
	~ ---. . ,,. --. -. 
	(b) rro declare an exemption prior to implementing an action, an agency'shall undertake an analysis to determine whether the-action merits exemptionpursuant to section 1 :1t:2Q0.1
	-

	-.... ---~ -.,-;--;-,----~-_______.,,,,. ...... 
	-

	.15 and is consistent with one or several ofthe general types lis ed in section 11-200.1-15 or the agency's exemption list produced in accordance with s ection 11-20Q.1:"'-j'6, and whether significant cumulative impacts or particularly seiisffive environme-ntsWould make theexemption inappttcablei° An age cy 'shall obtain.the a dvice of'otheroutsfd~ ~gencies-or indwfduals having jurisdicti0no'ffie~roprie@'of thd 
	r expertise.en 

	I -------r--i -. . _., --~ 
	exemption. This analysis and consultation shall be documeriteo in an exemption notice. Unless consultation and publicatieri'are notrequlredunder!subsection (c), the agency shall· publish theexemption no'tlce3wlth the officethrough'ttiefiling process set forth in 
	subchapter~4! ,/ \ . , 
	1 
	1 

	(c) Consultation regarding ar.id publicati0n of an exemption notice is not required when: 
	11----,,.-~ -' 
	~--------

	(1) [he agency has created an•exemption list pursuant to section 11-200.1-16; 
	~ ~ --~----------------. -' .
	(2) IT'he council has 00@curred with ttie agency's exemption list no more than seven years before the agency frilple"ments the action or authorizes·an--applic-ant 
	1

	-~' 
	.to implement the actiom · 
	1 

	(3) ftheac"tfonTscorisfstent with theJetter and intent of theagency's exemption-list 
	and ' 
	;::::::;---,,I,: .,. ---------
	-

	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	ifhe,action does-not have any potential. individually or cumulatively, to.produce signmEa'i,tTrnpatts! , 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Each agency shall produce [the] Hs exemption notices for review upon request bythe 


	--_,.. ---. . -------·,
	public or an agency, and shall submit a list of exemption notices that the agency has created since the previous publication submittal deadline to the office for publication in' ~he bulletin pursuant to subchapter 4.: 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11 -200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental 
	1
	Assessment 
	Assessment 
	(a) A proposing agency shall, or an approving agency shall require ari applicant to [Seek] seek, at the earliest practicable time, the advice and input of the county agency responsible for implementing the county's general plan for each county in which the proposed action is to occur, and consult with other agencies having lurisdiction or expertise as well as those citizen groups and individuai's [~]that the proposing agency or applicant reasonably believes [tel may be ·affect~d. 
	(b) (c) 
	·-··' . --. ,.r, . -... -. . ' . --
	-

	(d) A draft E~ shall·contain, but not be limited to, the following information: 
	(1) ldentificaticin of..th~ applicant or proposing agency: 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Fc,r applicant actions~ (Identification] identification ofthe approving agency[.# applicable];" , 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	List of all required_permits and approvals (State, federal, county) [roEj-Yifed] and: for appTicants.Tdentification of which approval necessitates chapter 343.~HM 


	.envfronmentalrevfew; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	Identification of agencies, citizen groups, and individuals consulted in [mal<ing] preparing the Braff [assessment] EA: 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, bulturai and environmental characteristics; 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood Insurance Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps: 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Identification and [summary] analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Prnposed mitigation measures; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Agency or approving agency [determination or, for draft environmental assessments oR-iy--aHJ anticipated determination~inclucffng findings· and reasons supportiri"g the a·ntfdpated FONSI, ff appttcabie; -and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	Written comments and responses to the comments [~)received andmade . 


	---I . 
	p'ursuant td the early consultation provisions of [sections 11 200 9(a)(1), 11 200 9(b)(1), or 11 200 15,J subsection(a) and statutorily,pr~scribed public review 
	periods. 
	[Eff 1(Auth: HRS §§ 34~-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination fQ~ Draft Environmental Assessments 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	After: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	[preparing] 'Preparing; or causindto be prepared, [an environmental assessment] 


	:,, . 7 ' • 
	-

	draft EA: [aRti] , . , 
	a 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	[reviewing) ·Reviewing any public and agency comments, Uf-a-1wd and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	[applying] Applying' the ~ignificance crit~ria' in secticm'r11 200 12) moo.-1-13[,];, if the proposing agency or the approving ag~ncy anticipates that the proposed action is not likely to have asignificant effect, [ft) the pr6ptising agency or approving agency shall issue a,notice of [determination •.•ihich shall be] an anticipated '[negative declaration) FONSI subject to the public review provisions of section [11 200 9.1] ;11-200.1-26. 


	,, ' ' ' ' 
	(b) · (:The proposing agency or approving ageri~y shall [alse] file [Sl::IGR] the notice bf ariticipii°ted determination wtien applicable and supporting draftEA with the office as early·as pdssible 1n accordane'ewith subchapter4 after the determination is made pursuanMo arid in accordan6e with [section 11 200 91 this '
	subchapteri and the requirements in subsection (c)·ot this seci:Ton.-'[akmg with four copies ofthe supporting environmentai·assessFTJent: In addition to the above, the anticipated negative declaration determination fo~'anv applicant action shall be mailed to the requesting applicant b'{ the approving agencv.] For applicant actions,-th-e approving agency shall also -send the 
	anticipated FONSI to the applicant! 
	(c) The notice of an anticipated FONSI determination shall [indicate] ~nciud~in a concise 
	manner: 
	(1) Identification ofth·e [applicant or] proposing agency brapplicant; 
	(2) Identification of ~he approvTng agency on accepting authority; 
	(3) [@fief] ~-brYet description of ffie [pr-ef}OSBG] action: 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(Determination] :The anticipated FONSI: 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Reasons supporting ffi-e anticipafed FONSI (determination]: and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	(Name] The name. title email address. physical address. and phone number of (a 

	TR
	contact person] an7ncffvicfua l representatTvecifthe proposing agency or 

	TR
	applicant who maybe contacted for further information. 


	(Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requir~ments for Draft Environmental Assessments [for Anticipat~d Negative Declaration Determinations & Addenda to Draft :Environmental 
	. ' 
	Assessments] 
	(a) This section shall apply only if a proposing agency 6r an approving agency anticipates a (negative declaration] FONSI determination for a proposed action and (#lat] ttie proposing agency or the applicant proposing tfieactlon· has completed the draft EA requirements of [section 11 200 ?(a) paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6) ~nd (7), or 
	I. • } -• ' 
	section 11 200 Q(b), paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5).and (6), as appropriate] sections 11200~1-Hfand 1·1-200-19. ' . 
	-

	(b) [The period for public re'liew ari~ for submitting v,•ritten comments for both agency actions and applicant actions shall _pegifl :;is of the initial issue dat~ that notice of a'lailability of the draft environmental assessment 11as published in the periodic bulletin and shall continue for a period or ihirty days.] Unless ~ andated otherwise y statute, the period for public 
	1

	-, -... -=----~~--------------'review and for submitting written c0mments shall be thirty days from the date of publication of fhedraft EA in -the-bulletin: Written comments (to-tAe proposing agency or i3ppro1Jing agency, whiche\1\lr is' µpplicabl9, with a copy of the comments to the applicant ·ior proJ?osing agency] shall b~ received ~ or postmarked to the proposing agency or approving agency andapplfcant[,] within the thirty-day period. Any comments outside of the thirty-day period need ~ot ~e (considered
	-

	. ma EAi 
	-

	(c) For agency act.ions, U-le proposing agency shall, and-for applicant actions. the 
	. --·--"'-I ' ---. . . -. 
	·applicant shall,;_r~spond in [writing] in the final EA in the manner prescribed in this ~ecticm to all substantive comments received or postmarked during the [thirty day] 
	r,----. --, .statutorily mandated review period, incorporate comments into the final EAi as appropriate(;]and [aweoo] lncfude the comments and responses in the final [environmental assessment] .EA. [Each response shall be sent directly to the person wmmenting, with copies of the response also sent to tho office.l rlfanumber of :commentsare identioal or;jery similar, the proposing agency o-r applicant mav grouf) ~mments and prepare a single-siandard re.sponse for-each group. VI/hen -grouping Eomments. the na
	r---·-----, 

	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	grouped response. One representative oopv of oomments that are identioal or verv similar mav ~be inoluded in the finalEA •.vith a list of the name-s of ea-oh oommenter, whenl<n-OW:Ai that submitted the ldenffoal oomments rather tiian reproduoing eaoh individualeomment. ·,iiJlindividuaf commenis and representative oopies-ofldentioalor very' sim1larcomments must be inoluded mthe final EA regardless of wh-ether the agen cy-or applicant believes the oommenfo merit individual disouss1on 1n the bodv of the final 
	I ~: 
	[{fl-)] [For applicant actions, the applicant shall respond in writing ·to all comments reoeived or postmarked during the thirty day review period and the approving agency _shall inoorporate or append the oomments and responses )n the t'inal environmE:ntal assessment. Eash response shall be sent direotly to the persori·o_ommenting ~ith a oopy to the office. A oopy of eaoh response shall be sent .to the approving agenoy for its timely preparation of a determination and notice thereof pursuant to sections 11 
	.(g} Proposing agencies and applicants shall respond in the final EA to all substantive written comments in one of two-.ways, or a comt>ination of oath, so long as each 
	~ _. --~ • 
	I --

	.substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
	By grouping comment responses undeK topic headings and addressing each substantive-comment raised by an individual comme-rrtor under that topic heading bifssue. When grouping comments bytopic and issue:-fhe nam-esof commenfors who raised-an issue under a topic headTng shall be clearly identified 
	ill 

	r Y -• ..,.,-, ~ • . ---• -, 
	in a distinctly labelled section with ttiat topic heading. All substantive comments 
	within a single comment 'letter mustoe addressed, but may be addressed 
	throughout the applicable topic areas with the commentor identified in each 
	applicabletopfo area. fAift-omments, except thosedescrfbedin subsection (e),' 
	must be appended in.full to the final document: or 
	ill By;providimi a·sepa-ate"and-dfstinct response toeach comment clearly identifying· the commentor and the comment receiving a response for each comment letter. submitted. ~!(comments, except those.described in-(e), must either be-inducted With the response or appended in full to the final document. 
	ifor·comments that are forml e-tters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identica l fanmia-ge, arid thatraise the same issues on the same topic: ill frhe r esponse may be gro·uped under (d)(1) with theresponse to other comments underthesarnetopic and issuewittia lf commentorsidenfilied in the distincti¥ labelled sectionicfentifyfng commentors by topic: or fA single response may be provided th.at addresses an substantive comments' 
	W 
	m 

	within the form letter or po.titianand th.at includes a distinct section lfstmg the v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	individual commentors who submitted the form letter or petition. At least one 
	representative sample-of the form letter or petition shall be.appeii-dedtothe final' 
	documenf and 
	.Q} Provided that if a commentor adds a distinct substantwe comment to a form letter: or petition~ tha t ·comment'mustberespondedto·pursuantto subsection (d)1 
	ill In responding to substantive written comments, proposing agencies·and applicants shali endeavor toresolve conflicts: inconSIBtencies, or concerns fcfentlfied-and to provide a response that is commensur ate with thecontent of those comments. The response 'shall indicate.changes that have -been made-to the text of the draft EA. The response shall describe the disposition of-significant"environinental issues raTsea. For example, the response may point to revisions fo the proposed action to miffgate ahticip
	1

	([e] g) An addendum document to a draft [environmental assessment] E~ shall-reference the original draft [environmental assessment] EA it attaches to an~ shall comply with all applicable fffing, public review and 9pmment requirements set forth in [sections 11 200 3 and 11 200 9] subchapters 4 ancf'9. 
	I 
	' J ' ,[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-3, 343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	1
	assessment] !A. final EA shall contain,/but not be limited to, the following information: 
	(1) · lc;fentifi!?ation of appljtant'or proposing agency; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of apptoving agency, if applicable; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	ldentifi9atidn of agencies, citizen groups, and individuals consulted in [making] preparing the [assessment] EA; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, cultural and environmental characteristics; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood Insurance Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Identification and [summary] analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Proposed mitigation measures; 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(8) The [Agency] agency determination and the findings and reasons supporting the determination (or, for draft environmental assessments only, an anticipated determination]; 
	[(9)] [Findings and reasons supporting the agency determination or anticipated determinatioaj [(-Ul)] [A§oocies to be consulted in the preparation of the EIS, if an EIS is to bo prepared]; 
	(9) List of all required permits and approvals (State, federal, county) [required] and, for appiicarrts.identification of which approval necessitates chapter343, H-RS~
	-

	--1 , ... 
	.environmental review; and 
	(10) Written comments and responses to the comments [oodeF] eceived pursuant to' the early consultation provisions [of sections 11. 200 Q(a)(1), 1-1 200 Q(b)(1), or 1120015] of subsectfon 11-200.1-18(a), and ~tatutorily prescribe9 public review periods in accordance with section 11~200.1-20. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of Determination for Final Envirdnmental Assessments 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	After~ 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	[preparing] :Preparing, o( causing fo be,prepared, a final ·[environmental 


	1
	assessment] EA, -.. \ ,· r 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	[reviewing] Reviewing any public and agency comments, [if-any,] and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Igpplying] !A.ppiylruj the significance criteria in section (11 200 12] ~ f:200.1-13, the proposing agenc.y or the approving agency shall issue [one of the following notices] a notice of [determination] ~ FONSfor-EISPN in accordance with [section 11 200 Q(a) OF 11 200 Q(b)] subch~pter 9, and file the notice with the office Illaccordance 


	.-itli subchapter 4.l [addressiflg ttie requirements in subsection (c), along with four copies 
	. . ' 
	of'the s·upporting final environmental assessment, provided that in addition to the above, all notic;;es·of determination to/ an~ applioant aotion shall be mailed to the requesting 
	'\ ., I ' • ---------· ----------,
	applicant by thQ appro1ing;,3gen6y:] For applicant actions, the approving agency shall \ssue a.determination witliin thirty days of receiving thetmafEA. 
	1

	' ' / . 
	(b) [Negative deolaration] OONSI. If the proposing agency or approving agency determines that a proposed action is not likely to have a significant effect, it shall issue a notice of [determination which shall be] a [negative declaration,] 'i=bNSI. '[ and tho f}fE}Posing agency or approving agency shall file such notice with the office as early as possible after the determination is made pursuant to and in accordance with seotion-:l-1-
	~
	-

	(c) [environmental impact statement pre~on notice] EISPN. If the proposing agency or approving agency determines that a proposed action may have a significant effect, it 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	shall issue [a--RetiBe--ef] [Eleteimfnation which shall bo] an [environmental impact statement preparation notice] EISPN [and such notice shall be filed as early as possible after the determination is made pursuant to and in accordance-with section 11 200 9]. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	The proposing agency or approving agency shall file in accorda.nce with subchapfer 4 'the notice and the supporting final EA with the office as early as possible-after the determinationIS made, addressing the· requirements in subsedion (e). F or applicant actions, the approving agency shall send the notice of determ,natlon for anEISPN~or FONSI fu thea ppiicant! 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	[The office shall publish the appropriate notice of determin~tion in the·periodic bulletin 

	following receipt of the documents in subsection (a) by the office in accordance with section 11 200 3.] ' ' 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The notice of [determination] a FONSi shall indicate tn a concise manner: 


	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identification of the applicant or proposing ~gency; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of the approving agency or: accepting authori~y; 


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	[Bfief] 'V\ brief description ofthe prop0sed action; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	[Determination] Jhe determination; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Reasons supporting th~ determiriati6n; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	[Name] The name, title, contact information, includmg the email address, physical address, and phone number of [a contact person] an1ridlvrdualrepresen tative of 


	-~ -------..-~ ----~--
	-

	the proposing agency or applicant who may be contacted for further information. <;. ·, ·, i '. · ' 
	(e) The notice of determination for an EISPN shall be prepared pursuant to section 11-200.1
	-

	23. 
	[(Em (VI/lien an agency withdraws a' determination pursuant to its rules, the agency shall submit to the office a 1••.1ritt6n letter informing the office of its withdrawal. The-office shall publish notice of agency witHdra~•,als in accordance with section 11 200 3.]
	. 
	' 

	I 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343~.6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 
	§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	(a) An EISPN, including one resulting from an agency authorizing the ·preparation of an EIS without first requiring an EA, shall indicate m a concise.manned 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	lden tificationoHfie proposing-agency or appfiln( 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	ldentificationof the accepting authority: ,. 


	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Ust of all required permits and approvals (State, federal, county) and, for. applic-antslden-tification of which approval necessitates chapter 343, HRS, 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	In the preparation of a draft -and applicants shall consult all 
	EIS, proposi.ng agencies 



	r -.environmental review; 
	r -.environmental review; 
	r -.environmental review; 
	.• 
	•, 

	(3) (4) 
	(3) (4) 
	The d-etermmation toprepare an EIS; Reasons supporting the determ1nation to prepare an BS: 


	(5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
	, ~ppropriate agencies.1 [noteq_ in section 11 200 10(10), and other] lnciuding the county agency responsible for implementing the"county'sgerierafolan fureachcountymwhlch 
	-· -~ ----,..--,---------·------. . ·
	-

	the proposed action is to occur and agencies having jurisdiction or expertise, as well as thoseciti,?:en groups, and cqricenied individuals [as noted in ~ections 11 200 9 and 11 200 9.1] ffiat the,,propos1ng~agency reasonably b-etteves tobe affected. To this end, 
	"" . _.., -. agencies ana ~ppli~, nts shall endeavor to develop a fully acceptable draft EIS prior to the time the .draft EIS is filed with the office, through a full and complete consultation process, and shall hqt rely solely upon the review process to expose environmental concerns. 
	(c) Upon publication of [a preparation notice] ,an EISPN in the periodic bulletin, agencies, groups, or individuals shall have a period of thirty days from the initial [issHeJ 'publication date [¼A-which to request to become a consulted party-aRe] to make written comments regarding the environmental effects of the proposed action. [-IJpoR-WFitteR--request by . #IB-Gensulted party and upORiJ0ee--sa-use-5fl6WR,] With good cause, the approving 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11 -200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	agency or accepting authority may extend the period for comments for a period not to 
	--• ------• f 
	exceed thirty additional days. Written comments and responses to the substantive comments shall be included in.the draft EIS pursuant fo section 11-200~1-24. Fon purposes of the-Sco-pi-ng meeting, substantive-com merits shaifbethose pertaming to the scopeof the EiS. 
	(d) [Af-tl:le discretiOA-ef.41::iB-f)feposiAg-ageney-er an applicarn,a] No fewer than one [AR] EIS public scoping meeting [to receive comments on the final environmental assessment (for the EIS preparation notice determination) setting forth] 'addressing' the scope of the draft EIS [may] shali be held on-the island(s) most affected ]'y the proposed action,i within the public review and comment period in subsection_[~j' (Ql [; provlded that the proposing agency or applicant shall treat oral and \tlfitten com
	1

	' ---~ .. -~ --
	-

	-
	separate portion reserved for oral public comments and tliat portion oMhe scoping 
	meeting sh-allbe audiorecorded.• •. 
	[fet] [Upon receipt of the request, the proposing agency or applicant shall, provide the consulted party with a copy of the environllJenta! assessfllent or reqµested portions thereof and the environmental impact stat6ment preparation notice Additionally, the proposing agency or applicant may pro~ide, any ot~efr infqrmati?n it deems necessary. The proposing agency or applicant may also contact other agencies, groups, or individuals which it feels may p~ovide pertinent.additional i9tormation.] 
	1

	[fej] [Any substantive comments' recki1}ed by the p;bposing agency or applicant pursuant to 
	\ ' 
	this section shall be re ...sponded to in.writing and.as _appropriate, incorporated into the draft EIS by ~he proposing agency or applicant prior to the filing of the draft EIS with the approving agency or accepting authority. Letters submitted which contain no comments on the projects but only i erve to acknoi.\11edge receipt of the document do not require a 
	' I ' 
	, (wittqn response. Acknowledgement of receipt of these items must be included in the final environmental assessm~nt or final statement.] 
	. i I 
	' ,·' J ' [Eff ] (Auth: HRS~§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§ 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	(a) The draft EIS, at a minimum, shall contain the information required in this section. The contents shall fully declare the environmental implications of the proposed action and shall discuss all [relevant and feasible] reasonably foreseeabie consequences of the action. In order that the _public can be fully informed and that the !accepting-authority can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on environmental effects, [a statement] an EIS shall include responsible opposing 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(b) [In the dovelej3tng the EIS preparers shall make every effort to convey the required information suooinotly in a form easily understood, both by members of the poolio and by 13oolio decision makers, giving attention to thD-St1bstance of the informatiOfl--6GA-VeYedrather than to the particular form, or length, or detail of the statement.] The scope of the [statement] draft EIS may vary with the scope of the proposed action and its impact.' takinginto consfderatronwhether-the action7s a pro1ect or a prog
	(c) 
	Figure
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	The draft EIS shall contain asummary sheet [whlcRl thaf concisely discusses the following: 



	(1) 
	(1) 
	Brief description bfthe action; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Significant beneficia·1~nd adverse i~pacts (including cumulative impacts and secondary impac~); 

	,_ (3) Proposed mitigation ·measures; 
	(4) Alternatives considered; ,_
	I 
	! 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	Unresolved issues; aoo , 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Compatibility with la11d' us~ plans and policies, and listing of permits or approvals[J: and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	A list of reievanvdocuments for actions considered in the analysis ofthe preparat~ f~EIS~ 

	(
	(
	e) The draft EIS shall contain a table of contents. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	The draft EIS shall contain a separate and distinct section that includes [a statement of] ihe purpose and need for the proposed action. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	The draft EIS shall contain a [~ect] description of the action [WHiGR] that shall include the following information, but need not supply extensive detail beyond that needed for evaluation and review of the environmental impact: 


	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	A detailed map (preferably a United States Geological Survey topographic map, Flood Insurance Rate Maps.1 or Floodway Boundary Maps as applicable) and a related regional map; . 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	[Statement of objectives] Obje-ctives of the proposed action; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, bultural, and environmental characteristics; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Use of[~] state or county funds or lands for the action; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Phasing and timing ofthe action; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Summary technical data, diagrams, and other information necessary to [~] .enable an evaluation of potential environmental i~pact by cofTlmenting agencies and the public; and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Historic perspective. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	The draft EIS shall describe in a separate and distinct section 'reasonable alternatives


	1
	[WfHBR] that could attain the objectives of the action [regardless of cost, in sufficient detail to explain why they were rejected]. The section shall include a rigorous exploration and objective evaluation of the environmental impacts of ?II such alterm\~ive actions. Particular attention shall be given to alternatives that might enhance environmental quality or avoid, reduce, or minimize some or all ofthe adverse env'ironrriental effects, costs, and risks btthe action. Examples of alternatives include: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The alternative of no action; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Alternatives requiring a9tions of a significantly diffe,rent nature [WfHBR] that would provide similar benefits with different environmental impacts; 


	/ ' 1' I \ 
	(3) Alternatives related ·to different designs or details of the proposed actions [wJ:HGR]
	t:" -\ \ • 
	that would present different e,nvironmental impacts; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	Ttie alt_erngitive of P,Ostponing action pending further study; and, 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Alternative locations for the proposed [prejest] action. In.each case, the analysis shall be suffi<;iently detailed to allow the comparative 


	<e~al4ation of the environmental·benefits, costs, and risks of the proposed action and each reasonable alternative. 'For alternatives that were eliminatedf rom detailed study, the seGtion shall contain a brief discussion ofthe reasonsfor notstudyingthose alternatives in detaii: For anyag~ncy actions, the discussion of alternatives shall include, where' relevant, thci~e alternatives not within the existing authority of the agency. 
	(i) The draft EIS shall include a description ofthe environmental setting, including a description of the environment !n the vicinity ofthe action, as it exists before commencement of the action, from both a local and regional perspective. Special emphasis shall be placed on environmental resources that are rare or unique to the region and the action site (including natural or human-made resources of historic, :Cultural: archaeological, or aesthetic significance); specific reference to related actions, publ
	.agencies and applicants shall also identify, where appropriate, population and growth characteristics of the affected areaJ-aAd] any population and growth assumptions used to 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	justify the proposed action.i. and [determine] any secondary population and growth impacts resulting from the proposed action and its alternatives. In any event, it is essential that the sources of data used to identify, qualify, or evaluate any and all environmental consequences be expressly noted 'in the draft EIS. 
	U) The draft EIS shall include a [statement] description of the relationship of the proposed action to land use and natural or cultural resource plans, policies, and controls for the affected area. Discussion of how the proposed action may conform or conflict with objectives and specific terms of approved or proposed land u~e and resource plans, policies, and controls, if any, for the area affected shall qe ir)'cluded. Where a conflict or inconsistency exists, the [statement] draft EIS shall describe the ex
	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	The draft EIS shall also contain a list of necessary approvals, required for th~ action, from governmental agencies, boards, or commission~ or other similar groups having jurisdiction. The status of each identified approval shall also be described. 

	(I) 
	(I) 
	The draft EIS shall include [a statement] an'analysis of the propable impact of the proposed action on the environment, and impacts cif the natural or human
	1



	.,.., , . environment on the [projeot] action. [, •,vhioh] 1 His'analysis shall include consideration of all phases of the action and ~o·rsiperation of a'II consequyhces on the environment[ih lncluding direct and indire<{t effects [shall be irioluded]. The lnterrelationships and cumulative environme[ltal impacts qf the proposed c!~tion and other related [projeets] actions shall _b_e di~cussed in the 9raft EIS. [It should be realized] The draft BS shouid tecogrilze that several actions, in particular those t
	I 
	be thoroughly discussed to fully d1=lscribe the probable impact of the proposed action on the environment. The popul~tion and growth impacts of an action shall be estimated if expected to be significant, and an evaluation shall be made of the effects of any possible change in population pptt~rns or growth upon the resource base, including but not limited to land use, water, and public services, of the area in question. Also, if the proposed action constitutes a direct or indirect source of pollution as dete
	(m) The draft EIS shall include in a separate and distinct section a description of the relationship between local short-term uses of humanity's environment and the maintenance and enhancement of long-term productivity. The extent to which the proposed action involves trade-offs among short-term and long-term gains and losses 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	shall be discussed. The discussion shall include the extent to which the proposed action forecloses future options, narrows the range of beneficial uses of the environment, or poses long-term risks to health or safety. In this context, short-term and long-term do not necessarily refer to any fixed time periods, but shall be viewed in terms of the environmentally significant consequences of the proposed action. 
	(n) The draft EIS shall include in a separate and distinct section a description of all irreversible and irretrievable commitments of resources that would be involved in the proposed action should it be implemented. Identification of unavoidable impacts and the extent to which the action makes use of non-renewable, resources during the phases of the action, or irreversibly curtails the range of po~ehtial uses of the environment shall also be included. The possibility of environmental accipents rr sulting tr
	< '• 
	(o) The draft EIS shall address all probable adverse environmental effects [wi=liGR] that cannot be avoided. Any adverse effects such as water 9r air pollution, _urban congestion, threats to public health, or other consequences adverse to environmental goals and guidelines established by environmental response laws, coastal zone management laws, pollution control and abatement laws, a~d environmental policy [such as that} including those found in chapters 128D fEnvironmental Response Lcfw>" 205A fcoastalZon
	r----.-
	-

	--,------, ~ 
	~-.-----• -~----_. 
	I 

	Management), 3428 (Air Pollution Control), 34;2C (Ozone1Layer Protection), 342D (Waten Pottution}', 342E (Nonpoint Source -Pollution Manage~ment and Control)', 342F [Noise Pollution}, ~42G Ontegrated Solid Waste M an agement), 342H ?sciiid Waste-Recycimg), 
	• . ---.., . f, ------------
	-

	3421 (Special Wastes RecyclingJ, ~42J (Hazardous Waste, including Used Oil), 342L 11.Jnd~rgrgund _§torage T~ ks},[ ~]34~P {Asbestos-and Leacfl. and 344 f state 'Em:ifronmental Policy), HR~, [shall be inclu.ded, including] and those effe'cts discussed in 
	~other [actions] subsections of th',~ [paragraph] section [wi=liGR] tiiat are adverse and unavoidable under the proposed ~ction must be addressed in the draft EIS. Also, the rationale for proceeding with aproposed action, notwithstanding unavoidable effects,
	I 
	shall be clearly set forth in this section. The draft EIS shall indicate what other interests and considerations of governmental policies are thought to offset the adverse environmental effects of the proposed action. The draft [statement] Eis shall also indicate the extent to ·which these stated countervailing benefits could be realized by following reasonaole ·alternatives to the proposed action that would avoid some or all of the adverse environmental effects. 
	(p) The draft EIS shall consider mitigation measures proposed to avoid, minimize, rectify, or reduce [impact] Frmpacts, including provision for compensation for losses of cultural, community, historical, archaeological, fish and wildlife resources, including the acquisition of land, waters, and interests therein. Description of any mitigation measures included in the action plan to reduce significant, unavoidable, adverse impacts to insignificant levels, and the basis for considering these levels acceptable
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	particular mitigation measure has been chosen from among several alternatives, the measures shall be discussed and reasons given for the choice made. [+A6H:!eea] The 'draft EIS shall include, where possible [and appropfiate], [sl=leH!e---ee] specific reference to the timing of each step proposed to be taken in [tRe] any mitigation process, what performance bonds, if any, may be posted, and what other provisions are proposed to assure that the mitigation measures will in. fact be taken. 
	(q) The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that summarizes unresolved issues and contains either a discussion of how such issues will be resolved prior to commencement of the action, or what overriding reasons th'ere are for proceeding 
	,--I ~ • 
	without resolving the [problems] issues. 
	' ,. 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains a list identifying all governmental agencies, other organizations and private individuals consulted in preparing the statement, and .shall disclose the identity of the persons, firms, or agency preparing the statement, by contract or other authorization[, shall be disclosed]. 

	(s) 
	(s) 
	The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains~ 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	[fef}Foductions] Reproductions of all [substantive} written' comments [arn:i feSPOAses made] submitted duripg ~he [consultation prqcess] C'nsultation period required in sedion 11-200.1-23: 


	Respon-ses fo alrsubstantive wrltfon comments made.durmg the consultation period required in secticfrll1-200.1-23.f°Pnand applicants ~hall respond in the•,draftEIS to-all sulJstantfve-written comments7n one-of two ~ays, or a combination ?f l::ioth, so long as ..each substantive comment has clearh~ received a response: 
	m 
	oposing agenci.es 

	(ill -By grouping comment responses unde-r topic headings and adaressing ead, substantive comment raised byan indfuidual 
	'comment0r under that 'topic headlng by issue. Wheri grouping' 
	comments 1by-•topic and issue, the names of com men-furs who 
	' ------. ---.. ------·•
	~ " 
	raised aA issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified in a 
	distinctly labelled section with that topic heading. All substantive 
	comrneiifs.within a single comment letter must be addressed, but 
	may be ,iddresse-dthroughout the a pplicable different topic areas 
	wltirthe commenter identified in each applicable topic area. All 
	comments, exceptthose described-in subsection (3)~mustbe 
	\3ppended-,n full to the final document: ori 
	{ID .By providing a separate and distinct response to each comment clearly identifying the commenter and the comment receiving a response b-eing responded to for each comment leiter submitted.' Allcomments, except those.described-in (3),must either be lnciuded wfththe response, -or appendedin full to the final pocument; 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near..: 
	identical lang ua ge, and that raise the same issues on the sametopic: 
	ffil Jhe response may be grouped under (2}(A) with the response to other comments under the same · topic and lssue-withall bomment ors frfentifiedin -the distinctTylabelied section Tdentifvf ng commentors by topic: or 
	.(fil AsTngleresponse ma y be provided that addresses all substantive com-ments w ithin theform letter o r petition-an d thaTTncludesa distinct section listing the individual commentors who submitted the form letter or petition. Atleast one representative sample of·the form letter or petitionshall beappendet:I to ffie fihal documentand 
	:cg} Prov1dedttia[ if a commentor adds a distinct substantive co-mment foa form Tetter-or petition~ then That cornmen'tinusTbe respo.nded fo pursuant to-subsection (2):' . 
	A summary·of any EIS public scoping meetings, including a written gen~ ai 
	~ummary of the oral comments made, and a representa ive sampleof any 
	handoufreiafedto the actionprovlded aTihe Eis p"ubll c scoping meeting(s): 
	A list of those persons or agencies Who were 'cq_nsulteci and ha9 no comment 
	[shall be included in the draft EIS] 1~a manner indicatfng that~no comment was 
	provided; and ' '. · 
	I ~
	~ ---

	_(fil 'A representative sample of the apency consultatio , request letter. 
	(t) An addendum [GeGUmem-} to,a,draft environmental impact statement Eisshall reference the original draft [environmentai impact statement] EIS tbwhTch' it attaches [te] and comply with .all applicable filing, public review, and comment requirements set forth in subchapter [-71 10. ' · 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) ,(Imp: HRS§§ 343-2, 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact Statements 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Public review shall not substitute for early and open discussion with interested persons and agencies[,] concerning the environmental impacts of a proposed action. Review of the ~raft EIS, shall serve to provide the public and other agencies an opportunity to discover the extent to which a proposing agency or applicant has examined environmental concerns and available alternatives. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The period for public review and for submitting written comments shall pommence [as-ef] ,from the date ihat notice of availability of the draft EIS is initially issued in the periodic bulletin and shall continue for a period of forty-five days, unless mandated otherwise by ,statute. Written comments to the [approving agency or] accepting auth-brity[, whichever 


	' 
	-

	is applicable,] with a copy of the comments to the [applicant or] proposing agency or applicant, shall be received !2Y or postmarked to the approving agency or accepting authority, within [saW] the forty-five-day comment period. Any comments outside of the forty-five day comment period need not be [consicleretj or] responded to nor c:onsrdered. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-26 Comment R_
	~sponse Requiremer,ts for Draft Environmental Impact Statet)ients 
	(a) In accordance with.the content requirements of section ~ 1-200.1-27, [-TI:le] the proposing agency or applicant shall respond [in writing] \.v1thin the-finar-ETS to [tRe] all ~ubstantive written comments received QY or postmarked to the approving agency during the fortyfive-day review period~[and incorporate the comments and responses in the final 
	~ EI-Sl:[The response to com111ents shall inch,Ide:] fn decfding whether a written -comment is substantive, the proposing-agency or applicant shaifgTve caretuf conslderatfonfo Hie ~alidity, significance, and relevance of the co-mmen1 to the scope, ana lysis, or process of ttie.EIS, bearlngrn-mincfthe-purpose -of this chapterand-ct1apte-r 343~ HRS.Vi/ntten '.comments.deemed by the .pror.><>sing agency or applicant as non-substantive and to which no resp0r:ise was~provlded shalfbe clearly indicated.i 
	Proposing agencies arid a-pplicants shall respondin the final Els·to all-suhstantive Written comments in one of two ways. or a combination of both; so long as each 
	fu.i 

	I -·-----------• ------•
	;Substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
	• ' • -------I
	ill By grouping comment responses under topic headings and addressing eacH 
	I • • • --·-------------
	-

	:substantive comment raised by an individual com mentor under that topic heading 15y issue. When grouping comments by topic and issue. the names of commentors who raised an issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified fti a distinctly labelled section with that topic heading. All substantive comments Within a sfngle com.ment letter must be addressed, but may be addressed 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	throughout the applicable topic areas with the commentor identified in each applic-able topic a rea. Alfooniinents,· except those descrl6ed in subsection (c),: must be a-ppended in-full to the.final doc·unient: Oli 
	m Byproviding aseparate and distinct response-to each comment clearly identifying Hie corrimeritor a nct the comment re-ceiving aresponsetor each comment letter submitted .. _ Alfcomm.ents, except those described in (c), must either beincluded with the responseorappended in full-to the final document! 
	For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identical . language, and that raise the.same ·issues o n-the same topic! Theresponse-maybe grouped underTb57l) wfth-the responseto..other comments 
	ill 

	under the same topic and issue with all commentors Identified in the distinctly iabelled section identifying commentors by opici or 
	Asingle.response-may be provided thata ddresses all-Substantive comments 
	withTnt he form lettererpetition and that includes a distinct section listihg_ffi'"e 
	fncflvidual commentors-whosubmitted the-form· letter,. 0r. petition. At least one 
	representative sample of the form letter orto the final 
	-petition shall.be appended 

	1-------
	-

	(jocument: and 
	Provided that if a commentor adds a distinct substantive comment to a form letter 
	br petition, then that commenfm·usfbe responded to pursuanTTosubsection (d). 
	In responding to substantive written com'ments, proposingf agencies and applicants 
	1

	I ,• ' r:-----~ 
	{Responses} shall endeavor to resolve conflicts, inconsistencies, or concerns identified and to provide a response tliat is commensur~te with the ce~tent of those comments~ [Response l_etters reproduced in the text of the final f;:IS] :Theres·ponse shall indicate [verbatim] changes that have been made to the text of the draft EIS. The response shall descrio~ the dlsposition of significant environmental issues raised. [(&.g.;] Fo·r example: 
	,.-" ----...., . -
	-

	the response may point to revisjons to t~e proposed [project] action to mitigate 
	. antic_ipated impacts or objections 'raised in-tne comment[,et&.-]~. In particular, the issues raised i.vhen the [applicant's dr] p~oposing agency's o r.appilcant's ~position is at variance with recommendatio~s a'nd objections raised in the comments shall be 
	, , 
	address_ed iil ~etail, giving reasors why specific comments and suggestions were not accepted;· and faptors of overriding importance warranting an override of the suggestions. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	The final EIS, at a minimum, shall contain the information required in this section. The contents shall fully declare the environmental implications of the proposed action and shall discuss all [~d feasible] teasonabli toreseeable consequences of the action. In order that the public can be fully informed and that the accepting authority can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on environmental effects, [a statement] an EIS shall include responsible opposing views, if any, o

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The final EIS shall consist of: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The draft EIS prepared in compliance with-this si.Jbchapter, as _revised to incorporate substantive comments received during the (consultatjon and] review processes in conformity with section fi-200.1-'26, including -reprodtJctior:i-·of all 


	p • 'V --, .
	. 
	.comments and responses to substantive written comments; [~] (Reproductions of all letters received containing substantii.«e questions, comments, or recommendations and, as appliqable, summaries of any scoping meetings 
	Rela;] ' [~]ill A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies ·commenting on the draft EIS; .. ~ A Tist of those persons 0r agencies who were consultea wTth in preparing the final Eis and had no comment shall be inclueed-in a~manner indicating that no 
	' ("; ' 
	'comment was provii:fed: 
	(4) [The·reI;ponses of the a pplicant or proposing agency to each substantive q·uestion, comment, or recommendation received in the review and consultation prooesses,] A written general summary of-oral comments made at anypubiid
	·~ 
	,.. 

	· (5) The text of the final ElS [11~hioh shall bo] written in a format [wh¼GR] that allows the reader to easily distinguish changes made to the text of the draft EIS. 
	meetings; and 
	"\. 
	1 

	• , / l 
	[Eff l (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (fmp: HRS §§ 343-2, 343-5, 343-6) 
	.. 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11 -200.1-28 Acceptability 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Acceptability of [a statemem] a final EIS shall be evaluated on the basis of whether the [statement} final EIS, in its completed form, represents an informational instrument [WA-iBA] ~hat fulfills the [defi.rutieA-of an EIS] intent and provisions of chapter.343, HRS, and adequately discloses and describes all identifiable environmental impacts and satisfactorily responds to review comments. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	A [statementl final EIS shall be deemed to be an acceptable c;locument by the accepting authority or approving agency only if all of the following criteria are satisfied: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The procedures for assessment, consultation process, review, and the preparation and submission of the [statementl EIS, from proposal oMhe action to pubHcation of the final Els;·have all been completed satisfactorily a_s specified in this chapter; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The content requirements described in this chapter have been satisfied; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Comments submitted during the review process have r~ceived responses satisfactory to the accepting authority, or apj)roving agency, 1ncludind properiy 1dentiMng-commentsas· substantive -·mmensura1e-to 
	and respondi.ng in,aiway co



	the comment,: and have been 'appropriate!¥ incorporated [¼fl] into the [statement} final EIS. . 
	(c) For actions proposed by agencies, the proposing agency may r~quest the office to make a recommendation regard,irig the acceptc)bility or non:~acceptability of the EIS. Hthe ·office decides to make a recommendation, it shali submit the recommendation to the 
	~ --------r ---. 
	-

	[The propdsing agency or approving agency shall prepare any draft or final environmental assessfnent of each proposed actioF) and determine whether the anticipated effects constitute a significant effect in the context of chcipter343, HRS, and-section 11 200 12. The environmental
	accepting authority and pr.oposing agency. In all cases involving state funds or lands, 
	accepting authority and pr.oposing agency. In all cases involving state funds or lands, 
	the governor or [cm] the governor's'authorized representative shall have final authority to 
	" . :"\,. 
	-

	accept the EIS. In cases involving orily county funds or lands, the mayor of the respective county or [cm] the mayor's authorized representative shall have final authority to at:cept the EIS. The accepting authority shall take prompt measures to determine 
	the acceptability or non~acdepta'bility ofthe proposing agency's [statementl EIS. In the 
	\ ---., 
	-

	event tbat the action involves [ooti:l] state and county lands [e,:Ji state or count¥ funds, or, both state.and county lands and state and county funds, the governor or [an] The 
	.---.... j f 
	governor's authorized representative shall have final authority to accept the EIS. 
	~ .• 
	(d) Upon acceptance or non-acceptance of the EIS, a notice shall be filed by the appropriate
	'·· 
	accepting authqrity with both the proposing agency and the office. For any non-
	accepted EIS, the n<:>tice shall contain specific findings and reasons for non-acceptance. 
	The office shall publish notice of the determination of acceptance or non-acceptance in 
	the periodic bulletin in accordance with [seGtion 11 200~] subchapter4. Acceptance of 
	a required statement shall be a condition precedent to the use of state or county lands or 
	funds in implementing the proposed action. 
	(e) For actions proposed by applicants requiring approval from an agency, the applicant or accepting authority, which is the approving agency, may request the office to make a recommendation regarding the acceptability or non-acceptability of the [statement] B S. 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	If the office decides to make a recommendation, it shall submit the recommendation to the applicant and the approving agency within the [thirty day] period requiring an approving agency to determine the acceptability of the final EIS [and described in seBtien 343 5(o), HRS]. Upon acceptance or non-acceptance by the approving agency, the agency shall notify the applicant of its determination, and provide specific findings and reasons. The agency shall also provide a copy of this determination to the office f
	--1 I
	may, at the request of the applicant,,be extended [at the request of the appUGam] for a period not to exceed fifteen days. The request shall be made to the accepting authority in writing. Upon receipt of an applicant's .wrltten req~uest for an extension of the thirtyday acceptance_period, the accepting authority shall notify the pffice and applicant in writing of its decision to grant or deny the request. -The notice shall be accompanied by a copy of the applicant's request. An extension of the thirty-day 
	• -, I 
	[fe!:] of the [statement] EIS within thirty days of the receipt of the final EIS, then the 
	statement shall be deemed accepteq. , ,' 
	(f) A non-accepted EIS may be revised by a prop~sing ag~ncy or applicant. The revision shall take the form of a revised draft EIS [document] which shall fully address the inadeqyacies of the non-accepted EIS and shall completely and thoroughly discuss the cha~ges made. The requirerr1ents for filihg, distribution, publication of availability for review, acceptance or non-acc~ptance, and r,otification and publication of acceptability 
	. shall be the same as the req~irel'T1ents prescribed by [seotions 11 200 20, 11 200 21, 11 200 22,_ and 11 200 23] .subchapters 4·and 1ti for an EIS submitted for acceptance. In 
	I 
	addition, the [re1,ised draft EIS] subsequent revised final EIS shall be evaluated for 
	acceptability on the basis of~ hether it satisfactorily addresses the findings and reasons 
	for non-acceptance. 
	{g) A proposing agency or applicant may withdraw an EIS by simultaneously sending a [fettei:] written notification to the office and to the accepting authority informing the office of the proposing agency's or applicant's withdrawal. Subsequent resubmittal of the EIS shall meet all requirements for filing, distribution, publication, review, acceptance, and notification as a [Rew] draft EIS. 
	[Eff ] {Auth: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) {Imp: HRS § 343-5, 343-6) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	§ 11-200.·1-29 Appeals to the Council 
	An applicant, within sixty days after§. non-acceptance defermlnatTon bythe app-roving agenc¥ :under section 11-200.1-28 of [a statement]a final EIS [by an agORBY], may appeal the nonacceptance to the council, which within thirty days of receipt of the appeal, shall notify the applicant appealing of its determination to affirm the approving agency's non-acceptance -or to reverse ii. The council chairperson shall include the appeal cin th-e ag-erid-a-of the next co-uncil meeting following-receipt ofthe appea
	\ ' .. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact St~tements 
	r 
	(a) [A statement] An EIS that is accepted with respect to 'a particular action is usually qualified by the size, scope, location, intensity, use, and timing of the action, among 
	·, 
	other things. [/1. statement] An EIS that is aocept~d with respect tq a pa[iicular action shall satisfy the requirements of this chapt~r and no [atAef] suppiemental [statemeflt] 'e"is for that proposed action shall be required, to the extent' th?t the action has not changed substantively in size, scope, intensity, ~se, location or timing, among other things. If there is any change in any'of these characteristics which may have a significant effect, the origina_l ~tatement that wa~ changdd shall no longer be
	(b) The accepting authority or approving agency in coordination with the·original acc·epting authority shall be responsible for determining whether a supplemental [statement] EIS is required. this 'determination will be submitted to the office for 
	• ' • I 
	publication in the periodic bulletin. Proposing agencies or applicants shall prepare for public review supplemental [statements] EISs whenever the proposed action for which [a] an [statement] Eis was accepted has been modified to the extent that new or different environmen,tal impacts are anticipated. A supplemental [statement] EIS shall be warranted when the scope of an action has been substantially increased, when the intensity of environmental impacts will be increased, when the mitigating measures origi
	(c) The contents of the supplemental [statement] E IS shall be the same as required by this chapter for the EIS and may incorporate by reference unchanged material from the same; 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	however, in addition, it shall fully document the proposed changes from the original EIS, including changes in ambient conditions or available information that have a bearing on a proposed action or its impacts, the positive and negative aspects of these changes, and shall comply with the content requirements of fse6tien 11 200-4-e] subchapter 10 as they relate to the changes. 
	(d) The requirements of the thirty-day consultation, [fflifl§-] public notice filing, distribution, the forty-five-day public review, comments and response, and acceptance procedures, shall be the same for the supplemental [statement] EIS as is prescribed by this chapter for an 

	· EIS. 
	· EIS. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §343-5, 343-6) 
	I I 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 
	§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 
	When (tRe-si-HKltion occurs where] a certain action will be subject both to the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (Public Law 91-1 90, as amended by Public Law 94-52 and Public Law 94-83; 42 U.S.C. [§J sectlons 4321-4347) and chapter 3~3, HRS, the following shall occur: 
	(1) The applicant or agency, upon discovery of its proposed action being subject to both chapter 343, HRS, and the [National E1wironmeotal Policy Act] NEPA, shall 
	1 
	notify the responsible federal [agency] entity, the office; and any agency with a definite interest in the action (as prescribed by chapter 343, HRS) [ef.41::!e situation]. 
	(2) When a federal entity determines that the proposed action is exempt from review under the NEPA, this determination•'l:ioes not automatically,c<:mstitute an 
	----------, -------
	-

	~ ~ 
	exemption for the purposes of this chapter. lr-i such cases, state and county 
	r ----,---
	-

	agencies remain responsible foricompliance with this chapter. However, the federal exemption may be considered in-the s1ate or county agency, tfetermination.' . , 
	(3) 
	(4) The [National Environrpental Policy /\ct] 'NEPA requires that [draft statements] EISs be prepared by the responsible federal (agency] entity. lnthe caseof actions for which an asrpursuant t6 tile NEPA•hasbee npreparedbv-the responslble federal entity.the-draft and final federal EISmay be. subrrutted to 
	I -• • C""7' , --
	-

	.comply witti this chapter, so long as the federal EIS satisfies the EIS content requirements of ttus-chapter and is not found to be inadequate under the-NE-PA: by a court: 8y..the Council on Environmental Quality (or IS at issue in pre-decision feferral to Council on Environmental Quality) under the NEPA regulations: or by fhe administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency under. 
	r -----------
	-

	section 309 of the Clean Air Act, 41 U.S.C. 1857, 
	(5) When the responsibility of preparing an EIS is delegated to a state or county agency, this chapter shall apply in addition to federal requirements under the [National Envir-oomontal Polisy---ABt] 'NEPA. The office and state or county 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 
	Environmental Council 
	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	agencies shall cooperate with federal [8-§00Gies] entities' to the fullest extent possible to reduce duplication between federal and state requirements. This cooperation, to the fullest extent possible, shall include joint [environmental impact statemefl-ts] EISs with concurrent public review and processing at both levels of government. Where federal law has [environmental impact statement] EIS requirements in addition to but not in conflict with this chapter, the office and agencies shall cooperate in fulf
	(6) Where the NEPA process requires earlier or more stf:ingent public review.[af!G processing] fifing~ and distnbution than under.thls'·chapter, ftien that NEPA 
	----·--t-:-:-, --
	-

	process shall satisfy this chapter so that duplicative consultation or review do not occur. The responsible federal entity's supplemental EIS requ1rements shali 
	' ~ --;-'7".. --
	-

	:apply in these cases in place of this chapter's supplemental EIS ,requirements. 
	. ' ~
	-

	<( 
	(7) In all actions where the use of state land or funds is propqsed, the final [statement] EIS shall be submitted to the governor or an authprized representative. In all actions when the use of county land or funds is proposed an·d no us·e of state land or funds is-proposed, the final [stateme~t} Eis shall be submitted to the mayor, or an authorized representai1ve. The final [statementl EIS in these instances shall first ~e accepted by the governor or mayor (or an authorized representative), pripr to the su
	; 
	' 
	(8) Any aoceptan~e obtained pu_rsuant to [paragraphs (1) to (3)] this section shall satisfy chapt_er 343, HRS, and np other [statement] Els for the proposed action shall be required. 
	[Eff l (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (l,mp: HRS§§ 343-5, 343-6) 
	Environmental Council Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 
	Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 
	§ 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 
	@} The rules shall apply immediately upon taking effect, except as otherwise provided below. 
	.{Q} ·Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) chapter 11-200 shall continue to apply to environm-ental review of agency and applicant actions which began prior to the actoption of HAR ch-apter 11-200.1~ providedt hat: .. 
	For EAs, if the draftEA was published by tlie office prior'to the adoption of HAR 
	• -------.. --4 --,,,._.... --
	-

	chapter 11-200.1 and has not received a dete~mination within a period of five years from the implementation of HAR ch.apter 11-2oo.1, then the proposing agency or-applicant must comply with the requirements of HAR ch apter f:1-'l 
	200.1. All-subsequent environmental review, inclucflrig an EISPN mu st comply with HAR chapter1 1-2-00. f '· 
	For EISs, if the EISPN was published oy theb ffice prior to the adoption of HAR bhapter-11-200.1 and the-final EIS Has not beeiiacceptecl withm five ye ars from 
	.------------t .... ----, --_,___ --------,
	the implementation of HAR chapter 11-200.1, then the proposing agency or. applicant must comply with the requirements of HAR ,chapter IT-2051~ 
	. 
	' 

	A judicial proceedlng regar.ding the probosed.actlon~shall not count towards the five-year, time period .' 
	1 

	, ' 
	;(£) Exemption ITsts that tiave received concurrence under HAR chapter 11~200 may be used 
	for,.13 period of seven years after the adoption of HAR chapter 11-200.1; duringwhich time .-lf1eagencymusfreviseTts list and obtain concurrence from the counciTm confor mance' 'w7ffiHAR chapter 11-200.1. , \ 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS § 343-6) (Imp: HRS § 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 
	If any provision of this ch,ipt~r or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this chapter which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application; and to this end, the provisions of this chapter are declared to be severable. 
	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§ 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§ 343-6, 343-8) 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 
	Environmental Council 

	Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 20, 2018 




	Note 
	Note 
	Historical Note: Chapter 11-200, HAR, is based substantially on the Environmental Impact Statement Regulations of the Environmental Quality Commission. [Eff 6/2/75; R 12/6/85] Amendments to and compilation of chapter 200, title 11, Hawaii Administrative Rules, and the repeal of§ 11-200-11, Hawaii Administrative Rules were adopted on March 27, 1996 following public hearings held on November 14, 1995, November 16, 1995, November 17, 1995, November 20, 1995 and November 21, 1995 after public notice was given i
	Amendment in 2007 to section 11-200-8 to include an exemption cla_&S for affordable housing. It has not been compiled. 
	This note wijl l:>e updated pending <!doption of the Pr<;>1:>c:>sed .@..[eaj 
	I 
	..\ 
	·•: 
	\ 
	\ 
	v0.4-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 



	Version 0.4a Rationale 
	Version 0.4a Rationale 
	Proposed Revisions to Hawaii Administrative Rules Title 11 Department of Health Chapter 200 Environmental Impact Statement Rules 
	I 
	February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Environmental Council Meeting 
	Prepared with the assistance of the Office of Environmental Quality Control (OEQC). 
	IO)lli©U Wlli~ lJ1] MAR 1YJ,GP ~ 
	.-5;&.,e 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Table of Contents 
	Table of Contents 
	I. Introduction 5 
	A. Historical Background on the Rules 5 
	B. Historical Background on the Rules Update (2012-2014) 5 C. Current Efforts (2016-present) 5 
	i. Drafting Process; Public Input Process, Pre-and Post-Permitted Interaction Group 5 ii. Version 0.1 6 iii. Version 0.2 7 iv. Version 0.3 8 v. Version 0.4 9 
	D. Process Moving Forward 1 0 
	II. Global Discussion Points 11 A. Reorganization 11 
	B. General Changes 14 
	C. Topical Changes 14 Digitizing the Process 14 Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program 15 "Green Sheet" 16 Exemptions 17 Affordable Housing 18 Climate Change 18 "Direct-to-EIS" 18 Republication of EAs or EISs 19 Response to Comments 20 Scoping Meetings 22 NEPA-HEPA ·23 Retroactivity 23 Ill. Section-Specific Changes 25 Subchapter 1 Purpose 25 § 11-200.1-1 Purpose 25 Subchapter 2 Definitions 26 § 11-200.1-2 Definitions 26 Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 30 
	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	§ 11-200.1-3 Computation of Time 30 Subchapter 4 Filing and PubJication in the Periodic Bulletin 31 § 11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 31 § 11-200.1-5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 32 § 11-200.1-6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations 33 Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 34 § 11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 34 Subchapter 6 Applicability 35 § 11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 35 § 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Cha
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a . Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	§ 11-200.1-27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 61 § 11-200.1-28 Acceptability 62 § 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 63 § 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 64 Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 65 § 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 65 Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 67 § 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 67 § 11-200.1-33 Severability 67 Note 67 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	4 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	I. Introduction 
	I. Introduction 
	A. Historical Background on the Rules 
	The current Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 11, Chapter 200 rules were promulgated 
	and compiled in 1996 (the "1996 Rules"). An amendment to add an exemption class for the 
	acquisition of land for affordable housing was added in 2007, although it has not been compiled 
	with the rest of the rules. 
	B. Historical Background o·n the Rules Update (2012-2014) 
	In 2011, the public formally petitioned the Environmental C_ouncil (the "Council") to update 
	chapter 11-200, HAR. The Council initiated consultation with state and county agencies for 
	recommendations on issues to address and language revisions. In 2012, the Council released 
	a preliminary draft of revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR (referred to as "Version 1 ") that 
	incorporated proposed revisions from previous Council efforts and issues raised by agencies 
	and the public. The Council also distributed an Excel file called a "comment matrix" to receive 
	feedback on Version 1. Agencies and the public (including individuals, applicants, consultants, 
	and nonprofit organizations) submitted comments via the comment matrix. The Council 
	organized the feedback into a master comment matrix and tasked the Rules Committee with addressing the feedback af)d making revisions to the rules language. The Rules Committee 
	met regularly over the course of 2012-2014 to revise Version 1. However, due to various administrative challenges, including maintaining quorum, the Council was not able to complete 
	its work. 
	C. Current Efforts (2016-present) 
	In February 2016, following Governor lge's appointment of seven members to the Council, the Council resumed moving forward on revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. As part of this effort, the Council wanted to recognize the extensive outreach and drafting that the 2012 Council conducted. Multiple discussion drafts, as described below, were made available to agencies, interested stakeholders, and the general public throughout the pre-consultation period and comments were sought at every stage of the process. 
	i. Drafting Process; Public Input Process, Pre-and Post-Permitted Interaction Group 
	At the February 23, 2016 Council meeting, the Council established a Permitted Interaction Group (PIG) to draft revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. The PIG was tasked with investigating and considering specific language for inclusion in the revisions to chapter 11-200, HAR. The Pl G's work was not for the purpose of decision-making and was limited to work that would be proposed to the Rules Committee for its consideration and decision-making to make recommendations to the Council. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	5 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Permitted.Interaction Group Principles 
	The PIG drafted language within the following principles established by the. Council: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Be consistent with the intent and language of chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS). 

	• 
	• 
	Align statutes, case law, and practice wherever feasible. 

	• 
	• 
	Increase clarity of the process and legal requirements. 

	• 
	• 
	Align with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) where applicable. 


	Permitted Interaction Group Process 
	Following the Council's establishment of the PIG, the PIG met monthly or biweekly to review the previous Council's work. The PIG revieweq the 2012 draft rules language, the 2012 comment matrix produced by the prior Rules Committee, and the responses to the public comments that the Rules Committee developed over 2012-2014. The PIG categorized the comment matrix into two groups: (1) comments resolved and direction provided/draft language, and (2) outstanding comments still needing policy direction or draft la
	For the second group, the PIG developed language in consultation with the Rules Committee and the Office of Environmental Quality Control (OEQC). Further, the PIG developed language in response to requests from the Rules Committee and OEQC for issues that arose since 2012. At the July 11, 2017 meeting, the Council agreed that the PIG could present its report directly to the Council at its meeting on July 27, 2017. 
	ii. Version 0.1 
	On July 27, 2017, the PIG presented its report and submitted Version 0.1 of the draft revisions to the 1996 Rules to the Council for its consideration in rulemaking to update the 1996 Rules. (Refer to Version 0.1 for additional background information.) The Council approved Version 0.1 at its meeting on August 8, 2017 as the baseline document for further edits and to serve as a foundation for early consulting with affected agencies, interested stakeholders, and the general public. The Council's approval of V
	The PIG recommended the following revisions to the Council as a baseline starting point for discussion going forward. Among the themes addressed were: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	"Housekeeping" -revisions that modernize grammar and clarify language. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying roles and responsibilities at various stages of environmental review. 

	• 
	• 
	Modernizing submittals and deadlines to recognize electronic communication. 

	• 
	• 
	Setting clearer thresholds for exemptions and the role of exemption lists. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying when and how to proceed directly to preparing an environmental impact statement (EIS) instead of an environmental assessment (EA). 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying when and how to do programmatic EISs and supplemental EISs. 

	• 
	• 
	Responding to comments in EAs and EISs. 

	• 
	• 
	Conducting joint federal-state environmental review. 


	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	In August 2017, OEQC and the Council began working with a drafting team from the William S. Richardson School of Law to continue drafting language for the revisions to the 1996 Rules. OEQC also set up an online comment platform using CiviComment, allowing for an additional means of commenting on the rules update, as well as a webpage on the OEQC website tracking the rules update schedule, Council meetings on the rules update, and comment deadlines. See httpJJh.aalth,tlawaii.go¥,IQs.q.c.lrule&~updateJ. Those
	iii. Version 0.2 Version 0.2 was introduced to the Council on September 5, 2017 as a discussion document that incorporated public and agency comments, as well as comments received from Council members. The Council closed comments on Version 0.2 on October 20, 2017. 
	Version 0.2 proposed changes affecting almost every section of the 1996 Rules. In addition to the numerous "housekeeping" revisions, the following major topics were addressed in Version 0.2: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Clarifying definitions and aligning them with statutory definitions. 

	• 
	• 
	Explicitly incorporating cultural practices in accordance with Act 50 (2000). 

	• 
	• 
	Updating requirements and procedures to publish in the OEQC periodic bulletin (i.e., 


	The Environmental Notice). 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Aligning the "triggers" requiring environmental review for agencies and applicants with statutory language. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying the environmental review process emergencies and emergency actions. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying roles and responsibilities of proposing agencies and approving agencies. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising the requirements and procedures for creating exemption lists and exempting actions from further environmental review. 

	• 
	• 
	Modernizing submittals, deadlines, comment and response, and distribution to recognize electronic communication. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising th~ comment and response requirements and procedures for EAs and EISs. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying style standards for EAs and EISs, including when an action is a program or a project. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying significance criteria thresholds for determining whether to issue an exemption notice, Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI), or EIS Preparation Notice (EISPN). 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying requirements and procedures for directly preparing an EIS instead of an EA. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising requirements for conducting scoping meetings following an EISPN. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying content requirements for draft and final EISs. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising procedures for appealing non-acceptance to the Council. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising procedures for joint federal-state environmental review. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising the requirements and procedures for determining when to do a Supplemental EIS, including aligning the requirements with statute and case law. 

	• 
	• 
	Adding a retroactivity section for actions that have already completed environmental review or are undergoing review at the time the Proposed Rules (as defined below) would be promulgated. 


	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	iv. Version 0.3 
	iv. Version 0.3 
	Version 0.3 made multiple changes to Version 0.2 based on agency and public comments and 
	Council input. Most notably, Version 0.3 reorganized, added, and deleted sections of the 1996 
	Rules to c·reate Chapter 11-200A, HAR. The purpose of the reorganization was to ensure that 
	the structure of the rules more closely followed the sequence of steps in the environmental 
	review process. 
	Because Version 0.3 reorganized the subchapters and sections, confusion could arise when 
	referencing subchapters and sections. To ease discussion of differences between the 1996 
	Rules and changes proposed in Version 0.3, Version 0.3 called the proposed rules "HAR 
	Chapter 11-200A" and appended an "A" to the end of each subchapter and section number. A 
	reference to a section number without using "A" was understood to be a reference to the 1996 
	Rules. 
	For example, section 3 in the 1996 Rules applies to the periodic bulletin, whereas section 3A in Version 0.3 was about the computation of time. What was Section 3 in the 1996 Rules had been moved to subchapter 4A Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin and the content that was in section 3 was divided into three sections: 4A, 5A, and 6A. 
	Version 0.3 did not carry forward all proposed additions and deletions considered in Versions 
	0.1 and 0.2. Rather, Version 0.3 only showed changes with respect to the existing 1996 Rules and 2007 amendment for consideration in that working draft. 
	Version 0.3 reorganized the 1996 Rules almost entirely and proposed changes affecting almost every section of the 1996 Rules. In addition to the reorganization and numerous "housekeeping" revisions, the following major topics were addressed in Version 0.3: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Clarifying definitions and aligning them with statutory definitions. 

	• 
	• 
	Incorporating cultural practices in accordance with Act 50 (2000). 

	• 
	• 
	Updating requirements and procedures to publish in the OEQC periodic bulletin (i.e., The Environmental Notice), including for unusual situations involving publishing again. 

	• 
	• 
	Aligning the "triggers" requiring environmental review for agencies and applicants with statutory language. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying the environmental review process as it applies to states of emergency and emergency actions. 

	• 
	• 
	Clari~ying roles and responsibilities of proposing agencies and approving agencies in the environmental review process. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising the requirements and procedures for creating exemption lists and exempting actions from further environmental review. 

	• 
	• 
	Modernizing submittals, deadlines, comment and response, and distribution to recognize electronic communication. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising the comment and response requirements and procedures for EAs and EISs. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying style standards for EAs and EISs, including when an action is a program or a project. 


	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Clarifying significance criteria thresholds for determining whether to issue an exemption notice, FONS!, or EISPN. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying requirements and procedures for directly preparing an EIS instead of an EA. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising requirements for conducting scoping meetings following an EISPN. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying content requirements for draft and final EISs. . • Revising comment and response requirements. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying acceptance criteria. 

	• 
	• 
	Clarifying procedures for appealing non-acceptance to the Council. 

	• 
	• 
	Revising procedures for joint federal-state environmental review. 

	• 
	• 
	Consolidating into one section the requirements and procedures for determining when to do a Supplemental EIS, including aligning the requirements with statute and case law. 

	• 
	• 
	Adding a retroactivity section for actions that have already completed environmental review or are undergoing review at the time the rules would be enacted. 



	v. Version 0.4 
	v. Version 0.4 
	Version 0.4 was released to the public and the Council on February 20, 2018 for discussion at the Council's February 20, 2018 meeting. Version 0.4 made multiple changes to Version 0.3 based on agency and public comments and Council input. Most notably, Version 0.4 introduced the following new topics: 
	• Providing a-new process, referred to as the "green sheet" for agencies to examine: (1) whether a proposed activity is covered by an existing environmental review document; 
	(2) the level of review necessary for proposed action, and (3) whether a proposed action requires additional review. 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Exemptions -requiring agency exemption lists to be categorized into two parts: (1) allowing for agencies to designate certain activities as de minimis and therefore not requiring exemption documentation; and (2) those activities requiring exemption documentation and publication in the periodic bulletin. 

	• 
	• 
	Explicitly requiring consideration of the impacts of sea level rise and greenhouse gases as significance criteria. 

	• 
	• 
	Requiring submission to OEQC of an audio recording of oral comments received at the public scoping meeting(s) on an EIS. 


	The Council considered Version 0.4 for decision-making at its March 6, 2018 meeting and voted [INSERT VOTE COUNT] to approve Version 0.4 [, AS AMENDED] (hereinafter, the "Proposed Rules"). At this meeting, the Council also voted to approve the Public Notice of Rulemaking, this Rules Rationale, and the Changes from the 1996 Rules documents (the Proposed Rules, Public Notice of Rulemaking, Rules Rationale, and the Changes from the 1996 Rules documents are collectively referred to as the "Rules Package") and v
	v0Aa-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	On ____, 2018, Governor lge approved the Rules Package. On ___, 2018, the 
	Director of the Department of Health published the notice of public hearing for the Proposed 
	Rules. 
	D. Process Moving Forward 
	OEQC and the Council will take comments on the Proposed Rules during .the 30-day comment 
	period, which begins on ___, 2018 and ends on _ __, 2018. During the 30-day ·comment period, OEQC will hold public hearings on the Proposed Rules on the following dates 
	and times in the following locations: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	City & County of Honolulu: TBD 

	• 
	• 
	Kaua'i County: TBD 

	• 
	• 
	Maui County: TBD 

	• 
	• 
	Hawaii County: TBD 


	In addition to comments received at the above listed public hearings, CiviComment will continue to be available for use during the 30-day public comment period. 
	At the close of the 30-day comment period, the Rules Committee will review all comments and revise the Proposed Rules, as needed. All revisions to the Proposed Rules will be presented to the Council for decision-making. If the Council approves the revisions and no substantive changes are made, the Department of Health will promulgate the final rules as chapter 11200.1, HAR. (If substantive changes are made, additional public hearings may be required on the Proposed Rules.) 
	-

	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	11. Global Discussion Points 

	A. Reorganization 
	A. Reorganization 
	The overall reorganization of the 1996 Rules is proposed to make the rules clearer and to reflect the sequence of going through environmental review. 
	The 1996 Rules repeat or cross-reference many steps in the process. For example, the 1996 
	Rules have Section 3 on publishing in The Environmental Notice, but has additional publication 
	requirements in the following sections: 9, 15, and 20. The Proposed Rules consolidate 
	directions on how to publish into one section. 
	The order of the sections in the 1996 Rules do not reflect the order of going through the environmental review process. For example, the significance criteria are found in Section 12, following the draft EA section, yet the significance criteria are part of the initial decision to prepare an exemption, EA, or EIS. The Proposed Rules move the significance criteria to earlier in the order prior to deciding the appropriate level of review. 
	Similarly, the 1996 Rules group the EA and EIS steps by content and then process. For example, the 1996 Rules organize the EIS sections in the following order: consultation prior to a draft EIS, general content requirements for EISs, content for a draft EIS, then content for a final EIS, followed by style, filing, distribution, review, and acceptability. The Proposed Rules reorganize these sections into the flow of the process: consultation prior to preparing a draft EIS, content requirements for a draft EI
	While versions 0.1 and 0.2 retained the 1996 Rules sequence of sections but added some new 
	sections, Version 0.3 introduced a complete reorganization of the sections. To make discussion 
	of the rules in Version 0.3 easier, the organized rules were referred to as Chapter 11-200A and 
	had "A" appended to the end of each section number. 
	For Version 0.4, the Proposed Rules are referred to as "Chapter 11-200.1" because the 1996 
	Rules would be repealed and in their place Chapter 11-200.1 would be promulgated. 
	The following table shows where sections from the 1996 Rules appear in the Proposed Rules for Version 0.4. In general, almost every section includes new and moved 1996 language. The 1996 Rules sections cited below are the primary sources for the corresponding Proposed Rules sections. "New" indicates that the section is almost entirely new or incorporates important points from a 1996 Rules section. 
	Note the sequence of sections have been modified from the order in Version 0.3. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	-• 
	1996 Section
	1996 Section
	Version 0:4 Chapter 11'-200.1, HAR 
	. 


	.
	.
	' 
	Subchapter 1 Purpose · ' 
	Subchapter 1 Purpose · ' 
	,, ,. .: " 1, 14, 19 
	,, ,. .: " 1, 14, 19 
	§11-200.1-1 Purpose 

	.,
	. . .. 

	Subchapter 2 Definitions 
	Subchapter 2 Definitions 
	•: 
	2
	2
	§ 11-200.1 -2 Definitions 


	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time 
	;' .. 
	New
	New
	§11-200.1-3 Computation ofTime (new) 


	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin 
	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic Bulletin 
	. 
	3,11.2,21,27
	§11-200.1-4 Periodic Bulletin 3,9,10,1 1.1, 
	§1 1-200.1 -5 Filing Requirements for Publication and Withdrawal 
	11 .2, 20, 23 §11~200.1-6 Republication of Notices, Documents, and Determinations 
	New 

	Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
	Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
	3,4,23
	§11-200.1-7 Identification of Approving Agency and Accepting Authority 
	,.

	Subchapter 6 Applicability 
	Subchapter 6 Applicability 
	,.
	' §11-200.1-8 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Agency Actions 
	New, 5, 8 § 11-200.1-9 Applicability of Chapter 343, HRS to Applicant Actions 
	New, 5, 6 §11-200.1-10 Multiple or Phased Actions 
	7 §11-200.1-11 Use of Prior Exemptions, Findings of No Significant Impact, or 
	New Accepted Environmental Impact Statements to Satisfy Chapter 343, HRS for Proposed Activities 

	; 
	; 
	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 

	.. § 11-200.1 -12 Consideration of Previous Determinations and Accepted Statements 
	13 §11-200.1-13 Significance Criteria 
	12 §1 1-200.1-14 Determination of Level of Environmental Review 
	New, 5, 8 ,. 
	Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 
	' §11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption 
	8 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11 -200.1-Rules-Rationale 12 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Version 0.4 Chapter 11-200.1, HAR . 
	Version 0.4 Chapter 11-200.1, HAR . 
	Version 0.4 Chapter 11-200.1, HAR . 
	1996 Section 

	§11-200.1 -16 Exemption Lists 
	§11-200.1 -16 Exemption Lists 
	8 

	§11-200.1 -17 Exemption Notices 
	§11-200.1 -17 Exemption Notices 
	8 

	Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 
	Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 

	§11 -200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 
	§11 -200.1-18 Preparation and Contents of a Draft Environmental Assessment 
	9, 10, 19 

	§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	§ 11-200.1-19 Notice of Determination for Draft Environmental Assessments 
	11.1 

	§1 1-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmehtal 
	§1 1-200.1-20 Public Review and Response Requirements for Draft Environmehtal 
	9.1 

	Assessments 
	Assessments 

	§1 1-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	§1 1-200.1-21 Contents of a Final Environmental Assessment 
	10 

	§1 1-200.1 -22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	§1 1-200.1 -22 Notice of Determination for Final Environmental Assessments 
	9, 11.2 

	Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 
	Subchapter 10 Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements 

	§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	§ 11-200.1-23 Consultation Prior to Filing a Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	9, 15 

	§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	§ 11-200.1-24 Content Requirements; Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
	16, 17, 19,22 

	§1 1-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 
	§1 1-200.1-25 Public Review Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 
	22 

	Statements 
	Statements 

	§11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 
	§11-200.1-26 Comment Response Requirements for Draft Environmental Impact 
	22 

	Statements 
	Statements 

	§11-200.1 -27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 
	§11-200.1 -27 Content Requirements; Final Environmental Impact Statement 
	16, 17, 18 

	§11-200.1-28 Acceptability 
	§11-200.1-28 Acceptability 
	23 

	§11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 
	§11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 
	24 

	§11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 
	§11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 
	26,27,28,29 

	,. 
	,. 

	Subchapter 12 National Environmental Policy Act 
	Subchapter 12 National Environmental Policy Act 

	§1 1-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: Applicability to Chapter 
	§1 1-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: Applicability to Chapter 
	25, New 

	343, HRS 
	343, HRS 

	Subchapter 13 RetrC?activity and Severability 
	Subchapter 13 RetrC?activity and Severability 

	§1 1-200.1-32 Retroactivity 
	§1 1-200.1-32 Retroactivity 
	New 

	§11-200.1-33 Severability 
	§11-200.1-33 Severability 
	30 


	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	13 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR ·Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	B. General Changes 
	The Proposed Rules make numerous changes to the rules that enhance readability. In general, 
	changes to grammar and spelling, breaking long paragraphs into lists, reordering paragraphs, 
	deleting redundant language, or similar edits are considered housekeeping and are not 
	discussed in the sections below. 
	The most frequent general change is editing ''.which" to "that". '.'Which" is appropriate where the following clause is not necessary to the meaning of the sentence an_d is descriptive of the clause that precedes it. "That" is appropriate when the preceding clause is dependent on the clause following "that"; the words after "that" are essential to the meaning of the sentence. Numerous · instances of "which" in the 1996 Rules are changed to "that" in the Proposed Rules. 
	While the Legislative Reference Bureau (LRB) recommends to_ not use acronyms or abbreviations in rules, the LRB recognizes that in some cases their use is appropriate. For example, in Chapter 11-55, HAR, Water Pollution Control, "National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System" is at most people interacting with these administrative rules use "NPDES" more than the full name and use of the abbreviation enhances readability of the rules. 
	abbreviated as "NPDES". This reflects the reali.ty th

	Similarly, in the environmental review process, use of certain acronyms and abbreviations is 
	integral to meaningfully participating in the process. In particular, the following are considered important and integral acronyms and abbreviations and therefore are used in the Proposed 
	Rules to enhance readability: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	EA: environmental assessment 

	• 
	• 
	EIS: environmental impact statement 

	• 
	• 
	EISPN: environmental impact statement preparation notice 


	o FONSI: finding of no significant impact 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	HAR: Hawaii Administrative Rules 

	• 
	• 
	HRS: Hawaii Revised Statutes 

	• 
	• 
	NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 


	The Proposed Rules replace all instances of "assessment" with "EA" and clarify whether it is specifically referring to a draft or final EA. Also, the Proposed Rules replace all instances of "statement" with "EIS" and clarify whether it is specificaily referring to a draft or final EIS. 
	C. Topical_Changes 
	Digitizing the Process 
	When the 1996 Rules were promulgated, home use of computers was just beginning. Internet was still paid for by the minute and most communication still relied ori physical mail. The Environmental Notice was physically mailed to subscribers. Proponents also physically mailed copies of EAs and EISs to Parties requesting it. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale
	14 . 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Today, The Environmental Notice is distributed electronically and EAs, EISs, and other 
	environmental review documents are freely available in OEQC's online database. Many of the 
	mailing and print-copy requirements for environmental review documents were included in the 
	I 
	1996 Rules to ensure access. With widespread digital distribution, these concerns are no longer as prominent. The Proposed Rules, therefore, make modifications in a number of areas related to digitization. For example, proposing agencies and applicants are no longer required to mail individual responses to commenters because the responses are easily accessible in the document posted online. Some paper copies of EAs and EISs, however, are still required in the Proposed Rules. For example, a copy of a draft E
	Programmatic Approaches and Defining Project and Program 
	The Proposed Rules weave in the concept of programmatic environmental review that may 
	apply to an exemption, EA, or EIS. This approach has evolved from Version 0.1 to the current 
	Proposed Rules. Programmatic environmental review is sometime referred to as being at the 
	"planning-level," and project-based environmental review is sometimes referred to as "site
	specific". Programmatic environmental review is most appropriate for evaluating the impacts of 
	a wide range of individual projects; implementation over a long time-frame; or implementation 
	across a wide geographic area. The level of detail in programmatic environmental review 
	should be enough to make an informed choice among planning-level alternatives and broad 
	mitigation strategies. This type of review allows for analysis of the interactions of a number of 
	planned projects or phases in a plan. This broader level review may satisfy compliance with 
	chapter 343, HRS as described in the new section on use of prior exemptions, FONS ls, and 
	accepted EISs or may be followed by site-or component-specific exemptions, EAs, or EISs that 
	are based off of the approved or accepted programmatic document, a process known as 
	"tiering," as the elements of the program are proposed to be implemented. 
	Version 0.1 of the Proposed Rules proposed a distinct section covering "Programmatic EISs." The Council realized that setting forth a programmatic approach to EISs in a distinct section would require that same section to be replicated for exemptions, EAs, and potentially supplemental EISs as well. This approached also would have resulted in the default process becoming the "project" process and would have created a bifurcated process for projects and programs that raised questions about being within the aut
	In Version 0.2, the proposed distinct section was deleted, and the concept of a preparation of a . programmatic EA or EIS was inserted into a proposed "Environmental Assessment Style" section and the existing "Environmental Impact Statement Style" section. In general, those sections clarified that more detail was necessary for actions that had site-specific impacts and less detail was necessary for broader actions that were still in a more conceptual phase and intended to be implemented in multiple location
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	While the Council was draftin9 Version 0.3, the Supreme Court of Hawaii issued its decision in 
	Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 284 (Haw. 2017). 
	Because chapter 343, HRS and the 1996 Rules lacked a definition for project or program, the 
	court looked to the Merriam-Webster Dictionary for the plain-meaning of those terms. The court 
	provided: '"Program' is generally defined as 'a plan or system under which action may be taken 
	toward a goal.' '.Project' is defined as 'a specific plan or design' or 'a planned undertaking"' 
	(Umberger v. Department ofLand and Natural Resources, 403 P.3d 277, 290 (Haw. 2017)). In 
	drafting, th_e Council noted that the definition for "program" provided by the court included the 
	word "action," which is defined in chapter 343, HRS as "a project or program." Therefore, the 
	Council believed that further clarification was necessary. 
	In order to provide greater clarity and to be able to discuss the concept of "programmatics" more succinctly, in Version 0.3 the Council proposed definitions for "project" and "program". The Proposed Rules substantially retain these proposed definitions from Version 0.3. Using the definitions to distinguish between projects and programs, the Proposed Rules also allow for the preparation of programmatic exemptions, EAs, and EISs. 


	"Green Sheet" 
	"Green Sheet" 
	The "green sheet" process is an adaptation of the City and County of Honolulu Department of Planning and Permitting's internal. review process (referred to as the green sheet) for documenting chapter 343, HRS analysis. The Council has modified this concept to incorporate considerations that the U.S. Bureau of Land Management and U.S. DOT use in their own NEPA adequacy analysis. 
	During the Council's rules revision process, questions arose about standardizing how agencies conduct evaluations of the need to prepare a supplemental EIS. Other stakeholders raised questions about how an agency would resolve whether an action is covered by a previous determination or accepted EIS; a project is covered by a programmatic exemption, EA or EIS; or a federal NEPA EA or EIS meets the requirements of chapter 343! HRS. Others recommended incorporating the U.S. Department of Transportaion's (DOT) 
	For the supplemental EIS question, the 1996 Rules (Section 27) provide that an agency submit to OEQC for publication a determination of whether a Supplemental EIS is required or not required. The Proposed Rules retain this requirement. Note that the Proposed Rules group the Supplemental EIS section into the subchapter on EISs. The "green sheet" is ·a process proposed in section 11-200.1-11 that helps an agency with documenting its decision-making about whether a proposed action fits within an existing chapt
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Section 11-200.1-11 is a new section that directs agencies on applying a new activity to an 
	existing HEPA process but providing three criteria for determining when an activity is covered: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The proposed activity was a component of, or is substantially similar to, an action that received an exemption, FONSI, or an accepted EIS (for example, a project that was analyzed in a programmatic EIS); 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The proposed activity is anticipated to have direct, indirect, and cumulative effects similar to those analyzed in a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	In the case of a final EA or an accepted EIS, the proposed activity was analyzed within the range of alternatives. 


	Concluding "yes" to the three criteria means that the proposed act.ion fits within one of the 
	circumstances. Concluding "no" means that a separate chapter 343, HRS analysis is needed; 
	that is, the agency needs to decide if an exemption, EA, or EIS is appropriate. In either case, 
	the agency may choose to publish the determination with the OEQC for publication in the 
	periodic bulletin. · 
	For NEPA, an agency, in the act of issuing an exemption, FONSI, or acceptance, would in effect "certify" that the federal document and process meets the requirements of chapter 343, HRS. That is, if an agency were to issue a FONSI for a federal EA that was not published in the periodic bulletin, then the agency would be at fault for not fully complying with chapter 343, HRS. Similarly, an agency issuing an acceptance based on a federal EIS would be affirming by issuing the acceptance that the federal EIS me
	-

	Following adoption of the Proposed Rules, the OEQC will develop guidance on creating a 
	"green sheet" equivalent (i.e., a standardized form) that helps agencies with tracking 
	determinations that an activity is covered by an existing chapter 343, HRS process, such as a 
	programmatic EIS covering the action; whether a supplemental EIS is required; and whether 
	NEPA is an aspect of the action. 
	Exemptions 
	One of the Council's goals was to update the exemption process. The overall proposed changes are intended to increase agency use of exemptions, provide incentives for updating exemption lists and obtain Council concurrence with the lists on a regular basis, and increase timely public access to information about exemptions. See the sections of this Rationale Document regarding subchapter 8, Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements for a detailed discussion of the proposed changes to the exemptions subch
	Section 11-200.1-16 revises the exemption list to consist of two parts. The first part would be those types of actions that the agency considers to be the equivalent of de minimis; that is, they are routine operations and maintenance, ongoing administrative activities, and other similar items. This category of activities was proposed under section 11-200.1-8, General Applicability, 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 17 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	in Version 0.3. The Proposed Rules removed that section and now require agencies to consider in advance what activities the agency considers to be de minimis, and to include those in Part 1 of the agency's exemption list. By including them in the exemption list, the agency is able to make staff aware of occasions where an activity might be in the gray area of a project-or program for the purposes of chapter 343, HRS but perhaps not rising to the level of requiring environmental review as explained by the Ha
	Affordable Housing See the discussion in Section 11-200.1-15 General Types of Actions Eligible for Exemption for discussion about the exemptions regarding affordable housing. 
	Climate Change The Proposed Rules incorporate sea level rise into significance criterion 11. Under the Proposed Rules, when determining whether preparation of an EIS is required approving agencies must consider whether a proposed action is likely to have a substantial adverse effect on a sea level rise exposure area, such as exacerbating coastal erosion. They must also consider whether the proposed action is likely to suffer damage if it is implemented due to being located in a sea level rise exposure area.
	Additionally, the Proposed Rules amend criterion 13 to require approving agencies to consider in a significance determination whether a proposed project will emit substantial greenhouse gases at any stage or may emit substantial greenhouse gases as an indirect or cumulative 
	impact. 
	The Hawaii Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Adaptability Report, released in December 2017 by the Department of Land and Natural Resources, calls on the OEQC to develop guidance on addressing climate change in EAs and EISs. Guidance from the OEQC will be forthcoming after the rules update is completed. In developing the guidance, the OEQC will look to the Final Guidance for Federal Departments and Agencies on Consideration of Greenhouse Gas Emissions and the Effects of Climate Change in NEPA Reviews, issued
	"Direct-to-EIS" In 2012 the Legislature amended chapter 343, HRS to allow for agencies and applicants to directly prepare an EIS when there was a clear potential for significant impact. The 1996 Rules 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 18 
	Environmental Council v0Aa Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1 , Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	are written such that an EA that is prepared prior to an EIS is part of the definition of an EIS and is one of the steps in the process of developing an EIS. The Proposed Rules remove preparation of an EA from the definition of an EIS and allow for EISs to begin at the EIS preparation notice stage without first preparing an EA. 
	Th.e 1996 Rules created confusion about the requirements for an EISPN when an applicant or 
	proposing agency began with an EIS versus beginning with an EA and finding that an EIS is 
	needed. To reduce this confusion, the Proposed Rules standardize the requirement of an 
	EISPN regardless of how an applicant or proposing agency begins an EIS. 
	The Proposed Rules include a public scoping meeting requirement and incorporation of public 
	feedback from the scoping meeting into the draft EIS. In the past, the preparation of an EA 
	would provide the public an early opportunity to provide comments on an action. The scoping 
	meeting requirement at the EISPN phase balances the increased efficiency of proceeding 
	directly to an EIS with providing adequate opportunity for public engagement. 
	Because the 1996 Rules assumed that an EA would be done before an EISPN, the content requirements for an EISPN are few. In the Proposed Rules, those details are intended to be filled out with the preparation of the draft EIS and with incorporation of public feedback from the mandatory scoping meeting and any other public consultation. 


	Republication of EAs or EISs 
	Republication of EAs or EISs 
	On occasion, an agency or applicant would like to extend a public comment period for an EA or EIS. The statute is silent on extending public comment periods. However, it does allow for an applicant to request an agency to extend the acceptance period by 15 days (HRS§ 343-S(e)). 
	In the past, agencies have offered extended comment periods to allow the public more time to 
	engage in the process and provide additional feedback. While this is laudable, it creates 
	complications for the environmental review process. If an agency does not announce this 
	extension through The Environmental Notice, then not all stakeholders may be aware of the 
	extension. In effect, this gives some members of the public more time than others. Also, an 
	extension of time creates uncertainty in legal standing for individuals who submit comments after the statutory deadline of a comment. The statute sets clear limitations on rights to pursue 
	legal remedies, one of which is having commented during the draft EIS comment period. 
	Extending comment deadline creates questions of standing for the courts. 
	In order to meet the need of additional comment time while staying within the statute, the Proposed Rules add a new section on republishing EAs and EISs for additional comment time. This creates a second comment period of thirty days for draft EAs and EISPNs, and forty-five days for draft EISs. 
	For someone commenting during the republication period, their comment would be treated the same as having been submitted during the initial publication period. That is, the proponent would have to respond to the comment and the commenter would have legal standing. For 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	I 
	comments received in between publication periods, these would not have legal standing because they would not be submitted during a legal window. 
	The OEQC will publish guidance to agencies recommending that they contact any members of the public who submit comments between publication periods to recommend that the commenter resubmit the comment during the re-publication comment period. 
	Response to Comments 
	Response to Comments 
	The Proposed Rules make several changes to how proposing agencies and applicants respond to comments. As discussed below, the Council also considered removing but ultimately retained the qualifying word_"substantive" in the Proposed Rules as a threshold for the response requirement. 
	Individually Mailed Responses, Comment Grouping, and Form Letters/Petitions 
	When the 1996 Rules were promulgated, the main method of EA/EIS dissemination was through paper copies of the documents. It was also essential that hardcopies of responses be mailed to commenters so that they could access the response, which would otherwise predominantly be available only through a paper copy of the EA or EIS at the library or other certain physical locations. 
	Today, EAs, EISs, and other environmental review documents are easily accessible through the OEQC website. Accordingly, the Proposed Rules have introduced a number of changes based on the wide accessibility of EAs and EISs online. 
	First, the Proposed Rules no longer require a written response to be physically mailed to each commenter. Comments must still, .however, be responded to arid appended to the final EA or final EIS, with some minimal exceptions. 
	Second, because comments no longer must be mailed individually to commenters, the Proposed Rules allow proposing agencies and applicants to respond to comments based upon the "grouping" model that federal environmental review under NEPA allows. Proposing agencies and applicants may analyze the comment letters they receive, identify the topics and issues raised in those comment letters, and then prepare a single response for each issue raised by topic. This particularly increases efficiency when a number of 
	The Council received and considered comments from the public that "grouping" may allow proposing agencies or applicants to side-step substantive comments by not addressing specific details raised within a comment on a particular topic. To prevent this, the Proposed Rules draw a distinction between "topic" and "issue." As an example, a number of comment letters may contain portions addressing endangered species. Some may be concerned about monk seals, while others may be con·cerned about hawksbill turtles. A
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	20 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	group all the comments related to endangered species under one topic, and then have two separate issues: monk seals and hawksbill turtles. Within those issue headings, the proposing agency or applicant must then address each substantive comment related to monk seals or 
	hawksbill turtles. Although the comments may be grouped, the substance of each substantive 
	comment must be addressed. 
	There were also concerns that without a physical letter, commenters would not be able to determine whether their comments received a response. To address this, when grouping comments, proposing agencies and applicants must include a list of the commenters whose comments are being addressed under each topic heading or section. Further, all comment letters containing substantive comments must be appended to the final document (e.g., FEIS). 
	The Proposed Rules also allow proposing agencies and applicants to continue the current practice of providing a separate response for each comment letter, wherein each substantive comment presented in the comment letter must be addressed. Under this practice, the response letter is usually included before or after the comment letter, and the commenter may clearly identify that a response has been provided. Although not required, proposing applicants and agencies may mail written responses to commenters. 
	The Proposed Rules additionally address the increasing use of form letters and petitions. The Proposed Rules attempt to ensure recognition of the commenters who submit identical or nearidentical comments and to provide an efficient process to respond to the raised issues. 
	To do this, the Proposed Rules allow proposing agencies and applicants to respond to form letters and petitions with a single response or, if following the grouping procedure, to address the issues raised in the form letter in the appropriate topic areas. Only one representative sample of a form letter or petition must be appended to the document. However, all the commenters who submitted the form letter or signed the petition must be identified either in the single response, or in the topic response. If it
	The Council received feedback that the form letter process may allow proposing agencies or applicants to overlook form letter comments that add in additional substantive points. The Proposed Rules address this by requiring that form letters that have additional substantive points be appended in full to the document, and receive a response, either as a separate response, or as part of a grouped response. 
	"Substantive" Comments 
	In Version 0.2, the Council considered and received feedback on requiring a response to all comments, as opposed to requiring a response to "substantive" comments. Removing the word "substantive" ensures that all comments will receive a response, but created concerns about 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	21 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	increased burdens on the proposing agency and applicant to respond to statements within a comment letter that are clearly outside the scope of the action, that are inflammatory, or that are simply formalities or pleasantries. Taking these concerns into account, Version 0.3 reinserted the word "substantive" into the Proposed Rules to retain the qualification that only "substantive" comments require a response. Version 0.3 also emphasized that the accepting authority had to be satisfied that a comment was "su
	The Proposed Rules retain the word "substantive" and include direction to the accepting authority. The Council also notes that in the NEPA context "substantive" generally means that a comment addresses some specific aspect of the proposed action or the document ( e.g·., draft 
	EA or draft EIS). 

	Scoping Meetings 
	Scoping Meetings 
	In the 1996 Rules, the EISPN is followed by a 30-day comment period to help scope the contents of the draft EIS. The proponent has the option to hold a scoping meeting. If the proponent chooses to hold a scoping meeting, then the proponent must treat oral and written comments the sam~; that is, oral and written comments from a scoping meeting have to be written down and responded to in the draft EIS. In practice, many proponents choose to either not hold scoping meetings, or hold meetings that are similar b
	The direct-to-EIS change to the statute also resulted in the public expressing concerns that they now have less information when an EISPN is published. Prior to the statute change, an EA would be prepared as part of the EISPN, usually including a comment period from draft to final EA. Sinc.e the change in statute, most EISs begin with an EISPN and do not prepare an EA. Because the 1996 Rules assume an EA has been done before an EISPN, the content requirements for an EISPN are few. The public often requests 
	At the federal level, NEPA requires a scoping meeting for EISs. In Hawaii, given the statutory direct-to-EIS change and the importance of focusing the document on the important issues (scoping), the Council believes requiring a scoping meeting is appropriate and timely. 
	In the case of a proposed action occurring on multiple islands, a scoping meeting is required to be held on each island affected. Requiring a scoping meeting addresses the public's need to be better informed about a proposed action while giving applicants the opportunity to meanin~fully 
	engage the public. 
	The Council recognizes that requiring a scoping meeting will add a new cost to undertaking an EIS. To balance this additional cost, the Council is requiring written comments received at a scoping meeting be responded to in writing while oral comments be audio recorded and submitted to the OEQC and oral comments summarized in the draft EIS. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-1 1-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	22 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	The Council reviewed the EISs prepared since 2012 and found that the number of EISs averaged about eleven per year, the majority of which agencies proposed. Only state agencies prepared statewide EISs over the past five years, which indicates that the requirement to hold scoping meetings on multiple islands would have limited relevance to applicants. Where it may happen to be relevant, multiple scoping meetings are unlikely to be cost prohibitive or the determining factor in a proposed action's process or i
	NEPA-HEPA 
	NEPA-HEPA 
	The Proposed Rules seek to increase efficiency and harmonization of federal and state environmental review where both are necessary. The Proposed Rules promote the use of a single document that satisfies both federal and state environmental review and goes through a single comment period for the purposes of both. The Proposed Rules encourage the use of the NEPA environmental review document, but require that each agency make an independent determination pursuant to chapter 343, HRS of the necessary level of
	The Proposed Rules contain provisions for agency decision-makers to make their own decision 
	about the necessary level of environmental review under chapter 343, HRS while taking into 
	account existing federal information. For example, NEPA could allow for a categorical 
	exemption, while chapter 343, HRS may require an EA or even an EIS. Alternatively, NEPA 
	could require a federal EA, while chapter 343, HRS may allow for an exemption. 



	Retroactivity 
	Retroactivity 
	During the Council's rules update process, agencies and applicants expressed concerns regarding how the process requirements for actions that were undergoing environmental review when the Proposed Rules are promulgated into law would apply. Agencies and applicants also expressed concerns regarding actions that may have completed the environmental review process but after litigation are required to go through the process a second time as a result of the litigation. To reduce uncertainty about when the Propos
	The principle underlying the retroactivity section is that proposed actions that have completed a formal public engagement step shall continue under the 1996 Rules for five years from the promulgation of the Proposed Rules. For EAs, this means once a draft EA has been published, the proposed action remains under the 1996 Rules until either it receives a determination (FONSI or EISPN) or five years have passed. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 23 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	Similarly, for an EIS, publication of the EISPN would mean the proposed action stays under the 1996 Rules until either a determination is made (acceptance or non-acceptance) or five years have passed. This ensures that_the proponent has a consistent process and the public has an expectation of the process for its duration. 
	This section also allows agencies to maintain their exemption lists for up to seven years before needing to obtain Council concurrence. The retroactivity period allows for an agency to review its existing exemption list to reflect the changes associated with the Proposed Rules. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	24 






	IV. New Bus C. HAR 11-200 and 11-200.1 Env. Impact Statements - Part 3
	Structure Bookmarks
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	agency, citizen group, or individual was "consulted with" but had "no comment" if that agency, citizen group, or individual is included as a "consulted" entity in the draft EIS. "No comment" can occur in at least two instances. First, when a person or agency responds to a written request for comments that it has "no comment", and second, when a proponent provides information but does not solicit feedback. The second is not true consultation, because it is not reciprocal communication. This provision was add
	specifies that a summary of the oral comments made at any EIS public scoping meeting held pursuant to section 11-200.1-23 must be included. This section adds additional requirements specific to the preparation of the final EIS, including responses to comments received on the draft EIS and a list of persons or agencies consulted in preparing the final EIS. 
	§ 11-200.1-28 Acceptability 
	§ 11-200.1-28 Acceptability 
	This section is formerly section 11-200-23, HAR (1996). The Proposed Rules introduce several minor clarifying amendments, including: (1) breaking up long paragraphs into subsections; (2) clarifying that the section applies to final EISs; (3) clarifying that the acceptability of the final EIS includes a review of acceptability of the full environmental review process--from the proposal of the action to publication of the EIS; (4) clarifying that an acceptability determination requires the approving agency or
	or applicant's exercise of discretion in designating comments as substantive or non-substantive. In subsection (b)(3), the revised rule also adds in that approving agencies and accepting authorities should ensure that comments have been "appropriately incorporated into the final EIS." The addition of the word "appropriately" is intended as a recognition that not all comments will be incorporated or necessitate a change in the body of the final EIS, and that some comments, such as form letters or petitions, 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	62 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	representative sample included pursuant to the comment response provisions of this 
	subchapter. 
	The revised rule also provides in subsection (c) that for actions proposed by an agency, the 
	OEQC may submit a ~ecommendation regarding acceptability or non-acceptability to the 
	accepting authority and proposing agency. The Proposed Rules do not place a deadline on the 
	OEQC's recommendation because chapter 343, HRS does not impose a deadline on the 
	determination of acceptability of agency actions. The Council took into consideration that the 
	OEQC should endeavor to provide a recommendation as early as practicable, but that requiring 
	a deadline may prevent the OEQC from providing a recommendation in the event that an 
	accepting authority takes longer than usual to make a determination. 
	Subsection (e) includes a clarification that the accepting authority for an applicant action is the 
	approving agency. Subsection (e) also clarifies that the 30-day period for an approving agency 
	to determine the acceptability of an EIS begins with the submission of the final EIS to the 
	approving agency or accepting authority, rather than publication of the final EIS in the bulletin. 
	Further, subsection (e) clarifies that the 30-day acceptance determination period may be 
	extended at the request of the applicant for an additional fifteen days. 
	Other minor changes were made in accordance with global edits throughout the Proposed 
	Rules, such as updating section references, and replacing the term "statement" with EIS and 
	clarifying that "state or county lands or funds" can include "state or county lands," "state or 
	county funds" or both state and country lands and state and county funds. 
	Finally, the Proposed Rules provide minor changes to clarify the process for withdrawing an 
	EIS. 
	§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 
	§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the Council 
	This was formerly section 11-200-24, HAR (1996). The proposed amendments to this section 
	are intended to clarif~ the existing language, as well as to specify the process by which the 
	Council hears the appeal. 
	The Proposed Rules clarify that an appeal may be filed by an applicant with the Council after 
	the non-acceptance determination by the approving agency under the acceptability criteria in 
	subchapter 10, "Preparation of Environmental Impact Statements." 
	The Proposed Rules clarify that upon receipt of an appeal, the Council chairperson shall include the appeal on the agenda of the next council meeting. This connects the receipt of the notice of the appeal under section 343-5(e), HRS, with the timing of the next Council meeting. 
	Previous versions of the Proposed Rules included provisions that an applicant may also seek judicial review of the non-acceptance pursuant to chapter 91, HRS and that pursuing an appeal to the Council does not abrogate the applicant's right under section 34-7(c), HRS to bring a 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1 -Rules-Rationale 
	63 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	judicial action. The Council omitted these proposed changes from Version 0.3 and the currently Proposed Rules because it received feedback that such language was unnecessary and may be outside the scope of the rules. The Council also considered but ultimately omitted in the Proposed Rules including a provision that an entity other than an applicant could appeal the non-acceptance of an EIS to the Council. 


	§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 
	§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental Environmental Impact Statements 
	All language in this section comes from sections 11-200-26 to 11-200-29, HAR (1996) and 
	synthesizes those sections into a single section. Minor stylistic changes were made, such as 
	replacing "statement" with EIS. Subsection (a) was formerly section 11-200-26, HAR (1996). 
	Subsection (b) was formally section 11-200-27, HAR ( 1996). Subsection ( c) was formerly 
	section 11-200-28, HAR (1996). Subsection (d) was formerly 11-200-29, HAR (1996). 
	Version 0.1 considered changes to the sections dealing with supplemental EISs that would have: (1) explicitly added "new information IIas a factor to consider when weighing the necessity of a supplemental EIS; (2) explicitly provided for which sources of new information should be considered when determining the necessity of a supplemental EIS; and (3) established a fiveyear review requirement of accepted EISs for actions that had not yet substantially commenced. Version 0.1 also organized the information i
	The Council received multiple comments both in support of and raising concern about explicitly 
	establishing "new information" as a factor for requiring preparation of a Supplemental EIS. 
	Many practitioners expressed that this requirement was already clear in case law, particularly through Unite Here! Local 5 v. City and County of Honolulu, 231 P.3d 423, 430 (Haw. 2010), 
	also known as the Turtle Bay case. Altering this section, they provided, could create confusion where the Supreme Court of Hawaii has already established precedent. 
	Similarly, the Council received numerous comments both in support of and raising concerns regarding the five-year review period. There was some confusion over whether the proposal in Version 0.1 established an "expiration date." It did not. The intention was to provide a checkpoint for review with the exception that the review was only necessary if an action had not yet substantially commenced. The 1996 Rules provide that a supplemental EIS must be prepared in certain circumstances, but do not establish the
	In support of the five-year review, some commenters provided that a clear checkpoint--which the 1996 Rules lack--is necessary to create certainty. In the Turtle Bay case, a review for the 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	64 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	necessity of a supplemental EIS took place because the developer sought a discretionary 
	permit necessary to proceed with the completion of the proposed action. If only ministerial 
	approvals were necessary for completion, then under the 1996 Rules the necessity of a 
	supplemental EIS may not have been considered. 
	Taking those concerns into account, the Proposed Rules substantially retain the original language from the 1996 Rules and simply combine the sections into one section. The proposed requirement for five-year review has been removed. In its place, the Proposed Rules propose mandating a process (i.e., the "green sheet") for agencies to follow when considering issuing permits for actions with existing EAs and EISs. For further details on that process, see the "Green Sheet" section of this document. 
	Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 
	Subchapter 11 (National Environmental Policy Act) creates a distinct subchapter to describe 
	how to conduct environmental review for chapter 343, HRS, when federal National 
	Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) environmental review is also applicable. Although this 
	subchapter contains only one-section, creating a new subchapter is in line with creating a new 
	structure for chapter 11-200.1, HAR providing a clear outline of the contents of the Chapter 
	through the subchapter headings. 
	§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: · Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 
	§ 11-200.1-31 National Environmental Policy Act Actions: · Applicability to Chapter 343, HRS 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-25, HAR (1996). The 1996 Rules allowed cooperation between federal and state agencies on actions requiring both NEPA and HEPA review. The Proposed Rules clarify that where an action triggers both NEPA and HEPA review, the NEPA document may be used to satisfy the HEPA requirements, so long as it meets the required HEPA criteria. 
	In adopting the revised language in this section, the Council emphasizes that while a particular 
	level of review may be required under NEPA, the same level of review may not be required under. HEPA. For example, federal categorical exclusions (the federal equivalent of a state exemption) do not automatically result in exemptions under chapter 343, HRS. Conversely, the federal government may issue a FONS! for its purposes, but a state or county agency may require an EA or EIS be done for its purposes, or issue an exemption based on the federal FONSI. State and county agencies may do so, but must still m
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	65 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 
	To that end, subchapter 7 and the new section 11-200.1-12 (the "green sheet") proposed by these rules provides a tool to guide agencies on how to prepare the evaluation of whether or not the NEPA document satisfies the requirements of chapter 343, HRS. 
	Some of the language in this section was inspired by and based on similar language from Massachusetts and Washington, providing that federally-prepared EISs are sufficient so long as they meet the state's statutory requirements. The goal is to allow a federal EIS to meet the chapter 343, HRS requirements provided that it addresses chapter 343, HRS content requirements. In this case, state and county agencies can provide the information to the federal preparer for inclusion in its document rather than the st
	This section also addresses which agency is responsible (federal, state or county) for preparing the document, as well as delegation of that responsibility from the federal agency to a state or cqunty agency. 
	Furthermore, this section addresses, for example, situations where a federal agency's 
	regulations may require a public scoping meeting prior to publishing a Notice of Intent to 
	prepare an environmental impact statement and under chapter 343, HRS, the same action would also require a public scoping after the publication of an EISPN. This clause reduces the burden on the proposing agency or applicant to conduct two public scoping meetings. 
	The rule also clarifies that in the case of joint documents, the preparation of any supplemental documentation would be due to federal requirements and that HEPA supplemental requirements would not apply. The rule further clarifies who the accepting authority is for federal, state, and county actions. 
	Lastly, the rule explicitly states that any acceptance pursuant to this section satisfies chapter 343, HRS and that no other EIS shall be required for the proposed action. If the NEPA process requires supplemental review, the responsible federal entity's supplemental review requirements would apply instead of requirements under chapter 343, HRS. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	66 
	Environmental Council v0.4a Rationale for Proposed HAR Chapter 11-200.1, Environmental Impact Statements February 28, 2018 for March 6, 2018 Meeting 


	Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 
	Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 
	Subchapter 12 (Retroactivity and Severability) creates a distinct subchapter addressing the 
	retroactivity of the Proposed Rules when enacted and the severability of the Proposed Rules. 
	Section 11-200.1-32 describes when chapter 11-200. 1, HAR takes effect. Section 11-200 .1-33 
	includes the severability clause . 
	. § 11-200.1-32 Retroactivity 
	This is an entirely new section on when the Proposed Rules take effect and how the Proposed Rules apply to actions that have already completed the environmental review process or are undergoing it at the time the Proposed Rules take effect. This section was added in response to public comments concerning actions currently pending. This provision ensures that an action is not prevented from proceeding under the 1996 Rules when it otherwise would but is delayed due to a judicial proceeding or other reasons. 
	This section also provides a period of time for agencies to update their existing exemption lists 
	from "classes" to "types" of action, to designate those activities that would fall under "Part 1" of 
	the list, and to reassign exemptions to the appropriate general types. 
	As used in this section, publication by OEQC requires that the document was submitted and 
	met all requirements for publication. 
	§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 
	§ 11-200.1-33 Severability 
	This section was formerly section 11-200-30 in the 1996 Rules and provides that each provision in the Proposed Rules is severable and that the invalidity of any provision in this chapter does not affect the validity of the others. No amendments are proposed to this section. 


	Note 
	Note 
	The historical note will be revised following public hearing on the Proposed Rules and finalization for enacting the final Proposed Rules into law. 
	v0.4a-HAR-Chapter-11-200.1-Rules-Rationale 
	67 
	Ramseyer 
	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
	Repeal of Chapter 11-200 and Adoption of Chapter 11-200 . 1 Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	Month Date, Year 
	1. Chapter 11-200, Hawaii Administrative Rul es, entitled "Environmental Impact Statement Rules", is repealed. 
	2 . Chapter 11-200 .1, Hawaii Administrative Rules , entitled "Environmental Impact Statement Rules", is adopted to read as follows : 
	Figure
	"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES TITLE 11 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CHAPTER 200 . 1 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT RULES 
	Subchapter 1 Purpose §11-200.1-1 Purpose 
	Subchapter 2 Definitions §11-200.1-2 Definitions 
	Subchapter 3 Computation of Time §11-200 .1-3 Computation of time 
	Subchapter 4 Filing and Publication in the Periodic 
	Bulletin 
	Bulletin 
	Bulletin 

	§11-200 . 1-4 
	§11-200 . 1-4 
	Periodic bulletin 

	§11-200 . 1-5 
	§11-200 . 1-5 
	Filing requirements 
	for publication 
	and 

	TR
	withdrawal 

	§11-200 . 1-6 
	§11-200 . 1-6 
	Republication of notices, 
	documents, 
	and 

	TR
	determinations 


	Subchapter 5 Responsibilities 
	§11-200 . 1-7 Identification of approving agency and accepting authority 
	Subchapter 6 Applicability 
	§11-200 .1-8 Applicability of chapter 343, HRS, to agency actions §11-200 .1-9 Applicability of chapter 343 , HRS, to appl icant actions §11-200 . 1-10 Multiple or phased actions 
	200 . 1-1 
	§11-200 .1-11 Use of prior exemptions, findings of no significant impact, or accepted environmental impact statements to satisfy chapter 343, HRS, for proposed activities 
	Subchapter 7 Determination of Significance 
	§11-200 .1-12 Consideration of previous determinations 
	and accepted statements §11-200 .1-13 Significance criteria §11-200 . 1-14 Determination of level of environmental 
	review 
	Subchapter 8 Exempt Actions, List, and Notice Requirements 
	§11-200 .1-15 General types of actions eligible for exemption 
	§11-200 .1-16 Exemption lists 
	§11-200 . 1-17 Exemption notices 
	Subchapter 9 Preparation of Environmental Assessments 
	§11-200 .1-18 Preparation and contents of a draft environmental assessment §11-200 . 1-19 Notice of determination for draft environmental assessments §11-200 . l -20 Public review and response requirements for draft environmental assessments 
	§11-200 .1-21 Contents of a final environmental assessment §11-200 .1-22 Notice of determination for final 
	environmental assessments 
	Subchapter 10 Preparation of 'Environmental Impact Statements 
	§11-200 .1-23 Consultation prior to filing a draft environmental impact statement §11-200 . 1-24 Content requirements; draft environmental impact statement §11-200 .1-25 Public review requirements for draft environmental impact statements §11-200 .1-26 Comment response requirements for draft environmental impact statements 
	200.1-2 
	§11-200 . 1-27 
	§11-200 . 1-27 
	§11-200 . 1-27 
	Content 
	requirements; 
	final environmental 

	TR
	impact 
	statement 

	§11-200 . 1-28 
	§11-200 . 1-28 
	Acceptability 

	§11-200 . 1-29 
	§11-200 . 1-29 
	Appeals 
	to 
	the 
	council 

	§11-200 . 1-30 
	§11-200 . 1-30 
	Supplemental environmental impact 

	TR
	statements 


	Subchapter 11 National Environmental Policy Act 
	§11-200 . 1-31 National environmental policy act actions : applicability to chapter 343, HRS 
	Subchapter 12 Retroactivity and Severability 
	§11-200 . 1-32 Retroactivity 
	§11-200.1-33 Severability 
	Historical note: This chapter is based substantially upon chapter 11-200 . [Eff 12/6/85; am and comp AUG 31 1996; am 2007; R ] 
	SUBCHAPTER 1 
	PURPOSE 
	§ 11-200 . 1-1 Purpose. (a) Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), establishes a system of environmental review at the state and county levels that shall ensure that environmental concerns are given appropriate consideration in decision-making along with economic and technical considerations . The purpose of this chapter is to provide agencies and persons wi th procedures, specifications regarding the contents of environmental assessments and environmental impact statements, and criteria and definition
	(b) EAs and EISs are meaningless without the conscientious application of the environmental review process as a whole, and shall not be merely a self-serving recitation of benefits and a rationalization of the proposed action . Agencies and applicants shall ensure that EAs and EISs are prepared at the earliest opportunity in the planning and decision-making process. This shall assure an early, open forum for discussion of adverse effects and available alternatives, and that the decision
	-

	200 . 1-3 
	makers wil l be enlightened to any environmental 
	consequences of the proposed action prior to decision
	making . 
	(c) In preparing any document, proposing agencies and applicants shall: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Make every effort to convey the required information succinctly in a form easily understood, both by members of the publi c and by government decision-makers , giving attention to the substance of the information conveyed rather than to the particular form, or length, of the document; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Take care to concentrate on important issues and to ensure that the document remains essentially self-contained, capable of being understood by the reader without t he need for undue crossreference; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Conduct any required consultation as mutual, open and direct, two-way communication, in good faith, to secure the meaningful pa rticipati on of agencies and t he public in the environmental review process . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-1, 343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	DEFINITIONS 
	§11-200.1-2 Definitions. •As used in this chapter : 
	"Acceptance" means a f ormal deter mination-that the document required to be filed pursuant to chapter 343, HRS , fulfills the definitions and requirements of an EIS, as prescribed by section 11-200 . 1-28. Acceptance does not mean that the action is environmentally sound or unsound, but only that the document complies with chapter 343 , HRS , and this chapter . A determination of acceptance is required prior to implementing or approving the action. 
	"Accepting authority" means the official who, or agency that, makes the determination that a final EIS is required to be filed, pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, and that the final EIS fulfills the definitions and requirements of an EIS . 
	"Action" means any program or project to be initiated by an agency or applicant . 
	200 . 1-4 
	"Addendum" means an attachment to a draft EA or draft 
	EIS, prepared at the discretion of the proposing agency, 
	applicant, or approving agency, and distinct from a 
	supplemental EIS, for the purpose of •disclosing and 
	addressing clerical errors such as inadvertent omissions , 
	corrections, or clarifications to information already 
	contained in the draft EA or the draft EIS filed with the 
	office . 
	"Agency" means any department, office, board, or 
	commission of the state or county government t hat is part 
	of the executive branch of that government . 
	"Applicant" means any person that, pursuant to 
	statute, ordinance, or rule, officially requests approval 
	from an agency for a proposed action. 
	"Approval" means a discretionary consent required from 
	an agency prior to implementation of an action. 
	"Approving agency" means an agency that issues an 
	approval prior to implementation of an applicant action. 
	"Council" means the environmental council . 
	"Cumul ative impact" means the impact on the 
	environment that results from the incremental impact of the action when added to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency or person undertakes the other actions . Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but collectively significant actions taking place over a period of time. 
	" Discretionary consent" means a consent, sanction, or recommendation from an agency for which judgment and free will may be exercised by the issuing agency, as distinguished from a ministerial consent. Ministerial consent means a consent, sanction, or recommendation from an agency based upon a given set of facts , as prescribed by law without the use of j udgment or discretion. 
	" Draft environmental assessment" means the EA submitted by a proposing agency or an approving agency for public review and comment when that agency anti cipates a finding of no significant impact (FONSI ) . 
	"Effects" or " impacts" as used in this chapter are synonymous . Effects may include ecological effects (such as the effects on natural resources and on the components, structures, and functioning of affected ecosystems), aesthetic effects, historic effects, cul tural effects, economic effects, social effects, or health effects, whether primary, secondary, or cumulative, -immediate or delayed. Effects may also include those effects resulting from actions that may have both beneficial and detrimental 
	200 . 1-5 
	effects, even if on balance the agency believes that the 
	effect will be beneficial . 
	"EIS preparation notice", "EISPN", or "preparation 
	notice" means a determination that an action may have a 
	significant effect on the environment and, therefore, will 
	require the preparation of an EIS, based on either an EA or 
	an agency's judgment and experience that the proposed 
	action may have a significant effect on the environment . 
	"EIS public scoping meeting" means a meeting in which 
	agencies, citizen groups, and the general public assist the 
	proposing agency or applicant in determining the range of 
	actions, alternatives, impacts, and proposed mitigation 
	measures to be considered in the draft EIS and the 
	significant issues to be analyzed in depth in the draft 
	EIS. 
	"Emergency action" means an action to prevent or mitigate loss or damage to life, health, property, or essential public servi ces in response to a sudden unexpected occurrence demanding the immediate action. 
	"Environment" means humanity's surroundings , inclusive of all the physical, economic, cultural, and social conditions that exist within the area affected by a proposed action, including land, human and animal communities, health, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and objects of historic, cultural, or aestheti c significance. 
	"Environmental assessment" or "EA" means a written evaluation that serves to provide sufficient evidence and analysis to determine whether an action may have a significant effect. 
	"Environmental impact statement", "statement", or "EIS" means an informational document prepared in compliance with chapter 343, HRS. The initial EIS filed for public review shall be referred to as the draft EIS and shall be distinguished from the final EIS, which is the document that has incorporated the public's comments and the responses to those comments. The final EIS is the document that shall be evaluated for acceptability by the accepting authority. 
	"Exemption list" means a list prepared by an agency pursuant to subchapter 8 . The list may contain in part one the types of routine activities and ordinary functions within the jurisdiction or expertise of the agency that by their nature do not have the potential to individually or cumulatively adversely affect the environment more than negligibly and that the agency considers to not rise to the 
	200.1-6 
	level of requiring further chapter 343, HRS, environmental 
	review. In part t wo, the list may contain the types of 
	actions the agency finds fit into the general types of 
	action enumerated in section 11-200 . 1-15. 
	"Exemption notice" means a notice produced in 
	accordance with subchapter 8 for an action that a proposing 
	agency or approving agency on behalf of an applicant 
	determines to be exempt from preparation of an EA . 
	"Final environmental assessment" means either the EA 
	submitted by a proposing agency or an approving agency 
	following the public review and comment period for the 
	draft EA and in support of either a FONSI or an EISPN . 
	"Finding of no significant impact" or " FONSI" means a 
	determination by an agency based on an EA that an action 
	not otherwise exempt will not have a significant effect on 
	the environment and therefore does not require the 
	preparation of an EIS. A FONSI is required prior to 
	implementing or approving the action. 
	"Impacts" means the same as "effects". 
	"Issue date" means the date imprinted on the periodic 
	bulletin required by section 343-3, HRS . 
	"National Environmental Policy Act" or "NEPA" means 
	the National Euvlronmental Policy Act of 1969, Public .Law 
	91-190, 42 U.S . C. sections 4321-4347, as amended. 
	"Office " mea ns the office of environmental quality 
	control . 
	"Periodic bulletin" or "bulletin" means the document 
	required by section 343-3, HRS, and published by the 
	office . 
	"Person" includes any individual, partnership, firm, association, trust, estate, private corporation, or other legal entity other than an agency. 
	"Primary impact", "primary effect", "direct impact", or "direct effect" means effects that are caused by the action and occur at the same time and place. 
	" Project" means a discrete, planned undertaking that has a defined beginning and end time, is site-specific, and has a specific goal or purpose . 
	"Program" means a series of one of more projects to be carried out concurrently or in phases within a general timeline, t hat may include multiple sites or geographic areas, and is undertaken for a broad goal or purpose. A program may include : a number of separate projects in a given geographic area which, if considered singly, may have minor impacts, but if considered together, may have significant impacts; separate projects having generic or 
	200 .1-7 
	., 
	common impacts; an entire plan having wide application or 
	restricting the range of future alternative policies or 
	actions, including new significant changes to existing land 
	use plans , development plans, zoning regulations , or agency 
	comprehensive resource management plans; implementation of 
	a single project or multiple projects over a long time 
	frame ; or implementation of a single project over a large 
	geographic area. 
	" Proposing agency" means any state or county agency 
	that proposes an action under chapter 343, HRS . 
	"Secondary impact", "secondary effect", "indirect impact", or "indirect effect" mea ns an effect that is caused by the action and is later in time or farther removed in distance, but is still reasonably foreseeable . An indirect effect may include a growth-inducing effect and other effects related to induced changes in the pattern of land use, population density or growth rate, and related effects on air, water, and other natural systems, including ecosystems·. 
	"Significant effect" or "significant impact" means the sum of effects on the quality of the environment, including actions that irrevocabl y commit a natural resource, curtail the range of beneficial u~es of the environment, a r e contrary to the State's environmental policies or long-term envi ronmental goals and guidelines as established by law, adversely affect the economic welfare, social welfare, or cultural practices of the community and State, or are otherwise set forth in section 11-200 . 1-13 . 
	"Supplemental EIS" means an updat ed EIS prepared for an action for which an EIS was previously accepted, but which has since changed substantively in size, scope, intensity, use , location, or timing, among other things . 
	"Trigger" means any use or activity listed in section 343-S(a) , HRS , requiring preparation of an environmental assessment . 
	Unless defined in this section, e lsewhere within this chapter, or in chapter 343, HRS, a proposing agency or approving agency may use its administrative rules or statutes that they i mplement to interpret undefined terms . [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-2, 343-6) 
	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	COMPUTATION OF TIME 
	200.1-8 
	§11-200.1-3 Computation of time. In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by this chapter, order of the council, or by any applicable statute, the day of the act, event, or default after which the designat ed period of time is to run, shall not be included. The last day of the period so computed shall be included unless it 
	is 
	is 
	is 
	a 
	Saturday, 
	Sunday, 
	or 
	state holiday, 
	in which 
	case 
	the 

	last day shall 
	last day shall 
	be the 
	next business day. 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§1-29, 
	8-1, 
	343-6) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§§1-29, 

	8-1, 
	8-1, 
	343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	FILING AND PUBLICATION IN THE PERIODIC BULLETIN 
	§11-200.1-4 Periodic bulletin. (a) The periodic bull etin shall be issued on the eighth and twenty-third days of each month. 
	(b) When filed i n accordance with section 11-200 . 1-5, the office shall publish the following in the periodic bulletin to i nform t he public of actions undergoing chapter 343 , HRS , environmental revlew and the associated public comment periods provided here or elsewhere by statute: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Determinations that an existi ng exemption, FONSI, or accepted EIS satisf ies chapter 343, HRS, for a proposed activity; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Exemption notices and lists of actions an agency has determined to be exempt; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Draft EAs and appropri ate addendum documents for public review and thirty-day comment period, i ncluding notice of an anticipated FONSI; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Final EAs, including notice of a FONSI, or an EISPN with thirty-day comment period and notice of EIS public scoping meeting, and appropriate addendum documents ; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Notice of an EISPN wit h thirty-day comment period and notice of EIS public scoping meet ing, and appropriate addendum documents; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Evaluations and determinations that supplemental EISs are required or not required; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Draft EISs, draft supplemental EISs , and appropriate addendum documents for publ ic review and forty-five day comment period; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Final EISs , final supplemental EISs , and appropriat e addendum documents; 


	200 . 1-9 
	(9) 
	(9) 
	(9) 
	Notice of acceptance or non-acceptance of EISs and supplemental EISs; 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	Republication of any chapter 343, HRS , notices, documents, or determinations; 

	(11) 
	(11) 
	Notices of withdrawal of any chapter 343, HRS , notices, documents, or determinations; and 

	(12) 
	(12) 
	Other notices required by the rules of the council . 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	When filed in accordance with this subchapter, the office shall publish other notices required by ·statute or rules, including those not specifically r elated to chapter 343, HRS. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The office may, on a space or time available basis, publish other notices not specifically related to chapter 343, HRS. [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§3413, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§341-3, 343-3, 343-6) 
	-



	§11-200.1-5 Filing requirements for publication and withdrawal . (a) Anything required to ·be published in the bulletin shall be submitted to the office before t he close of business four business days prior to the issue date. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All submittals to thR office for publication in the bulletin shall be accompanied by a completed informational form that provides whatever information the office needs to properly notify the public . The information requested may include the following: the title of the action; the islands affected by the proposed action; tax map key numbers ; street addresses; nearest geographical landmarks; latitudinal and longitudinal coordinates or other geographic data; applicable permits , including for applicants, the

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The office shall not accept untimely submittals or revisions thereto after the issue date deadline for which the submittal was originally filed has passed. 


	200 . 1-10 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	In accordance with the agency's rules or, in the case of an applicant EA or EIS, the applicant's judgment, anything filed with the office may be withdrawn by the agency or applicant that filed the submittal with the office. To withdraw a submittal, the agency or applicant shall submit to the office a written letter informing the office of the withdrawal. The office shall publish notice of withdrawals and the rationale in accordance with t his subchapter. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	To be published in the bulletin, all submittals to the office shall meet the filing requirements in subsections (a)to(c) and be prepared in accordance with this chapter and chapter 343, HRS, as appropriate . The following shall meet additional filing requirements : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	When the document is a draft EA with an anticipated FONSI, the proposing a gency or approving agency shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	File the document and determination with the office; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Deposit, or require t he applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to the office, one paper copy of the draft EA at the nearest state library in each county in which the proposed .action is to occur and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents Center; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Distribute, or require the applicant to distribute, concurrently with its publication, the draft EA to other agencies having jurisdiction or expertise as well as citizen groups and individuals that the proposing agency reasonably believes to be affected; 



	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	When the document is a final EA with a FONSI, the proposing agency or approving agency shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	I ncorporate , or require the applicant to incorporate, the FONSI into the contents of the final EA, as prescribed in sections 11
	-


	200.1-21 and 11-200.1-22; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	File the final EA and the incorporated FONSI with the office ; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Deposit, or require t he applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to the office, one paper copy of the final EA with the Hawaii Documents Center; 






	200. 1-11 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	When the document is a final EA with an EISPN, the proposing agency or approving agency shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Incorporate, or require the applicant to incorporate , the EISPN into the contents of the final EA, as prescribed in sections 11
	-


	200 . 1-21, 11-200 . 1-22, and 11-200 . 1-23; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	File the incorporated EISPN with the final EA; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Deposit, or require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to the office, one paper copy of the final EA with the Hawaii Documents Center; 



	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	When the notice is an EISPN without the preparation of an EA, the proposing agency or approving agency shall : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	File the EISPN with the office; and 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Deposit, or require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to the office, one paper copy of the EISPN at the nearest state library in each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper copy at the H?waii Documents 




	Center; 
	(5) When the document is a draft EIS, the proposing 
	agency or applicant shall : {A) Sign and date the draft EIS; 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	Indicate that the draft EIS and all ancillary documents were prepared under the s ignatory's direction or supervision and that the information submitted, to the best of the signatory' s knowledge fully addresses document content requirements as set forth in subchapter 10; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	File the draft EIS with the accepting authority and the office simultaneously; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Deposit, or require the applicant to deposit, concurrently with the filing to the office, one paper copy of the draft EIS at the nearest state library in each county in which the proposed action is to occur and one paper copy at the Hawaii Documents Center; and 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Submit to the office one true and correct copy of the original audio file, at standard quality, of all oral comments received at the time designated within the 


	200 . 1-12 
	EIS public scoping meeting(s) for receiving oral comments; 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	When the document is a final EIS, the proposing agency or applicant shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Sign and date the final EIS; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Indicate that the final EIS and all ancillary documents were prepared under the signatory's direction or supervision and that the informat ion submitted, to the best of the signatory's knowledge fully addresses document content requirements as set forth in subchapter 10; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	File the final EIS with the accepting authority and the office simultaneously; 



	(7) 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	When the notice is an acceptance or nonacceptance of a final EIS, the accepting authority shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	File the notice of acceptance or nonacceptance of .a final EIS with the office; and 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Simultaneousl y transmit the notice to the proposing agency or applicant; 



	(8) 
	(8) 
	When the notice is of the withdrawal of an anticipated FONSI , FONSI, or EISPN, t he proposing agency or approving agency shall include a rationale of the withdrawal specifying any associated documents to be withdrawn; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	When the notice is of the withdrawal of a draft EIS or final EIS, the proposing agency or applicant shall simultaneously file the notice with the office and submit the notice with the accepting authority; and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	When the submittal is a changed version of a notice, document, or determination previously published and withdrawn, the ·s ubmittal shal l be filed as the "second" submittal, or "third" or "fourt h ", as appropriate. Example: A draft EIS is withdrawn and changed. It is then filed with the offi ce for publication as the "second draft 


	-, EIS" for the particular action. [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§341-3, 343-3, 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-6 Republication of notices, documents, and determinations . (a) An agency or applicant responsible 
	200 . 1-13 
	for filing a chapter 343, HRS, notice, document, or determination may file an unchanged, previously published submittal in the bulletin provided that the filing requirements of this subchapter and any other publication requirements set forth i n thi s chapter or chapter 343, HRS, are satisfied. 
	(b) When the publication of a previously published chapter 343, HRS, notice, document, or determination involves a public comment period under this chapter or chapter 343, HRS : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The public comment period shall be as required for that notice, docum~nt, or determination pursuant to this chapter or chapter 343, HRS, or as otherwise statutorily mandated (for example, publication of an unchanged draft EIS initiates a forty-five day public comment period upon publ ication in the bulletin); and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Any comments received during the comment period must be considered in the same manner as set forth in this chapter and chapter 343, HRS , for that notice, document, or determination type, in addition to comments received in any other comment period a~sociated with the publicat.ion of the notice, document, or determination. [Eff 


	] (Auth: HRS §§341-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§341-3, 343-3, 343-5, 343~6) 
	SUBCHAPTER 5 
	RESPONSIBILITIES 
	§11-200.1-7 Identification of approving agency and accepting authority. (a) Whenever an agency proposes an action, the authority to accept an EIS shall rest with : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The governor, or the governor' s authorized representat ive, whenever an action proposes the use of state lands or state funds or whenever a state agepcy proposes an action under section 11
	-


	200 . 1-8; or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The mayor, or the mayor's authorized representative, of the respective county whenever an action proposes only the use of county lands or county funds . 


	If an action involves state and county lands, state and county funds, or both state and county lands and funds , the 
	200.1-14 
	governor or the governor' s authorized representative shall have the authority to accept the EIS. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Whenever -an applicant proposes an action, the authority for requiring an EA or EIS, making a determination regarding any required EA, and accepting any required EIS shall rest with the approving agency that initially received and agreed to process the request for an approval . With respect to EISs , this approving agency is also called the accepting authori ty. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	If more t han one agency is proposing the action or, i n the case of applicants, more than one agency has juri sdiction over the action, and these agencies are unable to agree as to which agency has the responsibility for complying wi th chapter 343, HRS , the agencies invol ved shall consult with one another to determine which agency is responsible for compliance . In making the decision, the agencies shall take into consideration, including but not limited to the following factors : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Which agency has the greatest responsibility for supervi sing or approving the action as a whole ; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Which agency can most adequately fulfill the requirements of chapter 343, HRS , and t his chapter; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Whlch agency has special expertise or greatest access to information relevant to the action' s implement ation and impacts; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The extent of participation of each agency in the action; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	In the case of an action with proposed use of state or county lands or funds , which agency has the most land or funds involved in the action. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	If there is more than one agency that is proposing the action, or in the case of applicants, more than one agency has jurisdiction over the action, and after applying the criteria in subsection (c) these agencies are unable to agree as to which agency has the responsibility for complyi ng with chapter 3.43, HRS, the office, after consultation with the agencies involved, shall apply the same considerations in subsection (c) to decide which agency is responsible for compliance . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The offi ce shall not serve as t he accepting authority for any proposed agency or applicant action. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	The office may provide recommendations to the agency or applicant responsible for the EA· or EIS regarding any applicable administrative content requirements set 


	200 .1-15 
	forth in this chapter . [Eff (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	SUBCHAPTER 6 
	APPLICABILITY 
	§ 11-200 . 1-8 Applicability of chapter 343, HRS, to agency actions. (a) Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for any agency action that includes one or more triggers as identified in section 3435(a), HRS . 
	-

	(1) Under section 343-5(a) , HRS, use of state or county funds shall include any form of funding assistance flowing from the State or a county, and use of state or county lands includes any use 
	(title, lease, permit, easement, license, etc.) or entitlement to those lands . 
	( 2) Under section 343-5(a), HRS, any f easibility or planning study for possible future programs or projects that the agency has not approved, . adopted, or funded are exempted from chapter 343, HRS , environmental review. Nevertheless, if an agency is studying the feasibility of a proposal, it shall consider environmental factors and available alternatives and disclose these in a ny future EA or EIS . If the planning and feasibility studies involve testing or other actions that may have a significant impa
	(3) Under section 343-5(a) (1), HRS, actions involving agricultural tourism. under section 205-2 (d) ( 11), HRS, or section 205-4.5(a) (13), HRS, must perform environmental review only when required under section 205-S(b) , HRS . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	When an agency proposes an action during a governor-declared state of emergency, the proposing agency shall document in its records that the emergency action was undertaken pursuant to a specific emergency proclamation. If the emergency action has not substantially commenced within sixty days of the emergency proclamation, the action will be subject to chapter 343, HRS. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	In the event of a sudden unexpected emergency causing or likely to cause loss or damage to life, health, property, or essential public service , but for which a 


	200 . 1-16 
	declaration of a state of emergency has not been made, a proposing agency undertaking an emergency acti on shall document in its records that the emergency action was undertaken pursuant to a specific emergency and shall include the emergency action on its list of exemption notices for publication by the office in the bulletin pursuant to section 11-200.l-17(d) and subchapter 4 . [Eff 
	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-9 Applicability of chapter 343 , HRS , to applicant actions. (a) Chapter 343, HRS, environmental review shall be required for any applicant action that : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Requires one or more approvals prior to implementation; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Includes one or more triggers identified in section 343-5(a), HRS. 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Under section 343-5(a) , HRS , use of state or county funds shall include any form of funding assistance flowing from the State or a county, and use of state or county lands includes any use (ti.tle, lease, permit, easement, license, etc . ) or entitlement t o those lands. 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Under section 343-5(a) (1), HRS, actions involving agricultural tourism under section 205-2 (d) (11) or section 205
	-





	4. 5 (a) (13), HRS, must perform environmental review only when required under section 2 0 5-5 ( b) , HRS . 
	(b) Chapter 343, HRS, does not require environmental review for applicant actions when : 
	(1) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, for any primary action that requires a permit or approval that is not subject to a discretionary consent and that involves a secondary action that is ancillary and limited to the installation, improvement, renovation, construction, or development of infrastructure within an existing public right-of-way or highway, that secondary action shall be exempt from this chapter; provided that the applicant for the primary action shall submit documentation from the a
	200 . 1-17 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	As 
	used in this subsection: 

	TR
	(A) 
	"Discretionary consent" means an· action as 

	TR
	defined in section 343-2, HRS ; or an 

	TR
	approval from a decisi on-making authorit y 

	TR
	in an agency, which a pproval is subject to 

	TR
	a public hearing . 

	TR
	(B) 
	"Infrastructure" incl udes waterlines and 

	TR
	water facilities , wastewater lines and 

	TR
	wastewater facilities , gas lines and gas 

	TR
	facilities , drainage facilities , 

	TR
	electrical, communications , telephone, and 

	TR
	cable television utilities, and highway, 

	TR
	roadway, and driveway improvements. 

	TR
	(C) 
	"Primary action" means an action outside of 

	TR
	the highway or public r i ght-of-way that is 

	TR
	on private property. 

	TR
	(D) 
	"Secondary action" means an action 

	TR
	involving infrastructure within the highway 

	TR
	or public right-of-way . [Eff 

	TR
	] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-5 . 5 , 343
	-


	TR
	6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343 . 5 . 5, 343-6) 


	§11-200 . 1-10 Multiple or phased actions . A group of actions proposed by an agency or an applicant shal l be treated as a single acti on when : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The component actions are phases or increments of a larger total undertaking; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	An individual action is a necessary precedent to a larger action; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	An individual action represents a commitment to a larger action; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The actions in question are essentially identical and a single EA or EIS will adequately address the impacts of each individual action and those of the group of actions as a whole . [Eff 


	] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §343-6) 
	§11-200.1-11 Use of prior exemptions, findings of no significant impact, or accepted environmental impact statements to satisfy chapter 343, HRS , for proposed activities . (a) When an agency is considering whether a prior exemption, FONSI, or an accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS, for a proposed activity, the agency may 
	200 . 1-18 
	determine that additional environmental review is not required because : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The proposed activity was a component of, or is substantially similar to, an action that received an exemption, FONSI, or an accepted EIS (for example, a project that was analyzed in a programmatic EIS) ; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The proposed activity is anticipated to have di rect, indirect, and cumulative effects similar to those analyzed in a prior exemption, final EA, or accepted EIS ; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	In the case of a final EA or an accepted EIS, the proposed activity was analyzed withi n the range of alternatives . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	When an agency det ermi nes that a prior exemption, FONSI , or an accepted EIS satisfies chapter 343, HRS, for a proposed activity, the agency may submit a brief written determinati on explaining its rationale to the offi ce for publication pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-4 and the proposed activity may proceed without further chapter 343 , HRS, environmental review . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	When an agency determines that the proposed activity warrants environmental review, the agency may submit a brief written determination explaining its rationale to the office for publication pursuant to section 11-200.1-4 and the agency shall proceed to comply with subchapter 7 . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 7 
	DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE 
	§11-200.1-12 Consideration of previous determinations and accepted statements. A proposing agency or applicant may incorporate information or analysis from a relevant prior exemption notice , final EA, or accepted EIS into an exemption notice, EA, EISPN, or EIS, for a proposed action whenever the information or analysis is pertinent and has l ogical relevancy and bearing to the proposed action (for example , a project that was broadly considered as part of an accepted programmatic EIS may incorporate releva
	[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	200 . 1-19 
	§11-200 . 1-13 Significance criteria. (a) In considering the significance of potential environmental effects, agencies shall consider the sum of effects on the quality of the environment and s hall evaluate the overall and cumulative effects of an action. 
	(b) In determining whether an action may have a significant effect on the environment, the agency shall consider every phase of a proposed action, t he expected impacts, both primary and secondary, and the cumulative as well as the short-term a nd long-term effects of the action. I n most instances, an action shall be determined to have a significant effect on the environment if it is likely to : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Irrevocably commit a natural, cultural, or historic resource; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Conflict with the State's environmental policies or long-term environmental goals established by law; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on the economic welfare , social welfare, or cultural practices of the community or State; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on public health; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Involve adverse secondary impacts, such as population changes or effects on public facilities; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Involve a substantial degradation of envi ronmental quality; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Is individually l imited but cumulatively has substantial adverse effect upon t he environment or involves a commitment for larger actions; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on a rare, threatened, or endangered species, or its habitat; 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on air or water quality or ambient noise levels; 

	(11) 
	(11) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on or is l i kely to suffer damage by being located in an environmentally sensitive area such as a flood plain, tsunami zone, sea l evel r i se exposure area, beach, erosion-prone area, geologically hazardous land, estuary, fresh water, or coastal waters; 


	200 . 1-20 
	(12) 
	(12) 
	(12) 
	Have a substantial adverse effect on sceni c vistas and viewplanes, during day or night, identified in county or state plans or studies; or 

	(13) 
	(13) 
	Require substantial energy consumption or emit substantial greenhouse gases. [Eff 


	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-2 , 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-14 Determination of level of environmental review. (a) For an agency action, through its judgment and experience, a proposi ng agency shall assess the significance of the potential impacts of the action, including the overall cumulative impact in l ight of related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable actions in the area affected, to determine the level of environmental revi ew necessary for the action. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	For an applicant action, within thirty days from the receipt of the applicant' s complete request for approval to the approving agency, through its judgment and experience, an approving agency shall assess the significance of the potential impacts of the action, including the overall cumulative impact in light of related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable actions in the area affected, to determine the level -of environmental review necessary for the action. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If the proposing agency or approving agency determines, through its judgment and experience, that the action will individually and cumulatively probably have minimal or no significant effects, and the action is one that is eligible for exemption under subchapter 8, then t he agency or the approving agency in the case of an applicant may prepare an exemption notice in accordance with subchapter 8 . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	If the proposing agency or approving agency determines , through its judgment and experience, that the action is not eligible for an exemption, then the proposing agency shall prepare or the approving agency shall require the applicant to prepare an EA beginning with a draft EA in accordance with subchapter 9, unless : 


	(1) In the course of preparing the draft EA, the proposing agency or approving agency determines, through its judgment and experience, that the action may have a significant e f fect and therefore require preparation of an EIS, then the 
	200.1-21 
	proposing agency may prepare, or the approving agency may authorize t he applicant to prepare an EA as a final EA to support the determination prior to preparing or requiring preparation of an EIS in accordance with subchapter 10; or 
	(2) The proposing agency or approving agency determines, through its judgment and experience that an EIS is likely to be required, t hen the proposing agency may choose to prepare, or an approving agency may authorize an applicant to prepare, an EIS in accordance with subchapter 10, 
	beginning with preparati on 
	beginning with preparati on 
	beginning with preparati on 
	of 
	an 
	EISPN. 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS , §
	§343-5, 
	343-6) 

	(Imp : 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 8 
	EXEMPT ACTIONS, LIST, AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS 
	§11-200.1-15 General types of actions eligible for exemption. {a) Some actions, because they will individually and cumulatively probably have minimal or no si gnificant effects, can be declared exempt from the preparation of an EA . 
	{b) Actions declared exempt from the preparation of an EA under this subchapter are not exempt from complying with any other applicable statute or rule. 
	{c) The foll owing general types of acti ons are eligible for exemption : 
	(1 ) Operations , repairs, or maintenance of existing structures, facilities , equipment, or topographical features , involving minor expansion or mi nor change of use beyond that previously existing; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Replaceme nt or reconstruction of existing structures and faciliti es where t he new structure will be located generally on the same site and will have substant ially the same purpose, capacity, densit y, height, and dimensions as t he structure replaced; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Construction and location of single, new, small facilities or structures and the alteration and modification of the facili ties or structures and installation of new, small equipment or facilities and the alteration and modification of 


	200 . 1-22 
	(4) (5) 
	(6) 
	(7) 
	(8) (9) 
	the equipment or facilities, including, but not limited to: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Single-family residences less than 3 , 500 square feet, as measured by the controlling law under which the proposed action is being considered, if not in conjunction with the building of two or more such units; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Multi-unit structures designed for not more than four dwelling units if not in conjunction with the building of two or more such structures; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Stores, offices, and restaurants designed for total occupant load of twenty individuals or fewer per structure, if not 


	'in conjunction with the building of two or 
	l 
	more such structures; and 
	(D) Water, sewage, electrical, gas, telephone, and other essential public utility services extensions to serve such structures or facilities; accessory or appurtenant structures including garages, carports, patios, swimming pools, and fences; and, acquisition of utility easements; 
	Minor alterations in the conditions of land, water, or vegetation; Basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource and infrastructure testing and evaluation activities that do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental resource; Demolition of structures, except those structures that are listed on or that meet the criteria for listing on the national register or Hawaii Register of Historic Places; Zoning variances except shoreline setback variances; Continuing adm
	200 . 1-23 
	(10) New construction of affordable housing, where affordable housing is defined by the controlling law applicable for the state or county proposing agency or approving agency, that meets the following : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Has the use of state or county lands or funds or is within Waikiki as the sole triggers for compliance with chapter 343, HRS; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	As proposed conforms with the existing state urban land use classification; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	As proposed is consistent with the existing county zoning classification that allows housing; and 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	As proposed does not require variances for shoreline setbacks or siting in an environmentally sensitive area. 


	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	All exemptions under subchapter 8 are inapplicable when the cumulative impact of planned successive actions in the same place, over time, is significant, or when an action that is normally insignificant in its impact on the environment may be significant in a particularly sensitive environment. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Any agency, at any time, may request that a new exemption type be added, o~ that an existing one be amended or deleted. The request shall be submitted to the council , in writing, and contain detailed information to support the request as set forth in section 11-201-16, HAR, environmental council rules. [Eff (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 


	§11-200.1-16 Exemption lists. (a) Each agency, through time and experience, may develop its own exemption list consistent with both the letter and intent expressed in this subchapter and in chapter 343, HRS, of: 
	(1) Routine activities and ordinary functions within the jurisdiction or expertise of the agency that by their nature do not have the potential to individually or cumulatively adversely affect the environment more than negligibly and that the agency considers to not rise to the level of requiring chapter 343, HRS, environmental review. Examples of routine activities and ordinary functions may include, among others : routine repair, routine maintenance, purchase of 
	200 . 1-24 
	supplies, and continuing administrative activities involving personnel only, nondestructive data collection, installation of routine signs and markers, financial transactions, personnel-related matters, construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities; interior alterations involving t hings such as partitions, plumbing, and electrical conveyances; and 
	(2) Types of actions that the agency considers to be included within the exempt general types listed in section 11-200.1-15. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	An agency may use part one of its exemption list, developed pursuant to subsection (a) (1), to exempt a specific activity from preparation of an EA and t he requirements of section 11-200.1-17 because the agency considers the specific activity to be de minimis. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	An agency may use part two of its exemption list, developed pursuant to subsection (a) (2) , to exempt from preparation of an EA a specific action that the agency determines to be included under the types of actions in its e xemption l ist, provided that the agency fulfills the exemption notice requirements set forth in section 11200.1-17 and chapter 343, HRS . 
	-


	(d) 
	(d) 
	These exemption lists and any amendments to the exemption lists shall be submitted to the council for review and concurrence no later than seven years after the previous concurrence; provided that in the event the council is unable to meet due to quorum when a concurrence for an agency exemption list is seven years or older, the agency may submit a letter to the council acknowledging that the e xisting exemption list is still valid. Upon attaining quorum, the council shall review the exemption list for conc


	§11-200.1-17 Exempti on notices. (a) Each agency shall create an exemption notice for an action that it has found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of an EA pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-16·(a) (2) or that an agency considers to be included wit hin a general type of action pursuant to section 11-200.1-15. An agency may create an exemption notice for an activity that it has found to be exempt from the requirements for preparation of 
	200.1-25 
	an EA pursuant to section 11-200 . 1-16(a) (1) or that an agency considers to be a routine activity and ordinary function within the jurisdict ion or expertise of the agency that by its nature does not have the potential to individually or cumulatively adversely affect the environment more t han negligibly. 
	(b) To declare an exemption prior to implementing an· action, a n agency shall undertake an analysis to determine whether the action merits exemption pursuant to section 11200.1-15 and is consistent with one or several of the general types listed in section 11-200 . 1-15 or the agency' s exemption list produced in accordance with section 11
	-
	-

	200.1-16, and whether si gnificant cumulative impacts or particularly sensitive environments would make the exemption inapplicable . An agency shall obtain the advice of other outside agencies or individuals having jurisdiction or experti se on the propriety of the exemption . This analysis and consultation shall be documented in an exemption notice. Unless consultation and publication are not required under subsection (c) , the agency shall publish the exemption notice with the office through the filing pr
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Consultation regarding and publication of an exemption notice is not required when: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The agency has created an exemption list pursuant to section 11-200.1-16; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The council has concurred with the agency' s exemption list no more t han seven years before the agency implements the action or authorizes an applicant to implement t he action; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The action is consistent with the let ter and intent of the agency' s exemption list; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The action does not have any potential, individually or cumul atively, to produce significant impacts . 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	Each agency shall produce its exempti on notices for review upon request by the public or an agency, and shall submit a list of exemption notices t hat the agency has created to the office for publicati on i n the bulletin on the eighth day of each month pursuant to subchapter 4 . [Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 9 
	200. 1-26 
	PREPARATION OF ENVI RONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS 
	§ 11-200.1-18 Preparation and contents of a draft environmental assessment . (a} A proposing agency or an approving agency shall require an applicant to seek, at the earliest practicabl e time , the advice and input of the county agency responsible for implementing the county' s general plan f or each county in which the proposed action is to occur, and consult with other agencies havi ng jurisdiction or expertise as well as those citizen groups and indivi duais that the proposing agency or applicant reason
	(b} The scope of the draft EA may vary with the scope of the proposed action and its i mpact, taking into consideration whether the action is a project or a program. Data and analyses in a draft EA shall be commensurate with the importance of the impact, and less important material may be summarized, consolidated, or simply referenced. A draft EA shall indicat e at appropriate points in the text any under lyi ng studies, reports, and other information obtained and considered in p r eparing the draft EA, inc
	(c) The level of dctQil in a draft EA may be more broad for programs or component s of a program for which site-specific impacts are not discernible, and shall be more specific for components of the program for whi ch sitespecific, project-level impacts are discernible . A draft EA for a program may, where necessary, omit evaluating issues that are not yet ready for decision at the project level. Analysis of the program may be based on conceptual information in some cases and may discuss in general terms t
	(d} A draft EA shall contain, but not be limited to, the followi ng information: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identi fication of the appl icant or proposing agency; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	For applicant actions , identification of the approving agency; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	List of all required permi ts and approvals 


	(state, federal , and county} and, for applicants, identification of which approval necessitates chapter 343, HRS , environmental revi ew; 
	200 . 1-27 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	Identification of agencies , citizen groups, and individuals consulted in preparing the draft EA; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, cultural, and environmental ' characteristics; · 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood .Insurance Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary ·Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps ; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Identification and analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Proposed mitigation measvres; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Agency or approving agency anticipated determination, including findings and reasons supporting the anticipated FONSI , if applicable; and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	Written comments, if any, and responses to the comments received, if any, and made pursuant to the early consultation provisions of subsection 


	(a) and statutorily prescribed public review periods. [Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200 . 1-19 Notice of determination for draft environmental assessments . (a) After: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Preparing, 
	or 
	causing 
	to be prepared, 
	a 
	draft EA; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Reviewing any public and agency comments; 
	and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Applying the 
	significance criteria in section 11
	-


	TR
	200 . 1-13; 


	if the proposing agency or the approving agency anticipates that the proposed action is not likel y to have a significant effect, the proposing agency or approving agency shall issue a notice of an anticipated FONSI subject to the public review provisions of section 11-200 . 1-20. 
	(b) The proposing agency or approving agency shall file the notice of anticipated determination when 
	_applicable and supporting draf t EA with the office as early as possible in accordance with subchapter 4 after the determination is made pursuant to and in accordance with this subchapter and the requirements in subsection (c) . For applicant actions, the approving agency shall also send the anticipated FONSI to the applicant . 
	(c) The notice of an anticipated FONSI shall include in a concise manner : 
	200 . 1-28 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identification of the proposing agency or applicant; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of the approving agency or accepting a uthority; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A brief description of the action; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The anticipated FONSI ; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Reasons supporting the anticipated FONSI; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	The name, title, email address, physical address, and phone number of an individual representative of the proposing agency or applicant who may be contacted for further information. [Eff 


	] (Auth : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-20 Public review and response requireme nts for draft environmental assessments. (a) This section shall apply only if a proposing agency or an approving agency anticipates a FONSI determination for a proposed action and the proposing agency or the applicant proposing the action has completed the draft EA requirements of sections 11-200 . 1-18 and 11-200-19. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Unless rnHndated otherwise by statute, the period for public review and for submi tting written comments shall be thirty days from the date of publication of the draft EA in the bulletin. Written comments shall be received by or postmarked to the proposing agency or approving agency and applicant within the thirty-day period. Any comments outside of the thirty-day period need not be responded to nor considered in the final EA . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	For agenc y actions, the proposing agency shall, and for applicant actions , the applicant shall: respond in the final EA in t he manner prescribed in this section to all substantive comments received or postmarked during the statutorily mandated review period, incorporate comments into the f inal EA as appropriate, and include the comments and responses in the final EA. In deciding whether a written comment is substantive, the proposing agency or applicant shall g ive careful consideration to the validity,

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Proposing agencies and applicants shal l respond in the final EA to all substantive comments in one of two ways, or a combination of both, so long as each substantive comment has clearly received a response: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	By grouping comment responses under topic headings and addressing each substantive comment raised by an individual commenter under that topic heading by issue . When grouping comments by topic and issue, the names of commenters who raised an issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified in a distinctly labeled section with that topic heading. All substantive comments within a single comment letter must be addressed, but may be addressed throughout the applicable topic areas with th~ commenter iden

	(e) , must be appended in full to the final document; or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	By providing a separate and distinct response to each comment clearly identifying the commenter and the comment receiving a response for each comment letter submitted. All comments, except those described in subsection (e), must either be included with the response or appended in full to the final document . 



	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identical language, and that raise the same issues on the same topic: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The response may be grouped under subsection 

	(d) (1) with the response to other comments under the same topic and issue with all commenters identified in the distinctly labeled section identifying commenters by topic; or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A single response may be provided that addresses all substantive comments within the form letter or petition and that includes a distinct section listing the individual commenters who submitted the form letter or petition. At least one representative sample of the form letter or petition shall be appended to the final document; 




	200.1-29 
	provided that, if a commenter adds a distinct substantive comment to a form letter or petition, that comment must be responded to pursuant to subsection (d). 
	(f) In responding to substantive written comments, proposing agencies and applicants shall endeavor to resolve 
	2QO . l-30 
	conflicts, inconsistencies, or concerns identified and to provide a response that is commensurate with the content of those comments. The response shall indicate changes that have been made to the text of the draft EA. The response shall describe the disposition of significant environmental issues raised (for example, the response may point to revisions to the proposed action to mitigate anticipated impacts or objections raised in the comment) . In particular, the issues raised when the proposing agency's o
	(g) An addendum document to a draft EA shall reference the original draft EA it attaches to and shall comply with all applicable filing, public review and comment requirements set forth in subchapters 4 and 9. 
	[Eff ] (Auth : HRS §§343-3, 343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-3, 343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200 . 1-21 Contents of a final environmental assessment . A final EA shall contain, but not be limited to, the following information: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identification of applicant or proposing agency; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of approving agency, if applicable; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Identification of agencies, citizen groups, and individuals consulted in preparing the EA; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, cultural, and environmental characteristics; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Summary description of the affected environment, including suitable and adequate regional, location and site maps such as Flood Insurance Rate Maps, Floodway Boundary Maps, or United States Geological Survey topographic maps; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Identification and analysis of impacts and alternatives considered; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Proposed mitigation measures; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	The agency determination and the findings and reasons supporting the determination; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	List of all required permits and approvals (state, federal, and county) and, for applicants, 


	200 . 1-31 
	identifi cation of which approval necessitates chapter 343, HRS , environmental review; and 
	(10) Written comments, if any, and responses to the comments received, if any, pursuant to the early consultation provisions of section 11-200 . 118(a) , and statutorily prescribed public review periods in accordance with section 11-200 . 1-20. 
	-

	[Eff ] (Auth: HRS §§343-5 , 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-22 Notice of determination for final environmental assessments . (a) After : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Preparing, or causing to be prepared, a final EA; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Reviewing any public and agency comments ; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Applying the significance criteria in section 11
	-



	200 .1-13, the proposing agency or the approving agency shall issue a notice of a FONSI or EISPN in accordance with subchapter 9, and file the notice with the office in accordance with subchapter 4 . For applicant actions, the approving agency shall issue a determination within thirty days of receiving the final E~. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	If the proposing agency or approving agency determines that a proposed action is not likely to have a significant effect, it shall issue a notice of a FONSI . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If the proposing agency or approving agency determines that a proposed action may have a signifi cant effect, it shall issue an EISPN. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The proposing agency or approving agency shall file in accordance with subchapter 4 the notice and the supporting final EA with the office as early as possible after the determination is made , addressing the requirements in subsection (e) . For applicant actions, the approving agency shall send the notice of determination for an EISPN or FONSI to the applicant . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The notice of a FONSI shall indicate in a concise manner : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identification of the applicant or proposing agency; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of the approving agency or accepting authority; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A brief description of the proposed action; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The determination; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Reasons supporting the determination; and 




	200 . 1-32 
	(6) The name , title, email address," physical address, and phone number of an individual representative of the proposing agency or applicant who may be contacted for further information. 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	The 
	notice of determination for 
	an 
	EISPN 
	shall be 

	prepared pursuant 
	prepared pursuant 
	to 
	section' 11-200.1-23 . 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§§343
	-


	5 , 
	5 , 
	343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 10 
	PREPARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENTS 
	§11-200.1-23 Consultation prior to filing a draft environmental impact statement. (a) An EISPN, including one resulting from an agency authorizing the preparation of an EIS without first requiring an EA, shall indicate in a concise manner : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Identificati on of the proposing agency or appli cant; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identification of the accept ing authority; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	List of all required pe r mits and approvals 

	(state, federal, and county) and, for applicants, identification of which approval necessitates chapter 343, HRS, environmental review; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The determination to prepare an EIS; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Reasons supporting the determination to prepare an EIS; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	A description of the proposed action and its location; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	A description of the affected environment, including regional, location, and site maps ; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Possible alternatives to the proposed action; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	The proposing agency' s or applicant' s proposed scoping process, including when and where the EIS public scoping meeting or meeti ngs will be held; and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	The name , title, email address, physical address , and phone number of an individual representative of the proposi ng agency or applicant who may be contacted for further information. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	In the preparation of a draft EIS, proposing 


	agencies and applicants shall consult all appropriate agencies , including the county agency responsible for implementing the county' s general plan for each county in 
	200 . 1-33 
	which the proposed acti on is to occur and agencies having jurisdiction or expertise, as well as those citizen groups, and concerned individuals that the proposing agency r easonably believes to be a f fected. To this end, agencies and applicants shall endeavor to develop a fully acceptable draft EIS prior to the time the dr aft EIS is filed with the office, through a full and complete consultat ion process , and shal l not rely solely upon the review process to expose environmental concerns . 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Upon publication of an EISPN in the periodic bulletin, agencies , groups, or individuals shall have a period of thirty days from the initial publication date to make written comments regarding the envi ronmental e ffects of the proposed action. With good cause, the approving agency or accepting authority may extend the period for comments for a period not to exceed thirty additional days. Written comments and responses to the substantive comments shall be included in t he draft EIS pursuant to section 11
	-


	200 
	200 
	. 1-24 . For purposes of the scoping meeting, substantive comments shall be those pertaining to the scope of the EIS . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	No fewer than one EIS public scopi ng meeting addressing the scope of the draft EIS shall be held on the island(s) most affected by the proposed action, within t he publi c review a nd comment period in subsection (c) . The EIS public scoping meeting shall include a separate portion reserved for oral public comments and that portion of the scoping meeting shall be audio recorded. [Eff 


	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §343-6) 
	§ 11-200.1-24 Content requirements ; draft environmental impact statement. (a) The draft EIS, at a minimum, s hall contain t he information required in this section. The contents shall fully decl are the environmental implications of the proposed action and shall discuss all reasonably foreseeable consequences of the action. In order that the public can be fully informed and that the accept ing authority can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on environmental effects, an 
	(b) The scope of the draft EIS may vary with the scope of t he proposed action and its impact, taking int o consideration whether t he action is a project or a program. Dat a and analyses in a draft EIS shall be commensurate with 
	200.1-34 
	the importance of the impact, and less important material may be summarized, consolidated, or simply referenced. A draft EIS shall indicate at appropriate points in the text any underlying studies, reports, and other information obtained and considered in preparing the draft EIS, including cost benefit analyses and reports required under other legal a uthorities . 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The level of detail in a draft EIS may be more broad for programs or components of a program for which site-specific impacts are not discernible, and shall be more specific for components of the program for which sitespecific, project-level impacts are discernible . A draft EIS for a program may, where necessary, omit evaluating issues that are not yet ready for decision at the project level . Analysis of the program may be based on conceptual information in some cases and may discuss in general terms the 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The draft EIS shall contain a summary that concisely discusses the following : 


	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Brief description of the action; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Significant beneficial and adverse 
	impacts 

	TR
	(including 
	cumulative impacts and secondary 

	TR
	impacts); 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Proposed mitigation measures; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Alternatives 
	considered; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Unresolved issues; 
	and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Compatibility with land 
	use 
	plans 
	and policies, 

	TR
	and listing of permits 
	or 
	approvals; 
	and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	A list of relevant documents 
	for actions 

	TR
	considered in the analysis of the preparation of 

	TR
	the EIS . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The draft EIS 
	shall contain a 
	table of contents . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	The 
	draft EIS 
	shall contain 
	a 
	separate and 


	distinct section that includes the purpose and need for the proposed action. 
	(g) The draft EIS shall contain a description of the action that shall include the following information, but need not supply extensive detail beyond that needed for evaluation and review of the environmental impact: 
	(1) A detailed map (preferably a United States Geological Survey topographic map, Flood Insurance Rate Maps, or Floodway Boundary Maps as applicable) and a related regi onal map; 
	200 .1-35 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Objectives of the proposed action; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	General description of the action's technical, economic, social, cultural, and environmental characteristics ; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Use of state or county funds or lands for the action; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Phasing and timing of the action; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Summary technical data, diagrams, and other information necessary to enable an evaluation of potential environmental impact by commenting agencies and the public; and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Historic perspective. 


	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	The draft EIS shall describe in a separate and distinct section reasonable alternatives that could attain the objectives of the action. The section shall include a rigorous exploration and objective evaluation of the environmental impacts of all such alternative actions. Particul ar attention shall be given to alternatives that might enhance environmental quality or avoid, r~duce, or minimize some or all of the adverse environmental effects, costs, and risks of the action. Examples of alternatives include :

	(
	(
	(
	1) The alternative of no action; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Alternatives requiring actions of a significantly different nature that would provide similar benefits with different envi ronmental impacts; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Alternatives related to different designs or details of the proposed actions that would present different environmental impacts; 

	(
	(
	4) The alternative of postponing action pending further study; and 



	(5) 
	(5) 
	Alternative locations for the proposed action . In each case, the anal ysis shall be sufficiently detailed to allow the comparative evaluation of the environmental benefits, costs, and risks of the proposed action and each reasonable alternative . For alternatives that were eliminated from detailed study, the section shall contain a brief discussion of the reasons for not studying those alternatives in detail. For any agency actions, the discussion of alternatives shall include, where relevant, those altern

	(i) 
	(i) 
	The draft EIS shall include a description of the environmental setting, including a description of the environment in the vicinity of the action, as it exists before commencement of the action, from both a local and 


	200 .1-36 
	regional perspective. Special emphasis shall be placed on 
	environmental resources that are rare or unique to the 
	region and the action site (including natural or human-made 
	resources of historic, cultural, archaeological, or 
	aesthetic significance); specific reference to related 
	actions , public and private, existent or planned in the 
	region shall also be included for purposes of examining the 
	possible overall cumulative impacts of such actions . 
	Proposing agencies and applicants shall also identify, 
	where appropriate, population and growth characteristics of 
	the affected area, any population and growth assumptions 
	used to justify the proposed action, and any secondary 
	population and growth impacts resulting from the proposed 
	action and its alternatives . In any event, it is essential 
	that the sources of data used to identify, qualify, or 
	evaluate any and al l environmental consequences be 
	expressly noted in the draft EIS . 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	The draft EIS shall include a description of the relationship of the proposed action to land use and natural or cultural resource plans, policies, and controls for the affected area . Discussion of how the proposed action may conform or conflict with objectives and specific terms of approved or proposed land use and resource plans, policies, and controls, if any, for the area affected shall be included. Where a conflict or inconsistency exists, the draft EIS shall describe the extent to which the agency or 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	The draft EIS shall also contain a list of necessary approvals required for the action from governmental agencies, boards, or commissions or other similar groups having jurisdiction. The status of each identified approval shall also be described. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The draft EIS shall include an analysis of t he probable impact of the proposed action on the environment, and impacts of the natural or human environment on the action. This analysis shall include consideration of all phases of the action and consideration of all consequences on the environment, including direct and indirect effects. The interrelationships and cumulative environmental impacts of the proposed action and other related actions shall be discussed in the draft EIS. The draft EI S should recogni


	200 .1-37 
	highways, airports, sewer systems, water r e sour ce actions , etc.} may well stimulate or induce secondary effects. These secondary effects may be equally important as, or more i mportant than, primary effects, and shall be thoroughly discussed to fully describe the probable impact of the proposed action on the environment . The population and gro~th impacts of an action shall be estimated i f expected t o be significant, a nd an evaluation shall be made 
	of 
	of 
	of 
	the effects of any possible change in population pat terns or growth upon the resource base, including but not limited to land use, water, and public services, of the area in question . Also, if the proposed action constitutes a direct or indirect source of pollution as determined by any governmental agency , necessary data regarding these impacts shall b e incorporated into the EIS . The signifi cance of the impacts s ha l l be discussed in terms of subsections (m} , (n), _(o), and (p} . 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	The .draft EIS shall include in a separate and distinct section a description of the relationship between local short-term uses of humanity's environment and the maintenance and enhancement of long-term productivity. The extent to which t he proposed action involves trade-offs among short -term and long-Lerm gains and losses shall be discussed. The discussion shall i nclude the extent to which the p roposed action forecloses future options , nar rows the range of beneficial uses of the environment, or poses


	(n} The draft EIS shall include i n a separate and distinct section a description of all irreversibl e and irretrievable commi tments of resources that would be involved in the proposed action should it be implemented. Iden tification of unavoidable impacts and the extent to which the action makes use of non-renewable resources during the phases of the action, or irr eversibly curtails the range of potential uses of the environment shal l also be included. The possibility of environmental accidents resultin
	(o) The draft EIS shall address all probable adverse environmental effects that cannot be avoided. Any adverse effects such as water or air polluti on, urban congestion, threats to public health, or other consequences adverse to 
	200.1-38 
	envi ronmental goals and guidel ines established by 
	environmental response laws, coastal zone management laws, 
	pollution control and abatement laws , and environmental 
	policy including those found in chapters 128D 
	(Environmental Response Law) , 205A (Coastal Zone 
	Management) , 3428 (Air Pollution Control) , 342C (Ozone 
	Layer Protection) , 342D (Water Pollution) , 342E (Nonpoint 
	Sour ce Pollution Management and Control) , 342F (Noise 
	Poll uti on) , 342G (Integrated Solid Waste Management) , 342H 
	(Solid Waste Recycling), 3421 (Special Wastes Recycling) , 342J (Hazardous Waste, including Used Oil) , 342L (Underground Storage Tanks) , 342P (Asbestos and Lead), and 344 (State Environmental Policy) , HRS , and t hose effect s discussed in thi s section that are adverse and unavoidable under the proposed action must be addressed in the draft EIS . Also, the rationale f or proceeding with a proposed. action, notwithstanding unavoidable effects, shall be clearly set forth i n this section . The draft EIS s
	(p) 
	(p) 
	(p) 
	The draft EIS shall consider mitigation measures proposed to avoid, minimi ze, rectify, or reduce impacts, including provision for compensation for losses of cul t ural, community, historical, archaeological, fish and wildlife resources, including the acquisition o f land, waters, and i nterests therein . Description of any mitigation measures included in the action ·plan to reduce significant, unavoidable, adverse impacts to i nsignificant levels, and the basis for considering these levels acceptable shall

	(q) 
	(q) 
	The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that summarizes unresolved issues and contains either a discussion of how such issues wi ll be 


	200.1-39 
	resolved prior to commencement of the action, or what overriding reasons there are for proceeding without resolving the issues. 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains a list identifying all governmental agencies, other organizations and private individuals consulted in preparing the statement, and shall disclose the identity of the persons, firms , or agency preparing the statement, by contract or other authorization. 

	(s) 
	(s) 
	(s) 
	The draft EIS shall include a separate and distinct section that contains: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Reproductions of all written comments submitted during the consul tation period required in section 11-200.1-23; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Responses to all s ubstantive written comments made during the consultation period required in section 11-200 . 1-23. Proposing agencies and applicants shall respond in t he draft EI S t o all substantive written comments in one of two ways, 




	o r a combination of both, so long as each substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	By grouping comment responses under topi c headings and addressing each substantive comment raised by an individual commenter under that topic heading by i ssue . When grouping comments by topic and issue, the names of commenters who raised an issue under a topic heading shall be clearly identified in a distinctl y labeled section with that topic heading . All substantive comments within a single comment letter must be addressed, but may be addressed throughout . the applicable different topic areas with th

	(B) 
	(B) 
	By providing a separate and distinct response to each comment clearly identifying the commenter and the comment recei ving a response being responded to for each comment letter submitted. All comments, except those described in 


	200 .1-40 
	paragraph (3), must either be included with 
	the response, or appended in full to the 
	final document; 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	For comments that are form letters or petitions,. that contain identical or near-identical language, and that raise the same issues on the same topic : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	The response may be grouped under paragraph 

	(2) (A) with the response to other comments under the same topi c and issue with all commenters identified in the distinctly labeled section identifying commenters by topic; or 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	A single response may be provided that addresses all substantive comments within the form letter or petition a nd that includes a distinct section listing the i ndividual commenters who submitted the form letter or petition. At least one representative sample of the form letter or petition shall be appended to the final document; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Provided that, if a commenter adds a distinct substantive comment to a form letter or petition, t hen that comment must be responded to pursuant to paragraph (2); 



	(4) 
	(4) 
	A summary of any EIS publ ic scoping meetings , including a written general summary of the oral comments made, and a representative sample of any handout related to the action provided at the EIS public scoping meeting(s) ; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A list of those persons or agencies who were consult ed and had no comment in a manner indicating that no comment was provided; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	A representative sample of the agency consultation request letter. 


	(t) An addendum to a draft EIS shall reference the original draft EIS to which it attaches and comply with all appl icable filing, public review, and comment requirements set forth in subchapter 10 . [Eff J (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-2, 343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-25 Public review ~equirements for draft environmental impact ~tatements . (a) Public review shall not substitute for early and open discussion with 
	200.1-41 
	interested persons and agencies concerning the environmental impacts of a proposed action. Review of the draft EIS shall serve to provide the public and other agencies an opportunity to discover the extent to which a proposing agency or applicant has examined environmental concerns and available alternatives . 
	(b) The period for public review and for submitting written comments shall commence from the date that notice of availability of the draft EIS is initially issued in the periodic bulletin and shall continue for a period of fortyfive days, unless mandated otherwise by statute. Written comments to the accepting authority with a copy of the comments to the proposing agency or applicant, shall be received by or postmarked to the approving agency or accepting authority, within the forty-five-day comment period.
	period need not be 
	period need not be 
	period need not be 
	responded to 
	nor 
	considered. 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 
	(Imp: HRS 

	§§343-5, 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 


	§11-200.1-26 Comment response requirements for draft environmental impact statements. (a) In accordance with the content requi rements of section 11-200 .1-27, the proposing agency or applicant shall respond within the final EIS to all substantive written comments received by or postmarked to the approving agency during the fortyfive-day review period. In deciding whether a written comment is substantive, the proposing agency or applicant shall give careful considerat~on to the validity, significance, and 
	(b) Proposing agencies and applicants shall respond in the final EIS to all substantive written comments in one of two ways, or a combination of both, so long as each substantive comment has clearly received a response: 
	(1) By grouping comment responses under topic headings and addressing each substantive comment rai sed by an individual commenter under that topic heading by issue . When grouping comments by topic and issue, the names of commenters who raised an issue under a topic heading shall be 
	200.1-42 
	clearly identified in a distinctly labeled 
	section with that topic heading. All substantive 
	comments within a single comment letter must be 
	addressed, but may be addressed throughout the 
	applicable topic areas with the commenter 
	identified in each applicable topic area . All 
	comments, except those described in subsection 
	(c) , must be appended in full to the final document; or 
	(2) By providing a separate and distinct response to each comment clearly identifying the commenter and the comment receiving a response for each comment letter submitted. All comments , except those described in subsection (c), must either be incl uded wi th the response or appended in full to the final document . 
	(c) For comments that are form letters or petitions, that contain identical or near-identical language, and that raise the same issues on the same topic: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The response may be grouped under subsection 

	(b) (1) with t he response to other comments under the same topic and issue with all commenters identified in the distinctly l abeled section identifying commenters by topic; or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A single response may be provided that addresses all substantive comments within the form letter or petition and that includes a distinct section listing the individual commenters who submitted the form letter or petition. At l east one representative sample of the form letter or petition shall be appended to t he final document; 


	Provided that if a commenter adds a distinct substantive comment to a form letter or petition, then that comment must be responded to pursuant to subsection (d). 
	(d) In responding to substantive written comments, proposing agencies and appl icants shall endeavor to resolve conflicts, inconsistencies, or concerns identified and to provide a response that is commensurate with the content of those comments . The response shall indicate changes that have been made to the text of the draft EIS . The response shall describe the di sposition of significant environmental issues raised (for example, the response may point to revisions to the proposed action to mitigate antic
	200.1-43 
	and objections raised in the comments shall be addressed in detail, giving reasons why specific comments and suggestions were not accepted, and factors of overriding 
	importance warranting 
	importance warranting 
	importance warranting 
	an 
	override of the suggesti ons . 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 

	§§343-5, 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 


	§11-200.1-27 Content requirements ; final environmental impact s tatement. (a) The final EIS, at a minimum, shall contain the information required in this section. The contents shall fully declare the environmental implications of the proposed action and shall discuss all reasonably foreseeable consequences of the action. In order that the public can be fully informed and the accepting authority can make a sound decision based upon the full range of responsible opinion on environmental effects, an EIS shall
	(b) The final EIS shall consist of: 
	( 1) The draft EIS prepared in compliance with this subchapter, as revised to incorporate substantive comments received during the review processes in conformity with section 11-200 . 1-26, including reproduction of all comments and responses to substantive written comments; 
	(
	(
	(
	2) A list of persons , organizations, and public agencies commenting on the draft EIS; 

	(
	(
	3) A list of those persons or agencies who were consulted with in preparing the final EIS and had no comment shall be included in a manner indicating that no comment was provided; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A written general summary of oral comments made at any public meetings; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The text of the final EIS written in a format that allows the reader to easily di stinguish changes made to the text of the draft EIS . [Eff 


	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§343-2, 343-5, 343-6) 
	§11-200.1-28 Acceptability . (a) Acceptability of a final EIS shall be evaluated on the basis of whether the final EIS, in its completed form, represents an informational instrument that fulfills the intent and 
	200.1-44 
	provisions of chapter 343, HRS, and adequately discloses and describes all identifiable environmental impacts and satisfactorily responds to review comments . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A f i nal EIS shall be deemed to be an acceptable document by the accepting authority or approving agency only if all of the following criteria are satisfied: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The procedures for assessment, consultation process , review, and the preparation and submission of the EIS, from proposal of the action to publication of the final EIS, have all been completed satisfactorily as specified in this chapter; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The content requirements described in this chapter have been satisfied; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Comments submitted during the review process have received responses satisfa ctory to the accepting authority, or approving agency, including properly identifying comments as substantive and responding in a way commensurate to the comment, and have been appropriately incorporated into the final EIS . 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	For actions proposed by age ncies, the proposing agency may n =iquest the office to make a recommendation regarding the acceptability or non-acceptability of the EIS. If the office decides to make a recommendation, it shal l submit the recommendation to the accepting authority and proposing agency. In all cases involving state funds or lands, the governor or the governor~s authorized representative shall have final authority to accept the EIS. In cases involving only county funds or lands, the mayor of the 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Upon acceptance or non-acceptance of the EIS, a noti ce shall be filed by the appropriate accepting authority with both the proposing agency and the office. For any non-accepted EIS, the no_tice shall contain specific findings and reasons for non-acceptance . The office shall publish notice of the determination o.f acceptance or nonacceptance in the p e riodic bulletin in accordance with 


	200.1-45 
	subchapter 4 . Acceptance of a required statement shall be a conditi on precedent to the use of state or county lands or funds in implementing the proposed action. 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	For actions proposed by applicants requiring approval from an agency, the applicant or accepting authority, which is the approving agency, may request the office _to make a recommendation regarding the acceptability or non-acceptability of the EIS. If the office decides to make a recommendation, it shall submit the recommendation to the applicant and the approving agency within the period requiring an approving agency to determine the acceptability of the final EIS . Upon acceptance or nonacceptance by the

	(f) 
	(f) 
	A non-accepted EIS may be revised by a proposing agency or applicant . The revision shall take the form of a revised draft EIS which shall fully address the inadequacies of the non-accepted EIS and shall completely and thoroughly discuss the changes made. The requirements for filing, distribution, publication of availability for review, acceptance or non-acceptance, and notification and publication of acceptability shall be the same as the requirements prescribed by subchapters 4 and 10 for an EIS submitted


	200 .1-46 
	revised final EIS shall be evaluated for acceptability on the basis of whether it satisfactorily addresses the 
	findings and reasons for non-acceptance . 
	(g) A proposing agency or appl icant may withdraw an EIS by s i multaneously sending a written notification to the office and to the accepting authority informing the office of the proposing agency' s or applicant' s withdrawal . Subsequent resubmittal of the EIS shall meet all requirements for filing, distribution, publication, review, acceptance, and notification as a draft EIS. [Eff 
	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§3435 , 343-6) 
	-

	§ 11-200.1-29 Appeals to the council. An applicant, within sixty days after a non-acceptance determination by the approving agency under section 11-200.1-28 of a final EIS, may appeal the non-acceptance to the council, which within the statutorily mandated peri od after receipt of the appeal, shall notify the applicant appealing of its determination to affirm the approving agency's nonacceptance or to reverse it. The council chairperson shall include the appeal on the agenda of the next council meeting fol
	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp: HRS §§3435, 343-6) 
	-

	§ 11-200.1-30 Supplemental environmental impact statements. (a) An EIS that is accepted with respect to a particular action is usually qualified by the ~ize, scope, location, intensity, use, and timing of the action, among other things . An EIS that is accepted with respect to a particular action shall satisfy the requirements of this chapter and no supplemental EIS for that proposed action shall be required, to the extent that the ~ction has not changed substantively in size, scope, intensity, use, locatio
	200.1-47 
	shall be prepared and reviewed as provided by this chapter . As long as there is no change in a proposed action resulting in individual or cumulative impacts not originally disclosed, the EIS associated with that action shall be dee~~d to comply with this chapter . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The accepting authority or approving agency in coordi nation with the original accepting authority shall be responsibl e for determining whether a supplemental EIS is required. This determination will be submitted to the office for publication in the periodic bulletin. Proposing agencies or applicants shall prepare for public review supplemental EISs whenever the proposed action for which an EIS was accepted has been modified to the extent that new or different environmental impacts are anticipated. A suppl

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The contents of the supplemental EIS shall be the same as required by this chapter for the EIS and may incorporate by reference unchanged material from the same; however, i n addition, it shall fully document the proposed changes from the original EIS, including changes in ambient conditions or availabl e informat ion that have a bearing on a proposed action or its i mpact s, the positive and negative aspects of these changes , and shall comply with the content requirements of subchapter 10 as they relate t

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The requirements of the thirty-day consultation, public notice filing, distribution, the forty-five-day public review, comments and response , and acceptance procedures , shall be the same for the supplemental EIS as 


	is prescribed by 
	is prescribed by 
	is prescribed by 
	this chapter for 
	an 
	EIS. 
	[Eff 

	TR
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§343-5, 
	343-6) 
	(Imp: HRS §§343
	-


	5, 
	5, 
	343-6) 


	SUBCHAPTER 11 NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT 
	§11-200.1-31 Na tional environmental policy act actions: applicability to chapter 343, HRS. When a 
	200.1-48 
	certain action will be subject both to the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) , as amended (P.L. 91-190, 42 U.S .C. sections 4321-4347, as amended by P. L . 94-52, July 3, 1975, P. L. 94-83, Aug. 9, 1975, and P. L. 97~258 section 4(b), Sept. 13, 1982) and chapter 343, HRS, the following shall occur: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The applicant or agency, upon discovery of its proposed action being subject to both chapt er 343, HRS, and the NEPA, shall notify the responsible federal ,entity, the office, and any agency with a definite interest in the action (as prescribed by chapter 343, HRS). 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	When a federal entity determines that the proposed action is exempt from review under the NEPA, this determination does not automatically constitute an exemption for the purposes of this chapter . In these cases, state and county agencies remain responsible for compliance with this chapter . However, the federal exemption may be considered in the state or county agency determination. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	When a federal entity issues a FONSI and concludes that an EIS is not required under the NEPA, this determination does not automatically constitute compliance with this chapter. In these cases, state and county agencies remain responsible for compliance with this chapter . However, the federal FONSI may be considered in the state or county agency determination. 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The NEPA requires that EISs be prepared by the responsible federal entity. In the case of actions for which an EIS pursuant to the NEPA has been prepared by the responsible federal entity, the draft and final federal EIS may be submitted t o comply with this chapter, so long as the f ederal EIS satisfies the EIS content requirements of this chapter and is not found to be inadequate under the NEPA: by a court; by the Council on Environmental Quality (or is at issue in pre-decision referral to Council on Envi

	(5) 
	(5) 
	When the responsibili ty of prepari ng an EIS is delegated to a state or county agency, . this chapter shal l appl y in addition to federal requirements under the NEPA . The office and state or county agencies shall cooperate with federal entities to the fullest extent possible to reduce duplication between federal and state requirements. This cooperation, to the fullest extent possible, shall include joint EISs with concurrent public review and processing at both levels of government . Where federal l aw h

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Where the NEPA process requires earlier or more stringent public review, filing, and distribution than under this chapter, that NEPA process shal l satisfy this chapter so that duplicative consultation or review does not occur . The responsi ble federal entity's supplemental EIS requirements shall apply in these cases in pl ace of this chapter' s supplement al EIS requirements . 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	I n all actions where the use of state land or funds is proposed, the final EIS shall be submitted to the governor or an aut horized representative . In all actions when the use of county land or funds is proposed and no use of state land or funds is proposed, the final EIS shall be submitted to the mayor, or an authorized representative. The final EIS in these instances shall first be accepted by the governor or mayor (or an authorized representative) , prior to the submission of the same to the responsibl

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Any acceptance obtai ned pursuant to thi s secti on shall satisfy chapter 343, HRS , and no other EIS for the proposed action shall be required. [Eff 


	200.1-49 
	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp·: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) 
	SUBCHAPTER 12 
	RETROACTIVITY AND SEVERABILITY 
	200 .1-50 
	§11-200 .1-32 Retroactivity. (a) Thi s. chapter shall apply immediately upon taking effect, except as otherwise provided below. · 
	(b) Chapter 11-200 shall continue to apply to environmental review of agency and applican~ actions which began prior to the adoption of chapter 11-200:1, provided 
	that: 
	that: 
	that: 

	TR
	(1) 
	For EAs , 
	if. the draft EA 
	was 
	published by the 

	TR
	office prior 
	to_the adoption of this chapter and 

	TR
	has 
	not 
	received 
	a 
	determination within 
	a 
	period 

	TR
	of five years from the implementation of this 

	TR
	chapter, 
	then the proposing agency 
	or 
	applicant 

	TR
	must 
	comply with the 
	requirements 
	of this 

	TR
	chapter. 
	All subsequent environmental 
	review, 

	TR
	including 
	an 
	EISPN must 
	comply with this chapter. 

	TR
	(2) 
	For EISs, 
	if the EISPN 
	was 
	published by the 

	TR
	office prior 
	to 
	the adoption of this chapter and 

	TR
	the 
	final EIS has 
	not been accepted within five 

	TR
	years 
	from the implementation of this chapter, 

	TR
	then the proposing agency 
	or 
	applicant must 

	TR
	comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

	TR
	(3) 
	A judicial proceeding pursuant to 
	section 343-7, 

	TR
	HRS , 
	' shall not 
	count 
	towards 
	the five-year time 

	TR
	period. 

	TR
	(c) 
	Exemption lists that have received 
	concurrence 


	under chapter 11-200 may· be used for a period of seven years after the adoption of this chapter, duri ng which time the agency must revise its list and obtain concurrence from the council in conformance with this chapter. [Eff 
	] (Auth: HRS §343-6) (Imp: HRS §343-6) 
	§11-200 . 1-33 Severability. If any provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this chapter which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application; and to this end, the provisions of this chapter are declared to be severable ." [Eff 
	] (Auth: HRS §§343-5, 343-6) (Imp : HRS §§343-6, 343-8) 
	3 . The repeal of chapter 11-200 and the adoption of chapter 11-200 .1, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take 
	200 .1-51 
	effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
	Lieutenant Governor . 
	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules drafted in the Ramseyer format, pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on MONTH DATE, YEAR and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 
	(Name), Director 
	(Name), Director 

	APPROVED AS TO FORM : 
	eneral 
	Deputy Attorney G

	200.1-52 



	IV. New Bus D. HAR 15-15 Land Use Commission - Part 1
	Structure Bookmarks
	IV. New Business 
	IV. New Business 
	D.Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 15, Chapter 15, Land Use Commission Rules, promulgated by DBEDT 
	RULE-MAKING CHECKLIST FOR "SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT" (§201M-2, SLH 1998, am L 2008) 
	DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY: Land use Commission Chapter and Title: Chapter 15, Title 15 
	Name and Phone Number of Contact Person: Daniel Orodenker (587-3826) 
	A. Description: _ Newrule(s) _ Repeal ofRule _x_ Amendment to rule(s) 
	B. Provided are the following information described in Items 1-7 ofthe Policy Section in the Governor's Administrative Directive No. 09-01 
	1. Exact Changes and Reasons for Changes. 
	The LUC has amended various sections ofits rules for the purposes ofclarification, conf01mance to various appeals and to incorporate rules requiring disclosure ofproject impacts on climate change and sustainability issues in confo1mance with the State Plan (Chapter 226, Hawai'i Revised Statutes). A complete description ofthe changes is attached hereto. As the LUC is a quasi-judicial body, the purpose ofthe rules is primarily to clarify the requirements for a petition and the methodology for presenting evide
	2. How would the proposed changes affect Deprutment operations or functions? 
	The proposed rules would not change the responsibilities, functions, or activities ofthe Department. The rules clarify existing operations and/or codify statutory mandates already in place and operating. 
	a. Is the proposed rule authorized by a federal or state law or statute that does not require an agency to interpret or describe the requirements ofthe law or statute? 
	______x_ Yes No 
	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	Is the proposed rule an emergency regulation? Yes__lLNo 

	c. 
	c. 
	Will the proposed rule affect small business because it: 


	1) will apply to a for-profit enterprise consisting offewer than 100 full-time or part-time employees? 
	______x_ Yes No 
	2) will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business? 
	Yes __lLNo 
	3) is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion ofa small business? 
	Yes__lLNo 
	Provide the info1mation requested in only Items 3-7 (Skip Items 8-11) 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Ifyou answered YES to either Item 2. a. or Item 2. b.; or 

	• 
	• 
	Ifyou answered NO to Item 2. c. (1); or 

	• 
	• 
	Ifyou answered YES to Item 2. c.(l), and NO to both Item 2. c. (2) and Item 2. c.(3). 


	Provide the inf01mation requested in Items 3-11: 
	• Ifyou answered YES to Item 2. c. 1), and YES to either Item 2. c. 2) or 2. c. 3). 
	3. Departmental Impact (i.e. fiscal, personnel, program)? 
	~ Yes _x_ No (Ifyes, describe long and short-range impacts, estimated in dollar amounts or personnel, due to enforcement, administration, execution, or implementation 
	~ Yes _x_ No (Ifyes, describe long and short-range impacts, estimated in dollar amounts or personnel, due to enforcement, administration, execution, or implementation 
	ofthe proposed rule that may result in a savings or shortfall under the cunent program budget.) 

	The Depaitment does not anticipate a long or short range negative impact from enforcement, administration, or implementation ofthe proposed rules. The area is already managed under the existing administrative rules and the proposed amendments are not expected to increase costs. 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	Impact on General Public (i.e. individuals, consumers, and businesses)? 

	_ Yes _K._ No (If yes, describe long-and short-range impacts due to the enforcement, implementation, or execution ofthe proposed rule.) 

	5. 
	5. 
	Impact on state economy? _ Yes _x_ No (If yes, describe long and sh01t-range impacts.) The proposed rules are not expected to negatively impact the state's economy. 

	6. 
	6. 
	Final result anticipated from the proposed rule. 


	The LUC process will be clearer and more streamlined. It should provide certainty to landowners and streamline the process by clai·ifying requirements. 
	7. Other alternatives explored to carry out the statutory purpose other than rulemaking. 
	The proposed rules ai·e the most efficient way to implement legal requirements of Chapter 205. 
	Small Business Impact Statement: 
	8. Is there a new or increased fee or fine? _ Yes _x_ No (If yes, provide the following info1mation): 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Amount ofthe cunent fee or fine and last time it was increased. 

	b. 
	b. 
	Amount ofthe proposed fee or fine and percentage increase. 

	c. 
	c. 
	Reason for new or increased fee or fine. 

	d. 
	d. 
	Administrative cost to implement or enforce the proposed rule. 

	e. 
	e. 
	Amount agency expects to collect annually from change in fee or fine. 

	f. 
	f. 
	Will fee revert to general fund? If not, specify where and how monies will be allocated. 

	g. 
	g. 
	Criteria used to determine amount of fee or fine. (Example: cost ofspecific service, general overhead or overall program cost, or no relationship to cost). · 


	9. Will the proposed rule affect small business? _ Yes __x_ No (Ifyes, provide the following info1mation): 
	a. Describe the type(s) of small business that will be directly or adversely affected by, bear the costs of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule. 
	There will be no impact on small business. 
	b. Description of any increase in direct costs, in estimated dollar amounts, to small business, such as fees or fines, or other direct costs associated with compliance. 
	There will be no impact on small business. 
	c. Description of any increase in indirect costs, in estimated dollar amounts, to small business, such as rep01ting, record keeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional services, revenue loss or other costs associated with compliance. 
	There will be no impact on small business. 
	d. 
	d. 
	d. 
	Description ofhow small business was involved in the development ofthe proposed rules. 

	e. 
	e. 
	e. 
	Methods considered or used to reduce the impact on small business such as: 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Simplification, 

	• 
	• 
	Consolidation, 

	• 
	• 
	Varying schedule for fees or fines, 

	• 
	• 
	Modified compliance or reporting requirements, or 

	• 
	• 
	Other alternative or less stringent measures proposed by affected businesses and, ifproposed, why those proposals were not adopted. 



	f. 
	f. 
	Ifthe proposed rule is more stringent than those mandated by governing federal or state law or statute, explain how and why the proposed rule is more stringent. 


	n/a 
	10. 
	10. 
	10. 
	10. 
	Was the depaiimental advisory committee on small business or other small businesses or organizations consulted during the drafting ofthe proposed rule, and were the committee's recommendations, if any, incorporated into the proposed rule? 

	There will be no impact on small business. 

	11. 
	11. 
	Did the Small Business Regulatory Review Board or a small business make any recommendation to the depaiiment or agency regarding the need for any rule change that may be related to the proposed rule? 


	There will be no impact on small business. 
	LUC Rule Amendments Guide 
	LUC Rule Amendments Guide 
	2018 
	The proposed changes to the LUC Rules have been developed over the past several years. Because many sections ofthe LUC rules have not been updated since the advent of Climate Change and Sustainability issues a comprehensive attempt has been made to bring the rules into line with the State sustainability plan and the State Plan and to conform them to modem practice. 
	As the changes or amendments are often small and repetitive it was deemed inefficient and cumbersome to do a line by line analysis ofthe proposed amendments. 
	This document is designed as a guide to the proposed amendments to the Land Use Commission's rules of Practice and Procedure (Hawaii Administrative Rules Chapter 15-15). The proposed rules generally consist of three major categories, or types, ofchanges. 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Modernization changes -These amendments are intended to update the rules to conform to modem parlance (such as changing "counsel" to "attorney") or to modern technology (such as changing document submittal requirements from an original and fifteen copies to one original, one copy and an electronic version). Often they are repeated verbatim in various sections. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Clarification language -Amendments ofthis type are designed to clarify existing rules and/or · memorialize practical interpretations ofexisting rule that have resulted, or been noted, as a result of various cases or petitions, appeals from LUC decisions or situations that have arisen in the course ofthe staff or the Commission's attempts to deal with varied situations. These changes can be either in substantive, procedural or administrative areas. They include insertion oflanguage from one section into anot

	3. 
	3. 
	New sub-sections -New rules or additions are primai·ily associated with the issue ofSustainability. The Land Use Commission is bringing its rules into line with the State Plan which addresses issues of sustainability and climate change. The proposed rule amendments require petitioners before the Land Use Commission to address issues associated with Sustainability and Climate Change impacts as a pait 


	of a petition. 
	This document should be read in conjunction with the attached Amended Rules". Note that deleted language in the document is crossed out and new language is underlined. Retained language is left in its original format. 
	Figure


	[Ramseyer format] 
	[Ramseyer format] 
	Figure
	DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS , ECONOMIC DEVELOPME~lT, AND TOURISM 
	DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS , ECONOMIC DEVELOPME~lT, AND TOURISM 
	Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 15-15 Hawai 'i Administrative Rules 
	October llMonth Date , -2-G-H2018 
	1. Chap ter 15-15, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
	enti tled "La nd Use Commi ssion Rul es, i s amended and 
	" 

	compi led to read as follows : 
	compi led to read as follows : 


	SUMaARY 
	SUMaARY 
	1. §15 15 02 is repealed 2. §15 15 03 is amended. 3 . §15 15 05 is amended. 
	4. §15 15 06 is amended . 
	5 
	5 
	5 
	. §15 15 06 . 1 is amended. 6 . §15 15 07 is amended. 

	7 
	7 
	. §15 15 08 is amended . 8 . §15 15 09 is amended. 9. §15 15 10 is amended . 10 . §15 15 12 is repealed. 1.§15 15 13 is amended . 12 . §15 15 14 is amended. 13. §15 15 15 is amended . 

	1 
	1 
	1 

	amended . 
	4 . §15 15 16 is 



	i 
	15. §15 15 18 i s amended. 2. §15 15 19 is amended. 
	3.§15 15 20 is amended.. 
	18 . 
	18 . 
	18 . 
	§15 
	15 
	21 
	i s 
	amended . 

	19 . 
	19 . 
	§15 15 22 
	is amended. 

	20 . 
	20 . 
	§15 15 25 
	is 
	amended . 

	21. 
	21. 
	§15 15 27 
	is amended . 

	22 . 
	22 . 
	§15 15 29 
	is 
	amended . 

	23 . 
	23 . 
	§15 
	15 34 
	i s 
	amended. 

	24. 
	24. 
	§15 15 
	34.1 
	is added . 

	25 . 
	25 . 
	§15 15 35 
	is amended . 

	26. 
	26. 
	§15 
	15 
	36 
	is amended . 

	27 . 
	27 . 
	§15 15 
	37 
	is amended . 

	28 . 
	28 . 
	§15 15 38 
	is amended. 

	29 . 
	29 . 
	§15 
	15 39 
	is amended . 

	30 . 
	30 . 
	§15 15 
	40 
	is 
	amended. 

	31. 
	31. 
	§15 15 
	41. is amended . 

	32 . 
	32 . 
	§15 15 
	42 
	is amended. 

	33 . 
	33 . 
	§15 
	15 
	4 4 is amended . 

	34 . 
	34 . 
	§15 15 
	45 
	is 
	amended . 


	4. §15 15 45 . 1 is added. 
	amended 

	36. §15 15 45.2 is added. 37. §15 15 47 is amended. 38 . §15 15 48 is amended. 
	39. §15 15 49 is repeal od. 
	5 . §15 15 50 is amended . 
	ii 
	50 . 5 is added. 
	50 . 5 is added. 
	50 . 5 is added. 

	51 is amended. 52 is amended. 53 is amended. 54 is amended. 55 is amended. 
	50.6 
	i s added. 

	56 is amended . 57 is am:ended . 58 i s amended. 59 is amended. 60 is amended . 61 is amended. 62 is amended . 63 is amended . 64 is repealed . 66 is amended . 67 is amendec;:i. 68 is repealed. 69 is amended. is amended . 
	55.1 
	is amended. 

	70.1 
	70.1 
	i s added. 

	41. 
	41. 
	§15 
	15 

	42. 
	42. 
	§15 
	15 

	43. §15 
	43. §15 
	15 

	4 4 
	4 4 
	. §15 
	15 

	45. 
	45. 
	§15 
	15 

	46. 
	46. 
	§15 
	15 

	47. 
	47. 
	§15 
	15 

	48. 
	48. 
	§15 
	15 

	49. 
	49. 
	§15 is 

	50. 
	50. 
	§15, 
	15 

	51. §15 52. §15 53. §15 54. §15 55. §15 56. §15 57. §15 
	51. §15 52. §15 53. §15 54. §15 55. §15 56. §15 57. §15 

	58. 
	58. 
	§15 
	15 

	59. 
	59. 
	§15 
	15 

	60. 
	60. 
	§15 
	15 

	61. 
	61. 
	§15 
	15 

	6. 
	6. 
	§15 15 
	70 

	63. 
	63. 
	§15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	15 
	15 

	7. 
	7. 
	§15 15 74 is amended. 

	8. 
	8. 
	§15 15 76 75 is amended. 

	9. 
	9. 
	§15 15 77 is amended . 


	iii 
	67. §15 15 78 is amended. 
	68 . §15 15 79 is amended. 69. §15 15 80 i s amended. 
	10.§15 15 82 is amended. 
	71. 
	71. 
	71. 
	§15 15 82is added. 
	.1 


	72. 
	72. 
	§15 15 83 i s amended. 73 . §15 15 84 is amended. 7 4. §15 15 85 is amended. 


	75. 
	75. 
	75. 
	§15 15 85is added. 
	.1 


	7
	7
	6. §15 15 86 is amended . 77. §15 15 87 is amended . 


	78. §15 15 88 is amended. 79. §15 15 89 is amended . 80. §15 15 90 is amended. 81. §15 15 92 is amended . 11. §15 15 93 is amended. 83 . §15 15 94 is amended. 84 . §15 15 95 is amended. 
	85. §15 15 95.s added. 
	1 i

	86 
	86 
	86 
	. §15 15 96 is amended . 

	87 
	87 
	. §15 15 96.s added . 12 . §15 15 97 is amended. 
	1 i



	89. §115 97.2 is added. 
	5 

	90 
	90 
	90 
	. §115 98 is amended . 91. §115 99 is amended . 
	5 
	5 


	92 
	92 
	. §115 100 is amended . iv 
	5 



	93. §15 15 94. §15 15 95. §15 15 96. §15 15 97. §15 15 98. §15 15 99. §15 15 100. §15 15 101. §15 15 102. §15 15 103. §15 15 104. §15 15 
	101 io amended . 102 is repeal ed. 103 i s amended. 10 4 is amended . 105 is amended. 106 io amended . 107 is amended. 
	107.1 is added. 109 is amended. 110 is ame nded. 120 is added. 121 is added. 
	13. §15 15 122 is amendedadded. 
	106 
	106 
	106 
	. §15 15 123 is added . 14. §15 15 124 is amendedadded . 

	108 
	108 
	. §15 15 125 i s added. 
	Cl=½aI3ter 15 i s eem~iled 



	109. 
	109. 
	109. 
	§15 15 126 is added. 

	110. 
	110. 
	§15 15 127 is added. 111. §15 15 128 is added. 
	15.8Heel=iaJ?ter 18 is reI3eal ed. 



	Cl=½aI3t cr 15 is eomJ?iled 
	113 
	. 

	V 
	"HAWAI'I ADMINISTRATIVE RULES TITLE 15 DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS, 
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT , AND TOURISM 
	CHAPTER 15 LAND USE COMMISSION RULES 
	Subchapter 1 General Provisions 
	§15-15-01 §15-15-02 §15-15-03 §15-15-04 §15-15-05 §J_5--15-06_ §15-15-06. l §15-15-07 §15-15-08 §15-15-09 §15-15-10 §15-15-11 §15-15-12 §15-15-13 
	§15-15-14 §15-15-15 §15-15-°16 
	Purpose Repealed Definitions Grammatical usage Office and office hours Chairperson and vice-chairperson Hearings officer Executive officer Chief clerk Public records Meetings; generall y Executive meetings Repealed Quorum and number of votes necessary for 
	a decision Removal of persons from meetings Minutes of meetings Computation of time 
	Subchapter 2 Establishment of State Land Use 
	§15-15-17 §15-15-18 §15-15-19 §15-15-20 §15-15-21 §15-15-22 
	Distri cts 
	Districts; district maps Standards for determining "U" urban district boundaries Standards for-determi ning "A" agricultural district boundaries Standards for determining "C" conservation district boundaries Standards for determining "R" rural district boundaries Interpretation of district boundaries 
	Subchapter 3 
	Subchapter 3 
	Subchapter 3 
	Permissible Land Uses 

	§15-15-23 §15-15-24 
	§15-15-23 §15-15-24 
	Permissible uses; generally Permissi ble uses within the 
	II ur, 
	ur ban 

	district 
	district 

	§15-15-25 
	§15-15-25 
	Permissible 
	uses 
	within the 
	IIA" 

	agricultural district 
	agricultural district 

	§15-15-26 
	§15-15-26 
	Permissible 
	uses 
	within the 
	"C" 

	conservation di strict 
	conservation di strict 

	§15-15-27 
	§15-15-27 
	Permissi ble 
	uses 
	within the 
	II RII 
	rural 

	distri ct 
	distri ct 


	Subchapter 4 Non-conformance 
	§15-15-28 Statement of intent §15-15-29 Non-conforming uses of structures and 
	lands §15-15-30 Non-conforming areas and parcels §15-15-31 Casual or illegal use of land §15-15-32 Existence of non-conforming use is a 
	question of fact §15-15-33 Illegal uses 
	Subchapter 5 Proceedings Before the Commission 
	§15-15-34 Quasi-judicial proceedings; waiver or 
	suspension of rules §15-15-34 . 1 Verbatim transcripts §15-15-35 Appearance before the commission §15-15-36 Decisions and orders §15-15-37 Fi ling documents; place and time §15-15-38 Format §15-15-39 Verification §15-15-40 Copies §15-15-41 Defective filings §15-15-42 Extensions of time §15-15-43 Amended pleadings 
	suspension of rules §15-15-34 . 1 Verbatim transcripts §15-15-35 Appearance before the commission §15-15-36 Decisions and orders §15-15-37 Fi ling documents; place and time §15-15-38 Format §15-15-39 Verification §15-15-40 Copies §15-15-41 Defective filings §15-15-42 Extensions of time §15-15-43 Amended pleadings 
	§15-15-44 Retention of documents §15-15-45 Service of process §15-15-45.1 Fees §15-15-45.2 Fees Not Refundable 

	Subchapter 6 Application Requirements for 
	Boundary Amendment 
	Boundary Amendment 
	Boundary Amendment 
	Petitions 

	§15-15-46 
	§15-15-46 
	Standing 
	to 
	initiate boundary amendments 

	§ 15-15-47 
	§ 15-15-47 
	Filing 

	§15-15-48 
	§15-15-48 
	Service of petition 

	§15-15-49 
	§15-15-49 
	Repealed 

	§15-15-50 
	§15-15-50 
	Form 
	and 
	contents 
	of petition 

	§15-15-50.5 
	§15-15-50.5 
	Dismissal of petition for failure 
	to 

	TR
	provide additional 
	information 
	or 

	TR
	correct 
	defects 

	§15-15-50.6 
	§15-15-50.6 
	Withdrawal 
	or 
	amendment 
	of petition 


	Subchapter 7 Agency Hearing and Post Hearing Procedures 
	§15-15-51 
	§15-15-52 
	§15-15-53 
	§15-15-54 §15-15-55 §15-15-55 . l §15-15-56 
	§15-15-57 
	§15-15-58 §15-15-59 §15-15-60 §15-15-61 §15-15-62 §15-15-63 §15-15-64 §15-15-65 
	Notice of hearing for boundary amendment petitions Intervention in proceeding for district boundary amendments 
	Intervention in other than district boundary amendment proceedings or important agricultural lands designation proceedings 
	Consolidation Statement of position Filing of exhibits Stipulation as to findings of fact, 
	conclusions of law, and conditions of reclassification Prehearing conference; exchange of exhibits; prehearing conference order 
	Procedure for witnesses 
	Conduct of hearing 
	Presiding officer 
	Disqualification 
	Ex parte communications 
	Evidence 
	Repealed 
	Limiting testimony 
	§15-15-66 §15-15-67 §15-15-68 §15-15-69 §15-15-70 . §15-15-70 . 1 §15-15-71 §15-15-72 §15-15-73 §15-15-74 §15-15-75 §15-15-76 
	Removal from proceeding 
	Co-counsel 
	Repealed 
	Subpoenas 
	Motions Protective Orders Substitution of parties Correction of transcript Post hearing procedures Decision 
	Appeals 
	Re-application by the petitioner for boundary amendment 
	Subchapter 8 Decision-Making Criteria for 
	Boum:iary Amendments 
	Boum:iary Amendments 
	Boum:iary Amendments 

	§15-15-77 §15-15-78 §15-15-79 
	§15-15-77 §15-15-78 §15-15-79 
	Decision-making criteria for boundary amendments Incremental districting Performance time 


	Subchapter 9 Post Hearing Procedures for 
	§15-15-80 §15-15-81 §15-15-82 §15-15-82 . 1 
	§15-15-83 §15-15-84 
	Hearings Before the Commission 
	Briefs Oral argument Issuance of decision and orders Stipulation as to findings of fact, conclusions of law, conditions of reclassification and decision and order Service of decisions and orders Reconsi deration of decision 
	Subchapter 10 Post Hearing Procedures for Hearing 
	§15-15-85 §15-15-85 . 1 §15-15-86 
	§15-15-87 
	§15-15-88 §15-15-89 §15-15-89.1 
	Conducted by Hearings Officer 
	Recommendation of heari ngs officer Proposed decision Exception to hearings officer's report 
	and recommendations Support of hearings officer' s report and 
	recommendations Oral argument before the commission Repealed Final decision 
	Subchapter 11 Conditions : Filing, Enforcement, 
	§15-15-90 §15-15-91 §15-15-92 
	§15-15-93 
	§15-15-94 
	Modification, Deletion 
	Imposition of conditions; generall y· Applicability Filing procedure for conditions imposed by the commission Enforcement of conditions, 
	representations, or commitments Modi fication or deletion of conditions or orders 
	Subchapter 12 Speci al Permits 
	§15-15-95 
	§15-15-95 . 1 §15-15-96 §15-15-96 . 1 
	Peti t i on before county planning 
	commission Applicabi lity of subchapter 5 Decision and order by the land use 
	commission Modification of special permit 
	Subchapter 13 Government Sponsored Housing Projects 
	§15-15-97 Procedure for processing petitions for housing projects under section 201H38, HRS §15-15-97 . 1 Repealed 
	-

	Subchapter 14 Declarat ory Orders 
	§15-15-98 §15-15-99 
	§15-15-100 §15-15-101 
	§15-15-102§15-15-103 §15-15-104 
	-

	Who may petition Petition for declaratory order; form and 
	content s Declaratory orders; commis.sion action Declaratory orders; dismissal of 
	petition Repealed Declarator y orders; request for hearing Appl icability of declaratory order 
	Subchapter 15 Rulemaking Proceedings 
	§15-15-105 Initiation of rulemaking proceedings §15-15-1·06 Rulemaking; form and contents of 
	petition 
	petition 
	petition 

	§15-15-107 
	§15-15-107 
	Rulemaking; 
	action 
	on 
	petition 

	§15-15-107 . 1 
	§15-15-107 . 1 
	Commission action 

	§15-15-108 
	§15-15-108 
	Rulemaking; 
	notice of public hearing 

	§15-15-109 
	§15-15-109 
	Rulemaking; 
	conduct of public hearing 

	§15-15-110 
	§15-15-110 
	Emergency rulemaking 


	Subchapter 16 Land Use District Boundaries 
	§15-15-111 Land use district boundaries 
	$15-15-112 to 15-15-119 reserved 
	Subchapter 17 Important Agricultural Lands 
	15-15-120 Criteria and procedures for t he .-identification of important 
	agri cultural lands 15-15-121 Petition by farmer or landowner 15-15-122 Petition by farmer or landowner for 
	designation of important agricultural 1and and urban, rural or conservation reclassifi cation

	~ -~-~---
	~ -~-~---
	-

	15-l 5 -l23 Adherence to chapter 343, HRS 15-15-124 Private landowner credits in important --agri cultural land proceeding 15-15-125 County identification of important agricultural lands 15-15-126 Criteri a for designation of lands as -important agricultural lands --pursuant to county recommendation 
	15-15-127 Standards and criteria for the 
	reclassification or rezoning of important a gri cultural lands 15-15-128 · Periodic review and amendment of 
	important agricultural lands maps 
	Subchapter 18 (Repealed) 
	Historical Note : This chapter is based substantially upon Rules of Practice and Procedure, Part I of the land use commission [Eff.: 4/21/62; am and ren. 8/4/69; am and ren. 1/5/75; am and ren. 12/21/75; am 3/27/77; R 10/27/86) and State Land Use District 
	Historical Note : This chapter is based substantially upon Rules of Practice and Procedure, Part I of the land use commission [Eff.: 4/21/62; am and ren. 8/4/69; am and ren. 1/5/75; am and ren. 12/21/75; am 3/27/77; R 10/27/86) and State Land Use District 
	Regulations , Part II of the land use commission [Eff. 8/23/64; am and ren. 8/4/69; am and r en . 1/5/75; am and ren . 12/21/75; R 10/27/86] and land use commission rules, chapter 15-15. [Eff 10/27/86; am 3/20/87; am 7/12/93 ; am-3/24/94 ; am 7/18/94; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/08/00; am and comp comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] 

	SUBCHAPTER 1 
	GENERAL PROVISIONS 
	§15-15-01 Purpose. This chapter governs the practice and procedure before the land use commi ssion, and shall be construed to secure the just and efficient determination of every proceeding. This chapter shall be liberally construed to preserve, protect, and encourage t he development and preservation of lands in the State for those uses to which they are best suited in the interest of public health and welfare of the people of the State of Hawai ' i . The rules under this chapter are promulgated pursuant t
	§15-15-02 REPEALED. [R 8/16/97] 
	§15-15-03. De finitions. As used in this chapter: 
	"Accessory building or use" means a subordinate building or use which is incidental to and customary with a permi t ted use of t he land. 
	"Agency" means each state or county board, commission, department, or office author"ized by law . to make rules or to adjudicate contested cases , except those in legislative or judicial branches . 
	"Agency hearing" refers only to a hearing held by an agency immediately prior to a judicial review of a contested case as provided in section 91-14, HRS . 
	"Agricultural park" means the same as in section 166-2, HRS . "Building" means any structure having a roof, 
	including, but not limited to, attached carports and 
	similar structures . 
	"Chairperson" means the chairperson of the 
	commission. 
	"Chief clerk" means the person who is responsible 
	for receiving, recording, and preserving the records of 
	all matters brought before the commission . 
	"Commission" means the land use commission of the 
	State of Hawai'i . 
	"Commissioner" means a member of the commission . 
	"Contested case" means a proceeding in which legal 
	rights, duties, or privileges of specific parties are 
	required by law to be determined after an opportunity 
	for agency hearing . 
	"District" means an area of land, including lands 
	underwater, established as an urqan, agricultural, 
	conservation, or rural district . 
	"Dwelling" means a building designed or used exclusively for · single family residential occupancy, but not including house trailer, multi-family unit, mobile home, hotel, or motel . 
	"Economic feasibility" means the degree to which 
	the market demand for the proposed project, 
	development, or use by the petitioner is accurately 
	estimated and appears to be substantial enough t o 
	indicate the probabili ty of a v i able endeavor to 
	justify the boundary amendment . 
	"Executive officer" means the i ndividual appointed by the commission to be the administrative officer of the commission . 
	"Facsimile" means a document produced by a receiver of signals transmitted over telecommunication lines, after translati ng the signals, to produce a duplicate of an original document . 
	"Farm dwelling" means a single-family dwell ing located on and used in connection with a farm or where agricultural activity provides income to the family occupying the dwelling. 
	"Filing" means t h e submittal of documents with the chief clerk. A document will be considered filed at the time it is received in the chief clerk' s office, as evi denced by the date and time endorsed on the document by or at the direction of the chief clerk . Unless otherwise specifically provided in these rules, electronic or facsimile transmission of documents to the chief clerk or executive officer of the commission does not constitute f i ling . This definition is to be distinguished from the definit
	"Hearings officer" means a person or persons duly 
	designated and authorized by the commission to conduct 
	proceedings on matters within the jurisdiction of the 
	commission for purposes of taking testimony and to 
	report the person ' s f i ndings and recommendations to the 
	commission. 
	-"HRS " means the Hawai 'i Revised Statutes . 
	"Intervenor" means a person who properly seeks by 
	application to intervene and is entitled to be admitted 
	as a party in any contested case proceeding before the 
	commission. 
	"Land" means all real property in the State 
	including areas under water within t he boundaries of 
	the State. 
	"Landowner" means a person or party with a fee 
	simple interest in the land . 
	"Lot" means a single parcel of land of record in 
	the real property tax records of the county in which 
	the land is located. 
	"Map" means the land use district boundaries maps 
	of the commission . 
	"Meeting" means the convening of the commission 
	for which a quorum is required in order to make a 
	decision or deliberate toward a decision upon a matter 
	over which the commission has supervision, control, 
	jurisdiction, or advisory power. 
	"Party" means a person named or admitted as a party or entitled as of right to be admitted as a party in any contested case proceeding before the commission. 
	" Person" means any individual, corporation, firm, association, partnership, society, or other legal entity, and any federal, state, and county department or agency. 
	"Petitioner" means a person who seeks permission or authorization from the commission in any matter for which the commission is authorized to grant relief. 
	" Planning commission" means the planning commissions of the various counties, including the city and county of Honolulu . 
	"Presiding officer" means any commissioner or a hearings officer duly designated as such . Unless otherwise designated, the chairperson shall be t he presiding officer. 
	"Proceeding" means any matter brought before the commission over which the commission has jurisdiction and shall include, but not be limited to : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Petitions for district ·boundary amendment; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Petitions for .special permit; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Proceedings for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of rules under sections 91-3 and 205-7, HRS ; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Petitions for declaratory orders under section 91-8, HRS; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	An investigation or r eview instituted or requested to be initiated by the commission; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	All other matters in the administration of chapter 205, HRS . 


	"Proper filing," as applied in section 205-4, HRS, 
	means after a petition for district boundary amendment 
	has been filed with the chief c lerk, and the executive 
	officer has made a determination that the petition 
	conforms to the requirements of section 15-15-50 and 
	accepts t he petition for processing. 
	"Public records " means the same as "government 
	records" a s defined in chapter 92F, HRS. 
	"Public institution or building" means any 
	institution or building being used by a federal, state, 
	or county agency for a public purpose . 
	"Respondent " means a person subject to any statute, rule, or order administered by the commission and upon whom an order or notice is issued by t he commission instituting an agency hearing to show cause . 
	"Shoreline" mean.s the same as in section 205A-1, HRS. "Single-family dwelling" means a dwelling occupied exclusively by one family . 
	"State" means the State of Hawai'i. 
	"Structur_e" means a constructed or erected material or combination of materials, which requires 
	location on the ground, including, but not limited t o, buildings, radio towers, sheds, storage b i n s , fences , 
	and signs . · 
	"Unauthorized ex parte communication" means private communications or arguments with members of the commission, or its hearings officer as to the merits of a proceeding with a view towards influencing the outcome of the petition or proceeding . [Eff 10/27/86; · am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	(Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 205-1, 205-7) 
	§15-15-04 Grammatical usage. (a) Words used in the present tense include the future tense . 
	(b) The singular number includes the plural; and the plural, the singular . 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The word "s hall" is always mandatory . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The word "may" is always permissive. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Terms not defined in this chapter shall have 


	the meaning customarily assi gned to them. [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00;-comp 11/2/2013; comp -=--=-=--=-] (Auth : HRS §§205-1,-205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-7) 
	§15-15-05 Office and office hours. (a) The office of the commission is in Honolulu, Hawai'i . All communications to t he commission, including requests for information and submittals, shall be in writing and, shall be addressed to the commission ' s of f ice , unless otherwise directed by the commission. 
	(b) The office of the commission shall be open from 7: 45 a.m. to 4: 30 p.m., Monday through Friday, excepting legal holidays as designat~d pursuant to section 8-1, HRS, and any day or any part of a day on or for which the governor has granted administrative leave in the St ate, unless otherwise provided by st atute or executive or der. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ---~-c-----,,--~] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 2057) (Imp : HRS §§80-1, 91-2, 205-7) 
	-

	§15-15-06 Chairperson and vice-chairperson. (a) The commissioners shall annually elect a chairperson and one or more vice-chairpersons from its members . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The chairperson shall have the responsibilities and duties prescribed in t his chapter. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	In the absence of the chai rperson, the vicechairperson or vice-chairpersons shall have the responsibilities and duties of the chairperson prescribed in this chapter. In case of resignation or incapacity of the chairperson, a vice-chairperson shall perform such duties as are imposed on the chairperson until such time as the commission shall elect a new chairperson . I n the event the chairperson or a vicechairperson resigns, the commission shall elect a new chairperson or vice-chairperson, as the case may


	· §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp .: HRS §§91-2 , 205-7) 
	§15-15-06.1 He arings office r. (a) The commissi on may appoint a hearings officer pursuant to 
	section 92-16, HRS . 
	(b) If for any reason the hearings officer designated i s unable to complete a hearing, the commission, without abatement of the proceedings, may assign the matter to another hearings officer. [Eff and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
	-=-=c-=-:~~--=--=-= 
	§§92-16, 205-1) 
	§15-15-07 Executive officer. (a) The executive officer shall be appointed by the commission to serve as the administrative head of the commission staff and have responsibilities a nd duti e s as prescribed by t he commission. The executive officer shall be directly responsible to the commi ssion, and shall have control of and responsibility for the execution of the commission ' s policies, the administration of its affairs, and the employment and supervision of its personnel, subject to the commission's ove
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The executive officer shall prepare a hearings calendar and the agenda for all meetings and hearings, under the direction of the chairperson . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The executive officer or such other person as may be authorized by the commission shall certify all decisions and orders and other actions of the commission . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The executive officer may be appointed by the commissi on to serve as hearings officer. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The ~xecutive officer may i nterpret land use district boundaries at the request of the public. Interpretation of district boundaries shall be done in compl i a nce with section 15-15-22 . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	The executive officer may conduct the preheari ng conference provided under·section ·15-15-57 . [Eff 10/27/8_6; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-1) 


	§15-15-08 Chief clerk . (a) Under the supervision of the executive officer, the chief clerk shall have custody of the commission's official records and shall be responsible for the maintenance and custody o f the docket files, including the transcripts and exhibits, the minutes of all of the commission ' s meetings and hearings, and all of the commission ' s decisions, orders, opinions, rules, and approved forms . 
	(b) In addition to other duties, the chief clerk shall maintain a docket fil e of all proceedings fil ed with the commission, including all petitions for district boundary amendments, all app_lications for special permits, and all petitions for rule-making or declaratory ruling filed with the commission, and each docket shall be assigned a number . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Atith : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : §§91-2, 205~1) 
	§15-15-09 Public records . All public records shall be available for inspection at the office of the commission during regular business hours . Public information on matters within the juri sdiction of the commission, but which excludes confidential information, may be obt ained by inquiring in person during regular business hours , or by submitting a written request to the commission. Requests made . via facsimile or electr onic mail to the commission are acceptable . Commission staff may respond to any in
	§15-15-10 ,Meetings; generally. (a) The commission may meet and exerci se i ts power in the State of Hawai 'i. Except as provided in sections 92-4 and 92-5, HRS , all of the commission meetings and hearings are open to the public. Unless waived by the chairperson, the parliamentary procedure to be utilized by the commission i n the conduct of its meetings and hearings shall be based on the current edition of Robert ' s Rules of Order Newly Reyised, but only if it does not conflict with chapters 91 and 92 , 
	these rules. 
	(b) The commission shall allow all interested persons an opportunity to submit data, views, arguments or pr esent oral testimony on any agenda item i n an open meeting . The commission may provide for the recordation of all presented oral testimony. The commission may impose .limitations on the submission of data, views , arguments , or oral testimony in the interest of preserving due process concerns of the contested case proceeding . ---+[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00;~am and comp
	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 92-3, 927) 
	-

	§15-15-11 Executive meetings. (a) The commission may hold an executive meeting from which the public may be excluded, for those purposes permitted by section 92-4, HRS, but only i f there is an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present at the meeting; provided the affirmative vote constitutes a majority of t he members to which the commission is entitled. The reason for holding the executive meeting shall be publicly announced and the vote of the members shall be recorded and entered i nto the m
	(b) The commission shall not make a decision or del iberate toward a decision in an executive meeting on matters not directly related to the purposes specified in section 92-5(a) , HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/ 00 ; comp 11/2/2013; comp -(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§92-4 , 92-5) 
	§15-15-12 REPEALED . [~R--R 11/2/2013) 
	§15-15-13 Quorum and number of votes necessary for a decision.! (a) Unless otherwise provided by law, a majority of all the members to which the commission is entitled shall constitute a quorum to do business, and the concurrence of a majority of all the members to which t he commission is entitled shall be ne cessary to make a commission decision valid; provided all approvals of petitions for boundary amendments under section 205-4, HRS, shall require six affirmative votes 
	and approvals for special permits under section 205-6, HRS, s hall require five affirmative votes . [~ petition receives siJE affirmative votes , any subsequent vote reflecting the commission's approval of the form of the order shall require five affirmative votes . ] 
	(b) If the commission ' s action to approve a pet ition for boundary amendment under section 205-4 , HRS, fails to obtain six affirmative votes, findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decision and order denying the petition shall be filed by the commi ssion. 
	[If a petition fails to receive siJE affirmative votes, any subsequent vote reflecting the commission ' s approval of the form of the order shall require five affirmative votes.] 
	(c) If the commission ' s action to approve a petition for a special permit under secti on 205-6, HRS, fails to obtain five affirmative votes, findings of fact, conclusions of law, and a decision and order denying the petition shall be filed by the commission . 
	[If a petition fails to receive five affirmative votes, any subsequent vote reflecting the commission's approval of the form of the order shall require five affirmative votes. ] 
	(d) In contested cases, commission members who have not heard and examined all of the evidence may vot e only after the procedures set forth in section 91-11, HRS, have been complied with. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am a nd comp 
	11/2/2013; 
	11/2/2013; 
	11/2/2013; 
	am and comp 
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS §§91
	-


	13 . 5, 
	13 . 5, 
	205-1, 
	2.05-7) 
	(Imp : HRS §§91-13 . 5, 
	92-15, 
	205-4, 

	205-6) 
	205-6) 


	§15-15-14 Removal of persons from meetings. The presiding officer or executive officer may remove any person who willfully disrupts a meeting or hearing or other proceeding before the commission . [Eff 10/27/8 6; comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: . HRS §§205-1, 205
	-

	7) (Imp : HRS §92-3) 
	§15-15-15 Minutes of meetings. (a) The commission shall keep written minutes of all meetings. Unless otherwise r equired by law, neither a full transcript nor a recording of the meeting is required, but t he written minutes shall give a true reflection of the matters discussed at the meeting and the views of 
	the participants. The minutes shall include, but need not be limited t o : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The date, time, and place of the meeting; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The members of the commission recorded as either present· or absent; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The substance of all matter s proposed, discussed, or decided, and a record, by individual member, of any votes taken; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Any other information that any member of the commission requests be included or reflected in the minutes . 


	(b) The minutes shall be public and shall be available within thirty days after the meeting except where the disclosure would be inconsistent with section 92-5, HRS . The commission may withhold publication of ihe minutes of executive meetings so long as their publication would defeat the lawful purpose of the executive meeting . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] -(Auth: HRS §§205:-1, 2·05-7) (Imp: HRS §92-9) 
	§ 15-15-16 Computation of time. In computing any period of time prescribed by this chapter, by notice, or by any order, or rule of the commission, or any appl~cable statute, the time begins with the day following the act, event, or def ault and includes the last day of the period unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, or a day or a part of a day on or for which the governor has granted administrative leave in 
	· the State, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day which is riot a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday . Unless otherwise specified in these rules, when the prescribed period of time is less than seven days, Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays within the designated period shal l not be included in the computation. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp -(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §91-2) 
	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	.ESTABLISHMENT OF STATE LAND USE DISTRICTS 
	§15-15-17 Districts; district maps. (a) In 
	order to effectuate the purposes of chapter 205 , HRS, 
	all the lands in the State shall be divided and placed 
	into one-of the four land use districts : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	"U" urban district; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	"A" agricultural district; 

	(
	(
	3) "C" conservation district; or 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	"R" rural district . 


	(b) The boundaries of .land use districts are shown on the maps entitled "Land Use District Boundaries , dated December 20, 1974, " as amended, maintained and under the custody of the commission . Not all ocean areas and offshore and outlying islands of the State in the conservation district are shown when deemed unnecessary to do so . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am a nd comp 5/8/00;----a-Ra comp 11/2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-2) 
	1111
	u

	§15-15-18 Standards for determining ·urban district boundaries. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, in determining the boundaries for the "U" ur ban district, the following standards shall be used : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	It shall include lands characterized by "city-like" concentrations of people; structures, streets, urban level of services and other related land uses; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	It shall take into consideration the following specific factors : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Proximity to centers of trading and employment except where the development would generate new centers of trading and employment; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Availability of basic services such as schools, parks, wastewater systems, solid waste disposal, drainage, water, transportation systems, public utilities, and police and fire protection; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Sufficient reserve areas for foreseeable urban growth; 



	(3) 
	(3) 
	It shall include lands with satisfactory t opography, drainage, and reasonably free from the danger of·any flood, tsunami , unstable soil conditi on, and other adverse environ·mental effects; . 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Land contiguous with exi sting urban areas shall be given more consideration than non-contiguous land, particularly when 


	indicated for future urban use on state or county general plans or county community plans or development plans ; 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	I t shall include lands in appropriate locations for new urban concentrations and shall give consideration to areas of urban growth as shown on the state and county general plans or county community plans or development plans ; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	It may include lands which do not conform to the standards in paragraphs (1) to (5) : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	When surrounded by or adjacent to existing urban development; and 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Only when those lands represent a minor portion of this district; . 



	(7) 
	(7) 
	It shall not i nclude lands, the urbanization of which will contribute toward scattered spot urban development , necessitating unreasonable investment in public infrastructure or support s ervices; and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	It may include lands with a genera1·s1ope of twenty per cent or more if the commission finds that those lands are desirable and suitable for urban purposes and that the design and construction controls, as adopted by any federal, state, or county agency, are adequate to protect the public health, welfare and safety, and the public ' s interests in t he aesthetic quality of the landscape . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am -and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-2, 205-7) (Imp:


	§15-15-19 Standards for determining "A" agricultural district b oundarie s . Except as otherwise provided in this chapter , in determining the boundaries for the "A" agricultural district, t he following standards shall apply : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	It shall include l ands with a high capacity for agricultural production; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	It may include lands with significant potential for grazing or for other agricultural uses; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	It may include lands surrounded by or contiguous t o agricultural lands or which are not suited to agricultural and ancillary activities by rea son of topography, soils, 


	', 
	and other related characteristiCSi and 
	(4) It shall include all lands designated important agricultural lands pursuant to part III of c hapter 205 , HRS. [Eff 10/27/86i am and comp 8/16/97i comp 5/8/00i am and comp ll/2/2013i comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-2, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 
	1111
	C

	§15-15-20 Standards f or dete rmining conservation district boundaries. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, in determining the boundaries for the "C" conservation district, the following standards shall apply: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	It shall include lands necessary for protecting watersheds, water resources, and water suppliesi 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	It may include lands susceptible to floods and soil erosion, lands undergoing major erosion damage and r equiring corrective attention by the state and federal government, and lands necessary for the protection of the health and wel fare of the publ ic by reason of the land's susceptibility to inundation by tsunami and flooding, to volcanic activity, and landslides; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	It may include lands used for national or state parks; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	It shall include lands necessary for the conservation, preservation, and enhancement of scenic, cultural, historic, or archaeologic sites and sites of unique physiographic or ecologic significance; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	It shall include lands necessary for providing and preserving parklands, wilderness and beach reserves, for conservi ng natural ecosystems of indigenous or endemic 


	.plants, fish, and wildlife, including thos-e which are t hreatened or endangered, and for forestry and other related activities to these uses; 
	(6) It shall include lands having an elevation below the shoreline as stated by section 205A-l, HRS, marine waters, fish ponds, and tidepools of the State, and accreted portions of lands pursuant to sections 501-33 and 6691, HRS , unless otherwise designated on the land use district maps. All off shor e and outlying islands of the State are classified 
	-

	conservation unless otherwise designated on the land use district maps; 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	It shall include lands with topography, soils, climate, or other relat ed envi ronmental factors that may not be normally adaptable or presently needed for urban, rural, or agricultural use, except when those lands constitute areas not contiguous to the conservation district; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	It may include lands with a general slope of twenty per cent or more which provide for open space amenities or scenic values; and 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	It may include lands suitable for farming, flower gardening, operation of nurseries or orchards, growing of commercial timber, grazing, hunting, and recreational uses including facilities accessory to those uses when the facilities are compatible with the natural physical envi ronment . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-2, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 


	§ 15-15-21 Standards for determining "R" rural district boundaries. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, in determining the boundaries for the ''R" rural district, the following standards shall apply: 
	(1) Areas consisting of small farms ; provided that the areas need not be included in this district if their inclusion will alter the general characteristics of the areas; 
	· (2) Activities or uses as characterized by low-density residential lots of not less than one-half acre and. a density of not more than one single family dwelling per one-half acre in areas where "city-like" concentrations of peopl e , structures, streets, and urban l evels of services are absent, and where 
	.small farms are intermixed with the low-density residential lots; and 
	(3) It may also include parcels of land which are surrounded by, or contiguous to this district, a nd are not suited to low-density resid~ntial uses for small farm or agricultural uses . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-2, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2 ) 
	§15-15-22 Interpretation of district boundaries. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Except as otherwise provided in this chapter: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	A district name or letter appearing on the land use district map applies throughout the whole area bounded by the district boundary lines; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Land having an elevation below the shoreline as stated by section 205A-l, HRS, marine waters, fish ponds, and tidepools of the State, and accreted portions of lands pursuant to sections 501-33 and 669-1, HRS, unless otherwise designated on the land use district maps, shall be included in t he conservation district; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	All offshore and outlying islands of the State are classified conservation unless otherwise designated on the land use district maps; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	All water areas within the State are considered to be within a district and controlled by the applicable district rules . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All requests for boundary interpretations shall be in writing and include the tax map key identification of the property and a print of a map of the property. All requests for boundary interpretations involving shoreline properties shall be accompanied by a survey map showing the locations of the shoreline as provided for in section 205A-42 , HRS. Any erosion or accreti on through natural processes shall be reflected on the map. Further, any shoreline structure, piers, and areas of man-made fill which were 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The executive officer may request the following information: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Additional copies of the print, including a reproducible master map of the print or an electronic copy in a recognized format of .the executive officer's designation; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Additional information such as, but not limited to, tax map key maps, topogrqphic maps, aerial photographs, certified shoreline surveys, and subdivision maps relating to the boundary interpretation. 




	The executive officer may employ, or require that the 
	( 
	party re questing the boundary interpretation employ, at its sole expense, a registered professional land surveyor to prepare a map for interpretation. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	The executive officer may use all applicable commission records in determining district boundaries. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The foilowing shall apply whenever uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of the various districts : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Whenever a district line falls within or abuts a street, alley, canql, navigable or non-navigable stream or r i ver, it may be deemed to be in the midpoint of the foregoing. If the actual location of the street~ alley, canal, navigable or non-navigable stream or river varies slightly from the location as shown on the district map, then the actual locati on shall be controlling; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Whenever a district line is s hown as being located within a specific distance from a street line or other fixed phjsical feature, or from an ownership line, this distance shall be co_ntrolling; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	· Unless otherwise indicated, the district lines shall be determined by the use of the scale contained on the map . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Whenever subsections (a) , (b) , (c) , (d) , or 



	(e) 
	(e) 
	cannot resolve an uncertainty concerning the location of any district l ine, the commission, upon written application or upon its own mot ion, shall determine the location of those district lines. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §205-1) 


	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	PERMISSIBLE LAND USES 
	§15-15-23 Permissible uses; gene rally . Except as otherwise provided in t his chapter, t he following l and and building uses are compatible and permitted within the fol lowing l and use districts, except when applicable county ordinances or regulations are more restrictive. Except as otherwi se provided in thi s chapter, uses not expressly permitted are prohibited. 
	[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00;---a-Re comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §205-2) 
	§15-15-24 Permissible uses within the "U" urban district. Any and all uses permitted by the counties, either by ordinances or rules may be allowed within this di strict, subject to any conditions imposed by the commission pursuant to section 205-4(g), HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 2 0 5 -7 ) (Imp : HRS § 2 0 5-2 ) 
	§15-15-25 Pe rmissible uses within the "A" agricultural district. (a) Permissible uses within the agricultural di strict on land with soil classified by the land study bureau ' s detailed land classification as overall (master) productiv~ty rat ing class A or B shall be those uses set forth in section 205-4 . 5, HRS. 
	(b) Permissible uses within the agricultural di strict on land with soil classified by the land study bureau ' s detailed land classification as overall 
	(master) productivity rating class of C, D, E, and U shall be those uses as set forth in sections 205-2, 205-4 . 5, and 205-5, HRS, and also uses compatible to the activities described in 205-2(d), HRS . . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11 /2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-2, 205-4 . 5) 
	§15-15-26 Permissible uses within the "C" conservation district. Uses of land within a conservation district shall be governed by the rules of the state department of land ·and natural resources, titl e 13, and chapter 183C, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11 /2/2013; comp ...,,..,,...~ ----=-----] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-2) 
	§15-15-27 Permissible uses within the "R" rural district. (a) Permissible uses within the rural district shall include the followi ng activities : 
	(1) All agricultural related activities and uses 
	permitted under ~ection 15-15-25; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Low-density residential lots of not more than one dwelling house per one-half acre, except as provided by county ordinance pursuant to section 46-4(c), HRS; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Golf courses and golf driving ranges and golf-related facilities; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Public, quasi-public and public utility faciliti es; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The commission for good cause may allow one lot of less t han one-half acre, but not less than 18,500 square feet, or an equivalent residential density, provided all other lots in the subdivision have the minimum l ot size of one-half acre . A petition for variance may be processed under the special permit procedure pursuant to subchapter 12 . This exception shall apply to lots of record existing prior to January 1, 1977, and of not more than two acres. There shall be no. more than one single-family dwellin


	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	NONCONFORMANCE 
	§15-15-28 Statement of intent. This subchapter is intended to expedite the eventual elimination of existing uses or structures that are not in conformity with the provisions of subchapter 3 because their continued existence violates basic concepts of health, safety, and welfare as well as pri nciples of good land use. However, in applying subchapter 3 , no elimination of nonconforming uses or structures shall be effected so as to cause unreasonable interference with established property rights . [Eff 10/27/
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp:
	-----,.....,....,,--~ -
	-

	HRS §205-8) 
	§15-15-29 Nonconforming uses. (a) Any lawful use of l ands or buildings existing prior to the establishment of a land use district, may be continued even though those uses do not conform to the provisions thereof. 
	(b) Except as otherwise provided, the following provi sions shall apply to nonconforming uses or structures withi n any di st rict: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	It shall not be changed to another nonconforming use or structure; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	It shall not be expanded or increased i n i ntensi t y of ·use; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	It shall not be reestablished after discontinuance and abandonment for a continuous period of one year . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7)
	-,--------= 
	(Imp : HRS §205-8) 
	§15-15-30 Nonconformi ng areas and parcel s. A lot of recor d or any proposed subdivision of land which is not in conformi ty with t his subchapter, but which has received approval by the county havi ng j u risdiction prior to the es tablishment of the land use district, shall be permitted as a nonconf orming area subject to the ordinances and rules of the county. All lots within the nonconforming area shall be considered nonconforming parcel s . [Eff 10/27/86; am and , comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; com
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7 ) (Imp : HRS 
	o 5-=-c--
	-=§-=-
	-

	-=-=--8)-
	2
	-

	§15-15-31 Casual or illegal use of land. A casual, intermittent, temporary, or illegal use of l a nds or buildings shall not be sufficient to establish the ex istence of a nonconforming use. [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; -comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
	---=-...,,...,.,--,,-,----
	-

	§205-8) 
	§15-15-32 Existence of nonconforming use is a 
	question of fact . Whether a nonconforming use exists 
	s hall be a questi on of fact and s hall be decided by the 
	board, commission, or agency having jurisdiction over 
	uses within t he district. [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
	comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth: HRS .§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
	-=-=-=-=,...---,,....,..----
	-

	§205-8) 
	§15-15-33 Illegal uses. An illegal use of lands or buildings shall not be validated by the adoption of this chapter. [Eff 10/27/8 6; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-8) 
	SUBCHAPTER 5 
	PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE COMMISSION 
	§15-15-34 Quasi-judicial proceedings; waiver or suspension of rul es. (a) The intent and purpose of chapter 205, HRS, is to establish quasi-judicial procedures whi ch would ensure the effective application of established state land use policies through an adversarial process i n a heari ng in which diverse i nterests will have an opportunity to present their views in an open and orderly manner. Accordingly, the commission expects all persons and partie·s to comply with this subchapter and chapter 91 , HRS, 
	(b) Unless contrary to statute, the commission may waive or suspend any rule when the commission determines that : (1) good cause exists for such waiver; and (2) strict enforcement of such procedural rule would impose a manifest injustice upon a party or person who has substantially complied with the commission ' s rules in good faith . No rule relating to jurisdictional matters shall be waived or suspended by the commission . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; co
	§15-15-34 . 1 Verbatim transcripts. Verbatim transcript s of hearings and other proceedi ngs before the commission pursuant to chapter 91, HRS, shall be made and kept by. the commission. [Eff and comp 11 /2/2013 ; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-9) 
	§15-15-35 Appearance before the commission. (a) Any party to a proceeding before the commission may appear on the party ' s own behalf. A partnership, corporation, trust, or association, or other legal entity, may be represented by a duly authorized agent . -An officer or employee of a department or agency of the State or a political subdi vision may represent that department or agency in any proceeding before the commission . . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A party may be repres~nted by an attorney. The attorney who appears before the . commission shall be a member in good standing of the Hawai'i state bar. A member of the bar of another jurisdiction may appear by motion or by association with a member in good standing of the Hawai'i stat e bar . All pleadings and documents shall be served on the member of the Hawai 'i state bar. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The United States or any of its agencies may be represented by an employee of the agency or any attorney who is a member in good standing of the bar of any state and who is employed as an attorney by the United States or one of its agencies . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Any person who signs a pleading or brief, enters an appearance at a hearing, or transacts business with the commission, by such an act represents that the person i s legally authorized to do so and shall comply with the laws of this State and the several counties, and the rules of the commission. Further, the person shall maintain the respect due to the commission, and shall never deceive or knowingly p r esent any false statements of fact or law to the commission . The commission at any time may require an

	(e) 
	(e) 
	All former employees of the State, as that term is defined in section 84-3, HRS , shal l comply with the provisions of chapter 84 , HRS , standards of conduct, prior to making an appearance in a representative capacity before the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS 


	§§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-2) 
	§15-15-36 Decisions and oroe rs. (a) All decisions and orders for boundary amendment and special permit applications s hall be s i gned by the chairperson or presiding officer (b) Unless otherwise indicated i n the order, the effective date of a decision and otder shall be the date it is filed by the chief clerk . 
	(c) Official copies of decisions and orders and other commission actions shall be effectuated under the signat ure of the chairperson, executive officer, or by t he chief clerk . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp -G-±-3+ comp ] (Auth : HRS §205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §91-12) 
	. §15-15-37 Filing docume nts; place and time . All pleadings, briefs, submittals, petitions, reports, maps, exceptions, memoranda, and other legal papers required or permitted to be fil ed with the commission in any proceeding shall be filed at the office of the commission before or on the date prescribed by s t atute, rules, or order of the commissi on. Unless otherwise ordered and except as provided by section 15-15-50, the date on which the origi nal papers are filed by or at the direction of the chief 
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4; SLH 1992, Act 227, §1) 
	§15-15-38 Format . (a) All documents exceeding seventy five pages shall be placed in three-ring binders or equivalent (prongs and rubber bands are not acceptable) and be printed upon white paper 8-1/2 x 11 inches in size. Twelve point font or larger shall be used. Tables, maps, chart s , exhibits, or appendi ces may be larger and shall be folded to that si ze where practical and tabbed. All pleadings shall be printed and shall be one and a half spaced or greater, except that footnotes and quotati ons in exc
	may be single-spaced. Reproduction may be by any process, provided all copies are clear and permanently l egible. El ectronic copies shall be similarly formatted and bookmarked. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All pleadings shall show the title of the proceeding before the commission and the case docket number assigned by the chief clerk and shall show the name, address, and telephone number of the person or attorney. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The original of each pleading shall be signed by each party or the party' s attorney . If the party is a corporation, association; partnership, or other legal entity, the pleading may be signed by an officer or partner thereof or other authorized person . The t i t l e and name of the person signing shall be typed below the signature . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	In addition to the paper ori ginals and one paper copy, the parties shall also submit documents and pleadings in electronic format, as directed by the executive officer. However, the filing date shall be the date the paper ori~inal is filed in the office of t he commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp -(Aut h: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-2) 


	§15-15-39 Verification. (a) Petitions, amendments thereto, and other pleadings which initiate a proceeding, and amendments thereto shall be verified by at least one of the persons or officers or ot her authorized signatory of the party filing the same. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	If the party filing the pleading is a corporation, as sociation, partnership, or other legal entity, the pleading may be verified by an off icer or partner thereof or other authorized person . Evidence qf such authorization shall be provided. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The attorney for a party may sign and verify a pleading if the party is absent , or for some ~ause unable to sign and verify the pleading . [Eff 10/27/86 ; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7 ) (Imp: HRS 
	--=-=c-:----,.-,----
	-

	§91-2) 
	§15-15-40 Copi es. Unless otherwise required by this subchapter or the commission, all parties shall file with the commission a paper original, one paper copy and one electronic copy of each pleading or 
	amendment thereof . Additional copies shall be promptly provi ded if the chairperson or the executive officer so requests. The commission, by order, may modify the number or format of copies required under this section. 
	[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS 
	....,,...,,-,--=--,------
	-

	§91-2) 
	§15-15-41 Defective or nonconforming documents. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	The mere fact that a document has been filed or been deemed a proper filing by the executive officer pursuant to section 15-15-50 (d)and (e) shall not be deemed a waiver of any failure to comply with this subchapter. Except as provided in subsection (b) , if a document filed in a proceeding governed by this chapter is defecti ve, not in substantial conformity with the applicable rules of the commission, or is otherwise insufficient, the commission may on its own motion or on the motion of any party, strike 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Notwi thstanding the provisions of sections 15-15-50(e), 15-15-50(f) , and 15-15-50. 5, the commission may, on its own motion, or on motion by any of the parties addressing alleged deficiencies of the pet ition, dismiss defective or nonconforming petitions with or without prejudice . If the petition is determined by the commission to be defective or nonconforming, the date of proper filing shall be· the date the commission determines that the defects are cured. If the defects are jurisdictional, including, 
	failure.to 



	§15-15-42 Extensions of time. (a) Whenever a party is required to file a pleading within a period prescribed or allowed by these rules by notice given thereunder, or by an order, the chairperson, presiding officer, or the executive officer may : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	For good cause shown, with or without notice or hearing, extend such period if written request therefor is made before the expiration of the period originally prescribed or as extended by a previous order; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Pursuant to a stipulation between all of the part ies, without notice or hearing, extend the_period; or · 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Upon motion after t he expiration of the specified period, permi t the act to be done where the failure to act i s c l early shown to be the result of excusable neglect; but may not extend the time for taking any action on j urisdictional matters. 


	(b) Extensions of time t o file any pleading or other document r equired by a decision and order of the commission must be requested more than fourteen days prior to t he next scheduled hearing date on t he matter. 
	This section shall not apply to extensions of time affecting .juri sdictional matters [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	-] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-43 Amended pleadings. All pleadings may be amended at any t ime until forty-five days prior to the hearing date set pursuant to sect ion 15-15-51 . Amendments offered prior to the hearing date shall be served on all parties and filed with the commission. All partie's· shall have the opportunity to provide any further response to address the amended pleading up to thirty days prior to the hearing date set pursuant to section 15-l5-51. No amended pleadings shall be filed after forty-five days prior to 
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7 , SLH 1995,
	~ 

	----c=-::--=--,----,-
	-

	A ct 235, §2) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-1, 205-7) 
	§15-15-44 Retention of documents. The commission shall retain all documents filed with or presented to 
	the commission i n the files of the commission. However, the chai rperson-or presi ding officer may permit a party to withdraw original documents submitted by a party upon submission of properly authenticated copies to replace the original documents. The party shall not withdraw the original documents until it has submitted the authenticated copi es and it has given to the chief clerk a recei pt , specifyi ng the date and identifying the original documents withdrawn . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; com
	§15-15-45 Se rvice of proce ss . (a) The commission shall cause to be served all orders, notices, and other papers i ssued by it, together with any other papers that it is required by law to serve . All other papers shall be served by the parties filing them. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All papers served by either the commission or any party s hall be filed and served upon all parties or their attorney and shall contain a certificate of service. Any attorney entering an appearance subsequent to the proceeding shall notify all other attorneys then of record and .all parties not represented by an attorney of that fact. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The final decision and order, and any other paper required to be served by the commissi on upon a party, shall be served upon the party ' s attorney of record or in the absence of an attorney, upon the party . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Service of papers other than the notice of hearing and the final deci sion and order, shall be made personally or, unless otherwise provided by law, by first class mail . Notice of hearing shall be served as provided in section 15-15-51, and the final deci sion and order shall be served by certified mail . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Service upon parties, other than the commission, shall be regarded as complete upon the occurrence of at least one of the following : (1) t he part y or its attorney is personally served; (2) t he document is delivered to the party ' s office or i t s attorney ' s office and left with some responsible person; or (3) the document is properly stamped, addressed and mailed by first class mail to the last known address of the party on file with t he commission or to the party' s attorney. 


	(f) Whenever a party has the right to do some act 
	or take some proceedings within a prescribed period after the service of a notice or other paper upon the person, and the notice or paper is served by mail, two days shall be added to the prescribed period. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-45 .1 Fees . (a) Unless otherwise provided herein, a motion for incremental districting approval, motion for amendment to a decision and order, requested rule making, a motion to release conditions, a motion for declaratory order, a motion for special permit, or a motion to amend a special permit, a motion for order to show cause, or motion for important agricultural land designation, by any person other than a state or county department or agency shall be accompanied by a filing fee by cashier ' s c
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A petition for an amendment to a district boundary filed by any person other than a state or county department or agency shall be accompanie·d by a filing fee by cashier ' s check for $5,000, made payable· to the State of Hawai 'i. State or county departments or agencies that submit a petition for amendment to a district boundary shal l not be subject to the filing fee . A petition for an amendment to a district boundary filed jointly by a state or county department or agency and a person who is not a state

	(c) 
	(c) 
	A petition for intervention in any proceeding filed by any person other than a state or county department or agency shall be accompanied by a filing fee by cashier ' s check in the amount of $50, made payable to the State of Hawai'i . State or county departments or agencies that submit such petitions for intervention shall not be subject to the filing fee . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Except as otherwise provided by law, a copy of any public document or government record, including any map, plan diagram, photograph, or photostat, which i s open to inspection by the public shall be furnished 


	to any person requesting the same by the executive officer having charge or control thereof upon the payment of the reasonable cost of reproducing such copy, which amount shall not be less than 12 cents per page, sheet, or fraction thereof . In addition, the requestor shall be responsible to pay for labor costs for searching, reviewing, and segregating, and actual time for reproducing, and material costs, including electricity cost, equipment cost including rental cost, cost for certification, and other rel
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The petitioner, movant, or applicant for any petition, motion, or application shall, unless otherwise ordered by the commission, reimburse the commission for or pay at the direction of the commission any expenses related to the publication of any required hearing notice, expenses of court reporter services, expenses of the hearing room, expenses for audio/visual services and equipment, and any other hearing-related expenses. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	After notice and opportunity to be heard, the commission may also assess any party to any proceeding before the commission a reasonable fee or require reimbursements for hearing expenses as determined by the commission, including without limitation, expenses of court reporter, hearing room, and expenses for audio/visual services and equipment . 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	The commission may assess a reasonable fee or require reimbursements to be made for inexcusable absence of a P,arty from a contested case proceeding. The assessment may include, but not be limited to, such costs for airfare, room rental fees, and publication fees. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp 


	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4 . 1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 92-21, 205-4 . 1) 
	§15-15-45 .2 Fees nonrefundable. The fees set forth in this chapter shall be nonrefundable . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4.1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 92-21, 2054. 1) 
	-

	SUBCHAPTER 6 
	APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR BOUNDARY AMENDMENT PETITIONS 
	§15-15-46 Standing to initiate boundary amendments. The following persons may initiate a petition to the commi ssion for district boundary amendment : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	State departments or agencies; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	County departments or agencies of the county in which the property is situated; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Any person with a property interest in the property sought to be reclassified. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; 


	comp 11/2/2013; 
	comp 11/2/2013; 
	comp 11/2/2013; 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth: 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§§205-1, 
	205-7) 
	(Imp: 
	HRS 
	§§205-3.1, 

	205-4) 
	205-4) 


	§15-15-47 Filing. The petitioner shall file one original, and one paper copy and one electronic copy of a petition for boundary amendment and all supporting documents and exhibits, with the commission . Additional copies shall be promptly provided if the chairperson or the executive officer so requests. The number and format of copies required under this section may be modified by order of the commission. [Eff 10/27/8 6; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§2·05-1 , 2
	§15-15-48 Service of petition. (a) At the time the petition is filed with the commission, the petitioner shall serve copies of the petition and all supporting documents upon: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	the county planning department and planning commission of the county within which the subject land is situated, 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	the appropriate island planning commission, 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	the state office of planning, and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	all persons with a property interest in the subject property as recorded in the county's real property tax records at the time the petition is filed . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The petitioner shall serve copies of the petition upon any potential intervenor upon receipt of a notice of intent to intervene pursuant to section 1515-52 (b) . 
	-


	(c) 
	(c) 
	Copies of all documents filed by petitioner after filing of the petition shall be served upon the county planning department and the state office of planning at the same time the document is fil ed with the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-49 REPEALED . [*R--R 11/2/2013) 
	§15-15-50 Form and contents of petition. (a) The form of the petition for boundary amendment shall conform to the requirements of subchapters 5 and 6 . All petitions shall: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	State clearly and concisely the authorization or rel ief sought; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Cite by appropriate reference the statutory provision or other authority under which commission authorization or relief is sought . 


	(b) For petitions to reclassify propert ies from the conservation district to any other district, the petition shall not be deemed a proper fil ing unless an approved environmental impact statement or f inding of no significant impact is approved or accepted by the commission for the p'roposed boundary amendment request . 
	Such approved or accepted environmental impact statement or finding of no significant impact shall be filed with and be part of the petition for boundary amendment . Notwithstanding any rule to the contrary, the processes provided by subsections (e) and (f) shall not commence until this subsection is satisfied. 
	(c) The following information shall also be provided in each petition for boundary amendment : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The exact legal name of each petitioner and the location of the principal place of business and if an applicant is a corporation, trust, or association, or other legal entit y , the state in which the petitioner was organized or incorporated; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The name, title, and address of the person to whom correspondence or communications in regard to the petition are to be addressed; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Description of the subject property, acreage, and tax map key number, with maps, including t he tax map, that identify the area stated in 


	(4) 
	(5) 
	(6) 
	(7) 
	(8) 
	(9) 
	the petition. If the subject property is a 
	portion of one or more tax map key parcels, 
	or the petition proposes incremental 
	development of the subject property on both 
	increments of development, the petitioner 
	shall include a map and description of the 
	subject property and each increment in metes 
	and bounds prepared by a registered 
	professional land surveyor; 
	The boundary amendment sought and present use 
	of the property, including an assessment of 
	conformity of the boundary amendment to the 
	standards for determining the requested 
	district boundary amendment ; 
	The petitioner ' s property i nterest i n the 
	subject property. The petitioner shall ·attach as exhibits to the petition the 
	following : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	A true copy of the deed, lease, option agreement, development agreement, or other document conveying to the petitioner a property interest in the subject property or a certified copy of a nonappealable final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction quieting title in the petitioner; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	If the petitioner is not the owner in fee simple of the subject property, or any part thereof, written authorization of all fee owners to file the petition and a true copy of the deed to the subject property; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	An affidavit of the petitioner or its agent attesting to its compliance with section 15-15-48; 


	A description of any easements on the subject property, together with identification of the owners of the easements ; a description of any other ownership interests shown on the tax maps . Type of use or development being proposed, including wi thout limitation, a description of any planned development, residential, golf course, open space, resort, commercial, or i ndustrial use; A statement of projected number of lots, lot size, number of units, densities, selling price, intended market , and development t
	37 
	condition together with a current certified balance sheet and i ncome statement as of the end of the last calendar year, or if the petitioner is on a fiscal year basis, as of the end of the petitioner's last fiscal year, a nd a clear description of the manner in which the petitioner proposes to finance the proposed use or development . If such informati on i s protected from disclosure under chapter 92F, HRS, the petitioner may request a protective order to protect t he confidentiality of the information pu
	--~(~1-0 (10) -1-Description of the subject property and surrounding areas including the use of the property over the past two years, the present
	\ 
	use, the soil classification, the agricultural lands of importance to the State of Hawai 'i' classification (ALISH), the Land Study Bureau productivity rating, the flood and drainage conditions, and the topography of the subject property; 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	(11) -An assessment of the impacts of the proposed use or development upon the environment , agriculture; recreational, cultural, historic, scenic, flora and fauna, groundwater, or other resources of the area. If required by chapter 343, HRS, either a finding of no significant impact after review of an environmental assessment or an environmental impact statement conforming to the requirements of c hapter 343, HRS, must be filed; 

	(12) 
	(12) 
	----+(~1~2Y)-Availability or adequacy of public


	------'--"'--
	-

	services and facilities such as schools, parks, wastewater systems, solid waste disposal, drainage, water, transport ation systems, public utilities, police and fire protection, civil defense, emergency medical service and medical facilities, and to what extent any public agency would be impacted by the proposed development or boundary amendment; 
	(1 3) ---~(+143+)-Location of the proposed use or 
	------'---'--
	-

	development in relation to adjacent land use districts and any centers of trading and employment; 
	(14) 
	(14) 
	(14) 
	(14) Economic impacts of the proposed boundary amendment, use, or development i ncluding, wi thout limitation, the provision of any impact on employment opportunities, and the potential impact to agricultural production in the vicinity of the subject property, and in the county and State; 

	(15) 
	(15) 
	(15) A description of the manner in which the petitioner addresses the housing needs of low income, low-moderate income, and gap groups; 


	(16 ) (16) An assessment of need for the boundary amendment based upon the relationship between the use or development proposed and other projects existing or proposed for the area and consideration of other similarly designated land in the area; 
	(17) 
	(17) 
	(17) 
	(17) An assessment of conformity of the boundary amendment to applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the Hawai'i state plan, chapter 226, HRS, and applicable priority guidelines and functional plan policies; 

	(18) 
	(18) 
	(18) An assessment of the conformity of the boundary amendment to objectives and policies of the coastal zone management program, chapter 205A, HRS; 


	(19 ) (19) An assessment of conformity of the boundary amendment to the applicable county general plans, development or community plans, zoning designations and policies, and proposed amendments required; 
	(20) (20) Petitioners submitting petitions for boundary amendment to the urban district shall also represent that development of the subject property in accordance with the demonstrated need therefor will be accomplished before ten years after the date of commission approval . In the event full urban development cannot substantially be completed within such period, the petitioner shall also submit a schedule for devel opment of the total of such project in increments together with a map identifying the loca
	(2 1) (21) A [statement]written disclosure and analysis addressing Hawaiian customary ~nd traditional rights under Article XII, section 
	39 
	7 of the Hawai'i State Constitution; 
	(22 ) (22) Any written comments received by the petitioner from governmental and nongovernmental agencies, organizations, or individuals in regards to the proposed boundary amendment ; [-a-R€1:] 
	(23) (23) A copy of the notification of 
	petition filing pursuant to subsection (d)[--,-]; 
	(24) (24) A statement and analysis pursuant to section 226-109, HRS, addressing climate change related threats to the proposed development and proposed mitigation measures . 
	The statement and analysis shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues : 
	(A) The impacts of sea level rise on the 
	proposed development; 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	Infrastructure adaptations to address the impacts of climate change including sewer, water and roadway improvements; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	The overall carbon footprint of the proposed development and any mitigation measures or carbon footprint reductions proposed; and 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	The location of the proposed development and the threats imposed to the proposed development by sea l evel rise, based on the maps and information contained in the Hawaii Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Adaptation report and the proposed mitigation measures taken to address those impacts . 


	(25) (25) A statement and analysis addressing the proposed development' s adherence to sustainability principles and priority guidelines and climate change issues as contained in section 226-108 , HRS , the Hawai ' i State Plan (Sustainability) , and smart growth principles, including, but not limited to : 
	(A) Walkability; 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	Accessibility to alternate forms of transportation; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Transit oriented devel opment opportunities; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	(D) 
	Green infrastructure, including water recharge and reuse and water recycling; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	(E) 
	Mitigation of heat island effects; 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	Urban a ricultural o ortunities . 40 




	Figure
	(d) The petiti oner shall send a notification of petition filing to persons included on a mailing list provided by the chief clerk . The notification of petition f i ling shall be in a form as prescribed by the executive officer, and shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Petiti oner ' s name and mailing address; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Landowner 's name; · 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Tax map key identification of the property requested for boundary amendment; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Location of the property; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Requested boundary amendment and approximate acreage; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Proposed use of the property; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	A statement that detai led information on the petition may be obtained by reviewing the petition and maps on file at the office of the commission or the respective county planning department or at the commission's website; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	A statement that informs potential intervenors on the mailing list provided by the commission that they may file a notice of intent to intervene with the commission within thirty days of the date of t he notification of petition filing pursuant to section 15-15-52(b); 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	A statement that informs the general public to contact the office of the commission for information on participating in the hearing; and 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	(1 0 ) A location map depicting the petition area. 


	The notificati on of petition filing shall be sent to all persons on th~ mailing list on the same day .that the petition is filed with the commission . The petitioner shall submit to the commission an affidavit that the petitioner has sent the notification of petition filing pursuant to this subsection . 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The executive officer shall receive and complete a review of the petition for completeness within thirty days of the filing of the petition. The provisions herein, however, are subject to the requirements of subsection (b) on petitions for reclassification of conservation district lands. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Upon completion of the review pursuant to subsection (e), the executive officer shall determine whether the petition is a proper filing and is accepted for processing. The petition shall be deemed a proper filing if the items required in subsections (a), (b), 


	(c), and (d) have been submitted. The petition may be deemed defective by the executive officer if any of the items required in subsections (a), (b), (c), or (d) have not been submitted. If the petition is deemed defective, the executive officer shall notify the petitioner of the determination and the reasons for the determination. The petition may· be deemed as a proper filing upon review of the additional information submitted and upon determination by the executive officer, and the date the petition will
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	rhe petitioner has a continuing obligation to update the information submitted in the petition prior to and during the pendency of the hearing on the petiti on. [Eff 10/27/86; am 3/24/94; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4 , 2057) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	-


	§15-15-50.5 Dismissal of petition for failure to provide additional information or correct defects . Where the executive officer, pursuant to section 15-1550(f), has determined that a petition is defective or nonconforming and the petitioner has not provided additional information or cured any defects within nine 
	-


	(9) 
	(9) 
	months after the date of issuance of the notice that the petition is .defective, the executive officer shall notify the petitioner in writing that the petition is dismissed for want of prosecution unless objections thereto, showing good cause with specific


	1 
	reasons, are filed within ten days after the date of such notification. If objections are not filed within said ten-day period, the executive officer shall file an order of dismissal with or without prejudice. If objections are filed within said ten-day period, the commission shall hear t he objections upon notice and determine whether the petition should be dismissed. 
	[Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: 
	HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) 
	§15-15-50 . 6 Withdrawal or amendment of petition. (a) The petitioner may withdraw or amend the petition without prejudice : (1) at any time before a petition for district boundary amendment is deemed a proper filing or, (2) any time after a petition for district boundary amendment has been deemed a proper filing but before it has been set for hearing; provided that if substantive amendments are made, the filing date for the petition shall be the date the amended petition is deemed a proper filing, and peti
	-

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	If a petition for district boundary amendment has been set for heari ng, the petition may be withdrawn s granting of a motion for withdrawal filed by the petitioner. In the event the commission grants a motion to withdraw, the petitioner may not refile the petition within one year after the granti ng of the motion'·for withdrawal . 
	only upon the commission
	1 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	If a petition for district boundary amendment has been set for hearing, the petition may be amended only in compliance with the requirements of section 1515-43. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp l 
	-



	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) 
	SUBCHAPTER 7 
	AGENCY HEARING AND POST HEARING PROCEDURES 
	§15-15-51 Notice of hearing for boundary amendment petitions. (a) Not less than sixt y days and not more than one hundred eighty days after t he proper filing of a petition for boundary amendment, a hearing shall be conducted by the commission or a hearings officer on the island in which t he subject property is situated. 
	(b) The notice of hearing shall be served on t he office of planni ng, the planning commission and the planning department of t he county in which the subject property is situated, the appropriate planning commission of the island on which the subject property 
	(b) The notice of hearing shall be served on t he office of planni ng, the planning commission and the planning department of t he county in which the subject property is situated, the appropriate planning commission of the island on which the subject property 
	is situated, all persons with a property interest in the subject property that is recorded in the county's real property tax records at the time the petition is submitted, all persons with an easement over, on, upon or through the subject property, and all persons who appear on the county tax map to have a n interest in the subject property. In addition, notice of the hearing shall be mailed to all peisons who have ~ade a timely written request for advance notice of bo'undary amendment proceedings . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The notice of hearing for a boundary amendment shall be published at least once in the county in which the la.nd sought to be redistricted is situated as well as once statewide at least thirty days in advance of the hearing. The notice of hearing shall also be filed with the lieutenant governor's office at least six calendar days before the hearing. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	The notice of hearing of a boundary amendment shall include : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The date, time, place, and nature of the hearing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The legal authority under which the hearing is to be held; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The particular sections of the statutes and rules involved; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	An explicit statement in plain language of the issues involved; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The fact t hat parties may retain an attorney if they so desire and the fact that an individual may appear on the ·individual's own behalf, or a member of a partnership may represent the partnership, or an officer or authorized employee of a corporation, trust, or other legal entity may represent the corporation, trust, or other legal entity; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Where the map of the subject property or petition may be inspected; and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	The rights of interested persons under section 205-4(e), HRS . 



	(e) 
	(e) 
	The hearing may be continued or reopened by the commission when necessary, provided that notice is given pursuant to section 92-7, HRS, a nd the continued or re-opened hearing shall not extend beyond three hundred sixty~five days from t he date the petition is deemed properly filed, unless an extension of time is requested by motion by any party, by stipulation, or by the commission on its own motion, so long as the commission votes affirmatively on the motion or stipulation by a two-thirds vote of the memb


	ninety days beyond three hundred sixty-five days from the date the petition is deemed properly filed . [Effl0/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : -HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§1-28 . 5, 919, 92-7, 92-41, 205-4) 
	-

	§ 15-15-52 Intervention in proceeding for district boundary amendments, except proceedings pursuant to chapter 201H, HRS. (a) The petitioner, the state office of planning, and the planning department of the county within which the subject land is situated shall appear in every case as parties, and make recommendations relative to the proposed boundary amendment . 
	(b) Within thirty days .of the date of the notification of petition filing pursuant to section 1515-50(d), persons who intend to intervene may file a notice of intent to intervene with the commission . The notice of intent to intervene shall provide, but not be limited to, the following information : 
	-

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The person ' s name and mailing address; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The nature and extent of the person ' s 


	interest in the petition. The notice of intent to intervene shall be served upon the petitioner, the state office of planning, and the respective county planning department . Upon receipt of a notice of intent to intervene, the petitioner shall serve a copy of the petition fil ed with the chief clerk upon the potential intervenor . All persons who wish to formally intervene shall comply with subsections (e), 
	(
	(
	(
	f) , (g) , and (h) . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Persons who may intervene upon timely application include : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	All departments and ageneies of the State and of the county in which the land is situated; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	All persons who have a property interest in the land, or who otherwise oan demonstrate t hat they will be so directly and immediately affected by the proposed change that their interest in the proceeding is clearly distinguishable from that of the general public. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	All other persons may apply for leave to intervene, which shall be freely granted, provided the commission or its hearings officer may deny an application to intervene when, in the commission ' s, or 


	hearings officer's discretion lt appears that : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The position of the applicant for intervention is substantially the same as the position of a party already admitted to the proceeding; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The admission of additional parties will render the proceedings inefficient and unmanageable. 


	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	In a boundary amendment proceeding, petitions to intervene and become a party shall be in conformity with subchapter 5 and filed with the commission. An original and one paper copy, plus one electronic copy, of the petition for intervention with proof of service on all parties shall be filed with the commission within fifteen calendar days after the notice of hearing is published pursuant to section 15-15-Sl(c) . Except for good cause shown, late filing shall not be permitted. The number and format of copie

	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	Petitions for intervention s hall make reference to the following : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Nature of the petitioner ' s statutory or other right; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Nature and extent of the petitioner ' s interest in the matter, and if an abutting property owner, the tax map key description of the property; and · · 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Effect of any decision in the proceeding on the petitioner ' s interest . . 



	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Petitions for intervention pursuant to subsection (d) shall also make reference to the following: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Other means available whereby the petitioner' s interest may be protected; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Extent the petitioner' s interest will not be represented by or differs from that of existing parties; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Extent the petitioner' s participation can assist in development of a complete record; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Extent the petitioner 's participation will broaden the issues; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	How the petitioner's intervention would serve the public interest. 



	(h) 
	(h) 
	Petitions for intervention shall be accompanied by a filing fee as provided for in sect ion 15-15-45.1. The fee shall not apply to state and county agencies . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	If any party opposes the petition for intervention, the party shall file a p leading in 


	opposition within seven days after being served . 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	All petitions to intervene shall be heard prior to the scheduled hearing . 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	A person ·whose petition to intervene has been denied may appeal the denial to the circuit court pursuant to section 91-14, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4 , 205-7, SLH 1995, Act 235, §2) (Imp : HRS §205-4 , SLH 1995, Act 235, §1) 


	§15-15-53 Intervention in other than district boundary amendment proceeding or important agricultural lands designation proceeding. (a)· In any proceeding other than a district boundary amendment proceeding or important agricultural lands designati on proceeding before the commission, petitions to intervene and become a party shall conform to subchapter 5 and be filed no later than fifteen.days after the date of the publication of the hearing notice . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Contents of the petition shall conform to sections 15-15-52(e) and 15-15-52(f) . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Petitions to intervene in special permit proceedings will not be considered since the record i s made by and before the county planning commission . 


	[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§205-1, 205-4) 
	, 
	§15-15-54 Consolidation. The commission, upon its own initiative or upon motion by any party, may consolidate for hearing or other purposes, or may contemporaneously consider, two or more proceedings which involve substantially the same parties or issues which are the same or c l osel y related if the commi ssion finds that consolidation or contemporaneous consideration will be conducive to the proper di spatch of its business and to the ends of justice and will not unduly delay the proceedings . [Eff 10/27
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp :
	--~~~ =----=-~----,
	-

	HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-55 St at eme nts of position. No later than 
	47 
	thirty days after the postmarked date of notice that the petition has been deemed a proper filing, the state office of planning and appropriate county planni ng department, and any intervenor, or person or legal entity who filed a timely notice of intent to i ntervene and whose intervention petition is still pending, s hall file· with t he commission a statement of position with a summary of reasons in support or opposition, including without limitation, a statement describing the respective positions of an
	5/8/00; am and comp _1_1~/~2~/~2~0~1_3_;...,..,.-c_o~m~p=-=-=,--c----,,-,=-=--=-:--(Auth : HRS-§§205-1, 205-7, SLH 1995, Act 235, §2) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4 , SLH 1995, Act 235, §1) 
	~' 
	-

	§15-15-55.1 Filing of exhibits. (a) No later than twenty-five days prior to t he date set for hearing pursuant to section 15-15-51, or as specified in a prehearing order issued in accordance with section 1515-57, all parties shall submit all exhibits to substanti ate their position on the boundary amendment . 
	-

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	No later than twenty-five days prior to the schedul ed hearing pursuant to section 15-15-51, or as specified in a prehearing order issued in accordance with section 15-15-57, all intervenors granted intervention shall submit all exhibits to substantiate their positi on on the boundary amendment petition. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Each party shall have the opportunity to provide further response to address the exhibits submitted or amended pleadings up to twenty days prior to the hearing date set pur suant to section 15-15-51 or as specified in a prehearing order issued in accordance with section 15-15-57 . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Any amendments to pleadings shall be submitted pursuant to secti on 15-15-43 . [Eff and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11 /2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7 , SLH 1995, Act 235, §2) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4, SLH 1995, Act 235, §1) 


	§15-15-56 Stipulations. All parties may ·enter into appropriate stipulations as to testimony, exhibits, findings of fact, conclusions of law, and conditions of reclassification concerning the proposed boundary amendment as follows : 
	(1) A petitioner who desires to enter into a stipulation shall prepare a proposed 
	Figure
	stipulation as to any or all testimony, exhibits, proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, and conditions of reclassi ficatio0 concerning the proposed boundary amendment ; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	All parties shall sign the proposed stipulation as to any or all testimony, exhibits, proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, conditions of reclassification, and a proposed decision and order, if at all, and shall submit such stipulation to the commission at least fourteen business days the hearing 
	prior.to 


	date; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	At the hearing, the commission may approve or deny the proposed stipulation and proposed decision and order i n whole or in part, or the commission may require the parties to submi t additional evidence concerning the proposed stipul ation and proposed decision and order; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The commission may approve the proposed decision and order by amending or adopting the proposed decision and order. The commission shall issue a decision and order pursuant to provisions of sections 15-15-36 and 15-15-74 and section 205-4(g), HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS 
	§205-4) 
	§205-4) 
	§205 4) 
	§15-15-57 Prehe aring conference; exchange of . exhibits; prehearing conference order. (a) The chairperson, presiding officer, or the executive officer shall be authorized to hold one or more prehearing conferences with the parties for the ·purpose of identifying the issues, identif ying the positions of t he parties, arranging for the exchange of proposed exhibits or proposed written testimony, setting of schedules, exchanging names of witnesses, limitation of number of witnesses, determining the extent of
	conference . 
	(b) The chairperson, presiding officer, or t he executive officer may issue a prehearing conference order t hat shall establish a schedule for the. mutual exchange of exhibits and identification of wi tnesses, The prehearing conference order shall insure that all parties will be provided an opportunity to actively participate in the hearing. No party shall be allowed to present additional exhibits or witnesses that are material or substantial and not identified within the schedule provided by the prehearing
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
	-=----=-=-=--==----=--=--=--=-
	-

	HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-58 Procedure for witnesses. (a) The commission may subpoena witnesses as set forth in section 15-15-69 . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Together with other witnesses that the commission may desire to hear at the hearing, the commission shall also allow a representative of a citizen or community group to testify, who indicates a desire to express the views of those citizen or community group concerning the proposed boundary amendment. Anyone who desires to testify shall make written application to be a witness prior to the hearing and, i f the person desires to express the views of a citizen or community group, shall submit written evidence 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The presiding officer shall place witnesses under oath or affirmation prior to testifying . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 


	§15-15-59 Conduct of hearing. (a) The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with thi s subchapter . Unless otherwise provided by law, the party initiating the proceeding shall have the burden of proof, including the burden of producing evi dence and the burden of persuasion. 
	(b) The presiding officer shalI convene the 
	hearing and summarize the proceeding. 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Before presenting the case, the parties shall have the opportunity to make opening statements in the order in which they present witnesses . Opening statements may be waived . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Unless otherwise directed by the presiding officer, witnesses shall be called i n the following order in a district boundary amendment proceeding: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Wiinesses for the petitioner; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Witnesses for the county planning department; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Witnesses for the state office of planning; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Witnesses for each intervenor, in the order in which intervention was granted; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Rebuttal witnesses for the petitioner; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	·Additional witnesses as the presiding officer may determi ne. 



	(
	(
	e) Witnesses shall be examined in t he following order : 


	. ( 1) Direct examination by the party calling the witness; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Cross-examination by the other parties; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Examination by the presiding officer or any member of the commission; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Redirect examination by the party calling the witness; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Recross examination by the other parties; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Reexamination by the presidin~ officer or any member of the commission . 


	(f) After all parties have presented their cases through testimony and exhibits, all parties may provide closing statements in the order in which they presented witnesses; provided that petitioner may make a rebuttal closing statement. Closing statements may be waived. 
	[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§ 15-15-60 Presidi ng officer. (a) Notwithstanding section 15-15-06, in all hearings before the commission, the chairperson, a vice-chairperson, one of the other commissioners, or a hearings officer appointed by the commission shall preside at the hearing. 
	(b) The presiding officer shall convene the hearing and briefly state the nature of the case, control the schedule and course of the hearings, administer oaths and affirmations, receive evidence, 
	(b) The presiding officer shall convene the hearing and briefly state the nature of the case, control the schedule and course of the hearings, administer oaths and affirmations, receive evidence, 
	hold appropriate conferences before and during 

	hearings, rule upon all objections or motions which do 
	not involve a final determination of the proceedings, 
	receive offers of proof, and fix the time for the 
	filing of briefs or proposed findings of fact, 
	conclusions of law and decisions and orders and 
	responses or objections thereto, dispose of any other 
	matter that normally and properly arises in the course 
	of a hearing, and take al l other actions authorized by 
	law that are deemed necessary to the orderly and just 
	conduct of a hearing. 
	(c) The presiding officer may postpone or continue any hearing upon a moti on of any party without a hearing. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-61 Disqualification. No commissioner or hearings of ficer shall sit in any pr oceeding in which the commissioner or hearings officer has a personal pecuniary or business interest, or one in which the commissioner or hearings officer is related within the first degree by blood or marriage to any part y to the proceeding. However, i f, after declaring the nature of the circumstances of the pecuniary interest or consanguinity to the parties, and the parties do not oppose the commi ssi oner or hearings o
	§15-15-62 Ex parte communications. (a) No person whether or not a party to a proceeding before the commission shall make an unauthorized ex parte communication either oral or written about the pr oceeding to any member of the commission or hearings officer who will be a participant in the decision-making process or the executive officer. 
	(b) The following classes of ex par te communications are permitted: 
	(1) Communications which r e l ate solely to matte rs which a commission member or he arings officer is authorized by the commission to di spose of 
	on an ex parte basis, including 
	communications regarding scheduling or other procedural matters regarding the course of the proceeding; 
	·(2) Requests for informati on with respect to the status of~ proceeding; 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Communications which all parties to the proceedi ng agree or which the commission has formally ruled may be made on an ex parte basis; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Communications with representatives of any news media on matters intended to inform the general public. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; .am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-13, 205-4) 


	§ 15-15-63 Evidence . (a) In contested cases, evidentiary requirements shall be controlled by this section. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Any oral or documentary evidence may be received, but the commission shall as a matter of policy provide for the exclusion of irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence and-no sanction shal l be imposed or rule or order be issued except upon consideration of the whole record or such portions thereof as may be cited by any party and as supported by and in accordance with the reliable, probative, and substantial evidence. The commission shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized . by l

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The presiding officer shall rule on the admissibility of all evidence . The rulings may be reviewed by the commission in determining the matter on its merits. In extraordinary circumstances, where prompt decision by the commission is necessary to promote justice, the presiding officer may refer the matter to the commission for determination . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	When objections are made to the admissi on or exclusion of evidence, the objecting party shall briefly state the grounds relied upon . Formal exceptions to rulings are unnecessary and need not be taken. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	An offer of proof for the record shall consist of a state.ment of the substance of t he evidence to which obj ection has been sustained. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	With the approval of the presiding officer, a witness may read into the record the testimony of a witness on direct examination. Before any written testimony is read, unless excused by the presiding officer, the witness shall provide an original and one paper copy and one e l ectronic copy of the written testimony to the chief clerk, with a copy to each party to the proceeding. Admissibility shall be subject to the rules governing oral testimony . If the presiding officer deems that substantial saving in ti

	(g) 
	(g) 
	Documentary evidence may be received in the form of copies or excerpts if the original is not readily available; provided that upon request parties shall be given an opportunity to compare the copy wi th the original . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Exhibits shall be legible and may be prepared on paper not exceeding 8-1/2 x 11 in9hes in size or bound or folded to the respective approximate size, where practical. Where practicable, sheets of each exhibit shall be numbered and data and other figures shall be set f orth in tabular form. When exhibi ts are offered in evidence, t he party shall furnish the original, one paper copy and one electronic copy of the exhibits to the chief clerk with a copy to each party to the proceeding, unless copies have been

	(i) 
	(i) 
	A party may use maps or other demonstrative exhibits as evidence provided the parti es submit the number of ·1egible copi es as may be required by the presiding officer. The commi ssion shall not permit the introduction of or t estimony from any visual aid not introduced a s evidence . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	If any matter contained i n the petition or in a document filed as a public record with t he commission is offered in evidence, unless direct ed otherwise by the presiding officer, the document need not be produced as an exhibit, but may be received in evidence by reference, provided that the particular portions of 


	the document are specifically identified and are otherwise competent, relevant, and material . If testimony in proceedings other than the one being heard is offered in evi dence, a copy shall be presented as an exhibit, unless otherwise ordered by the presiding officer. 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	The commission may take official notice of matters as may be judicially noticed by the courts of the State of Hawai'i. Official notice may also be taken of generally recognized technical or scientific facts within the commission ' s specialized knowledge when parties are given notice either before or during the hearing of the material so noticed and afforded the opportunity to contest the facts so noticed. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	At the hearing, the presiding officer may require the production of further evidence through testimony or exhibits upon any issue. The presiding officer may authorize the filing of specific documentary evidence as a part of the record after the close of the hearing, subject to the rights of the parties to request reopening of the hearing within a specified time after the receipt of such evidence, or may keep the hearing open until such time as evidence is received by the commission. Upon agreement of the pa


	provided that there is no objection from any party, and no request to cross-examine by any party or a request to answer questions by a commissioner. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2 , 91-10, 205-4) 
	§15-15-64 REPEALED . [*R--R 11/2/2013] 
	§15-15-65 Limiting testimony . To avoid unnecessary cumulative evidence, the presiding officer may limit the number of witnesses or the time for testimony upon a particular issue . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
	~H=R=s---=§§=9=1~-~2~,-----,2~0~5,-----4) 
	§15-15-66 Removal from proceeding. Any person who wilfully disrupts a hearing or other proceeding may be removed from the hearing room. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2 , 92-3, 205-4) 
	§15-15-67 Co-counsel. Where a party is represented by more than one attorney or representative, only one of the attorneys or representatives shall be permitted to make an opening statement, or to examine or cross-examine a particular witness or to state any objections or to make closing statements, unless otherwise authorized by the presiding officer. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and.comp comp 11/2/2013; comp ] -(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
	HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 
	§15-15-68 REPEALED . [R 11/2--/2013) 
	§15-15-69 Subpoenas. (a) Any party may file a written motion for the issuance of a subpoena requiring the attendance of a witness for the purpose of taking 
	oral 
	oral 
	oral 
	testimony before the commissi on, which motion shall not require a hearing . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Motions for the issuance of subpoenas duces tecum shall: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Be in writing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Specify t he particular document or record, or part thereof, desired to be produced; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	State the reasons why the production thereof is believed to be material and relevant to the issues involved; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Include a statement of the reasons why the testimony of the witness is believed to be material and relevant to the issues involved. 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	Three original copies of the subpoenas duces tecum shall be submitted together wi'th the motion filed pursuant to subsection (b) . 


	(d) The presiding officer, chairperson, or in the 





	IV. New Bus D. HAR 15-15 Land Use Commission - Part 2
	Structure Bookmarks
	chairperson ' s absence , any commissioner, may issue subpoenas. Subpoenas shall not be i ssued unless the party requesting the subpoena has compl ied with thi s section. Signed and sealed blank subpoenas shall not be issued to any person. The name and address of the witness shall be insert e d i n the original subpoena, a copy of which shall be filed in the proceeding. Subpoenas shall show at whose instance the subpoena is issued. 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	A party requesting the subpoenas shall be responsible for service of the issued subpoenas, and pay t he witnesses summoned the same fees and mileage as are paid wi t nesses i n c i rcuit courts of t he State of Hawai' i, and the fees and mileage shall be paid by the party at whose ins~ance the wi tness appears . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Notwithstandi ng any rule to the contrary, t h e chairperson, a commissi oner, or a duly-appointed hearings officer may make an oral motion to request the issuance of a subpo.ena . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp :
	-----~--~ 
	HRS §§91-2, 92-16, 205-4) 
	§15-15-70 Motions. (a) Any party may make motions before, during , or after the close of a hearing. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All motions, other than those made during a hearing, shall : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Be in writing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	State the grounds for the motion; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Set forth the relief or order sought ; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Be accompanied by a memorandum in s upport of the motion, if the motion i nvolves a question of law; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Be filed with the commission at least ten business days before the next regularly scheduled meeting of the commission. 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	Every motion, except one entitled to be heard ex parte, shall indicate whether a hearing is requested on t he motion. If a motion requires the consideration of facts not appearing of record, it shall be supported by affidavits or declarations . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The moving party shall ser ve a copy of all motion paper s on all ·other parties and shall file the original plus one paper copy and one electronic copy with the commission and proof of service . The number and format of copies required under this section may be modified by order of the commissi on . 


	57 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The opposing party or parties shall serve on all ot her parties and file counter affidavits and memorandums in opposition to the motion and of the authorities relied upon not l ater than seven days after being served with any written motion, or, if the hearing on the motion will occur less than seven days after the motion is served, at least forty-eight.hours before the time set for hearing, unless otherwise ordered by the chai rperson, chairperson ' s designee, or s designee, or hearings officer may order 
	hearings officer. The chairperson, chairperson 
	1 


	(f) 
	(f) 
	Any party who does not oppose a motion or who· intends to support a motion or who desires a continuance shall notify the commission, through the executive of ficer, and the opposing counsel within seven days aft er being served or, if the hearing on the mot ion will occur less than seven days after the motion is served, wit hin forty-eight hours before the time set for hearing . 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	Failure to serve or f ile memoranda in opposition to a motion or fai lure to appear at the hearing may be deemed a waiver of objection to the granting or denial of the motion. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Motions tha~ do not involve the final det ermination of a proceeding may be heard and det ermine d by the chair person, commissioner, or heari ngs officer. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	If a hearing is requested, the executive officer shall set a date and time for hearing on t he motion . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	If a hearing on the motion i s not requested, t he commission may decide the matter upon the pleadings, memoranda, and other documents filed with the commission, or hold a hearing on the matter . 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	Any moti on, except a moti on for relief f rom or release of conditions submitted by the same party or parties and based upon substantially the same grounds as a previous motion that has been considered by the commission or denied by the commission shall not be again considered. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	After the hearing on the evidence is closed, but before the commission votes on a decision, a party for good cause shown may move to re-open the hearing to 


	58 
	take newly discovered evi dence . The motion shall specify the facts claimed to constitute good cause, including material changes of fact or of law alleged to have occurred since the closing of the hearing and shall provi de a descri pti on of the proposed additional evidence and an explanation of why the newly discovered evidence was not previ ousl y adduced. The party filing the motion shall be responsibl e for fees and costs pursuant to section 15-15-45 .1. 
	(m) Orders granti ng, denying or otherwise disposing of motions, [except]including motions to amend decisions and orders rel ating to district boundary amendments and to special permits, [ma-y]shall be signed by the chairperson or any vice chairperson, or t he p r esiding officer, or the hearings officer, as the case may be. [Orders granting, denying, or otherwise disposing of motions relating to amendments of decisions and orders in district boundary amendment proceedings and to special permits shall be si
	HRS §§91-2 , 205-4) 
	§15-15-70.l Protective orders. Any party or any person may move for a protective order to protect the confidentiality of information that is protected from disclosure under chapter 92F, HRS, or by other law. A motion for protecti ve order shall specifically identify the document or information to be protected. The movant shall bear the burden of establishing that the information should be protected. Sti pul9tions for protective or der, subject to the commi ssion's approval, 
	may 
	may 
	may 
	be 
	filed in lieu o f 
	motions 
	for protective orders. 
	· 

	[Eff and comp 
	[Eff and comp 
	11/2/2013; 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth : 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§§205-1, 
	205-7) 


	§15-15-71 Substitution of parties . Upon moti on and for good cause shown, the commission may order substitution of parties, except that in the case of death of a party, substitution may be ordered without the filing of a motion . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; -comp ~1_1~/~2~/~-2~0~1~3~;----,-c_o_m~p----=-=-==------=-:,:-;:-----=--~ ~--:;-:-
	-

	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §91-2, 205-4) 
	§15-15-72 Correction of transcript. The 
	chairperson, presiding of ficer, or hearings officer 
	shall determine any motion at the hearing to correct 
	the transcript . Any motions after the hearing to 
	correct the t ranscript shall be fil ed with the 
	commission within seven days after receipt of the 
	transcript unless otherwi se directed, and shall be 
	served on all parties . Such·motions shall certify the 
	date when the t r anscript was received. If no 
	objections are received before seven days after the 
	date of service, the transcript, upon approval of the 
	commission, shall be changed to reflect the 
	corrections . [Eff 10/27 /86; am and comp 8/16/97; 
	comp 5/8/00; comp ~1~1~/~2~/~2~0~1~3~;----=c~o_m~p'-------,--,,-,,--=--,---
	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (I mp : HRS §91-2) 
	§ 15-15-73 Post hearing procedures. Post hearing 
	procedures shall conform to subchapters 9 and 10. [Ef f 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205
	-

	7 ) (Imp : HRS § 91-2 ) 
	§15-15-74 Decision. (a) For district boundary amendment petitions filed before December 31, 1995, 
	-within a period of not more than one hundred twenty 
	days after the close of the hearing, unless otherwise 
	ordered by the court, the commission, by filing 
	findings of fact and conclusions of law, shall 
	act to approve the petition, deny the petition, or to 
	modify the petition by imposing conditions in 
	accordance with subchapter 11 . 
	(b) For district boundary amendment petitions filed on or after July 14, 1998, prior to a period of not more than three hundred sixty-five days after the petition has been deemed a proper filing by the commission or the executive officer, unless otherwise ordered by a court, or unless a time extension, not to exceed ninety days, is establi shed by a two-thirds vote of the members of the commission, the commission, by filing f i ndings of fact and conclusions of law, shall act to approve the petition, deny t
	60 
	to act on the petition pursuant to section 205-4(g), HRS, the petition shall be deemed approved, subject to the provisions of section 15-15-90(e) . 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	7] and (b) , decisions for petitions submitted pursuant to section 201H-38, HRS, shall be made i n the timeframe as provided in section 15-15-97 . 
	Notwithstanding subsections (a) [


	(d) 
	(d) 
	Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) , decisions on acceptance or non-acceptance of environmental compliance documents submitted pursuant to chapter 343, HRS, shall be made within thirty days of receipt of the final statement, provided that the period may be extended at the request of the applicant for a period not to exceed fifteen days . Notification of a determination of acceptance or non-acceptance will be by letter from the executive officer to the applicant and office of environmental quality contr


	§15-15-75 Appeals. Parties to proceedings to amend land use district boundaries may obtain judicial 
	[reviews]review as provided in section 205-19, HRS . [thereof in the manner set forth in section 91 14 , HRS . ] [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§~91-14, 20_5-4, 205-19) 
	§15-15-76 Re-application by the petitioner for boundary amendment. (a) The commission shall not accept any petition for boundary amendment covering substantially the same request for substantially the same land as had previously been denied by the commi ssion withi n one year of the date of filing findings ·of fact and conclusions of law denying the petition unless the petitioner submits significant new data or additional reasons which substantially strengthen the petiti oner ' s pos~tion, provided that in 
	(b) Additionally, the commission shall not accept 
	any petition for boundary amendment for the same request involving the same land that was before the commi ssion and withdrawn voluntarily by the petitioner within one year of the date of the withdrawal . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §91-2) 
	SUBCHAPTER 8 
	DECISION-MAKING CRITERIA FOR BOUNDARY AMENDMENTS 
	§15-15-77 Decision-maki ng criteria for boundary amendments. (a) The commission shall not approve an amendment .of a land use district boundary unless the commission finds upon the clear preponderance of the evidence that the proposed boundary amendment is reasonable, is not violative of section 205-2, HRS, and is consistent with the policies and criteria established pursuant to sections _205-16, 205-17 , and 205A-2, HRS . 
	(b) In its review of any petition for amendment of district boundaries pursuant to this ~hapter, the commission shall specifically consider the fol lowing: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The extent to which the proposed boundary amendment conforms to the applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the Hawai 'i state plan and relates to the applicable priority guidelines of the Hawai'i state plan and the adopted functional plans; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The extent to which the proposed boundary amendment conforms to the applicable district standards; . 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	The impact of the proposed boundary amendment on the following areas of state concern: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Preservation or maintenance of important natural· systems or habitats; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Preservation and [H]maintenance] maintenance of valuea cultural i esource~ and activities, and, historical, 9r ·natural resources , including water resource uses; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Maintenance of other natural resources 




	·relevant to Hawai'i ' s economy including, but not limited to agricultural resources; 
	(D) 
	(D) 
	(D) 
	Commitment of state funds and resources; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Provision for employment opportunities and economic development; and 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	Provision for housing opportunities for all income groups, particularly the low, low-moderate, and gap groups; 


	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	In establishing the boundaries of the districts in each county, the commission shall give consideration to the general plan, and community, development, or community development plans of the cqunty in which the land is located; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The representations and commi tments made by the petitioner in securing a boundary amendment, including a finding that the petitioner has the necessary economic ability to carry out the representations and commitments relating to the proposed use or development; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	(6) 
	Lands in intensive agricultural, use for two years prior to date of filing of a petition or lands with a high capacity for intensive agricultural use shall not be taken out of the agricultural district unless the commission finds either that the action : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Will not substantially impair actual or potential agricultural production in the vicinity of the subject property or in the county or State; or 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Is reasonably necessary for urban growth; and 



	(7) 
	(7) 
	.In considering boundary amendments for lands designated important agricultural lands pursuant to part III, chaptir 205, HRS, the commission shall specifically consider the standards and criteria set forth in s~ction 205-50, HRS . 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Amendments of a land use district boundary in conservation districts involving land areas fifteen acres or less shall be determined by the commission pursuant to this subsection and section 205-3 . 1, HRS . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Amendments of a land use dist rict boundary in other than conservation districts involving land areas fifteen acres or less shall be determined by the appropriate county land use decision-making authority for the district. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Amendments of a land use district boundary involving land areas greater than fifteen acres shall be determined by the commission, pursuant to this subsection and section 205-3.1, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am 


	and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-3 . 1, 205-4 , 205-16, 205-17) 
	§ 15-15-78 Incremental districting. (a) If it appears to the commission that full development of the subj ect property cannot substantially be completed within ten years after the date of the commission ' s approval and t hat t he incremental development plan 
	. submitted by the petitioner can be substantially completed, and if the commission is satisfied that all ot her pertinent criteria for amending the land use boundary for the subject property or part thereof are 
	present, 
	present, 
	present, 
	t hen the commission may : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Grant the petitioner' s 
	request 
	to amend 
	the 

	TR
	land use 
	boundary for the entire subject 

	TR
	property; 
	or 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Amend the land 
	use 
	boundary for only that 


	portion of the subject property which the 
	_ _ __..petitioner plans to develop first and upon 
	_ __which it appears that s ubstantial development can be completed within ten years after the date of the commission ' s approval . At the same time, the commission shall indicate its approval of the future land use boundary amendment of the total subject ·property requested by the petitioner, or so much 
	thereof as shall be justified as appropriate 
	therefor by the petitioner, such approval to 
	indicate a schedule of incremental land use 
	boundary amendments over successive periods 
	not to exceed ten years each. The commission 
	may amend the land use boundary of the 
	subject property, if it finds such an 
	aamendment is justified.
	....,..,..--,--
	-

	(b) In amending a l and use district boundary on an incremental basis, in addition to standards in this subchapter, the commiss_ion may consider projected population growth for the prea, other lands that have received boundary amendments in the area, the availabi lity of and impacts on resources, and the desirability of directing growth and development to the area over a long term basis . 
	· (c) Upon receipt of an application for boundary amendment for the second and subsequent increments of property for which previous approval for incremental development has been granted by the commission, substantial compJetion of any offsite and onsite 
	improvements of the development, in accordance with the approved incremental plan, of the preceding increment that received boundary amendment will be prima facie proof that the approved incremental plan complies with the requirements for boundary amendment . 
	(d) The following are procedures for processing incremental boundary amendment applications : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The petitioner shall file an original, one paper copy and one electronic copy of an application to approve the second or subsequent increments utilizing the same docket number as the original petition. The number and format of copies required under this section may be modified by order of the commission; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The petitioner shall serve copies of the application on all parties of record in the original proceeding; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The application Shall include facts, affidavits or decl arations, and other documentation, including a metes and bounds description and map, in support of the fact that t he petitioner has substantially completed offsite and onsite improvements, complied with chapter .343, HRS, where applicable, and complied with conditions of the commission approval i n accordance wit h the approved incremental plan of the preceding increment receiving a boundary amendment; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A prehearing conference may be conducted pursuant to section 15-15-57; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A notice of hearing shall be published notifying the public of the time and place the application will be considered by the commission and will provide for the admission of public witnesses; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	The procedures for hearing the application will be subject to the timeframes presently existing for district boundary amendments , and the provisions of section 15-15-13; and 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	The petitioner shall provide notice of the application to all persons having a property interest in the increment for which a l and use district boundary amendment is · sought . 


	[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : §205-4) 
	§15-15-79 Performance time . (a) Petitioners granted district boundary amendments shall. make substantial progress within a reasonable period, as specified by the commissi on, from the date of approval of the boundary amendment, in developing the property receivi ng the boundary amendment . The commission may act to amend, nullify, change, or reverse its decision and order if the petitioner fails to perform as represented to the commission within t .he spec{fied period. 
	(b) The commissi on may provide by condition that absent substantial commencement of use of the subject propert y or substantial progress in developing the land receiving the boundary amendment in accordance with representations and commitments made by the petitioner to the.commission, the commission shall issue and serve upon the party bound by t he condition an order to show cause why the property should not revert to its former land use district classification or be changed to a more appropriate land use
	-(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-4, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-4) 
	SUBCHAPTER 9 
	POST HEARING PROCEDURES FOR HEARINGS BEFORE THE COMMISSION 
	§15-15-80 Briefs . The presiding of ficer may fix the time for the filing of briefs . Exhibits may be reproduced in an appendix to a brief. A brief of more than twenty pages shall contain a subjert index and table of authorities . Requests for extension of time to file briefs must be made to the commission in writing with one original, one paper copy, and one electronic copy filed with the commission, and a copy served upon or mailed to the parties to the proceeding . Ordinarily, when a matter is to be subm
	66 
	[Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] -(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	§15~15-81 Oral argument. The commission or the presiding officer may direct or permit the presentation of oral argument with the petitioner opening and concluding the argument . Not more than fifteen minutes on each side of the proceeding s hall be allowed for argument without special leave of the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1 , 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-9, 205-4) 
	§15-15-82 I ssuance of decisions and orde rs . (a) A proceeding shall stand submitted for decision by the commission after t he taking of eyidence, and the fil ing of briefs or the presentation of oral argument as may have been prescri bed by the presiding officer or heari ngs officer. The petitioner · [Each party to the proceeding] The petitioner shall submit a proposed decision and order which shall include proposed findings of fact , conclusions of law, and proposed conditions; all other parties may subm
	e rder filed with the commission. [thereon. ] 
	(b) A commission member may prepare a proposed findings of fact and conclusions of l aw, and serve the document ·upon each party not less than ten business days prior to the meeting at which the proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be 
	(b) A commission member may prepare a proposed findings of fact and conclusions of l aw, and serve the document ·upon each party not less than ten business days prior to the meeting at which the proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be 
	presented. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, each party may provide its position on the commission members ' proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law within five business days from'the date of service . Any party providing .its position shall provide a summary of its reasons for support or objection. · 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Every decision and order adverse to a party to the proceeding, rendered by the commission in a contested case, shall be accompanied by separate findings of fact and conclusions of law . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decision and order shall be issued by the commission for district boundary amendment s and special permits deemed approved pursuant to section 91-13 . 5, HRS . The decision and order shall include mandatory conditions pursuant to section 15-15-90(e) . For orders determining the acceptability of environmental compliance documents pursuant to chapter 343, HRS , the chair or presiding officer shall sign for the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; am and co


	§15-15-82.1 Stipulation as to findings of fact, conclusions of law, conditions of boundary amendment, and decision and order. After the close of the evidentiary portion of the hearing, some or all parties may enter into stipulations as to findings of fact, conclusions of l aw, conditi ons of boundary amendment , and decision and order concerning the proposed boundary amendment .as follows : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	A petitioner who desires to enter into a stipulation shall prepare a proposed stipulation as to any or a l l findings of fact, conclusions of law, conditions of boundary amendment, and decision and order concerning the proposed boundary amendment; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Parties in agreement with a stipulation shall sign the proposed stipulation as to any or all proposed findings of fact , conclusions of l aw, conditions of boundary amendment, and a proposed decision and order, and shall submit such stipulation to the commission within the t ime frame specified by the commission; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	After the hearing, the commission may adopt 


	68 
	the proposed stipulation, and if it adopts the stipulated decision and order the commission may amend, accept, modify or reject in part or in ·whole any of the findings of fact, conclusions of law, conditi ons of boundary amendment, and anything else contained in the stipulation; 
	(4) The commission shall issue a decision and order pursuant to provisions of sections 1515-36 and 15-15-74 and section 205-4(g), HRS . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] 
	-

	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	§15-15-83 Se rvice of decisions and orders. The commission shall serve the decisions and orders by personal delivery or mailing certified copies to the parties of record. The effective date of the decision and order is the date certified by the executive offi cer. When a party to a proceeding has appeared by 
	·a representative, service upon· the representat ive or attorney shall be deemed to be service up·on the party. 
	[Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp.5/8/00; am and comp ll/2/2013,; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-12, 205-4) 
	§15-15-84 Reconsideration of decis·ion. (a) A motion for reconsideration shall be filed with the commission within seven calendar days after issuance of the commission ' s written decision and order. The motion for reconsideration shall clearly specify that the motion is for reconsideration. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The motion for reconsideration shall state specifically the grounds on which t he movant considers the decision or order unreasonable, unlawful, or erroneous . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	In no event will the commission consider any motion for reconsideration on any petition after the period within which the commission is required to act on the petition. [Eff 10/27/8 6; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 
	SUBCHAPTER 10 
	69 
	POST HEARING PROCEDURES FOR HEARING CONDUCTED BY HEARINGS OFFICER 
	§15-15-85 -Recommended decision. (a) Upon completion of taking of t he evidence, the hearings officer may request the parties to submit a proposed findings of fact, conclusions of l aw, and decision and order, consisting of one origi nal, one paper copy, and one electronic copy . Proposed decision and orders submitted s hall be served upon each party to the proceeding and an opportunity given to each party to comment thereon . Upon receipt of the proposed decisi on anp orders and any comments from the parti
	(b) The record shall include the petition and other pleadings, noti ce of hearing, motions, rulings, orders, transcript of the hearing, stipulations, documentary evidence, offers of proof, proposed findings, or other documents submitted by the parti es, all matters placed in evidence, objections to the conduct of the hearing, the recommended decision of t he hearings officer, and all other matters p l aced in evidence. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp ~1~1~/~2~/~2~0~1~3~;---=c~o~
	(Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	§15-15-85.1 Proposed decision. Upon receipt of the hearings offi cer's recommended decision, the commission may adopt it as its proposed decision, or may remand i t to t he hearings officer f or any clarification or correction, or may .modify or reject i t and issue its own proposed decision. 
	A copy of any proposed decision of t he commission 
	shall be served upon 
	shall be served upon 
	shall be served upon 
	each party. 
	[Eff 
	and comp 

	11/2/2013; 
	11/2/2013; 
	comp 
	] (Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§205-1, 

	205-7) 
	205-7) 


	§15-15-86 Exceptions; extension of time; fi nality of proposed decision. (a) Within fourteen calendar days after the date of mailing or personal service of a 
	70 
	copy of the commission ' s proposed decision, a party may file with the commission exceptions to any part thereof and request review by the commission . Such party shall serve copies of exceptions and briefs upon each party to the proceeding. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The exceptions shall: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Set forth specifically the questions of procedure, fact, law, or poli cy, to which exceptions are taken; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Identify that part of the proposed decision to which objections are made; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Designate by page citation the portions of the record relied upon and specify authorities relied upon to sustain each point; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	State all the grounds for exceptions to a ruling, finding, or conclusion. Grounds not cited or specifically urged are waived . 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Any party may apply for an extension of time within which to file exceptions to the proposed decision by filing a written application setting forth the reason for the request . The application shall be filed before the expiration of the period prescribed for the filing of exceptions . Upon good cause shown, the execut ive officer may extend the time for filing exceptions for an additional period not to exceed ten 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	calendar days . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	If no exceptions and request for review are filed within the time specified, the proposed decision shall become final , unless the commission, on its own motion, orders further proceedings to be held. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-11, 205-4) 


	§15-15-87 Support of hearings officer's recommended decision. (a) Within seven days after service of the exceptions taken to tha proposed decision, any party may file with the commission a brief opposing the exceptions . Such party shall serve copies of the brief in support upon each party to the proceedi ng 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The brief opposing exceptions shall: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Answer speci fically the points of procedure, fact , law, or policy to which exceptions were taken; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	State the facts and reasons why the proposed decision must be affirmed; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Designate by page citation the portions of 


	the record relied upon . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-11, 205-4) 
	§15-15-88 Argument on exceptions. Upon the 
	filing of exceptions by a party adversely a ffected by 
	the proposed decision, t he commission shall grant such 
	party an opportunity to present arguments to the 
	commission. The executive officer, with direction from 
	the chairperson, shall set the time and place of 
	hearing 6f argument on exceptions and give written 
	notice to the parties. [Eff 10/27/8 6; am and comp 
	8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : 
	-,----::-:=-=-:,--~-~
	-

	HRS §§91-10, 91-11, 205-4) 
	§15-15-89 Final decision. (a) When exceptions 
	have been filed to the commission ' s proposed decision, 
	the commission, within forty-five days after the 
	hearing on exceptions, shall render its final decision. 
	In rendering its final decision, the commission shall consider the whole record or s uch portions thereof as may be cited by the parties and shall resolve all questions of fact by what it deems to be the greater weight of the evidence thereon . The final decision shall contain findings of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision is based. 
	(b) After the commission has heard and examined all of the evidence, the commission, shall issue its decision within fort y-five days after receiving the evidence, or filing of any memoranda or proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law upon which the decision is based. [Eff 10/27/86·; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7)
	-,-,-------,----=-=-=,..,,.----=---=-=-
	-

	( I rnp : HRS §§91-2, 92-16) 
	SUBCHAPTER 11 
	CONDITIONS : FILING, ENFORCEMENT, MODIFICATION, DELETION 
	§15-15-90 Imposition of conditions; genera l l y. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	In approving a petition for boundary amendment, the commission may impose conditions necessary to uphold the general intent and spirit of chapters 205, 205A, and 226, HRS, and to assure substantial compliance with representations made by the petitioner in seeking the boundary amendment . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The commission may request the appropriate state or county agency to report periodicall y to the s compliance with the applicable conditions imposed by the commission . 
	commi ssion on the petitioner 
	1 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	The commission may require the petitioner to submit periodic reports indicating what· progress has been made in complying with any conditions that may have been imposed by the commission. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	The commission may require the petitioner to notify the commission of any intent to sell, lease, assign, place in trust, or otherwise voluntarily alter the ownership interests in the property covered by the approved petition. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	If a boundary amendment p~tition filed pursuant to. section 205-4, HRS, is approved pursuant to section 91-13.5, HRS, or a petition filed pursuant to section 201H-38 , HRS , is deemed approved on the fortysixth day, the following mandatory conditions shall apply: 

	(
	(
	(
	1) Petitioner shall develop the land to which the boundary amendment applies in substantial compliance with the representations made to the commission . Failure to so develop the subject property may result in reversion of the subject property to its former land use district classification, or change it to a more appropriate land use district classification; 

	(
	(
	2) Petitioner shall provide notice to the commission of any intent to sell, lease, assign, place in trust, or otherwise voluntarily alter the ownership interests in the subject property prior to or during development of t he subject pr operty, excluding, however, individual lot sales or lease in a residential or industrial development ; 

	(
	(
	3) P,etitioner shall timely provide without any prior notice, annual reports to the commission, state office of planning, and the 




	respective county planning department in connection with the s t atus of the project 
	proposed for t0e land to which the boundary 
	amendment applies, and petitioner' s progress 
	in complying with the conditions imposed . 
	The annual report shall be submitted in a 
	form prescribed by t he executive officer of 
	the commission. The annual report shall 
	consist of one original, one paper copy, and 
	one electronic copy, and shall be due prior 
	to or on the anniversary date of the approval 
	of the petition; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	The commission may f ully or partially release the conditions provided-herein as to all or any portion of the land to which t he boundary amendment applies upon timely motion and upon the provision of adequate assurance by the petitioner of satisfaction of the conditions imposed; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	Within seven days of the approval dat e of the petition, the petitioner shall: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Record with the bureau of conveyances a s tatement that the l and to which the boundary amendment applies is subject to conditions imposed herein by the commission; and 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	File a certified copy of such recorded statement with the commission; 



	(6) 
	(6) 
	Petitioner shall record the conditions imposed herein by the commission with the bureau of conveyances pursuant to section 1515-92; 
	-


	(7) 
	(7) 
	Petitioner shall provide affordable housing opportunities for low, low-moderate, and moderate income residents of the State of Hawai'i to the satisfaction of the respective county in which the land to which the boundary amendment appli es is located . The respective county shall consult with the Hawai'i housing finance and development 


	. corporation prior to its approval of the petitioner's affordable housing plan . The location and distribution of the affordable housing or other provisions for affordable housing shall be under such terms as may be mutually agreeable between the petitioner and the respective count y; 
	(8) Provided that the proposed land uses ·include residential units, petitioner shall contribute to the development, funding, and 
	74 
	construction of public school facilities as determined by an'd to the satisfaction of the state department of education; 
	(
	(
	(
	9) Petitioner shall participate in the funding and construction of adequate wastewater transmission and disposal facilities, on a fair-share basis, as determined by the respective county in which the land to which the boundary amendment applies is located, and the state department of health; 

	(
	(
	10) (10) Petitioner shall prepare a traffic 


	-,----'--'---
	-

	impact analysis report . The traffic impact analysis report shall identify the traffic impacts attributable to the proposed development and recommended proposed mitigation measures . The report should also reflect the latest planning efforts for transportation . The report shall be reviewed and approved by the state department of transportation, and the respective county transportation agency in which the land to which the boundary amendment applies is located. Based upon the report, the petitioner may be r
	(11) 
	(11) 
	(11) 
	·(11) Petitioner shall, on a fair-share basis, fund and construct adequate civil defense measures as determined by the state civil defense agency; 

	(
	(
	12) (12) Petitioner shall have an archaeological i nventory survey conducted by a professional archaeologist . The findings shall be submitted to the state department of land and natural resources, state historic preservation division in report format for adequacy review and a copy shall be provided to the commission . The state historic preservation division shall verify in writing with a copy provided to the commission that the survey report is acceptable, that significance evaluations are acceptable, and

	(13) 
	(13) 
	(13) If significant historic sites are present, the petitioner shall submit a detailed historic preservation mitigation pl an for review by the state historic preservation division and a copy shall be provided to the commission . This plan may include preservation and archaeological data recovery subplans (detailed scopes of work). The state historic preservation division shall verify in writing with a copy provided to the commission that the plan has been successfully· executed; 

	(14) 
	(14) 
	(1 4) Petitioner shall stop work in the · immediate vicinity should any previously unidentified burials, archaeological or historic sites such a s artifacts, marine shell concentrations, charcoal deposits, or s t one platforms, pavings or walls be found . Subsequent work shall proceed upon an archaeological clearance from the state historic preservation division when it determines that mitigative measures have been implemented to its satisfaction; 

	(15) 
	(15) 
	(15) Petitioner shall participate in an air quality monitoring program as specified by the state department of health; 

	(16) 
	(16) 
	(16) Petitioner shall be responsible for i mplementing sound attenuation measures to bring noise levels from vehicular t raffic in the affected propert ies down to a level of fifty-five decibels; 

	(17) 
	(17) 
	(17) .If the petition for a boundary amendment involves prime agricultural lands, petitioner shall be responsible for contributing to the protection of an equivalent amount of prime agricultural lands and related infrastructure via long-term agricultural conservation easements or other agriculturally-related assets as determined by and to the satisfaction of the state department of agriculture; 

	(18) 
	(18) 
	. (18) Petitioner shall notify all prospective buyers of property of the potential odor, noise, and dust pollution if there are any agricultural district lands surrounding the land to which the boundary amendment applies; 

	(19) 
	(19) 
	(19) To the extent that the petition area is contiguous or adjacent to lands in the State 


	76 
	land use agricultural district, any action that would interfere with or restrain farming operations on those lands is prohibited, provided the farming operations are conducted in a manner consistent with generally accepted agricultural and management practices. Petitioner shall notify all prospective developers or purchasers of all or any portion of the petition area or any interest in the petition area, and shall require its purchasers to provide subsequent notification to lessees or tenants that farming o
	(20) 
	(20) 
	(20) 
	(20) Petitioner shall fund the design and construction of drainage improvements required as a result of the development of the land to which the boundary amendment applies to the satisfaction of the appropriate state and county agencies; 

	(21) 
	(21) 
	(21 ) Petitioner shall cooperate with the state department of health and ·the respective county to conform to the program goals and objectives of chapter 342G, HRS, and the respective county' s approved integrated solid waste management plans in accordance with a schedule and timeframe satisfactory to the state department of health; 

	(22) 
	(22) 
	(22) To the extent requi red by the state department of health, petitioner shall ensure that nearshore, offshore, and-deep ocean waters remain in pristine condi tion; 

	(23) 
	(23) 
	(23) Petitione·r shall participate in the funding and construction of adequate water source, storage, and transmission facilities and improvements to accommodate the proposed uses . Water transmission facilities shall be coordinated and approved by appropriate state and county agencies . The county's water use and development plan shall be amended to reflect changes in water demand forecasts and in water development plans to supply the proposed uses; and 

	(24) 
	(24) 
	( 2 4) Pet itioner shall preserve and protect 


	77 
	any establi shed gathering and access rights of nat ive Hawaiians who have customarily and traditionally exercised subsistence, cult ural, and religious practices on the land to which to the boundary amendment applies . 
	(f) If a special permit filed pursuant to section 205-6, HRS, is approved pursuant to section91-13 . 5, 
	HRS , 
	HRS , 
	HRS , 
	the 
	following mandatory conditions 
	shall apply: 

	TR
	(1) 
	All condi tions 
	listed under 
	subsection 
	(e); 

	TR
	(2) 
	The proposed 
	use 
	shall be established within 

	TR
	one 
	year from the date that the 
	special 

	TR
	permit 
	was 
	approved pursuant 
	to 
	section 91
	-


	TR
	13 . 5, 
	HRS ; 
	and 

	TR
	(3) 
	The 
	special per mit 
	shall be valid for 
	a 

	TR
	period of five years 
	from the approval .date 

	TR
	pursuant 
	to 
	secti on 
	91-13 . 5, 
	HRS . 

	TR
	[Eff 10/27/86; 
	am 
	and comp 
	8/16/97; 
	am 
	and 

	TR
	comp 
	5/8/00; 
	am 
	and comp 
	11/2/2013; 
	comp 

	TR
	------
	-

	-
	-
	-
	] 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§91-13 . 5, 

	TR
	2 0 5 -1 , 
	2 0 5 -7 ) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§ § 91-13 . 5 , 
	2 0 5 -4 ) 


	§15-15-91 Applicabil ity. Conditions imposed by the commi ssion shall run with the land and shall be binding upon the petitioner and each and every subsequent owner, l essee, sub-lessee, transferee, gr antee, assignee, or developer . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp -,-------,-,~--,--] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	(I mp : HRS §205-4) 
	§15-15-92 Filing procedure for conditions imposed by the commission . (a) Within seven days of issuance of the decision and order pursuant to section 15-15-83, the petitioner shall f i le a notice of imposition of conditions, in a form prescribed by the executive officer, with the bureau of conveyances . 
	(b) All conditions imposed by the commission in its decision and order and conditions pursuant to section 15-15-90(e) , shall be recorded at the bureau of conveyances and shall comply with the following procedures: 
	(1 ) The document l i sting the conditions shal l be submitted to the commission for review and approval by the executive officer prior to filing with the bureau of conveyances; 
	(2) The petitioner shall record the conditi ons at 
	78 
	the bureau of conveyances within sixty days after the receipt of t he decision and order requiri ng the same. The timeframe for recordation of the condition may be extended pursuant to section 15-15-42; 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Evidence of recordation shall be by certified copy under the signature of the registrar of conveyances. The petitioner shall forward a certified copy . to t he commission; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	· Description of the land shall be sufficiently accurate to identify the land intended to be affected. [Eff 10/27/86 ; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4) 


	§15-15-93 Enforcement of conditions, representations, or commitments .· (a) Any party or interested person may file a motion with the commission requesting an issuance of an order to show cause upon a showing that there has been a failure to perform a condition, representation, or commitment on the part of the petitioner. The party or person shall also serve a copy of the motion for an order to show cause upon any person bound by the condition, representation, or commitment. The motion for order to show cau
	( 
	( 
	( 
	1) The interest of the movant; 

	( 
	( 
	2) The reasons for filing the motion; 

	( 
	( 
	3) A description and a map of the property affected by the condition; 


	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	The condition ordered by the commission which has not been performed or satisfied; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Concisely and with particularity the facts, supported by an affidavit or declaration, giving rise to a belief that a .condition ordered by the commissi on has not been performed or satisfied; and 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	The specific reli ef requested . 


	(b) Whenever the commission shall have reason to believe that there has been a failure to perform according t o the conditions imposed, or the representations or commitments made by the petitioner, the commission shall issue and serve upon the party or person bound by the conditions, representations, or commitments, an order to s how cause why the property should not revert to its former land use classification or be changed to a more appropriate classification. 
	•I 
	The commission shall serve the or der to show cause in writing by registered or certi fied mail with return receipt requested at least thi rty days before the hearing. A copy shal l be also sent to all parties in the boundary amendment proceedi ngs . The order to show cause shall include : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	A 
	statement 
	of the date, 
	time, 
	place, 
	and 

	TR
	nature 
	of the hearing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A descripti on 
	and 
	a 
	map 
	of the property to be 

	TR
	affected; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A 
	statement 
	o f 
	the l egal authority under 

	TR
	which the hearing is to be 
	held; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The 
	speci f i c 
	sections of the 
	statutes, 
	or 

	TR
	rules, 
	or 
	both, 
	involved; 
	and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A 
	statement 
	that any party may 
	retain ·counsel 

	TR
	if the party 
	so 
	desires . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The 
	commission shall conduct 
	a 
	hearing 
	on 
	an 

	order 
	order 
	to 
	show 
	cause 
	in accordance with the 
	requirements 


	of subchapter 7, where applicable. Any procedure in an order to show cause hearing may be modified or waived by stipulation of the parties and informal disposition may be made in any case by stipulation, agreed settlement, consent order, or default . 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Post hearing procedures shall conform to subchapter 7 or subchapter 9. Decisions and orders shall be issued in accordance with subchapter 7 or subchapter 9 . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Absent substantial commencement of construction, the commission may revert the property to its former land use classification or a more appropriate c l assification . For the purposes of this subsection (e) substantial commenceme nt shall be determined based on the circumstances or facts presented in the order to show cause regardless of dollar amount expended or percentage of work completed. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	[--f-e+-J The commi ssion shall amend its decision and order to i ncorporate the order to show cause by includi ng the reversion of the property to its former land use classification or to a more appropriate classi fication . 


	J_gJ_[#+] Fees for a moti on for order to show cause will be borne by the movant pursuant to section 15-15
	-

	45 . 1 herein. However, should the motion for order to show cause be granted, any further fees for proceedings arising from the motion shall be borne by the party upon which the order to show cause has been issued. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] (Auth: 
	HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 205-4, 205-12, 205-17) 
	80 
	§15-15-94 Modification or de letion of conditions or orders. (a) If a petiti oner, pursuant to this subsection, desires to have a modification or deletion of a condition that was imposed by the commission, or imposed pursuant to section 15-15-90(e) or (f) , or modification of the commission's order, the petitioner shall file a motion in accordance with section 15-15-70 and serve a copy on all part ies to the boundary amendment proceeding in which the conditi on was imposed or in which the order was issued, 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	For good cause shown, the commission may act to modify or delete any of the conditions imposed or modify the commission 's order. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Any modification or deletion of conditions or modifications to the commission ' s order shall follow the procedures set forth in subchapter 11 . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp -(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-4) 


	SUBCHAPTER 12 
	SPECIAL PERMITS 
	§15-15-95 Petition before county planning commission. (a) Any person who desires to u se land within an agricultural or rural district for other than a permissible agricultural or rural use may petition the county planning commission of the county within which the land is located for a special permit to use the land in the manner desired; provided that if the person is not the owner or sole owner in fee simple of the land, the record shall include evidence that the person requesting the special permit has w
	81 
	(b) Special permits for a r eas greater than fifteen acres require approval of both the county pl anning commission and the commission. Speci a l permi ts approved by t he count y planning commissi on and which require commission approval must be forwarded to the commi ssion within sixty days fol'lowing the county planning commi ssion' s decision. The county shall assure t hat prior to t he count y heari ng on the petiti on for special permit, copies of t he special permit petition are forwarded to t he lan
	-(c) Certain "unusual and reasonable" uses within agricultural and rural districts other than those for which the district is classi fied may be permitted. The following gu idelines are established in determini ng an "unusual and reasonable use": 
	(1 ) The use shall not be contrary to the objectives sought to be accomplished by chapters 205 and 205A, HRS , and the rules of the commission; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	The p r oposed use would not adversely affect surrounding property; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The proposed use would not unreasonably burden public agencies to provide roads and streets, sewers , water drai nage and school improvements , and police and fire protection; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Unusual conditions, trends, and needs have arisen since the district boundari es and rules were established; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The l and upon which the proposed use is sought is unsuited for the uses permitted within the district. 


	___-(d) Petitions for issuance of a special permit shall specify the proposed use and state concisely the nat ure of the petit ioner ' s interest i n the subject matter and the reasons for seeking the special permit, and shall include any facts, views, arguments , maps, 
	plans, and relevant data in support of the petition. _ _ _-(e) The petitioner shall comply with all of the rules of practice and procedure of the county planning commission in which.the subject property is located. _ _ _-(f) The c·ounty planning commission may impose such protective conditions as it deems necessary in the issuance of a special permit . The county planning commission shall establish, among other conditions, a reasonable time limit suited to establishing the part icular use pr oposed, and if 
	--~ ,-,,-------] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §205-6) 
	§15-15-95.1 Applicability of subchapter 5. 
	Except as otherwise provided in this subchapter, the procedural provisions of subchapter 5 shall apply to petitions for special permits . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	§15-15-96 Decision and order by the land use commission. (a) Within forty-five days after receipt of the county planning commission's decision and the complete record of the proceeding before the county planning commission, as determined by the executive officer, the commission shall act to approve, approve with modification, or deny the petiti on . The commission may impose additional restrictions as may be necessary or appropriate in granting the approval, including the adherence to representations made b
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The commission shall not consider any petition for special permit covering substantially the same request for substantially the same land as had preyi ously been denied by the commission within one year of the date of the filing of the findings of fact, conGlusions of law, and decision and order denying the petition for special permit unless the petitioner submits significant new data or additional reasons which substantially strengthen the petitioner ' s position, provided that in no event shall any new pe

	(c) 
	(c) 
	A denial or modification of the special permit, as the case may be, of the proposed use shall be appealable to the circuit court of the circuit in which the land is situated and shall be made pursuant to the Hawai'i rules of civil procedure . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	If a special permi t is approved pursuant to section 91-13.5, HRS , the provisions of section 15-1582(e) and section 15-15-90(f) shall apply. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; cqmp ] (Auth : HRS §§91-13 . 5, 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-13 . 5, 205-6) 
	-



	§15-15-96.1 Modification of special permit . Any request for modification of a special permit or modification, release, or deletion of a condition imposed on a special permit, whether imposed by the county planning commission or the commission, shall first be submitted to the appropriate county planning commission and, for special permits for land greater than fifteen acres in size, the commission, for consideration and decision . ' 
	The decision of the county planning commission with respect to modification of a special permit, or modification, release or deletion of a condition to a special permit shall comply with the requirements of section 15-15-95 and 15-15-96 . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) 
	SUBCHAPTER 13 
	GOVERNMENT SPONSORED HOUSING PROJECTS 
	§15-15-97 Procedure for processing petitions for housing projects under section 201H-38, HRS. (a) Petitions for housing projects under section 201H-38, HRS, shall be processed according to the procedures provided in this section. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Not less than sixty days prior to the filing of a petition, the petitioner shall : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	File an original, one paper copy, and one electronic copy of a notice of intent to file a petition with the commission according to a format provided by the commission; the number and format of copies requireJ under this section may be modified by order of the ·commission; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Publish the notice of intent at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the State as well as in a county newspaper i n which the subject property is situated. The notice of intent shall include : 


	(A) The name and address of the petitioner and the petitioner' s property interest in the subject property; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	(B) 
	Proposed .boundary ---amendment; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	(C) 
	Tax map key; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Acreage; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Existing land use; 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	Brief description of the proposed development or use; 

	(G) 
	(G) 
	The date that the petitioner shall f i le its petition with the commission; and 

	(H) 
	(H) 
	Inform the public of the rights of interested persons u_nder section 2054 ( e) , HRS; 
	-





	(3) Serve copies of the notice of intent to file a petition upon the director of the state office of planning, the planning department of the county in which the subject property is situated, and persons with a property interest in the subject property that is recorded in the county ' s real property tax records. The notice of intent to file a petition shall also be sent to persons on a 
	85 
	mailing list provided by the chief clerk. In 
	proceedings related to 201H petitions, the 
	petitioner ' s notice of intent shall also 
	serve as the notice of hearing for the 
	purposes of intervention; 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	(4) 
	File an original and one paper copy of an affidavit of mailing the notices of intent to the persons specified in paragraph (3) ; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	File an affidavit of publication of the notice of intent to file a petition in compliance with paragraph (2). 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Persons who may intervene upon timely application include : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	All departments and agencies of the State and of the county i n which the land is situated; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	All persons who have a property interest in the land, or who otherwise can demonstrate that they wi ll be so directly and immediately affected by the proposed change that their interest in the proceeding is clearly distinguishable from that of the general public. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	All other persons may apply for leave to intervene, which shall be freely granted, provided the commission or its hearings officer may deny an app+ication to intervene when,, in the commission ' s or hearing officer' s discretion, it appears that : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The position of the applicant for intervention is substantially the s ame as the position of a party already admitted to the proceeding; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The admission of additional parties will render the proceedings inefficient and . unmanageable . 



	(e) 
	(e) 
	Petitions to intervene and become a party shall be in conformity with subchapter 5 and filed with the commission. An original and one paper copy, together with one electronic copy of the petition for intervention with proof of service on all parties shall be filed with the commission within fifteen days after t he notice of intent to file a petition is published pursuant to section 15-15-97(b) (2) . Except for good cause shown, late filing shall not be permitted. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	The petition for intervention shall make r e ference to the following : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Nature of the proposed intervenor ' s statutory or other right; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Nature and extent of the proposed intervenor ' s interest, and if an abutting 




	property owner, the tax map key descripti on of t he property; and 
	(3) Effect of any decisi on in the proceeding on the proposed intervenor ' s interest . 
	(g) If applicable, the petition shall also make reference to the followi ng : 
	(
	(
	(
	1) Other means available whereby the proposed intervenor ' s interest may be protected; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Extent the proposed intervenor ' s interest may be represented by existi ng parties; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Extent the proposed i ntervenor ' s interest in the proceeding d i ffers from that of the other part ies; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Extent the proposed intervenor ' s part icipation can assist in development of a complete record; 


	·(5) Extent the proposed i ntervenor ' s participation will broaden the issues; and 
	(6) Extent the proposed intervenor ' s intervention would serve the publi c i nterest . 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	Petitions for interventi on shall be accompanied by a fili ng f ee of $50 . The fee shall not apply to state and county agencies. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	The commission may conduct a pre-application meeting with the petitioner and proposed parti es to the proceeding for the purpose of determi ning information requirements, possible issues, proposed stipulations, and other matters which may assist i n contributing to a more orderly hearing process. 


	(j ) I f the petitioner fails to file the petition on the date stated in its notice of intent, the petitioner shall refile a notice of intent in the manner set forth in this secti on. 
	(k) The petitioner shal l file a petition in conformance with subchapters 5 and 6 except that at the time of filing, the petition shal l i nclude : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	A finding of no significant impact or approved envir onmental impact statement if conservation district lands are involved; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A proposed decision and order; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	An affidavit that the petitioner has met wi th interested community groups to discuss the proposed project; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A clear description of the manner i n which petitioner proposes to finance the proposed development, including a budget, a marketing plan, and a feasibility study; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A certification from the Hawai'i housing finance and development corporation or county 


	87 
	housing agency that the petition involves a section[+ ] 201H-38, ~RS, housing project~ including a certified copy of an approved county council resolution approving the proj ect with conditions and any exemptions granted. 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Petitions that fail to comply with the requirements set forth in subsections (b) and (k) shall be deemed defective and the date of filing of the petition shall be as of the date the defect is cured. 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	The hearing on the appl ication shall be conducted in accordance with subchapter 7, except that t he time requirements for holding a hearing, statement of position, and decision making shall not apply. 

	(n) 
	(n) 
	Notice of the hearing shall be published to the extent provided by law . 

	(o) 
	(o) 
	The commission shall approve or disapprove a boundary amendment within forty-five days after the petition has been deemed a proper filing by the executive officer. If on the forty-sixth day the petition i s not disapproved, it shall be deemed approved by the commission, and the provisions of section 15-15-90(e) shall apply . [Eff 3/20/87; am 7/18/94 ; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; am 


	and 
	and 
	and 
	comp 
	11/2/2013; 
	am 
	and comp 
	] 

	(Auth: 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§201G-118, 
	205-1, 
	205-4, 
	205-7) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 

	§§205-4 , 
	§§205-4 , 
	201G-118) 


	§15-15-97.1 REPEALED. [R 5/8/00] 
	§15-15-97 .2 Fees. The petitioner will be responsible for fees pursuant to section 15-15-45 . 1 . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-4 . 1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 92-21 , 205-4 . 1) 
	SUBCHAPTER 14 
	DECLARATORY ORDERS 
	§15-15-98 Who may petition. (a) On petit ion of any interested person, the commission may issue a 
	declaratory order as to the applicability of any 
	statutory provision or of any rule or order of the . 
	commission to a specific factual situation. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A farmer or landowner with lands qualifying under section 205-45, HRS, may file a petition for declaratory order to designate the lands as important agricultural lands and shall file a petition that conforms to the requirements of this section and section 205-44 and 205-45, HRS . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Notwithstanding the other provisions of this subchapter, the commission, on its own motion or upon request but without notice of hearing, may issue a declaratory order to terminate a controversy or to remove uncertainty. [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11 /2/2013; comp ] 


	(Auth: HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7) {Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-8) 
	§15-15-99 Pe tition for declaratory order; form and c ontents . The petition shall be submit ted consisting of one original, one paper copy, and one el ectronic copy, and shall conform to the format requirements of sections 15-15-38, 15-15-39, and 15-1540, and shall contain : 
	-

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The name, addDess including zip code, and telephone number of each petitioner; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A statement of the petitioner's interest in the subject matter, including the reasons for submission of the petition; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A designation of the specific statutory provision, rule, or order in question, together with a complete statement of the relevant facts and a statement of the issues raised or controversy or uncertainty involved; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A statement of the petitioner's inter·pretation of the statute, rule or order or the petitioner' s position or contention with respect thereto; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A memorandum of authorities, containing a full discussion of reasons and l egal authorities in support of such position or contention. The commission may require the petitioner to file additional data or memoranda; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	The names of any other potenti~l parties; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	The signature of each petitioner; and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	A statement whether the petition for 


	declaratory ruling relates to any commission docket for district boundary amendment or special permit, and if so, the docket number a nd identification of all parties to the docket . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §§91-8,
	...,...--,---------
	-

	2 0 5-1 , 2 0 5-7 ) ( Imp : HRS § § 91-2 , 91-8 ) 
	§15-15-100 -Consideration of petition for declaratory order. (a) The commission, within ninety days after submission of a petition for declaratory order, shall : 
	(1) Deny the petition where : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	The question is speculative or purely hypothetical and does not involve an existi ng situation or one which may reasonably be expected to occur i n the near future ; or 

	(
	(
	B) The peti tionet'' s i nterest is not of the type which confers sufficient standing to maintain an action in a court of law; or 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	The issuance of the declaratory order may adversely affect the interest of the State, the commission, or any of the officers or employees in any litigation which is pending or may be reasonabl y be expected to arise; or 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	The petitioner requests a ruli ng on a statutory provision not administered by the commission or the matter is not otherwise within . the jurisdiction of the 


	. commission; or 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Issue a declaratory order on the matters contai~ed in the petition; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Set the petition for hearing before the commission or a hearings officer in accordance with this subchapter . The procedures set forth in subchapter 7 shall be applicable . 


	(b) If the matter is set for hearing, the · commission shall render its f i ndings and deeision within one hundred and twenty days after the close of the hearing or, if post hearing briefs are filed, forty-five days after the last brief is filed, unless a different time period is stated at the hearing. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 
	11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§91~8-,----=2~0=5~1-,-'--=2=0=5~7~)--:-(I~m-p_: ______,H=R~S=----§=§=9~1~-~2=-, 91-8) 
	-
	--
	--

	§15-15-101 Declarat ory orders ; dismissal of _ 
	petition. The commission< without notice or hearing, 
	may dismiss a petition for declaratory order that fails 
	in material respect to comply wi th the requirements of 
	this s ubchapter . The dismis§al shall be in writing and 
	state the reasons t herefor. ' [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 
	8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7)
	-,-----------~ ~
	-,-----------~ ~
	-

	(Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-8) 
	§15-15-102 REPEALED . [-i+R--R _11/2 /2013] 
	§15-15-103 Declaratory orders; re quest for hearing. The commission.may, but shall not be required to, conduct a hearing on a petition for declaratory order. Any petitioner or party in interest who desi res a hearing on a peti tion for a declaratory order shatl set forth in detail in the request t he reasons why t he matters alleged in the petition, together with supporti ng affidavits or other writ ten briefs or memoranda of legal authorities, will not permit the fair and expeditious disposition of the pet
	5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-8) 
	§15-15-104 Applicability of declaratory order. An order disposing of a petition shall apply only to the factual situati on described in the petition or set forth i n the order. It shall not be applicabl e to different fact situations or where additional facts not considered in the order exist . The order shall have the same force and effect as ot her orders issued by the commission. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp J 
	91 
	(Auth : HRS §§91-8, 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-2, 91-8) 
	15-15-104.1 Fees . The Petitioner shall be responsible for fees pursuant to section 15-15-45.1 
	herei n . 
	herei n . 
	herei n . 
	[Eff and comp _1~1~/_2~/_2_0_1_3~;_c_o_m~p,...._'---
	-

	-
	-
	-
	-

	-(Auth: 
	-(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§205-1, 
	205-4 . 1, 
	205-7) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 

	§§91-2, 
	§§91-2, 
	92-21, 
	205-4 . 1) 


	SUBCHAPTER 15 
	RULEMAKING PROCEDURES 
	§15-15-105 Initiation of rulemaking proceedings , 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	The commission, at any time on its own motion, may initiate proceedings for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule of the commission . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Any interested person may petition the commission for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule of the commission. The petitioner shall file and deliver one original, one paper copy and one electronic ·copy of the petition to the office of the commission. The number and format of copies required under this section may be modifi ed by order of the commission . Petitions for rulemaking filed with the commission shall become matters of public record. [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 1


	§15-15-106 Rulemak·ing; form and contents of petition. Petitions for rulemaking need not be in any special form but shall conform to the requirements of this subchapter and sh all contain: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The n9 me, address (including zip code), and telephone number of each petitioner; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	A statement of the petitioner's interest in the subject matter; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A statement of the reasons in support of the proposed rule, amendment, or repeal; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The authorization or relief sought; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The citation of the statutory provision or 


	other authority under which commission authorization or relief is sought; 
	(6) A draft or the substance of the proposed rule or amendment or a designation of the provisions the repeal of which is desired; and 
	(7) The signature of each petitioner . Any petition which does not conform to the foregoing requirements may be rejected by the commission. The rejection shall be in writing and shall state the reasons therefor . [Eff 10/27/86; comp 8/16/97 ; am and comp 5/8/00; am and comp 1'1/2/2013; comp ] -(Auth : HRS §§91-13 . 5 , 205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §9113.5, 91-6, 205.:..7) 
	-

	§15-15-107 Rulemaking; action on petition. (a) Within sixty days after the filing of a petition for rulemaking, the commission shall either deny the petition in writing, stating its reasons for its denial or initiate proceedings for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rule, in accordance with section 91-3, HRS . 
	l 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Any petition that fails in material respect to comply with the requirements of this subchapter, or that fails to disclose sufficient reasons to justify t he institution of public rulemaking proceedings shall not be considered by the commission. The commission shall notify the petitioner in writing of the denial, stating the reasons therefor . Denial of a petition shall not prevent the commission from acting on its own motion on any matter contained in the petition. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If the commission determines that the petition is in order and that it discloses sufficient reasons in support of the proposed rulemaking to justify the institution of rulemaking proceedings, the procedures to be followed shall be as set forth in sections 15-15-108, 15-15-109, 15-15-110, and chapter 92, HRS . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97 ; comp 


	5/8/00; am and comp 1 1/2/2013; comp ] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§91-3, 91-6, 92-1, et seq. ) 
	§15-15-107.1 Commission action. The commission shall consider all statements, views, comments, and documents of record before taking final action in a rulemaking proceeding. Unless otherwise provided by 
	law, any decision rendered pursuant to this subchapter shall not be subject to a motion for r econsideration or judicial review. The adoption, amendment or repeal of a rule is subject to approval of the governor and filing with the lieutenant governor . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§2051, . 205-7) (Imp: HRS §91-3) 
	-

	§15-15-108 Rulemaking; notice of public hearing . 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	When, pursuant to a petition therefor or upon its own motion, the commission proposes to adopt, amend, or repeal any rule, the notice of hearing shall be published pursuant to the requirements of sections 1-28.5 and 91-3, HRS. The notice of hearing shall also be mai led to all persons or agencies who have made timely written requests for advance notice of the commission ' s r ulemaking proceedings at their last recorded address . The notice of heari ng shall be published at least thirty days prior to the da

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A notice of the proposed adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule shall i nclude : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	A statement of the date, time, and place where the public hearing will be held; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Reference to the authority under which the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule is proposed; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	A statement of the substance of the proposed rules . [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; am and comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp 




	-------,=-c-_ _ ___ __] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 2057) (Imp: HRS §§1-28.5, 91-3, 92-41) 
	-

	§15-15-109 Rulemaking; conduct of public hearing. 
	(a) The chairperson· of the commission or, in the chairperson ' s absence, another member designated by the commission, or a duly appointed hearings officer shall conduct the public hearing for the adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules . The commission shal l afford interested persons a reasonable opportunity to offer testimony with respect to the matter specified in the notice of hearing, in order to obtain a clear and orderly record . The presiding officer shall have authority to administer oaths or
	of the hearing. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Each such public hearing shall be held at the time and place set in the notice of hearing but may at that time and place be continued by the presiding officer from day to day or adjourned to a later date or to a different place without notice other than the announcement thereof at the hearing . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	At the commencement of the hearing, the presiding officer shall read the notice of hearing and shall outline briefly the procedure to be followed. Testimony shall then be received with respect to t he matters specified in the notice of hearing in such order as the presiding officer shall prescribe . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Each witness, before proceeding to testify, shall state the witness' name, address, and whom the witness represents at the hearing, and shall give· any information respecting the witness ' appearance as the presiding officer may request . The presiding officer shall confine the testimony to -the matters for which the hearing has been called. In order to allow persons to have an equal amount of time to testify, or to prevent cumulative unnecessary testimony, the presiding officer may limit the' amount of tim

	(e) 
	(e) 
	All interested persons or agencies shall be afforded an opportunity to submit data, views, or arguments orally or in writing that are relevant to the matters specified in the notice of hearing . A person may submit written comments, data, views, ·or arguments ten days after the close of the scheduled public hearing date. An original and one paper copy and one electronic copy of written comments, recommenda.tions, replies, or exhibits shall be submitted. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Unless otherwise specifically ordered by the commission, testimony given at the public hearing shall not be reported verbatim. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7)
	-------=-~-~ -~ 
	(Imp: HRS §§91-2, 91-3) 
	§15-15-110 Emergency rulemaking. If the commission finds that an imminent peril to public health or safety requires adoption, amendment, or 
	repeal of a rule upon less than thirty days notice•of 
	hearing, and states in writing its reasons for that 
	finding, it may adopt emergency rules pursuant to 
	section 91-3(b) and 91~4, HRS. [Eff 10/27/86; am and 
	comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; am and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	_ _ _ _ _ _ _ __] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: 
	-HRS §§91-3 , 91-4) 
	SUBCHAPTER 16 
	LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
	---§ 15-15-111 Land use district boundaries. (a) 
	The boundaries of land use districts are shown on the 
	land use district maps, entitled "Land Use District 
	Boundaries, dated December 20, 1974 ," as amended, 
	maintained and under the custody of the commission. 
	(b) The official maps entitled "Land Use District Boundaries, dated December 20, 1974,'' as amended, are located in the commission office. [Eff 10/27/86; am and comp 8/16/97; comp 5/8/00; comp 11/2/2013; comp _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : -HRS §205-1) 
	SUBCHAPTER 17 
	I • 
	IMPORTANT AGRICULTURAL LAND DESIGNATION AND PROCEEDINGS 
	§15-15-120 Criteria and procedure for the 
	identification of important agricultural lands . (a) The commission shall not approve a petition to have land designated as important agricultural land, either in whole or in part, unless the commission finds upon a clear preponderance of the evidence, t hat the designation is reasonable and consistent w{th the policies of chapter 205 HRS and the provisions of this subchapter 17 . 
	(b) Any petition seeking to designate lands as ~im_p_o-rtant-agricultural lands shall adhere to the requirements of subchapter 14 of this chapt er . A 
	petition seeking to designate lands as important agricultural lands and a reclassification of lands t6 urban, rural or conservation under section 205-45, HRS , or a credit for reclassification of lands to urban, rural or conservation, shall be s~t for hearing in accordance with section 15-15-100 .· Any hearing set for determination of a petition for designation of important agricultural lands under this section shall be held pursuant to the procedures and requirements set forth in section 205-4, HRS, and su
	{c) In review of any petition seeking, in part or in whole, to have· lands classified as important agricultural lands, the commis-sion shall specifically consider the following: 
	(1) -Whether the land i s currently used for 
	agricultural production; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	The land ' s soil qualities and whether the growing conditions support agricultural production of food, fiber, or fuel-and energy-producing crops; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The land's classification or identification under agricultural productivity rating systems, such as the agricultural lands of · importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH) system adopted by the board of agriculture on January 28, 1977; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	If the land has been or is a type that has been associated with traditional native Hawaiian agricultural uses, such as taro cultivation, or unique agricultural crops and uses, such as coffee, vineyards, aquaculture, and energy production; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The land shall have sufficient quantities of water to support viable agricultural production; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	I f the land' s designation as important agricultural lands will be consistent with general, development, and community plans of the county; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Land that contributes to maintaining a critical land mass important to agricultural operating productivi ty; and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Whether t he land has , or i s near, support infrastructure conducive to agricultural product ivity, such as transportation to markets, water, or power. 


	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	If a pet ition is limited solely to designation by a landowner of important agricultural lands, the commission s hall weigh the criteria set forth in section 15-15-120(c) against each other to meet the objectives of section 205-42 HRS . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The commission shall not accept any petition to designate lands as i mportant agri cultural l ands covering substantially the same request for substant iall y the same land as had previously been deni ed by t he commission within one year of the date of filing of findings of fact and conclusions of l aw denying the petition. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	______ _ ___ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205
	-

	45) (Imp: HRS §205-44) 
	§15-15-121 Petition by farmer or landowner. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	A farmer or landowner seeking to have l ands designated important agricultural lands may file a petition for declaratory ruling with t he commission seeking to have its lands designated important agricultural lands . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The petition for declaratory ruling shall be submitted in accordance with subchapter 14 and shall include : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	-Tax map keys of the land to be designated 

	-along wi th verification and authori zation from the applicable landowners; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	-Proof of qualification for designation under -section 15-15-120; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	-The current or planned agri cul tural use of -the area to be designated . 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	The commission shall review the petition and the accompanying submissions to evaluate the qualifications of the land for designation as i mportant agricultural lands in accordance with section 15-15121. 
	-


	(d) 
	(d) 
	A p etition for declaratory order seeki ng designati on of lands as important agricultural lands shall only be granted if a two-thirds majority of t he 


	98 
	commi ssi on finds , after i ts review and evaluation and based upon a preponderance of the evidence, that the subject lands quali fy for designation as important agricultural lands under t his subchapter and sections 205-44 and 205-45, HRS. If a peti tion fails to receive the affirmative votes of two-thirds of the commissioners, findings of fact, conclusions of law and a decision and order denying t he petition shall be fil ed by the commission. [Eff and comp 11/2/20,13; comp _ _ ________] (Auth: HRS §§205
	-

	45) (Imp : HRS §205-45) 
	§15-15-122 Petition by farmer or landowner for designation of important agricultural land and urban , rural or conservation re-classification. (a) A landowner may, wi t hin t he same pet ition for .declaratory order as described in s ubsect ion 15-15-121, request the reclassificat ion of a port ion of the land which is the subj ect of the petition in the agricultural district to the rural, urban, or conservation district, or a combination thereof . The land sought to be reclassified as urban, rural or conse
	(1)-Be within the same count y as the land sought to be designated as important agricultural lands; 
	(2)-If the reclassification of the land is proposed to the urban district, that reclassification to urban is consistent with the relevant county general and community, development, or community devel opment plans; and 
	(3)-Be no more than fifteen percent of the total acreage whi ch is th~ subject of the petition s uch that at least eight y-five per cent of the total acreage which is the subject of the petition is sought to be designated as important agricultural land; and 
	(41 -Meet all of the requirements of subchapter 8 herein . 
	(b) In a petition for declaratory order under this sectiori seeking to designate lands important agricultural lands in the agricult ural district to the rural, conservation or urban district, the lands to be designated important agricultural lands shall be deemed qualified for such designation only if the commission reasonably finds t hat the lands meet the criteria of sections [15 [115 120(c) (5) ]15-15-120(c) (5) and (c) (7) . 
	r, 

	(c) -A petition for declaratory order under this 
	99 
	section shall be submitted in accordance with subchapter 14 and be set for initial hearing within 90 days of submission . The procedure for the hearing shall be in conformance with the procedures set forth in subchapter 7, and shall include: 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Tax map key numbers of the land to be designated as important agricultural lands and, if appl icable, t he land to be reclassified from the agricultural district t o the rural, urban, or conservati on district; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Verification of ownership and/or authorization from the applicable landowners; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Proof of qualification for designation as important agricultural lands under this subchapter; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The current or planned agricultural use of the area sought to be designated as important agricultural lands; and 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The current or planned use of the area sought to be reclassified to the rural, urban, or conservation district . 


	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	An application for a declaratory order to designate important agricultural land in combination with the reclassification of agricultural land to the rural, urban, or conservation district shall not be deemed a proper filing until the petitioner has submitted a certification, issued by the state department of agriculture as to the quality of the land which i s the subject of the petition. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	In review of any petition seeking to have lands cla ssified as important agricultural lands in combination wit'h a request to reclassify a portion of the agricultural land to the urban, rural or conservation designation, the commission shall review the petition and the accompanying submissions in accordance with this subchapter and section 205-44, HRS. The commission shall also specifically determi ne , by a preponderance of the evidence whether: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The land is suitable for the reclassification in accordance with subchapters 2 and 8; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	If the reclassification of a portion the land is proposed to the urban district, that reclassification to urban is consistent with the relevant county general and community, development, or community development plan . 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	Approval of a petition for designation of important agricultural lands in conjunction with a petition for urban, rural or conservation reclassification under this section shall require 


	approval by a vote of a two-thirds majority of the commissioners . The commission shall include reasonable conditions in its order. 
	(g) Should the commission find that either the designati~n of land~ in the peti tion sought to be identified as important agricultural l ands or the lands identified in the petition for reclassification to urban, rural, or conservation is not supported by a preponderance of the evidence and should not be approved, the commission shall deny the petition in its entirety. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp 
	--:-;::--:---,-,=-----=c-=--=-=c-=-=-] (Auth: HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205
	-

	45 ) (Imp : HRS §205-45) 
	§15-15-123 Adherence to chapter 343 HRS. A 
	petition filed under thi s s ubsection, if applicable, 
	shall adhere to the requirements of chapter 343, HRS . 
	No petition under this subchapter will be deemed 
	complete unless it has met the requirements of chapter 
	343, HRS . [Eff -and comp 11/2/2013; comp 
	] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, -205-7 , 205-45) 
	§15-15-124 Private landowner credits in important 
	agricultural land proceeding. (q) _ The commission 
	shall allow a petitioner for an important agricultural 
	land designation to reserve the right to designate 
	lands for reclassification t o urban, rural, or 
	conservation at a future proceeding. The commission shall not grant a landowner the right to reserve lands for future reclassificat ion greater than fifteen percent of the total acreage of land which is the subject of the petition, total acreage being the land sought to be designated important agricultural land plus t he land sought to be reclassified urban, rural or conservation . 
	(b) Where a petitioner submits a petition £or designatl on of lands as important agricul tural lands in combination with· a request to reclassify lands urban, rural or conservation a nd the commission grants the petition under this subchapter, the petitioner may, if specifically requested in the petition, obtain credits for the difference between fifteen percent of the total amount of land requested to be reclassified as ur ban, rural and conservation and the amount of land set forth in the petition to be s
	(b) Where a petitioner submits a petition £or designatl on of lands as important agricul tural lands in combination with· a request to reclassify lands urban, rural or conservation a nd the commission grants the petition under this subchapter, the petitioner may, if specifically requested in the petition, obtain credits for the difference between fifteen percent of the total amount of land requested to be reclassified as ur ban, rural and conservation and the amount of land set forth in the petition to be s
	amount of land for reclassification to urban, rural or conservation set forth in the petition is less than fifteen percent of the total land subject to the petition. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	In order to preserve the right to reclassify lands und er this section at a future proceeding a request for future credits must be specified in any petition for designation of important agricultural l ands or petition for designation of important agricultural lands in conjunction w~th a request to reclassify lands to the urban, rur?l or conservation district. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	If a petition fails to include a request for future cr edits under subsection -+a+ [--f-Bt] (a) or rf-e+ [-fet] (b) , the petitioner's right to s uch credits shall be waived and the petitioner shall be barred from claiming the credits at a future date . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Credits held by a petitioner under this section may only be applied to lands owned or held by the petitioner in the same county as the lands designated important agricultural lands in the original petition giving rise to the credits are located. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	In order to utilize such credits to have lands recl assified under this section the petitioner must, prior to utilization of such credits and before the credits are applied to any land to be reclassified, file a petition for declaratory order pursuant to subchapters 5 and 14 and section 15-15-123. · 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	A petition for use of credit for· reclassific ation of land granted under this section must be filed within ten years of the effective date of the original order by ·which the credits were granted by the commission. Unused credits shall expire and become unusable if not used within ten years from the eff ective date the original order by which the credits were granted by the c.ommission. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Credits issued under this section may only be used by t he petitioner awarded the credits under the original declaratory order granting the credits . Unused or unexhausted credits awarded under this section may not be transferred to another person. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	If a petitioner files a request for declarato ry order to utilize credits held pursuant to this section the commission shall not grant such petition unless: 


	(1) By a preponderance of the_evidence presented, 
	102 
	the land is suitable for reclassification in accordance with sections 205-2· and 205-3 .1, HRS; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	The reclassification is consistent with the relevant county general and, development, or community development plans ; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	By a preponderance of the evidence presented, the land sought to be reclassified is suitable for reclassification in accordance with subchapters 2 and 8; and 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The petitioner has met all of the requirements of chapter 343 HRS with regard to the subject petition. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; am and comp ] 


	(Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7, 205-45) (Imp: HRS §205-45) 
	§15-15-125 County identification of important agricult ural lands. (a) Receipt of recommendations and maps from the plannin g department of a county under section 205-48 , HRS, shall not be considered a petition for a declaratory order designating land within its jurisdiction as important agricultural lands . The commission shall however, designate lands within the relevant county and adopt maps designating important agricultural lands in such county within 365 days of the s ubmission being deemed complete 
	(b) The county making such recommendations to designate land important agricultural lands shall provide the commission a complete record of its proceedings in support of its recommendation, including evidence the county has specifically adhered to the requirements of section 205-47, HRS, including records evidencing that : 
	(1) Maps of potential lands to be considered for designation as important agricultural lands have been developed in consultation and cooperation with landowners, the state 
	department of agriculture, agricultural 
	interest groups, including representatives 
	from the Hawai'i farm bureau federation and 
	other agricultural organizations, the United 
	States department of agriculture -natur al 
	resources conservation service, the state 
	office of planning, and other groups as 
	necessary. 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	Each county, through its planning department, has utilized an inclusive process for public involvement in the identification of potential lands and the development of maps of l ands to be recommended as i mportant agricultural lands, including a series of public meetings throughout the identification and mapping process . 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The county has taken notice of those lands already de_signated ,important agricu~tural lands by the commission . 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Upon identification of potential lands to be recommended to the county council as potential important agricultura l lands, each county has taken reasonable action to notify each owner of those lands by mail or poste d notice on the affected lands to inform them of the potential designation of t heir lands . 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	Evidence that the important agricultural lands mapping rel ates to, supports, and is consistent with the : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Standards and criteria set forth in section 205-44 , HRS , and this subchapter have . been met; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	County ' s adopted land use plans, as applied to both . the identification and excl usion of important agricultural lands from such designation; 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Comments received from government agencies and others identified in section 205-47(b), HRS; 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Viability of existing agri businesses; 

	(E) 
	(E) 
	Representati ons or position statements of t he owners whose lands are subject to the potential designation; and · 

	(F) 
	(F) 
	Any other relevant information. 



	(6) 
	(6) 
	The important agricultural lands maps have 104 


	been adopted by the county council, by resolution. 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	A submission by a county under this section shall not be deemed complete unless all of the evidence set forth in section 15-15-125(b) has been transmitted and accepted by the commission. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Any hear ing under this section shall adhere to the procedures set forth in this subchapter and subchapters 1 and 5, and shall be conducted as a rulemaking proceeding in accordance with section 15-15109 artd held in the relevant county . · 
	-


	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The commission may, under this section: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Remand the matter back to the county for further review or clarificati on; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Adopt the recommendations of the county in its entirety after receipt of the complete record from the county pursuant to section 15-15-126, and designate lands in such county as important agricultural lands; or 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Based on evidence presented, amend or revise the county recommendation and proposal to exclude, or include, certain lands from· designation as important agricultural l ands . 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	The county shall serve a file-stamped copy of the county report and maps submitted pursuant to a petition under this section on the state department of agriculture and the state office of planning within one business day of filing with the commission. The state office of planning and state department of agriculture shall review the county submi ttal pursuant to section 205-48, HRS, and provide comments to the commission within forty-five days of the county filing being deemed complete. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	-Approval of maps and a designation of important agricultural lands under this section shal l require the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the commission. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp 


	_____ _ _ _ ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp: HRS §§205-47, 205-48, 205-49) 
	§15-15-126 Criteria for designation of lands as important agricultural lands pursuant to county recommendation. (a) In desi gnating important 
	105 
	agricultural lands in the state, pursuant to the recommendations of individual counties, the commission shall consider the extent to which : 
	-(1) The proposed lands meet the standards and criteria under section 205-44 , HRS, and section 15-15-120; 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	The proposed desi gnati on is necessary to meet the objectives and pol icies for important agricultural lands in sections 205-42 and 205-43, HRS ; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The commission has designated lands within .the county as important agricultural lands, pursuant to this subchapter . 


	. I (b )-Should the commission determine that more than fiftypercent of a landowners ' landholdings, excluding lands held in the conservation district, are already designated as important agricul tural lands , pursuant to this subchapter, the commission shall not designate any ·additional lands of that. landowner as important agricultural ·1ands except by a petition from the landowner pursuant to this subchapter. 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The designation of lands as important agricultural lands and the adoption of maps of those lands pursuant to this section s hall be based upon written findings of fact and conclusions of law, and a showing by a preponderance of the evidence that t he subject lands meet the standards and criteria set fort h in section 15-15-120 . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Designation of agricultural lands as important-agricultural lands under this section shall be by an affirmative vote of t wo-thirds of the membership to which the commission is entitled. If the petition is not approved by a vote of two-thirds majority of the commission it shall be deemed deni ed. 


	[Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7) (Imp : HRS §§205-47, 205-49) 
	§15-15-127 Standards and criteria for the reclassification or rezoning of important agricultural lands . (a) Any land use district boundary amendment 
	or change i n zoning invol ving important agricultural lands identified pursuant to this subchapter shall be considered as, and meet the submittal requirements for, a district boundary amendment under this chapter . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	An application for a special permit involving important agricultural lands shall i nclude evidence that the request has been referred to the state department of agriculture and the state office of planning for review and comment and contain as part of the petition any comments or recommendations made by both the state department of agriculture and the state office of planning. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	In addition to the criteria set forth in subchapter 8, any decision by the commission or county pursuant to this section shall specifically consider, and find by a preponderance of the evidence, that : 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	-The land t o be reclassified is not critical for agriculture based on the amount of simi larly suited lands in the area and the State as a whole; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	-The proposed district boundary amendment or zone change will not harm the productivity or viability of existing agricultural activity in the area, or adversely affect the viability of other agricultural activities or operations that share infrastructure, processing, marketing, or other productionrelated costs or facilities with the agricultural activities on the land in question; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The district boundary amendment or zone change will not cause the fragmentation of or intrusion of nonagricultural uses into largely intact areas of lands identified by the State as important agricultural lands that create residual parcels of a size that would preclude viable agricul tural use ; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The public benefit to be derived f rom the propose·d action i s justified by a need for additional lands for nonagricultural purposes; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	The proposed district boundary amendment or zone change will not negatively impact the ability or capacity of state and county agencies to provide and support addi tional agricultural infrastructure or services in the area; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	The public benefit from the proposed district boundary amendment or zone change outweighs the benefits of retaining the land for agricultural purposes; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	The proposed action will have no significant impact upon the viability of agricultural operations on adjacent agricultural lands ; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	The decision-making criteria of subchapter 8 governi ng decisions of the land use commission on district boundary amendments have been met; and 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	The decision-making criteria adopted by each county to govern decisions of county decision-making aµthorities under this chapter have been met . 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	---The reclassification of lands designated as important agri cultural sh~ll be based upon written findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to subchapters 7 and 11 . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	A reclassification of lands designated as important agricultural lands shall be by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the membership to which the commission is entitl ed. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	I f the peti tion is not approved by a vote of two-thi rds of the membership of t he commission, it shall be deemed denied. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The commission shall not accept any petition to designate lands as important agricultural lands covering substantially the same request · for substantially the same land as had previously been denied by the commission within one year of the date of filing of finding s of fact and conclusions of law denying the petition. 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	-The commission may, upon petiti on by the farmer or landowner of lands desi gnated as important agricultural lands, remove all or a portion of those important agricultural lands from the "important agricultural lands" designation if, afte r a hearing held pursuant to subchapter 14 , the commission f i nds upon a preponderance of the evidence that a sufficient supply of water is no longer available to allow profitable farming of the land due to governmental actions, acts of God, or other causes beyond the f

	(g) 
	(g) 
	The commission may only remove an important agricultural land designation on lands originally designated as important agricultural lands pursuant to a declaratory order that both designated land as important agricul tural land s and reclassified land as 


	urban, rural or conservation, or a combination thereof, with the prior authorization of the legislature as expressed by a two-thirds vote of each house of the legislature voting separately. [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§205-1, 205-7 , 205-45) (Imp : HRS §205-50) 
	§15-15-128 Periodic review and amendment of important agricultural lands maps. (a) _ Amendment of the maps of important agricultural lands initiated by the county s hall be conducted i n accordance with section 15-15-109 . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	In a count y-initiated proceeding for an amendment-of important agricultural land maps and designation under section 15-15-128(a), the "important agricultural lands'' designation shall be removed from lands previously designated as important agricultural lands where the commission finds , by a preponderance of the evidence, that a sufficient supply of water is no longer available to allow profitable farming of the lands due to governmental actions, acts of God, or other causes beyond the farmer or landowner

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The commission shall not remove t he important agricultu ral lands designation if the lands were designated important agricultural lands by declaratory order in combination with the reclassification of land in the agricultural district to the rural, conservation or urban district pursuant to section 205-45, HRS,' unless the legislature provides prior authorization by adoption of a concurrent resolution in accordance with section 205-45, HRS . [Eff and comp 11/2/2013; comp -,--,,---=-=---=--=--c------] (Auth


	SUBCHAPTER 18 
	PETITIONS FOR HAWAI'I HOUSING .AUTHORITY RENTAL HOUSI NG PROJECTS 
	Repealed 
	§15-15-122 REPEALED. ~ [R 8/16/97] 
	2. Material, except source notes and other notes, 
	to be repeal ed, is bracketed and stricken. New material is underscored. 
	3 . Additions to update sou~ce notes and other 
	notes to reflect these amendments are compilations are not underscored. · 
	4 . These amendments to and compilation of chapter 15-15, Hawaii Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after fili ng with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	I certify that the foregoing are coprules, drafted in Ramseyer format , pur suant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes , which were a dopted , 2018 , and filed with the Off ice of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	ies of the 

	LUIS SALAVERIA 
	Direct or of Bus iness, 
	Economic Development, 
	and Tourism 
	) 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM : 
	Deputy Attorney General 
	Deputy Attorney General 

	Amendments to and compilation of chapter 15, title 15, Hawaii Administrative Rules on the summary 
	page dated 
	page dated 
	page dated 
	[October 4, 
	2013) 
	, 
	(2013)2018 
	were 

	adopted 
	adopted 
	on 
	[October 
	4, 
	2013) 
	, 
	[2013)2018, 

	following public hearin
	following public hearin
	gs held 
	on 
	[September 5~, 
	11 , 

	18, 24 , 
	18, 24 , 
	and 
	25 
	2013) 
	.[2013)2018 


	after public notice was given in the Honolulu Star-Advertiser, the Maui News, West Hawai'i Today, the Hawai'i Tribune llerald and The Garden Isle on [August 
	5, 2013) , [2013)~ . 
	They shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor 
	[RONALD I. HELLER] ARNOLD WONG Chairperson 
	112 
	(RICHARD LHgJ 
	LUIS SALAVERIA Director , Department of Business , Economi c Development and Tour ism 
	(NEIL ABERCROMBI E] DAVID Y. I CE Gover nor State of Hawai ' i 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
	(DIANE ERICKSON] Deputy Attorney Gener al 



	V. Leg. Matters A. through E - VI. Admin Matters A through D
	Structure Bookmarks
	V. Legislative Matters 
	A. Update on HB2235, SB2753, and SB2885 "Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board" 
	Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 
	V. Legislative Matters 
	B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State Legislature Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination ofMary Albitz to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 20, 2021 
	Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 
	V. Legislative Matters 
	C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Governor's Message to the State Legislature Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination ofWill Lydgate to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2021 
	Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 
	V. Legislative Matters 
	D.Update on Governor's Message 513 and 514 Submitting for Consideration the Gubernatorial Nomination ofReg Baker to the Small Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2022, respectively 
	Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 
	V. Legislative Matters 
	E. Discussion and Action on Senate Bill 2059, "Relating to Public Accountancy" 
	THE SENATE 2059 TWENTY-NINTH LEGISLATURE, 2018 S.D. 1 STATE OF HAWAII 
	S.B. NO. 

	A BILL FOR AN ACT 
	RELATING TO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANCY. 
	BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAIi: 1 SECTION 1. The purpose of this Act is to amend the 2 requirements for obtaining a temporary perm"it to practice public 3 accountancy in Hawaii, including: 4 (1~ Specifying who may be granted a temporary permit to 5 practice; 6 (2) Specifying the requirements that must be met .prior to 7 obtaining a temporary permit to practice; 8 (3)' Requiring a person to obtain a temporary permit to 9 practice from the board of public accountancy prior to 
	10 commencing public accountancy services in Hawaii; 11 (4) Specifying a time frame for the temporary permit to 12 practice; 13 (5) Requiring persons granted a temporary permit to 14 practice to consent to and certify various 15 obligations, including being under the authority of 16 the board of public accountancy and paying all 17 applicable taxes to the State; and 
	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 1 
	lllffll~!IIIIH~IIIWffl~~IIH~lmlHIHl~~!l~IIIIIIHl~~~Hl~~rn11~1111 
	ll
	lll

	Page 2 2059 S.D. 1
	S.B. NO. 
	1 (6) Making conforming amendments to the laws relating to 2 public accountancy. 
	3 SECTION 2. Chapter 466, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 
	4 amended by adding a new section to be appropriately designated 5 and to read as follows: 
	6 "§466-Temporary permits to practice. (a) The board 
	7 may grant a temporary permit to persons who wish to actively 8 engage in the practice of public accountancy for a limited 
	9 period of time in Hawaii. The temporary permit to practice 
	10 granted pursuant to this section shall be limited to attest, 11 peer review, or litigation support services. 12 (b) The temporary permit to practice may be granted to any 13· person who: 
	14 ill Has attained eighteen years of age; 15 ill Is a United States citizen, a United States national, 16 or an alien authorized to work in the United States; 17 ill Possesses a history of competence, trustworthiness, 18 and fair dealing; 19 fil Holds a valid license of certified public accountant 20 or of public accountant issued under the laws of 21 another state or Unit ed States jurisdiction; 
	2 
	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

	1111111m11~11~11m111m11m1~1H1mJllll!IIIHlll!~ll~IOO~IIIIIIH~ 
	Page 3 2059 S.D.1
	S.B. NO. 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	ill 
	Incidental to the person's practice in such other 

	2 
	2 
	state or 
	jurisdiction, 
	desires to practice public 

	3 
	3 
	accountancy in this State on a 
	temporary, 
	and not 
	a 

	4 
	4 
	permanent 
	or recurring, basis; and 

	5 
	5 
	ill 
	Has completed an 
	application in a 
	form and method 

	6 
	6 
	prescribed by the board and paid any applicable fees 

	7 
	7 
	for a 
	temporary permit 
	to practice. 

	8 
	8 
	(c) 
	No person shall commence 
	public accountancy services 

	9 
	9 
	in Hawaii 
	on a 
	temporary basis without first obtaining a 

	10 
	10 
	temporary permit 
	to practice under this section. 

	11 
	11 
	(d) 
	A temporary permit to practice issued under this 

	12 
	12 
	section shall be effective for a 
	period not exceeding 
	one 

	·13 
	·13 
	hundred twenty cumulative days 
	in any twelve-month period, 

	14 
	14 
	unless .otherwise extended at the discretion of the board for 

	15 
	15 
	complicated attest, 
	peer review, 
	or 
	litigation support services, 

	16 
	16 
	and shall specify the nature and extent of the practice so 

	17 
	17 
	permitted. 
	A temporary permit issued pursuant to this section 

	18 
	18 
	may be renewed in a 
	subsequent year. 
	More than three requests 
	-


	19 
	19 
	for temporary permits to practice within three years shall be 

	20 
	20 
	prima facie evidence that the individual is engaged in the 


	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	11r11~1111 Mmmm1m111111m11;1~~1110~~~~1m1~1111111~1111~11~1111 
	111

	Page4 2059 S.D.1
	S.B. NO. 
	1 active practice of public accountancy in Hawaii and a permit 2 issued under section 466-7 shall be required. 3 (e) A licensee of another state or jurisdiction who 4 obtains a temporary permit to practice shall consent and certify 5 to: 6 ill The personal and subject matter jurisdiction and 7 disciplinary authority of the board; 8 ill Comply with this chapter and the rules adopted by the 9 board; 
	10 ill Cease to offer or render professional services in this 11 State as an individual and on behalf of the licensee's 12 accountancy firm if: 13 (A) The license from the state of the licensee's 14 principal place of business is no longer current 15 and active; or 16 ill The licensee's practice has been limited or 17 conditioned in any jurisdiction, including the 18 licensee' s principal place of business; 19 ill Notify the board within fifteen days if: 20 (A) Any disciplinary .action relating to the 21 in
	20l8-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 4 
	l~Wl~lllllllillllllllll~lilll11~1111~l~llllllll~lmlml~Hllillllmlllll~ll~~ll~lm 
	lll

	Page 5 S.D.1
	2059 

	S.B. NO. 
	1 jurisdiction, or proceeding by the board against 2 the licensee; or 3 (B} The licensee is convicted of any criminal offense 4 in any state, jurisdiction, or country; 5 ill Not to assume, use a title or designation, or use any 6 other title, designation, words, letters, sign, card, 7 or device that would tend to indicate that the person 8 is a certified public accountant licensed in Hawaii or 9 public accountant licensed in Hawaii; 
	10 ill Provide the name and general excise tax license number 11 of the licensee's Hawaii certified public accountancy 12 firm and pay the related state income tax and any · 13 other applicable taxes associated with the practice of 14 public· accountancy in Hawaii; and 15 ill Pay all costs associated with any out-of-state 16 investigation, enforcement, and collection efforts 17 associated with the temporary permit to practice 18 granted under this section, as may be ordered by the 19 board. 
	11 

	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	1~~1m1111111111rn1111H1m~iMll!lll~!llllllll~ll~llrn~i111m1~~llilml~~lli 
	ll
	ll

	Page6 2059 S.D. 1 
	S.B.. NO. 
	1 SECTION 3. Section 466-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 2 amended by adding two new definitions to be appropriately 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	inserted and to read as 
	follows : 

	4 
	4 
	""Principal place of business" 
	means 

	5 
	5 
	designated by a 
	licensee for purposes of 
	a 

	6 
	6 
	practice issued under section 466' 
	-


	7 
	7 
	"Temporary permit 
	to practice" 
	means 


	the office location temporary permit to 
	a _permit to actively 
	8 practice public accountancy for a limited period of time in 
	11
	9 Hawaii issued under section 46610 SECTION 4. Section 466-7, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 11 amended to read as follows: §466-7 Permits to practice. (a) A license and permit 13 are required to actively engage in the practice of public 14 accountancy. The board may grant or renew a permit to actively 15 engage in the practice of public accountancy. Permits shall be 16 initially issued and renewed for periods of two years but in any 17 event shall expire on December 31 of every odd-numbered year. 18 The board
	-
	12 
	11 

	6 
	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 

	,~~,~~~~111m11~wm~111m11~1111111m~l~l~!IWlll~llllll~~m1111w~11~ 
	Page 7 2059 S.D.1
	S.B. NO. 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	(1) 
	A valid license; 

	2 
	2 
	(2) 
	Completed continuing professional education hours, 
	the 

	3 
	3 
	content of which shall be specified by the board which 

	4 
	4 
	may provide for special consideration by the board to 

	5 
	5 
	applicants for permit renewal when, 
	in the judgment of 

	6 
	6 
	the board, 
	full compliance with all requirements of 

	7 
	7 
	continuing education cannot 
	reasonably be met; 

	8 
	8 
	(3) 
	Completed an application; 

	9 
	9 
	(4) 
	Paid appropriate fees and assessments; 
	and 

	10 
	10 
	(5) 
	In the 
	case of 
	a 
	renewal, 
	undergone and provided proof 

	11 
	11 
	of having undergone the peer review process pursuant 

	12 
	12 
	to part II. 

	13 
	13 
	[(c) 
	'1'he board may grant a 
	temporary permit 
	to actively 

	14 
	14 
	engage in the practice of public accountancy to any person who: 

	15 
	15 
	--{-±-}
	-

	Has attained eighteen years of age; 

	16 
	16 
	-f:2-t-
	Possesses 
	a 
	history of competence, 
	trustworthiness, 

	17 
	17 
	and fair dealing, 

	18 
	18 
	-f-3+ 
	Holds 
	a 
	valid license of certified public accountant 

	19 
	19 
	or of public accountant 
	issued under the laws of 

	20 
	20 
	another state, 
	or who holds 
	a 
	valid comparable 

	21 
	21 
	certificate, registration, 
	or license 
	or degree from 
	a 


	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	1m1~1m11Hm~mm~11H11m1m1100~,1~11111m1~1~111111 
	Page 8 2059 S.D. 1
	S.B. NO. 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	foreign country determined by the board to be 
	a 

	TR
	I 

	2 
	2 
	recognized qualification for the practice of public 

	3 
	3 
	accountancy in ouch other countrj'; 

	4 
	4 
	-f-4-t-
	Incidental to the person's practice in such other 

	5 
	5 
	state or country, 
	desires 
	to practice public 

	6 
	6 
	accountancy in this State on a 
	temporarf basis, 
	and 

	7 
	7 
	+s+ 
	Has 
	completed an 
	application. 

	8 
	8 
	Such permit shall be effective for a 
	period not exceeding three 

	9 
	9 
	months, 
	and ·shall specify the nature and mctent 
	of the practice 

	10 
	10 
	so permitted. 

	11 
	11 
	-(-a-)-] 
	(c} 
	All firms 
	shall obtain a 
	permit to practice. 
	The 

	12 
	12 
	board may issue or renew a 
	permit to actively engage in the 

	13 
	13 
	practice of public accountancy to any firm which submits a 

	14 
	14 
	completed application and demonstrates qualifications 
	as 

	15 
	15 
	prescribed by the board. 

	16 
	16 
	[-fe-}-] 
	-(d} 
	Failure to submit the required fees, 
	continuing 

	17 
	17 
	education hours, 
	or other requirements for renewal 
	as 
	specified 

	18 
	18 
	in this section by December 31 of every odd-numbered year, 
	shall 

	19 
	19 
	constitute forfeiture of the permit. 
	Continued performance in 

	20 
	20 
	the practice of public accountancy without 
	a 
	permit shall 


	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	1~11~1~11111 ~llilllll~~ll~l~ll~~l~l l~~l!llil~l!llilllll~I Ii 
	ll
	llll

	Page 9 2059 S.D. 1 
	S.B. NO. 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	constitute unlicensed activity and the individual or .firm shall 

	2 
	2 
	be subject to sections 466-9, 
	466-11, 
	487-13, 
	and 26-9. 

	3 
	3 
	[+€-}-] 
	M 
	The board may restore forfeited permits 
	to the 

	4 
	4 
	individual 
	or 
	firm 
	[which] 
	that satisfies the following: 

	s 
	s 
	(1) 
	The 
	requirements of subsection 
	(a), 
	(b), 
	or 
	(c) [-,-er 

	6 
	6 
	(d) 
	of this section]; 
	and 

	7 
	7 
	(2) 
	Payment of required fees." 

	8 
	8 
	SECTION 5. 
	Section 466-8, 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes, 
	is 

	9 
	9 
	amended by ·amending subsections 
	(d) 
	and 
	(e) 
	to read as follows: 

	10 
	10 
	11 
	(d) 
	An 
	application for the issuance of 
	a 
	biennial permit 

	11 
	11 
	to practice for 
	an 
	individual 
	or firm under section 466-7(a) 
	and 

	12 
	12 
	[-fa-t:-] 
	(c) 
	shall be accompanied by the application and permit to 

	13 
	13 
	practice fees . 

	14 
	14 
	(e) 
	An application for the issuance of 
	a 
	temporary permit 

	15 
	15 
	to practice under section 
	[466 7(c)] 
	466
	-

	shall be accompaniE:d· 

	16 
	16 
	by the application .and temporary permit 
	to practice fees . " 

	17 
	17 
	SEClION 6 . 
	Section 466-10, 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes, 
	is 

	18 
	18 
	amended by amending subsection 
	(d) 
	to read as 
	follows: 

	19 
	19 
	11 
	(d) 
	Nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit any 

	20 
	20 
	person: 


	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	l~~l~ll~lilll~l~~fflWl[II~ l~ll~l~ll~lll~~llil~ll~i~llllffilllllilli 
	S.B. NO. 
	Page 10 2059 S.D. 1
	Page 10 2059 S.D. 1
	Page 10 2059 S.D. 1

	1 
	1 
	(1) 
	Who holds 
	a 
	current 
	license of certified public 

	2 
	2 
	accountant issued under this chapter from assuming and 

	3 
	3 
	using the title and designation "certified public 

	4 
	4 
	accountant" 
	or 
	"CPA"; 
	provided that if the person does 

	5 
	5 
	not also hold a 
	current permit to practice issued 

	6 
	6 
	under this chapter, 
	the person shall clearly indicate 

	7 
	7 
	in assuming and using said title that the person does 

	8 
	8 
	not 
	hold the person's self out to be 
	in the practice 

	9 
	9 
	of public accountancy; 

	10 
	10 
	(2) 
	Who holds 
	a 
	current license of public accountant 

	11 
	11 
	issued under this chapter from assuming and using the 

	12 
	12 
	title and designation "public 
	accountant" 
	or "PA"; 

	13 
	13 
	provided that if the person does 
	not also hold a 

	14 
	14 
	current permit to practice issued under this chapter, 

	15 
	15 
	the person shall clearly indicate in assuming and 

	16 
	16 
	using the title that the person does not hold the 

	17 
	17 
	person's self out to be in the practice of public 

	18 
	18 
	accountancy; 

	19 
	19 
	(3) 
	Who holds 
	a 
	temporary practice permit issued under 

	20 
	20 
	[this chapter] . section 466
	-

	from using the title and 

	21 
	21 
	designation under which the person is generally known 

	TR
	2018-1620 
	SB2059 
	SDl 
	SMA.doc 
	10 

	TR
	11Hm11rn~111w111m111~1111111m1uoo~11~11111m~111111~111~11111~11rn 
	1111



	S.B. NO. 
	Page 11 2059 S.D.1
	Page 11 2059 S.D.1
	Page 11 2059 S.D.1

	1 
	1 
	in the state or 
	[country] 
	jurisdiction from which the 

	2 
	2 
	person received a 
	valid comparable certificate, 

	3 
	3 
	r~gi.stration, 
	or license for the practice of ·public 

	4 
	4 
	accountancy; 

	5 
	5 
	(4) 
	Who 
	is not 
	a 
	certified public accountant 
	or public 

	6 
	6 
	accountant 
	from serving as 
	an employee of, 
	or an 

	7 
	7 
	assistant to, 
	a 
	certified public accountant 
	or public 

	8 
	8 
	accountant; 
	provided that the employee 
	or assistant 

	9 
	9 
	works under the control and supervision of 
	a 
	person 

	10 
	10 
	who holds 
	a 
	current license of certified public 

	11 
	11 
	accountant 
	or of public accountant and a 
	current 

	12 
	12 
	permit 
	to practice issued under this chapter; 
	and 

	13 
	13 
	provided further that the employee or assistant does 

	14 · 
	14 · 
	not 
	issue any statement 
	or report over the person•s 

	15 
	15 
	name 
	except office reports 
	to the person's employer 
	as 

	16 
	16 
	are 
	customary, 
	and that the employee 
	or assistant is 

	17 
	17 
	not 
	in any manner held out 
	to the public 
	as 
	a 

	18 
	18 
	certified public accountant 
	or public accountant; 

	19 
	19 
	(5) 
	Who 
	is an 
	officer, employee, partner, 
	or principal of 

	20 
	20 
	any organization from signing or affixing the person•s 

	21 
	21 
	name 
	to any statement or report in reference to the 

	TR
	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	11 

	TR
	11m11Hllllll~l!IIIIWl~lll~lll~Hffll!~~,m1~111~11m11H~llrn~1~~rn 


	Page 12 
	S.D.1
	S.B. NO. 
	S.B. NO. 
	2059 

	1 
	1 
	1 
	affairs of that organization; provided that in so 

	2 
	2 
	signing or affixing the person's name 
	the person shall 

	3 
	3 
	clearly indicate that the person is an officer, 

	4 
	4 
	employee, 
	partner, 
	or principal of the organization, 

	5 
	5 
	and the position, 
	title, 
	or office which the person 

	6 
	6 
	holds therein; 

	7 
	7 
	(6) 
	Who 
	is a 
	public official or public employee from the 

	8 
	8 
	performance of the person's duties 
	as 
	such; 
	or 

	9 
	9 
	(7) 
	Who 
	is an attorney at law from engaging in practice 
	as 

	10 
	10 
	such. 11 

	11 
	11 
	SECTION 7 . 
	Statutory material to be repealed i s 
	bracketed 

	12 
	12 
	and stricken. 
	New statutory material is underscored. 

	13 
	13 
	SECTION 8 . 
	This Act shall take effect on January 1, 
	2019. 

	14 
	14 


	2018-1620 SB2059 SDI SMA.doc 
	l~HWll~Hllm~il~m~~llH!lll~l~IHmi~IIHm 
	ll
	lllllll
	11
	ll

	S.D.1
	S.B. NO. 
	S.B. NO. 
	2059 

	Report Title: 
	Report Title: 
	Certified Public Accountants; Temporary Permits to Practice; State Board of Public Acco~ntancy 

	Description: 
	Description: 
	Specifies who may be granted a temporary permit to practice public accountancy. Specifies the requirements that must be met prior to obtaining a temporary permit to practice. Requires a person to obtain a temporary permit to practice from the board of public accountancy prior to commencing public accountancy services in Hawaii. Specifies a time frame for the temporary permit to practice. Requires persons granted a temporary permit to practice to consent to and certify.various obligations, including being un
	The summary description oflegislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is not legislation orevidence oflegislative intent. 
	2018-1620 SB2059 SDl SMA.doc 
	llll~ffl l~i~illlll[l~lll~l!IDill!lll~~ijll~lll~illll~~IIH
	ll
	ll
	ll

	ll~
	ll~

	VI. Administrative Matters 
	A.Discussion and Action on the Board's Investigative Taskforce's Recommendation for the Redesign ofthe existing Website 
	Sect
	Figure

	PROPOSAL -SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD WEBSITE 

	PROJECT OVERVIEW 
	PROJECT OVERVIEW 
	The purpose of the project is to redesign the website for the DBEDT Small Business Regulatory Review Board. The new site will allow the agency to easily administer and update their own website content, provide a mobile friendly layout that works across all mobile devices and tablets, and meet ADA requirements. 

	PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 
	PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 
	The total project development cost will + $767.11 Hawaii GET). 
	be $17,047.11 ($16,280 

	-l~-~ 
	Task 
	Task 
	Task 
	Fee 

	Analysis 
	Analysis 
	$2,200 

	Design prototypes 
	Design prototypes 
	$3,840 

	Development 
	Development 
	$5,720 

	Content Migration 
	Content Migration 
	$2,160 

	QA Testing 
	QA Testing 
	$1,120 

	Training 
	Training 
	$480 

	Launch 
	Launch 
	$760 

	TR
	Tota l Fees 
	$16,280 + GET 


	HIC will invoice SBRRB for the project developments costs per the following schedule. 
	Deliverable 
	Deliverable 
	Deliverable 
	Invoice Amount 

	Website deployed to TEST 
	Website deployed to TEST 
	$3,409.42 

	Training session complete 
	Training session complete 
	$3,409.42 

	Website deployed to PROD 
	Website deployed to PROD 
	$3,409.42 

	90 days post launch (Final 
	90 days post launch (Final 
	$6,818.85 

	payment) 
	payment) 


	Figure
	PROJECT GOALS 
	PROJECT GOALS 
	SBRRB has an existing website located at: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb. The ultimate goal of the redesign is to bring awareness of the boards existence to the many small businesses and agencies that it serves. HIC will work closely with SBRRB to collect, develop and design the new website through facilitated meetings. Additional goals include the following: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Modern design 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	More visuals and photos 

	o 
	o 
	Less of a government feel 

	o 
	o 
	Mobile friendly design 

	o 
	o 
	Social media integration 



	• 
	• 
	• 
	Capture email signups for their newsletter 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	Collect additional information including which government departments a user is most interested in so the SBRRB can target email distribution lists by subject area, e.g., those just wanting notification of DLNR rule changes, etc. 

	o 
	o 
	Integrate site with their existing Mailchimp platform 



	• 
	• 
	• 
	Improved, easier to understand language 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	Rebrand the term 'regulation review card' to get more responses and update form fields that are submitted 

	o 
	o 
	o 
	Create visual graphics or improved text explanations for explaining the various ways folks can be involved, such as: 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	How rules are made 

	• 
	• 
	What you can do as a small business 

	• 
	• 
	How to submit testimony 





	• 
	• 
	Provide more news on the overall activities of the board 

	• 
	• 
	Recruit speakers/testifiers for meetings 

	• 
	• 
	Recruit new members for the board 



	PROPOSED SITEMAP 
	PROPOSED SITEMAP 
	A proposed sitemap may include the following topics (but will be revised as goals are finalized during the design workshops). 
	a. About the board 
	Mission, history & governance 
	About the SBRRB 
	Board meetings 
	Board meeting minutes -with archive 
	Meet the board members -with photos & bios 
	Annual reports 
	Calendar -Include board meeting dates, public hearing notices, dates for rule changes and other activities as needed. 
	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	Regulation review card -Name to be changed but mimic similar functionality. 

	c. 
	c. 
	Small business impact statements -Pre and post hearing -Allow state and county agencies to upload the "small business impact statements" and "small business statements after public hearing" and then submit the completed statements along w ith any other related information as well as copies of the administrative rules. 


	d. 
	d. 
	d. 
	News 

	e. 
	e. 
	How rules are made 


	How process works What you can do as a small business How rules are made Submit testimony Legislative links 
	f. Contact Us 
	Links to SBA, Chamber of commerce, other orgs 
	g. Legislature 
	Spotlight new bills Legislation that impacts small business 
	STAGE 1: ANALYSIS 
	USER NEEDS ARE RESEARCHED AND IDENTIFIED 
	USER NEEDS ARE RESEARCHED AND IDENTIFIED 
	This initial phase includes conducting a content review of all existing sites, analyzing similar 'competitor' sites such as other SBRRB boards in various states, initial stakeholder meetings and consolidating o ur findings. 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
	Content review of existing website/ related sites 
	Content review of existing website/ related sites 
	Content review of existing website/ related sites 
	Sr PM Designer 
	4 2 
	$120 $80 
	$480 $160 

	Initial stakeholder meetings+ discussions -all stakeholders 
	Initial stakeholder meetings+ discussions -all stakeholders 
	Sr PM Designer 
	6 4 
	$120 $80 
	$720 $320 

	Consolidate & present stakeholder findings 
	Consolidate & present stakeholder findings 
	Sr PM Designer 
	3 2 
	$120 $80 
	$360 $160 

	Sub total 
	Sub total 
	21 
	$2,200 


	STAGE 2: DESIGN PROTOTYPES 

	A PROTOTYPE IS BUILT TO MEET THE MAIN USER NEEDS 
	A PROTOTYPE IS BUILT TO MEET THE MAIN USER NEEDS 
	The site will be designed per the SBRRB's requirements gathered during the initial website discussion meetings. A goal of this project is to give the site a more modern design, with more visuals and photos, and provide less of a "government" look and feel. The site will be responsive and work across a variety of mobile devices and tablets. Wireframes or visual mockups will be created as needed and presented as each is completed for feedback. 
	Description 
	Description 
	Description 
	Role 
	Hours 
	Rate (h) Total 

	Website design 
	Website design 
	Sr PM Designer 
	2 18 
	$120 $80 
	$240 $1,440 

	Document/ present work 
	Document/ present work 
	Sr PM Designer 
	2 3 
	$120 $80 
	$240 $240 

	Iterations based on feedback 
	Iterations based on feedback 
	Sr PM Designer 
	2 12 
	$120 $80 
	$240 $960 

	Document / present work 
	Document / present work 
	Sr PM Designer 
	2 3 
	$120 $80 
	$240 $240 

	TR
	Sub total 
	44 
	$3,840 



	STAGE 3:DEVELOPMENT 
	STAGE 3:DEVELOPMENT 
	STAGE AND TEST WORKING SOFTWARE ON THE PUBLIC WEB FOR USE BY THE TARGET AUDIENCE 
	Development accounts for building the website within the Word Press system. The site will adhere to the ADA accessibility requirements listed in the Comptroller's memorandum 2010-28 dated August 25, 2010. 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
	Initial dev setup (GIT, project folder/assets) 
	Initial dev setup (GIT, project folder/assets) 
	Initial dev setup (GIT, project folder/assets) 
	Developer Sys Admin 
	4 2 
	$80 $100 
	$320 $200 

	Create WordPress parent theme (search, 404, etc) 
	Create WordPress parent theme (search, 404, etc) 
	Developer 
	25 
	$80 
	$2,000 

	Build site (Set up child theme, styles, install plugins, create 
	Build site (Set up child theme, styles, install plugins, create 

	CPT's, add features) 
	CPT's, add features) 
	Developer 
	40 
	$80 
	$3,200 

	TR
	Sub total 
	71 
	$5,720 


	STAGE 4: CONTENT MIGRATION 
	MIGRATING TEXT AND IMAGES TO THE NEW SITE 
	HIC will create all pages and migrate all content to provide a finished website ready for launch. 
	Description 
	Description 
	Description 
	Role 
	Hours Rate (h) Total 

	Migrate all text and documents from current site to new 
	Migrate all text and documents from current site to new 
	Sr PM 
	14 

	site. Reformat content to remove unused marku 
	site. Reformat content to remove unused marku 
	. ...... 


	STAGE 5: QA TESTING · 
	FINAL QUALITY ANALYSIS TESTING 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total Sr PM 4 $120 $480 
	Final testing prior to launch (usability, ADA, function) 
	Developer 8 $80 $640 Sub total 12 $1,120 
	STAGE 6: TRAINING 

	LEARN TO MANAGE YOUR WEBSITE AFTER LAUNCH 
	LEARN TO MANAGE YOUR WEBSITE AFTER LAUNCH 
	1 hands on training session provided for up to 12 users at HIC's office. Users will learn how to manage website and make all updates. A help guide will be provided. 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
	1 training session Write user hel manual Sr PM 2 
	STAGE 7: LAUNCH 
	THE WEBSITE IS LIVE TO THE PUBLIC 
	Description Role Hours Rate (h) Total 
	Coordinate launch with SBRRB & ETS. Site to be hosted at Sr PM 2 ETS. 
	HOSTING & MAINTENANCE 
	Typically, agencies prefer to host their site with the state at ETS for no cost. No ongoing support will be provided by HIC (outside 90-day window after launch) and all ongoing maintenance would be provided by the ETS team . 
	Alternately you can choose to host with us. HIC would administer and manage the WordPress installation for this site. The rate would be $1,200 + GET annually. Hosting includes: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Website traffic statistics using Google analytics 

	• 
	• 
	Weekly backups and system administration (updates, plugins, etc) 

	• 
	• 
	File storage 

	• 
	• 
	Licensing 

	• 
	• 
	Support by HIC staff 

	• 
	• 
	Backups & security scans 





	SCIIEDULE ESTIMATES 
	SCIIEDULE ESTIMATES 
	The project will be carried out according to a Milestone Schedule, which will be agreed upon by HIC and SBRRB. Four week phases are estimated due to the fact that the board meets once per month and any necessary approvals that have to happen may be done during this time. 
	It is understood that the milestones and timeline below are estimated, and may be changed to accommodate new requirements ofSBRRB or HIC, or to comply with guidance received by HIC from the Access Hawaii Committee. All time estimates can be extended if mutually agreed upon. 
	Milestone Schedule 
	Milestone Schedule 
	Milestone Schedule 

	Estimated 
	Estimated 

	Completion 
	Completion 

	Date 
	Date 
	Description 
	Deliverable 

	TBD 
	TBD 
	Complete Statement of Work 
	Signed SOW 

	4 weeks 
	4 weeks 
	Design workshop phase 
	Site map 

	4 weeks 
	4 weeks 
	Approval to proceed (From SBRRB) 
	Sign off 

	4 weeks 
	4 weeks 
	Design prototype phase 
	Design prototype 

	4 weeks 
	4 weeks 
	Approval to proceed {From SBRRB) 
	Sign off 

	3 weeks 
	3 weeks 
	Development phase 
	Website deployed in TEST environment 

	2 weeks 
	2 weeks 
	Approval to proceed {From SBRRB) 
	Sign off 

	TR
	One training session for SBRRB 

	2 weeks 
	2 weeks 
	SBRRB training and review 
	personnel 

	5 days 
	5 days 
	Deployment request {From SBRRB) 
	Sign off 

	TR
	Website deployed in PROD 

	1 week 
	1 week 
	Website live 
	environment 

	90 days 
	90 days 
	Final acceptance (From SBRRB) 
	Final payment and signofffrom SBRRB 


	VI. Administrative Matters 
	B. Discussion on Governor's Administrative Directive No. 18-02, dated January 1, 2018 
	Figure
	EXECUT I VE CHA M BERS 
	HO IIO LULU 
	DAVID I GE 
	January 1, 2018 
	GOVERNOR 
	ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE NO. 18-02 
	To: Department Directors 
	Subject: Policy and Procedure for the Adoption, Amendment, or Repeal of Hawaii Administrative Rules 
	This administrative directive updates the policy and procedure by which departments or agencies shall request executive approval of any proposed adoption, amendment, or r.epeal of administrative rules. It replaces Administrative Directive No. 09-01, Policy and Procedure for the Adoption, Amendment, or Repeal of Administrative Rules, dated October 29, 2009. 
	Legal References: 
	Legal References: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 91 

	2. 
	2. 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 201 M, the "Hawaii Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act," requires that if a proposed rule "affects small business," the department or agency shall submit a "small business impact statement" and a "small business statement" to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board. Chapter 201 M does not apply to emergency rulemaking or rules adopted to comply with a federal requirement. 



	Policy: 
	Policy: 
	1. All requests regarding Hawaii Administrative Rules must be submitted through Hawaii Administrative Rules.Processing Site (HARPS). 
	/ 
	https://hawaiioimt.sharepoint.com/sites/gov/adminrules

	Prior to· all submittals, the department must obtain the Attorney General's approval "as to form". 
	2. Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act 
	In accordance with Chapter 201 M, the department must complete the following 
	steps before submitting a request to conduct public hearing if the proposed rule 
	affects small business: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Complete Small Business Impact Statement 

	i. See HRS Section 201 M-2 

	b. 
	b. 
	Submit Small Business Impact Statement and proposed rules to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board 


	3. Public Hearing Approval 
	In the request to conduct public hearing, the department will provide response to the following: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Summary of changes 

	i. Why is this section of Hawaii Administrative Rules being amended? 
	ii. What problem is the rule change meant to solve? 
	iii. List all changes that are being made. 

	b. 
	b. 
	b. 
	Impact of changes 

	i. How does this rule change address the problem? 
	ii. Who are the stakeholders? Positive and negative. 
	iii. What are the potential problems with the rule change? 
	iv. 
	iv. 
	iv. 
	What is the fiscal impact? 

	v. 
	v. 
	What is the economic impact to the State? 



	c. 
	c. 
	Consequences if changes are not made 


	i. What are the consequences if the rule change does not get adopted, amended or repealed? 
	4. Public Hearings 
	Upon approval of public hearing request, the department must enter ·all public hearing dates, times, and locations into HARPS. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	The department must be considerate of all parties being affected and schedule public hearings to allow for adequate feedback. 

	b. 
	b. 
	The department must accept written t~stimony from all parties who are unable to attend the public hearing.· 

	c. 
	c. 
	The department will be responsible for transcribing the testimony from the public hearing into a public hearing summary document that will be required upon submittal of Final Rule. 


	5. Final Rule 
	In the request for approval of Final Rule, the department will provide response to 
	the following: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Changes in Final Rule 

	i. What changes were made in the Final Rule? 
	ii. Why were these changes made? 

	b. 
	b. 
	Other 


	i. Describe how the department has worked with stakeholders to gain support for the rule? 
	ii. Have potential problems been addressed? Do the same problems exist with the Final Rule? 
	iii. Does the Office of the Governor staff need to meet with any people/organizations before the Governor signs this Final Rule? 
	6. Filing of Final Rule 
	Upon approval of Final Rule through HARPS, the Department will send 3 hard copies to Office of the Governor. When approved, these copies will be filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. Rule will take effect 10 days after filing. 
	7. Department of Budget and Finance (BUF) and Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism (BED) 
	BUF and BED will receive electronic notification upon submittal of public hearing request. Both departments will have th·e ability to submit comments and concerns through HARPS. Response will be due 10 business days after Final Rule is submitted. Comments will be optional unless the following applies: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	BUF will be required to provide response if the proposed rule has fees or other fiscal impacts. 

	b. 
	b. 
	BED will be required to provide response if the proposed rule has economic impact or affects small business. 


	Procedure: 
	1. See attached PowerPoint 
	VI. Administrative Matters 
	C. Discussion and Action on the Board's Proposed Letter to Governor Ige regarding the current Pilot Project that allows Uber and Lyft Drivers to Operate at the Honolulu International Airport 
	Figure
	David Y. lgc 
	David Y. lgc 


	Govemor 
	Luis P. Salavcria 
	Luis P. Salavcria 
	Director, DBEDT 

	Members 
	Members 
	Anthony Borge 
	Chair Oahu 
	Robert Cundiff 
	Vice Chair Oahu 
	Garth Yamanaka 
	2Vice Chair Hawaii 
	nd 

	Kyoko Kimura 
	Maui 
	Harris Nakamoto 
	Oahu 
	Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
	Oahu 
	Reg Baker 
	Oahu 
	Director, DBEDT 
	Voting Ex Officio 


	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
	Department ofBusiness, Economic Development & Tourism Tel 808 586-2594 No. I Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St., 5Fl., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804 Email: Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 
	th 
	DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

	March 22, 2018 -DRAFT 
	Governor David Y. Ige 
	State Capitol 
	Honolulu, Hawaii 
	Subject: Hawaii Department ofTranspmiation (HDOT) -Airpo1i Pilot Program 
	Dear Governor Ige: 
	Recently, the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) received the attached December 9, 2017 letter from Ms. Dale Evans, CEO, Charley's Taxi and Limousine. 
	The concerns in Ms. Evans' letter relate to a recently created pilot project that allows Uber and Lyft drivers to operate at the Honolulu International Airpo1i (HNL), which Ms. Evans claims causes an unfair, inequitable and detrimental impact to a specific group of small businesses; i.e., current taxi operators, because HDOT is allowing Uber and Lyft to operate at HNL without being subject to the same State rules, regulations, and requirements as the taxi operators. 
	In compliance with Section 201M-5(a), HRS, SBRRB considered Ms. Evan's request and raised the complaint about inequitable treatment with HDOT. SBRRB respectfully requested that HDOT explain what administrative rules applied to Uber and Lyft operations at HNL or, ifno rules applied, that HDOT consider adopting rules as such rules were needed to allow for equitable treatment ofUber, Lyft, and the taxi operators." 
	In response, HDOT stated that this is a "pilot program" and that HDOT has no plans to adopt administrative rules to provide the same regulations and requirements to Uber and Lyft drivers as applied to other vehicular transpo1i businesses operating at HNL. 
	Since there are no rules or regulations on this pilot program, and SBRRB has already recommended and been refused the adoption of such rules, there is nothing fmiher SBRRB can do in this matter. 
	Governor David Y. Ige March 22, 2018 Page2 
	A few weeks ago, HDOT announced an extension ofthe pilot program for another six months. While we are all for the growth and success ofsmall businesses here in Hawaii, which is the backbone ofour economy, we also believe that every business needs to compete on equal terms and conditions to provide a level playing field for all small businesses, especially when providing goods and services to State agencies. 
	As SBRRB can take no fmther action on this matter, we respectfully request that you review the concerns presented by Ms. Dale Evans to identify any other potential resolutions. 
	Thank you for your consideration. 
	Sincerely, 
	Anthony Borge Chairperson 
	c: Michael McCartney, Chief of Staff, Governor's Office Jade Butay, HOOT, Director Dale Evans, CEO, Charley's Taxi 
	VI. Administrative Matters 
	D.Update on the Board's Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board's Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS 
	1. Discussion and Action on Hawaii Small Business Conference to be held at Maui Arts & Cultural Center on May 2 -3, 2018 
	Any handouts will be distributed at the Board Meeting 








